
Amended Board Agenda, December, 15 2022 

 

 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING AND WORKSHOP 

 

AMENDED 
 

Board of Education Members    

Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 

Jasjit Singh (Trustee Area 2) 

Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 

Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 

Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 

Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 

Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 

Liam McGurk, Student Member 

 

Thursday, December 15, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 

 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 

Sacramento, CA  95824 
 

AGENDA 
 

2022/23-13 
 

Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 

meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 

litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 

 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 

Code section 54956.9 (Two Cases) 

b)  Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 

54956.9 (OAH Case 2022100579) (Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 

34-2021-00312193) 

 

3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  

(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 

3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment 



Amended Board Agenda, December, 15 2022 

 

 

2 

 

 

3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 

a) Principal, Rosa Parks K-8 

 

3.5 Education Code 35146- The Board will hear staff recommendations on the 

following student expulsions: Expulsion # 6,7,8, & 9 2022/2023 

 

           3.6      Government Code 54956.8 –Conference with Real Property Negotiator 

                       Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 

                      Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 

                      Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 

                      Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 

 

 
6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.2 Broadcast Statement  

 

4.3 Recognition of Outgoing Board Members                                      10 minute presentation 

 

           4.4       Cermonial Oath of Office Given to Newly Elected Board Members:         Information 
                                                                                                                                                                            10 minutes 

                       Tara Jeane 

                       Taylor Kayatta 

                       Jasjit Singh 

 

           4.5      Stellar Student- Julia Avila, a 2nd Grade student from Caleb Greenwood Elementary 

                     and Luiza Avila, a 1st Grade student from Caleb Greenwood Elementary  

 

 
7:05 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

7:10 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 

 
 

7:15 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 

in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 

two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 

heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 

discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  
 

 
 



Amended Board Agenda, December, 15 2022 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

7:30 p.m. 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
  

         8.1  Annual Organizational Meeting of the Board of Education 

   

           Election of Officers: 

  The Board Shall Elect a President, Vice President and  

  Second Vice President 

 

                        Action 
        10 minute presentation 

 

   

  
9.0      BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND 
            OTHER INITIATIVES 

 
7:40 p.m  

 

9.1  Approve Resolution No. 3301 Resolution of the Board 

      of Education of the Sacramento Unified School District 

      Designating Certain General Funds as Committed Fund 

     Balance (Rose F. Ramos) 

 

 

9.2 1st Interim Revised Budget Approval and Budget 

Calendar AND incorporate FCMAT Report Follow-

Ups (Rose F. Ramos) 

 

 

                                         Action 
                         5 minute presentation 

                           5  minute discussion 

                               

 

 

                                         Action 
                            15 minute presentation 

                           30 minute discussion 

            9.3  Annual Audit Report (Rose F. Ramos)                                         Action 
                        5 minute presentation 

                           5  minute discussion 

 
  

          9.4  Approve Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities  

  (Nathaniel Browning)  

 

 

         9.5  Approve the Submission of Credential Waiver 

               Applications to the California Commission on Teacher 

              Credentialing (Tami Mora) 

 

 

         9.6  Receive Sacramento City Teachers Association (SCTA) 

               Initial Proposal Regarding Certified Unit Collective 

              Bargaining 2022-2023 Successor Agreement Negotiations  

 

                    Conference/Action 
                     10 minute presentation 

                            10 minute discussion 

                   

                                                                       

                         Conference/Action 

                    5 minute presentation 

                              5 minute discussion 

 

                                

                               Information 
                                             2 minutes 

 



Amended Board Agenda, December, 15 2022 

 

 

4 

 

10.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

  
9:17 p.m. 10.1  Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  

 SEIU 

 TCS 

 Teamsters  

 UPE 

             Information 
          SCTA – 15 minutes  

            SEIU – 3 minutes 

             TCS – 3 minutes 

    Teamsters – 3 minutes 

            UPE – 3 minutes  

 

9:44 p.m. 10.2  District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee 

 Student Advisory Council 

 African American Advisory Board 

 

      Information 
      3 minutes each 

9:59 p.m. 10.3  Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar)         Information 
                 5 minutes 

 
10:04 p.m. 10.4  President’s Report (Christina Pritchett) Information 

5 minutes 

 
10:09 p.m. 10.5  Student Member Report (Liam McGurk) Information 

5 minutes 

 

10:14 p.m. 10.6      Information Sharing By Board Members Information 
10 minutes 

 

 

10:24 p.m. 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                      Action 
                                                                                                                                                                                2 minutes 

 

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board member 

may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 

11.1   Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 

  

11.1a Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements and Other Income 

Agreements, Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements, Approval of Bid 

Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment, Change 

Notices and Notices of Completion (Rose F. Ramos) 
 

11.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 



Amended Board Agenda, December, 15 2022 

 

 

5 

11.1c Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers issued for the Period of November 1-30, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 

 

11.1d    Approve Donations to the District for the Period of November 1-30, 2022 

(Rose F. Ramos) 

 

11.1e    Approve C.K. McClatchy High School Gonzaga Debate Tournament in 

Spokane, WA from Jan 5-8, 2023 (Lisa Allen & Vanessa Buitrago) 

 

11.1f    Approve Recommendations for Measure H Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 

Membership (Rose F. Ramos) 

 

11.1g   Approve Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District Site Use 

Agreement for Outdoor Air Quality Monitoring at Fern Bacon Middle School 

(Rose F. Ramos) 

 

11.1h   Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsions, # 6,7,8, & 9 2022/2023 (Lisa 

Allen and Stephan Brown) 

 

11.1i  Approve Resolution No. 3299: Authorizing Delegation of Power to Contract 

(Rose F. Ramos) 

 

11.1j  Approve Resolution No. 3300: Authorization of Personnel to Sign Orders on 

District Funds (Rose F. Ramos) 

 

11.1k  Approve A-G Completion Grant Plan (CDE) 2022-2025 (Erin Hanson and 

Vanessa Buitrago) 

 

    11.1l  Approve Minutes of the May 5, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  

   (Jorge A. Aguilar) 

 

 
  10:26 p.m. 12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information 

                         12.1  Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 2, Ending Friday,  

                           October 21, 2022 and Purchase Order Board Report for the Period 

                           of October 15, 2022 through November 14, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 

  
 

10:28 p.m.            13.0   FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 

 January 19, 2023 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting  

 

 February 2, 2023 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
 



Amended Board Agenda, December, 15 2022 

 

 

6 

10:30 p.m. 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 

public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 

services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 

48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 

accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   

Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and 

relating to an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu 

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 4.3 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
 
Subject:  Recognition of Outgoing Board Members 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Board Office 
 
 
Recommendation:  None 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Engagement 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 

Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 4.4 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Ceremonial Oath of Office Given to Newly Elected Board Members 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board Office 
 
 
Recommendation:  None 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
 
Documents Attached:  None 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 

Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 8.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Annual Organizational Meeting of the Board of Education 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Elect a President, Vice President, and Second Vice President on 
Thursday, December 15, 2022, at the Board of Education Organizational Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Under the provisions of Education Code §35143, the Board of 
Education is required to set an annual organizational meeting “within a 15-day period 
that commences with the date upon which a governing board member elected at that 
election takes office.”  The Board shall elect a President, Vice President, and Second 
Vice President.  The Superintendent serves as the Secretary to the Board.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy 
and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:  None 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 

Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item#_9.1__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3301 Resolution of the Board of Education of the 

Sacramento City Unified School District Designating Certain General Funds     
as Committed Fund Balance  

 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/Second Reading (Action Anticipated: _____)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3301 and rescind prior Resolution No 3279. 
Resolution No. 3301 will commits utilizing portions of its general fund ending balance, as 
indicated by the committed fund classification in its financial statements, for the following 
purposes: 
 

  

Purpose Estimated Amount
History/Social Science and World Language Textbook Adoption 13,000,000                             
3% Additional Reserve per board policy 3100 23,325,134                             

Total Committed Amount $36,325,134  
 
Background/Rationale:  In order to comply with California Education Code 42127.01 
(a) which imposes a 10% cap on districts’ combined assigned and unassigned reserves.  
The 10% cap is based on the total general fund expenditures, transfers out and other 
uses.  
 
Failure to comply may result in one of the following consequences: 
 

1. Disapproved budget 
2. Conditionally approved budget and requirement to address the excess fund 

balance to receive approval 
3. Approved budget with comment regarding excess fund balance and directive to 

remedy the condition 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Financial Considerations:  Commit funds for intended purposes in order to comply with 
Education Code 42127.01(a). 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Executive Summary 
2. Resolution No. 3301  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Estimated Time:  5 min presentation & 5 minute discussion 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 

Business Services  1 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
Resolution to Commit Funds  
December 15, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Proposition 2 was approved by California voters in 2014 to establish the Public School System 
Stabilization Account (PSSSA).  The intent of this reserve also referred to as the Proposition 98 rainy day 
fund is to protect schools by providing stability to the state budget during fiscally challenging periods.  
Education Code 42127.01(a) further states that when the PSSA balance reaches or exceeds 3% of the total 
Proposition 98 expenditures, a 10% cap on districts’ combined assigned and unassigned reserves is 
triggered.  The State’s 2021-2022 budget included deposits into the PSSSA triggering the 10% cap for 
school districts effective for the 2022-2023 budget.  Additionally, the Governor’s 2022-2023 budget 
proposal includes additional deposits into the PSSSA which may cause the 10% cap to remain in effect 
beyond 2022-2023. 
 
School districts with reserves above the 10% cap have three options to satisfy this requirement: 
 

1. Spend down the excess reserves on one-time programs supported by a defined plan.  For example, 
a technology initiative, a facility project, etc. 
 

2. Seek a temporary waiver from the county superintendent per Education Code 42127.01(b). 
Education Code Section 42127.01(b) provides that a district may be exempt from the cap for up to 
two consecutive fiscal years within a three-year period based on documents indicating that 
extraordinary fiscal circumstances substantiate the need for the excess reserves. Further, the statute 
requires a district to do all of the following:  

a. Provide a statement that substantiates the need for a combined assigned and unassigned 
ending general fund balance that is more than 10%.  

b. Identify the funding amounts in the budget adopted by the district that are associated with 
extraordinary fiscal circumstances.  

c. Provide documentation that no other fiscal resources are available to fund the extraordinary 
fiscal circumstances. Keep in mind if extraordinary fiscal circumstances exist, then so does 
the justification to commit funds.  
 

Note that FCMAT recommends against seeking a county superintendent waiver unless the county 
superintendent has expressed a willingness to consider such waivers. Also, a waiver is valid only 
for up to two consecutive years.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY: 



 

Business Services  2 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
Resolution to Commit Funds  
December 15, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
3. Reclassify any unassigned or assigned components of the fund balance to the committed or 

restricted category of the fund balance consistent with GASB 54.  Committing funds will include 
the following key provisions:  

a. Committed fund balance includes amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Board. 
b. All commitments of funds shall be approved by a majority vote of the Board. The 

constraints shall be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period (June 30), 
although the actual amounts may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to the 
issuance of the financial statements. 

   
The District recommends option 3, board approval to commit funds in order to comply with the 10% 
cap limitation. 
 
II. DRIVING GOVERNANCE: 
 

 Education Code section 42103 requires the governing board of each school district shall hold a 
public hearing on the proposed budget in a school district facility, or some other place conveniently 
accessible to the residents of the school district for public inspection. 

 Education Code section 42127 requires the Governing Board of each school district to adopt a 
budget on or before July 1st. Article XIII section 36(e)(6) requires the Governing Board to 
approve Education Protection Account proposed expenditures in open session of a public 
meeting. The budget to be adopted shall be prepared in accordance with Education Code section 
42126. The adopted budget shall be submitted to the County Office of Education. The County 
Office of Education will determine if the district will be able to meet its financial obligations 
during the fiscal year and ensure a financial plan that will enable the district to satisfy its multi-
year financial commitments. 

 
 
III. BUDGET:   
 
The District’s 2022-23 First Interim General Fund projects an estimated ending fund balance of $189.6 
million. After accounting for restricted balances and non-spendable funds, the total assigned and 
unassigned is projected at $95.1M approximately.  The District’s 10% reserve cap is calculated at $77.7M 
approximately, therefore, reserves are estimated at $17.4M above the cap.  The table below provides the 
calculations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Business Services  3 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
Resolution to Commit Funds  
December 15, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2022-23 1st Interim Reserve Cap Calculation 
 

 
 
The District recommends the following one-time commitments for unfunded programs in the 2022-2023 
budget. 

 
 
The commitments of approximately $36.3M listed above will address the 10% reserve cap of $77.7M.   
   
Note that the Board will retain the authority to change the purposes and/or amounts throughout the 
2022-2023 fiscal year but this action must occur prior to the close of the 2022-2023 fiscal year.  The 
District will monitor these purposes and provide a status report at each interim reporting period or as 
needed. 
 
 
IV. GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES: 
 
Maintain fiscal solvency, restore stability and address the long term financial issues of the District. 
 
 
 
 

2022-23 First Interim Budget
Projected Ending Fund Balance 189,635,809                           
Less Restricted amount (94,152,683)                            
Less Nonspendable (325,000)                                 
Total Assigned/Unassigned $95,158,126

Total Expenditures 778,730,007                           
Plus (Less) transfers in/out (1,225,524)                              
Total Net Expenditures 777,504,483                           

10% Reserve Cap $77,750,448

Amount Above Reserve Cap To Be Committed $17,407,678

Commitments:
Purpose Estimated Amount

History/Social Science and World Language Textbook Adoption 13,000,000                             
3% Additional Reserve per board policy 3100 23,325,134                             

Total Committed Amount $36,325,134



 

Business Services  4 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
Resolution to Commit Funds  
December 15, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
V. MAJOR INITIATIVES: 

• Continued analysis of information from the State and its impact on the District’s  
Budget 

 
VI. RESULTS: 
 
Budget development for 2023-24 will follow the calendar and timeline approved by the Board.  
Required Board actions will take place in a timely manner to ensure a balanced Adopted Budget is in 
place on or before July 1, 2023. 
 
 
VII. LESSONS LEARNED/NEXT STEPS: 
 

 Follow the approved calendar with adjustments made as necessary. 
 Continue to monitor the state budget and its impact on the district finances. 
 Continue to monitor the District and state fiscal health. 
 Continue to engage stakeholders in the budget development process through community 

budget meetings. 
 Meet and communicate with bargaining unit partners. 
 Ensure compliance with all LCFF and LCAP requirements. 

 



SACARMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 BOARD OF EDUCATION 

RESOLUTION NO. 3301 

Resolution #3301 Of The Board Of Education Of The Sacramento City Unified School District 

Designating Certain General Funds As Committed Fund Balance 

WHEREAS, the Governmental Standards Accounting Board (GASB) has issued Statement 

No. 54, establishing a hierarchy clarifying constraints that govern how a government entity can 

use amounts reported as fund balance; and  

WHEREAS, the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education (Board) has 

previously adopted Board Policy 3100 acknowledging its authority to commit, assign, or 

evaluate existing fund‐balance classifications and identify the intended uses of committed or 

assigned funds; and  

WHEREAS, the committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to 

specific internal constraints self‐imposed by the Board; and  

WHEREAS, once the committed fund‐balance constraints are imposed, it requires the 

constraint to be revised, removed or redirected for other purposes by the Board in the same 

manner as the Board originally approved the commitment; and  

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2022, the Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified 

School District adopted Resolution No. 3279 commiting portions of its general fund ending 

balance, which is hereby rescinded; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined it has specific needs that it elects to fund with 

portions of its General Fund ending fund balance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sacramento City Unified School District 

Board of Education, hereby commits to utilizing portions of its general fund ending balance, as 

indicated by the committed fund classification in its financial statements, for the following 

purposes: 

Purpose Estimated Amount
History/Social Science and World Language Textbook Adoption 13,000,000
3% Additional Reserve per board policy 3100 23,325,134

Total Committed Amount $36,325,134



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that such funds cannot be used for any purposes other than 

directed above, unless the Board adopts a successor resolution to revise or remove the 

constraint, or otherwise redirect the funds for other purposes; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the district’s Superintendent, or their designee, is 

hereby authorized and directed to finalize the amounts to be committed for the purposes 

directed above based on the unaudited actual financial report for fiscal year 2022‐23 no later 

than September 15, 2023. 

          PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education of the Sacramento City Unified School 

District on the 15th day of December, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 

 

ATTESTED TO: 

 

 

______________________________        ____________________________ 

Jorge A. Aguilar            Christina Pritchett 

Secretary of the Board of Education        President of the Board of Education 
 



Page 1 of 2 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 9.2___ 

 
 
 

 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  2022-23 First Interim Financial Report and FCMAT Update 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the 2022-23 First Interim Financial Report with a Positive 
Certification. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code Section 42130 requires school districts to 
prepare Interim Financial Reports each year. The intent of these reports is to provide an 
“early warning” system to indicate whether a district can meet its current or future year 
financial obligations. This is the first of three interim financial reports presented to the 
Board of Education for the 2022-23 fiscal year. The report provides financial information 
as of October 31, 2022, projections for the remaining 2022-23 fiscal year and multi-year 
projections for 2023-24 and 2024-25 fiscal years. 
 
Financial Considerations:  The District is projected to satisfy the 2% required reserve 
for economic uncertainties and maintain a positive cash flow for the current and two 
subsequent years.  The District projects a combined surplus of $79.8M for 2022-23, 
$19.8M for 2023-24 and a deficit of ($30.3M) in 2024-25.   
 
The District is projecting to be able to meet its financial obligations for the current and 
subsequent two years; therefore, the District self certifies with a positive certification. 
The District will continue to work closely with the Sacramento County Fiscal Advisor due 
to the District’s Adopted Budgets being disapproved for three prior years (2018-2019, 
2019-2020 and 2020-2021) and conditionally approved for 2021-22 and 2022-2023.    
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; College, Career and Life Ready 
Graduates; Operational Excellence 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
 
1.  Executive Summary 
2.  FCMAT Fiscal Health Risk Analysis Update 
3.  2022-23 First Interim Financial Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  15 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business & Operations Officer 
   Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent Business Services 
Approved by:   Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                1 
 

I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY 
 
Interim financial reports provide information on district’s financial condition for the fiscal year 
and two subsequent years.  The Governing Board of a school district certifies the district’s 
financial condition to the county office of education through these reports. The First Interim 
Report reflects actual financial activity for the period of July 1st through October 31st, 2022 and 
projects financial activity through June 30th, 2023.  The First Interim Report contains 
summarized and detailed budget information, multi-year projections, and estimated cash flow 
reports. The State budget and budget guidelines provided by the California Department of 
Education, Department of Finance, county offices of education, School Services of California, 
and other professional organizations provide the guidance for districts to develop and modify 
their budgets. This is the first of the interim financial reports presented to the Governing Board 
for the 2022-23 fiscal year. 
 
The 2018-19 disapproved budget qualified the District to receive independent auditing support 
from the Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team (FCMAT).   At no cost to the District, 
FCMAT conducted a Fiscal Health Risk Analysis Study of the District in October 2018.  
FCMAT presented the findings to the Governing Board at the December 13, 2018 Board 
Meeting. A matrix titled FCMAT Fiscal Health Risk Analysis was created to track the District’s 
progress to correct the findings. The District and the SCOE assigned Fiscal Advisor have worked 
together to implement FCMAT’s recommendations. 
 
The District provides regular updates on the progress made to address the FCMAT findings with 
each interim financial report. Following is a summary of the findings attempted, completed and 
remaining as of December 15, 2022: 

 

FCMAT Updates Presented
Number Identified 
FCMAT Findings

FCMAT Findings 
Updated this period

FCMAT Findings 
Completed this period

FCMAT Findings 
Completed

FCMAT Findings 
Remaining

February 28, 2019 60 28 0 0 60
April 11, 2019 60 18 18 18 42
June 13, 2019 60 23 1 19 41
July 23, 2019 60 10 0 19 41
November 20, 2019 60 31 7 26 34
December 19, 2019 60 0 0 26 34
March 19, 2020 60 26 1 27 33
May 8, 2020 60 36 *1 26 34**
December 10, 2020 60 28 1 27 33
March 18, 2021 60 21 3 30 30
May 20, 2021 60 20 0 30 30
September 16, 2021 60 8 0 30 30
December 16, 2021 60 28 4 34 26
March 17, 2022 60 25 5 39 21
December 15, 2022 60 20 4 43 17

*one item was moved to "completed" status while another item was moved from "complete" to "in progress". 
**two items were moved from "completed" status to "in progess" during the May 8, 2020 update.

Item #s completed for review 2, 14, 22, 32  
Item #s updated this period 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 33, 34



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                2 
 

A report of the updated findings is included in the First Interim documents and is found on the 
District’s financial webpage at https://www.scusd.edu/fcmat. 
 
II. Driving Governance 

 
● Education Code Section 42130 requires school districts to prepare interim financial 

reports each fiscal year.  The requirement includes filing two interim financial reports.  
The First Interim Report, as of October 31st, requires Board approval by December 15th. 
The Second Interim Report, as of January 31st, requires Board approval by March 15th. 
If the District is in qualified or negative status, a third financial report is required as of 
April 30, and requires Board approval by June 1st. All reports required shall be in a 
format or on forms prescribed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. 

● Education Code section 42131 requires the Board of Education to certify, in writing, 
whether the district is able to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal 
year and, based on current projections, for the subsequent two fiscal years. Certifications 
shall be based on the Board’s assessment of the district budget.  The certifications 
provided with the first and second interim reports are classified as positive, qualified, or 
negative.  A “positive” certification indicates that the district will meet its financial 
obligations for the current fiscal year as well as the two subsequent fiscal years. A 
“qualified” certification means that the district may not meet its financial obligations for 
the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years. A “negative” certification means 
that the district is unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current 
fiscal year or the future fiscal year.  This education code section also outlines the role of 
the County Office of Education. 
 

● The SCUSD Board of Trustees has revised Board Policy 3100 to establish and maintain a 
general reserve for economic uncertainty that meets or exceeds the requirements of CCR 
15443. The reserve for economic uncertainty for the District will be established at no less 
than 5% of total general fund expenditures. Under BP 3100 it is acknowledged that one-
time funding should be used for one-time expenditures and shall only be used for an on-
going expenditure as a last resort. As part of the approval of the annual budget, the Board 
shall consider any proposed use of one-time funding and shall take separate action to 
approve such uses 

 
III. Goals, Objectives and Measures 
 
Follow the timeline and take action on all necessary budget adjustments.  
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                3 
 

IV. Major Initiatives 
 

• Use the First Interim Financial Report information to guide budget development for FY 
2023-24 and 2024-25 

• Continued analysis of information from the State and its impact on the District’s budget 
 

V. Results 
 
Budget development for 2023-24 will follow the calendar and timeline approved by the Board.  
Required Board actions will take place in a timely manner to ensure a balanced Adopted Budget 
is in place on or before July 1, 2023. 
 
 
VI. Lessons Learned/Next Steps 
 

● Follow the approved calendar with adjustments made as necessary. 
● Continue to monitor the state budget and its impact on the district finances. 
● Continue to monitor the District and state fiscal health. 
● Continue to engage stakeholders in the budget development process through community 

budget meetings. 
● Meet and communicate with bargaining unit partners. 
● Ensure compliance with all LCFF and LCAP requirements. 

 
 
2022-23 First Interim Financial Report 

 
School district budgets are not static, but instead are constantly being revised to respond to 
decisions at the State and Federal levels, as well as to the expenditure needs of the district.    
District staff closely monitor enrollment, average daily attendance, State and Federal revenue 
and other areas that could impact the budget in the current or outlying years. The District’s 2022-
23 1st Interim financial report is budgeted assuming a 6.56% COLA plus additional LCFF 
investment of 6.70% for a total of 13.26% for 2022-23, 5.38% for 2023-24 and 4.02% for 2024-
25. 
 
The First Interim Financial Report includes assumptions and projections made with the best 
information available for the reporting period, and the documents attached are primarily State-
required reports but also include District documents that provide additional related financial 
details. Key information includes the budget assumptions, multi-year projections, and cash flow 
reports. 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                4 
 

Summary Analysis of the 2022-23 State Enacted Budget  
 
Local Control Funding Formula Factors 
 

Illustrated below is a comparison of projected statutory COLAs plus additional LCFF investments 
for the budget year and two subsequent years: 
  

Description	 2022‐23	 2023‐24	 2024‐25	
	
LCFF COLAs (22-23 Gov. Proposal)	

 
5.33% 

 
3.11% 

 
3.11% 

	
LCFF COLAs + Investment	
(22-23 May Revision)	

 
6.56% + 

investment ≈ 3.29%  

 
5.38% 

 
4.02% 

LCFF COLAs + Investment	
(22-23 Enacted State Budget)	

6.56% + 
investment of 6.28% 

 
5.38% 

 
4.02% 

LCFF	COLAs	+	Investment	
(22‐23	AB185	Trailer	Bill)	

6.56% + 
investment of 6.70% 

 
5.38% 

 
4.02% 

 
The enacted state budget also incorporated the Governor’s proposal of allowing school districts to 
utilize the greater of current year, prior year, or the average of the most recent three prior years’ 
ADA.  It also included the provision of amending the 2021-22 LCFF calculation to utilize the 
greater of 2021-22 ADA or the 2019-20 attendance rate applied to 2021-22 enrollment for all 
classroom-based LEAs that met specified independent study requirements. 
 
Other Enacted State Budget Components 
 
Illustrated below is a summary of other major budget components contained in the enacted state 
budget. 

● Transitional Kindergarten (TK) add-on to the LCFF of $2,813 for 2022-23, to be adjusted 
annually by the COLA 

● $7.9 billion to establish the Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant to be allocated to 
all LEAs based on unduplicated pupil counts 

● $3.6 billion to establish the Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block 
Grant to be allocated to all LEAs on a per-pupil basis 

● Full funding of $4 billion for the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELOP) with 
changes to calculation of funds, offering, and access requirements. $5 million of the $4 
billion is for county offices to provide technical assistance, evaluation and training 
services to support program improvement [EC 46120(d)(8)] 

● Special education base rate increased to $820 per pupil 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                5 
 

● Home-to-school transportation funding equal to 60% of transportation expenditures 
reported in the prior year, excluding capital outlay and nonagency expenditures, and 
reduced by the transportation add-on to the LCFF. 

o As a condition of receiving the reimbursed transportation allowance, the school 
district or county office of education shall develop a plan describing the 
transportation services it will offer to its pupils and how it will prioritize planned 
transportation services for pupils in TK thru grade 6 and pupils who are low 
income.  

o The plan shall be adopted by the governing board on or before April 1, 2023 and 
updated annually by April 1. 

● $1.2 billion to implement universal meals, plus $600 million for kitchen infrastructure 
grants 

● $500 million to establish the Golden State Pathways Program for college and career 
education pathways and $200 million for the expansion of dual enrollment programs 

● $250 million of one-time Prop. 98 funds, available over five years, to LEAs, including $25 
million for the Superintendent of Public Instruction to provide grants to high-needs 
elementary schools with a UPP of 97% or higher in kindergarten and grades 1 to 3, 
inclusive, to develop and implement school literacy programs and interventions and train 
and hire literacy coaches and reading and literacy specialists. 

Reserves 
 
District Reserve Requirements:  The 2014 State Budget Act and the passage of Proposition 2 in 
November 2014 established a hard cap on district reserves, if all the following conditions are met: 

1. Proposition 98 must be funded based on Test 1 
2. Full repayment of the maintenance factor prior to 2014-15 
3. Proposition 98 provides sufficient funds to support pupil attendance growth and the 

statutory COLA 
4. Capital gains exceed 8% of General Fund revenues 

Prior law specified that in any fiscal year immediately following a year in which a transfer of any 
amount is made to the Public School System Stabilization Account, a district’s assigned or 
unassigned fund balance (including Fund 01 and Fund 17) may not exceed two times the reserve 
for economic uncertainty (three times the reserve for economic uncertainty for districts with more 
than 400,000 ADA).   

However, Senate Bill (SB) 751 which became effective January 1, 2018 made changes to the 
school district reserve cap law in the following manner: 

● It requires that the reserve cap is triggered in a fiscal year immediately after a fiscal year 
in which the amount of moneys in the Public School System Stabilization Account is equal 
to or exceeds three percent of the combined total of General Fund revenues appropriated 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                6 
 

for school districts and allocated local proceeds of taxes (Proposition 98 funding), as 
specified, for that fiscal year 

● Adjusts the reserve cap from a combined assigned and unassigned ending fund balance 
based on the size of the district to a combined assigned or unassigned ending balance, in 
the General Fund (01) and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay (17), 
of 10% of those Funds for all districts  

● Reserves would be capped at 10% as long as the amount in the Public School System 
Stabilization Account remained at 3% or greater of the Proposition 98 amount in each 
preceding year 

o The State must notify local educational agencies when the conditions are and are 
no longer applicable 

● Basic aid school districts and districts with fewer than 2,501 average daily attendance are 
exempt from the reserve cap requirement 

Since the four conditions stated above are met, and the Proposition 98 reserve balance will be 7.8% 
(exceeding the minimum 3% threshold), LEAs will have the statutory reserve cap described above 
beginning 2022-23.  Therefore, applicable school districts may need to spend down their reserves 
and/or commit funds. LEA’s could consider board action to commit funds for specific costs such 
as special education cost increases, increasing CalSTRS/CalPERS contributions, enrollment 
decline or other LEA priorities.   

Education Protection Account 
 
Proposition 30 provides that a portion of K-14 general purpose funds must be utilized for 
instructional purposes.  Revenues generated from Proposition 30 are deposited into an account 
called the Education Protection Account (EPA).  The District receives funds from the EPA based 
on its proportionate share of statewide general purpose funds.  A corresponding reduction is 
made to its state aid funds. Illustrated below is how the District’s EPA funds are appropriated for 
2022-23.  The amounts will be revised throughout the year based on information received from 
the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Education Protection Account (EPA)  
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

Actual EPA Revenues:   
     Estimated EPA Funds $ 103,830,832 
   
Actual EPA Expenditures:  
     Certificated Instructional Salaries $ 103,830,832 
  
Balance $                - 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                7 
 

Routine Restricted Maintenance Account  
 
Per Education Code Section 17070.75, school districts are required to deposit into the account a 
minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent (3%) of the total General Fund 
expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year.  Illustrated below are the primary 
compliance components: 

● The 3% contribution is calculated on total General Fund expenditures, including other 
financing uses (i.e. transfers out, debt issuances relating to the General Fund) 

● The final 3% contribution is based on year-end actual data; therefore, while it is developed 
based on budget, it must be trued up using actual expenditures 

● The actual contribution will be audited as part of the School Facility Program Bond Audit 
● Currently, LEAs are allowed to exclude the following programs from its calculation of 

required contributions to routine restricted maintenance: 
o State pension on-behalf payments  
o ESSER I, GEER I, Coronavirus Relief, & State LLM  
o State supplemental meal reimbursements 

● The most recent funds relating to coronavirus impacts (i.e In-Person, & Extended 
Learning) currently remain included in the calculation assumptions. 

Planning Factors for 2022-23 and beyond include the following: 
 
Illustrated in the following table are the latest factors released by the Department of Finance (DOF) 
that districts are expected to utilize as planning factors: 
 

Planning Factor 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 
Dept of Finance Statutory COLA 1.70% 6.56% 5.38% 4.02% 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) COLA 5.07% 6.56% 5.38% 4.02% 
Additional LCFF Investment N/A 6.70% N/A N/A 
STRS Employer Rates 16.92% 19.10% 19.10% 19.10% 
PERS Employer Rates 22.91% 25.37% 25.20% 24.60% 
SUI Employer Rates  0.50% 0.50% 0.20% 0.20% 
Lottery – Unrestricted per ADA $176.94  $170 $170 $170  
Lottery – Prop. 20 per ADA $81.94 $67 $67 $67 
Universal Transitional Kindergarten/ADA N/A $2,813 $2,964 $3,083 

Mandate Block Grant for Districts: K-8 per ADA $32.79  $34.94  $36.82  $38.30  

Mandate Block Grant for Districts: 9-12 per ADA $63.17  $67.31  $70.93 $73.78 
Mandate Block Grant for Charters: K-8 per ADA $17.21  $18.34 $19.33 $20.10 
Mandate Block Grant for Charters: 9-12 per ADA $47.84 $50.98 $53.72 $55.88 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                8 
 

Comparison of the 2022-23 Adopted Budget to the First Interim Report: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined
   Revenue
General Purpose 454,072,523    2,251,179       456,323,702   482,045,473  2,251,179             484,296,652   27,972,950    -                   27,972,950     
Federal Revenue -                  91,620,567     91,620,567     -                 166,767,829         166,767,829   -                 75,147,262       75,147,262     
State Revenue 56,524,860      77,161,859     133,686,719   10,945,417    186,922,553         197,867,970   (45,579,443)   109,760,694     64,181,251     
Local Revenue 5,910,294        2,348,651       8,258,946       5,657,295      2,697,751             8,355,045       (253,000)        349,099            96,100            
Total Revenue   516,507,677    173,382,256   689,889,933   498,648,185  358,639,311         857,287,496   (17,859,493)   185,257,055     167,397,562   

   Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 177,131,600    65,846,912     242,978,512   175,173,341  66,906,176           242,079,517   (1,958,259)     1,059,265         (898,994)        
Classified Salaries 39,061,130      31,616,783     70,677,912     39,811,546    32,555,635           72,367,181     750,416         938,852            1,689,268       
Benefits 126,337,116    89,430,083     215,767,200   123,506,005  91,201,020           214,707,025   (2,831,111)     1,770,936         (1,060,175)     
Books and Supplies 8,011,516        21,326,015     29,337,531     14,901,486    44,698,607           59,600,093     6,889,969      23,372,592       30,262,561     
Other Services & Oper. 
Expenses 23,735,745      61,790,517     85,526,262     25,704,202    127,490,198         153,194,400   1,968,457      65,699,681       67,668,138     
Capital Outlay 29,000             5,400,251       5,429,251       261,354         36,351,903           36,613,256     232,354         30,951,651       31,184,005     
Other Outgo 7xxx 1,540,000        -                 1,540,000       1,540,000      -                       1,540,000       -                 -                   -                 
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (8,279,893)      7,088,334       (1,191,558)     (8,395,279)     7,023,814             (1,371,465)      (115,386)        (64,520)             (179,906)        
Total Expenditures   367,566,215    282,498,895   650,065,110   372,502,655  406,227,353         778,730,007   4,936,440      123,728,458     128,664,897   

Deficit/Surplus   148,941,463    (109,116,639) 39,824,823     126,145,530  (47,588,042)         78,557,488     (22,795,932)   61,528,597.47  38,732,665     

Other Sources/(uses) -                  -                 -                 -                 -                       -                  -                 -                   -                 
Transfers in/(out) 2,342,426        -                 2,342,426       1,225,524      -                       1,225,524       (1,116,902)     -                   (1,116,902)     
Contributions to Restricted (96,922,460)    96,922,460     -                 (96,991,460)   96,991,460           -                  (69,000)          69,000              -                 

Net increase (decrease) in Fund 
Balance   54,361,429      (12,194,179)   42,167,249     30,379,594    49,403,418           79,783,012     (23,981,834)   61,597,597       37,615,763     

Beginning Balance   65,034,532      44,818,264     109,852,797   65,034,532    44,818,264           109,852,797   -                 -                   -                 

Ending Balance   119,395,961    32,624,085     152,020,046   95,414,127    94,221,683           189,635,809   (23,981,834)   61,597,597       37,615,763     

Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 325,000           325,000          325,000         325,000          -                 -                   -                 
Reserve for Econ Uncertainty 
(2%) 12,954,454      12,954,454     15,550,090    15,550,090     2,595,636      -                   2,595,636       
Restricted Programs -                  32,624,085     32,624,085     -                 94,221,683           94,221,683     -                 61,597,597       61,597,597                                       
Commitments 41,439,681      41,439,681     36,325,135    36,325,135     (5,114,546)     -                   (5,114,546)     
Other Assignments 3,177,835        3,177,835       6,917,721      6,917,721       3,739,886      3,739,886       
Unappropriated Fund Balance 61,498,991      -                 61,498,991     36,296,181    -                       36,296,181     (25,202,810)   0                       (25,202,810)   

Unappropriated Percent 0                    0                     (0)                   

2022-23
 Changes since 2022-23 Adopted Budget 

First Interim BudgetAdopted Budget
2022-23



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                9 
 

Changes from 2022-23 Adopted Budget to 2022-23 First Interim Report 
 

 

5. The decrease in unrestricted certificated salaries is due to one time vacancy savings of $2.34M in regular teacher 
salaries, and $213K in certificated management vacancy savings, offset by a $500K increase in guidance/counseling 
salaries. Restricted certificated salaries increased $1.1M due to budgeting board commitment item of 1.6M for 
Professional Learning offset by net restricted program adjustments of $500K. 

1. The change in LCFF is due to an additional investment to the base LCFF of 6.7% on top of the 6.26% COLA at 
Adopted Budget.

2. The increase in restricted federal revenues is due to budgeting carryover of $75M including $5.1M for Title I, 
$2.5M CSI, $14M ESSER II, $35.7M ESSER III, and $9.1M in federal ELOG. Also includes $3.6M in Title II/III/IV 
carryover, $1.86M in ASES funds and $3.8 in federal special education funding carryover.

3. The unrestricted decrease of $45.5M is due to the removal of unrestricted one time state funds that were shifted to 
restricted resources at the enacted budget. The increase in restricted state revenues is due to the addition of the 
Learning Recovery Block Grant and Music Arts Grant one time funds, and budgeting carryover of $7M including 
$3.4M IPI grant, $1.75M CTEIG, $50K CPA grant, and budgeting $1.9M for the CCSPP grant.

4. The decrease of $253K in unrestricted local revenues is local grant adjustments and the restricted local revenues 
increase of $349K is related to budgeting local grant carryover.

12. Indirect charges increased due to the restricted program adjustments made above for the first interim report. 
13. The increase in Transfers Out is due to the projected contributions needed for the Adult Education Parent 
Participation Program and contribution to the charter fund to meet the 5% minimum reserve for New Joseph 
Bonnheim. 

6. The increase of $750K in unrestricted classified salaries is due to settlement of negotiations with Teamsters and 
TCS of $663K and transportation salary schedule restructure of $642K offset by and one time vacancy savings of 
553K including $309K for classified admin/supervisor, $221K clerical, and $20K instructional classified salaries. 
Restricted classified salaries increased by $938K due to settlement of negotiations with Teamsters and TCS of $195K, 
budgeting ELOG carryover of $447K, ELOP of $104K, $103K Title I Carryover, $148K ASES and budgeting $523K 
of CCSPP grant offset by ESSER III/ESSER II adjustment of $330K and medi-cal adjustment of $314K.

7. Unrestricted benefits decreased for budget adjustments made for pension costs for $538k, health/welfare benefits 
of $2.1M and OPEB of $427K offset by increases due to the salary changes described above. Restricted benefits 
increased by $1.7M  due to budgeting the CCSPP grant of $387K, Special Ed adjustments of $445K, budgeting 
ELOG carryover of $540K and budgeting Learning Recovery Block Grant of $366K related to board commitment. 

8.Unrestricted books & supplies increased $6.9M due to carrying over textbook PO of $4.2M and budgeting 
additional site carryover of $2.7M. Restricted books & supplies increased by $23.4M due to budgeting carryover 
including $15.2M in ESSER II/III and ELOG funds, $4.5M Title I carryover, $1.3M Title II/III/IV, $894K CTEIG,and 
$1.4M in local grants.

9. Unrestricted contracted services & other operating expenses increase of $1.97M due budgeting district initiatives 
of $1.6M, increased contract services for transportation, and other budget adjustments. Restricted contracted 
services increased by $65.7M due to budgeting carryover funds including $993K CSI, $22.4M ESSER II/III/ELOG, 
$1.5M ASES, $2M title II,III,IV,and adjustments related to special education, and budgeting $25M in ELOP funds. 

10. Unrestricted capital outlay primarily increased due to budget adjustments made for capital improvements, 
restricted capital outlay increased due to budgeting carryover

11. Other outgo remains unchanged.



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                10 
 

 
2022-23 Sacramento City Unified School District Primary Budget Components 
 
District enrollment is estimated at 38,196, or 38,043 excluding COE enrollment of 153.  
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) is estimated at 34,672.47, or 34,558.72 excluding COE ADA 
of 113.75. Due to the utilization of the 3 prior year average ADA as described in the State 
Enacted budget, the projected funded ADA is 37,533.70. 
 
The District’s estimated unduplicated pupil percentage (UPP) for supplemental and 
concentration funding has increased by 2.56% to 70.44% from the prior year 68.36%. The UPP 
for supplemental and concentration funding is based on a three year rolling average which is 
projected at 70.44%. The percentage will be revised based on actual data. 
 
 

 
 
 

84.0%

86.0%

88.0%

90.0%

92.0%

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

 ‐

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

 50,000

Enrollment & ADA Trend

Enrollment ADA Yield



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                11 
 

 
General Fund Revenue Components 
 
The District receives funding for its general operations from various sources. A summary of the 
major funding sources is illustrated below: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                12 
 

 
General Fund Operating Expenditure Components 
 
The General Fund is used for the majority of the functions within the District.  As illustrated 
below, salaries and benefits comprise approximately 89% of the District’s unrestricted budget, 
and approximately 68% of the total General Fund budget. 
 

 
 
Graphical representation of total general fund expenditures by percentage: 
 

 

DESCRIPTION UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED COMBINED

Certificated Salaries 175,173,341 66,906,176 $242,079,517
Classified Salaries 39,811,546 32,555,635 $72,367,181
Benefits 123,506,005 91,201,020 $214,707,025
Books and Supplies 14,901,486 44,698,607 $59,600,093
Other Services & Oper. 25,704,202 127,490,198 $153,194,400
Capital Outlay 261,354 36,351,903 $36,613,256
Other Outgo/Transfer 1,540,000 0 $1,540,000
Transfers Out (1,225,524) 0 -$1,225,524

TOTAL 379,672,409 399,203,538 $778,875,948



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                13 
 

Graphical representation of unrestricted general fund expenditures by percentage: 
 

 
 
General Fund Contributions to Restricted Programs 
 
The following contributions of unrestricted resources to restricted programs are necessary to 
cover restricted program expenditures in excess of revenue: 
 

 
 
Transfers to Other Funds: 
 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                14 
 

General Fund Summary: 
 
The District’s 2022-23 General Fund projects a total operating surplus of $79.8 million resulting 
in an estimated ending fund balance of $189.6 million. The components of the District’s fund 
balance are as follows:  revolving cash & other nonspendables - $325K; restricted programs - 
$94.1M; committed – $36.3M; assigned – $6.9M; unassigned – $36.3M. economic uncertainty - 
$15.5M; In accordance with SB 858 a detail description of assigned & unassigned balances is 
illustrated in the following table. 
 

2022-23 First Interim Fund Balance Component Summary 
 

 
 
The Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) recommends a prudent reserve of 17%, 
representing two months’ average payroll – for the District two months’ average payroll is 
approximately $88M.  The District’s reserves above the statutory reserves for economic 
uncertainty are projected at well below the GFOA recommendations. 
 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Combined

TOTAL - NONSPENDABLE $325,000 $0 $325,000

RESTRICTED

  Restricted Categorical Balances $94,221,683 $94,221,683
TOTAL - RESTRICTED $0 $94,221,683 $94,221,683

COMMITTED

History/Social Science and World Language Textbook Adoption $13,000,000 $13,000,000

3% Additional Reserve per board policy 3100 $23,325,135 $23,325,135
TOTAL - COMMITTED $36,325,135 $36,325,135

ASSIGNED

Unrestricted Site Programs $383,845 $383,845

S&C Increase $5,411,991 $5,411,991

MAA $1,121,885 $1,121,885
TOTAL - ASSIGNED $6,917,721 $0 $6,917,721

RESERVE FOR ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES

  Economic Uncertainty (REU-2%) $15,550,090 $15,550,090
TOTAL - RESERVE FOR ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES $15,550,090 $0 $15,550,090

UNASSIGNED/UNAPPROPRIATED $36,296,181 $36,296,181

TOTAL - FUND BALANCE $95,414,127 $94,221,683 $189,635,809

2022-23 First Interim Budget
Description



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                15 
 

Multi-Year Revenue and Expenditure Projections 
 

Unrestricted Multi-Year Revenue Projections: 
 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 LCFF COLA of 5.38% 
 Federal Revenues projected to remain constant.  
 State revenues projected to remain constant. 
 Local Revenue is projected to remain constant. 
 Contributions to Special Ed were increased by approximately $8.6M for increased 

Special Education expenditures per historical trends 
 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 LCFF COLA of 4.02% 
 Federal and State Revenues projected to remain constant 
 Local Revenue is projected to remain constant 
 Contributions to Special Ed were increased by approximately $9.2M for increased 

Special Education expenditures per historical trends 

 
Restricted Multi-Year Revenue Projections: 
 
Fiscal Year 2023-24  
 Federal Revenue was reduced by $77M to remove carryover of $4.9M Title I, $2.5M 

CSI, $14M ESSER II, $35M ESSER III, $9M ELOG, $1.86M ASES, $3.7M Special Ed 
resources, and $3.6M Title II/III/IV.  

 State Revenue was reduced by $84.7M to remove carryover of $1.9M CCSPP Grant, 
$1.8M CTE programs, $3.4M ELOG, and $77.2M for the one-time Learning Recovery 
Block Grant and Arts Music Grant.  

 Local Revenue is projected to decline $227K with the removal of one time funds 
 Contributions to Special Ed were increased by approximately $8.6M for increased 

Special Education expenditures per historical trends 
 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 Federal revenue reduced by $43.2M to remove ESSER III Funds  
 State and Local revenue remain constant 
 Contributions to Special Ed were increased by approximately $9.2M for increased 

Special Education expenditures per historical trends. 
 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                16 
 

Expenditure Assumptions: 
 
Unrestricted Multi-Year Expenditure Projections: 
 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 
 Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year 
 Other certificated salary adjustments include aligning FTE to enrollment decline with a 

reduction of 6 FTE and removal of 3 PD days from 22-23, offset by adding back one-
time vacancy savings of $3.3M recognized in the 2022-23 first interim report.  

 Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year  
 Other classified adjustments including adding an Application Specialist III position per 

the district initiatives, and adding back one time vacancy savings from the 2022-23 first 
interim, offset by the removal of one-time Teamsters/TCS settlement agreement costs 

 STRS contribution to remain flat and PERS contribution slight decrease of .17% 
 Adjustments to benefits of $6.7M include adding back one time savings recognized at the 

2022-23 first interim of $3.4M, adding the increase in dental for all units, and projected 
8% increase in health benefits of $4.4M, offset by a $300K decrease due to FTE 
adjustments described above and $635K reduction for the removal of 3 PD days from 
2022-23.   

 Books and Supplies are projected to decrease by $1.17M due to the add back of the one-
time FRP textbook reduction of $5M, offset by the removal of one-time carryover 
textbook purchase in 2022-23 and removal of $2.1M in supplemental/concentration 
carryover funds.  

 Services have been decreased by $938K to account for the removal of one time district 
initiatives budgeted in 2022-23.  

 Capital outlay and transfers out remains constant  
 Indirect costs from restricted programs are expected to decrease due to program 

adjustments  
 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 
 Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year  
 Other certificated salary adjustments include aligning FTE to enrollment decline with a 

reduction of 6 FTE 
 Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year  
 STRS to remain constant and PERS to decrease by .6% 
 Adjustments to benefits of $5.6M reflect the effects of salary changes noted above, 

insurance and the additional increase for health benefits 
 Books and Supplies have been adjusted by $1.2M to account for increased supplemental 

and concentration funding 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                17 
 

 Services have been adjusted by $1.2M to account for increased supplemental and 
concentration funding 

 Transfers out remains constant  
 Indirect costs from restricted programs are expected to remain constant 

 
 
Restricted Multi-Year Expenditure Projections: 
 
Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 
 Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year 
 Other certificated salary adjustments include removing one-time expenditures related to 

carryover funds, offset with additional positions for special education services 
 Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year  
 Other classified salary adjustments include removing expenditures for one-time expenses 

including carryover funds, offset with additional positions for special education services 
 Decrease to benefits of $671K to reflect the effects of salary changes noted above, 

program adjustments, expected decrease in pension rates, and the removal of one-time 
expenditures offset by the additional increase for health benefits  

 Books and Supplies have been decreased by $24.7M to account for one-time 
expenditures related to carryover funds, including $4.4M Title I, $1.2M CSI, $7.4M 
ESSER III, $4.5M ELOG, and $1.3M Title II/III/IV.  

 Services have been reduced by $43.8M to account for one-time expenditures related to 
carryover funds including ESSER III of $18.9M, $4.5M ELOG, $992K CSI, $1.5M 
ASES, $3.5M Special Education resources, $6.3M one-time ELOP, $3.1M special 
education learning recovery funds, $2M Title II/III/IV and $1.9M Learning Recovery 
Emergency Block Grant.  

 Indirect costs are expected to decrease due to program adjustments  
 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 
 Certificated step and column costs are expected to increase by 1.4% each year 
 Other certificated salary adjustments include the removal ESSER III grant expenditures 

of $14M offset by additional positions for special education services of $2.8M and 
district initiative positions budgeted under the LREBG and Arts Music Block grants 
transitioned from ESSER III funds. 

 Classified step costs are expected to increase by .70% each year and adjustments have 
been made for the removal of ESSER III grant expenditures of $7M and additional 
special education services and district initiative positions budgeted under the LREBG and 
Arts Music Block grants transitioned from ESSER III funds. 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                18 
 

 Reduction to benefits of $3.3M reflect the effects of salary changes noted above, program 
adjustments, and removal of ESSER III Funds of $12.7M, offset by additional Special 
education  benefit costs of 2.5M and district initiative positions budgeted under the 
LREBG and Arts Music Block grants transitioned from ESSER III funds.  

 Books and Supplies have been adjusted down by $921K to account for removal of 
ESSER III of $1.1M offset by $187K in additional special education services 

 Services have been increased by $698K due to additional special education services of 
$2.87M offset by the removal of $2.17M ESSER III funds.  

 Indirect costs are expected to decrease due to program adjustments above.  
 

Multi-Year Projections 
Estimated Ending Fund Balances 
 
The District estimates that the General Fund projected unrestricted surplus for 2022-23 is $30.4 
million resulting in an unrestricted ending General Fund balance of $95.4 million. The projected 
unrestricted surplus for 2023-24 is $23.2 million resulting in an unrestricted ending General 
Fund balance of $118.7M million. The projected unrestricted surplus for 2023-24 is $7.5M 
resulting in an unrestricted General Fund balance of $126.1M. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description
2022-23 First 

Interim Budget
Projected        
2023-24

Projected        
2024-25

Total Revenues 857,287,496 704,070,539 665,821,004
Total Expenditures 778,730,007 685,528,404 697,325,357
Net Increase/(Decrease) 79,783,012 19,767,659 (30,278,828)
Add: Beginning Fund Balance 109,852,797 189,635,809 209,403,468
Ending Fund Balance 189,635,809 209,403,468 179,124,640
Components of Ending Fund Balance 153,339,628 147,985,104 110,451,136
Unassigned/Unappropriated 36,296,181      61,418,364         68,673,504         



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                19 
 

2022-23 First Interim Multi-Year Projections 
 

 
 

 

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined
   Revenue
General Purpose 482,045,473    2,251,179         484,296,652   490,943,364    2,251,179       493,194,543   495,946,809   2,251,179       498,197,988   
Federal Revenue -                   166,767,829     166,767,829   -                   89,601,116     89,601,116     -                  46,348,136     46,348,136     
State Revenue 10,945,417      186,922,553     197,867,970   10,945,417      102,201,691   113,147,108   10,945,417     102,201,691   113,147,108   
Local Revenue 5,657,295        2,697,751         8,355,045       5,657,295        2,470,478       8,127,772       5,657,295       2,470,478       8,127,772       
Total Revenue   498,648,185    358,639,311     857,287,496   507,546,076    196,524,463   704,070,539   512,549,521   153,271,484   665,821,004   

   Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 175,173,341    66,906,176       242,079,517   176,670,372    67,699,561     244,369,933   178,643,333   77,516,160     256,159,493   
Classified Salaries 39,811,546      32,555,635       72,367,181     41,003,350      31,964,274     72,967,624     42,294,737     33,367,177     75,661,914     
Benefits 123,506,005    91,201,020       214,707,025   130,280,753    90,529,486     220,810,239   135,876,955   87,233,295     223,110,250   
Books and Supplies 14,901,486      44,698,607       59,600,093     13,730,831      19,943,048     33,673,878     14,921,523     19,021,550     33,943,073     

 Other Services & Oper. 
Expenses 

25,704,202      127,490,198     153,194,400   24,765,274      83,662,505     108,427,778   26,255,966     84,360,667     110,616,633   

Capital Outlay 261,354           36,351,903       36,613,256     261,354           6,433,315       6,694,669       261,354          1,849,982       2,111,336       
Other Outgo 7xxx 1,540,000        -                   1,540,000       1,540,000        -                 1,540,000       1,540,000       -                 1,540,000       
Transfer of Indirect 73xx (8,395,279)       7,023,814         (1,371,465)      (8,395,279)       6,562,705       (1,832,573)      (8,395,279)      5,165,286       (3,229,993)      
Budget Reductions -                   -                   -                  -                   (1,123,144)     (1,123,144)      -                  (2,587,349)     (2,587,349)      
Total Expenditures   372,502,655    406,227,353     778,730,007   379,856,654    305,671,750   685,528,404   391,398,588   305,926,768   697,325,357   

Deficit/Surplus   126,145,530    (47,588,042)     78,557,488     127,689,422    (109,147,287) 18,542,135     121,150,932   (152,655,285) (31,504,352)    

Other Sources/(uses) -                   -                   -                  -                   -                 -                  -                  -                 -                  
Transfers in/(out) 1,225,524        -                   1,225,524       1,225,524        -                 1,225,524       1,225,524       -                 1,225,524       

-                  
Contributions to Restricted (96,991,460)     96,991,460       -                  (105,656,795)   105,656,795   -                  (114,885,377)  114,885,377   -                  

 Net increase (decrease) in 
Fund Balance    

30,379,594      49,403,418       79,783,012     23,258,151      (3,490,491)     19,767,659     7,491,080       (37,769,908)   (30,278,828)    

Beginning Balance   65,034,532      44,818,264       109,852,797   95,414,127      94,221,683     189,635,809   118,672,277   90,731,191     209,403,468   

Ending Balance   95,414,127      94,221,683       189,635,809   118,672,277    90,731,191     209,403,468   126,163,357   52,961,283     179,124,640   
Revolving/Stores/Prepaids 325,000           325,000          325,000           325,000          325,000          325,000          

 Reserve for Econ Uncertainty 15,550,090      15,550,090     13,686,058      13,686,058     13,921,997     13,921,997     
Restricted Programs -                   94,221,683       94,221,683     -                   90,731,191     90,731,191     -                  52,961,283     52,961,283     
Committed 36,325,135      36,325,135     36,325,135      36,325,135     36,325,135     36,325,135     
Other Assignments 6,917,721        6,917,721       6,917,721        6,917,721       6,917,721       6,917,721       

 Unappropriated Fund 
Balance 

36,296,181      -                   36,296,181     61,418,364      -                 61,418,364     68,673,504     -                 68,673,504     

Unappropriated Percent 4.66% 8.96% 9.85%

 Description 2022-23 2023-24
Projection
2024-25

ProjectionFirst Interim Budget



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                20 
 

 
Cash Flow 
 
The 2022-23 First Interim report and multi-year projections show that the District projects having 
a positive cash balance through June 2025. Cash will continue to be closely monitored in order to 
ensure the District has sufficient cash reserves to satisfy its obligations. 
 

 
 
Summary of All Funds 
 

 

2022-23 Beginning 
Fund Balance

Budgeted 
Net Change

 2022-23 First Interim Budget 
Ending Fund Balance 

01 General (Unrestricted and Restricted) $109,852,797 $79,783,012 $189,635,809
08 Student Activity Fund $1,447,941 $0 $1,447,941
09 Charter Schools $9,347,446 $1,041,645 $10,389,091
11 Adult $1,384,337 $999,436 $2,383,773
12 Child Development $880,663 ($577,566) $303,097
13 Cafeteria $14,581,388 ($2,601,993) $11,979,396
21 Building Fund $104,526,405 ($62,966,257) $41,560,147
25 Capital Facilities $23,726,622 ($230,000) $23,496,622
35 County School Facilities Fund $4,891 $0 $4,891
49 Capital Projects for Blended Components $1,113,186 ($485,735) $627,451
51 Bond Interest and Redemption $21,226,253 ($3,799,000) $17,427,253
61 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund $5,752 $0 $5,752
67 Self-Insurance Fund $12,847,528 $331,842 $13,179,370

Fund



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
2022‐23 First Interim Financial Report   
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 

Business Services                                21 
 

Concusion 
 
The District is projected to satisfy the 2% required reserve for economic uncertainties and 
maintain a positive cash flow in 2022-23, 2023-24 and 2024-25.  The District projects a 
combined surplus of $79.8M for 2022-23, $19.8M for 2023-24 and a deficit of ($30.3M) in 
2024-25. The projected budget and multiyear projections support that the District is projecting to 
be able to meet its financial obligations for the current and subsequent two years; therefore, the 
District self certifies with a positive certification. 
 
Risks: 
 
Uncertainty regarding on-going State funding for K12 Districts, the potential future impact of a 
recessionary economy, enrollment, additional unfunded COVID-19 related expenses and final 
audit guidance on the utilization of the 2019-20 COVID-19 ADA relief calculations. 
 
Opportunities:  
 
Improved State Budget and funding for K12 Districts, stable/increased enrollment, maintaining 
fiscal stability and the potential to make up the instructional days lost during the 2021-22 school 
year through the State waiver process.  
 
Continuation of County Oversight 
 
County superintendents are required by statute to continually monitor districts for fiscal distress. 
If the district has a negative certification, a disapproved budget, or the county superintendent 
determines that the district may be unable to meet its financial obligations, the county 
superintendent can: 

● Stay or rescind any action that is determined to be inconsistent with the ability of the 
district to meet its obligations for the current or subsequent fiscal year, and 

● Assist in developing a budget for the subsequent fiscal year. 
 
The District’s budget has been disapproved for three prior years (2018-2019, 2019-2020 and 2020-
2021) but the Sacramento County Office of Education conditionally approved the District’s 
adopted budgets for 2021-22 and  2022-2023. 
 
The Sacramento County superintendent continues to maintain the current fiscal advisor to 
support the district.   



Page 1 of 79 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
Business Services Division  
FCMAT Update 12/15/22 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

1. Are clear processes and policies 
in place to ensure that the 
district’s Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and 
budget are aligned with one 
another? (part 2) 

In Progress Board policies (BPs) and administrative 
regulations (ARs) adopted by the district 
related to the LCAP included the following: AR 
1220 – Citizen Advisory Committee, BP/AR 
1312.3 – Uniform Complaint Procedure, BP 
6173.1 – Foster Youth.  
 
The California School Boards Association’s 
online board policy service, known as GAMUT, 
has one main LCAP/Budget alignment policy, 
BP/AR 0460, which many districts have 
adopted. Although the district has a 
subscription to GAMUT, it has not adopted 
this policy. 

12/15/22 Update:  Staff continue to work 
collaboratively to ensure that processes and 
planning align efforts across Business 
Services and Continuous Improvement and 
Accountability.  
3/17/22 Update: Staff continue to work 
collaboratively to ensure that processes and 
planning align efforts across Business Services 
and Continuous Improvement and 
Accountability.  Recent efforts include the 
completion of the LCAP Mid-year report and 
the one-time supplement to the Annual 
Update.  These processes required 
collaborative development of estimated 
actual expenditures for LCAP actions and 
reporting on the ESSER III Expenditure plan 
actions.  The latter have involved a wider 
collaborative with program staff to 
understand the implementation status of 
various personnel-related actions and 
maintaining ongoing progress monitoring to 
ensure that unspent funds can be reallocated 
to already identified actions and open 
consideration for new actions.  Additional 
collaboration has occurred to ensure that the 
standard LCAP development is on pace, with 



Page 2 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

advance planning for the 2022-23 projected 
expenditures occurring as an outgrowth of 
the  mid-year report efforts. 
12/16/21 Update:  Staff continue to work 
collaboratively to ensure that processes and 
policies are in place to align key planning 
efforts to the budget.  A recent example is 
the ESSER III expenditure plan development.  
Business Services and Continuous 
Improvement and Accountability (CIA) staff 
collaboratively developed a Request for 
Funding process that was used by 
departments.  This required departmental 
staff to describe their proposal in detail 
including, but not limited to, their intended 
use of funding, scope across the three-year 
timeline, and per year and total funding 
amounts requested.  Business services and 
CIA staff further collaborated to facilitate 
executive leadership’s prioritization process, 
review proposed expenditures in relation to 
other CARES funding uses, and ensure that 
proposed amounts were accurate to staffing 
amounts requested.  The ESSER III plan is 
closely aligned to the LCAP and other recent 
district plans, making this collaboration a key 
step in the 2021-22 development of the 
2022-23 LCAP. 
9/16/21 Update:  Throughout 2019-20 and 
2020-21 staff in Business Services and State 
and Federal Programs have developed 



Page 3 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

processes to increase alignment between 
budget and LCAP.  These include program 
coding for funds allocated to school sites to 
more accurately account for planned 
expenditures in the LCAP, realignment of 
resource coding for LCFF S&C funds, and 
development of shared tools to prepare 
projected and estimated actual expenditures.  
These efforts have been supported by regular 
meetings between Business Services and 
LCAP staff with the explicit goal of increasing 
LCAP-budget alignment.  Business Services 
staff have also collaborated on multiple LCAP 
presentations to the Board of Education. 
11/30/20 Update:  Board Policy Staff have 
developed an initial draft of BP 0460: Local 
Control and Accountability Plan. BP 0460 was 
initially provided to the Board Policy 
Committee on 5/24/19.  
Board Policy Staff are in the process of 
developing an initial draft of BP 0460: Local 
Control and Accountability Plan. BP 0460 was 
initially provided to the Board Policy 
Committee on 5/24/19 and will be scheduled 
for a detailed review by the Board Policy 
Committee and full Board action at a later 
date. On 11/19/19 the topic of 
Budget/LCAP/SPSA policy efforts was 
included on the Policy Committee agenda but 
no recommendation was made.  The policy 
will be scheduled for a subsequent review by 



Page 4 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

the Board Policy Committee and full Board 
action at a later date.  

2. Has the district addressed any 
deficiencies the county office of 
education has identified in its 
oversight letters? (part 1) 

Complete Since 2006, the county office of education has 
identified the need for the district to develop 
a viable plan to fund its long-term other post-
employment benefits (OPEB) liability, which 
has not been measurably addressed. 

12/15/22 Update:  The district has made 
progress towards funding at the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution (ADC) level and for 
the 2021-22 fiscal year funded at 100%. 
Funding at the ADC to the OPEB trust has 
resulted in the District’s net OPEB liability 
decreasing from $567M as of June 30, 2020 
down to $308M as of June 30, 2022. The 
District plans to continue funding at the 
actuarially determined contribution level.    
3/17/22 Update:  The District is continuing to 
review options to fully fund at the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution level for the 
2021-22 fiscal year to continue its progress 
towards funding the OPEB liability. 
12/16/21 Update:  On November 2nd, 2021 
the District received an updated actuarial 
study that reflects an improvement in the 
District’s total OPEB liability. Due to increased 
contributions in FY 2021, the District funded 
97.6% of its Actuarially Determined 
Contribution. The higher funding level 
allowed for a change in the actuarial 
methodology that contributed to a decrease 
in total OPEB liability from $654M as of June 
30, 2020 to $415M as of June 30, 2021, or a 
44% decrease. To continue to maximize 
progress, the district plans on fully funding at 
the Actuarially Determined Contribution level 
for the 2021-22 fiscal year.  



Page 5 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

9/16/21 Update:  The District is expecting to 
receive an updated actuarial report in the 
next few weeks which will provide the status 
of the OPEB liability.     
5/1/21 Update:  The District is continuing to 
review options and develop a plan to fully 
fund at the ADC level which, over a five-year 
span, will substantially decrease the Net 
OPEB liability.    
3/1/21 Update:  The District realized excess 
savings in its Dental and Vision funds and 
applied the savings towards its OPEB 
contribution. The District is continuing to 
review options and develop a plan to fully 
fund at the ADC level which, over a five-year 
span, will substantially decrease the Net 
OPEB liability.   
3/10/20 Update:  On October 25, 2019 the 
District received its updated Other Post 
Employment Benefit (OPEB) liability amount 
in our latest GASB 75 actuarial report for 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
The latest valuation reports the District's 
Total OPEB Liability at $599 million, a $181 
million decrease from the prior report of 
$780 million. This is a result of lower than 
projected medical premium growth and 
increased interest rates. While a portion of 
the change in interest rates is market-based, 
being able to maintain the higher interest 
(discount) rates is contingent upon sustained 
and/or increasing contributions to the OPEB 
trust. Failure to do so would likely result in a 



Page 6 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

reduction to these rates in the future and 
revert to a higher Total OPEB Liability.   
The Net OPEB Liability decreased by $199 
million from the prior report to $526 million. 
The decrease is a result of the continued 
funding of the District’s OPEB irrevocable 
trust fund in addition to the decreases noted 
above. In other words, these continued 
contributions to the OPEB trust help not only 
in increasing the trust assets, but also in 
stabilizing or improving the discount rate 
used to calculate the Total OPEB Liability.  
This is a significant improvement, but the 
liability will continue to grow without 
continued efforts to decrease it. 11/30/20 
Update: On September 2, 2020 the District 
received its updated Other Post Employment 
(OPEB) liability amount in the recent GASB 75 
actuarial report for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020.  The key points are:  
 
• The District’s Net OPEB liability increased by  
$41.7M year over year from $526M FYE 2019 
to $568M FYE 2020.   
• The increase is due to annual costs and a 
decrease in the discount rate assumption 
from 4.25% to 3.90%  

• The Actuarially Determined Contribution 
(ADC) is $30.8M. The district contributed 
$26.7M in 19-20, leaving a contribution 
deficit of $4.1M. 



Page 7 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

• If the District were to increase its 
contribution to the ADC amount it would help 
in two ways: 
o Fund the Net OPEB liability 
o Per GASB 75, allow the actuary to gradually 
increase the discount rate used (3.90%) to 
the asset return rate used (7.0%) in between 
1-5 years’ time. In dollars, if all else is equal, 
the Total OPEB liability would be closer to 
$430M instead of the $654M projected 
currently.  
The District has made some progress but due 
to changes in assumptions, the Net OPEB 
liability has increased. To maximize progress, 
the district would need to contribute the full 
ADC amount each year.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

3. Has the district addressed any 
deficiencies the county office of 
education has identified in its 
oversight letters? (part 2) 

In Progress In letters dated December 7, 2017, January 16, 
2018, and April 16, 2018, the county office 
discussed and outlined its concerns with the 
district’s ongoing structural deficit, and the 
need for the district to submit a board-
approved budget reduction plan to reverse 
the deficit spending trend.  
 
On August 22, 2018, the county office 
disapproved the district’s 2018-19 adopted 
budget, and the district was instructed to 
revise its 2018-19 budget and submit a 
balanced budget plan that supports ongoing 
expenditures from ongoing revenue sources, 
and that has a timeline showing when and 

12/15/22 Update: As of the 2022-23 First 
Interim Report the district is projecting an 
unrestricted surplus of $30.5M in 2022-23, 
$23.3M unrestricted surplus in 2023-24 and 
unrestricted surplus $7.6 M in 2024-25.  
3/17/22 Update:  As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim report the District is projecting an 
unrestricted surplus of $19.86M in the 
current year, an unrestricted surplus of 
$10.45M in 2022-23 and projected 
unrestricted deficit of ($6.17M) in 2023-24.  
12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District is 
projecting an unrestricted deficit of ($16.5M) 
in 2022-23 and ($23.2M) in 2023-24. 



Page 8 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

how adjustments would be implemented no 
later than October 8, 2018. On October 11, 
2018, the county office notified the district 
that its revised adopted budget was also 
disapproved based on their review. That 
budget showed that the district’s unrestricted 
general fund balance would decrease by 
approximately $34 million in 2018-19, 
approximately $43 million in 2019-20 and 
$66.5 million in 2020-21. The district was 
instructed to develop a viable board-approved 
budget and multiyear expenditure plan that 
would reverse the deficit spending trend, and 
to submit this plan with its 2018-19 first 
interim report, which is due December 14, 
2018. 

5/1/21 Update:  As of the 2020-2021 2nd 
Interim financial report, the District is 
projecting an unrestricted deficit spend of 
($11.2M) in 2021-22 and ($26.4M) in 2022-
23. 
3/1/21 Update:  On the February 4, 2021 
Board meeting, the Board approved a 
reduction of approximately $4.5M.     
11/30/20 Update:  Over the past two years, 
the District has identified and implemented 
more than $50 million in on-going non-
negotiable budget reductions. However, 
these reductions have not been sufficient to 
address the structural deficit.  As of the 2020-
2021 1st Interim financial report, the District 
is projecting a $56 million budget deficit and 
must implement an on-going solution to 
achieve fiscal solvency and avoid a State 
Loan. At the December 10, 2020 Board 
Meeting the Board will consider a Fiscal 
Recovery Plan to address some of the deficit 
but this plan alone will not be sufficient to 
resolve the projected $56M deficit.     
5/12/20 Update:  At the April 2, 2020 Board 
Meeting, the 2019-20 Second Interim 
Financial Report was approved with a 
negative certification and an update on the 
FCMAT matrix was also presented. At the 
May 7, 2020 Board Meeting, a State Budget 
update and impact on the District's finances 
using 3 LCFF COLA scenarios was presented 
to assess the impact on the District's revenue 
and cash flow for the 2020-21 and 2021-22 



Page 9 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

fiscal years.  Under any of the 3 scenarios, the 
District's fiscal condition is worse and the 
cash challenges are projected to accelerate 
by a few months.  
3/10/20 Update:  The 2019-20 First Interim 
Financial Report and FCMAT Update was 
presented at the December 19, 2019 Board 
Meeting with a negative certification. A 
negotiated solution will be required to 
address the District's $27M shortfall. The 
Fiscal Recovery Plan was presented at the 
February 6, 2020 Board Meeting and included 
proposals to achieve the $27M solution. 
These proposals require negotiations.  
6/13/19 Update:  District has made 
approximately $45 million in adjustments 
through the 2019/20 Proposed Budget. 
Additional adjustments of $26 million are 
needed through negotiations. As of the 2019-
20 Revised Adopted Budget the District has 
implemented $50.2M in ongoing budget 
adjustments and $12.1M in one-time budget 
adjustments. These adjustments were made 
during the period of December 2018 through 
September 2019 and are not in addition to 
the previous adjustments listed above. 
Additional adjustments of $27M are still 
needed to eliminate the deficit and achieve 
fiscal solvency. This information can be found 
in the Revised Adopted Budget 2019-20 
presented at the October 3, 2019 Board 
Meeting.  



Page 10 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Update: Working towards a balanced budget. 
Student Centered Fiscal Recovery Plan 
presented to Board and adopted at the 
3/27/19 Update:  Reductions in central staff 
and non-negotiable items have resulted in 
over $20m in savings and as a result at 2nd 
interim: $2.2m (19/20) and $50m (20/21).  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

4. Are all balance sheet accounts in 
the general ledger reconciled, at 
a minimum, at each interim 
report? 

In Progress Although balance sheet accounts are 
reconciled multiple times each fiscal year, a 
reconciliation is not done at each interim. 

12/15/22 Update:  Staff have begun 
preliminary reconciliation of balance sheet 
items and a plan is in development to 
reconcile balance sheet items on a regular 
basis. 
3/17/22 Update:  Staff have begun preliminary 
reconciliation of balance sheet items and a 
plan is in development to reconcile balance 
sheet items on a regular basis. 
12/16/21 Update:  Staff have been assigned to 
reconcile balance sheet items and a plan is in 
development to reconcile balance sheet items 
on an interim basis.  
5/1/21 Update:  Staff are developing a plan to 
reconcile remaining balance sheet items on an 
interim basis. 
5/8/20 Update: This item remains outstanding 
and staff have been assigned some balance 
sheets to reconcile.  
In 2019-20, staff will reconcile at each interim 
report period. 
 



Page 11 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

5. Does the district have sufficient 
cash resources in its other funds 
to support its current and 
projected obligations? 

Complete During FCMAT’s fieldwork, the district was 
projected to be cash insolvent as early as 
October 2019 if budget reductions are not 
made. A more recent cash flow projection 
prepared by the district at the 2018-19 first 
interim shows the cash insolvency date as 
November 2019 without budget reductions. 

3/17/22 Update:  The 2021-22 Second Interim 
Report projects a positive cash balance in 
2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 fiscal years. 
Based on 2021-22 Second Interim data, the 
District has sufficient cash resources to 
support its current and projected obligations 
and has addressed the identified deficiency. 
12/16/21 Update:  The 2021-22 First Interim 
report projects a positive cash balance in 2021-
22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 fiscal years. 
5/1/21 Update:  Due to one-time savings as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic and approval 
for cash deferral exemptions from CDE, the 
2020-21 Second Interim Cash Flow Report 
projects a positive cash balance for the 2020-
21, 2021-22 and 2022-23 fiscal years. 
3/1/21 Update:  The 2020-21 First Interim  
Report projects that the district is able to meet 
its 2020-21 and 2021-22 obligations but is 
projecting that it will not satisfy the 3rd year 
2022-23 obligations. The 2020-21 First Interim 
Cash Flow Report projects major cash 
challenges beginning in May 2021 unless 
further budget adjustments are made.  
11/30/20 Update:  The 2020-21 Revised 
Adopted Budget presented at the October 1, 
2020 Board Meeting projects that the District 
is able to satisfy the current year 2020-21 and 
2021-2022 obligations but is projecting that it 



Page 12 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

will not satisfy the 3rd year 2022-23 
obligations.  
5/8/20 Update:  The 2019-20 Second Interim 
Report presented at the April 2, 2020 Board 
Meeting states that major cash challenges 
start in October 2021 unless further budget 
adjustments are made. 
3/10/20 Update:  The 2019-20 First Interim 
Report presented at the December 19, 2019 
Board Meeting states that major cash 
challenges start in November 2021 unless 
further budget adjustments are made. 
The Third Interim and 2019-20 Proposed 
Budget Cash Flow reports were completed. 
Both reports showed an improved cash 
position due to the budget adjustments. The 
District projects a positive cash balance 
through October 2020.  

6. Are all charters authorized by 
the district going concerns? (part 
1) 

In Progress The district has transferred funds to some of 
its authorized charter schools when those 
schools were in financial need. In 2017-18, the 
district transferred a total of $239,697.59 to 
charter schools, and it is projecting a transfer 
of $300,000 in 2018-19. 

12/15/22 Update:  For fiscal year 2021-22, the 
district transferred $1,081,471 to the charter 
fund. $918K of this transfer was to offset the 
estimated loss of LCFF revenue as a result of 
the loss of instructional days during the 21-22 
school year. The remaining $163K was a 
contribution to New Joseph Bonnheim. The 
2022-23 First Interim budget projects a $116K 
contribution to the charter fund.  District staff 
continues to monitor the financial health of 
the dependent charters by utilizing multi year 



Page 13 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

projections to make sure each makes the 
required reserve for economic uncertainty.  
3/17/22 Update:  The 2021-22 Second Interim 
financial report is projecting a contribution of 
$266,000 for George Washington Carver. 
District staff continues to monitor the financial 
health of the dependent charters by utilizing 
multi year projections to make sure each 
makes the required reserve for economic 
uncertainty.  
12/16/21 Update:  The 2021-22 First Interim 
financial report is projecting a contribution of 
$266,000 for George Washington Carver.  
District staff will continue to monitor the 
financial health of the dependent charters by 
utilizing multi year projections to make sure 
each makes the required reserve for economic 
uncertainty. 
9/16/21 Update:  With the 2020-21 Year End 
closing process, only $245,201 contribution 
was made to the New Tech Charter School and 
no contribution was made to the George 
Washington Carver School.   
5/1/21 Update:  The 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report projected a lower contribution 
for New Tech at $392,960 and no contribution 
for George Washington Carver due to staff 
adjusting each of the charter schools LCFF 
funding. 



Page 14 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

3/1/21 Update:  No projected changes at this 
time.  
11/30/20 Update: The Revised Adopted 
Budget for 2020-2021 projects that two 
dependent charters will require a contribution: 
1. New Tech $521K and 2. George Washington 
Carver $315K. The District is assisting both 
schools to identify solutions to resolve the 
budget issues.  
5/8/20 Update:  The 2019-20 Second Interim 
Report was presented at the April 2, 2020 
Board Meeting reported a decrease of 
$218,466 in general fund transfers to the 3 
charter schools. 
3/10/20 Update:  The 2019-20 First Interim 
Report provided the update on District staff 
meeting with Charter school administration to 
address the projected transfers from the 
District. 3 of the 4 schools have implemented 
the necessary adjustments to eliminate or 
reduce the need for a transfer. New Tech 
Charter School will require a transfer to 
support operations due to ongoing enrollment 
decline. 
7/23/19 Update:  During budget development, 
the fiscal consultant analyzed the five 
dependent charter schools who are governed 
by the SCUSD Board of trustees noting 
overspending in several of the schools. 



Page 15 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Contributions from the District's general fund 
are budgeted in both the budget year and 
continuing in the MYP. During the fiscal year, 
continued analysis and budget-balancing by 
staff will be needed to remove the general 
fund contribution to the charter school fund.  
Update: SCOE Fiscal Expert currently 
conducting analysis on all charter schools. Due 
6/30/2019. 

7. Are all charters authorized by 
the district going concerns?  
(part 2) 

In Progress Of most concern is the district’s ongoing 
support of the Sacramento New Technology 
Charter School for several years. Because this 
is an ongoing fiscal burden on the district, it 
needs to be discussed and remedied. 
 
The district has also given financial assistance 
in the past to George Washington Carver 
Charter School, though not every year. 
The district also needs to further study 
Sacramento Charter High School operated by 
St. Hope Public Schools to determine whether 
it is a going concern. 
 
The district’s charter schools are dependent 
from the standpoint of governance because 
they are part of the district and are under the 
authority of the district’s governing board. 
However, charter schools are not intended to 
have budget deficits that make them 

12/15/22 Update:  For fiscal year 2021-22, the 
district transferred $1,081,471 to the charter 
fund. $918K of this transfer was to offset the 
estimated loss of LCFF revenue as a result of 
the loss of instructional days during the 21-22 
school year. The remaining $163K was a 
contribution to New Joseph Bonnheim. The 
2022-23 First Interim budget projects a $116K 
contribution to the charter fund. District staff 
continues to monitor the financial health of 
the dependent charters by utilizing multi year 
projections to make sure each makes the 
required reserve for economic uncertainty. 
3/17/22 Update:  The 2021-22 Second Interim 
financial report is projecting a contribution of 
$266,000 for George Washington Carver. 
District staff continues to monitor the financial 
health of the dependent charters by utilizing 
multi year projections to make sure each 
makes the required reserve for economic 
uncertainty. 



Page 16 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

dependent on a district financially. Under 
California Code of Regulations (CCR), Section 
11967.5.1(c)(3)(A), a charter school must have 
a realistic financial and operational plan. Part 
of that includes having a balanced budget and 
financial plan. The district should take steps to 
ensure that approved charter schools do not 
require assistance from the district to stay 
solvent. 

12/16/21 Update:  The 2021-22 First Interim 
financial report is projecting a contribution of 
$266,000 for George Washington Carver.  
District staff will continue to monitor the 
financial health of the dependent charters by 
utilizing multi year projections to make sure 
each makes the required reserve for economic 
uncertainty. 
9/16/21 Update:  With the 2020-21 Year End 
closing process, only $245,201 contribution 
was made to the New Tech Charter School and 
no contribution was made to the George 
Washington Carver School. 
9/16/21 Update:  With the 2020-21 Year End 
closing process, only $245,201 contribution 
was made to the New Tech Charter School and 
no contribution was made to the George 
Washington Carver School. 
5/1/21 Update:  The 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report projected a lower contribution 
for New Tech at $392,960 and no contribution 
for George Washington Carver due to staff 
adjusting each of the charter schools LCFF 
funding. 
3/1/21 Update:  Pending 2020-21 2nd Interim 
Adjustments. 
11/30/20 Update: The Revised Adopted 
Budget for 2020-2021 projects that two 
dependent charters will require a contribution: 
1. New Tech $521K and 2. George Washington 



Page 17 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Carver $315K. The District is assisting both 
schools to identify solutions to resolve the 
budget issues.  
5/8/20 Update: The 2019-20 Second Interim 
Report presented at the April 2, 2020 Board 
Meeting reported a decrease of $218,466 in 
general fund transfers to the 3 charter schools. 
3/10/2020 Update: The 2019-20 First Interim 
Report provided the update on District staff 
meeting with Charter school administration to 
address the projected transfers from the 
District. 3 of the 4 schools have implemented 
the necessary adjustments to eliminate or 
reduce the need for a transfer. New Tech 
Charter School will require a transfer to 
support operations due to ongoing enrollment 
decline. 
7/23/19 Update:  Over the next several 
months, SCOE's fiscal advisor is performing a 
comprehensive review of the processes and 
documentation of the District's authorized 
charter schools, focusing on the ten 
independent charter schools operating in the 
District as direct funded charter schools with 
their own boards and separate financial 
system and audit reports. As of the 2019-20 
Revised Adopted Budget, four dependent 
charters schools were projected to need 
financial assistance from the District in future 



Page 18 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

years. The District has since met with each 
school to address the fiscal issues and three of 
the four have revised their budgets or are 
working on a plan that will remedy their 
deficit. New Technology Charter (New Tech) 
remains a concern. Over the years, New Tech 
has experienced an ongoing enrollment 
decline which has reduced the revenue and 
although expenditures have been reduced, the 
deficit is projected to persist. The Cabinet will 
continue to work with New Tech. The 
remaining work to be finalized is the 
comprehensive review of the processes and 
documentation of the ten independent charter 
schools. This work is being completed by the 
SCOE Fiscal Advisor.  
Update: SCOE Fiscal Expert currently 
conducting analysis on all charter schools. Due 
6/30/2019.  

8. Did the district conduct a pre 
settlement analysis and identify 
related costs or savings, if any 
(e.g., statutory benefits, and 
step and column salary 
increases), for the current and 
subsequent years, and did it 
identify ongoing revenue 
sources or expenditure 
reductions to support the 

In Progress The district entered into a multiyear 
agreement with the Sacramento City Teachers 
Association (SCTA) on December 7, 2017. The 
agreement granted salary increases of 2.5% 
effective July 1, 2016, an additional 2.5% 
effective July 1, 2017, and an additional 6.0% 
(2.5% and an additional 3.5% to restructure 
the salary schedule) effective July 1, 2018. 
Based on multiyear financial projections 
prepared at the time of the collective 

12/15/22 Update:  As of the 2022-23 First 
Interim Report the district is projecting an 
unrestricted surplus of $30.5M in 2022-23, 
$23.3M unrestricted surplus in 2023-24 and 
unrestricted surplus $7.6 M in 2024-25.  
11/30/2020 Update:  The District is now in the 
process of determining appropriate budget 
reductions to address its ongoing deficit. See 
the FRP presented on November 19, 2020, and 
scheduled for Board Action on December 10, 



Page 19 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

agreement? bargaining disclosure, it appeared that the 
district would be able to meet its required 
reserve for economic uncertainties in fiscal 
years 2017-18 and 2018-19 but would need to 
make budget reductions of approximately 
$15.6 million to meet the minimum reserve 
requirement for fiscal year 2019-20. At that 
time, the district estimated that its 
unrestricted ending fund balance would 
decrease from $73 million on July 1, 2017 to 
negative $4 million on June 30, 2018 if no 
budget reductions were made. A budget 
reduction plan was not submitted with the 
collective bargaining disclosure. 
 
All of this information, including the fact that 
the increase was not affordable as agreed to 
without identified budget reductions, was 
communicated by the county office to the 
district in a letter dated December 7, 2017 and 
stated publicly at a district board meeting. 

2020. 
The FRP includes proposals made to SCTA to 
bring healthcare premium contributions in line 
with industry standards that would save an 
estimated approximate $17 Million annually. 
5/8/2020 Update: The 2019-20 Second Interim 
Report presented at the April 2, 2020 Board 
Meeting reported that salary and benefit 
negotiations have not been settled for all 
bargaining units. 
3/10/2020 Update:  The California State 
Auditor conducted an audit of Sacramento City 
USD which was presented at the February 6, 
2020 Board Meeting. Proposals and 
illustrations were presented on cost savings 
that could be achieved to resolve the fiscal 
distress. All proposals shared require 
negotiations with the District's 5 bargaining 
units: SCTA, SEIU, UPE, TCS and Teamsters 
Local 150. 
7/22/19 Update: The District and SCTA have 
been meeting on the new salary schedules. 
Draft salary schedules have been shared with 
SCTA.  

9. Has the district settled the total 
cost of the bargaining 
agreements at or under the 
funded cost of living adjustment 
(COLA), and under gap funding if 

Complete The district entered into a multiyear 
agreement with the SCTA on December 7, 
2017. The agreement granted salary increases 
of 2.5% effective July 1, 2016, an additional 
2.5% effective July 1, 2017, and an additional 

3/1/21 Update:  SCTA Retros paid. No 
outstanding COLAs. 
3/10/20 Update: The SCTA Retros have been 
issued. The first SCTA Retro was paid on 
October 11, 2019 and the second SCTA Retro 



Page 20 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

applicable? 6.0% (i.e. 2.5% and additional 3.5% 
to restructure the salary schedule) effective 
July 1, 2018. The district and the SCTA 
disagree on the implementation date of the 
additional 3.5%, and the matter is being 
pursued in superior court. If the additional 
3.5% is implemented on the date SCTA 
interprets as correct, it would result in a fiscal 
impact in 2018-19 of close to 7% for salary 
rescheduling rather than the 3.5% the district 
agreed to. 

was paid on November 25, 2019. 
7/22/19 Update:  No new agreements at this 
time. District currently reviewing impact of 
contribution decision for 2019-20 and future 
years. The 2018-19 retro is planned for 
September 2019. 
 

10. Does the district have a plan to 
reduce and/or eliminate any 
increasing contributions from 
the general fund to other 
resources? 

In Progress Most of the district’s general fund 
contributions are to special education 
programs and to the routine repair and 
maintenance account. Total contributions 
increased from $62,581,129 in 2015-16 to 
$67,759,639 in 2016-17 and to $77,505,592 in 
2017-18. The district’s 2018-19 through 2020-
21 budgets include continuing contributions 
for a total of $89,134,727 in 2018-19, 
$96,425,490 in 2019-20, and $104,000,050 in 
2020-21. 
 
FCMAT was not able to obtain an approved 
plan to reduce and/or eliminate increasing 
contributions from the general fund to other 
resources. The district did present an updated 
plan dated October 4, 2018 to reduce the 
district’s overall deficit, but details were not 

12/15/22 Update:  The 2022-23 First Interim 
Report projects a $116K contribution to the 
charter fund.  
3/17/22 Update:  The 2021-22 Second Interim 
financial report is projecting a contribution of 
$266,000 for George Washington Carver.  
District staff continues to monitor the financial 
health of the dependent charters by utilizing 
multi year projections to make sure each 
makes the required reserve for economic 
uncertainty. 
12/16/21 Update:  The 2021-22 First Interim 
financial report is projecting a contribution of 
$266,000 for George Washington Carver.  
District staff will continue to monitor the 
financial health of the dependent charters by 
utilizing multi year projections to make sure 
each makes the required reserve for economic 



Page 21 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

found specific to reducing contributions to 
restricted programs. 

uncertainty. 
5/1/21 Update: The 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report projected a lower contribution 
for New Tech at $392,960 and no contribution 
for George Washington Carver due to staff 
adjusting each of the charter schools LCFF 
funding. 
3/1/21 Update:  The District projected a 
contribution for fiscal year 2020-21 of 
$314,819 for George Washington Carver and 
$521,079 for New Tech Charter School.  
3/10/2020 Update:  The 2019-20 First Interim 
Report provided the update on District staff 
meeting with Charter school administration to 
address the projected transfers from the 
District. 3 of the 4 schools have implemented 
the necessary adjustments to eliminate or 
reduce the need for a transfer. New Tech 
Charter School will require a transfer to 
support operations due to ongoing enrollment 
decline. 
Update: Program analysis was conducted and 
completed by SCOE Expert. The District has 
worked with the dependent charter schools to 
address the financial assistance projected 
during the 2019-20 Adopted Budget and has 
reduced the contribution for two of the four 
schools. The District is working with the 
remaining two schools to address the deficits. 



Page 22 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

11. Is the district avoiding a 
structural deficit in the current 
and two subsequent fiscal years? 
(A structural deficit is when 
ongoing unrestricted 
expenditures and contributions 
exceed ongoing unrestricted 
revenues.) 

In Progress Structural deficit spending is projected in 
2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21 due to 
negotiated agreements settled in 2017-18 
without corresponding budget adjustments to 
offset these ongoing increased costs. 

12/15/22 Update:  As of the 2022-23 First 
Interim Report the district is projecting an 
unrestricted surplus of $30.5M in 2022-23, 
$23.3M unrestricted surplus in 2023-24 and 
unrestricted surplus $7.6 M in 2024-25.  
3/17/22 Update:  As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim report the District is projecting an 
unrestricted surplus of $19.86M in the current 
year, an unrestricted surplus of $10.45M in 
2022-23 and projected unrestricted deficit of 
($6.17M) in 2023-24.  
12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District is 
projecting an unrestricted surplus of $12.9M in 
the current year and a projected deficit of 
($16.5M) in 2022-23 and ($23.2M) in 2023-24. 
5/1/21 Update: The 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report projected an unrestricted 
deficit spend of ($11.2M) in 21-22 and 
($26.4M) in 22-23. 
11/30/20 Update:  The 2020-21 Revised 
Adopted Budget presented at the October 1, 
2020 Board Meeting projects that the District 
has not resolved the structural deficit in all 
three years (2020-2021 thru 2022-2023). The 
District has implemented over $50M in 
expense reductions over the past 2 years but 
still requires a multi-million solution to 
eliminate the deficit and achieve fiscal 



Page 23 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

solvency.  
5/8/20 Update:  The 2019-20 Second Interim 
Financial Report and FCMAT Update was 
presented at the April 2, 2020 Board Meeting. 
The District's $27M shortfall will not be 
resolved without a negotiated solution. 
3/10/20 Update: The Fiscal Recovery Plan was 
presented at the February 6, 2020 Board 
Meeting and included proposals to achieve the 
$27M solution. These proposals require 
negotiations. 

12. Is the district avoiding deficit 
spending in the current fiscal 
year? Is the district projected to 
avoid deficit spending in the two 
subsequent fiscal years? If the 
district has deficit spending in 
the current or two subsequent 
fiscal years, has the board 
approved and implemented a 
plan to reduce and/or eliminate 
deficit spending? Has the district 
decreased deficit spending over 
the past two fiscal years? 

Complete Based on the revised 2018-19 adopted budget, 
the district’s deficit spending is projected to 
be $ 35,950,457.05 in total unrestricted and 
restricted funds. The district’s total deficit, 
including unrestricted and restricted funds, is 
projected to be $52,563,654.00 in 2019-20 
and $49,923,727.28 in 2020-21. As part of the 
district’s revised 2018-19 adopted budget, the 
board approved a plan to reduce deficit 
spending; however, the plan does not reduce 
or eliminate deficit spending to an amount 
sufficient to sustain solvency. Additional 
significant reductions are needed. The total 
plan brought to the board on October 4, 2018 
was for $11,483,500 in reductions to the 
unrestricted general fund. FCMAT’s review of 
the past two fiscal years shows that the 

3/17/22 Update:  As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim report the District is projecting an 
unrestricted surplus of $19.86M in the current 
year, an unrestricted surplus of $10.45M in 
2022-23 and projected unrestricted deficit of 
($6.17M) in 2023-24. On December 17, 2021 
the District presented and approved a fiscal 
recovery plan to help address a portion of the 
structural deficit. Based on the 2021-22 
Second Interim data, historical trend data, and 
the FRP plans approved in February 2021 and 
December 2021, the District has addressed the 
identified deficiencies. 
12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District is 
projecting an unrestricted surplus of $12.9M in 
the current year and a projected deficit of 



Page 24 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

district did not start deficit spending until 
2017-18; the deficit for that fiscal year was 
$10,966,055.80. In 2016-17, the district had a 
surplus of $5,747,472.67. 

($16.5M) in 2022-23 and ($23.2M) in 2023-24.  
The District is working on presenting a fiscal 
recovery plan to address the $23.2M projected 
deficit for 2023-24 to the Board for approval. 
5/1/21 Update: The 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report projected an unrestricted 
deficit spend of ($11.2M) in 21-22 and 
($26.4M) in 22-23. 
3/1/21 Update:  The 2020-21 1st Interim 
Budget presented at the December 17, 2020 
Board Meeting projects that the District has 
not resolved the structural deficit in all three 
years (2020-2021 thru 2022-2023). The District 
has implemented over $50M in expense 
reductions over the past 2 years but still 
requires a multi-million solution to eliminate 
the deficit and achieve fiscal solvency. 
11/30/2020 Update: The 2020-21 Revised 
Adopted Budget presented at the October 1, 
2020 Board Meeting projects that the District 
has not resolved the structural deficit in all 
three years (2020-2021 thru 2022-2023). The 
District has implemented over $50M in 
expense reductions over the past 2 years but 
still requires a multi-million solution to 
eliminate the deficit and achieve fiscal 
solvency.  
 
 



Page 25 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

5/8/20 Update:  The 2019-20 Second Interim 
Financial Report and FCMAT Update was 
presented at the April 2, 2020 Board Meeting 
with projected deficit spending for 2020-21 of 
$32M and $30M for 2021-22. 
3/10/20 Update:  The 2019-20 First Interim 
Financial Report and FCMAT Update was 
presented at the December 19, 2019 Board 
Meeting with a negative certification. The 
District has implemented most of the non-
negotiable items. The District estimates deficit 
spending during 2020-21 in the amount of 
$28.6M resulting in unrestricted ending 
General Fund balance of approximately 
$30.5M. The estimate for 2021-22 deficit 
spending is $29.8M resulting in an unrestricted 
General Fund balance of approximately $695K. 
A negotiated solution will be required to 
address the District's $27M shortfall. 
Update: District Recommended Plan will 
correct deficit spending. However, 
adjustments do require negotiated savings. As 
of the 2019-20 Revised Adopted Budget the 
District has implemented $50.2M in ongoing 
budget adjustments and $12.1M in one-time 
budget adjustments during the period of 
December 2018 through September 2019. 
Although these adjustments did not eliminate 
the deficit, the District's financial position was 



Page 26 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

improved as follows: 2018-2019 actual deficit 
was $171K in total unrestricted and restricted 
funds and the District's total deficit, including 
unrestricted and restricted funds, is projected 
to be $18,706,878 in 2019-20, $28,123,536 in 
2020-21 and $30,977,139 in 2021-22. In order 
to eliminate the deficit and maintain sufficient 
reserves to satisfy the 2% required for 
economic uncertainties, the District will need 
to adopt $27M in ongoing solutions. The 
District will continue to research opportunities 
to mitigate the deficit but major adjustments 
will require a negotiated solution. This 
information can be found in the Revised 
Adopted Budget 2019-20 presented at the 
October 3, 2019 Board Meeting. 

13. Does the district have a plan to 
fund its liabilities for retiree 
benefits? 

In Progress The district commissioned an actuarial 
valuation dated June 30, 2016, in accordance 
with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement 75, Actuarial Report 
of OPEB Liabilities. 
 
The actuarial report estimates the district’s 
total other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 
liability to be $780,518,410 for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2018, and its net OPEB liability 
(i.e., factoring in employer contributions to 
the trust, net investment income, benefit 
payments, and administrative expenses) to be 

12/15/22 Update:  The district has made 
progress towards fully funding at the 
Actuarially Determined Contribution level and 
for the 2021-22 fiscal year funded at 100.10%. 
The increase in funding to the OPEB trust has 
resulted in the District’s net OPEB liability 
decreasing from $567M as of June 30, 2020 
down to $308M as of June 30, 2022. The 
District plans to continue funding at the 
actuarially determined contribution level.  
3/17/22 Update:  The District is continuing to 
review options to fully fund at the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution level for the 2021-22 



Page 27 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

$725,760,458 for the same period. 
 
The district has established an irrevocable 
OPEB trust with assets dedicated toward 
paying future retiree medical benefits. GASB 
75 allows pre funded plans to use a discount 
rate that reflects the expected earning on 
trust assets. However, the actuarial report 
states: 
 
. . . the district expects to yield 7.25% per year 
over the long term, based on information 
published by CalPERS as of the June 30, 2016 
actuarial valuation date. However, total net 
contributions to the trust have averaged 31% 
of the amount that would have been needed 
to be deposited to the OPEB trust so that total 
OPEB contributions would equal the 
actuarially defined contribution. 

fiscal year to continue its progress towards 
funding the OPEB liability.  
12/16/21 Update:  On November 2nd, 2021 
the District received an updated actuarial 
study that reflects an improvement in the 
District’s total OPEB liability. Due to increased 
contributions in FY 2021, the District funded 
97.6% of its Actuarially Determined 
Contribution. The higher funding level allowed 
for a change in the actuarial methodology that 
contributed to a decrease in total OPEB liability 
from $654M as of June 30, 2020 to $415M as 
of June 30, 2021, or a 44% decrease. To 
continue to maximize progress, the district 
plans on fully funding at the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution level for the 2021-22 
fiscal year. 
5/1/21 Update:  The District is continuing to 
review options and develop a plan to fully fund 
at the ADC level which, over a five-year span, 
will substantially decrease the Net OPEB 
liability. 
3/1/21 Update:  The District realized excess 
savings in its Dental and Vision funds and 
applied the savings towards its OPEB 
contribution. The District is continuing to 
review options and develop a plan to fully fund 
at the ADC level which, over a five-year span, 
will substantially decrease the Net OPEB 



Page 28 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

liability.  
3/10/20 Update:  On October 25, 2019 the 
District received its updated Other Post 
Employment Benefit (OPEB) liability amount in 
our latest GASB 75 actuarial report for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019. 
The latest valuation reports the District's Total 
OPEB Liability at $599 million, a $181 million 
decrease from the prior report of $780 million. 
This is a result of lower than projected medical 
premium growth and increased interest rates. 
While a portion of the change in interest rates 
is market-based, being able to maintain the 
higher interest (discount) rates is contingent 
upon sustained and/or increasing 
contributions to the OPEB trust. Failure to do 
so would likely result in a reduction to these 
rates in the future and revert to a higher Total 
OPEB Liability. 
The Net OPEB Liability decreased by $199 
million from the prior report to $526 million. 
The decrease is a result of the continued 
funding of the District’s OPEB irrevocable trust 
fund in addition to the decreases noted above. 
In other words, these continued contributions 
to the OPEB trust help not only in increasing 
the trust assets, but also in stabilizing or 
improving the discount rate used to calculate 
the Total OPEB Liability. 



Page 29 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

This is a significant improvement, but the 
liability will continue to grow without 
continued efforts to decrease it. 
The Superintendent plans to establish an OPEB 
commission to further address the outstanding 
liability once a balanced budget is adopted. 

14. Has the district developed 
measures to mitigate the effect 
of student transfers out of the 
district? 

Complete The district authorizes all interdistrict transfers 
out of the district and does not require the 
parents of students who receive interdistrict 
transfer permits to reapply annually. 

12/15/22 Update:  The district has partnered 
with SchoolMint to help support the 
Intra/Inter district permit process.  This 
process will allow us to inform our 
community on how our Intra/Inter permit 
process is structured.  
Currently, we have extended our evaluation 
process for the inter district permit requesting 
to leave SCUSD.  We required documentation 
from the parent to support the reason(s) for 
the request to leave SCUSD.  If these requests 
do not meet certain criteria they will be 
denied.  If parents want to appeal any 
denials, they will have 30 days to support the 
appeal in writing.  Appeals are reviewed with 
CSO department, the EC director, and the IAS. 
3/17/22 Update:  Currently working to provide 
our current School Board with the necessary 
information to support a decision on moving 
forward with a third party vendor to support 
the Inter and Intra district permit process. 
12/16/21 Update:  Currently looking at third 
party vendors that support a robust online 
Inter and Intra district permit submission and 



Page 30 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

tracking system.  This will help support our 
Data tracking needs.  The creation of an in-
district Intra/Inter district permit appeal 
process is still in development. 
5/1/21 Update:  Initiated a requirement to 
attach documentation pertaining to the reason 
for any ITP request. Documentation will not be 
processed without supporting documents. 
11/30/20 Update:  Staff is currently reviewing 
the development of an internal program in 
“Infinite Campus” that will be used to track 
inter-district permits so that our data set will 
contain more information such as reason for 
the transfer; how many requests have been 
made for this student etc. 
We are looking to develop a process where 
inter-district permits are vetted, but currently 
do not have the capacity and will need to look 
at the possibility of creating a position just for 
Inter district permits. 
5/8/20 Update:  In Progress, delayed due to 
COVID-19 pandemic. 
3/10/20 Update:  Staff is currently in the 
process of interviewing nearby districts to see 
what their process is as it relates to 
interdistrict permits requesting to leave their 
districts. The end result will be a proposal 
identifying the pros and cons for SCUSD to be 
submitted in the coming weeks. 



Page 31 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

15. Is the district able to maintain 
the minimum reserve for 
economic uncertainty in the two 
subsequent years? 

Complete The district will fall short of its 2019-20 and 
2020-21 minimum reserve requirement based 
on its revised (October 4, 2018) adopted 2018-
19 budget projections, which show 
unrestricted ending fund balances of 
($17,491,788.17) in 2019-20 and 
($66,494,314.95) in 2020-21. 

3/17/22 Update:  As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim Report, the District is projecting an 
unrestricted general fund balance of $123.5M 
in 2021-22, $134M in 2022-23, and $127.8M in 
2023-34 that provides reserves to meet the 
minimum required reserve for economic 
uncertainty. Based on the 2021-22 Second 
Interim data, the district has addressed the 
identified deficiency.  
12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District is 
projecting an unrestricted general fund 
balance of $116.6M in 2021-22, $100.2M in 
2022-23 and $77.0M in 2023-24 that provides 
reserves to meet the minimum required 
reserve for economic uncertainty. 
5/1/21 Update:  At the March 18, 2021 Board 
Meeting, the 20-21 2nd Interim financial 
report was approved by the Board with a 
qualified certification. The 20-21 Unrestricted 
General Fund balance presented is $89.5M for 
20-21, $78.3M for 21-22 and $51.9M for 22-
23. 
3/1/21 Update:  At the December 10, 2020 
Board Meeting, the 2020-21 First Interim 
Report was approved with a negative 
certification. The 2020-21 Unrestricted General 
Fund balance presented at First Interim is 
$62.5 M for 20-21, $24.3 for 21-22, and ($31.3 
M) for 22-23.  



Page 32 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

11/30/20 Update:  The 2020-21 Revised 
Adopted Budget presented at the October 1, 
2020 Board Meeting projects that the District 
has not resolved the structural deficit in all 
three years (2020-2021 thru 2022-2023). The 
District is projected to meet the minimum 
required reserve in 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 
but will not meet the required reserve in 2022-
2023. The District has implemented over $50M 
in expense reductions over the past 2 years 
but still requires a multi-million solution to 
eliminate the deficit and achieve fiscal 
solvency. Please see #16 below. 
5/8/20 Update:  At the April 2, 2020 Board 
Meeting, the 2019-20 Second Interim Financial 
Report was approved with a negative 
certification and an update on the FCMAT 
matrix was also presented. The unrestricted 
general fund balance at the 2019-20 Second 
Interim is as follows: *2019-20: $58,556,959 
*2020-21: $26,956,247 and *2021-22: -
$2,043,174. The District may not meet the 
minimum required 2% reserve in Fiscal Year 
2021-22. 
3/10/20 Update:  The 2019-20 First Interim 
Financial Report and FCMAT Update was 
presented at the December 19, 2019 Board 
Meeting with a negative certification. The 
2019-20 General Fund Balance presented at 



Page 33 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

First Interim is $59,146,111 for FY 19-20, and 
projected at $30,523,941 in FY 2020-21 and 
$695,344 in FY 2021-22. 
Update The 2019/20 Proposed Budget shows 
the District will have their minimum reserve 
for the 19/20 and 20/21 fiscal year. However, 
if no adjustments are made the 21/22 fiscal 
year the district will have a negative reserve. 
District is working on a negotiated solution. 
Although the District has made significant 
budget adjustments in the amount of $50.2M 
in ongoing and $12.1M in one-time resulting in 
improving the unrestricted fund balances to 
$51.6M in 2019-20 and $23.5M in 2010-21, the 
third year 2021-22 remains a challenge 
without a $27M solution. The fund balances 
for the third year 2021-22 are projected at 
($7.5M). 



Page 34 of 79 
 

17. Is the district’s projected 
unrestricted fund balance stable 
or increasing in the two 
subsequent fiscal years? 

Complete The district’s unrestricted general fund 
balance is projected to decrease significantly 
in 2019-20 and 2020-21 compared to its 2018-
19 budgeted amount: 
 
* 2018-19: $25,926,177.49 
* 2019-20: ($17,491,788.17) 
* 2020-21: ($66,494,314.95) 

3/17/22 Update:  As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim Report, the District is projecting an 
unrestricted general fund balance of $123.5M 
in 2021-22, $134M in 2022-23, and $127.8M in 
2023-34. Based on the 2021-22 Second Interim 
Data, the District’s unrestricted fund balance is 
stable and identified deficiency has been 
addressed.  
12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District is 
projecting an unrestricted general fund 
balance of $116.6M in 2021-22, $100.2M in 
2022-23 and $77.0M in 2023-24; therefore, it 
is decreasing year over year.  
5/1/21 Update: As of the 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report the District's unrestricted fund 
balance is projected to decline from the 20-21 
fiscal year to the two subsequent years as 
follows: 2020-21 = $89.5M, 2021-22 = $78.3M, 
2022-23 = $51.9M. 
11/30/20 Update:  As of 2020-2021 1st Interim 
financial report the District’s unrestricted fund 
balance is projected to decline from the 2020-
2021 to the two subsequent fiscal years as 
follows: 
2020-2021 = $62M 
2021-2022 = $24M 
2022-2023 = -$31M 
3/1/21 Update:  Pending 20-21 2nd Interim 
final numbers.  
5/8/20 Update:  At the April 2, 2020 Board 



Page 35 of 79 
 

Meeting, the 2019-20 Second Interim Financial 
Report was approved with a negative 
certification and an update on the FCMAT 
matrix was also presented. The unrestricted 
general fund balance is decreasing in the 
subsequent fiscal years and at the 2019-20 
Second Interim is as follows: *2019-20: 
$58,556,959 *2020-21: $26,956,247 and 
*2021-22: -$2,043,174. 
3/10/20 Update: The 2019-20 First Interim 
Financial Report and FCMAT Update was 
presented at the December 19, 2019 Board 
Meeting with a negative certification. The 
unrestricted general fund balance at the 2019-
20 First Interim is as follows: *2019-20: 
$59,146,111 *2020-21: $30,523,941 and 
*2021-22: 695,344. 
Update: While the District has made progress, 
the District continues to work on a negotiated 
solution. Although the District still needs a 
$27M solution to achieve fiscal solvency, the 
adjustments implemented in the last year have 
improved the unrestricted general fund 
balance as follows: * 2018-19: $61,133,835 
*2019-20: $51,622,467.60 *2020-21: 
$23,498,932 and *2021-22: ($7,478,207).  



Page 36 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

18. If the district has unfunded or 
contingent liabilities or one-time 
costs, does the unrestricted fund 
balance include any assigned or 
committed reserves above the 
recommended reserve level? 

In Progress The district’s unrestricted ending fund balance 
does not include amounts for the following 
liabilities: 
 
* Because the district and the SCTA disagree 
on the implementation date of a 3.5% 
increase included in the December 7, 2017 
negotiated agreement, 
 
* There is a potential fiscal impact for 2019-20 
and beyond of a 7% increase related to salary 
schedule restructuring rather than the 3.5% 
stated in the agreement. 
 
* The district’s net contributions to the 
irrevocable OPEB trust established to pay 
future retiree medical benefits have averaged 
31% of the amount that will be needed to 
ensure that total OPEB contributions equal the 
actuarially- defined contribution. The area of 
retirement benefits is a liability that the 
district will need to face because the costs are 
outpacing contributions. 

12/15/22 Update:  The district has made 
progress towards fully funding at the 
Actuarially Determined Contribution level and 
for the 2021-22 fiscal year funded at 100.10%. 
The increase in funding to the OPEB trust has 
resulted in the District’s net OPEB liability 
decreasing from $567M as of June 30, 2020 
down to $308M as of June 30, 2022. The 
District plans to continue funding at the 
actuarially determined contribution level.  
3/17/22 Update:  The District is continuing to 
review options to fully fund at the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution level for the 2021-22 
fiscal year to continue its progress towards 
funding the OPEB liability.  
12/16/21 Update:  On November 2nd, 2021 
the District received an updated actuarial 
study that reflects an improvement in the 
District’s total OPEB liability. Due to increased 
contributions in FY 2021, the District funded 
97.6% of its Actuarially Determined 
Contribution. The higher funding level allowed 
for a change in the actuarial methodology that 
contributed to a decrease in total OPEB liability 
from $654M as of June 30, 2020 to $415M as 
of June 30, 2021, or a 44% decrease. To 
continue to maximize progress, the district 
plans on fully funding at the Actuarially 
Determined Contribution level for the 2021-22 
fiscal year.    
 



Page 37 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

5/1/21 Update:  The District is continuing to 
review options and develop a plan to fully fund 
at the ADC level which, over a five-year span, 
will substantially decrease the Net OPEB 
liability. 
3/1/21 Update: The District realized excess 
savings in its Dental and Vision funds and 
applied the savings towards its OPEB 
contribution. The District is continuing to 
review options and develop a plan to fully fund 
at the ADC level which, over a five-year span, 
will substantially decrease the Net OPEB 
liability.  
3/10/20 Update: On October 25, 2019 the 
District received its updated Other Post 
Employment Benefit (OPEB) liability amount in 
our latest GASB 75 actuarial report for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019. 
The latest valuation reports the District's Total 
OPEB Liability at $599 million, a $181 million 
decrease from the prior report of $780 million. 
This is a result of lower than projected medical 
premium growth and increased interest rates. 
While a portion of the change in interest rates 
is market-based, being able to maintain the 
higher interest (discount) rates is contingent 
upon sustained and/or increasing 
contributions to the OPEB trust. Failure to do 
so would likely result in a reduction to these 



Page 38 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

rates in the future and revert to a higher Total 
OPEB Liability. 
The Net OPEB Liability decreased by $199 
million from the prior report to $526 million. 
The decrease is a result of the continued 
funding of the District’s OPEB irrevocable trust 
fund in addition to the decreases noted above. 
In other words, these continued contributions 
to the OPEB trust help not only in increasing 
the trust assets, but also in stabilizing or 
improving the discount rate used to calculate 
the Total OPEB Liability. 
This is a significant improvement, but the 
liability will continue to grow without 
continued efforts to decrease it. 
In Progress: Superintendent to establish 
commission to further address the outstanding 
liability once a balanced budget is adopted. 

19. Is the percentage of the district’s 
general fund unrestricted 
budget that is allocated to 
salaries and benefits at or under 
the statewide average for the 
current year? 

In Progress The statewide average for unified school 
districts as of 2016-17 (the latest data 
available) is 84.63%. At the 2018-19 first 
interim, the district is exceeding the statewide 
average by 6.37%. 

12/15/22 Update:  As of the 2022-23 First 
Interim report, the District’s Salaries and 
Benefits comprise 89% of the unrestricted 
general fund projected expenditures and 68% 
of the combined general fund. 
3/17/22 Update: As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim report the District’s Salaries and 
Benefits comprised 90% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund projected expenditures and 68% 
of the combined General Fund. 



Page 39 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District's Salaries & 
Benefits comprised 90% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund projected expenditures and 69% 
of the combined General Fund. 
5/1/21 Update: As of the 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report the District's Salaries & 
Benefits comprised 89% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund projected expenditures and 75% 
of the combined General Fund. 
3/1/21 Update:  Pending 2020-21 2nd Interim 
final numbers. 
11/30/20 Update:  As of the Revised Adopted 
Budget for 2020-2021, the District's Salaries 
and Benefits comprise approximately 71% of 
the General Fund and 90% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund balance.  
5/8/20 Update:  At the 19-20 Second Interim, 
the District's Salaries and Benefits was at 
93.7% which does not fall within the standard 
percentage of 87.5%-93.5%. The District does 
not meet the status and is exceeding the 
statewide average by .5%. 
3/10/20 Update:  The SCTA Retros have been 
issued. The first SCTA Retro was paid on 
October 11, 2019 and the second SCTA Retro 
was paid on November 25, 2019. At the 2019-
20 First Interim, the District's Salaries and 
Benefits was at 92.6% which falls within the 



Page 40 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

standard percentage of 87.5%-93.5%. 
In Progress: Once the final calculations are 
determined for the second retro payment, this 
can then be determined.  

20. Is the percentage of the district’s 
general fund unrestricted 
budget that is allocated to 
salaries and benefits at or below 
the statewide average for the 
three prior years? 

In Progress The district exceeds the statewide average in 
this area for all three prior years, with its 
highest percentage in 2015-16 at 6.93% higher 
than the state average. 

12/15/22 Update:  As of the 2022-23 First 
Interim report, the District’s Salaries and 
Benefits comprise 89% of the unrestricted 
general fund projected expenditures and 68% 
of the combined general fund. 
3/17/22 Update:  As of the 2021-22 Second 
Interim report the District’s Salaries and 
Benefits comprised 90% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund projected expenditures and 68% 
of the combined General Fund. 
12/16/21 Update:  As of the 2021-22 First 
Interim financial report the District's Salaries & 
Benefits comprised 90% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund projected expenditures and 69% 
of the combined General Fund. 
5/1/21 Update:  As of the 20-21 2nd Interim 
financial report the District's Salaries & 
Benefits comprised 89% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund projected expenditures and 75% 
of the combined General Fund. 
11/30/20 Update: As of the Revised Adopted 
Budget for 2020-2021, the District's Salaries 
and Benefits comprise approximately 71% of 
the General Fund and 90% of the Unrestricted 
General Fund balance.  
 



Page 41 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

3/1/21 Update:  Pending 2020-21 2nd Interim 
final numbers.  
5/8/20 Update:  At the 19-20 Second Interim, 
the District's Salaries and Benefits was at 
93.7% which does not fall within the standard 
percentage of 87.5%-93.5%. The District does 
not meet the status and is exceeding the 
statewide average by .5%. 
3/10/20 Update:  The SCTA Retros have been 
issued. The first SCTA Retro was paid on 
October 11, 2019 and the second SCTA Retro 
was paid on November 25, 2019. At the 2019-
20 First Interim, the District's Salaries and 
Benefits was at 92.6% which falls within the 
standard percentage of 87.5%-93.5%. 
In Progress: Once the final calculations are 
determined for the second retro payment, this 
can then be determined. 

21. Is the district using its restricted 
dollars fully by expending 
allocations for restricted 
programs within the required 
time? 

In Progress The district has seen a 129% increase in its 
total restricted ending fund balance from 
2014-15 to 2017-18. This increase indicates 
that the district is not fully expending its 
restricted funding allocations. In addition, staff 
stated that some federal funds have gone 
unspent and have been returned to the 
federal government. 

12/15/22 Update:  As of the 2022-23 First 
Interim report, the district projects a 
restricted ending fund balance of $94M 
primarily due to the addition of two restricted 
grant funding sources, the Learning Recovery 
Block Grant and Music Arts Grant.  Staff 
continues to work with sites and departments 
to encumber restricted programs to ensure 
restricted funds are spent according to 
funding requirements including the expiration 
date.  



Page 42 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

3/17/22 Update:  Staff continues to work with 
sites and departments to encumber and spend 
restricted programs to ensure these funds are 
not lost, also when needed the District will file 
for extension waivers. 
12/16/21 Update:  Staff continues to work 
with sites and departments to encumber and 
spend restricted programs to ensure these 
funds are not lost, also when needed the 
District will file for extension waivers. 
5/1/21 Update:  Staff is working with sites and 
departments to encumber and spend SIG, CSI 
and carryover Title funded programs to ensure 
these funds are not lost, also when needed the 
District will file for extension waivers. 
Update: For the 2019-20 budget, most of the 
title type current year allocations for the year 
have been programmed for the upcoming 
year. This includes Title I and Title II. Some Title 
III funds still need to be programmed and team 
members are working on this matter. Title IV 
first year allocations have been programmed. 
Title IV second year has not been allocated at 
this time. While Title I funds have been 
allocated, the multi-year conservatively 
assumes $1.5 million in Title I funds will not be 
spent by June 30 and utilized in 2020-21. Medi-
Cal has a $1.4 million carryover that needs to 
be programmed. SIG carryover of $4 million 



Page 43 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

will be spent over 2019-20 and 2020-21. These 
funds require discussions with the consortium 
as to the best option on spending carryover 
funds. Staff will monitor projected restricted 
carryover, so that plans can be developed to 
utilize these one-time carryover funds 
appropriately. 

22. Are the district’s financial 
system’s access and 
authorization controls reviewed 
and updated upon employment 
actions (i.e. resignations, 
terminations, promotions or 
demotions) and at least 
annually? 

Complete The district does not regularly update 
authorization controls, and discrepancies 
based on changes in positions are often found 
many months later. The district relies on a 
digital change form that requires manual 
signatures, which slows the process or results 
in lost forms. The district should move to a 
digital form process to increase efficiency. 

12/15/22 Update:   A new Palo Alto (PAN) 
firewall has been installed. Staff requiring 
remote access via VPN are being moved to 
the PAN after manager approval and Multi-
Factor Authentication (MFA).  All tech staff 
now have MFA enabled and new staff are 
added daily.  All Escape backups are now 
immutable with offsite backups to Wasabi 
cloud storage.  Staff password requirements 
are now 12 characters requiring complex 
characters with all passwords checked against 
the Microsoft password dictionary.  Only U.S. 
logins are allowed.  In addition, access to the 
network is ended automatically on the ending 
of employment status in our HR System. 
When an employee is terminated, their access 
is terminated. 
3/17/22 Update: HR annually conducts a 
review of personnel transactions 
to ensure accurate staffing. The Information 
Technology Department is in the process of 
implementing a computer system (UMRA) to 



Page 44 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

perform this task electronically. The District is 
about to implement a process in Escape that 
will allow for automatic and timed 
employment status changes when folks are 
hired and when they are separated.  This 
change should allow a clear delineation of the 
automated network access process through 
UMRA, allowing for automatic network 
access/denial for those whose status changes. 
The Palo Alto firewall installation continues to 
move forward with a mid-April go live. 
12/16/21 Update:  The district completed a 
network security audit in June, 2021, that 
included a review of the Escape servers. We 
are currently using Illumio software on the 
Escape servers to monitor how the servers are 
accessed and by whom. Once the review is 
complete, Escape servers will be locked down 
to restrict access. The district is moving Infinite 
Campus, the Student Information System, to 
the cloud over the Winter break to increase 
security. The recent move from an on-
premises Exchange email server to the cloud-
based O365 is also part of the security move to 
mitigate phishing attempts and data loss. A 
new Palo Alto 5260 firewall, with threat 
prevention and zero-day attack virus 
detection, has been approved with matching E-
Rate funds, ordered the first week of 
November.  We are still working on cleaning 



Page 45 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

up data in our Escape system to allow for 
UMRA account creation to take place. We are 
meeting this month to make refinements to 
our script and process to bring this about 
quicker. We are also working with a newly 
hired Escape contractor/developer to 
automate our onboarding and separation 
processes.  This will improve our data quality. 
9/16/21 Update:  We continue to work on data 
clean up so that we can turn on UMRA for the 
creation of accounts.  UMRA is being used to 
disable staff accounts as soon as their 
employment status shows that they should no 
longer have access.  We should be ready for 
full deployment by the end of the year.  
5/1/21 Update:  Progress has been made on 
the data clean up and we are seeing positive 
test results in our test data pulls. We will have 
this done very soon. We have also seen a 
significant switch in changes in the initial data 
entry causing fewer data issues. HR has made 
changes in the way data is entered and made it 
operational. 
3/1/21 Update:  UMRA was enabled on 
2/11/21 to manage the deactivation of active 
directory accounts. Creation of accounts has 
been put on pause while data issues are 
addressed within the system of record, Escape. 
 



Page 46 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

11/30/20 Update: The first phase of the rollout 
will be implemented by mid-January. Phase 1 – 
Active Directory: email account 
creation/deactivation. Subsequent phases 
would use UMRA to create user accounts for 
primary programs like Escape, Infinite Campus. 
3/11/20 Update:  The implementation will 
continue after the new Chief Information 
Officer is hired. 

23. Does the district ensure that 
duties in the following areas are 
segregated, and that they are 
supervised and monitored? • 
Accounts payable (AP) 

In Progress Although the accounts payable process 
appears properly supervised and monitored, 
the printing of the warrants is completed in 
the business department rather than in 
a separate department, such as technology, 
which would improve segregation of duties. 
One department should input the information 
and a different department should print 
warrants 

12/15/22 Update:  The AP warrant process 
includes several layers of review and approval 
which provide a sufficient segregation of 
duties.  
3/17/22 Update: The AP warrant process 
includes several layers of review and approval 
which provide a sufficient segregation of 
duties.  
5/1/21 Update:  The AP warrant process 
includes each AP team member inputting data. 
Once input, the data is then reviewed and 
cross-checked by a different AP team member. 
Once the review is complete, the AP batch is 
forwarded to the Lead AP for audit. Upon audit 
completion the AP batch is reviewed and 
approved by the Director of Accounting. The 
AP Batch is then printed by the Lead AP for 
distribution. With the multi-levels of review 
and audit in place for each AP batch, the 
district has ensured that duties are sufficiently 



Page 47 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

segregated, supervised and monitored. 
3/1/21 Update:  IDT meetings ongoing, no 
process change at this time.  
11/30/20 Update:  Interdepartmental Team 
(IDT) meetings established between Human 
Resources, Business Services, Technology, and 
Continuous Improvement Departments. The 
first meeting took place on November 4, 2020. 
The next meeting is scheduled for November 
18, 2020, meetings will be held every other 
week.  
Update: Staff to review technology, and 
conduct Cabinet to Cabinet discussion on 
implementation. No target date has been set. 
The status remains unchanged. The Business 
Office and Technology will continue reviewing 
options for addressing the segregation of 
duties. However, due to the reductions in 
personnel, appropriately adhering to 
segregation of duties will be a challenge. 

24. Does the district ensure that 
duties in the following areas are 
segregated, and that they are 
supervised and monitored? • 
Payroll 

In Progress The payroll process appears properly 
supervised and monitored; however, the 
business department prints the warrants 
rather than having a separate department, 
such as technology, do so to ensure separation 
of duties. One department should input the 
information and a different department 
should print warrants. 

12/15/22 Update:  The District has moved to 
an online paystub portal for employees that 
has eliminated a significant portion of the 
printing and mailing of District payroll 
warrants. No process change has occurred for 
the remaining warrants that are printed at 
this time.  
 



Page 48 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

3/17/22 Update:  The District has moved to an 
online paystub portal for employees that has 
eliminated a significant portion of the printing 
and mailing of District payroll warrants. No 
process change has occurred for the remaining 
warrants that are printed at this time.  
12/16/21 Update:  The District has moved to 
an online paystub portal for employees that 
has eliminated a significant portion of the 
printing and mailing of District payroll 
warrants. No process change has occurred for 
the remaining warrants that are printed at this 
time.  
5/1/21 Update:  The payroll process begins 
with a fiscal technician inputting payroll data 
and submitting to their Payroll Lead to review 
and initial the reports. The initial report is then 
provided to the payroll Supervisor for an 
additional layer of review and final approval. 
Once approved, the payroll is locked within the 
financial system. To finish the process, a 
separate fiscal technician and Payroll Lead 
review the check batch and reconciles the 
check numbers to the payroll. With the multi-
levels of review and approval in place, the 
payroll department ensures the process is 
segregated, supervised and monitored. 
3/1/21 Update:  IDT meetings ongoing, no 
process change at this time.  
 



Page 49 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

11/30/20 Update:  Interdepartmental Team 
(IDT) meetings established between Human 
Resources, Business Services, Technology, and 
Continuous Improvement Departments. The 
first meeting took place on November 4, 2020. 
The next meeting is scheduled for November 
18, 2020, meetings will be held every other 
week.  
Update: Staff to review technology, and 
conduct Cabinet to Cabinet discussion on 
implementation. No target date has been set. 
The status remains unchanged. The Business 
Office and Technology will continue reviewing 
options for addressing the segregation of 
duties. However, due to the reductions in 
personnel, appropriately adhering to 
segregation of duties will be a challenge. 

25. Is training on financial 
management and budget 
offered to site and department 
administrators who are 
responsible for budget 
management? 

Complete There has been little or no budget and fiscal 
training for site and department 
administrators who are responsible for budget 
management. Training is done informally and 
as needed or requested rather than on a 
regular schedule. 
 
The amount of expertise, access to and 
knowledge of the financial system vary by site 
and department. 

12/16/21 Update:  Trainings continue to be 
offered upon request or when new employees 
start working for sites and departments.  
5/1/21 Update: Currently, trainings are 
provided upon request. 
3/1/21 Update:  Currently, trainings are 
provided upon request. 
Update: The District's Business Office 
scheduled a budget/fiscal training on January 
8th, 2020 from 8:30 to 9:30am for all site 
administrators at the Priority Initiative Meeting 
(Principal's Meeting). This session covered the 



Page 50 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

following 3 topics: 1. how to access and 
understand a site budget 2. how to check on 
the status of a submitted requisition 3. the 
workflow for contracts and travel requisitions 
from creating a requisition to approval. The 
District's Business Office intends to provide 
regular budget/fiscal sessions at the Priority 
Initiative Meetings. Escape training offered 
monthly to all staff. 

26. Does the governing board adopt 
and revise policies and 
administrative regulations 
annually? 

Complete Although board policies and administrative 
regulations are brought to the board 
sporadically for revision and/or adoption, 
there was no evidence of an intent to review 
the information annually or to ensure that it is 
a priority to communicate the permissions, 
limitations and standards of the board. 

3/1/21 Update:  Updated Bylaw Exhibit 
regarding process for approving and 
disseminating/communicating regarding 
updated policies and regulations. 
Memorandum regarding such circulated to 
staff – regarding the need for departments to 
follow this procedure, as well as periodically 
review their department related policies and 
regulations and work with the Legal Services 
Department to update existing or adopt new 
policies. 
Finally, the above is evidenced by the recent 
adoption of two polices and companion 
regulation, and the dissemination of each to 
staff (BP Lactation Accommodation; BP/AR 
Homeless Students). Revised BP 3100 adopted 
at 3/4/21 Board Meeting. 
11/30/20 Update: The District plans to 
periodically bring forward a package of policies 
and regulations that should be adopted or 



Page 51 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

revised. The next package of new/revised 
policies is planned for bringing forward to the 
Board early in the new year. 
Concerning the need to communicate out 
new/revised - See red-line Exhibit attached. 
This could be easily implemented by Cabinet 
promptly and without requiring Board 
Approval. The District has updated and 
formalized its process to disseminate and 
communicate new or revised policies and 
administrative regulations. The process also 
includes providing any training required as a 
result of a new or revised policy or regulation. 
See attached revised Exhibit Form.  
5/8/20 Update:  The proposed policy BP 3100 
was scheduled for further Board review and 
discussion in March or April 2020 Board 
meetings but this was delayed due to the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on District 
operations. BP 3100 will be presented to the 
Board at the May 21, 2020 Board Meeting as a 
First Reading for further review and discussion. 
3/10/20 Update:  In order to maintain fiscal 
solvency, restore stability and address the long 
term financial issues, the District presented for 
consideration revisions to Board Policy (BP) 
3100: Business and Noninstructional 
Operations which include: 1. The increase of 
the general fund expenditure reserve from the 



Page 52 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

minimum 2% to a 5% reserve level. 2. One-
Time funding should be used for one-time 
expenditures and shall only be used for an on-
going expenditure as a last resort. As part of 
the approval of the annual budget, the Board 
shall consider any proposed use of One-Time 
funding and shall take separate action to 
approve such uses. BP 3100 was presented to 
the Board at the February 6, 2020 Board 
Meeting as a First Reading. 
Update: Staff, in conjunction with the Board 
Policy Committee, has begun developing 
structures to ensure new and current BPs/ARs 
are systematically reviewed, revised, and 
readopted as needed. 

27. Are newly adopted or revised 
policies and administrative 
regulations communicated to 
staff and implemented? 

Complete When it brings policies to the board for 
revision or adoption, the district has no 
process for communicating the information to 
staff or implementing the policies in detail. A 
communication is sent to staff after each 
board meeting that summarizes the meeting, 
but for staff to fully understand changes in 
board policy and administrative regulations, 
further detail and instructions are needed. 

3/1/21 Update:  Updated Bylaw Exhibit 
regarding process for approving and 
disseminating/communicating regarding 
updated policies and regulations. 
Memorandum regarding such circulated to 
staff – regarding the need for departments to 
follow this procedure, as well as periodically 
review their department related policies and 
regulations and work with the Legal Services 
Department to update existing or adopt new 
policies. 
Finally, the above is evidenced by the recent 
adoption of two polices and companion 
regulation, and the dissemination of each to 



Page 53 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

staff (BP Lactation Accommodation; BP/AR 
Homeless Students). Revised BP 3100 adopted 
at 3/4/21 Board Meeting. 
11/30/20 Update:  The District plans to 
periodically bring forward a package of policies 
and regulations that should be adopted or 
revised. The next package of new/revised 
policies is planned for bringing forward to the 
Board early in the new year. 
Concerning the need to communicate out 
new/revised - See red-line Exhibit attached. 
This could be easily implemented by Cabinet 
promptly and without requiring Board 
Approval. The District has updated and 
formalized its process to disseminate and 
communicate new or revised policies and 
administrative regulations. The process also 
includes providing any training required as a 
result of a new or revised policy or regulation. 
See attached revised Exhibit Form.  
5/8/20 Update:  At the upcoming board 
meeting in June, the District will adopt a new 
process for implementing new or revised 
policies on a regular and ongoing basis. The 
process will include steps for dissemination to 
the impacted staff, departments, and schools 
through appropriate memorandum, meetings, 
or trainings. 
3/11/20 Update:  Staff is finalizing guidance 



Page 54 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

regarding the process for adopting and 
implementing new or revised policies on a 
regular basis. Following cabinet and Board 
approval, the process will include steps for 
dissemination to the impacted staff, 
departments, and schools through appropriate 
memorandum, meetings, or trainings. 
Update: Staff will develop a structure to 
ensure adoptions and revisions to policies and 
administrative regulations are communicated 
to staff once a system is in place to ensure 
BPs/ARs are reviewed, revised, and adopted 
on a regular basis. 

28. Does the district have board-
adopted staffing ratios for 
certificated, classified and 
administrative positions? 

Complete Staffing ratios, where documented, appear to 
be a result of terms in the collective 
bargaining agreement rather than board-
adopted. 

12/16/21 Update:  The staffing ratios were 
part of the 2021-22 Adopted Budget board 
item and this was approved at the June 24, 
2021 Board Meeting.  The District continues to 
include staffing ratios within the public hearing 
and subsequent adoption of the budget for 
each fiscal year. 
9/16/21 Update:  The staffing ratios were part 
of the 2021-22 Adopted Budget board item 
and this was approved at the June 24, 2021 
Board Meeting.   
5/1/21 Update:  The staffing ratios for fiscal 
year 2021-22 were completed in preparation 
for Budget Development meetings conducted 
in January and February 2021. The staffing 
ratios will be approved in June 2021 when the 



Page 55 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Budget for 2021-22 is approved. 
5/8/20 Update:  The staffing ratios for fiscal 
year 2020-21 were completed in preparation 
for One Stop staffing in January 2020 which is 
part of the budget development process. The 
staffing ratios will be approved in June 2020 
when the Budget for 2020-21 is approved. 
Update: The District presented staffing ratios 
to the Board in May. These staffing ratios were 
used in the development of the 2019-20 
budget. Further refinements for future years 
will be presented to the Board. Target 
10/30/2019. Update 11/19/19: In Progress: 
Board-adopted staffing ratios for certificated, 
classified, and administrative positions are 
being updated and additionally defined. 

29. Does the district use its facilities 
fully in accordance with the 
Office of Public School 
Construction’s loading 
standards? 

Complete Although the district has a 24-to-1 student-to-
staff ratio for K-3, and follows the class size 
standards in its collective bargaining 
agreement with SCTA for the other grade 
levels, its facilities department estimates that 
the district has approximately 20% more 
capacity than needed for its current student 
enrollment. The district closed six schools in 
the last seven years and reopened one. 

12/16/21 Update:  The Board approved the 
Facilities Master Plan on October 21, 2021. 
9/16/21 Update:  The FMP was completed 
August 2021, Board Approval expected in the 
Fall 2021. 
5/1/21 Update:  Completion date is Summer 
2021. 
3/1/21 Update:  New completion date is 
Summer 2021.  
11/30/20 Update:  New completion date is 
Spring 2021. 
5/8/20 Update:  The assessments were 
delayed due to the closure of schools. Staff has 



Page 56 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

been in communication with DLR to discuss 
progress with completion of the assessments 
and developing a revised timeline. 
Update: A contract for Facilities Master 
Planning services was Board approved on June 
20, 2019 and will incorporate an analysis of 
District capacity. The contract was awarded to 
DLR Group, commenced on July 1, 2019 and 
will be completed Spring of 2020. 

30. Does the district have an up-to-
date long-range facilities master 
plan? 

Complete The district’s facilities master plan was 
prepared by MTD Architecture in 2012 and has 
not been updated since. 

12/16/21 Update:  The Board approved the 
Facilities Master Plan on October 21, 2021. 
9/16/21 Update:  The FMP was completed 
August 2021, Board Approval expected in the 
Fall 2021.  
5/1/21 Update:  Completion date is Summer 
2021. 
3/1/21 Update:  New completion date is 
Summer 2021. 
Update: The current facilities master plan was 
prepared by MTD Architecture in 2012. An RFQ 
was submitted. A contract for the 
development of a new Facilities Master Plan 
(FMP) was Board approved on June 20, 2019 
and will incorporate an analysis of District 
capacity. The contract was awarded to DLR 
Group, commenced on July 1, 2019 and will be 
completed Spring of 2020. 
11/30/20 Update:  New completion date is 
Spring 2021.  



Page 57 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

5/8/20 Update:  The facility assessments are 
approximately 80% complete and will progress 
with a revised timeline. The completion of the 
assessments has been delayed due to the 
school closures. 

31. Does the district account 
correctly for all costs related to 
special education (e.g., 
transportation, indirect costs, 
service providers)? 

Complete Not all appropriate costs related to special 
education are charged to the program, 
including legal fees and the full allowable 
indirect costs. 

Update: Program analysis was conducted and 
completed by SCOE Expert. 
11/30/2020 Update:  Staff have confirmed that 
appropriate costs related to special education 
are charged to the program including indirect 
costs. 

32. Is the district’s contribution rate 
to special education at or below 
the statewide average 
contribution rate? 

Complete The district’s 2018-19 budget plan indicates 
that its general fund contribution to special 
education will be $73,590,731 and that its 
total special education expenditures will be 
$107,398,026, which means that its 
contribution will equal 68.52% of total 
expenditures for the program. The statewide 
average contribution rate is 64.5% as of 2016-
17. 

12/15/22 Update:  The Special Education 
department continues to collaborate with the 
Business department to monitor and 
accurately report on the Special Education 
budget. The 21-22 local contribution rate is 
42.36% which is below the statewide average 
referenced.  
3/17/22 Update:  The Special Education 
department has worked with the Business 
department to monitor and accurately report 
on the Special Education budget. Aside from 
hiring for a Budget Analyst, the department 
has also hired a fund specialist to support 
greater capacity and expertise to the day-to-
day operations of the Special Education 
budget. The team of Special Education and 
Business Services continues to meet and 
collaborate on a regular basis. Part of this 
partnership included the review and 



Page 58 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

development of the SCUSD SELPA Local Plan 
which showed the local contribution rate to be 
64.39% which is slightly under the statewide 
average referenced above.  
Over the past couple of months, the focus of 
the partnership has been on budget 
development for the 2022-2023 school year. 
12/16/21 Update:  The Special Education 
department is working closely with the 
Business Department to ensure accurate 
reporting of the Special Education budget. 
With the support of the Business Department,   
we have secured a Budget Analyst position 
dedicated to the Special Education department 
and are working on building even greater 
capacity in ensuring fiscally responsible 
decisions and reporting. The team has also 
collaborated to implement monthly and 
quarterly check-ins to review the special 
education budget throughout the year. 
3/1/21 Update:  Special Education Department 
completed an analysis of the historical MOE 
Data. The data highlights that Sacramento City 
Unified has consistently been below the 
statewide average, which is in the range of 
65%. This was a result of a miscalculation of 
the local contribution and total expenditures 
as noted in the 1.2 grid provided. Sacramento 
City Unified MOE 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 



Page 59 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Federal 10,046,238 10,317,456 10,296,631 
State 41,487,253 46,582,841 47,634,332 
Local 12,115,380 11,274,010 10,015,491 
Local Contribution 64,868,198 70,705,641 
69,911,735 
Total SpEd Expenditures 128,517,069 
138,879,948 137,858,189 Local Contribution as 
% of Total Expenditures 50% 51% 51% 
Funding Source as % of Total Expenditures 
Federal % 8% 7% 7% 
State % 32% 34% 35% 
Local % 900% 8% 7% 
Local Contribution as % of Total 50% 51% 51% 
Total SpEd Expenditures 100% 100% 100%  
3/10/2020 Update: The 2019-20 First Interim 
indicates $82,559,549 of General Fund 
contribution towards the Special Education 
restricted program. This is a percentage 
increase in contribution of 12%. At the January 
19, 2020 Board Meeting, staff shared the work 
underway with special education programs 
and services and the implementation of the 
multi-tiered system of support (MTSS).  
11/30/20 Update:  Program analysis was 
conducted by SCOE experts, and draft findings 
submitted to SCOE in 2019. The Special 
Education department has recently undergone 
a reorg. There are no additional changes at this 
time. 



Page 60 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Update: Program analysis was conducted and 
completed by SCOE Expert. Will be reviewed 
and shared by 4/30/19. 6/5/19 Update: Final 
report has not been received from SCOE 
Expert. 

33. Is the district’s rate of 
identification of students as 
eligible for special education 
comparable with countywide 
and statewide average rates? 

In Progress The district has an identification rate of 14.5%, 
while the statewide average identification rate 
is 11.5% and the countywide identification 
rate is 12.3%. 

12/15/22 Update:  SCUSD’s current rate of 
identification is 16.78% and continues to be 
above the statewide and countywide average 
rates. This will continue to be an area of focus 
for the district including collaboration 
mentioned in the 3/17/22 update regarding 
academic office initiatives.  
3/17/22 Update:  The District’s current rate of 
identification continues to be 16.5% and 
continues to be an area of focus through the 
District’s Significant Disproportionality Plan 
and initiative of MTSS. The department is also 
working with the Academic Office in ways it 
can better systematize and communicate pre-
referral processes and interventions across the 
District. 
12/16/21 Update:  The District’s current rate of 
identification is 16.5%. This is an area of focus 
through the District’s Significant 
Disproportionality Plan and initiative of MTSS. 
Update: Program analysis was conducted and 
completed by SCOE Expert. 
 
 



Page 61 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

3/1/21 Update: The Fall 1 reporting window 
highlights that the District’s current rate of 
identification of students as eligible for special 
education is 16.3%.  
11/30/20 Update: Program analysis was 
conducted by SCOE expert, and draft findings 
submitted to SCOE in 2019. The Special 
Education department has recently undergone 
a reorg. There are no additional changes at this 
time.  

34. Does the district analyze and 
plan for the costs of due process 
hearings? 

In Progress The district analyzes the incidence and cost of 
due process hearings. Employees interviewed 
stated that the current budgeted amount for 
due process hearings is insufficient and that 
the district would be increasing the shortfall 
during the next budget cycle. The average cost 
of a due process settlement has doubled in 
the last five years. 

12/15/22 Update:  The Special Education 
department has established a system and 
process for tracking, analyzing, and planning 
for the costs of due process hearings.  This 
includes development and implementation of 
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) efforts 
which promote dispute resolution at the local 
level. 
3/17/22 Update: The Special Education 
department has now begun implementing the 
comprehensive system for tracking special 
education conflicts. Additionally, our 
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) efforts 
are taking off with more families participating 
in lower level conflict resolution practices. 
Additionally, the department has provided 
ADR training to other members of the 
Academic Office as a way to build greater 
capacity across the system.  



Page 62 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

12/16/21 Update:  The Special Education 
Department has collaborated with its legal 
partners to develop a comprehensive system 
of tracking for special education conflicts. This 
includes settlement tracking, comprehensive 
invoice reviews, quarterly check-ins with 
department administrators to review what has 
been/ has not been used. Additionally, the 
department is focusing on building up and 
implementing Alternative Dispute Resolution 
strategies and processes to support resolving 
conflicts at a lower level prior to due process 
filings. 
3/1/21 Update: The Special Education 
Department has designed an online tracking 
system for evaluating costs and management 
of current legal matters, including due process 
and settlement agreement management. The 
Department is in the process of collaborating 
with other departments, legal and fiscal to 
populate the system.  
11/30/20 Update:  Program analysis was 
conducted by SCOE expert, and draft findings 
submitted to SCOE in 2019. The Special 
Education department has recently undergone 
a reorg. There are no additional changes at this 
time. 
Update: Program analysis was conducted and 
completed by SCOE Expert. 



Page 63 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

35. Has the district corrected all 
audit findings? 

Complete The district has only partially implemented the 
findings related to student body funds and 
student attendance from the 2015, 2016 and 
2017 audits. Student body findings identified 
in the 2015 audit have been reported as 
partially implemented through the 2017 audit; 
student attendance findings, identified in 
2016, have not been implemented as of the 
2017 audit. 

5/12/20 Update:  The District did not have any 
student body funds or attendance audit 
findings in the 2018-19 audit report. The 
student body funds and attendance findings 
included from the 2015, 2016, and 2017 audit 
reports were updated in the 2018-19 audit 
report as implemented. 
Update: The District has partially implemented 
corrective actions for the student body fund 
findings identified beginning with the 2015 
audit and the student attendance findings 
identified beginning with the 2016 audit. 
Findings have occurred each fiscal year since 
there is a rotation of school sites audited each 
fiscal year as well as turnover in site staff. 
Training is provided directly to school sites 
with findings. Also, ongoing trainings to all 
sites are provided throughout the fiscal year at 
both school sites and the district office to 
assist staff. 

36. Is the superintendent’s 
evaluation performed according 
to the terms of the contract 

Complete FCMAT was not able to obtain evidence that 
the superintendent has received any 
evaluations since he was hired. His contract 
states: 
 
The Board shall evaluate the Superintendent 
in writing each year of this agreement. The 
evaluation shall be based on this agreement, 
the duties of the position, the 2016-2021 

The current superintendent has been provided 
with evaluations as outlined in his contract. 



Page 64 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Strategic Plan, policy goals for the District, and 
other goals and objectives through a 
collaborative process with the 
Superintendent. The Superintendent and a 
committee of the Board will develop the 
evaluation instrument upon which the 
superintendent shall be evaluated. The Board 
shall approve the evaluation instrument and 
metrics by which to evaluate the 
Superintendent. The annual evaluation shall 
be completed based on a timeline determined 
by the Board. 
 
Subsequent to fieldwork, FCMAT was notified 
that the superintendent’s initial evaluation 
was to be voted on by the governing board on 
December 6, 2018. 

37. Does the district include facility 
needs when adopting a budget? 

Complete The district discusses districtwide facility 
needs whenever it sells general obligation 
bonds, which occurs approximately every two 
years; this does not occur on the same cycle as 
budget adoption. 

The district discusses districtwide facility needs 
whenever it sells general obligation bonds, 
which occurs approximately every two years; 
this does not occur on the same cycle as 
budget adoption, but the district does allocate 
3 percent of general fund expenditures to the 
Routine Repair and Maintenance account to 
address facility maintenance needs. 

38. Is the district using the same 
financial system as its county 
office of education? 

Complete The county office of education uses 
Quintessential Control Center (QCC) (part of 
the Quintessential School Systems financial 
system) and the district uses Escape. 

SCOE staff were trained by District staff on 
accessing data, data entry, and how to run 
reports. SCOE is currently working in ESCAPE 
for our District. 



Page 65 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

39. If the district is using a separate 
financial system from its county 
office of education and is not 
fiscally independent, is there an 
automated interface with the 
financial system used by the 
county office of education? 

Complete There is no automated interface between the 
two systems. When the district processes 
payroll and accounts payable warrants, 
information related to these transactions is 
uploaded to the county via a file transfer 
protocol (FTP). This process is started 
manually once payroll and accounts payable 
warrant processing is complete. No other 
electronic interface exists between the two 
systems. 

SCOE is currently working in Escape for District 
oversight and data entry. 

40. If the district is using a separate 
financial system from its county 
office of education, has the 
district provided the county 
office with direct access so the 
county office can provide 
oversight, review and 
assistance? 

Complete The county office of education has not been 
able to access the district’s Escape system 
online, but conversations continue between 
the two agencies about how this will be 
accomplished. The software needed to access 
the Escape system has been installed on some 
systems at the county office, but there has 
been no training. The county office has had to 
create a second set of books for the district in 
its QCC system so it can attempt to monitor 
financial transactions and balances at the 
major object level. This requires much manual 
entry by county office staff since the district 
sends the county office only limited data 
related to warrant processing. 
 
 
 
 

SCOE now has access to and training in Escape 
and is working in the system. SCOE and District 
staff are developing the process of reconciling 
in Escape. 



Page 66 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

41. Does the district account for all 
positions and costs? 

Complete The district must improve its position control 
process. The district currently uses the same 
position control number for multiple positions, 
and for full-time equivalent (FTE) positions 
that have the same title, instead of creating a 
unique position control number for each 
board-approved position or FTE. The district’s 
current practice leads to lack of clarity about 
which positions are being filled and about the 
site to which each belongs, because the same 
position number can exist at multiple sites if 
the same title is assigned. The district needs to 
use a unique identifier, or position control 
number, for each board-authorized position. 
 
Another area to improve on in the position 
control process involves the ramifications of 
the one-stop process, because confusion often 
arises when employees are transferred 
between sites and departments without a 
paperwork trail since the information was 
input directly into the system and the typical 
forms are not used during one-stop meetings. 
In addition, as employee transfers and 
changes are discussed and made later in the 
year, position control system information 
about which positions are open and about 
employees’ work locations is often found to 
be inaccurate. Because paperwork is not 

Update 7/22/19:  Position Control conversion 
completed. Although the Position Control (PC) 
conversion has been completed, the District is 
continuing to implement additional PC 
features and provide staff training on these 
features. Recent progress includes using 
Escape to analyze the changes in FTE from a 
past reporting period to the current reporting 
period; this was implemented November 15, 
2019 with the assistance of the SCOE fiscal 
advisor. The next Escape tool to be 
implemented is budgeting for vacancies. The 
SCOE fiscal advisor introduced this feature to 
District staff on November 15, 2019 and the 
plan is to have this implemented for use by 
2nd Interim. Escape's budgeting for vacancies 
feature will improve the accuracy and 
efficiency. 
Update: Staff has negotiated with Escape to 
receive no-cost support to expedite 
implementation of the position control 
changes recommended by FCMAT. To be 
completed by 7/1/2019. 6/12/19 Update: 
Interdepartmental project team has concluded 
extensive testing of the technical solution and 
obtained approval from the Executive Cabinet 
to proceed with implementation in the 
production environment. Roll-out of new 
position control system planned for the week 



Page 67 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

generated during one-stop meetings, it is 
often more difficult to determine the history 
and details of past decisions. 

of June 17, 2019.  

42. Does the district use a budget 
development method other than 
a rollover budget, and if so, does 
that method include tasks such 
as review of prior year estimated 
actuals by major object code and 
removal of one-time revenues 
and expenses? (part 1) 

Complete 
/Ongoing 

Although the district uses a one-stop method 
for budget development rather than a rollover 
budget, it appears that the primary driving 
force behind this method is to develop a list of 
employees who will receive a preliminary 
layoff notice on March 15 rather than to truly 
develop a reliable budget. The budget 
development process needs to be further 
refined so that all revenues and expenditures 
are reviewed and adjusted, not only those 
budgets with larger staffing allocations. A 
comprehensive budget development process 
is needed for the entire budget to ensure all 
revenues and expenditures are understood 
and used according to the district’s goals and 
objectives. 

Monthly reviews are conducted of the 
District's Revenues and Expenditures. 
3/23/2020 Update: The District will be utilizing 
budget models in Escape for budget 
development. Budget staff will analyze the 
budget and compare it to prior year estimated 
actuals by major object. One time revenue and 
expenses will be removed during this process. 

43. Does the district use a budget 
development method other than 
a rollover budget, and if so, does 
that method include tasks such 
as review of prior year estimated 
actuals by major object code and 
removal of one-time revenues 
and expenses? (part 2) 

Complete The district uses its one-stop method in 
January and February. During that time, site 
administrators and department managers are 
scheduled to meet in a district office 
conference room on days set aside for that 
specific site or department. The site 
administrators and department managers are 
provided a funding estimate from the business 
department, then work collaboratively with 
the business and human resources staff (using 

Ongoing: Personnel Requisitions are now 
required for all changes, signed off by the 
Business Office and submitted to H.R. for 
processing. 



Page 68 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

updated staffing costs) to determine staffing 
and other expenditure levels for the upcoming 
budget year. All information is input into the 
financial system during the meeting, and 
because appropriate approval authorities are 
physically in the conference room, approvals 
are obtained and actual staffing is determined 
for the next fiscal year. This is a more 
expedited process than the typical routing of 
position change forms between departments 
to obtain various approvals, and it ensures 
that staffing decisions, and thus layoff notices 
for the next school year, are determined by 
the March 15 deadline. 
 
The above process is efficient for meeting the 
March 15 deadline. However, not all budgets 
are assessed using this method. As additional 
staffing decisions are made during other one-
stop meetings, or even after budget 
development ends, confusion can arise when 
employees are transferred between sites and 
departments without a paperwork trail since 
the information was input directly into the 
system and the typical forms are not used at 
the one-stop meetings. 
 
 
 



Page 69 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

44. Has the district’s budget been 
approved unconditionally by its 
county office of education in the 
current and two prior fiscal 
years? 

Complete Although the district’s budgets were approved 
by the county office in 2016-17 and 2017-18, 
the district’s 2018-19 adopted budget was not 
approved. The district submitted a revised 
budget dated October 4, 2018, which the 
county office disapproved on October 11, 
2018. 

Fiscal Recovery Plan submitted with Second 
Interim and presented at the March 21 Board 
Meeting. SCOE Vetted. 
 
 

45. Are clear processes and policies 
in place to ensure that the 
district’s Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and 
budget are aligned with one 
another? (part 1) 

Complete No evidence was provided that the LCAP and 
the budget are aligned with one another. 
Information obtained during interviews 
indicates that the business department has 
not been engaged in the LCAP process in the 
past, although the current administration 
plans to work with teams to integrate the 
work more closely. 

7/23/19 Update: 
1. The budget office and LCAP staff worked 
closely in developing the public hearing and 
board adoption documents for both the June 
6th and June 20th board meetings. There was 
an intentional effort to make sure numbers 
tied in both the LCAP and budget 
presentations. 
2. A cross department group of staff from State 
and Federal, LCAP, school leadership and fiscal 
met June 27-28 to debrief and identify lessons 
learned in the LCAP, Budget, SPSA and 
continuous improvement process integration 
effort. The goal is to apply these learnings for 
the 2020-2021 budget, LCAP and SPSA 
processes with a focus on continuous 
improvement. 
6/5/19 Update:  
1. LCAP/Budget staff schedule quarterly 
meetings to review milestones and project 
goals. (Dates: 9/24/18, 12/19/18, 4/5/19, 



Page 70 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

4/16/19) 
2. School site budgets are now aligned to the 
LCAP goals and state priorities in the California 
School Dashboard as part of the One-Stop 
Staffing process. 

46. Does the district develop and 
use written budget assumptions 
and projections that are 
reasonable, are aligned with the 
Common Message or county 
office of education instructions, 
and have been clearly 
articulated? 

Complete Guidance provided in the May Revision 
Common Message stated that districts were 
“not to balance their budgets based on one-
time revenues.” The narrative included with 
the district’s 2018-19 budget presented to its 
governing board on June 21, 2018 states that 
the district is using “$13.2 million of one-time 
funds to meet the increase of labor contract 
negotiations.” The district cited and used 
appropriate assumptions related to 
percentages and amounts per unit of average 
daily attendance (ADA); however, the district 
did not follow the guidance included in the 
Common Message, the governor’s statement 
about one-time funds, or other industry-
standard guidance, which expressly state not 
to budget one-time funding for ongoing costs. 
That one-time funding was an estimated $344 
per ADA at that time. The approved state 
budget enacted subsequent to the May 
Revision decreased the one-time per-ADA 
funding amount from an estimated $344 per 
ADA to $185 per ADA, which created an 
approximately $7.4 million deficit in the 

3/1/21 Update:  Revised BP 3100 adopted at 
3/4/21 Board Meeting. 
Update 11/30/2020: BP 3100 was presented at 
the June 18, 2020 and June 25, 2020 Board 
Meeting as a Second Reading. Revised drafts 
will be presented at a Board Meeting not later 
than January 2021.  
3/10/20 Update:  In order to maintain fiscal 
solvency, restore stability and address the long 
term financial issues, the District presented for 
consideration revisions to Board Policy (BP) 
3100: Business and Noninstructional 
Operations which include: 1. The increase of 
the general fund expenditure reserve from the 
minimum 2% to a 5% reserve level. 2. One-
Time funding should be used for one-time 
expenditures and shall only be used for an on-
going expenditure as a last resort. As part of 
the approval of the annual budget, the Board 
shall consider any proposed use of One-Time 
funding and shall take separate action to 
approve such uses. BP 3100 was presented to 
the Board at the February 6, 2020 Board 
Meeting as a First Reading. 5/8/2020 Update: 



Page 71 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

district’s 2018-19 budget due to the district’s 
action to fully commit the one-time funds to 
ongoing costs. This action will also have severe 
impacts on future years because the one-time 
funding will likely be unavailable to the 
district, leaving a $13.2 million deficit moving 
forward. 

The proposed policy BP 3100 was scheduled 
for further Board review and discussion in 
March or April 2020 Board meetings but this 
was delayed due to the impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic on District operations. BP 3100 
will be presented to the Board at the May 21, 
2020 Board Meeting as a First Reading for 
further review and discussion. 
Update: This is no longer the philosophy of the 
Superintendent or Board beginning July 1, 
2018. The revised adopted budget was taken 
to the Board in October 2018.  

47. When appropriate, does the 
district budget and expend 
restricted funds before 
unrestricted funds? 

Complete The district’s restricted general fund ending 
fund balance increased from $4,456,029 in 
2014-15 to $10,224,117 in 2017-18. This 
indicates unrestricted funds are being 
expended before restricted funds, which 
creates a potential liability because the district 
may be required to return unspent restricted 
funds to the grantor. 

Ongoing: Monthly monitoring 

48. Does the district forecast its cash 
receipts and disbursements at 
least 18 months out, updating 
the actuals and reconciling the 
remaining months to the budget 
monthly to ensure cash flow 
needs are known? 

Complete During interviews, staff indicated that the 
accountant prepares the cash flow for a 24-
month period. However, it was not being 
relied on because major concerns had been 
expressed regarding the accuracy of the 
information. During FCMAT’s visit a separate 
cash calculation and projection was prepared 
by the county office’s fiscal advisor that 
concluded that the district will become cash 

SCOE and staff have agreed on cash flow 
methodologies. SCOE will continue to do a 
secondary review. 



Page 72 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

insolvent in October 2019 based on current 
budget projections. This projection was 
different and showed more cash deficiency 
than the district-prepared cash flow 
projection. A more recent cash flow projection 
prepared by the district for 2018-19 first 
interim shows the cash insolvency date as 
November 2019, one month later than the 
projection prepared during FCMAT’s 
fieldwork. 

49. If the district has deficit 
spending in funds other than the 
general fund, has it included in 
its multiyear projection any 
transfers from the general fund 
to cover the deficit spending? 

Complete Although the district’s multiyear financial 
projection includes transfers from the general 
fund to cover deficit spending in other funds, 
FCMAT believes that those transfers are 
inadequate based on prior year deficits. 
Without a specific plan to reduce deficit 
spending, specifically in the child development 
fund, the budgeted transfers are likely 
inadequate to cover the increasing costs of 
salaries and benefits. 
 
Based on unaudited actuals data, the 
following transfers were made from the 
general fund to the child development fund: 
2015-16: $1,500,000 
2016-17: $322,344 
2017-18: $502,296 
 
Based on 2018-19 Standardized Account Code 

Board took action to reduce the size of the 
Child Development program by returning slots 
to the grantor (SETA) and thus the contribution 
to the Child Development program. 



Page 73 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

Structure (SACS) data, transfers to the child 
development fund are projected to be as 
follows: 
2018-19: $2,345,207 
2019-20: $382,178 
2020-21: $382,178 
 
Assuming revenue and spending patterns 
remain the same, even if the current projected 
transfers of $382,178 in 2019-20 and 2020-21 
are included, the district’s shortfall in cash 
would be as follows: 
2019-20: ($791,940.93) 
2020-21: ($2,754,969.93) 
 
The district must develop a plan to ensure its 
expenditures are equal to or less than 
expected revenues, but until that time it must 
ensure that its budget is revised to include 
adequate transfers to all funds, including the 
child development fund, so they have 
adequate cash to close the fiscal year. Unless 
an approved plan to reduce spending, or 
increase revenues, is implemented in 2018-19, 
these shortfalls in 2019- 20 and 2020-21 will 
increase the district’s liabilities and further 
increase its projected general fund deficits. If 
this increased deficit is not remedied in 2018-
19, it could cause the district to become cash 



Page 74 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

insolvent prior to November 2019, based on 
current budget projections. 

50. Has the district’s enrollment 
been increasing or stable for the 
current and three prior years? 

Complete The district’s enrollment has been declining 
for the last 15 years. 

Adopted FCMAT recommendation of using 
Cohort Survival Method for staffing and 
enrollment purposes. 

51. Are the district’s enrollment 
projection and assumptions 
based on historical data, 
industry-standard methods, and 
other reasonable 
considerations? 

Complete The district tracked the number of children 
who enter kindergarten as a percentage of 
countywide live births five years earlier to 
project kindergarten enrollment for the 2018- 
19 school year. 
 
However, to project enrollment in grades one 
through 12 for the same period, it used simple 
grade level progression rather than the more 
commonly used cohort survival method. 
 
The cohort survival method groups students 
by grade level upon entry and tracks them 
through each year they stay in school. This 
method evaluates the longitudinal relationship 
of the number of students passing from one 
grade to the next in a subsequent year. This 
method more closely accounts for retention, 
dropouts and students transferring to and 
from a school or district by grade. Although 
other enrollment forecasting techniques are 
available, the cohort survival method usually is 
the best choice for local education agencies 

Adopted FCMAT recommendation of using 
Cohort Survival Method for staffing and 
enrollment purposes. 



Page 75 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

because of its sensitivity to incremental 
changes to several key variables including: 
 
* Birth rates and trends. 
* The historical ratio of enrollment 
progression between grade levels. Changes in 
educational programs. 
* Migration patterns. 
* Changes in local and regional demographics. 

52. Does the district ensure that 
one-time revenues do not pay 
for ongoing expenditures? 

Complete As mentioned in the budget development 
section of this analysis, the district stated in its 
2018-19 budget narrative that one-time 
funding was used to pay for salary increases. 
This action will also have severe effects on the 
budget in future years because the one-time 
funding will likely not be available to the 
district, leaving a $13.2 million deficit moving 
forward. 

3/1/21 Update: Revised BP 3100 adopted at 
3/4/21 Board Meeting. 
11/30/20 Update:  BP 3100 was presented at 
the June 18, 2020 and June 25, 2020 Board 
Meeting as a Second Reading. Revised drafts 
will be presented at a future Board Meeting 
not later than January 2021.  
5/8/20 Update: The proposed policy BP 3100 
was scheduled for further Board review and 
discussion in March or April 2020 Board 
meetings but this was delayed due to the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on District 
operations. BP 3100 will be presented to the 
Board at the May 21, 2020 Board Meeting as a 
First Reading for further review and discussion. 
3/10/20 Update:  BP 3100 was presented to 
the Board at the February 6, 2020 Board 
Meeting as a First Reading. One-Time funding 
should be used for one-time expenditures and 
shall only be used for an on-going expenditure 



Page 76 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

as a last resort. As part of the approval of the 
annual budget, the Board shall consider any 
proposed use of One-Time funding and shall 
take separate action to approve such uses.  

53. Does the district consistently 
account for all program costs, 
including allowable indirect 
costs, for each restricted 
resource? 

Complete The district does not charge allowable indirect 
costs to special education, and as a result 
there is underreporting of the total cost of the 
program. If the indirect cost rate of 4.21% for 
2018-19 were applied to the district’s 2018-19 
annual special education expenditures of 
$107,398,026, the resulting allowable indirect 
cost would be $4,521,457. The district’s total 
actual indirect charge for special education 
has been approximately $100,000 per year. 
The industry-standard practice is to 
consistently account for indirect costs in all 
restricted resources, including special 
education. The district is not correctly 
identifying the true cost of its special 
education programs. 

The 2019/20 Proposed Budget includes 
charging indirect to all appropriate grants. 

54. Is training on the budget and 
governance provided to board 
members at least every two 
years? 

Complete There was no evidence that budget or 
governance training is provided to board 
members regularly. 

The Superintendent has been conducting 
Board Learning Sessions. Board governance 
trainings has been an ongoing and regular 
practice for the Board of Education for the past 
two years. Budget trainings have not 
previously been provided outside of the 
regular meeting setting over the past couple of 
years, but will begin with the 2019-20 
academic year. 



Page 77 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

55. Does the district use its most 
current multiyear projection 
when making financial 
decisions? 

Complete It appears that the district used multiyear 
projections when making financial decisions 
until the 2017-18 fiscal year, but that this 
practice ceased in that year, during which it 
also entered into a multiyear agreement with 
the SCTA (December 7, 2017) that granted 
ongoing salary increases without a budget 
reduction plan to maintain minimum reserves 
through 2020-21. 

Current budget philosophy is to understand 
fourth year budget implications of financial 
decisions. 

56. Are the sources of repayment 
for non-voter-approved debt 
stable {such as certificates of 
participation (COPs), bridge 
financing, bond anticipation 
notes (BANS), revenue 
anticipation notes (RANS) and 
others}, predictable, and other 
than unrestricted general fund? 

Complete The district has $67,920,000 in outstanding 
lease revenue bonds. The annual debt service 
payment is approximately $5,400,000 and 
continues through fiscal year 2025-26. The 
annual debt service payments are made from 
a combination of unrestricted general fund 
revenue and developer fees. 

Debt payment transferred outside of the 
General Fund to Mello Roos tax collections. 

57. Does the district analyze and 
adjust staffing based on staffing 
ratios and enrollment? 

Complete The district did not provide evidence that 
regular analysis of staffing ratios is compared 
with actual enrollment or that adjustments 
are made in accordance with sites’ or 
departments’ needs after the one-stop budget 
and staffing process occurs in January or 
February of each year during the budget 
development process. During one-stop, 
because the primary purpose appears to be 
developing the March 15 notice list, staffing 
ratios are compared against enrollment 

Yes. Allocations to staffing are based on 
contract class size ratios and adopted Cohort 
Survival Method for enrollment projections. 



Page 78 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

projections, and staffing is scheduled 
accordingly. 
 
Although this process is efficient for meeting 
the March 15 deadline as well as initial budget 
development projections, the decisions made 
during one-stop need to be reassessed as the 
year proceeds and actual enrollment numbers 
are known. 

58. Does the district reconcile 
budget, payroll and position 
control regularly, meaning at 
least at budget adoption and 
interim reporting periods? 

Complete It is best practice to have a position control 
system that is integrated with, or at least 
reconciled with, budget, payroll and human 
resources records. The district does not 
reconcile these records regularly to ensure 
that its budget represents the amount the 
district should set aside for such costs. In 
interviews, employees indicated that the 
number of open positions shown in financial 
reports is usually inflated. 
 
At interim reporting times, the district 
identifies variances between budgeted and 
actual amounts, and salary and benefit 
budgets are often revised based on that 
analysis. By contrast, standard industry 
practice is to reconcile actual human 
resources and payroll records to ensure that 
only open, authorized positions are shown as 
such in the budget; if an open position exists 

Position Control true-up conducted with the 
support of SCOE fiscal experts. Regular bi-
weekly meetings are now being conducted to 
ensure position control is reconciled. 



Page 79 of 79 
 

No. FCMAT Finding Status District Response Progress  

that should be closed, the appropriate 
paperwork is completed to do so, and the 
budget is updated. 

59. Does the governing board 
approve all new positions before 
positions are posted? 

Complete The governing board approves new positions 
after employees have been hired rather than 
when the position is vacant or posted. 

New process established: Cabinet Member to 
bring forth new positions to the Cabinet 
meeting for review and discussion. If allowed, 
the new position moves forward to Deputy and 
Superintendent for approval. Approved 
position is then submitted to the Budget 
department for assignment of position control 
identifying number. Budget then sends 
completed position requisition to H.R. for 
posting (Business Process Map was created for 
this new process and is currently being 
revised). 

60. Do managers and staff 
responsible for the district’s 
human resources, payroll and 
budget functions meet regularly 
to discuss issues and improve 
processes? 

Complete Staff indicated that those responsible for 
human resources, payroll and budget meet 
two times per year. Scheduled meetings 
should be conducted at least monthly to 
resolve ongoing issues and problems, as well 
as improve processes, between the 
departments. 

H.R. and Business Services now meet bi-
monthly. 

 



                                                                    

 
 
 
 

2022-2023 
First Interim Financial Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Guiding Principle 
 

All students graduate with the greatest number  
of postsecondary choices from the widest array of options. 

 
 

Board of Education 
December 15, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 

Sacramento City Unified School District 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Education 
 

Christina Pritchett, President, Area 3 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President, Area 2 

Chinua Rhodes, 2nd Vice President, Area 5 
Lisa Murawski, Area 1 

Jamee Villa, Area 4 
Darrel Woo, Area 6 

Lavinia Grace Phillips, Area 7 
Liam McGurk, Student Board Member 

 
Cabinet 

 
Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D., Superintendent 

Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 
Brian Heap, Chief Communications Officer 

Bob Lyons, Chief Information Officer 
Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resource Officer 

Rose F. Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
Vacant, Chief Academic Officer 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT..................................................................... 1 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS.............................................................................................................. 3 

MULTIYEAR PROJECTIONS............................................................................................................. 31 

GENERAL FUND 

GENERAL FUND DEFINITION...............................................................................................................  37 
GENERAL FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE............................... 38 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DEFINITION.................................................................................................. 62 
STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND  - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE...............63 
CHARTER SCHOOLS FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE................68 
ADULT EDUCATION FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE................75 
CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE............81 
CAFETERIA FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE.............................86 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DEFINITION.................................................................................................91 
BUILDING FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE...............................92 
CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE............  98 
COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE........ 103 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE................108 

DEBT SERVICES FUNDS 

DEBT SERVICE FUND DEFINITION...................................................................................................... 113
BOND INTEREST AND REDEMPTION FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE..... 114 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

ENTERPRISE FUND DEFINITION.......................................................................................................... 117
CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE........................ 118 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

PROPRIETARY FUND DEFINITION........................................................................................................123 
SELF-INSURANCE FUND - REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE..................124 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE....................................................................................................128 

CASH FLOW WORKSHEET...............................................................................................................132 



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CI_District, Version 1 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT Form CI
Sacramento County For the Fiscal Year 2022-23 D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and rev iewed using the state-adopted Criteria and Standards. (Pursuant to Education Code (EC)
sections 33129 and 42130)

Signed: Date:

District Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special meeting of  the gov erning board.

To the County  Superintendent of  Schools:

This interim report and certif ication of  f inancial condition are hereby  f iled by  the gov erning board of  the school district. (Pursuant to EC Section 42131)

Meeting Date: December 15, 2022 Signed:

President of  the Gov erning Board

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION

As President of  the Gov erning Board of  this school district, I certif y  that based upon current projections this district will meet its f inancial obligations f or
the current f iscal y ear and subsequent two f iscal y ears.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION

As President of  the Gov erning Board of  this school district, I certif y  that based upon current projections this district may  not meet its f inancial obligations
f or the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION

As President of  the Gov erning Board of  this school district, I certif y  that based upon current projections this district will be unable to meet its f inancial
obligations f or the remainder of  the current f iscal y ear or f or the subsequent f iscal y ear.

Contact person f or additional inf ormation on the interim report:

Name: Rose F. Ramos Telephone: 916-643-9055

Title: Chief  Business & Operations Of f icer E-mail: rose-f -ramos@scusd.edu

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The f ollowing summary  is automatically  completed based on data prov ided in the Criteria and Standards Rev iew f orm (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and
supplemental inf ormation and additional f iscal indicators that are "Yes," may  indicate areas of  potential concern, which could af f ect the interim report certif ication, and should be
caref ully  rev iewed.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met Not Met

1 Av erage Daily  Attendance Funded ADA f or any  of  the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent
since budget adoption. X

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met Not Met

2 Enrollment Projected enrollment f or any  of  the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more
than two percent since budget adoption. X

3 ADA to Enrollment Projected second period (P-2) ADA to enrollment ratio f or the current and two subsequent f iscal y ears is
consistent with historical ratios. X

4 Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)
Rev enue

Projected LCFF rev enue f or any  of  the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by
more than two percent since budget adoption. X

5 Salaries and Benef its Projected ratio of  total unrestricted salaries and benef its to total unrestricted general f und expenditures
has not changed by  more than the standard f or the current and two subsequent f iscal y ears. X

6a Other Rev enues Projected operating rev enues (f ederal, other state, other local) f or the current and two subsequent f iscal
y ears hav e not changed by  more than f iv e percent since budget adoption. X

6b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, serv ices and other expenditures) f or the current
and two subsequent f iscal y ears hav e not changed by  more than f iv e percent since budget adoption. X

7 Ongoing and Major Maintenance
Account

If  applicable, changes occurring since budget adoption meet the required contribution to the ongoing and
major maintenance account (i.e., restricted maintenance account). X

8 Def icit Spending Unrestricted def icit spending, if  any , has not exceeded the standard in any  of  the current or two
subsequent f iscal y ears. X

9a Fund Balance Projected general f und balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current and two subsequent f iscal
y ears. X

9b Cash Balance Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear. X

10 Reserv es Av ailable reserv es (e.g., reserv e f or economic uncertainties, unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet
minimum requirements f or the current and two subsequent f iscal y ears. X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes

S1 Contingent Liabilities Hav e any  known or contingent liabilities (e.g., f inancial or program audits, litigation, state compliance
rev iews) occurred since budget adoption that may  impact the budget? X

S2 Using One-time Rev enues to Fund
Ongoing Expenditures

Are there ongoing general f und expenditures f unded with one-time rev enues that hav e changed since
budget adoption by  more than f iv e percent? X

Page 1 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CI_District, Version 1 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT Form CI
Sacramento County For the Fiscal Year 2022-23 D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

S3 Temporary  Interf und Borrowings Are there projected temporary  borrowings between f unds? X

S4 Contingent Rev enues Are any  projected rev enues f or any  of  the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears contingent on
reauthorization by  the local gov ernment, special legislation, or other def initiv e act (e.g., parcel taxes,
f orest reserv es)?

X

S5 Contributions Hav e contributions f rom unrestricted to restricted resources, or transf ers to or f rom the general f und to
cov er operating def icits, changed since budget adoption by  more than $20,000 and more than 5% f or
any  of  the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears?

X

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes

S6 Long-term Commitments Does the district hav e long-term (multiy ear) commitments or debt agreements? X

• If  y es, hav e annual pay ments f or the current or two subsequent f iscal y ears increased ov er
prior y ear's (2021-22) annual pay ment? X

• If  y es, will f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the
end of  the commitment period, or are they  one-time sources? X

S7a Postemploy ment Benef its Other than
Pensions

Does the district prov ide postemploy ment benef its other than pensions (OPEB)? X

• If  y es, hav e there been changes since budget adoption in OPEB liabilities? X

S7b Other Self -insurance Benef its Does the district operate any  self -insurance programs (e.g., workers' compensation)? X

• If  y es, hav e there been changes since budget adoption in self -insurance liabilities? X

S8 Status of  Labor Agreements As of  f irst interim projections, are salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled f or:

• Certif icated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X

• Classif ied? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X

• Management/superv isor/conf idential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) X

S8 Labor Agreement Budget Rev isions For negotiations settled since budget adoption, per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(c), are budget
rev isions still needed to meet the costs of  the collectiv e bargaining agreement(s) f or:

• Certif icated? (Section S8A, Line 3) n/a

• Classif ied? (Section S8B, Line 3) n/a

S9 Status of  Other Funds Are any  f unds other than the general f und projected to hav e a negativ e f und balance at the end of  the
current f iscal y ear? X

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes

A1 Negativ e Cash Flow Do cash f low projections show that the district will end the current f iscal y ear with a negativ e cash
balance in the general f und? X

A2 Independent Position Control Is personnel position control independent f rom the pay roll sy stem? X

A3 Declining Enrollment Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior and current f iscal y ears? X

A4 New Charter Schools Impacting District
Enrollment

Are any  new charter schools operating in district boundaries that are impacting the district's enrollment,
either in the prior or current f iscal y ear? X

A5 Salary  Increases Exceed COLA Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any  of  the current or subsequent f iscal y ears
of  the agreement would result in salary  increases that are expected to exceed the projected state
f unded cost-of -liv ing adjustment?

X

A6 Uncapped Health Benef its Does the district prov ide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benef its f or current or retired
employ ees? X

A7 Independent Financial Sy stem Is the district’s f inancial sy stem independent f rom the county  of f ice sy stem? X

A8 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the district hav e any  reports that indicate f iscal distress? If  y es, prov ide copies to the COE,
pursuant to EC 42127.6(a). X

A9 Change of  CBO or Superintendent Hav e there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief  business of f icial (CBO) positions
within the last 12 months? X

Page 2 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01CSI
Sacramento County School District Criteria and Standards Review D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Prov ide methodology  and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, rev enues, expenditures, reserv es and f und balance, and multiy ear

commitments (including cost-of -liv ing adjustments).

Dev iations f rom the standards must be explained and may  af f ect the interim certif ication.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Funded av erage daily  attendance (ADA) f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent since budget adoption.

District's ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the District's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist f or the current y ear will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column f or all f iscal y ears. First Interim Projected Year Totals data that exist f or
the current y ear will be extracted; otherwise, enter data f or all f iscal y ears. Enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all
f iscal y ears.

Estimated Funded ADA

Budget Adoption First Interim

Budget Projected Year Totals

Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 1A) (Form AI, Lines A4 and C4) Percent Change Status

Current Year (2022-23)

District Regular 36,317.06 37,419.95

Charter School 0.00 1,447.25

Total ADA 36,317.06 38,867.20 7.0% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24)

District Regular 35,123.55 36,226.44

Charter School 1,539.67 1,447.25

Total ADA 36,663.22 37,673.69 2.8% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25)

District Regular 34,385.65 34,975.23

Charter School 1,539.67 1,447.25

Total ADA 35,925.32 36,422.48 1.4% Met

1B. Comparison of District ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - The projected change since budget adoption f or f unded ADA exceeds two percent in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide reasons why  the
change(s) exceed the standard, a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting f unded ADA, and what changes will be made to improv e the accuracy  of  projections in this
area.

Explanation: The District's projected f unded ADA f or the current y ear and subsequent y ears increased due to a change at the state lev el which allowed the
district to apply  its 2019-20 ADA y ield to its 2021-22 enrollment, subsequently  increasing the 3 prior y ear av erage f unded ADA calculation.(required if  NOT met)

Page 3 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

2. CRITERION: Enrollment

STANDARD: Projected enrollment f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent since budget adoption

District's Enrollment Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the District's Enrollment Variances

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column f or all f iscal y ears. Enter data in the second column f or all f iscal y ears. Enter district regular
enrollment and charter school enrollment corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears.

Enrollment

Budget Adoption First Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 3B) CBEDS/Projected Percent Change Status

Current Year (2022-23)

District Regular 36,543.00 36,543.00

Charter School 1,538.00

Total Enrollment 36,543.00 38,081.00 4.2% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24)

District Regular 36,360.00 36,360.00

Charter School 1,538.00

Total Enrollment 36,360.00 37,898.00 4.2% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25)

District Regular 36,179.00 36,179.00

Charter School 1,538.00

Total Enrollment 36,179.00 37,717.00 4.3% Not Met

2B. Comparison of District Enrollment to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Enrollment projections hav e changed since budget adoption by  more than two percent in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide reasons
why  the change(s) exceed the standard, a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting enrollment, and what changes will be made to improv e the accuracy  of  projections
in this area.

Explanation: Increase due to Charter school enrollment erroneously  excluded f rom 2022-23 adopted budget criteria and standards.

(required if  NOT met)

Page 4 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

3. CRITERION: ADA to Enrollment

STANDARD: Projected second period (P-2) av erage daily  attendance (ADA) to enrollment ratio f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not increased f rom the
historical av erage ratio f rom the three prior f iscal y ears by  more than one half  of  one percent (0.5%).

3A. Calculating the District's ADA to Enrollment Standard

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist will be extracted into the P-2 ADA column f or the First Prior Year; otherwise, enter First Prior Year data. P-2 ADA f or the second and third prior y ears
are preloaded. Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted into the Enrollment column; otherwise, enter Enrollment data f or all f iscal y ears. Data should ref lect district regular and charter school
ADA/enrollment corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears.

P-2 ADA Enrollment

Unaudited Actuals CBEDS Actual Historical Ratio

Fiscal Year (Form A, Lines A4 and C4) (Form 01CS,
Item 2A) of  ADA to Enrollment

Third Prior Year (2019-20)

District Regular 38,220 40,408

Charter School

Total ADA/Enrollment 38,220 40,408 94.6%

Second Prior Year (2020-21)

District Regular 38,220 39,003

Charter School

Total ADA/Enrollment 38,220 39,003 98.0%

First Prior Year (2021-22)

District Regular 32,673 38,045

Charter School

Total ADA/Enrollment 32,673 38,045 85.9%

Historical Av erage Ratio: 92.8%

District's ADA to Enrollment Standard (historical average ratio plus 0.5%): 93.3%

3B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of ADA to Enrollment

DATA ENTRY: Estimated P-2 ADA will be extracted into the f irst column f or the Current Year; enter data in the f irst column f or the subsequent f iscal y ears. Data should ref lect district regular and
charter school ADA/enrollment corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or all f iscal y ears. All other data are extracted.

Estimated P-2 ADA Enrollment

CBEDS/Projected

Fiscal Year (Form AI, Lines A4 and C4) (Criterion 2, Item 2A) Ratio of  ADA to Enrollment Status

Current Year (2022-23)

District Regular 34,559 36,543

Charter School 1,447 1,538

Total ADA/Enrollment 36,006 38,081 94.6% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24)

District Regular 34,386 36,360

Charter School 1,447 1,538

Total ADA/Enrollment 35,833 37,898 94.6% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25)

District Regular 34,214 36,179

Charter School 1,447 1,538

Total ADA/Enrollment 35,661 37,717 94.5% Not Met

3C. Comparison of District ADA to Enrollment Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected P-2 ADA to enrollment ratio exceeds the standard in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide reasons why  the projected ratio
exceeds the district's historical av erage ratio by  more than 0.5%.

Explanation: ADA y ield expected to return to pre-cov id lev els of  historical av erage of  94.57%.

(required if  NOT met)

Page 5 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

4. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD: Projected LCFF rev enue f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has not changed by  more than two percent since budget adoption.

District's LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

4A. Calculating the District's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column. In the First Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data f or the two
subsequent y ears.

LCFF Rev enue

(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)

Budget Adoption First Interim

Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 4B) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Current Year (2022-23) 467,912,210.00 495,885,160.00 6.0% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 475,624,743.00 504,783,051.00 6.1% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 487,081,891.00 509,786,496.00 4.7% Not Met

4B. Comparison of District LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF rev enue has changed since budget adoption by  more than two percent in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears. Prov ide reasons
why  the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of  the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF rev enue.

Explanation: LCFF Rev enue increased due to an additional state LCFF inv estment of  6.70%.

(required if  NOT met)

Page 6 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

5. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected ratio of  total unrestricted salaries and benef its to total unrestricted general f und expenditures f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears has
not changed f rom the historical av erage ratio f rom the three prior f iscal y ears by  more than the greater of  three percent or the district's required reserv es percentage.

5A. Calculating the District's Historical Average Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist f or the First Prior Year will be extracted; otherwise, enter data f or the First Prior Year. Unaudited Actuals data f or the second and third prior y ears are
preloaded.

Unaudited Actuals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999) Ratio

Salaries and Benef its Total Expenditures of  Unrestricted Salaries and
Benef its

Fiscal Year (Form 01, Objects 1000-
3999)

(Form 01, Objects 1000-
7499)

to Total Unrestricted
Expenditures

Third Prior Year (2019-20) 300,961,267.98 322,052,655.05 93.5%

Second Prior Year (2020-21) 301,601,587.00 327,117,964.02 92.2%

First Prior Year (2021-22) 330,431,834.82 355,668,555.40 92.9%

Historical Av erage Ratio: 92.9%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

District's Reserv e Standard Percentage
2% 2% 2%

(Criterion 10B, Line 4)

District's Salaries and Benefits Standard

89.9% to 95.9% 89.9% to 95.9% 89.9% to 95.9%
(historical average ratio, plus/minus the

greater of 3% or the district's reserve

standard percentage):

5B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYPI exists, Projected Year Totals data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter Projected Year Totals data. Projected Year Totals data f or Current Year are
extracted.

Projected Year Totals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999)

Salaries and Benef its Total Expenditures Ratio

(Form 01I, Objects 1000-
3999)

(Form 01I, Objects 1000-
7499)

of  Unrestricted Salaries and
Benef its

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B8,
B10)

to Total Unrestricted
Expenditures Status

Current Year (2022-23) 338,490,891.98 372,502,654.53 90.9% Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 347,954,474.96 379,856,654.01 91.6% Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 356,815,025.03 391,398,588.08 91.2% Met

5C. Comparison of District Salaries and Benefits Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Ratio of  total unrestricted salaries and benef its to total unrestricted expenditures has met the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

Page 7 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

6. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

STANDARD: Projected operating rev enues (including f ederal, other state and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and serv ices and other operating), f or any  of  the
current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears, hav e not changed by  more than f iv e percent since budget adoption. Changes that exceed f iv e percent in any  major object category
must be explained.

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range: -5.0% to +5.0%

6A. Calculating the District's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column. First Interim data f or the Current Year are extracted. If  First Interim Form MYPI exists, data
f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears into the second column. Explanations must be entered f or each category  if  the percent change f or any
y ear exceeds the district's explanation percentage range.

Budget Adoption First Interim

Budget Projected Year Totals Change Is Outside

Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item 6B) (Fund 01) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MYPI, Line A2)

Current Year (2022-23) 91,620,566.87 166,767,828.52 82.0% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 88,149,711.00 89,601,115.52 1.6% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 36,924,916.02 46,348,135.95 25.5% Yes

Explanation: Federal rev enue increased due to carry ov er f unds including ESSER II, ESSER III and f ederal portion of  ELOG, as well as Title program
carry ov er f unds.(required if  Yes)

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)

Current Year (2022-23) 133,686,718.71 197,867,969.79 48.0% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 81,880,300.71 113,147,107.96 38.2% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 81,880,300.71 113,147,107.96 38.2% Yes

Explanation: Other state rev enue increased primarily  due to the addition of  ongoing Expanded Learning Opportunity  Funds.

(required if  Yes)

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)

Current Year (2022-23) 8,258,945.85 8,355,045.36 1.2% No

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 8,031,672.00 8,127,772.36 1.2% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 8,031,672.42 8,127,772.36 1.2% No

Explanation:

(required if  Yes)

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)

Current Year (2022-23) 29,337,531.25 59,600,092.59 103.2% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 33,760,561.25 33,673,878.36 -.3% No

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 29,343,033.35 33,943,072.63 15.7% Yes

Explanation: Books and supplies in the current increased due to budgeting expenditures related to carry ov er f unds budgeted in the f irst interim report. In
the 2024-25 y ear books and supplies increased compared to adopted budget due to budget additional supplemental concentration f unds and
district initiativ es.(required if  Yes)

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)

Current Year (2022-23) 85,526,262.19 153,194,400.06 79.1% Yes

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 80,070,036.19 108,427,778.28 35.4% Yes

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 79,576,038.55 110,616,633.18 39.0% Yes

Explanation: Serv ices and other operating expenditures increased in the current y ear due to budgeting expenditures related to carry ov er f unds. The
increase in the two subsequent y ears is due to budgeting the addition of  ongoing ELOP f unds as well as district initiativ es.(required if  Yes)

Page 8 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 7 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

6B. Calculating the District's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Budget Adoption First Interim

Object Range / Fiscal Year Budget Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 6A)

Current Year (2022-23) 233,566,231.43 372,990,843.67 59.7% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 178,061,683.71 210,875,995.84 18.4% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 126,836,889.15 167,623,016.27 32.2% Not Met

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 6A)

Current Year (2022-23) 114,863,793.44 212,794,492.65 85.3% Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 113,830,597.44 142,101,656.64 24.8% Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 108,919,071.90 144,559,705.81 32.7% Not Met

6C. Comparison of District Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked f rom Section 6A if  the status in Section 6B is Not Met; no entry  is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - One or more projected operating rev enue hav e changed since budget adoption by  more than the standard in one or more of  the current y ear or two subsequent
f iscal y ears. Reasons f or the projected change, descriptions of  the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if  any , will be made to bring the projected
operating rev enues within the standard must be entered in Section 6A abov e and will also display  in the explanation box below.

Explanation: Federal rev enue increased due to carry ov er f unds including ESSER II, ESSER III and f ederal portion of  ELOG, as well as Title program
carry ov er f unds.Federal Rev enue

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Explanation: Other state rev enue increased primarily  due to the addition of  ongoing Expanded Learning Opportunity  Funds.

Other State Rev enue

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Explanation:

Other Local Rev enue

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - One or more total operating expenditures hav e changed since budget adoption by  more than the standard in one or more of  the current y ear or two subsequent
f iscal y ears. Reasons f or the projected change, descriptions of  the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if  any , will be made to bring the projected
operating rev enues within the standard must be entered in Section 6A abov e and will also display  in the explanation box below.

Explanation: Books and supplies in the current increased due to budgeting expenditures related to carry ov er f unds budgeted in the f irst interim report. In
the 2024-25 y ear books and supplies increased compared to adopted budget due to budget additional supplemental concentration f unds and
district initiativ es.

Books and Supplies

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Explanation: Serv ices and other operating expenditures increased in the current y ear due to budgeting expenditures related to carry ov er f unds. The
increase in the two subsequent y ears is due to budgeting the addition of  ongoing ELOP f unds as well as district initiativ es.Serv ices and Other Exps

(linked f rom 6A

if  NOT met)

Page 9 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 8 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

7. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identif y  changes that hav e occurred since budget adoption in the projected contributions f or f acilities maintenance f unding as required pursuant to Education Code Section
17070.75, or in how the district is prov iding adequately  to preserv e the f unctionality  of  its f acilities f or their normal lif e in accordance with Education Code sections 52060(d)(1) and
17002(d)(1).

Determining the District's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: EC Section 17070.75 requires the district to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of  the total general f und expenditures and other f inancing
uses f or that f iscal y ear. Statutes exclude the f ollowing resource codes f rom the total general f und expenditures calculation: 3210, 3212, 3213, 3214, 3215, 3216, 3218, 3219, 5316, 7027,
and 7690.

DATA ENTRY: Enter the Required Minimum Contribution if  Budget data does not exist. Budget data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter budget data into lines 1, if  applicable, and 2. All other
data are extracted.

First Interim Contribution

Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,

Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status

17,148,558.98
17,150,000.00 Met

1. OMMA/RMA Contribution

2. Budget Adoption Contribution (inf ormation only ) 17,081,000.00

(Form 01CS, Criterion 7)

If  status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why  the minimum required contribution was not made:

Not applicable (district does not participate in the Leroy  F. Greene School Facilities Act of  1998)

Exempt (due to district's small size [EC Section 17070.75 (b)(2)(E)])

Other (explanation must be prov ided)

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met

and Other is marked)

Page 10 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 9 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

8. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

STANDARD: Unrestricted def icit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other f inancing uses is greater than total unrestricted rev enues and other f inancing sources) as a percentage
of  total unrestricted expenditures and other f inancing uses, has not exceeded one-third of  the district's av ailable reserv es¹ as a percentage of  total expenditures and other f inancing uses²
in any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears.

¹Av ailable reserv es are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and
the Special Reserv e Fund f or Other Than Capital Outlay  Projects. Av ailable reserv es will be reduced by  any  negativ e ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

²A school district that is the Administrativ e Unit of  a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) may  exclude f rom its expenditures the distribution of  f unds to its participating members.

8A. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

6.6% 10.9% 11.8%
District's Av ailable Reserv e Percentages (Criterion 10C, Line 9)

District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels
2.2% 3.6% 3.9%

(one-third of available reserve percentage):

8B. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears into the f irst and second
columns.

Projected Year Totals

Net Change in Total Unrestricted
Expenditures

Unrestricted Fund Balance and Other Financing Uses Def icit Spending Lev el

(Form 01I, Section E) (Form 01I, Objects 1000-
7999)

(If  Net Change in
Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negativ e, else
N/A) Status

Current Year (2022-23) 30,379,594.10 373,619,556.53 N/A Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 23,258,150.62 380,973,556.01 N/A Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 7,491,079.75 392,515,490.08 N/A Met

8C. Comparison of District Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted def icit spending, if  any , has not exceeded the standard percentage lev el in any  of  the current y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

Page 11 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 10 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

9. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general f und balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

9A-1. Determining if the District's General Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, data f or the two subsequent y ears will be extracted; if  not, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears.

Ending Fund Balance

General Fund

Projected Year Totals

Fiscal Year (Form 01I, Line F2 ) (Form MYPI, Line D2) Status

Current Year (2022-23) 189,635,809.11 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 209,403,468.46 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 179,124,640.41 Met

9A-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general f und ending balance is positiv e f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear.

9B-1. Determining if the District's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If  Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if  not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance

General Fund

Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status

Current Year (2022-23) 230,673,120.00 Met

9B-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general f und cash balance will be positiv e at the end of  the current f iscal y ear.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

Page 12 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 11 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

10. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Av ailable reserv es¹ f or any  of  the current f iscal y ear or two subsequent f iscal y ears are not less than the f ollowing percentages or amounts² as applied to total expenditures
and other f inancing uses³:

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data will be extracted. If  not, enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA
corresponding to f inancial data reported in the General Fund, only , f or the two subsequent y ears.

Percentage Lev el District ADA

5% or $75,000 (greater of ) 0 to 300

4% or $75,000 (greater of ) 301 to 1,000

3% 1,001 to 30,000

2% 30,001 to 400,000

1% 400,001 and ov er

¹ Av ailable reserv es are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reserv e
f or Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund
and Special Reserv e Fund f or Other Than Capital Outlay  Projects. Av ailable reserv es will be
reduced by  any  negativ e ending balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

² Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually  by  the prior y ear statutory  cost-of -liv ing adjustment
(Education Code Section 42238), rounded to the nearest thousand.

³ A school district that is the Administrativ e Unit (AU) of  a Special Education Local Plan Area
(SELPA) may  exclude f rom its expenditures the distribution of  f unds to its participating
members.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

36,005.97
34,385.65 34,214.48District Estimated P-2 ADA (Current Year, Form AI, Lines A4 and C4.

Subsequent Years, Form MYPI, Line F2, if  av ailable.)

District's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 2% 2% 2%

10A. Calculating the District's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for districts that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if  Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If  not, click the appropriate Yes or No button f or item 1 and, if  Yes, enter data f or
item 2a and f or the two subsequent y ears in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For districts that serv e as the AU of  a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):

1. Do y ou choose to exclude f rom the reserv e calculation the pass-through f unds distributed to SELPA members? Yes

2. If  y ou are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through f unds:

a. Enter the name(s) of  the SELPA(s):

Current Year

Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

b. Special Education Pass-through Funds

0.00(Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540,

objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223)

10B. Calculating the District's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If  Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted or calculated. If  not, enter data f or line 1 f or the two subsequent y ears; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

Projected
Year Totals

1st
Subsequent
Year

2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Form 01I, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 779,846,909.34 686,645,305.99 698,442,258.32

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through

(Criterion 10A, Line 2b, if  Criterion 10A, Line 1 is No)

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

(Line B1 plus Line B2) 779,846,909.34 686,645,305.99 698,442,258.32

4. Reserv e Standard Percentage Lev el 2% 2% 2%

5. Reserv e Standard - by  Percent

(Line B3 times Line B4) 15,596,938.19 13,732,906.12 13,968,845.17

Page 13 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 12 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

6. Reserv e Standard - by  Amount

($75,000 f or districts with less than 1,001 ADA, else 0) 0.00 0.00 0.00

7. District's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line B5 or Line B6) 15,596,938.19 13,732,906.12 13,968,845.17

Page 14 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 13 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

10C. Calculating the District's Available Reserve Amount

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted f rom f und data and Form MYPI. If  Form MYPI does not exist, enter data f or the two subsequent y ears.

Current Year

Reserv e Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except Line 4) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. General Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 0.00

2. General Fund - Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 15,550,090.00 13,686,057.59 13,921,997.00

3. General Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E1c) 36,296,180.51 61,418,364.04 68,673,504.38

4. General Fund - Negativ e Ending Balances in Restricted Resources

(Fund 01, Object 979Z, if  negativ e, f or each of  resources 2000-9999) (Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00 0.00

5. Special Reserv e Fund - Stabilization Arrangements

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00

6. Special Reserv e Fund - Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00

7. Special Reserv e Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00

8. District's Av ailable Reserv e Amount

(Lines C1 thru C7) 51,846,270.51 75,104,421.63 82,595,501.38

9. District's Av ailable Reserv e Percentage (Inf ormation only )

(Line 8 div ided by  Section 10B, Line 3) 6.65% 10.94% 11.83%

District's Reserve Standard

(Section 10B, Line 7): 15,596,938.19 13,732,906.12 13,968,845.17

Status: Met Met Met

10D. Comparison of District Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Av ailable reserv es hav e met the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

Page 15 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 14 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation f or each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities

1a. Does y our district hav e any  known or contingent liabilities (e.g., f inancial or program audits, litigation,

state compliance rev iews) that hav e occurred since budget adoption that may  impact the budget? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the liabilities and how they  may  impact the budget:

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures

1a. Does y our district hav e ongoing general f und expenditures f unded with one-time rev enues that hav e

changed since budget adoption by  more than f iv e percent? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue f unding the ongoing expenditures in the f ollowing f iscal y ears:

S3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings

1a. Does y our district hav e projected temporary  borrowings between f unds?

(Ref er to Education Code Section 42603) No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  the interf und borrowings:

S4. Contingent Revenues

1a. Does y our district hav e projected rev enues f or the current f iscal y ear or either of  the two subsequent f iscal y ears

contingent on reauthorization by  the local gov ernment, special legislation, or other def initiv e act

(e.g., parcel taxes, f orest reserv es)? No

1b. If  Yes, identif y  any  of  these rev enues that are dedicated f or ongoing expenses and explain how the rev enues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:

Page 16 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 15 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S5. Contributions

Identif y  projected contributions f rom unrestricted resources in the general f und to restricted resources in the general f und f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.
Prov ide an explanation if  contributions hav e changed by  more than $20,000 and more than f iv e percent since budget adoption.

Identif y  projected transf ers to or f rom the general f und to cov er operating def icits in either the general f und or any  other f und f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.
Prov ide an explanation if  transf ers hav e changed by  more than $20,000 and more than f iv e percent since budget adoption.

Identif y  capital project cost ov erruns that hav e occurred since budget adoption that may  impact the general f und budget.

District's Contributions and Transfers Standard: -5.0% to +5.0% or -$20,000
to +$20,000

S5A. Identification of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the General Fund

DATA ENTRY: Budget Adoption data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the f irst column. For Contributions, the First Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter First Interim
Contributions f or the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transf ers In and Transf ers Out, the First Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. If  Form MYPI exists, the data will be extracted into the
First Interim column f or the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If  Form MYPI does not exist, enter data f or 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate button f or Item 1d; all other data will be
calculated.

Budget Adoption First Interim Percent

Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CS, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of
Change Status

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted General Fund

(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)

Current Year (2022-23) (96,922,460.00) (96,991,460.00) .1% 69,000.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) (105,137,961.00) (105,656,795.00) .5% 518,834.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) (113,887,468.00) (114,885,377.00) .9% 997,909.00 Met

1b. Transfers In, General Fund *

Current Year (2022-23) 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.0% 0.00 Met

1c. Transfers Out, General Fund *

Current Year (2022-23) 0.00 1,116,902.00 New 1,116,902.00 Not Met

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 0.00 1,116,902.00 New 1,116,902.00 Not Met

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 0.00 1,116,902.00 New 1,116,902.00 Not Met

1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns

Hav e capital project cost ov erruns occurred since budget adoption that may  impact the general f und
operational budget? No

* Include transf ers used to cov er operating def icits in either the general f und or any  other f und.

S5B. Status of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  Not Met f or items 1a-1c or if  Yes f or Item 1d.

1a. MET - Projected contributions hav e not changed since budget adoption by  more than the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

1b. MET - Projected transf ers in hav e not changed since budget adoption by  more than the standard f or the current y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(required if  NOT met)

Page 17 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 16 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

1c. NOT MET - The projected transf ers out of  the general f und hav e changed since budget adoption by  more than the standard f or any  of  the current y ear or subsequent two f iscal y ears.
Identif y  the amounts transf erred, by  f und, and whether transf ers are ongoing or one-time in nature. If  ongoing, explain the district's plan, with timef rames, f or reducing or eliminating the
transf ers.

Explanation: Transf ers out increased due to a projected contribution required to the Adult Education f und of  $1,000,000 to sustain the preschool parent
participation program and $116,902 to the Charter Fund to New Joseph Bonnheim to meet the required 5% reserv e f or 2022-23 based on
f irst interim projected rev enues and expenditures.(required if  NOT met)

1d. NO - There hav e been no capital project cost ov erruns occurring since budget adoption that may  impact the general f und operational budget.

Project Information:

(required if  YES)

Page 18 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 17 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S6. Long-term Commitments

Identif y  all existing and new multiy ear commitments¹ and their annual required pay ment f or the current f iscal y ear and two subsequent f iscal y ears. Explain how any  increase in annual
pay ments will be f unded. Also, explain how any  decrease to f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments will be replaced.

¹ Include multiy ear commitments, multiy ear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the District's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If  Budget Adoption data exist (Form 01CS, Item S6A), long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only  be necessary  to click the appropriate button f or Item 1b. Extracted
data may  be ov erwritten to update long-term commitment data in Item 2, as applicable. If  no Budget Adoption data exist, click the appropriate buttons f or items 1a and 1b, and enter all other data, as
applicable.

1. a. Does y our district hav e long-term (multiy ear) commitments?

(If  No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes

b. If  Yes to Item 1a, hav e new long-term (multiy ear) commitments been incurred

since budget adoption? Yes

2. If  Yes to Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiy ear commitments and required annual debt serv ice amounts. Do not include long-term commitments f or postemploy ment
benef its other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Item S7A.

# of  Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance

Ty pe of  Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Rev enues) Debt Serv ice (Expenditures) as of  July  1, 2022-23

Capital Leases

Certif icates of  Participation

General Obligation Bonds 28 Fund 51 - Bond Interest and Redemption
Fund Object 7438, 7439 476,197,966

Supp Early  Retirement Program

State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences Fund 01, 09, 11, 13, 21, 67, 68 Object Code 1000-3999 5,527,332

Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):

Lease Rev enue Bonds 19 Fund 25 - Dev eloper Fees, Fund 49 - Mello
Roos Object 7438/7439 55,030,000

TOTAL: 536,755,299

Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment Annual Pay ment

Ty pe of  Commitment (continued) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I) (P & I)

Capital Leases

Certif icates of  Participation

General Obligation Bonds 48,556,901 38,018,510 38,752,365 39,021,308

Supp Early  Retirement Program

State School Building Loans

Compensated Absences

Other Long-term Commitments (continued):

Lease Rev enue Bonds 5,462,404 5,467,974 5,466,294 5,462,364

Page 19 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 18 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

Total Annual
Pay ments: 54,019,305 43,486,484 44,218,659 44,483,672

Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2021-22)? No No No

Page 20 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 19 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S6B. Comparison of the District's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if  Yes.

1a. No - Annual pay ments f or long-term commitments hav e not increased in one or more of  the current and two subsequent f iscal y ears.

Explanation:

(Required if  Yes

to increase in total

annual pay ments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if  Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will f unding sources used to pay  long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of  the commitment period, or are they  one-time sources?

No

2. No - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of  the commitment period, and one-time f unds are not being used f or long-term commitment.

Explanation:

(Required if  Yes)

Page 21 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 20 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identif y  any  changes in estimates f or unf unded liabilities since budget adoption, and indicate whether the changes are the result of  a new actuarial v aluation.

S7A. Identification of the District's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) f or items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7A) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption and First Interim
data in items 2-4.

1 a. Does y our district prov ide postemploy ment benef its

other than pensions (OPEB)? (If  No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b. If  Yes to Item 1a, hav e there been changes since budget adoption in OPEB
liabilities?

Yes

c. If  Yes to Item 1a, hav e there been changes since

Nobudget adoption in OPEB contributions?

Budget Adoption

2 OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CS, Item S7A) First Interim

a. Total OPEB liability 415,066,116.00 442,140,012.00

b. OPEB plan(s) f iduciary  net position (if  applicable) 97,327,847.00 133,906,497.00

c. Total/Net OPEB liability  (Line 2a minus Line 2b) 317,738,269.00 308,233,515.00

d. Is total OPEB liability  based on the district's estimate

or an actuarial v aluation? Actuarial Actuarial

e. If  based on an actuarial v aluation, indicate the measurement date

of  the OPEB v aluation. Jun 30, 2020 Jun 30, 2021

3 OPEB Contributions

a. OPEB actuarially  determined contribution (ADC) if  av ailable, per Budget Adoption

actuarial v aluation or Alternativ e Measurement Method (Form 01CS, Item S7A) First Interim

Current Year (2022-23) 29,218,878.00 28,427,786.00

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 29,218,878.00 28,427,786.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 29,218,878.00 28,427,786.00

b. OPEB amount contributed (f or this purpose, include premiums paid to a self -insurance f und)

(Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)

Current Year (2022-23) 25,410,678.69 25,045,511.92

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 6,840,757.00 25,045,511.92

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 6,840,757.00 25,045,511.92

c. Cost of  OPEB benef its (equiv alent of  "pay -as-y ou-go" amount)

Current Year (2022-23) 3,808,199.31 19,288,427.00

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 22,378,121.00 20,029,056.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 22,378,121.00 20,988,265.00

d. Number of  retirees receiv ing OPEB benef its

Current Year (2022-23) 3,098 3,098

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 3,098 3,098

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 3,098 3,098

4. Comments:

Page 22 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 22 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S7B. Identification of the District's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) f or items 1a-1c, as applicable. Budget Adoption data that exist (Form 01CS, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter Budget Adoption and First Interim
data in items 2-4.

1 a. Does y our district operate any  self -insurance programs such as

workers' compensation, employ ee health and welf are, or property  and liability ? (Do not
include OPEB; which is cov ered in Section S7A) (If  No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b. If  Yes to item 1a, hav e there been changes since budget adoption in self -
insurance liabilities? Yes

c. If  Yes to item 1a, hav e there been changes since budget adoption in self -
insurance contributions? No

Budget Adoption

2 Self -Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CS, Item S7B) First Interim

a. Accrued liability  f or self -insurance programs 15,102,524.00 15,102,524.00

b. Unf unded liability  f or self -insurance programs 15,102,524.00 15,102,524.00

3 Self -Insurance Contributions Budget Adoption

a. Required contribution (f unding) f or self -insurance programs (Form 01CS, Item S7B) First Interim

Current Year (2022-23) 15,068,839.89 15,068,840.00

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 15,068,839.89 15,068,840.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 15,068,839.89 15,068,840.00

b. Amount contributed (f unded) f or self -insurance programs

Current Year (2022-23) 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00

1st Subsequent Year (2023-24) 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00

2nd Subsequent Year (2024-25) 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00

4 Comments:

Page 23 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 23 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S8. Status of Labor Agreements

Analy ze the status of  all employ ee labor agreements. Identif y  new labor agreements that hav e been ratif ied since budget adoption, as well as new commitments prov ided as part of
prev iously  ratif ied multiy ear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of  the
required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing rev enues, and explain how these commitments will be f unded in f uture f iscal y ears.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The school district must determine the cost of  the settlement, including salaries, benef its, and any  other agreements that change costs, and prov ide the county  of f ice of  education (COE)
with an analy sis of  the cost of  the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The county  superintendent shall rev iew the analy sis relativ e to the criteria and standards and may  prov ide written comments to the president of  the district gov erning board and
superintendent.

S8A. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or "Status of  Certif icated Labor Agreements as of  the Prev ious Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
No

Were all certif icated labor negotiations settled as of  budget adoption?

If  Yes, complete number of  FTEs, then skip to section S8B.

If  No, continue with section S8A.

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Number of  certif icated (non-management) f ull-time-equiv alent (FTE)
positions 2,265.7 2,290.9 2,284.9 2,278.9

1a. Hav e any  salary  and benef it negotiations been settled since budget adoption? No

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e not been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2-5.

If  No, complete questions 6 and 7.

1b. Are any  salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled?
Yes

If  Yes, complete questions 6 and 7.

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption

2a. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(a), date of  public disclosure board meeting:

2b. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collectiv e bargaining agreement

certif ied by  the district superintendent and chief  business of f icial?

If  Yes, date of  Superintendent and CBO certif ication:

3. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget rev ision adopted

to meet the costs of  the collectiv e bargaining agreement? n/a

If  Yes, date of  budget rev ision board adoption:

4. Period cov ered by  the agreement: Begin Date: End Date:

5. Salary  settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the interim and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear
(may  enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identif y  the source of  f unding that will be used to support multiy ear salary  commitments:

Page 24 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 24 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

Negotiations Not Settled

6. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its 2,878,251

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

7. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases 0 0 0

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its 52,813,217 57,038,274 61,601,336

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear 0.0% 8.0% 8.0%

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since Budget Adoption

Are any  new costs negotiated since budget adoption f or prior y ear settlements included in the interim? No

If  Yes, amount of  new costs included in the interim and MYPs

If  Yes, explain the nature of  the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments 0 2,818,999 2,845,089

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear 0.0% 1.4% 1.4%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are sav ings f rom attrition included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Are additional H&W benef its f or those laid-of f  or retired employ ees included in the interim
and MYPs? No No No

Certificated (Non-management) - Other

List other signif icant contract changes that hav e occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of  each change (i.e., class size, hours of  employ ment, leav e of  absence, bonuses, etc.):

Page 25 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 25 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S8B. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or "Status of  Classif ied Labor Agreements as of  the Prev ious Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all classif ied labor negotiations settled as of  budget adoption?
No

If  Yes, complete number of  FTEs, then skip to section S8C.

If  No, continue with section S8B.

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Number of  classif ied (non-management) FTE positions 1,357.9 1,385.6 1,385.6 1,385.6

1a. Hav e any  salary  and benef it negotiations been settled since budget adoption? No

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.

If  Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents hav e not been f iled with the COE, complete questions 2-5.

If  No, complete questions 6 and 7.

1b. Are any  salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled?

If  Yes, complete questions 6 and 7. Yes

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption

2a. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(a), date of  public disclosure board meeting:

2b. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collectiv e bargaining agreement

certif ied by  the district superintendent and chief  business of f icial?

If  Yes, date of  Superintendent and CBO certif ication:

3. Per Gov ernment Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget rev ision adopted

to meet the costs of  the collectiv e bargaining agreement? n/a

If  Yes, date of  budget rev ision board adoption:

4. Period cov ered by  the agreement: Begin Date: End
Date:

5. Salary  settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the interim and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear

or

Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of  salary  settlement

% change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear
(may  enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identif y  the source of  f unding that will be used to support multiy ear salary  commitments:

Negotiations Not Settled

6. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its 829,451

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

7. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases 0 0 0

Page 26 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 26 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its 26,562,940 28,687,975 30,983,013

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear 0.0% 8.0% 8.0%

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated Since Budget Adoption

Are any  new costs negotiated since budget adoption f or prior y ear settlements included in the interim? Yes

If  Yes, amount of  new costs included in the interim and MYPs 901,232 206,133 207,088

If  Yes, explain the nature of  the new costs:

$696,215 of  one time costs and 205,017 of  on going 4% salary  increase f or teamsters and TCS bargaining units to settle the 2021-22 y ear.

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments 0 424,817 434,182

3. Percent change in step & column ov er prior y ear 0.0% .7% .7%

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are sav ings f rom attrition included in the interim and MYPs? No No No

2. Are additional H&W benef its f or those laid-of f  or retired employ ees included in the interim
and MYPs? No No No

Classified (Non-management) - Other

List other signif icant contract changes that hav e occurred since budget adoption and the cost impact of  each (i.e., hours of  employ ment, leav e of  absence, bonuses, etc.):

Page 27 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 27 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S8C. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or "Status of  Management/Superv isor/Conf idential Labor Agreements as of  the Prev ious Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this
section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all managerial/conf idential labor negotiations settled as of  budget adoption? No

If  Yes or n/a, complete number of  FTEs, then skip to S9.

If  No, continue with section S8C.

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations

Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2021-22) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Number of  management, superv isor, and conf idential FTE positions 290.8 316.2 316.2 316.2

1a. Hav e any  salary  and benef it negotiations been settled since budget adoption?
No

If  Yes, complete question 2.

If  No, complete questions 3 and 4.

Yes
1b. Are any  salary  and benef it negotiations still unsettled?

If  Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.

Negotiations Settled Since Budget Adoption

2. Salary  settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

Is the cost of  salary  settlement included in the interim and multiy ear

projections (MYPs)?

Total cost of  salary  settlement

Change in salary  schedule f rom prior y ear
(may  enter text, such as "Reopener")

Negotiations Not Settled

3. Cost of  a one percent increase in salary  and statutory  benef its 482,479

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

(2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

4. Amount included f or any  tentativ e salary  schedule increases 0 0 0

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are costs of  H&W benef it changes included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of  H&W benef its 4,627,258 4,997,439 5,397,234

3. Percent of  H&W cost paid by  employ er 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost ov er prior y ear 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Step and Column Adjustments (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Cost of  step & column adjustments 0 0 0

3. Percent change in step and column ov er prior y ear .7% .7% .7%

Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year

Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2022-23) (2023-24) (2024-25)

1. Are costs of  other benef its included in the interim and MYPs? Yes Yes Yes

2. Total cost of  other benef its 43,200 43,200 43,200

3. Percent change in cost of  other benef its ov er prior y ear 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Page 28 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 28 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

S9. Status of Other Funds

Analy ze the status of  other f unds that may  hav e negativ e f und balances at the end of  the current f iscal y ear. If  any  other f und has a projected
negativ e f und balance, prepare an interim report and multiy ear projection f or that f und. Explain plans f or how and when the negativ e f und balance will be
addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If  Yes, enter data in Item 2 and prov ide the reports ref erenced in Item 1.

1. Are any  f unds other than the general f und
projected to hav e a negativ e f und

balance at the end of  the current f iscal y ear? No

If  Yes, prepare and submit to the rev iewing agency  a report of  rev enues, expenditures, and changes in f und balance (e.g., an interim f und report) and a
multiy ear projection report f or each f und.

2. If  Yes, identif y  each f und, by  name and number, that is projected to hav e a negativ e ending f und balance f or the current f iscal y ear. Prov ide reasons
f or the negativ e balance(s) and explain the plan f or how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

Page 29 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: CSI_District, Version 3 Page 29 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The f ollowing f iscal indicators are designed to prov ide additional data f or rev iewing agencies. A "Yes" answer to any  single indicator does not necessarily  suggest a cause f or concern, but may  alert the
rev iewing agency  to the need f or additional rev iew. DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button f or items A2 through A9; Item A1 is automatically  completed based on data f rom Criterion 9.

A1. Do cash f low projections show that the district will end the current f iscal y ear with a

negativ e cash balance in the general f und? (Data f rom Criterion 9B-1, Cash Balance, No

are used to determine Yes or No)

A2. Is the sy stem of  personnel position control independent f rom the pay roll sy stem?

No

A3. Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior and current f iscal y ears?

Yes

A4. Are new charter schools operating in district boundaries that impact the district's

enrollment, either in the prior or current f iscal y ear? No

A5. Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any  of  the current

or subsequent f iscal y ears of  the agreement would result in salary  increases that No

are expected to exceed the projected state f unded cost-of -liv ing adjustment?

A6. Does the district prov ide uncapped (100% employ er paid) health benef its f or current or

retired employ ees? Yes

A7. Is the district's f inancial sy stem independent of  the county  of f ice sy stem?

Yes

A8. Does the district hav e any  reports that indicate f iscal distress pursuant to Education

Code Section 42127.6(a)? (If  Yes, prov ide copies to the county  of f ice of  education.) Yes

A9. Hav e there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief  business

of f icial positions within the last 12 months? No

When prov iding comments f or additional f iscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:

(optional)

End of School District First Interim Criteria and Standards Review

Page 30 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: MYPI, Version 4 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:33 PM

2022-23 First Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI

Unrestricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2023-24
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2024-25
Projection

(E)

(Enter projections f or subsequent y ears 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;

current y ear - Column A - is extracted)

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1. LCFF/Rev enue Limit Sources 8010-8099 482,045,473.00 1.85% 490,943,364.00 1.02% 495,946,809.00

2. Federal Rev enues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

3. Other State Rev enues 8300-8599 10,945,417.00 0.00% 10,945,417.00 0.00% 10,945,417.00

4. Other Local Rev enues 8600-8799 5,657,294.63 0.00% 5,657,294.63 0.00% 5,657,294.63

5. Other Financing Sources

a. Transf ers In 8900-8929 2,342,426.00 0.00% 2,342,426.00 0.00% 2,342,426.00

b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

c. Contributions 8980-8999 (96,991,460.00) 8.93% (105,656,795.00) 8.73% (114,885,376.80)

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 403,999,150.63 .06% 404,231,706.63 (1.05%) 400,006,569.83

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

1. Certif icated Salaries

a. Base Salaries 175,173,340.99 176,670,371.99

b. Step & Column Adjustment 2,452,427.00 2,473,385.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments (955,396.00) (500,424.00)

e. Total Certif icated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 175,173,340.99 .85% 176,670,371.99 1.12% 178,643,332.99

2. Classif ied Salaries

a. Base Salaries 39,811,545.96 41,003,349.96

b. Step & Column Adjustment 278,681.00 287,023.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments 913,123.00 1,004,364.00

e. Total Classif ied Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 39,811,545.96 2.99% 41,003,349.96 3.15% 42,294,736.96

3. Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 123,506,005.03 5.49% 130,280,753.01 4.30% 135,876,955.08

4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 14,901,485.51 (7.86%) 13,730,830.51 8.67% 14,921,522.51

5. Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 25,704,202.22 (3.65%) 24,765,273.72 6.02% 26,255,965.72

6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 261,353.74 0.00% 261,353.74 0.00% 261,353.74

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-
7499 1,540,000.00 0.00% 1,540,000.00 0.00% 1,540,000.00

8. Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (8,395,278.92) 0.00% (8,395,278.92) 0.00% (8,395,278.92)

9. Other Financing Uses

a. Transf ers Out 7600-7629 1,116,902.00 0.00% 1,116,902.00 0.00% 1,116,902.00

b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below)

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 373,619,556.53 1.97% 380,973,556.01 3.03% 392,515,490.08

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

(Line A6 minus line B11) 30,379,594.10 23,258,150.62 7,491,079.75

D. FUND BALANCE

1.Net Beginning Fund Balance(Form 01I, line F1e) 65,034,532.41 95,414,126.51 118,672,277.13

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 95,414,126.51 118,672,277.13 126,163,356.88

3. Components of  Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 325,000.00 325,000.00 325,000.00

b. Restricted 9740

c. Committed

1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

2. Other Commitments 9760 36,325,135.00 36,325,134.50 36,325,134.50

d. Assigned 9780 6,917,721.00 6,917,721.00 6,917,721.00

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

Page 31 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: MYPI, Version 4 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:33 PM

2022-23 First Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI

Unrestricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2023-24
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2024-25
Projection

(E)

1. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 15,550,090.00 13,686,057.59 13,921,997.00

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 36,296,180.51 61,418,364.04 68,673,504.38

f . Total Components of  Ending Fund Balance

(Line D3f  must agree with line D2) 95,414,126.51 118,672,277.13 126,163,356.88

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

1. General Fund

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 15,550,090.00 13,686,057.59 13,921,997.00

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 36,296,180.51 61,418,364.04 68,673,504.38

(Enter other reserv e projections in Columns C and E f or subsequent

y ears 1 and 2; current y ear - Column A - is extracted)

2. Special Reserv e Fund - Noncapital Outlay  (Fund 17)

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00

3. Total Av ailable Reserv es (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 51,846,270.51 75,104,421.63 82,595,501.38

F. ASSUMPTIONS

Please prov ide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections f or the f irst and

second subsequent f iscal y ears. Further, please include an explanation f or any  signif icant expenditure adjustments

projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional inf ormation, please ref er to the Budget Assumptions section of  the

SACS Financial Reporting Sof tware User Guide.

B.1.d-adjustments are f or the remov al of  3 PD day s, remov al of  one-
time salary  expenses, FTE reductions f or enrollment decline and the add
back of  f irst interim salary  sav ings f or FY 23-24 and FY 24-25
adjustments are f or FTE decreases f or enrollment decline. B.2.d -
adjustments are f or the remov al of  one time expenses related to
stipends of f set by  the add back of  f irst interim sav ings and added
salaries f or program enhancements.

Page 32 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: MYPI, Version 4 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:33 PM

2022-23 First Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI

Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2023-24
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2024-25
Projection

(E)

(Enter projections f or subsequent y ears 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;

current y ear - Column A - is extracted)

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1. LCFF/Rev enue Limit Sources 8010-8099 2,251,179.00 0.00% 2,251,179.00 0.00% 2,251,179.00

2. Federal Rev enues 8100-8299 166,767,828.52 (46.27%) 89,601,115.52 (48.27%) 46,348,135.95

3. Other State Rev enues 8300-8599 186,922,552.79 (45.32%) 102,201,690.96 0.00% 102,201,690.96

4. Other Local Rev enues 8600-8799 2,697,750.73 (8.42%) 2,470,477.73 0.00% 2,470,477.73

5. Other Financing Sources

a. Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

c. Contributions 8980-8999 96,991,460.00 8.93% 105,656,795.50 8.73% 114,885,376.80

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 455,630,771.04 (33.68%) 302,181,258.71 (11.26%) 268,156,860.44

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

1. Certif icated Salaries

a. Base Salaries 66,906,176.46 67,699,560.96

b. Step & Column Adjustment 366,572.00 371,704.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments 426,812.50 9,444,895.12

e. Total Certif icated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 66,906,176.46 1.19% 67,699,560.96 14.50% 77,516,160.08

2. Classif ied Salaries

a. Base Salaries 32,555,634.74 31,964,273.74

b. Step & Column Adjustment 146,136.00 147,159.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment

d. Other Adjustments (737,497.00) 1,255,744.06

e. Total Classif ied Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 32,555,634.74 (1.82%) 31,964,273.74 4.39% 33,367,176.80

3. Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 91,201,019.70 (.74%) 90,529,486.26 (3.64%) 87,233,295.06

4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 44,698,607.08 (55.38%) 19,943,047.85 (4.62%) 19,021,550.12

5. Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 127,490,197.84 (34.38%) 83,662,504.56 .83% 84,360,667.46

6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 36,351,902.63 (82.30%) 6,433,315.43 (71.24%) 1,849,982.10

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-
7499 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

8. Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 7,023,814.36 (6.56%) 6,562,705.43 (21.29%) 5,165,285.62

9. Other Financing Uses

a. Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) (1,123,144.25) (2,587,349.00)

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 406,227,352.81 (24.75%) 305,671,749.98 .08% 305,926,768.24

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

(Line A6 minus line B11) 49,403,418.23 (3,490,491.27) (37,769,907.80)

D. FUND BALANCE

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 44,818,264.37 94,221,682.60 90,731,191.33

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 94,221,682.60 90,731,191.33 52,961,283.53

3. Components of  Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00

b. Restricted 9740 94,221,682.60 90,731,191.33 52,961,283.53

c. Committed

1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

2. Other Commitments 9760

d. Assigned 9780

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

1. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789

Page 33 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: MYPI, Version 4 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:33 PM

2022-23 First Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI

Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2023-24
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2024-25
Projection

(E)

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

f . Total Components of  Ending Fund Balance

(Line D3f  must agree with line D2) 94,221,682.60 90,731,191.33 52,961,283.53

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES

1. General Fund )

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790

(Enter current y ear reserv e projections in Column A, and other reserv e

projections in Columns C and E f or subsequent y ears 1 and 2)

2. Special Reserv e Fund - Noncapital Outlay  (Fund 17)

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790

3. Total Av ailable Reserv es (Sum lines E1a thru E2c)

F. ASSUMPTIONS

Please prov ide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections f or the f irst and

second subsequent f iscal y ears. Further, please include an explanation f or any  signif icant expenditure adjustments

projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional inf ormation, please ref er to the Budget Assumptions section of  the

SACS Financial Reporting Sof tware User Guide.

B.1.d/B.2.d - net adjustments made f or remov ing expenditures related to
expiring grants and carry ov er which is of f set by  adjustments in special

education programs f or FY 23-24, in FY24-25 adjustments are the net of
remov ing ESSER III salaries of f set by  increased salaries utilizing the
Arts,Music, Instructional Materials block grant as well as the Learning

Recov ery  Emergency  block grant. B.10 - budget adjustments needed to
be made to self  sustaining grants f or increased costs related to

step/column increases and health/welf are increases f or each subsequent
y ear.

Page 34 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: MYPI, Version 4 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:33 PM

2022-23 First Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI

Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2023-24
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2024-25
Projection

(E)

(Enter projections f or subsequent y ears 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;

current y ear - Column A - is extracted)

A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

1. LCFF/Rev enue Limit Sources 8010-8099 484,296,652.00 1.84% 493,194,543.00 1.01% 498,197,988.00

2. Federal Rev enues 8100-8299 166,767,828.52 (46.27%) 89,601,115.52 (48.27%) 46,348,135.95

3. Other State Rev enues 8300-8599 197,867,969.79 (42.82%) 113,147,107.96 0.00% 113,147,107.96

4. Other Local Rev enues 8600-8799 8,355,045.36 (2.72%) 8,127,772.36 0.00% 8,127,772.36

5. Other Financing Sources

a. Transf ers In 8900-8929 2,342,426.00 0.00% 2,342,426.00 0.00% 2,342,426.00

b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

c. Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% .50 (100.00%) 0.00

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 859,629,921.67 (17.82%) 706,412,965.34 (5.41%) 668,163,430.27

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

1. Certif icated Salaries

a. Base Salaries 242,079,517.45 244,369,932.95

b. Step & Column Adjustment 2,818,999.00 2,845,089.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment 0.00 0.00

d. Other Adjustments (528,583.50) 8,944,471.12

e. Total Certif icated Salaries (Sum lines B1a thru B1d) 1000-1999 242,079,517.45 .95% 244,369,932.95 4.82% 256,159,493.07

2. Classif ied Salaries

a. Base Salaries 72,367,180.70 72,967,623.70

b. Step & Column Adjustment 424,817.00 434,182.00

c. Cost-of -Liv ing Adjustment 0.00 0.00

d. Other Adjustments 175,626.00 2,260,108.06

e. Total Classif ied Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 72,367,180.70 .83% 72,967,623.70 3.69% 75,661,913.76

3. Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 214,707,024.73 2.84% 220,810,239.27 1.04% 223,110,250.14

4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 59,600,092.59 (43.50%) 33,673,878.36 .80% 33,943,072.63

5. Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 153,194,400.06 (29.22%) 108,427,778.28 2.02% 110,616,633.18

6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 36,613,256.37 (81.72%) 6,694,669.17 (68.46%) 2,111,335.84

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-
7499 1,540,000.00 0.00% 1,540,000.00 0.00% 1,540,000.00

8. Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (1,371,464.56) 33.62% (1,832,573.49) 76.25% (3,229,993.30)

9. Other Financing Uses

a. Transf ers Out 7600-7629 1,116,902.00 0.00% 1,116,902.00 0.00% 1,116,902.00

b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

10. Other Adjustments (1,123,144.25) (2,587,349.00)

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 779,846,909.34 (11.95%) 686,645,305.99 1.72% 698,442,258.32

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE

(Line A6 minus line B11) 79,783,012.33 19,767,659.35 (30,278,828.05)

D. FUND BALANCE

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 01I, line F1e) 109,852,796.78 189,635,809.11 209,403,468.46

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 189,635,809.11 209,403,468.46 179,124,640.41

3. Components of  Ending Fund Balance (Form 01I)

a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 325,000.00 325,000.00 325,000.00

b. Restricted 9740 94,221,682.60 90,731,191.33 52,961,283.53

c. Committed

1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. Other Commitments 9760 36,325,135.00 36,325,134.50 36,325,134.50

d. Assigned 9780 6,917,721.00 6,917,721.00 6,917,721.00

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated

1. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 15,550,090.00 13,686,057.59 13,921,997.00

Page 35 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: MYPI, Version 4 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:33 PM

2022-23 First Interim
Sacramento City Unified General Fund 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI

Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Object
Codes

Projected Year
Totals

(Form 01I)
(A)

%
Change

(Cols. C-A/A)
(B)

2023-24
Projection

(C)

%
Change

(Cols. E-C/C)
(D)

2024-25
Projection

(E)

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 36,296,180.51 61,418,364.04 68,673,504.38

f . Total Components of  Ending Fund Balance

(Line D3f  must agree with line D2) 189,635,809.11 209,403,468.46 179,124,640.41

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted)

1. General Fund

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 15,550,090.00 13,686,057.59 13,921,997.00

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 36,296,180.51 61,418,364.04 68,673,504.38

d. Negativ e Restricted Ending Balances

(Negativ e resources 2000-9999) 979Z 0.00 0.00

2. Special Reserv e Fund - Noncapital Outlay  (Fund 17)

a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

b. Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Total Av ailable Reserv es - by  Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 51,846,270.51 75,104,421.63 82,595,501.38

4. Total Av ailable Reserv es - by  Percent (Line E3 div ided by  Line F3c) 6.65% 10.94% 11.83%

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES

1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions

For districts that serv e as the administrativ e unit (AU) of  a

special education local plan area (SELPA):

a. Do y ou choose to exclude f rom the reserv e calculation

the pass-through f unds distributed to SELPA members? Yes

b. If  y ou are the SELPA AU and are excluding special

education pass-through f unds:

1. Enter the name(s) of  the SELPA(s):

2. Special education pass-through f unds

(Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 and 6546

objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections f or

subsequent y ears 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00

2. District ADA

Used to determine the reserv e standard percentage lev el on line F3d

(Col. A: Form AI, Estimated P-2 ADA column, Lines A4 and C4; enter projections) 36,005.97 34,385.65 34,214.48

3. Calculating the Reserv es

a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 779,846,909.34 686,645,305.99 698,442,258.32

b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if  Line F1a is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00

c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line F3a plus line F3b) 779,846,909.34 686,645,305.99 698,442,258.32

d. Reserv e Standard Percentage Lev el

(Ref er to Form 01CSI, Criterion 10 f or calculation details) 2% 2% 2%

e. Reserv e Standard - By  Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 15,596,938.19 13,732,906.12 13,968,845.17

f . Reserv e Standard - By  Amount

(Ref er to Form 01CSI, Criterion 10 f or calculation details) 0.00 0.00 0.00

g. Reserv e Standard (Greater of  Line F3e or F3f ) 15,596,938.19 13,732,906.12 13,968,845.17

h. Av ailable Reserv es (Line E3) Meet Reserv e Standard (Line F3g) YES YES YES

Page 36 of 134



 
 
 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 

 
General Fund Definition  
 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all revenues and 
expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds.  All general tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this 
fund.  General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other 
funds are paid from the General Fund.  The General Fund also contains categorical programs such as  
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), Title I, After School Education and Safety (ASES), and others. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 37 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 454,072,523.00 454,072,523.00 102,123,016.84 482,045,473.00 27,972,950.00 6.2%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 56,524,860.00 56,524,860.00 1,010,915.11 10,945,417.00 (45,579,443.00) -80.6%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 5,910,294.43 5,910,294.43 1,308,708.10 5,657,294.63 (252,999.80) -4.3%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 516,507,677.43 516,507,677.43 104,442,640.05 498,648,184.63

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 177,131,599.94 177,131,599.94 34,680,196.97 175,173,340.99 1,958,258.95 1.1%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 39,061,129.53 39,061,129.53 11,548,426.10 39,811,545.96 (750,416.43) -1.9%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 126,337,116.49 126,337,116.49 26,653,812.09 123,506,005.03 2,831,111.46 2.2%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 8,011,516.25 8,011,516.25 591,982.97 14,901,485.51 (6,889,969.26) -86.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 23,735,745.19 23,735,745.19 8,433,942.38 25,704,202.22 (1,968,457.03) -8.3%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 29,000.00 29,000.00 205,401.23 261,353.74 (232,353.74) -801.2%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 1,540,000.00 1,540,000.00 383,264.95 1,540,000.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (8,279,892.53) (8,279,892.53) (174,537.86) (8,395,278.92) 115,386.39 -1.4%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 367,566,214.87 367,566,214.87 82,322,488.83 372,502,654.53

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -
B9) 148,941,462.56 148,941,462.56 22,120,151.22 126,145,530.10

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,116,902.00 (1,116,902.00) New

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 (96,922,460.00) (96,922,460.00) 0.00 (96,991,460.00) (69,000.00) 0.1%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (94,580,034.00) (94,580,034.00) 0.00 (95,765,936.00)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 54,361,428.56 54,361,428.56 22,120,151.22 30,379,594.10

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 65,034,532.41 65,034,532.41 65,034,532.41 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 65,034,532.41 65,034,532.41 65,034,532.41

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +
F1d) 65,034,532.41 65,034,532.41 65,034,532.41

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 119,395,960.97 119,395,960.97 95,414,126.51

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 225,000.00 225,000.00 225,000.00

Stores 9712 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 38 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 41,439,681.00 41,439,681.00 36,325,135.00

Additional 3% Reserv e f or
Economic Uncertainty  per BP 3100 0000 9760 19,431,681.00

Prof essional Learning 0000 9760 3,100,000.00

History  /social Science and World
Language Textbook Adoption 0000 9760 13,000,000.00

Multi-Tiered Sy stems of  Support 0000 9760 400,000.00

EPOCH Anti-bias Anti-racist
prof essional learning 0000 9760 400,000.00

Communications 0000 9760 60,000.00

Summer School Programs 0000 9760 5,000,000.00

Transitional Kindergarten Support 0000 9760 48,000.00

History /Social Science and World
Language Textbook Adoption 0000 9760 13,000,000.00

3% Additional Reserv e f or
Economic Uncertainty  per BP3100 0000 9760 23,325,135.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 27,106,041.00 25,660,794.00 6,917,721.00

2021-22 Unsettled Negotiations 0000 9780 9,349,809.00

2022-23 Projected Def icit 0000 9780 1,881,433.00

2023-24 Projected Def icit 0000 9780 14,752,914.00

MAA 0000 9780 1,121,885.00

Unrestricted Site Programs 0000 9780 383,845.00

Supplemental / Concentration
Funding Increase 0000 9780 5,411,991.00

MAA 0000 9780 1,121,885.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 12,954,460.00 12,954,460.00 15,550,090.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 37,570,778.97 39,016,025.97 36,296,180.51

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 260,474,302.00 260,474,302.00 78,295,498.00 264,019,389.00 3,545,087.00 1.4%

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 89,031,028.00 89,031,028.00 26,448,083.00 103,830,832.00 14,799,804.00 16.6%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 (2,621,115.11) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 686,914.00 686,914.00 0.00 676,780.00 (10,134.00) -1.5%

Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 83,423,477.00 83,423,477.00 0.00 90,638,481.00 7,215,004.00 8.6%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 2,441,088.00 2,441,088.00 (11.91) 2,922,607.00 481,519.00 19.7%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 616,006.00 616,006.00 0.00 565,379.00 (50,627.00) -8.2%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 3,481,006.00 3,481,006.00 0.00 4,137,666.00 656,660.00 18.9%

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) 8045 17,082,369.00 17,082,369.00 (8.20) 17,357,503.00 275,134.00 1.6%

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 10,676,020.00 10,676,020.00 0.00 11,736,523.00 1,060,503.00 9.9%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 39 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 571.06 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 467,912,210.00 467,912,210.00 102,123,016.84 495,885,160.00 27,972,950.00 6.0%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 (13,839,687.00) (13,839,687.00) 0.00 (13,839,687.00) 0.00 0.0%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 454,072,523.00 454,072,523.00 102,123,016.84 482,045,473.00 27,972,950.00 6.2%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Forest Reserv e Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal
Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290

Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290

Title III, Part A, English Learner Program 4203 8290

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290

Other NCLB / Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,
3061, 3110,
3150, 3155,
3180, 3182,
4037, 4123,
4124, 4126,
4127, 4128,

5630

8290

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319

Special Education Master Plan

Page 40 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Current Year 6500 8311

Prior Years 6500 8319

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 1,459,531.00 1,459,531.00 0.00 1,459,531.00 0.00 0.0%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 5,901,089.00 5,901,089.00 1,010,915.11 5,901,089.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State
Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690,
6695 8590

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 49,164,240.00 49,164,240.00 0.00 3,584,797.00 (45,579,443.00) -92.7%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 56,524,860.00 56,524,860.00 1,010,915.11 10,945,417.00 (45,579,443.00) -80.6%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not
Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 85,876.00 85,876.00 5,655.00 85,876.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 1,866,081.00 1,866,081.00 481,185.28 1,891,939.98 25,858.98 1.4%

Interest 8660 1,250,000.00 1,250,000.00 0.00 1,250,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Page 41 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 1,968,490.00 1,968,490.00 40,244.75 1,968,490.00 0.00 0.0%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)
Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local
Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 739,847.43 739,847.43 781,623.07 460,988.65 (278,858.78) -37.7%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers Of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792

From JPAs 6500 8793

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792

From JPAs 6360 8793

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 5,910,294.43 5,910,294.43 1,308,708.10 5,657,294.63 (252,999.80) -4.3%

TOTAL, REVENUES 516,507,677.43 516,507,677.43 104,442,640.05 498,648,184.63 (17,859,492.80) -3.5%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 147,692,450.37 147,692,450.37 27,656,188.71 145,352,310.63 2,340,139.74 1.6%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 10,968,340.78 10,968,340.78 2,063,280.45 11,523,336.34 (554,995.56) -5.1%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 17,205,591.91 17,205,591.91 4,868,686.54 16,988,324.65 217,267.26 1.3%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 1,265,216.88 1,265,216.88 92,041.27 1,309,369.37 (44,152.49) -3.5%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 177,131,599.94 177,131,599.94 34,680,196.97 175,173,340.99 1,958,258.95 1.1%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 950,978.94 950,978.94 171,106.58 928,764.03 22,214.91 2.3%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 15,378,441.02 15,378,441.02 4,794,514.25 16,673,248.52 (1,294,807.50) -8.4%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 5,826,446.25 5,826,446.25 1,615,898.75 5,516,974.29 309,471.96 5.3%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 14,962,751.48 14,962,751.48 4,559,666.36 14,741,123.91 221,627.57 1.5%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 1,942,511.84 1,942,511.84 407,240.16 1,951,435.21 (8,923.37) -0.5%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 39,061,129.53 39,061,129.53 11,548,426.10 39,811,545.96 (750,416.43) -1.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 33,018,037.78 33,018,037.78 6,279,431.69 32,661,869.46 356,168.32 1.1%

PERS 3201-3202 10,053,096.95 10,053,096.95 2,733,993.39 10,140,611.84 (87,514.89) -0.9%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 6,371,450.59 6,371,450.59 1,394,168.82 6,362,742.13 8,708.46 0.1%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 57,598,175.48 57,598,175.48 12,093,434.40 55,496,436.57 2,101,738.91 3.6%

Page 42 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 1,069,331.00 1,069,331.00 229,812.09 1,063,123.78 6,207.22 0.6%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 3,212,457.33 3,212,457.33 693,531.27 3,193,746.90 18,710.43 0.6%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 14,958,338.36 14,958,338.36 3,214,190.38 14,530,754.83 427,583.53 2.9%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 56,229.00 56,229.00 15,250.05 56,719.52 (490.52) -0.9%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 126,337,116.49 126,337,116.49 26,653,812.09 123,506,005.03 2,831,111.46 2.2%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 34,478.00 34,478.00 (1,907.12) 4,224,576.41 (4,190,098.41) -12,153.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 104,423.77 104,423.77 324.28 105,004.48 (580.71) -0.6%

Materials and Supplies 4300 7,413,360.49 7,413,360.49 539,064.35 10,045,519.31 (2,632,158.82) -35.5%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 459,253.99 459,253.99 54,501.46 526,385.31 (67,131.32) -14.6%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 8,011,516.25 8,011,516.25 591,982.97 14,901,485.51 (6,889,969.26) -86.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 691,923.80 691,923.80 554,897.81 801,282.06 (109,358.26) -15.8%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 244,614.00 244,614.00 30,293.12 280,960.38 (36,346.38) -14.9%

Dues and Memberships 5300 147,365.00 147,365.00 133,975.24 188,614.41 (41,249.41) -28.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 2,020,000.00 2,020,000.00 886,952.79 1,565,977.00 454,023.00 22.5%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 9,745,816.35 9,745,816.35 3,419,468.26 9,746,353.00 (536.65) 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 1,270,657.99 1,270,657.99 230,672.61 1,420,737.58 (150,079.59) -11.8%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 (448,065.48) (448,065.48) (7,823.65) (454,119.78) 6,054.30 -1.4%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 (1,981,056.71) (1,981,056.71) (12,756.56) (2,008,597.29) 27,540.58 -1.4%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 10,893,341.78 10,893,341.78 2,662,585.55 12,468,725.76 (1,575,383.98) -14.5%

Communications 5900 1,151,148.46 1,151,148.46 535,677.21 1,694,269.10 (543,120.64) -47.2%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 23,735,745.19 23,735,745.19 8,433,942.38 25,704,202.22 (1,968,457.03) -8.3%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 81,665.60 116,507.73 (116,507.73) New

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 48,198.63 31,707.00 (31,707.00) New

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 2,000.00 2,000.00 72,330.06 56,139.01 (54,139.01) -2,707.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 27,000.00 27,000.00 3,206.94 57,000.00 (30,000.00) -111.1%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 29,000.00 29,000.00 205,401.23 261,353.74 (232,353.74) -801.2%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 381,158.00 1,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 43 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 7 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222

To JPAs 6500 7223

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222

To JPAs 6360 7223

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 2,106.95 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 1,540,000.00 1,540,000.00 383,264.95 1,540,000.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 (7,088,334.06) (7,088,334.06) (160,601.26) (7,023,814.36) (64,519.70) 0.9%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 (1,191,558.47) (1,191,558.47) (13,936.60) (1,371,464.56) 179,906.09 -15.1%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS (8,279,892.53) (8,279,892.53) (174,537.86) (8,395,278.92) 115,386.39 -1.4%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 367,566,214.87 367,566,214.87 82,322,488.83 372,502,654.53 (4,936,439.66) -1.3%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From: Bond Interest and

Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County
School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,116,902.00 (1,116,902.00) New

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,116,902.00 (1,116,902.00) New

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Page 44 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 8 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 (96,922,460.00) (96,922,460.00) 0.00 (96,991,460.00) (69,000.00) 0.1%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (96,922,460.00) (96,922,460.00) 0.00 (96,991,460.00) (69,000.00) 0.1%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) (94,580,034.00) (94,580,034.00) 0.00 (95,765,936.00) (1,185,902.00) 1.3%

Page 45 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 9 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,251,179.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 91,620,566.87 91,620,566.87 21,431,452.37 166,767,828.52 75,147,261.65 82.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 77,161,858.71 77,161,858.71 30,129,988.40 186,922,552.79 109,760,694.08 142.2%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 2,348,651.42 2,348,651.42 2,029,376.62 2,697,750.73 349,099.31 14.9%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 173,382,256.00 173,382,256.00 53,590,817.39 358,639,311.04

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 65,846,911.68 65,846,911.68 12,826,076.77 66,906,176.46 (1,059,264.78) -1.6%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 31,616,782.87 31,616,782.87 7,275,638.57 32,555,634.74 (938,851.87) -3.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 89,430,083.36 89,430,083.36 11,836,201.02 91,201,019.70 (1,770,936.34) -2.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 21,326,015.00 21,326,015.00 1,719,825.73 44,698,607.08 (23,372,592.08) -109.6%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 61,790,517.00 61,790,517.00 8,959,627.54 127,490,197.84 (65,699,680.84) -106.3%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 5,400,251.27 5,400,251.27 7,653,800.52 36,351,902.63 (30,951,651.36) -573.2%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs 7300-7399 7,088,334.06 7,088,334.06 160,601.26 7,023,814.36 64,519.70 0.9%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 282,498,895.24 282,498,895.24 50,431,771.41 406,227,352.81

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -
B9) (109,116,639.24) (109,116,639.24) 3,159,045.98 (47,588,041.77)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 96,922,460.00 96,922,460.00 0.00 96,991,460.00 69,000.00 0.1%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 96,922,460.00 96,922,460.00 0.00 96,991,460.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (12,194,179.24) (12,194,179.24) 3,159,045.98 49,403,418.23

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 44,818,264.37 44,818,264.37 44,818,264.37 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 44,818,264.37 44,818,264.37 44,818,264.37

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +
F1d) 44,818,264.37 44,818,264.37 44,818,264.37

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 32,624,085.13 32,624,085.13 94,221,682.60

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 32,624,362.23 32,624,362.23 94,221,682.60

Page 46 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 10 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 (277.10) (277.10) 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Timber Y ield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 2,251,179.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 2,251,179.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 7,865,846.00 7,865,846.00 0.00 9,506,070.55 1,640,224.55 20.9%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 934,534.28 934,534.28 0.00 3,089,380.03 2,154,845.75 230.6%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 47 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 11 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Forest Reserv e Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal
Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 20,291,091.00 20,291,091.00 5,383,188.03 25,441,925.00 5,150,834.00 25.4%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290 1,800,345.00 1,800,345.00 129,346.26 2,493,225.60 692,880.60 38.5%

Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 99,580.37 99,580.37 99,580.37 New

Title III, Part A, English Learner Program 4203 8290 883,701.00 883,701.00 409,099.14 1,792,800.14 909,099.14 102.9%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other NCLB / Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,
3061, 3110,
3150, 3155,
3180, 3182,
4037, 4123,
4124, 4126,
4127, 4128,

5630

8290

4,151,053.16 4,151,053.16 178,417.17 8,602,643.33 4,451,590.17 107.2%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 541,738.00 541,738.00 27,858.93 541,738.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 55,152,258.43 55,152,258.43 15,203,962.47 115,200,465.50 60,048,207.07 108.9%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 91,620,566.87 91,620,566.87 21,431,452.37 166,767,828.52 75,147,261.65 82.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 34,205,802.00 34,205,802.00 9,752,118.00 34,205,802.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 2,599,137.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior
Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 2,353,195.00 2,353,195.00 571,801.62 2,353,195.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State
Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 9,160,217.43 9,160,217.43 4,116.27 9,163,646.92 3,429.49 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 722,686.95 722,686.95 2,474,400.37 2,472,230.37 1,749,543.42 242.1%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690,
6695 8590 382,423.54 382,423.54 (17,161.71) 382,423.54 0.00 0.0%

Page 48 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 12 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 30,337,533.79 30,337,533.79 14,745,576.85 138,345,254.96 108,007,721.17 356.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 77,161,858.71 77,161,858.71 30,129,988.40 186,922,552.79 109,760,694.08 142.2%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not
Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 64,623.02 64,623.02 New

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)
Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local
Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 2,348,651.42 2,348,651.42 2,024,876.62 2,633,127.71 284,476.29 12.1%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers Of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

Page 49 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 13 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 2,348,651.42 2,348,651.42 2,029,376.62 2,697,750.73 349,099.31 14.9%

TOTAL, REVENUES 173,382,256.00 173,382,256.00 53,590,817.39 358,639,311.04 185,257,055.04 106.8%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 40,087,936.94 40,087,936.94 7,549,420.88 40,648,588.70 (560,651.76) -1.4%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 10,345,836.04 10,345,836.04 1,862,384.05 9,939,084.76 406,751.28 3.9%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 4,725,575.60 4,725,575.60 1,509,184.00 5,034,052.15 (308,476.55) -6.5%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 10,687,563.10 10,687,563.10 1,905,087.84 11,284,450.85 (596,887.75) -5.6%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 65,846,911.68 65,846,911.68 12,826,076.77 66,906,176.46 (1,059,264.78) -1.6%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 9,832,415.92 9,832,415.92 1,648,025.28 10,293,891.84 (461,475.92) -4.7%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 10,507,843.53 10,507,843.53 2,507,871.44 9,962,834.63 545,008.90 5.2%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 5,743,814.70 5,743,814.70 1,509,325.36 6,109,892.95 (366,078.25) -6.4%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 3,723,467.87 3,723,467.87 1,076,906.69 3,842,218.76 (118,750.89) -3.2%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 1,809,240.85 1,809,240.85 533,509.80 2,346,796.56 (537,555.71) -29.7%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 31,616,782.87 31,616,782.87 7,275,638.57 32,555,634.74 (938,851.87) -3.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 39,100,923.15 39,100,923.15 2,235,968.22 39,730,035.76 (629,112.61) -1.6%

PERS 3201-3202 8,147,876.76 8,147,876.76 1,803,846.53 8,558,521.78 (410,645.02) -5.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 4,309,976.37 4,309,976.37 749,163.21 4,374,272.29 (64,295.92) -1.5%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 28,271,362.32 28,271,362.32 5,258,827.48 28,738,705.70 (467,343.38) -1.7%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 493,550.39 493,550.39 99,526.27 526,212.56 (32,662.17) -6.6%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 1,481,193.62 1,481,193.62 301,327.13 1,566,054.36 (84,860.74) -5.7%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 7,602,767.21 7,602,767.21 1,380,688.23 7,679,251.96 (76,484.75) -1.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 22,433.54 22,433.54 6,853.95 27,965.29 (5,531.75) -24.7%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 89,430,083.36 89,430,083.36 11,836,201.02 91,201,019.70 (1,770,936.34) -2.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 2,242,857.00 2,242,857.00 76,592.85 2,248,853.31 (5,996.31) -0.3%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 35,177.34 35,177.34 (12,380.16) 155,004.72 (119,827.38) -340.6%

Materials and Supplies 4300 11,875,722.27 11,875,722.27 803,002.66 34,835,712.90 (22,959,990.63) -193.3%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 7,172,258.39 7,172,258.39 852,610.38 7,459,036.15 (286,777.76) -4.0%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 21,326,015.00 21,326,015.00 1,719,825.73 44,698,607.08 (23,372,592.08) -109.6%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 46,413,077.17 46,413,077.17 4,641,884.69 95,099,394.76 (48,686,317.59) -104.9%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 332,275.57 332,275.57 94,271.32 637,085.66 (304,810.09) -91.7%

Dues and Memberships 5300 22,000.00 22,000.00 10,860.00 50,525.14 (28,525.14) -129.7%

Page 50 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 14 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 6,685.13 62,500.00 (62,500.00) New

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 574,075.00 574,075.00 175,445.99 806,377.88 (232,302.88) -40.5%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 448,065.48 448,065.48 7,823.65 454,119.78 (6,054.30) -1.4%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 (43,508.04) (43,508.04) 2,493.85 (14,162.64) (29,345.40) 67.4%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 13,994,964.27 13,994,964.27 4,019,101.53 30,345,485.93 (16,350,521.66) -116.8%

Communications 5900 49,567.55 49,567.55 1,061.38 48,871.33 696.22 1.4%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 61,790,517.00 61,790,517.00 8,959,627.54 127,490,197.84 (65,699,680.84) -106.3%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 4,583,333.33 4,583,333.33 5,796,383.72 21,687,935.89 (17,104,602.56) -373.2%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 1,678,775.64 14,167,149.77 (14,167,149.77) New

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 560,000.00 560,000.00 75,962.62 394,138.43 165,861.57 29.6%

Equipment Replacement 6500 256,917.94 256,917.94 102,678.54 102,678.54 154,239.40 60.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 5,400,251.27 5,400,251.27 7,653,800.52 36,351,902.63 (30,951,651.36) -573.2%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 51 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 15 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 7,088,334.06 7,088,334.06 160,601.26 7,023,814.36 64,519.70 0.9%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 7,088,334.06 7,088,334.06 160,601.26 7,023,814.36 64,519.70 0.9%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 282,498,895.24 282,498,895.24 50,431,771.41 406,227,352.81 (123,728,457.57) -43.8%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From: Bond Interest and

Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County
School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital
Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 96,922,460.00 96,922,460.00 0.00 96,991,460.00 69,000.00 0.1%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 96,922,460.00 96,922,460.00 0.00 96,991,460.00 69,000.00 0.1%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 96,922,460.00 96,922,460.00 0.00 96,991,460.00 (69,000.00) -0.1%

Page 52 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 16 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 456,323,702.00 456,323,702.00 102,123,016.84 484,296,652.00 27,972,950.00 6.1%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 91,620,566.87 91,620,566.87 21,431,452.37 166,767,828.52 75,147,261.65 82.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 133,686,718.71 133,686,718.71 31,140,903.51 197,867,969.79 64,181,251.08 48.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 8,258,945.85 8,258,945.85 3,338,084.72 8,355,045.36 96,099.51 1.2%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 689,889,933.43 689,889,933.43 158,033,457.44 857,287,495.67

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 242,978,511.62 242,978,511.62 47,506,273.74 242,079,517.45 898,994.17 0.4%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 70,677,912.40 70,677,912.40 18,824,064.67 72,367,180.70 (1,689,268.30) -2.4%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 215,767,199.85 215,767,199.85 38,490,013.11 214,707,024.73 1,060,175.12 0.5%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 29,337,531.25 29,337,531.25 2,311,808.70 59,600,092.59 (30,262,561.34) -103.2%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 85,526,262.19 85,526,262.19 17,393,569.92 153,194,400.06 (67,668,137.87) -79.1%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 5,429,251.27 5,429,251.27 7,859,201.75 36,613,256.37 (31,184,005.10) -574.4%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-7299
7400-7499 1,540,000.00 1,540,000.00 383,264.95 1,540,000.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs 7300-7399 (1,191,558.47) (1,191,558.47) (13,936.60) (1,371,464.56) 179,906.09 -15.1%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 650,065,110.11 650,065,110.11 132,754,260.24 778,730,007.34

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 -
B9) 39,824,823.32 39,824,823.32 25,279,197.20 78,557,488.33

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,116,902.00 (1,116,902.00) New

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 1,225,524.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 42,167,249.32 42,167,249.32 25,279,197.20 79,783,012.33

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 109,852,796.78 109,852,796.78 109,852,796.78 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 109,852,796.78 109,852,796.78 109,852,796.78

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c +
F1d) 109,852,796.78 109,852,796.78 109,852,796.78

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 152,020,046.10 152,020,046.10 189,635,809.11

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 225,000.00 225,000.00 225,000.00

Stores 9712 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 32,624,362.23 32,624,362.23 94,221,682.60

Page 53 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 17 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 41,439,681.00 41,439,681.00 36,325,135.00

Additional 3% Reserv e f or
Economic Uncertainty  per BP
3100

0000 9760
19,431,681.00

Prof essional Learning 0000 9760 3,100,000.00

History  /social Science and World
Language Textbook Adoption 0000 9760 13,000,000.00

Multi-Tiered Sy stems of  Support 0000 9760 400,000.00

EPOCH Anti-bias Anti-racist
prof essional learning 0000 9760 400,000.00

Communications 0000 9760 60,000.00

Summer School Programs 0000 9760 5,000,000.00

Transitional Kindergarten Support 0000 9760 48,000.00

History /Social Science and World
Language Textbook Adoption 0000 9760 13,000,000.00

3% Additional Reserv e f or
Economic Uncertainty  per BP3100 0000 9760 23,325,135.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 27,106,041.00 25,660,794.00 6,917,721.00

2021-22 Unsettled Negotiations 0000 9780 9,349,809.00

2022-23 Projected Def icit 0000 9780 1,881,433.00

2023-24 Projected Def icit 0000 9780 14,752,914.00

MAA 0000 9780 1,121,885.00

Unrestricted Site Programs 0000 9780 383,845.00

Supplemental / Concentration
Funding Increase 0000 9780 5,411,991.00

MAA 0000 9780 1,121,885.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 12,954,460.00 12,954,460.00 15,550,090.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 37,570,501.87 39,015,748.87 36,296,180.51

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 260,474,302.00 260,474,302.00 78,295,498.00 264,019,389.00 3,545,087.00 1.4%

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 89,031,028.00 89,031,028.00 26,448,083.00 103,830,832.00 14,799,804.00 16.6%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 (2,621,115.11) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 686,914.00 686,914.00 0.00 676,780.00 (10,134.00) -1.5%

Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

County  & District Taxes

Secured Roll Taxes 8041 83,423,477.00 83,423,477.00 0.00 90,638,481.00 7,215,004.00 8.6%

Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 2,441,088.00 2,441,088.00 (11.91) 2,922,607.00 481,519.00 19.7%

Prior Years' Taxes 8043 616,006.00 616,006.00 0.00 565,379.00 (50,627.00) -8.2%

Supplemental Taxes 8044 3,481,006.00 3,481,006.00 0.00 4,137,666.00 656,660.00 18.9%

Education Rev enue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) 8045 17,082,369.00 17,082,369.00 (8.20) 17,357,503.00 275,134.00 1.6%

Community  Redev elopment Funds (SB
617/699/1992) 8047 10,676,020.00 10,676,020.00 0.00 11,736,523.00 1,060,503.00 9.9%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 54 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 18 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)

Roy alties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 571.06 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Less: Non-LCFF

(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 467,912,210.00 467,912,210.00 102,123,016.84 495,885,160.00 27,972,950.00 6.0%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF

Transf ers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 (13,839,687.00) (13,839,687.00) 0.00 (13,839,687.00) 0.00 0.0%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 2,251,179.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 2,251,179.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 456,323,702.00 456,323,702.00 102,123,016.84 484,296,652.00 27,972,950.00 6.1%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 7,865,846.00 7,865,846.00 0.00 9,506,070.55 1,640,224.55 20.9%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 934,534.28 934,534.28 0.00 3,089,380.03 2,154,845.75 230.6%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Forest Reserv e Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Wildlif e Reserv e Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom Federal
Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 20,291,091.00 20,291,091.00 5,383,188.03 25,441,925.00 5,150,834.00 25.4%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290 1,800,345.00 1,800,345.00 129,346.26 2,493,225.60 692,880.60 38.5%

Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 99,580.37 99,580.37 99,580.37 New

Title III, Part A, English Learner Program 4203 8290 883,701.00 883,701.00 409,099.14 1,792,800.14 909,099.14 102.9%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other NCLB / Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040, 3060,
3061, 3110,
3150, 3155,
3180, 3182,
4037, 4123,
4124, 4126,
4127, 4128,

5630

8290

4,151,053.16 4,151,053.16 178,417.17 8,602,643.33 4,451,590.17 107.2%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 541,738.00 541,738.00 27,858.93 541,738.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 55,152,258.43 55,152,258.43 15,203,962.47 115,200,465.50 60,048,207.07 108.9%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 91,620,566.87 91,620,566.87 21,431,452.37 166,767,828.52 75,147,261.65 82.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

ROC/P Entitlement

Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 55 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 19 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 34,205,802.00 34,205,802.00 9,752,118.00 34,205,802.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 2,599,137.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior
Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 1,459,531.00 1,459,531.00 0.00 1,459,531.00 0.00 0.0%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 8,254,284.00 8,254,284.00 1,582,716.73 8,254,284.00 0.00 0.0%

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State
Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 9,160,217.43 9,160,217.43 4,116.27 9,163,646.92 3,429.49 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 722,686.95 722,686.95 2,474,400.37 2,472,230.37 1,749,543.42 242.1%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690,
6695 8590 382,423.54 382,423.54 (17,161.71) 382,423.54 0.00 0.0%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

American Indian Early  Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 79,501,773.79 79,501,773.79 14,745,576.85 141,930,051.96 62,428,278.17 78.5%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 133,686,718.71 133,686,718.71 31,140,903.51 197,867,969.79 64,181,251.08 48.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Other Local Rev enue

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not
Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 85,876.00 85,876.00 5,655.00 85,876.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 1,866,081.00 1,866,081.00 485,685.28 1,956,563.00 90,482.00 4.8%

Interest 8660 1,250,000.00 1,250,000.00 0.00 1,250,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 56 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 20 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value
of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 1,968,490.00 1,968,490.00 40,244.75 1,968,490.00 0.00 0.0%

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%)
Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues From Local
Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 3,088,498.85 3,088,498.85 2,806,499.69 3,094,116.36 5,617.51 0.2%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers Of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 8,258,945.85 8,258,945.85 3,338,084.72 8,355,045.36 96,099.51 1.2%

TOTAL, REVENUES 689,889,933.43 689,889,933.43 158,033,457.44 857,287,495.67 167,397,562.24 24.3%

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 187,780,387.31 187,780,387.31 35,205,609.59 186,000,899.33 1,779,487.98 0.9%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 21,314,176.82 21,314,176.82 3,925,664.50 21,462,421.10 (148,244.28) -0.7%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 21,931,167.51 21,931,167.51 6,377,870.54 22,022,376.80 (91,209.29) -0.4%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 11,952,779.98 11,952,779.98 1,997,129.11 12,593,820.22 (641,040.24) -5.4%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 242,978,511.62 242,978,511.62 47,506,273.74 242,079,517.45 898,994.17 0.4%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 10,783,394.86 10,783,394.86 1,819,131.86 11,222,655.87 (439,261.01) -4.1%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 25,886,284.55 25,886,284.55 7,302,385.69 26,636,083.15 (749,798.60) -2.9%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 11,570,260.95 11,570,260.95 3,125,224.11 11,626,867.24 (56,606.29) -0.5%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 18,686,219.35 18,686,219.35 5,636,573.05 18,583,342.67 102,876.68 0.6%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 3,751,752.69 3,751,752.69 940,749.96 4,298,231.77 (546,479.08) -14.6%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 70,677,912.40 70,677,912.40 18,824,064.67 72,367,180.70 (1,689,268.30) -2.4%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 72,118,960.93 72,118,960.93 8,515,399.91 72,391,905.22 (272,944.29) -0.4%

Page 57 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 21 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

PERS 3201-3202 18,200,973.71 18,200,973.71 4,537,839.92 18,699,133.62 (498,159.91) -2.7%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 10,681,426.96 10,681,426.96 2,143,332.03 10,737,014.42 (55,587.46) -0.5%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 85,869,537.80 85,869,537.80 17,352,261.88 84,235,142.27 1,634,395.53 1.9%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 1,562,881.39 1,562,881.39 329,338.36 1,589,336.34 (26,454.95) -1.7%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 4,693,650.95 4,693,650.95 994,858.40 4,759,801.26 (66,150.31) -1.4%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 22,561,105.57 22,561,105.57 4,594,878.61 22,210,006.79 351,098.78 1.6%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 78,662.54 78,662.54 22,104.00 84,684.81 (6,022.27) -7.7%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 215,767,199.85 215,767,199.85 38,490,013.11 214,707,024.73 1,060,175.12 0.5%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 2,277,335.00 2,277,335.00 74,685.73 6,473,429.72 (4,196,094.72) -184.3%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 139,601.11 139,601.11 (12,055.88) 260,009.20 (120,408.09) -86.3%

Materials and Supplies 4300 19,289,082.76 19,289,082.76 1,342,067.01 44,881,232.21 (25,592,149.45) -132.7%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 7,631,512.38 7,631,512.38 907,111.84 7,985,421.46 (353,909.08) -4.6%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 29,337,531.25 29,337,531.25 2,311,808.70 59,600,092.59 (30,262,561.34) -103.2%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 47,105,000.97 47,105,000.97 5,196,782.50 95,900,676.82 (48,795,675.85) -103.6%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 576,889.57 576,889.57 124,564.44 918,046.04 (341,156.47) -59.1%

Dues and Memberships 5300 169,365.00 169,365.00 144,835.24 239,139.55 (69,774.55) -41.2%

Insurance 5400-5450 2,020,000.00 2,020,000.00 886,952.79 1,565,977.00 454,023.00 22.5%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 9,745,816.35 9,745,816.35 3,426,153.39 9,808,853.00 (63,036.65) -0.6%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 1,844,732.99 1,844,732.99 406,118.60 2,227,115.46 (382,382.47) -20.7%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 (2,024,564.75) (2,024,564.75) (10,262.71) (2,022,759.93) (1,804.82) 0.1%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 24,888,306.05 24,888,306.05 6,681,687.08 42,814,211.69 (17,925,905.64) -72.0%

Communications 5900 1,200,716.01 1,200,716.01 536,738.59 1,743,140.43 (542,424.42) -45.2%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 85,526,262.19 85,526,262.19 17,393,569.92 153,194,400.06 (67,668,137.87) -79.1%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 4,583,333.33 4,583,333.33 5,878,049.32 21,804,443.62 (17,221,110.29) -375.7%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 1,726,974.27 14,198,856.77 (14,198,856.77) New

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 562,000.00 562,000.00 148,292.68 450,277.44 111,722.56 19.9%

Equipment Replacement 6500 283,917.94 283,917.94 105,885.48 159,678.54 124,239.40 43.8%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 5,429,251.27 5,429,251.27 7,859,201.75 36,613,256.37 (31,184,005.10) -574.4%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict

Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Special Schools 7130 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Page 58 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 22 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 381,158.00 1,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education SELPA Transf ers of
Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

ROC/P Transf ers of  Apportionments

To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 2,106.95 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 1,540,000.00 1,540,000.00 383,264.95 1,540,000.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 (1,191,558.47) (1,191,558.47) (13,936.60) (1,371,464.56) 179,906.09 -15.1%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS (1,191,558.47) (1,191,558.47) (13,936.60) (1,371,464.56) 179,906.09 -15.1%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 650,065,110.11 650,065,110.11 132,754,260.24 778,730,007.34 (128,664,897.23) -19.8%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: Special Reserv e Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From: Bond Interest and

Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: Child Dev elopment Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Special Reserv e Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: State School Building Fund/ County
School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To: Caf eteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,116,902.00 (1,116,902.00) New

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,116,902.00 (1,116,902.00) New

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

State Apportionments

Emergency  Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 59 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 23 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget

(A)

Board
Approved
Operating

Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals

(D)

Difference (Col
B & D)

(E)

% Diff
Column B &

D
(F)

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital
Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (a - b + c - d + e) 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 1,225,524.00 1,116,902.00 47.7%

Page 60 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ai, Version 2 Page 24 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified General Fund Form 01I
Sacramento County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description 2022-23
Projected Totals

6266 Educator Ef f ectiv eness, FY 2021-22 6,877,622.82

6300 Lottery : Instructional Materials 2,194,132.66

6371 CalWORKs f or ROCP or Adult Education 11,331.00

6547 Special Education Early  Interv ention Preschool Grant 1,489,972.00

6762 Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary  Block
Grant 21,762,477.00

7028 Child Nutrition: Kitchen Inf rastructure Upgrade Funds 1,169,808.00

7029 Child Nutrition: Food Serv ice Staf f  Training Funds 420,236.45

7311 Classif ied School Employ ee Prof essional Dev elopment Block
Grant 195,558.31

7388 SB 117 COVID-19 LEA Response Funds 142,872.01

7412 A-G Access/Success Grant 2,307,790.00

7413 A-G Learning Loss Mitigation Grant 865,181.00

7435 Learning Recov ery  Emergency  Block Grant 51,605,064.00

7810 Other Restricted State 1,305.00

8150 Ongoing & Major Maintenance Account (RMA: Education Code
Section 17070.75) 1,877,728.27

9010 Other Restricted Local 3,300,604.08

Total, Restricted Balance 94,221,682.60

Page 61 of 134



 
 
 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 

 
Special Revenue Funds Definition 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  This classification includes the Student Activity 
Fund, Charter Schools Fund, Adult Education Fund, Child Development Fund, and Cafeteria Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 62 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Fi, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Student Activity Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 08I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget  (A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget  (B)

Actuals
To
Date 
(C)

Projected
Year Totals 
(D)

Difference 
(Col B &
D)  (E)

% Diff 
Column 
B & D 
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-
8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-
4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-
5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-
6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect 7100-
7299,

Costs) 7400-
7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-
7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-
8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-
7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-
8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-
7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-
8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02 0.00 0.0%

Page 63 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Fi, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Student Activity Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 08I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget  (A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget  (B)

Actuals
To
Date 
(C)

Projected
Year Totals 
(D)

Difference 
(Col B &
D)  (E)

% Diff 
Column 
B & D 
(F)

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02 1,447,941.02

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

REVENUES

Sale of  Equipment and Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-
3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-
3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 64 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Fi, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Student Activity Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 08I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget  (A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget  (B)

Actuals
To
Date 
(C)

Projected
Year Totals 
(D)

Difference 
(Col B &
D)  (E)

% Diff 
Column 
B & D 
(F)

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-
3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-
3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-
3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-
3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-
3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-
3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-
3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-
5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and

Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Page 65 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Fi, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Student Activity Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 08I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget  (A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget  (B)

Actuals
To
Date 
(C)

Projected
Year Totals 
(D)

Difference 
(Col B &
D)  (E)

% Diff 
Column 
B & D 
(F)

Proceeds f rom Disposal of  Capital Assets 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 66 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Fi, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Student Activity Special Revenue Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 08I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

8210
Student
Activ ity
Funds 1,447,941.02

Total, Restricted Balance 1,447,941.02

Page 67 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 18,954,726.00 18,954,726.00 3,919,984.00 17,917,959.00 (1,036,767.00) -5.5%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 557,413.99 557,413.99 (205,129.76) 783,137.64 225,723.65 40.5%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 3,699,656.45 3,699,656.45 896,761.08 6,834,578.27 3,134,921.82 84.7%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 44,938.59 40,649.04 40,649.04 New

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 23,211,796.44 23,211,796.44 4,656,553.91 25,576,323.95

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 8,275,723.81 8,275,723.81 1,681,571.44 7,625,625.04 650,098.77 7.9%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 1,052,722.55 1,052,722.55 278,365.89 1,188,597.24 (135,874.69) -12.9%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 6,366,535.36 6,366,535.36 1,089,044.00 6,082,417.35 284,118.01 4.5%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 387,278.03 387,278.03 125,990.55 4,337,005.68 (3,949,727.65) -1,019.9%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 2,429,685.76 2,429,685.76 108,951.58 2,936,416.14 (506,730.38) -20.9%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 1,834.12 759.48 (759.48) New

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 2,804.13 2,804.13 148.58 138,334.23 (135,530.10) -4,833.2%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 18,514,749.64 18,514,749.64 3,285,906.16 22,309,155.16

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 4,697,046.80 4,697,046.80 1,370,647.75 3,267,168.79

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 116,902.00 116,902.00 New

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES (2,342,426.00) (2,342,426.00) 0.00 (2,225,524.00)

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 2,354,620.80 2,354,620.80 1,370,647.75 1,041,644.79

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 9,347,446.34 9,347,446.34 9,347,446.34 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 9,347,446.34 9,347,446.34 9,347,446.34

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 9,347,446.34 9,347,446.34 9,347,446.34

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 11,702,067.14 11,702,067.14 10,389,091.13

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 68 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

b) Restricted 9740 3,200,826.59 3,200,826.59 4,046,180.25

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 8,501,240.55 8,501,240.55 6,342,910.88

Charter School Fund 0000 9780 6,180,326.35

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

Principal Apportionment

State Aid - Current Year 8011 11,470,247.00 11,470,247.00 3,218,594.00 10,874,042.00 (596,205.00) -5.2%

Education Protection Account State Aid -
Current Year 8012 3,700,282.00 3,700,282.00 962,927.00 3,478,581.00 (221,701.00) -6.0%

State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 (261,537.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF Transf ers

Unrestricted LCFF Transf ers - Current
Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other LCFF Transf ers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers to Charter Schools in Lieu of
Property  Taxes 8096 3,784,197.00 3,784,197.00 0.00 3,565,336.00 (218,861.00) -5.8%

Property  Taxes Transf ers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior
Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 18,954,726.00 18,954,726.00 3,919,984.00 17,917,959.00 (1,036,767.00) -5.5%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Special Education Discretionary  Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 302,879.00 302,879.00 0.00 334,090.00 31,211.00 10.3%

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title II, Part A, Supporting Ef f ectiv e
Instruction 4035 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, Part A, Immigrant Student Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title III, Part A, English Learner Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Charter Schools Grant Program
(PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 69 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Other NCLB / Ev ery  Student Succeeds Act

3040,
3060,
3061,
3150,
3155,
3180,
3182,
4037,
4124,
4126,
4127,
4128,
5630

8290

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 254,534.99 254,534.99 (205,129.76) 449,047.64 194,512.65 76.4%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 557,413.99 557,413.99 (205,129.76) 783,137.64 225,723.65 40.5%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

Special Education Master Plan

Current Year 6500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Current
Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior
Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 47,199.00 47,199.00 0.00 47,199.00 0.00 0.0%

Lottery  - Unrestricted and Instructional
Materials 8560 345,027.00 345,027.00 10,640.81 345,027.00 0.00 0.0%

Af ter School Education and Saf ety  (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Charter School Facility  Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6690,
6695 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Calif ornia Clean Energy  Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career Technical Education Incentiv e Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 3,307,430.45 3,307,430.45 886,120.27 6,442,352.27 3,134,921.82 94.8%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 3,699,656.45 3,699,656.45 896,761.08 6,834,578.27 3,134,921.82 84.7%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sale of  Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 339.72 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Child Dev elopment Parent Fees 8673 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transportation Fees From Indiv iduals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 70 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 44,598.87 40,649.04 40,649.04 New

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Apportionments

Special Education SELPA Transf ers

From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers of  Apportionments

From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From County  Of f ices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 44,938.59 40,649.04 40,649.04 New

TOTAL, REVENUES 23,211,796.44 23,211,796.44 4,656,553.91 25,576,323.95

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 7,109,327.93 7,109,327.93 1,428,682.95 6,546,622.25 562,705.68 7.9%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 290,922.67 290,922.67 43,838.74 290,922.67 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 858,663.21 858,663.21 194,387.77 758,264.12 100,399.09 11.7%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 16,810.00 16,810.00 14,661.98 29,816.00 (13,006.00) -77.4%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 8,275,723.81 8,275,723.81 1,681,571.44 7,625,625.04 650,098.77 7.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 201,346.37 201,346.37 25,906.28 327,754.80 (126,408.43) -62.8%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 331,955.37 331,955.37 113,465.83 331,955.37 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 406,768.55 406,768.55 112,745.14 416,234.81 (9,466.26) -2.3%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 112,652.26 112,652.26 26,248.64 112,652.26 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,052,722.55 1,052,722.55 278,365.89 1,188,597.24 (135,874.69) -12.9%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 2,401,711.28 2,401,711.28 302,314.75 2,278,646.75 123,064.53 5.1%

PERS 3201-3202 255,305.23 255,305.23 69,657.65 260,066.43 (4,761.20) -1.9%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 226,238.28 226,238.28 48,360.65 217,847.90 8,390.38 3.7%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 2,586,409.00 2,586,409.00 491,014.56 2,470,473.94 115,935.06 4.5%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 46,589.08 46,589.08 9,767.62 43,203.46 3,385.62 7.3%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 140,307.04 140,307.04 29,399.07 130,378.49 9,928.55 7.1%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 707,582.28 707,582.28 137,977.89 679,557.87 28,024.41 4.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 2,393.17 2,393.17 551.81 2,242.51 150.66 6.3%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 6,366,535.36 6,366,535.36 1,089,044.00 6,082,417.35 284,118.01 4.5%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 108,096.00 108,096.00 570.00 215,018.97 (106,922.97) -98.9%

Page 71 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 2,789.00 2,789.00 0.00 2,789.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 276,393.03 276,393.03 113,451.00 4,040,432.75 (3,764,039.72) -1,361.8%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 11,969.55 78,764.96 (78,764.96) New

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 387,278.03 387,278.03 125,990.55 4,337,005.68 (3,949,727.65) -1,019.9%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 149,394.57 (149,394.57) New

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 422,902.00 422,902.00 101,911.80 412,827.00 10,075.00 2.4%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 13,469.00 13,469.00 0.00 17,020.50 (3,551.50) -26.4%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 1,931,483.00 1,931,483.00 2,850.57 1,932,164.73 (681.73) 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and

Operating Expenditures 5800 57,468.76 57,468.76 4,189.21 417,524.34 (360,055.58) -626.5%

Communications 5900 4,363.00 4,363.00 0.00 7,485.00 (3,122.00) -71.6%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 2,429,685.76 2,429,685.76 108,951.58 2,936,416.14 (506,730.38) -20.9%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 1,834.12 759.48 (759.48) New

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 1,834.12 759.48 (759.48) New

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Tuition

Tuition f or Instruction Under Interdistrict
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit
Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers Out

All Other Transf ers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 72 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 2,804.13 2,804.13 148.58 138,334.23 (135,530.10) -4,833.2%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 2,804.13 2,804.13 148.58 138,334.23 (135,530.10) -4,833.2%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 18,514,749.64 18,514,749.64 3,285,906.16 22,309,155.16

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 116,902.00 116,902.00 New

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 116,902.00 116,902.00 New

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 2,342,426.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 2,342,426.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) (2,342,426.00) (2,342,426.00) 0.00 (2,225,524.00)

Page 73 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 7 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 09I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

6230

Calif ornia
Clean
Energy  Jobs
Act 641,572.85

6300
Lottery :
Instructional
Materials 272,691.29

6762

Arts, Music,
and
Instructional
Materials
Discretionary
Block Grant 1,001,806.00

7435

Learning
Recov ery
Emergency
Block Grant 1,997,746.00

9010
Other
Restricted
Local 132,364.11

Total, Restricted Balance 4,046,180.25

Page 74 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Adult Education Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 11I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 857,470.40 857,470.40 100,902.54 885,540.40 28,070.00 3.3%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 1,971,330.83 1,971,330.83 606,770.23 2,006,401.00 35,070.17 1.8%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 3,060,615.00 3,060,615.00 366,363.79 3,062,210.68 1,595.68 0.1%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 5,889,416.23 5,889,416.23 1,074,036.56 5,954,152.08

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 1,675,736.42 1,675,736.42 556,050.23 1,728,313.44 (52,577.02) -3.1%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 1,254,489.83 1,254,489.83 401,786.96 1,233,528.56 20,961.27 1.7%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 2,248,155.23 2,248,155.23 549,817.81 2,084,414.20 163,741.03 7.3%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 154,511.69 154,511.69 59,140.14 182,108.36 (27,596.67) -17.9%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 497,955.05 497,955.05 146,709.06 668,443.02 (170,487.97) -34.2%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 58,568.01 58,568.01 13,788.02 57,908.20 659.81 1.1%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 5,889,416.23 5,889,416.23 1,727,292.22 5,954,715.78

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (653,255.66) (563.70)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 New

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (653,255.66) 999,436.30

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21 2,383,773.51

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 1,384,337.21 1,384,337.21 1,383,773.51

c) Committed

Page 75 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Adult Education Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 11I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00

Adult Education Fund 0000 9780 1,000,000.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

LCFF SOURCES

LCFF Transf ers

LCFF Transf ers - Current Year 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

LCFF/Rev enue Limit Transf ers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

FEDERAL REVENUE

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues From Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Career and Technical Education 3500-3599 8290 210,000.00 210,000.00 (528.60) 231,000.00 21,000.00 10.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 647,470.40 647,470.40 101,431.14 654,540.40 7,070.00 1.1%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 857,470.40 857,470.40 100,902.54 885,540.40 28,070.00 3.3%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Other State Apportionments

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Adult Education Program 6391 8590 1,384,913.83 1,384,913.83 304,432.23 1,419,984.00 35,070.17 2.5%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 586,417.00 586,417.00 302,338.00 586,417.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 1,971,330.83 1,971,330.83 606,770.23 2,006,401.00 35,070.17 1.8%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 (4,042.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Adult Education Fees 8671 1,600,000.00 1,600,000.00 518,445.32 1,600,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 1,460,615.00 1,460,615.00 (148,039.53) 1,462,210.68 1,595.68 0.1%

Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,060,615.00 3,060,615.00 366,363.79 3,062,210.68 1,595.68 0.1%

TOTAL, REVENUES 5,889,416.23 5,889,416.23 1,074,036.56 5,954,152.08

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,286,952.66 1,286,952.66 426,538.81 1,325,291.46 (38,338.80) -3.0%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 108,360.02 108,360.02 36,154.38 122,950.86 (14,590.84) -13.5%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 280,423.74 280,423.74 93,357.04 280,071.12 352.62 0.1%

Page 76 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Adult Education Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 11I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1,675,736.42 1,675,736.42 556,050.23 1,728,313.44 (52,577.02) -3.1%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 163,012.52 163,012.52 49,863.41 165,378.61 (2,366.09) -1.5%

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 503,378.52 503,378.52 165,314.71 500,213.35 3,165.17 0.6%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 229,186.87 229,186.87 75,445.36 229,009.51 177.36 0.1%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 337,911.92 337,911.92 109,574.91 297,855.12 40,056.80 11.9%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 21,000.00 21,000.00 1,588.57 41,071.97 (20,071.97) -95.6%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 1,254,489.83 1,254,489.83 401,786.96 1,233,528.56 20,961.27 1.7%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 521,717.29 521,717.29 101,999.83 523,973.84 (2,256.55) -0.4%

PERS 3201-3202 284,068.23 284,068.23 88,473.45 272,646.02 11,422.21 4.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 114,824.88 114,824.88 36,144.77 115,165.94 (341.06) -0.3%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 995,411.59 995,411.59 238,542.31 859,310.47 136,101.12 13.7%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 14,509.41 14,509.41 4,759.61 14,967.45 (458.04) -3.2%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 43,953.63 43,953.63 14,367.62 46,055.94 (2,102.31) -4.8%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 272,700.00 272,700.00 65,217.60 251,282.40 21,417.60 7.9%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 970.20 970.20 312.62 1,012.14 (41.94) -4.3%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,248,155.23 2,248,155.23 549,817.81 2,084,414.20 163,741.03 7.3%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 2,500.50 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 154,511.69 154,511.69 23,933.53 155,748.36 (1,236.67) -0.8%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 32,706.11 26,360.00 (26,360.00) New

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 154,511.69 154,511.69 59,140.14 182,108.36 (27,596.67) -17.9%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 7,032.00 69,979.36 (69,979.36) New

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 1,955.36 1,955.36 48.09 7,265.91 (5,310.55) -271.6%

Dues and Memberships 5300 3,500.00 3,500.00 5,410.00 5,500.00 (2,000.00) -57.1%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 384,000.00 384,000.00 95,604.99 314,020.64 69,979.36 18.2%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 9,560.00 9,560.00 0.00 35,560.00 (26,000.00) -272.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 141.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and

Operating Expenditures 5800 97,719.69 97,719.69 38,472.98 234,897.11 (137,177.42) -140.4%

Communications 5900 1,220.00 1,220.00 0.00 1,220.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 497,955.05 497,955.05 146,709.06 668,443.02 (170,487.97) -34.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 77 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Adult Education Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 11I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect
Costs)

Tuition

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Def icit Pay ments

Pay ments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to County  Of f ices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pay ments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Transf ers Out

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT
COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 58,568.01 58,568.01 13,788.02 57,908.20 659.81 1.1%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 58,568.01 58,568.01 13,788.02 57,908.20 659.81 1.1%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 5,889,416.23 5,889,416.23 1,727,292.22 5,954,715.78

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 New

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 New

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County  School
Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 78 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Adult Education Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 11I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00

Page 79 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Adult Education Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 11I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

6391
Adult
Education
Program 132,785.66

9010
Other
Restricted
Local 1,250,987.85

Total, Restricted Balance 1,383,773.51

Page 80 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 12I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 6,228,346.02 6,228,346.02 601,810.42 6,699,709.47 471,363.45 7.6%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 6,148,992.00 6,148,992.00 2,934,615.96 8,513,794.44 2,364,802.44 38.5%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 626,850.00 626,850.00 248,470.14 626,850.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 13,004,188.02 13,004,188.02 3,784,896.52 15,840,353.91

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 3,606,213.55 3,606,213.55 905,254.77 3,747,799.49 (141,585.94) -3.9%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 2,358,963.72 2,358,963.72 625,496.57 2,669,288.82 (310,325.10) -13.2%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 5,381,074.85 5,381,074.85 1,098,104.09 5,737,286.44 (356,211.59) -6.6%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 860,955.57 860,955.57 55,590.38 3,579,598.10 (2,718,642.53) -315.8%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 366,041.70 366,041.70 76,504.26 201,636.51 164,405.19 44.9%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 430,938.63 430,938.63 0.00 482,310.43 (51,371.80) -11.9%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 13,004,188.02 13,004,188.02 2,760,950.07 16,417,919.79

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 1,023,946.45 (577,565.88)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 1,023,946.45 (577,565.88)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 880,662.59 880,662.59 880,662.59 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 880,662.59 880,662.59 880,662.59

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 880,662.59 880,662.59 880,662.59

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 880,662.59 880,662.59 303,096.71

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted 9740 674,155.84 674,155.84 112,445.29

Page 81 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 12I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 206,506.75 206,506.75 190,651.42

Child Dev elopment Fund 0000 9780 190,651.42

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Title I, Part A, Basic 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue All Other 8290 6,228,346.02 6,228,346.02 601,810.42 6,699,709.47 471,363.45 7.6%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 6,228,346.02 6,228,346.02 601,810.42 6,699,709.47 471,363.45 7.6%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Child Dev elopment Apportionments 8530 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

State Preschool 6105 8590 5,803,317.00 5,803,317.00 2,487,978.55 7,677,620.70 1,874,303.70 32.3%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 345,675.00 345,675.00 446,637.41 836,173.74 490,498.74 141.9%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 6,148,992.00 6,148,992.00 2,934,615.96 8,513,794.44 2,364,802.44 38.5%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 23.08 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Child Dev elopment Parent Fees 8673 100,000.00 100,000.00 196,754.10 100,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 526,850.00 526,850.00 51,692.96 526,850.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 626,850.00 626,850.00 248,470.14 626,850.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 13,004,188.02 13,004,188.02 3,784,896.52 15,840,353.91

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Teachers' Salaries 1100 2,898,028.94 2,898,028.94 685,128.94 3,055,868.55 (157,839.61) -5.4%

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 224,745.21 224,745.21 59,912.32 232,695.51 (7,950.30) -3.5%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 483,439.40 483,439.40 159,618.51 458,876.11 24,563.29 5.1%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 595.00 359.32 (359.32) New

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 3,606,213.55 3,606,213.55 905,254.77 3,747,799.49 (141,585.94) -3.9%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Instructional Salaries 2100 1,185,316.63 1,185,316.63 254,807.46 1,193,674.66 (8,358.03) -0.7%

Page 82 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 12I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 633,430.29 633,430.29 155,996.37 764,429.79 (130,999.50) -20.7%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 20,068.50 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 502,477.27 502,477.27 194,426.67 599,477.30 (97,000.03) -19.3%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 37,739.53 37,739.53 197.57 111,707.07 (73,967.54) -196.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,358,963.72 2,358,963.72 625,496.57 2,669,288.82 (310,325.10) -13.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 925,444.82 925,444.82 140,783.23 956,725.52 (31,280.70) -3.4%

PERS 3201-3202 682,661.21 682,661.21 182,946.40 779,018.89 (96,357.68) -14.1%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 333,242.76 333,242.76 69,214.16 353,427.25 (20,184.49) -6.1%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 2,655,733.11 2,655,733.11 542,966.28 2,815,324.48 (159,591.37) -6.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 28,818.66 28,818.66 7,631.37 32,043.72 (3,225.06) -11.2%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 89,578.73 89,578.73 22,961.13 99,049.13 (9,470.40) -10.6%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 664,433.96 664,433.96 131,099.86 699,807.98 (35,374.02) -5.3%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 1,161.60 1,161.60 501.66 1,889.47 (727.87) -62.7%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 5,381,074.85 5,381,074.85 1,098,104.09 5,737,286.44 (356,211.59) -6.6%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula
Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 749,772.89 749,772.89 53,115.62 3,535,914.70 (2,786,141.81) -371.6%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 111,182.68 111,182.68 2,474.76 43,683.40 67,499.28 60.7%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 860,955.57 860,955.57 55,590.38 3,579,598.10 (2,718,642.53) -315.8%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 10,535.98 10,535.98 1,176.75 9,476.62 1,059.36 10.1%

Dues and Memberships 5300 400.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 100.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 14,100.00 14,100.00 3,366.06 17,159.45 (3,059.45) -21.7%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 23,330.00 23,330.00 0.00 22,370.00 960.00 4.1%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 42,081.75 42,081.75 3,335.57 10,594.03 31,487.72 74.8%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and

Operating Expenditures 5800 274,284.28 274,284.28 68,625.88 141,902.72 132,381.56 48.3%

Communications 5900 1,309.69 1,309.69 0.00 133.69 1,176.00 89.8%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 366,041.70 366,041.70 76,504.26 201,636.51 164,405.19 44.9%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 83 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 12I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Other Transf ers Out

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers
of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT
COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 430,938.63 430,938.63 0.00 482,310.43 (51,371.80) -11.9%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 430,938.63 430,938.63 0.00 482,310.43 (51,371.80) -11.9%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 13,004,188.02 13,004,188.02 2,760,950.07 16,417,919.79

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: General Fund 8911 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 84 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Child Development Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 12I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

6130

Child
Dev elopment:
Center-Based
Reserv e
Account 112,445.29

Total, Restricted Balance 112,445.29

Page 85 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 13I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 30,250,000.00 30,250,000.00 1,068,208.47 30,259,459.74 9,459.74 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 1,010,761.00 1,010,761.00 20,560.79 1,010,761.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 380,000.00 380,000.00 124,214.41 380,000.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 31,640,761.00 31,640,761.00 1,212,983.67 31,650,220.74

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 9,295,626.47 9,295,626.47 2,231,560.36 9,295,626.47 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 7,902,625.93 7,902,625.93 1,582,800.79 7,902,625.93 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 13,519,000.00 13,519,000.00 2,478,230.42 14,711,548.07 (1,192,548.07) -8.8%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 1,418,500.00 1,418,500.00 308,043.55 1,169,501.17 248,998.83 17.6%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 300,000.00 300,000.00 32,668.00 480,000.00 (180,000.00) -60.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 699,247.70 699,247.70 0.00 692,911.70 6,336.00 0.9%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 33,135,000.10 33,135,000.10 6,633,303.12 34,252,213.34

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (1,494,239.10) (1,494,239.10) (5,420,319.45) (2,601,992.60)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (1,494,239.10) (1,494,239.10) (5,420,319.45) (2,601,992.60)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 14,581,388.38 14,581,388.38 14,581,388.38 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 14,581,388.38 14,581,388.38 14,581,388.38

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 14,581,388.38 14,581,388.38 14,581,388.38

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 13,087,149.28 13,087,149.28 11,979,395.78

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 86 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 13I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

b) Restricted 9740 12,859,992.53 12,859,992.53 11,752,239.03

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 227,156.75 227,156.75 227,156.75

Caf eteria Fund 0000 9780 227,156.75

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 30,250,000.00 30,250,000.00 1,068,208.47 30,259,459.74 9,459.74 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 30,250,000.00 30,250,000.00 1,068,208.47 30,259,459.74 9,459.74 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 176.56 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue 8590 10,761.00 10,761.00 20,384.23 10,761.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 1,010,761.00 1,010,761.00 20,560.79 1,010,761.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 150,000.00 150,000.00 6,598.87 150,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 30,000.00 30,000.00 295.40 30,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Interagency  Serv ices 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 200,000.00 200,000.00 117,320.14 200,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 380,000.00 380,000.00 124,214.41 380,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 31,640,761.00 31,640,761.00 1,212,983.67 31,650,220.74

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 8,172,278.01 8,172,278.01 1,894,777.66 8,172,278.01 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 752,209.55 752,209.55 222,537.78 752,209.55 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 371,138.91 371,138.91 114,244.92 371,138.91 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 9,295,626.47 9,295,626.47 2,231,560.36 9,295,626.47 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 30,116.88 30,116.88 358.72 30,116.88 0.00 0.0%

Page 87 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 13I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

PERS 3201-3202 2,033,877.98 2,033,877.98 472,903.81 2,033,877.98 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 689,001.28 689,001.28 167,715.59 689,001.28 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 3,825,844.37 3,825,844.37 721,822.02 3,825,844.37 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 46,089.56 46,089.56 11,071.51 46,089.56 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 139,433.78 139,433.78 33,473.44 139,433.78 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 1,134,800.88 1,134,800.88 174,597.44 1,134,800.88 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 3,461.20 3,461.20 858.26 3,461.20 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 7,902,625.93 7,902,625.93 1,582,800.79 7,902,625.93 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 1,149,000.00 1,149,000.00 321,391.76 1,218,636.00 (69,636.00) -6.1%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 120,000.00 120,000.00 90,202.38 120,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Food 4700 12,250,000.00 12,250,000.00 2,066,636.28 13,372,912.07 (1,122,912.07) -9.2%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 13,519,000.00 13,519,000.00 2,478,230.42 14,711,548.07 (1,192,548.07) -8.8%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 19,000.00 19,000.00 133.06 19,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 205,000.00 205,000.00 4,807.60 180,000.00 25,000.00 12.2%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and
Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 92,000.00 92,000.00 36,173.06 134,000.00 (42,000.00) -45.7%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 51,000.00 51,000.00 (5,404.16) 43,001.17 7,998.83 15.7%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and

Operating Expenditures 5800 1,040,000.00 1,040,000.00 271,840.69 779,900.00 260,100.00 25.0%

Communications 5900 1,500.00 1,500.00 493.30 3,600.00 (2,100.00) -140.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,418,500.00 1,418,500.00 308,043.55 1,169,501.17 248,998.83 17.6%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 90,000.00 10,000.00 10.0%

Equipment 6400 200,000.00 200,000.00 32,668.00 390,000.00 (190,000.00) -95.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 300,000.00 300,000.00 32,668.00 480,000.00 (180,000.00) -60.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of
Indirect Costs)

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding
Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 699,247.70 699,247.70 0.00 692,911.70 6,336.00 0.9%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF
INDIRECT COSTS 699,247.70 699,247.70 0.00 692,911.70 6,336.00 0.9%

Page 88 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 13I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 33,135,000.10 33,135,000.10 6,633,303.12 34,252,213.34

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: General Fund 8916 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 89 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Bi, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 13I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

5310

Child Nutrition:
School Programs
(e.g., School
Lunch, School
Breakf ast, Milk,
Pregnant &
Lactating
Students) 1,214,110.17

5320

Child Nutrition:
Child Care Food
Program (CCFP)
Claims-Centers
and Family  Day
Care Homes
(Meal
Reimbursements) 1,222,601.64

5330

Child Nutrition:
Summer Food
Serv ice Program
Operations 9,295,267.39

5810 Other Restricted
Federal 5,814.00

7810 Other Restricted
State 14,428.51

9010 Other Restricted
Local 17.32

Total, Restricted Balance 11,752,239.03

Page 90 of 134



 
 
 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
 

 
Capital Projects Funds Definition 
 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources used for the acquisition or construction of 
capital facilities by the District.  This classification includes the Building Fund, Capital Facilities Funds., 
County School Fund, and Capital Project Fund for Blended Components Units. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 91 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 21I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 90,500.00 90,500.00 (124,849.88) 90,500.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 90,500.00 90,500.00 (124,849.88) 90,500.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 845,034.45 845,034.45 244,030.72 846,654.45 (1,620.00) -0.2%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 496,718.31 496,718.31 144,108.55 497,285.31 (567.00) -0.1%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 109.93 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating
Expenditures 5000-5999 500,000.00 500,000.00 472,975.51 2,501,241.48 (2,001,241.48) -400.2%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 54,715,000.00 54,715,000.00 10,902,075.81 83,517,576.05 (28,802,576.05) -52.6%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 56,556,752.76 56,556,752.76 11,763,300.52 87,362,757.29

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (56,466,252.76) (56,466,252.76) (11,888,150.40) (87,272,257.29)

D. OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 225,000,000.00 24,306,000.00 24,306,000.00 New

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 225,000,000.00 24,306,000.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
FUND BALANCE (C + D4) (56,466,252.76) (56,466,252.76) 213,111,849.60 (62,966,257.29)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 104,526,404.77 104,526,404.77 104,526,404.77 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 104,526,404.77 104,526,404.77 104,526,404.77

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c
+ F1d) 104,526,404.77 104,526,404.77 104,526,404.77

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 48,060,152.01 48,060,152.01 41,560,147.48

Components of  Ending Fund
Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 92 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 21I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally  Restricted Balance 9740 48,060,152.01 48,060,152.01 41,560,147.48

c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic
Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated
Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 90,500.00 90,500.00 (125,464.88) 90,500.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair
Value of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 615.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 93 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 21I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 90,500.00 90,500.00 (124,849.88) 90,500.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 90,500.00 90,500.00 (124,849.88) 90,500.00

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and
Administrators' Salaries 2300 438,138.88 438,138.88 133,027.29 438,138.88 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 406,895.57 406,895.57 111,003.43 406,895.57 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,620.00 (1,620.00) New

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 845,034.45 845,034.45 244,030.72 846,654.45 (1,620.00) -0.2%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 213,916.68 213,916.68 61,027.52 214,327.68 (411.00) -0.2%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 63,202.80 63,202.80 18,137.02 63,327.05 (124.25) -0.2%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 159,777.71 159,777.71 48,130.54 159,777.71 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 4,157.97 4,157.97 1,211.98 4,165.72 (7.75) -0.2%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 12,675.44 12,675.44 3,660.57 12,699.44 (24.00) -0.2%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 42,588.00 42,588.00 11,790.22 42,588.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 399.71 399.71 150.70 399.71 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 496,718.31 496,718.31 144,108.55 497,285.31 (567.00) -0.1%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 109.93 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 109.93 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping
Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and
Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and
Operating Expenditures 5800 500,000.00 500,000.00 472,975.51 2,501,241.48 (2,001,241.48) -400.2%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 500,000.00 500,000.00 472,975.51 2,501,241.48 (2,001,241.48) -400.2%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 8,988,568.62 36,929,276.25 (36,929,276.25) New

Buildings and Improv ements of
Buildings 6200 54,715,000.00 54,715,000.00 1,913,507.19 46,588,299.80 8,126,700.20 14.9%

Books and Media f or New School
Libraries or Major Expansion of  School
Libraries

6300
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.0%

Page 94 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 21I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 54,715,000.00 54,715,000.00 10,902,075.81 83,517,576.05 (28,802,576.05) -52.6%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers
of Indirect Costs)

Other Transf ers Out

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Repay ment of  State School Building
Fund Aid - Proceeds f rom Bonds 7435 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding
Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 56,556,752.76 56,556,752.76 11,763,300.52 87,362,757.29

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers
In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND
TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building
Fund/County  School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers
Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND
TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Sale of  Bonds 8951 0.00 0.00 225,000,000.00 24,306,000.00 24,306,000.00 New

Proceeds f rom Sale/Lease-
Purchase of  Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

County  School Building Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers f rom Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of
Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue
Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 225,000,000.00 24,306,000.00 24,306,000.00 New

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 95 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 21I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B & D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted
Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted
Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 225,000,000.00 24,306,000.00

Page 96 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 6 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Building Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 21I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

9010
Other
Restricted
Local 41,560,147.48

Total, Restricted Balance 41,560,147.48

Page 97 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Facilities Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 25I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 3,540,000.00 3,540,000.00 1,548,525.58 3,540,000.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,540,000.00 3,540,000.00 1,548,525.58 3,540,000.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 800,000.00 800,000.00 9,125.70 800,000.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 4,266.68 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 2,970,000.00 2,970,000.00 569,737.00 2,970,000.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 3,770,000.00 3,770,000.00 583,129.38 3,770,000.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (230,000.00) (230,000.00) 965,396.20 (230,000.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (230,000.00) (230,000.00) 965,396.20 (230,000.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 23,726,621.86 23,726,621.86 23,726,621.86 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 23,726,621.86 23,726,621.86 23,726,621.86

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 23,726,621.86 23,726,621.86 23,726,621.86

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 23,496,621.86 23,496,621.86 23,496,621.86

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally  Restricted Balance 9740 23,496,621.86 23,496,621.86 23,496,621.86

c) Committed

Page 98 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Facilities Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 25I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not Subject to
LCFF Deduction 8625 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 0.00 1,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 40,000.00 40,000.00 720.87 40,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

Mitigation/Dev eloper Fees 8681 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,547,804.71 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 3,540,000.00 3,540,000.00 1,548,525.58 3,540,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 3,540,000.00 3,540,000.00 1,548,525.58 3,540,000.00

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 99 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Facilities Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 25I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approv ed Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating
Expenditures 5800 800,000.00 800,000.00 9,125.70 800,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 800,000.00 800,000.00 9,125.70 800,000.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 4,266.68 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or
Major Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 4,266.68 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect
Costs)

Other Transf ers Out

Page 100 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Facilities Fund
Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 25I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 569,737.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 2,970,000.00 2,970,000.00 0.00 2,970,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs) 2,970,000.00 2,970,000.00 569,737.00 2,970,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 3,770,000.00 3,770,000.00 583,129.38 3,770,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County  School
Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Sale/Lease-Purchase of
Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 101 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Facilities Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 25I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

9010
Other
Restricted
Local 23,496,621.86

Total, Restricted Balance 23,496,621.86

Page 102 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 35I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs)
7100-

7299,7400-
7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND
USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C +
D4) 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 4,891.09 4,891.09 4,891.09 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 4,891.09 4,891.09 4,891.09

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 4,891.09 4,891.09 4,891.09

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 4,891.09 4,891.09 4,891.09

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally  Restricted Balance 9740 4,891.09 4,891.09 4,891.09

c) Committed

Page 103 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 35I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

All Other Federal Rev enue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

School Facilities Apportionments 8545 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Pass-Through Rev enues f rom State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 48.91 0.00

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 104 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 35I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or Major Expansion of
School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)

Other Transf ers Out

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

To: State School Building Fund/County  School Facilities Fund
From: All Other Funds 8913 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County  School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Page 105 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
County School Facilities Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 35I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Sale/Lease-Purchase of  Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 106 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
County School Facilities Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 35I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

7710
State School
Facilities
Projects 4,891.09

Total, Restricted Balance 4,891.09

Page 107 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 49I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 2,012,239.00 2,012,239.00 17.79 2,012,239.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,012,239.00 2,012,239.00 17.79 2,012,239.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 7,654.93 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs)
7100-

7299,7400-
7499 2,497,974.00 2,497,974.00 679,250.00 2,497,974.00

0.00
0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,497,974.00 2,497,974.00 686,904.93 2,497,974.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (485,735.00) (485,735.00) (686,887.14) (485,735.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (485,735.00) (485,735.00) (686,887.14) (485,735.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 1,113,185.90 1,113,185.90 1,113,185.90 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,113,185.90 1,113,185.90 1,113,185.90

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 1,113,185.90 1,113,185.90 1,113,185.90

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 627,450.90 627,450.90 627,450.90

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally  Restricted Balance 9740 627,450.90 627,450.90 627,450.90

c) Committed

Page 108 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 49I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

All Other Federal Rev enue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Restricted Lev ies - Other

Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

County  and District Taxes

Other Restricted Lev ies

Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes

Parcel Taxes 8621 2,011,739.00 2,011,739.00 0.00 2,011,739.00 0.00 0.0%

Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Community  Redev elopment Funds Not Subject to
LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 500.00 500.00 17.79 500.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 2,012,239.00 2,012,239.00 17.79 2,012,239.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 2,012,239.00 2,012,239.00 17.79 2,012,239.00

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 109 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 49I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating
Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 7,654.93 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 7,654.93 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Land Improv ements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Buildings and Improv ements of  Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Books and Media f or New School Libraries or Major
Expansion of  School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Lease Assets 6600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect
Costs)

Other Transf ers Out

Transf ers of  Pass-Through Rev enues

To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

To County  Of f ices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 110 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 49I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice

Repay ment of  State School Building Fund Aid -
Proceeds f rom Bonds 7435 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 2,497,974.00 2,497,974.00 679,250.00 2,497,974.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs) 2,497,974.00 2,497,974.00 679,250.00 2,497,974.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,497,974.00 2,497,974.00 686,904.93 2,497,974.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/County  School
Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Sale of  Bonds 8951 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

County  School Building Aid 8961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds f rom Certif icates of  Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds f rom Lease Rev enue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 111 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Capital Project Fund for Blended Component Units

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 49I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

9010
Other
Restricted
Local 627,450.90

Total, Restricted Balance 627,450.90

Page 112 of 134



 
 
 
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
 

 
Debt Service Funds Definition 
 
The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, 
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. This classification includes the Bond Interest 
and Redemption Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 113 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 51I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-8599 331,000.00 331,000.00 0.00 331,000.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-8799 44,420,000.00 44,420,000.00 0.00 44,420,000.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 44,751,000.00 44,751,000.00 0.00 44,751,000.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs)

7100-
7299,7400-

7499 48,550,000.00 48,550,000.00 0.00 48,550,000.00
0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 48,550,000.00 48,550,000.00 0.00 48,550,000.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (3,799,000.00) (3,799,000.00) 0.00 (3,799,000.00)

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) (3,799,000.00) (3,799,000.00) 0.00 (3,799,000.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 21,226,252.75 21,226,252.75 21,226,252.75 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 21,226,252.75 21,226,252.75 21,226,252.75

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 21,226,252.75 21,226,252.75 21,226,252.75

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 17,427,252.75 17,427,252.75 17,427,252.75

Components of  Ending Fund Balance

a) Nonspendable

Rev olv ing Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Legally  Restricted Balance 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Committed

Page 114 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 51I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00

d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 17,427,252.75 17,427,252.75 17,427,252.75

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund 0000 9780 17,427,252.75

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated

Reserv e f or Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

FEDERAL REVENUE

All Other Federal Rev enue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Tax Relief  Subv entions

Voted Indebtedness Lev ies

Homeowners' Exemptions 8571 330,000.00 330,000.00 0.00 330,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Subv entions/In-Lieu Taxes 8572 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 331,000.00 331,000.00 0.00 331,000.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

County  and District Taxes

Voted Indebtedness Lev ies

Secured Roll 8611 34,070,000.00 34,070,000.00 0.00 34,070,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Unsecured Roll 8612 1,440,000.00 1,440,000.00 0.00 1,440,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Prior Years' Taxes 8613 2,680,000.00 2,680,000.00 0.00 2,680,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Supplemental Taxes 8614 1,280,000.00 1,280,000.00 0.00 1,280,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Penalties and Interest f rom Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes 8629 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 1,250,000.00 1,250,000.00 0.00 1,250,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 3,690,000.00 3,690,000.00 0.00 3,690,000.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 44,420,000.00 44,420,000.00 0.00 44,420,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 44,751,000.00 44,751,000.00 0.00 44,751,000.00

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect
Costs)

Debt Serv ice

Bond Redemptions 7433 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Bond Interest and Other Serv ice Charges 7434 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Debt Serv ice - Interest 7438 19,430,000.00 19,430,000.00 0.00 19,430,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Debt Serv ice - Principal 7439 29,120,000.00 29,120,000.00 0.00 29,120,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transf ers of
Indirect Costs) 48,550,000.00 48,550,000.00 0.00 48,550,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 48,550,000.00 48,550,000.00 0.00 48,550,000.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 115 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Di, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 51I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: General Fund 7614 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 116 of 134



 
 
 
 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
 
Enterprise Funds Definition 
 
Enterprise Funds, as outlined in the California Department of Education’s Standardized Account Code Structure 
(SACS), may be used to account for activities for which fees are charged to external users for goods or services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 Page 117 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 61I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-
8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799 0.00 0.00 (16.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 (16.00) 0.00

B. EXPENSES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999 0.00 0.00 2,449.95 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999 0.00 0.00 238.21 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-
4999 0.00 0.00 380.38 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenses 5000-
5999 0.00 0.00 (500.61) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6) Depreciation and Amortization 6000-
6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect Costs)

7100-
7299,
7400-
7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-
7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 2,567.93 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES(A5 -B9) 0.00 0.00 (2,583.93) 0.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-
8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-
7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-
8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-
7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-
8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

NET POSITION (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (2,583.93) 0.00

F. NET POSITION

1) Beginning Net Position

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 5,751.59 5,751.59 5,751.59 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 118 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 61I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 5,751.59 5,751.59 5,751.59

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 5,751.59 5,751.59 5,751.59

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 5,751.59 5,751.59 5,751.59

Components of  Ending Net Position

a) Net Inv estment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 5,754.59 5,754.59 5,754.59

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 (3.00) (3.00) (3.00)

FEDERAL REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Federal Rev enue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER STATE REVENUE

Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food Serv ice Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 (16.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of  Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 (16.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 (16.00) 0.00

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Certif icated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 2,253.94 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 196.01 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 2,449.95 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-
3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-
3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-
3302 0.00 0.00 189.21 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-
3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-
3502 0.00 0.00 12.25 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 119 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 61I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Workers' Compensation 3601-
3602 0.00 0.00 36.75 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-
3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-
3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-
3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 238.21 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Food 4700 0.00 0.00 380.38 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 380.38 0.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-
5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 (500.61) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 (500.61) 0.00 0.00 0.0%

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS

Transf ers of  Indirect Costs - Interf und 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 2,567.93 0.00

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

From: General Fund 8916 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 120 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 61I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals
To Date
(C)

Projected
Year
Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 121 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 5 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Cafeteria Enterprise Fund

Restricted Detail

34674390000000 
Form 61I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Resource Description
2022-23
Projected
Totals

5310

Child
Nutrition:
School
Programs
(e.g., School
Lunch,
School
Breakf ast,
Milk,
Pregnant &
Lactating
Students) 5,754.59

Total, Restricted Net Position 5,754.59

Page 122 of 134



 
 
 
 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
 
 
Proprietary Funds Definition 
 
Proprietary Funds are used to account for activities that are more business-like than government-like in 
nature. Business-type activities include those for which a fee is charged to external users or to other 
organizational units of the LEA, normally on a full cost-recovery basis. Proprietary funds are generally 
intended to be self-supporting. This classification includes the Self-Insurance fund, which includes the 
Dental/Vision fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 123 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 67I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

A. REVENUES

1) LCFF Sources 8010-
8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Federal Rev enue 8100-
8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Other State Rev enue 8300-
8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) Other Local Rev enue 8600-
8799 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00 3,593,982.31 15,068,840.00 0.00 0.0%

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00 3,593,982.31 15,068,840.00

B. EXPENSES

1) Certif icated Salaries 1000-
1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Classif ied Salaries 2000-
2999 409,077.93 409,077.93 118,940.80 409,077.93 0.00 0.0%

3) Employ ee Benef its 3000-
3999 279,761.96 279,761.96 84,717.29 279,761.96 0.00 0.0%

4) Books and Supplies 4000-
4999 48,000.00 48,000.00 92.20 49,000.00 (1,000.00) -2.1%

5) Serv ices and Other Operating Expenses 5000-
5999 14,332,000.00 14,332,000.00 6,076,212.09 13,999,158.00 332,842.00 2.3%

6) Depreciation and Amortization 6000-
6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transf ers of  Indirect
Costs)

7100-
7299,
7400-
7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.0%

8) Other Outgo - Transf ers of  Indirect Costs 7300-
7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9) TOTAL, EXPENSES 15,068,839.89 15,068,839.89 6,279,962.38 14,736,997.89

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND USES(A5 -B9) .11 .11 (2,685,980.07) 331,842.11

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interf und Transf ers

a) Transf ers In 8900-
8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transf ers Out 7600-
7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-
8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Uses 7630-
7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3) Contributions 8980-
8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

NET POSITION (C + D4) .11 .11 (2,685,980.07) 331,842.11

F. NET POSITION

1) Beginning Net Position

a) As of  July  1 - Unaudited 9791 12,847,527.81 12,847,527.81 12,847,527.81 0.00 0.0%

b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 124 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 67I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

c) As of  July  1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 12,847,527.81 12,847,527.81 12,847,527.81

d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e) Adjusted Beginning Net Position (F1c + F1d) 12,847,527.81 12,847,527.81 12,847,527.81

2) Ending Net Position, June 30 (E + F1e) 12,847,527.92 12,847,527.92 13,179,369.92

Components of  Ending Net Position

a) Net Inv estment in Capital Assets 9796 0.00 0.00 0.00

b) Restricted Net Position 9797 0.00 0.00 0.00

c) Unrestricted Net Position 9790 12,847,527.92 12,847,527.92 13,179,369.92

OTHER STATE REVENUE

STRS On-Behalf  Pension Contributions 7690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other State Rev enue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE

Sales

Sale of  Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Interest 8660 30,000.00 30,000.00 309.13 30,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of
Inv estments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Fees and Contracts

In-District Premiums/Contributions 8674 15,038,840.00 15,038,840.00 3,593,673.18 15,038,840.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Local Rev enue

All Other Local Rev enue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Transf ers In f rom All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00 3,593,982.31 15,068,840.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, REVENUES 15,068,840.00 15,068,840.00 3,593,982.31 15,068,840.00

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certif icated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Certif icated Superv isors' and Administrators'
Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classif ied Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Classif ied Superv isors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 197,556.27 197,556.27 59,726.84 197,556.27 0.00 0.0%

Clerical, Technical and Of f ice Salaries 2400 211,521.66 211,521.66 59,213.96 211,521.66 0.00 0.0%

Other Classif ied Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 409,077.93 409,077.93 118,940.80 409,077.93 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

STRS 3101-
3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PERS 3201-
3202 103,436.03 103,436.03 29,375.77 103,436.03 0.00 0.0%

OASDI/Medicare/Alternativ e 3301-
3302 29,725.57 29,725.57 7,379.21 29,725.57 0.00 0.0%

Health and Welf are Benef its 3401-
3402 110,729.84 110,729.84 38,107.14 110,729.84 0.00 0.0%

Unemploy ment Insurance 3501-
3502 1,941.88 1,941.88 435.81 1,941.88 0.00 0.0%

Page 125 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 67I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

Workers' Compensation 3601-
3602 6,136.16 6,136.16 1,327.96 6,136.16 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Allocated 3701-
3702 27,468.00 27,468.00 7,994.56 27,468.00 0.00 0.0%

OPEB, Activ e Employ ees 3751-
3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Employ ee Benef its 3901-
3902 324.48 324.48 96.84 324.48 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 279,761.96 279,761.96 84,717.29 279,761.96 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Books and Other Ref erence Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Materials and Supplies 4300 46,000.00 46,000.00 92.20 47,000.00 (1,000.00) -2.2%

Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 48,000.00 48,000.00 92.20 49,000.00 (1,000.00) -2.1%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Subagreements f or Serv ices 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Trav el and Conf erences 5200 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Insurance 5400-
5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Serv ices 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized
Improv ements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transf ers of  Direct Costs - Interf und 5750 0.00 0.00 9,840.34 37,000.00 (37,000.00) New

Prof essional/Consulting Serv ices and Operating
Expenditures 5800 14,330,000.00 14,330,000.00 6,066,371.75 13,954,358.00 375,642.00 2.6%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,800.00 (5,800.00) New

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES 14,332,000.00 14,332,000.00 6,076,212.09 13,999,158.00 332,842.00 2.3%

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation Expense 6900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Amortization Expense-Lease Assets 6910 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, EXPENSES 15,068,839.89 15,068,839.89 6,279,962.38 14,736,997.89

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

Other Authorized Interf und Transf ers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

OTHER SOURCES/USES

SOURCES

Other Sources

Transf ers f rom Funds of  Lapsed/Reorganized
LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

USES

Transf ers of  Funds f rom Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 126 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: Fund-Ei, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:41 PM

Sacramento City Unified 
Sacramento County

2022-23 First Interim
Self-Insurance Fund

Expenditures by Object

34674390000000 
Form 67I 

D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description Resource
Codes

Object
Codes

Original
Budget
(A)

Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

Actuals To
Date
(C)

Projected
Year Totals
(D)

Difference
(Col B &
D)
(E)

% Diff
Column
B & D
(F)

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions f rom Unrestricted Rev enues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Contributions f rom Restricted Rev enues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

(a - b + c - d + e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 127 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: AI, Version 2 Page 1 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE Form AI
Sacramento County D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2
REPORT
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)
(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col. E / B)
(F)

A. DISTRICT

1. Total District Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity  Classes, Home & Hospital, Special Day
Class, Continuation Education, Special Education NPS/LCI and
Extended Year, and Community  Day  School (includes
Necessary  Small School ADA) 36,106.92 36,106.92 34,348.58 37,209.81 1,102.89 3.0%

2. Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered Voluntary Pupil
Transfer Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity  Classes, Home & Hospital, Special Day
Class, Continuation Education, Special Education NPS/LCI and
Extended Year, and Community  Day  School (ADA not included
in Line A1 abov e) 210.14 210.14 210.14 210.14 0.00 0.0%

3. Total Basic Aid Open Enrollment Regular ADA

Includes Opportunity  Classes, Home & Hospital, Special Day
Class, Continuation Education, Special Education NPS/LCI and
Extended Year, and Community  Day  School (ADA not included
in Line A1 abov e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4. Total, District Regular ADA

(Sum of Lines A1 through A3) 36,317.06 36,317.06 34,558.72 37,419.95 1,102.89 3.0%

5. District Funded County Program ADA

a. County  Community  Schools 83.72 83.72 92.10 92.10 8.38 10.0%

b. Special Education-Special Day  Class 19.78 19.78 21.65 21.65 1.87 9.0%

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e. Other County  Operated Programs:

Opportunity  Schools and Full Day  Opportunity  Classes,
Specialized Secondary  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

f . County  School Tuition Fund

(Out of  State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

(Sum of Lines A5a through A5f) 103.50 103.50 113.75 113.75 10.25 10.0%

6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA

(Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g) 36,420.56 36,420.56 34,672.47 37,533.70 1,113.14 3.0%

7. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8. Charter School ADA

(Enter Charter School ADA using

Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 128 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: AI, Version 2 Page 2 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE Form AI
Sacramento County D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2
REPORT
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)
(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col. E / B)
(F)

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

1. County Program Alternative Education Grant ADA

a. County  Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b. Juv enile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c. Probation Ref erred, On Probation or Parole, Expelled per EC
48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Total, County Program Alternative Education

ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2. District Funded County Program ADA

a. County  Community  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b. Special Education-Special Day  Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e. Other County  Operated Programs: Opportunity  Schools and
Full Day  Opportunity  Classes, Specialized Secondary  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

f . County  School Tuition Fund

(Out of  State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

(Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA

(Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

5. County Operations Grant ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6. Charter School ADA

(Enter Charter School ADA using

Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 129 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: AI, Version 2 Page 3 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE Form AI
Sacramento County D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2
REPORT
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)
(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col. E / B)
(F)

C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS f inancial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA f or those charter schools.

Charter schools reporting SACS f inancial data separately  f rom their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.

1. Total Charter School Regular ADA 1,539.67 1,539.67 1,447.25 1,447.25 (92.42) -6.0%

2. Charter School County Program Alternative

Education ADA

a. County  Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b. Juv enile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c. Probation Ref erred, On Probation or Parole, Expelled per EC
48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Total, Charter School County Program

Alternative Education ADA

(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA

a. County  Community  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b. Special Education-Special Day  Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e. Other County  Operated Programs: Opportunity  Schools and
Full Day  Opportunity  Classes, Specialized Secondary  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

f. Total, Charter School Funded County

Program ADA

(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

(Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 1,539.67 1,539.67 1,447.25 1,447.25 (92.42) -6.0%

FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.

5. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

6. Charter School County Program Alternative

Education ADA

a. County  Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b. Juv enile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c. Probation Ref erred, On Probation or Parole, Expelled per EC
48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Total, Charter School County Program

Alternative Education ADA

(Sum of Lines C6a through C6c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA

a. County  Community  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b. Special Education-Special Day  Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

e. Other County  Operated Programs: Opportunity  Schools and
Full Day  Opportunity  Classes, Specialized Secondary  Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

f. Total, Charter School Funded County

Page 130 of 134



California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2
File: AI, Version 2 Page 4 Printed: 12/9/2022 1:53 PM

2022-23 First Interim 34 67439 0000000
Sacramento City Unified AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE Form AI
Sacramento County D81A24ZW4N(2022-23)

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2
REPORT
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED
ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D)

DIFFERENCE
(Col. D - B)
(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col. E / B)
(F)

Program ADA

(Sum of Lines C7a through C7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

(Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62

(Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 1,539.67 1,539.67 1,447.25 1,447.25 (92.42) -6.0%

Page 131 of 134



2022‐23 Object
 2022‐23 

Beginning Balance 
 July 2022   August 2022   September 2022   October 2022   November 2022   December 2022   January 2023   February 2023   March 2023   April 2023   May 2023   June 2023 

 Accrual

Projected 
Adjustments

 Total

Projected 
Budget

A. BEGINNING CASH 9110 159,402,380            159,402,380             151,149,287             162,149,501             176,664,240             184,584,003             183,862,848             227,942,826             251,337,005             214,419,895             194,487,331             238,824,658             218,460,985             ‐$                       ‐$                        

B. RECEIPTS

     LCFF Revenue Sources

        Principal Apportionment 8010‐8019 11,354,582               13,975,697               51,604,339               25,187,848               23,761,745               49,555,995               23,761,745               23,411,954               49,206,204               23,411,954               23,411,954               49,206,204               ‐                         ‐                         367,850,221$      367,850,221$         

        Property Taxes 8020‐8079 ‐                             (20)                             ‐                             ‐                             432,356                     19,873,166               54,560,261               2,951,990                 3,189,269                 47,554,368               796,949                     927,778                     ‐                         ‐                         130,286,118$      130,286,118$         

        Miscellaneous Funds 8080‐8099 ‐                             ‐                             571                            ‐                             (876,507)                   (936,895)                   (335,078)                   854                            (1,685,239)                (588,759)                   269,022                     (2,614,311)                (7,073,347)            ‐                         (13,839,687)$       (13,839,687)$         

     Federal Revenues 8100‐8299 10,060,167               (84,026)                     1,140,396                 10,314,916               1,862,556                 13,994,265               5,326,883                 1,577,854                 4,152,065                 13,522,897               2,239,344                 45,491,952               57,168,560            ‐                         166,767,829$      166,767,829$         

     Other State Revenues 8300‐8599 13,871,833               4,159,025                 7,402,938                 5,707,108                 36,149,148               27,821,499               3,056,858                 6,903,022                 3,790,940                 32,844,126               23,857,952               1,011,240                 5,987,964              25,304,318           197,867,970$      197,867,970$         

     Other Local Revenues 8600‐8799 1,813,126                 308,293                     498,499                     259,414                     (68,934)                     (52,741)                     367,944                     116,051                     123,287                     1,234,151                 159,673                     173,056                     3,423,226              ‐                         8,355,045$            8,355,045$             

     Interfund Transfers In 8910‐8929 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             240,773                     ‐                             ‐                             14,416                       ‐                             408,508                     561,826                 ‐                         1,225,524$            1,225,524$             

     All Other Financing Sources 8930‐8979 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

     Undefined Objects ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

TOTAL RECEIPTS 37,099,708               18,358,969               60,646,743               41,469,286               61,260,365               110,255,290             86,979,385               34,961,726               58,776,526               117,993,154             50,734,894               94,604,427               60,068,229           25,304,318           858,513,020        858,513,020           

C. DISBURSEMENTS

     Certificated Salaries 1000‐1999 1,622,436                 3,776,341                 20,806,927               21,300,570               24,379,662               22,359,127               21,948,993               21,943,546               22,584,698               22,246,419               20,502,376               31,525,030               7,083,391              ‐$                       242,079,517$      242,079,517$         

     Classified Salaries 2000‐2999 2,933,060                 4,511,700                 5,785,133                 5,594,171                 5,334,359                 5,600,202                 5,483,876                 5,291,862                 5,996,716                 5,351,407                 6,585,855                 10,827,619               3,071,220              ‐$                       72,367,181$          72,367,181$           

     Employee Benefits 3000‐3999 2,851,406                 4,363,348                 15,692,917               15,582,343               18,152,086               17,587,362               17,611,383               17,779,453               18,001,685               17,829,412               16,819,528               19,549,580               7,582,205              25,304,318$        214,707,025$      214,707,025$         

     Books and Supplies 4000‐4999 52,399                       343,208                     746,346                     1,167,084                 2,144,525                 1,926,418                 3,435,266                 2,455,376                 1,885,287                 3,920,019                 3,687,130                 6,080,970                 31,756,064            ‐$                       59,600,093$          59,600,093$           

     Services 5000‐5999 1,329,095                 1,739,156                 7,647,591                 6,677,727                 7,833,146                 12,567,481               9,576,824                 8,707,383                 14,362,096               9,291,532                 10,164,954               23,451,220               39,846,195            ‐$                       153,194,400$      153,194,400$         

     Capital Outlay 6000‐6599 130,295                     649,229                     1,866,543                 5,213,134                 311,345                     2,078,154                 2,079,989                 1,598,016                 2,618,940                 904,702                     3,457,219                 3,939,227                 11,766,463            ‐$                       36,613,256$          36,613,256$           

     Other Outgo 7000‐7499 66,459                       66,448                       115,523                     120,899                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     (25,099)                     0                            ‐$                       168,535$               168,535$                

     Interfund Transfers Out 7600‐7629 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

     All Other Financing Uses 7630‐7699 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

CARES/ESSER FUNDS 1000‐7999 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ‐                           8,985,151                 15,449,430               52,660,980               55,655,927               58,130,024               62,093,645               60,111,231               57,750,536               65,424,323               59,518,392               61,191,963               95,348,547               101,105,539        25,304,318           778,730,007        778,730,007           

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ‐                            

     Assets and Deferred Outflows

        Cash Not In Treasury 9111‐9199 (1,272,624)               (45,707)                     (38,456)                     37,051                       7,831                         4,501                         4,501                         (290,314)                   (436,520)                   ‐                             (570,343)                   ‐                             54,832                       ‐                         (1,272,624)$         

        Accounts Receivable 9200‐9299 66,869,551              7,914,974                 12,334,613               8,941,007                 25,544,452               (984,297)                   (1,508,543)                (1,108,103)                245,020                     (15,552)                     (456,018)                   1,129,733                 14,408,393               ‐                         66,445,679$         

        Due From Other Funds 9310 2,927,202                2,927,202                 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             (361,148)                   (361,148)                   99,712                       (460,860)                   (373)                           ‐                             ‐                             1,083,817                 ‐                         2,927,202$           

        Stores 9320 105,262                   ‐                             358                            279                            21                              8,087                         3,626                         17,277                       3,594                         3,626                         3,616                         (50)                             64,827                       ‐                         105,262$              

        Prepaid Expenditures 9330 16,100                     16,100                       ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         16,100$                

        Other Current Assets 9340 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

     SUBTOTAL ASSETS 68,645,491              10,812,569               12,296,515               8,978,336                 25,552,305               (1,332,858)                (1,861,564)                (1,281,428)                (648,766)                   (12,298)                     (1,022,746)                1,129,683                 15,611,870               ‐                         ‐                         68,221,619          

     Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

        Accounts Payable 9500‐9599 (102,304,418)          (31,761,090)              (4,205,838)                (2,449,361)                (3,398,246)                (2,518,638)                (2,220,103)                (2,192,548)                (13,479,534)              (13,272,469)              (13,114,690)              (11,036,288)              (2,655,615)                ‐                         (102,304,418)$    

        Due To Other Funds 9610 (2,388,789)               (2,388,789)                ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         (2,388,789)$         

        Current Loans 9640 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Unearned Revenues 9650 (13,077,997)             (13,030,342)              ‐                             ‐                             (47,654)                     ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         (13,077,997)$      

        Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                      

     SUBTOTAL LIABILITIES (117,771,203)          (47,180,220)              (4,205,838)                (2,449,361)                (3,445,900)                (2,518,638)                (2,220,103)                (2,192,548)                (13,479,534)              (13,272,469)              (13,114,690)              (11,036,288)              (2,655,615)                ‐                         ‐                         (117,771,203)      

     Nonoperating

        Suspense Clearing 9910 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (49,125,712)            (36,367,651)              8,090,677                 6,528,976                 22,106,405               (3,851,496)                (4,081,667)                (3,473,975)                (14,128,300)              (13,284,767)              (14,137,435)              (9,906,605)                12,956,255               ‐                         ‐                         (49,549,584)         

           (49,125,712)               (8,253,094)               11,000,215                14,514,738                  7,919,764                   (721,155)               44,079,978                23,394,179              (36,917,110)             (19,932,564)               44,337,327              (20,363,673)               12,212,135          (41,037,310)                           ‐              30,233,429  79,783,013$           

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 151,149,287          162,149,501          176,664,240          184,584,003       183,862,848       227,942,826       251,337,005       214,419,895       194,487,331          238,824,658       218,460,985       230,673,120      
‐                             189,635,809$     

Sacramento City Unified School District 2022‐23 First Interim Cash Flow Projections

2022‐23 Cash Flow Projection

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE B ‐ C + D

G. Ending Cash, Plus Cash Accruals and Adjustments

Page 132 of 134



Sacramento City Unified School District 2022‐23 First Interim Cash Flow Projections

2023‐24 Object
 2023‐24 

Beginning Balance 
 July 2023   August 2023   September 2023   October 2023   November 2023   December 2023   January 2024   February 2024   March 2024   April 2024   May 2024   June 2024 

 Accrual

Projected 
Adjustments

 Total

Projected 
Budget

A. BEGINNING CASH 9110 230,673,120            230,673,120             186,772,027             195,319,169             233,161,349             227,742,099             206,288,142             239,189,456             272,586,140             247,891,261             247,221,517             275,279,692             257,642,127             ‐$                       ‐$                        

B. RECEIPTS

     LCFF Revenue Sources

        Principal Apportionment 8010‐8019 13,653,080               13,653,080               51,059,966               24,575,544               24,575,544               51,059,966               24,575,544               24,575,544               51,059,966               24,575,544               24,575,544               51,059,966               ‐                         ‐$                       378,999,291$      378,999,291$         

        Property Taxes 8020‐8079 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             424,886                     19,529,783               53,617,529               2,900,983                 3,134,162                 46,732,689               783,179                     911,728                     ‐                         ‐$                       128,034,939$      128,034,939$         

        Miscellaneous Funds 8080‐8099 ‐                             1,486                         (1,934,993)                (2,229,797)                (876,507)                   (936,895)                   (335,078)                   854                            (1,685,239)                (588,759)                   269,022                     (2,614,311)                (2,909,472)            ‐$                       (13,839,687)$       (13,839,687)$         

     Federal Revenues 8100‐8299 447,522                     3,091,038                 9,657,946                 574,696                     718,653                     7,236,785                 2,579,969                 565,688                     1,948,762                 6,983,528                 921,094                     24,159,880               30,715,557            ‐$                       89,601,116$          89,601,116$           

     Other State Revenues 8300‐8599 3,880,446                 2,963,896                 7,424,451                 3,324,490                 7,544,431                 11,337,352               5,173,864                 2,593,524                 5,499,757                 6,077,178                 11,051,281               4,960,308                 16,011,810            25,304,318$        113,147,108$      113,147,108$         

     Other Local Revenues 8600‐8799 522,302                     143,958                     200,580                     279,131                     139,821                     155,574                     564,815                     319,774                     326,813                     1,407,459                 362,209                     375,228                     3,330,107              ‐$                       8,127,772$            8,127,772$             

     Interfund Transfers In 8910‐8929 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             240,773                     ‐                             ‐                             14,416                       ‐                             408,508                     561,826                 ‐$                       1,225,524$            1,225,524$             

     All Other Financing Sources 8930‐8979 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

     Undefined Objects ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

TOTAL RECEIPTS 18,503,351               19,853,458               66,407,950               26,524,063               32,526,828               88,382,565               86,417,415               30,956,368               60,284,222               85,202,057               37,962,329               79,261,308               47,709,830           25,304,318           705,296,063        705,296,063           

C. DISBURSEMENTS

     Certificated Salaries 1000‐1999 1,720,464                 4,487,063                 21,223,697               22,021,220               24,331,423               22,297,890               21,885,117               21,879,636               22,524,912               22,184,457               20,429,195               31,522,757               7,495,530              ‐$                       244,003,361$      244,003,361$         

     Classified Salaries 2000‐2999 2,888,182                 4,063,815                 5,412,888                 5,570,397                 5,478,193                 5,745,168                 5,628,347                 5,435,515                 6,143,371                 5,495,314                 6,735,018                 10,994,846               3,230,435              ‐$                       72,821,488$          72,821,488$           

     Employee Benefits 3000‐3999 3,044,212                 4,656,033                 17,559,254               17,684,537               18,109,032               17,531,675               17,556,234               17,728,063               17,955,267               17,779,140               17,195,788               19,986,912               8,109,337              25,304,318$        220,199,802$      220,199,802$         

     Books and Supplies 4000‐4999 86,415                       1,059,702                 1,961,561                 869,359                     877,596                     754,366                     1,606,861                 1,053,226                 731,127                     1,880,744                 1,749,163                 3,101,676                 17,942,083            ‐$                       33,673,878$          33,673,878$           

     Services 5000‐5999 666,136                     3,292,809                 4,162,661                 6,671,194                 5,233,887                 8,584,749                 6,468,025                 5,852,653                 9,854,940                 6,266,101                 6,884,292                 16,288,031               28,202,300            ‐$                       108,427,778$      108,427,778$         

     Capital Outlay 6000‐6599 181,614                     629,211                     314,679                     134,742                     79,028                       402,086                     402,422                     314,294                     500,968                     187,523                     654,246                     742,380                     2,151,477              ‐$                       6,694,669$            6,694,669$             

     Other Outgo 7000‐7499 (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     (24,381)                     ‐                         ‐$                       (292,573)$             (292,573)$               

     Interfund Transfers Out 7600‐7629 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

     All Other Financing Uses 7630‐7699 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

CARES/ESSER FUNDS 1000‐7999 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ‐                           8,562,642                 18,164,253               50,610,359               52,927,067               54,084,778               55,291,554               53,522,624               52,239,005               57,686,204               53,768,898               53,623,320               82,612,220               67,131,162           25,304,318           685,528,403        685,528,403           

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ‐                            

     Assets and Deferred Outflows

        Cash Not In Treasury 9111‐9199 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Accounts Receivable 9200‐9299 60,068,229              9,562,510                 13,967,669               22,975,024               21,469,514               882,761                     43,299                       684,514                     220,099                     (13,970)                     (409,636)                   1,014,828                 (8,196,034)                (2,132,350)            60,068,229$         

        Due From Other Funds 9310 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Stores 9320 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Prepaid Expenditures 9330 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Other Current Assets 9340 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

     SUBTOTAL ASSETS 60,068,229              9,562,510                 13,967,669               22,975,024               21,469,514               882,761                    43,299                       684,514                    220,099                    (13,970)                     (409,636)                   1,014,828                 (8,196,034)                (2,132,350)            ‐                         60,068,229          

     Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

        Accounts Payable 9500‐9599 (101,105,539)          (63,404,313)              (7,109,732)                (930,436)                   (485,759)                   (778,769)                   (232,997)                   (182,622)                   (3,632,341)                (3,253,792)                (2,965,347)                (2,991,402)                (15,138,029)              ‐                         (101,105,539)$    

        Due To Other Funds 9610 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Current Loans 9640 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Unearned Revenues 9650 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                      

     SUBTOTAL LIABILITIES (101,105,539)          (63,404,313)              (7,109,732)                (930,436)                   (485,759)                   (778,769)                   (232,997)                   (182,622)                   (3,632,341)                (3,253,792)                (2,965,347)                (2,991,402)                (15,138,029)              ‐                         ‐                         (101,105,539)      

     Nonoperating

        Suspense Clearing 9910 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (41,037,310)            (53,841,802)              6,857,937                 22,044,588               20,983,755               103,992                    (189,698)                   501,892                    (3,412,242)                (3,267,762)                (3,374,983)                (1,976,575)                (23,334,063)              (2,132,350)            ‐                         (41,037,310)         

           (41,037,310)             (43,901,093)                 8,547,142                37,842,180                (5,419,249)             (21,453,957)               32,901,314                33,396,684              (24,694,879)                  (669,744)               28,058,175              (17,637,566)             (26,684,975)         (21,553,682)                           ‐            (21,269,650) 19,767,660$           

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 186,772,027          195,319,169          233,161,349          227,742,099       206,288,142       239,189,456       272,586,140       247,891,261       247,221,517          275,279,692       257,642,127       230,957,151      
‐                             209,403,469$     

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE B ‐ C + D

2023‐24 Cash Flow Projection

G. Ending Cash, Plus Cash Accruals and Adjustments

Page 133 of 134



Sacramento City Unified School District 2022‐23 First Interim Cash Flow Projections

2024‐25 Object
 2024‐25 

Beginning Balance 
 July 2024   August 2024   September 2024   October 2024   November 2024   December 2024   January 2025   February 2025   March 2025   April 2025   May 2025   June 2025 

 Accrual

Projected 
Adjustments

 Total

Projected 
Budget

A. BEGINNING CASH 9110 230,957,151            230,957,151             202,912,863             204,660,151             224,463,800             205,780,221             182,796,759             211,680,693             242,867,047             218,397,146             217,321,960             242,316,049             224,553,850             ‐$                       ‐$                        

B. RECEIPTS

     LCF Revenue Sources

        Principal Apportionment 8010‐8019 13,880,027               13,880,027               51,584,597               24,984,049               24,984,049               51,584,597               24,984,049               24,984,049               51,584,597               24,984,049               24,984,049               51,584,597               ‐                         ‐                         384,002,736$      384,002,736$         

        Property Taxes 8020‐8079 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             424,886                     19,529,783               53,617,529               2,900,983                 3,134,162                 46,732,689               783,179                     911,728                     ‐                         ‐                         128,034,939$      128,034,939$         

        Miscellaneous Funds 8080‐8099 ‐                             1,486                         (1,934,993)                (2,229,797)                (876,507)                   (936,895)                   (335,078)                   854                            (1,685,239)                (588,759)                   269,022                     (2,614,311)                (2,909,472)            ‐                         (13,839,687)$       (13,839,687)$         

     Federal Revenues 8100‐8299 231,491                     1,598,907                 4,995,784                 297,274                     371,739                     3,743,385                 1,334,545                 292,615                     1,008,040                 3,612,382                 476,456                     12,497,226               15,888,293            ‐                         46,348,136$          46,348,136$           

     Other State Revenues 8300‐8599 3,880,446                 2,963,896                 7,424,451                 3,324,490                 7,544,431                 11,337,352               5,173,864                 2,593,524                 5,499,757                 6,077,178                 11,051,281               4,960,308                 16,011,810            25,304,318           113,147,108$      113,147,108$         

     Other Local Revenues 8600‐8799 522,302                     143,958                     200,580                     279,131                     139,821                     155,574                     564,815                     319,774                     326,813                     1,407,459                 362,209                     375,228                     3,330,107              ‐                         8,127,772$            8,127,772$             

     Interfund Transfers In 8910‐8929 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             240,773                     ‐                             ‐                             14,416                       ‐                             408,508                     561,826                 ‐                         1,225,524$            1,225,524$             

     All Other Financing Sources 8930‐8979 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

     Undefined Objects ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

TOTAL RECEIPTS 18,514,267               18,588,274               62,270,418               26,655,146               32,588,419               85,413,796               85,580,497               31,091,799               59,868,131               82,239,416               37,926,196               68,123,284               32,882,566           25,304,318           667,046,528        667,046,528           

C. DISBURSEMENTS

     Certificated Salaries 1000‐1999 1,803,680                 4,704,097                 22,250,262               23,086,361               25,508,306               23,376,413               22,943,675               22,937,928               23,614,416               23,257,493               21,417,331               33,047,476               7,473,778              ‐                         255,421,217$      255,421,217$         

     Classified Salaries 2000‐2999 2,995,215                 4,214,416                 5,613,484                 5,776,829                 5,681,209                 5,958,077                 5,836,927                 5,636,949                 6,371,037                 5,698,964                 6,984,610                 11,402,302               3,198,599              ‐                         75,368,619$          75,368,619$           

     Employee Benefits 3000‐3999 3,048,206                 4,662,142                 17,582,291               17,707,738               18,132,790               17,554,676               17,579,266               17,751,321               17,978,823               17,802,466               17,218,348               20,013,134               9,218,954              25,304,318           221,554,473$      221,554,473$         

     Books and Supplies 4000‐4999 87,105                       1,068,173                 1,977,242                 876,309                     884,611                     760,397                     1,619,706                 1,061,645                 736,972                     1,895,779                 1,763,146                 3,126,471                 18,085,515            ‐                         33,943,073$          33,943,073$           

     Services 5000‐5999 679,584                     3,359,282                 4,246,693                 6,805,867                 5,339,544                 8,758,051                 6,598,597                 5,970,802                 10,053,884               6,392,596                 7,023,266                 16,616,841               28,771,626            ‐                         110,616,633$      110,616,633$         

     Capital Outlay 6000‐6599 57,277                       198,438                     99,242                       42,494                       24,924                       126,808                     126,914                     99,121                       157,993                     59,140                       206,333                     234,129                     678,524                 ‐                         2,111,336$            2,111,336$             

     Other Outgo 7000‐7499 (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   (140,833)                   ‐                         ‐                         (1,689,993)$          (1,689,993)$            

     Interfund Transfers Out 7600‐7629 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

     All Other Financing Uses 7630‐7699 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                        

CARES/ESSER FUNDS 1000‐7999 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ‐                           8,530,234                 18,065,715               51,628,382               54,154,766               55,430,551               56,393,590               54,564,252               53,316,933               58,772,293               54,965,606               54,472,202               84,299,520               67,426,995           25,304,318           697,325,358        697,325,358           

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ‐                            

     Assets and Deferred Outflows

        Cash Not In Treasury 9111‐9199 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Accounts Receivable 9200‐9299 45,577,480              4,070,315                 5,945,385                 9,779,396                 9,138,570                 375,750                     18,431                       291,366                     167,002                     (10,600)                     (310,817)                   770,012                     (6,218,837)                21,561,507            45,577,480$         

        Due From Other Funds 9310 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Stores 9320 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Prepaid Expenditures 9330 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Other Current Assets 9340 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

     SUBTOTAL ASSETS 45,577,480              4,070,315                 5,945,385                 9,779,396                 9,138,570                 375,750                    18,431                       291,366                    167,002                    (10,600)                     (310,817)                   770,012                    (6,218,837)                21,561,507           ‐                         45,577,480           ‐$                        

     Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

        Accounts Payable 9500‐9599 (67,131,162)             (42,098,635)              (4,720,657)                (617,783)                   (322,530)                   (517,080)                   (154,704)                   (121,255)                   (2,411,770)                (2,160,424)                (1,968,905)                (1,986,205)                (10,051,215)              ‐                         (67,131,162)$      

        Due To Other Funds 9610 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Current Loans 9640 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Unearned Revenues 9650 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ‐                           ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

        Undefined Objects ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                       ‐$                      

     SUBTOTAL LIABILITIES (67,131,162)            (42,098,635)              (4,720,657)                (617,783)                   (322,530)                   (517,080)                   (154,704)                   (121,255)                   (2,411,770)                (2,160,424)                (1,968,905)                (1,986,205)                (10,051,215)              ‐                         ‐                         (67,131,162)          ‐$                        

     Nonoperating

        Suspense Clearing 9910 ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         ‐$                      

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (21,553,682)            (38,028,320)              1,224,728                 9,161,613                 8,816,041                 (141,330)                   (136,273)                   170,110                    (2,244,767)                (2,171,024)                (2,279,721)                (1,216,192)                (16,270,052)              21,561,507           ‐                         (21,553,682)         

           (21,553,682)             (28,044,288)                 1,747,287                19,803,650              (18,683,579)             (22,983,462)               28,883,933                31,186,355              (24,469,901)               (1,075,186)               24,994,089              (17,762,199)             (32,446,288)         (12,982,923)                           ‐            (51,832,512) (30,278,830)$         

F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 202,912,863          204,660,151          224,463,800          205,780,221       182,796,759       211,680,693       242,867,047       218,397,146       217,321,960          242,316,049       224,553,850       192,107,562      
‐                             179,124,639$     

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE B ‐ C + D

G. Ending Cash, Plus Cash Accruals and Adjustments

2024‐25 Cash Flow Projection

Page 134 of 134



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 9.3  

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022,  
                Submitted by Crowe LLP 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive the Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2022, submitted by Crowe LLP. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code Section 41020 requires school districts to 
conduct an annual audit of all funds under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board.  The 
Sacramento City Unified School District is currently under contract with Crowe LLP to 
conduct this annual audit of district records. 
 
Crowe LLP has completed the audit for the 2021-22 fiscal year.  State law requires that 
the Board of Education review the annual audit report.  These reports are filed with the 
County Superintendent, State Department of Education and the State Controller’s 
Office.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None.   
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Executive Summary 
2.  Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022, Submitted by Crowe 
     LLP 
 
Estimated Time:  10 Minutes 
Submitted by:  Rose F. Ramos, Chief Business & Operations Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 

Business Services 1 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
Submitted by Crowe LLP 
December 15, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Per Education Code section 41020, each year districts are required to conduct an annual audit of funds 
under the jurisdiction of the Governing Board by December 15.   
 
The firm of Crowe LLP audited the financial statements of the district for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
The audit is conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States.  These standards require that the audit is planned and 
performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  The audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation and internal controls. 
 
Findings and recommendations are reviewed by district staff with corrective action responses provided 
in the audit report.  In addition, the prior year findings and recommendations section of the audit report 
reflects the status of previously identified corrective actions. 
 
Staff and Crowe LLP will present the 2021-22 audit report at tonight’s December 15, 2022 Board Meeting. 
 
II. DRIVING GOVERNANCE: 
 

• Education Code section 41020 outlines the requirements for the annual audit; scope of 
examination; licensing requirements and other limitations; contents of auditor’s report; 
corrections; certification. 

• Education Code section 41020.3 states that by January 31 of each year, the governing body of 
each local education agency shall review, at a public meeting, the annual audit of the local 
education agency for the prior year, any audit exceptions identified in that audit, the 
recommendations or findings of any management letter issued by the auditor and any 
description of correction or plans to correct any exceptions or management letter issue.   

 
III. BUDGET:   
 
The cost of the annual audit for the year ending June 30, 2022 was $139,000.  This is a General Fund 
expenditure. 
 
 
 

 
I. OVERVIEW/HISTORY: 
 

AMENDED



 

Business Services 2 
 

Board of Education Executive Summary  
Business Services 
Independent Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 
Submitted by Crowe LLP 
December 15, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
IV. GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND MEASURES: 
 
Meet required timeline for annual audit report review by the Board.   
 
V. MAJOR INITIATIVES: 

 
Use findings and recommendations as a guide to ensure continuous improvement.   
 
VI. RESULTS: 
 
Work towards the preparation of the annual audit will continue throughout the year.  The initial audit 
starts in the spring of each year. 
 
VII. LESSONS LEARNED/NEXT STEPS: 
 

• Continue working with external auditors to review processes and procedures. 
• Ensure recommendations and corrective actions are implemented. 

 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2022 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ....................................................................................................  1 
 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ..................................................................................  4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
 GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
  STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ..................................................................................................  15 
 
  STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ........................................................................................................  16 
 
 FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
  BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ............................................................................  17 
 
  RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET - TO THE  
   STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ...............................................................................................  18 
 
  STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND 
   BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ...................................................................................  19 
 
  RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  
   CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO THE 
   STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES .....................................................................................................  20 
 
  STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS ............................................  22 
 
  STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS ..................................  23 
 
  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS .........................................................  24 
 
  STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - TRUST FUND ...................................................  25 
 
  STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - TRUST FUND ..............................  26 
 
  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .........................................................................................  27 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE .........................................................  61 
 
 SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS .............................  62 
 
 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB .........................................................  63 
 
 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 
  THE NET PENSION LIABILITY. .....................................................................................................  64 

 
 SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS ......................................................................  66 
 
 NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ............................................................  68 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS ..........................................................  69 
 
 COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN 
  FUND BALANCES - ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS. ...........................................................................  70 
 
 ORGANIZATION ................................................................................................................................  71 
 
 SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE ...........................................................................  72 
 
 SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME ..........................................................................................  73 
 
 SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS ...............................................................  74 
 
 RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED 
  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. ...........................................................................................................  78 
 
 SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED ...........................................  79 
 
 SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS .............................................................................................  80 
 
 SCHEDULE OF FIRST 5 REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES .........................................................  81 
 
 NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ..............................................................................  82 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND  
 REGULATIONS ..................................................................................................................................  83 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
 REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
 AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
 GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ........................................................................................  86 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE FIRST 5 
 SACRAMENTO COUNTY PROGRAM. .............................................................................................  88 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
 FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE .............................................................................................  90 
 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS .....................................................  93 
 
 STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ...............................................  103 
  



 

 
(Continued) 

 
1. 

 

 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Education 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Opinions  
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Sacramento City 
Unified School District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 



 

 
(Continued) 

 
2. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sacramento City Unified School 
District ’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we 
 
 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 14 and the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of The District's Contributions - 
OPEB, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of 
the District’s Contributions on pages 61 to 67 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
  



 

 
 

 
3. 

Supplementary Information  
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s basic financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
and other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
except for that portion marked “unaudited”, was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information, has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The information marked “unaudited” has 
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 9, 
2022 on our consideration of the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California  
December 9, 2022 
 
 
 
 



 

4. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Section of the audit report is District management’s overall 
view of the District’s financial condition and provides an opportunity to discuss important fiscal issues with the 
Board and the public.  The MD&A is an element of the reporting model adopted by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34.  Certain comparative information is required to be presented 
in this document. 
 
District Overview 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District (the “District”), located in Sacramento County, is the thirteenth largest 
school district in California regarding student enrollment. The District provides educational services to the 
residents in and around Sacramento, the state capital. The District operates under the jurisdiction of the 
Sacramento County Office of Education, although the District has attained “fiscal accountability” status under 
California Education Code. 
 
For fiscal year 2021-22, the District operated forty-two elementary schools (grades K-6), seven 
elementary/middle schools (grades K-8), six middle schools (grades 7-8), two middle/high schools (grades 7-
12), seven high schools (grades 9-12), three alternative schools, two special education centers, two adult 
education centers, fifteen charter schools (including five district operated charter schools), and forty-eight 
preschool classrooms. 
 
The graph below shows the District’s enrollment trend, net of charter school enrollment. The District’s enrollment 
and average daily attendance (ADA) continue to decline year over year. The District is funded based on its ADA, 
which is tracked daily with staff following up on areas of concern. The District averages approximately 94.5% 
ADA to enrollment. For the 2021-22 year, state education code allowed school districts to utilize the 2019-20 
ADA yield to mitigate the decline in attendance rates as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 

 

84.0%

86.0%

88.0%

90.0%

92.0%

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

 ‐

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

 50,000

Enrollment & ADA Trend

Enrollment ADA Yield



 

5. 

 
COVID-19 Impacts 
 
The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic continued to have impacts throughout the 2021-22 fiscal year. This included 
a significant decline in attendance rates for students as well as staff. Additionally, the pandemic required 
continued negotiations and bargaining agreements regarding employee safety, work conditions, additional duties 
and compensation, increases in COVID related sick leave and more. The district also experienced a decline in 
enrollment from 2020-21 to 2021-22, decreasing from 39,003 to 38,043, or 2.5% decline compared to the 
district’s historical average of .5%. The district has continued to utilize one-time COVID related funding to mitigate 
the financial and programmatic impacts described above.  
 
 
Governance 
 
The District is governed by a Board of Education consisting of seven members and one non-voting student 
member.  The regular members are elected to staggered four-year terms every two years. As a result of the 
passage of two ballot measures at the November 7, 2006 election, beginning in 2008, Board member elections 
are no longer held district-wide but instead are held among voters who reside in each of seven trustee areas. 
  
Strategic Plan and Guiding Principle 
 
The District’s Strategic Plan 2016-2021 makes a commitment to provide every student with access to 
opportunities for success. It functions like a blueprint, outlining a vision for our schools in the future and providing 
the steps necessary to attain the vision. The Strategic Plan also guides the District’s Local Control and 
Accountability Plan, pairing actions with resources. 
 
The District’s Mission: 
 

Students graduate as globally competitive lifelong learners, prepared to succeed in a career and higher 
education institution of their choice to secure gainful employment and contribute to society.  

 
The District’s Vision: 
 
 Every student is a responsible, productive citizen in a diverse and competitive world. 
  
The District’s Core Values: 
 

● Equity:  Commitment to reducing the academic achievement gap by ensuring that all students have 
equal access to the opportunities, supports and the tools they need to be successful. 
 

● Achievement:  Students will be provided with a relevant, rigorous and well-rounded curriculum, with the 
expectation that all will be well prepared for a career and post-secondary education. 

 
● Integrity:  Communication and interaction among and between students, parents, staff, labor and 

community partners is defined by mutual respect, trust and support. 
 

● Accountability:  Commitment to transparency and ongoing review of data will create a culture focused 
on results and continuous improvement in a fiscally sustainable manner. 

 
 
 



 

6. 

The District’s Goals: 
 

● College, Career and Life Ready Graduates:  Challenge and support all students to actively engage in 
rigorous and relevant curriculum that prepares them for college, career, and a fulfilling life, regardless of 
zip code, race/ethnicity, ability, language proficiency, and life circumstance. 

 
● Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students:  Provide supports and opportunities to ensure that 

every student succeeds, with safe school environments that foster student engagement, promote daily 
attendance, and remove barriers to learning. 
 

● Family and Community Empowerment:  Commit to a welcoming school environment for our community; 
recognize and align district partnerships; and provide tools and family empowerment opportunities that 
are linked to supporting student academic achievement and social emotional competencies in order for 
families to be equal and active partners in their child’s educational success. 

 
● Operational Excellence:  Be a service-focused organization.  Consistently serve students, families, staff 

and community with efficient and effective programs, practices, policies and procedures at every point of 
contact across the district. 
 

In addition to the Strategic Plan, the District’s Equity, Access, and Social Justice Guiding Principle – All students 
are given an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest 
array of options – guides decision making and resource allocation. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements  
 
This annual report consists of five parts: (1) management's discussion and analysis (this section); (2) the financial 
statements; (3) required supplementary information; (4) other supplementary information and (5) findings and 
recommendations.   
 
The remainder of the MD&A highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements. 
 
The financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District: district-wide 
financial statements and fund financial statements. The financial statements also include notes that explain some 
of the information in the statements and provide more detail.   
 
The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term 
information about the District's overall financial position. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the 
District's assets and liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of resources. All current year revenues and 
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The 
District's activities are divided into two categories: 
 

● Governmental activities – Most of the District's basic services are included here, such as regular and 
special education, transportation and administration. State support from the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF) and categorical apportionments finance most of these activities. 

 
● Business-type activities – The District does not currently have any business-type activities. 

 
These two financial statements start on page 15.   
 
The remaining statements are fund financial statements that report on the District’s operations in more detail 
than the district-wide statements. These statements begin on page 17.   



7. 

District-wide Financial Condition 

The Statement of Net Position is a district-wide financial statement that reports all that the District owns (assets) 
and owes (liabilities). The District displays the book value of all district assets including buildings, land and 
equipment, and related depreciation, in this financial statement. Land is accounted for at purchase cost, not 
market value, and is not depreciated. Many school sites have low values because the District acquired the land 
many decades ago. School buildings are valued at their historical construction cost less depreciation. 
Comparative financial information as of June 30 from the Statement of Net Position is summarized in the 
following table:   

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Variance % Diff 

Capital Assets $626,455,604  $644,996,247  ($18,540,643) -3%

Other Assets  497,220,439   374,139,484   123,080,955  33% 

Total Assets  1,123,676,043   1,019,135,731   104,540,312  10% 

Deferred Outflows of Resources  157,772,361   194,852,094   (37,079,733) -19%

Current and Other Liabilities  186,148,504   119,959,555   66,188,949 55% 

Long-Term Liabilities  1,150,304,688   1,380,986,742   (230,682,054) -17%

Total Liabilities  1,336,453,192   1,500,946,297   (164,493,105) -11%

Deferred Inflows of Resources  562,512,156   448,594,060   113,918,096  25% 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
(net of related debt) 

167,912,958   155,836,813   12,076,145 8% 

Restricted Net Position  134,049,206   109,386,515   24,662,691 18% 

Unrestricted Net Position  (919,479,108)  (1,000,775,860) 81,296,752 8% 

Total Net Position ($617,516,944) ($735,552,532) $118,035,588 16% 

At the end of fiscal year 2021-22, the District had a total value of $1,323,124,465 in capital assets. Capital assets 
include land, buildings, site improvements, equipment and work in progress. Total accumulated depreciation 
amounted to $696,668,861. Net capital assets totaled $626,455,604, a decrease of $18,540,643 from prior year. 
Current and other liabilities include accounts payable, unpaid self-insurance claims and unearned revenue. The 
District ended the year with a total of $1,336,453,192 in outstanding obligations, which was a decrease of 
$164,493,105 over the prior year. The primary reason for the decrease in liabilities was a decrease of 
$263,218,000 in net pension liability. 



8. 

District-wide Financial Condition (Continued) 

The Statement of Activities is a district-wide financial statement that reports the District’s cost of instruction and 
other district activities, and the resources that fund individual and general activities of the District. Comparative 
financial information for the year ended June 30 is presented in the following table: 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Variance % Diff 

Expenses 

Governmental Activities: 

Instruction $355,420,397 $409,121,389 ($53,700,992) -13%

Instruction-Related Services 67,445,790 69,473,789 (2,027,999) -3%

Pupil Services 96,881,251 72,086,345 24,794,906 34% 

General Administration 30,037,239 40,238,698 (10,201,459) -25%

Plant Services 49,815,713 56,644,940 (6,829,227) -12%

Interest on Long-Term Debt  19,708,386 22,287,016 8,621,644 39% 

All Other Expenses and Outgo 8,618,788 4,672,295 3,946,493 84% 

Total Governmental Activity Expenses  627,927,564 674,524,472 (46,596,908) -7%

Revenues 

Charges For Services  5,790,443  5,422,128  368,315  7% 

Operating Grants and Contributions  263,236,219   258,221,937   5,014,282 2% 

Capital Grants and Contributions  3,691,945  1,919,710  1,772,235 92% 

Taxes Levied for General Purposes  128,197,988   119,809,569   8,388,419 7% 

Taxes Levied for Debt and Special 
Purposes 

 49,700,675  49,874,128  (173,453) 0% 

Unrestricted Federal and State Aid  288,315,825   320,443,498   (32,127,673) -10%

Interest and Investment Earnings  2,258,645  2,445,533  (186,888) -8%

Interagency Revenues  1,048,118   1,951,373   (903,255) -46%

Special and Extraordinary Items  -   -   -  0% 

Miscellaneous  3,731,177  4,673,730  (942,553)  -20% 

Total Revenues  745,963,152   764,761,606   (18,798,454) -3%

Change in Net Position $118,035,588  $90,237,134  $27,798,454  31% 



 

9. 

District-wide Financial Condition (Continued) 
 

The District overall experienced a $118,035,588 increase in net position. Total revenues decreased by 3% or 
$18,798,454 from the 2020-21 fiscal year primarily due to a decrease in unrestricted federal and state aid. Total 
expenditures decreased by 7% or $46,596,908 from the 2020-21 fiscal year. The slight decrease in expenditures 
is primarily due to a decrease in Instruction costs.   
 
 

             
            
            

            

             

           

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

     

 

      
 

             

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            
            

Instruction
$355,420,397 

57%

Instruction‐Related Services
$ 67,445,790 

11%

Pupil Services
$ 96,881,251 

15%

General Administration
$ 30,037,239 

5%

Plant Services
$ 49,815,713 

8%

Interest on Long‐Term Debt 
$19,708,386

3% All Other Expenses and Outgo
$ 8,618,788 

1%

EXPENSES

Charges for Services
$ 5,790,443 …

Operating Grants and Contributions
$ 263,236,219 

35%

Capital Grants and Contributions
$ 3,691,945 

0%

Taxes Levied for General Purposes
$ 128,197,988 

17%

Taxes Levied for Debt and Special 
Purposes

$ 49,700,675 
7%

Unrestricted Federal and State 
Aid

$ 288,315,825 …

Interest and Investment 
Earnings

$ 2,258,645 
0%

Miscellaneous
$ 3,731,177…

REVENUES



 

10. 

Fund Financial Statements 

 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds. A 
fund consists of a self-balancing set of accounts that the District uses to track specific sources of funding and 
spending on particular programs: 
 

● Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 
 
● The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (such as 

cafeteria funds) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (such as community facility funds). 
 
The District has three kinds of funds: 
 

● Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which 
focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flow in and out; 
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental 
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or 
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because 
this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we 
provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explain the 
relationship (or differences) between them. 

 
● Proprietary Funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary 

funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the district-wide statements. Enterprise funds 
(one type of proprietary fund) are the same as business-type activities, but provide more detail and 
additional information, such as cash flows. The District does not currently have any business-type 
activities. Internal service funds (another type of proprietary fund) are used to report activities that provide 
supplies and services for the District's other programs and activities. The District currently has one 
internal service fund, the Self-Insurance Fund, which includes Workers’ Compensation and Dental/Vision. 
 

● Fiduciary Funds - The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the 
scholarship fund. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used 
only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary 
activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in 
fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements because the 
District cannot use these assets to finance its operations. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11. 

General Fund Financial and Budgetary Highlights 
  
The General Fund accounts for the primary operations of the District.  The District’s initial budget is adopted by 
July 1. Over the course of the year, the District’s budget is revised several times to account for revised and new 
categorical funding appropriations and related expenditures, and to update budgets for prior year carryover 
amounts. The budget may also be revised to reflect mid-year changes to the State Budget which affect district 
funding. Additionally, the District is required to prepare expenditure reports and must include multi-year 
projections at least twice a year. The following table summarizes the General Fund budget to actual information 
for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

 Adopted Budget Year End Budget Actual 

Total Revenues $559,269,076 $739,275,991  $622,845,963 

Total Expenditures $591,276,906 $726,134,143  $639,401,978 

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) $3,350,481 $3,427,016 $502,095 

 
The net revenue increase of $180,006,915 between Adopted Budget and Year End Budget is due to an increase 
in Federal and State Revenue primarily due to the recognition of COVID related funding sources. 
 
The net increase to the total expenditure budget between Adopted and Year End Budget was $134,857,237, 
primarily due to budgeting expenditures for COVID related funding sources and the increase in salaries and 
benefits as a result of bargaining unit settlement agreements. 
 
Actual revenues were $116,430,028, or 15.75% below the Year End Budget, due primarily to changes in the 
recognition of COVID related funding sources due to less expenditures than projected. Actual expenditures were 
$86,732,165 or 11.94% below Year End Budget due to one time savings and less COVID funding source 
expenditures than projected.  
 
The following table summarizes the General Fund financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

Total Revenues $622,845,963 

Total Expenditures $639,401,978 

Total Other Financing Sources/ (Uses) $502,095 

Net Change ($16,053,920) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

12. 

 
District Reserves and Net Ending Balance 
 
Revenues that have not been expended during a budget year are carried over for expenditure in the subsequent 
year and are identified as the District’s “Net Ending Balance.” Included within the projected net ending balance 
is a “reserve for economic uncertainties.” The State requires districts of this size to retain an amount equal to 
2% of budgeted expenditures to cover unforeseen shortfalls in revenues or expenditures greater than budgeted. 
Also included in the net ending balance are carryover balances that originated from sources that can only be 
used for specific purposes. These “restricted” resources can only be spent on the purposes determined by the 
grantor, and the balances in these accounts carry the same restrictions as the originating revenue. 
 
The District also has the option of committing or assigning the ending balance. Committing funds requires the 
Board of Education to designate the funds for any purpose by a majority vote at a Board meeting. Once the funds 
are committed, the amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board takes action to remove or 
change the constraints for the committed funds. The Board has not taken any action in 2021-22 to commit funds. 
Assigned ending balances are constrained by the District’s intent but are neither restricted nor committed. An 
example of assignment is designating the ending balance to be used for a future textbook adoption. 
 
The chart below represents the District’s financial analysis of its Governmental and Proprietary Funds:  
 
 

Ending Fund Balances June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Difference 

Fund 01 General $109,852,797  $125,906,717  ($16,053,920) 

Fund 08 Student Activity Fund $1,447,941  $1,219,952  $227,989  

Fund 09 Charter Schools $9,347,446  $6,381,614  $2,965,832  

Fund 11 Adult Education $1,384,337  $801,095  $583,242  

Fund 12 Child Development $880,662  $413,039  $467,623  

Fund 13 Cafeteria $14,581,388  $16,414,434  ($1,833,046) 

Fund 21 Building $104,526,405  $34,418,837  $70,107,568  

Fund 25 Developer Fees $23,726,622  $19,607,667  $4,118,955  

Fund 35 County School Facilities Fund  $4,891  $418  $4,473  

Fund 49 Community Facilities $1,113,186  $1,106,162  $7,024  

Fund 51 Bond Interest and Redemption $36,744,469  $40,845,636  ($4,101,167) 

Fund 61 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund $5,752 $0 $5,752 

Fund 67 Self Insurance $12,847,529  $12,632,456  $215,297  

 
 

 
 
 



 

13. 

 
 
Capital Projects 
  
Modernization and construction projects are scheduled to continue as we update our existing facilities and 
continue to close out construction projects.  With the passage of Bond Measures Q and R in 2012 and Measure 
H in 2020, the District continues facility improvements, modernization and construction projects that enhance 
the learning environment.   
 
Total Expenditures for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022  
 
Measure Q Total $11,151,525     
 

● Program Management Expenditures $   1,522,713 

● Completed Project Expenditures: 

▪ Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $   2,691,031 
▪ Technology Upgrades $          6,686 

 
● In Progress Project Expenditures: 

▪ Modernization, Repair & Upgrades $   5,783,540 

● Debt issuance expenditures $1,147,555 
  
Measure R Total $         474,036 

 

● Program Management Expenditures $     103,982 

● In Progress Project Expenditures: 

o Hiram Johnson Stadium $     351,602 

● Completed Project Expenditures: 

▪ Nutrition Services Center $       18,452 

 

Summary of Future Projects as of June 30, 2022 

Project Year(s) Projects Estimated Budget 

Measure Q Total $    100,800,000 

2022-2024 Core Academic Renovation $   16,988,613 
2022-2024 District Wide Fire & Irrigation Improvements $     3,060,000 
2022-2024 Modernization, Repair, and Upgrade Projects $   75,848,037 
2022-2024 

 
Resource & Energy Conservation Improvement 
Projects 

$     2,353,350 

2022-2024 Program Management $     2,550,000 
 
Measure R Total $          800,000 

2022-2024 Athletic Improvements $      800,000 



 

14. 

Measure H Total $    224,472,460 

2022-2025 Academic and Safety Equal Access – New 
Construction and Major Modernization 

$147,000,000 

2022-2025 School and Classroom Improvements – Campus 
Renewal / Furniture Replacement / 
Sustainability/Energy Reduction 

$  64,375,000 

2022-2025 Safety and Security Improvements – Safety / Path of 
Travel Remediation 

$    5,000,000 
 

2022-2025 PE and Athletic Programs - Playground Structures $    5,000,000 
2022-2025 Program Management $    3,097,460 

 
District Indebtedness  
 
As of June 30, 2022, the District has incurred $1,150,304,688 in long-term liabilities. Of this amount, 
$469,262,966 are General Obligation Bonds and $25,182,150 are Accreted Interest backed by property tax 
increases voted on by District residents in 1999, 2002 and 2012. Additionally, $55,030,000 is Lease Revenue 
Bonds, backed by Developer Fees and Mello-Roos Community Facilities funds 

 
The District continues to provide lifetime health benefits to eligible retirees. The recognized net OPEB liability 
decreased by $9,504,754 from $317,738,269 to $ 308,233,515 due to sustained contributions to the District’s 
OPEB trust. Continued contributions at the Actuarially Determined Contribution level have resulted in an 
improved (higher) discount rate assumed for the actuarial report. 
 
Financial Outlook  
 
Ongoing risks include a continued projected decline in ADA, increased operating expenditures, such as rising 
special education costs and pension and health premium increases, and uncertain future state resources. 
However, the District is projecting improved fiscal stability due to the increase in on-going state funding.  
 
The District’s 2022-23 First Interim multi-year projections indicate that the District will be able to meet its financial 
obligations for the current and two subsequent years. The District has taken measures to reduce expenditures 
and increase reserves over the last few fiscal years, including one-time savings as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. The District has also passed two Fiscal Recovery Plans, one on February 4, 2021 and the second on 
December 17, 2021 to help address the District’s ongoing structural deficit. As of the 2022-23 First interim report 
the District is projected to have positive cash balances at June 30 for all three fiscal years 2022-23, 2023-2024 
and 2024-2025. The District continues to work with its labor partners, community stakeholders, the Sacramento 
County Office of Education and assigned fiscal advisor to maintain fiscal stability. 
 
 



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
15. 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2) 416,761,953$          5,917$                     416,767,870$          
Receivables 78,906,637              -                               78,906,637              

Prepaid expenses 20,380                     -                               20,380                     
Stores inventory 1,531,469                -                               1,531,469                
Non-depreciable capital assets (Note 4) 40,643,482              -                               40,643,482              
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation (Note 4) 585,812,122            -                               585,812,122            

Total assets 1,123,676,043         5,917                       1,123,681,960         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outf low s of resources - pensions (Notes 8 and 9) 95,354,777              -                               95,354,777              

Deferred outf low s of resources - OPEB (Note 10) 61,176,944              -                               61,176,944              

Deferred loss on refunding of debt 1,240,640                -                               1,240,640                

Total deferred outf low s of resources 157,772,361            -                               157,772,361            

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 171,700,536            165                          171,700,701            

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (Note 5) 330,273                   -                               330,273                   
Unearned revenue 14,117,695              -                               14,117,695              
Long-term liabilities (Note 6):

Due w ithin one year 30,270,887              -                               30,270,887              

Due after one year 1,120,033,801         -                               1,120,033,801         

Total liabilities 1,336,453,192         165                          1,336,453,357         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflow s of resources - OPEB (Note 10) 331,490,156            -                               331,490,156            

Deferred inflow s of resources - pensions (Notes 8 and 9) 231,022,000            -                               231,022,000            

Total deferred inflow s of resources 562,512,156            -                               562,512,156            

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 167,912,958            -                               167,912,958            
Restricted:

Legally restricted programs 72,460,038              -                               72,460,038              

Capital projects 24,844,699              -                               24,844,699              

Debt service 36,744,469              -                               36,744,469              
Unrestricted (919,479,108)           5,752                       (919,473,356)           

Total net position (617,516,944)$         5,752$                     (617,511,192)$         
 

 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
16. 

Program Revenues
Charges Operating Capital

for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:
Instruction 355,420,397$        466,213$               137,769,967$        3,691,945$            (213,492,272)$       -$                          (213,492,272)$       
Instruction-related services:

Supervision and administration 30,262,665            203,764                 24,452,945            -                            (5,605,956)             -                            (5,605,956)             
Library, media and technology 2,525,062              -                            588,009                 -                            (1,937,053)             -                            (1,937,053)             
School site administration 34,658,063            48,332                   6,516,891              -                            (28,092,840)           -                            (28,092,840)           

Pupil services:
Home-to-school transportation 10,140,372            -                            2,621,500              -                            (7,518,872)             -                            (7,518,872)             
Food services 32,442,628            (70,438)                 31,581,472            -                            (931,594)                -                            (931,594)                
All other pupil services 54,298,251            715,896                 37,492,903            -                            (16,089,452)           -                            (16,089,452)           

General administration:
Centralized data processing 5,245,901              (1,571)                   1,186,558              -                            (4,060,914)             -                            (4,060,914)             
All other general administration 24,791,338            31,580                   9,452,883              -                            (15,306,875)           -                            (15,306,875)           

Plant services 49,815,713            561,174                 5,377,810              -                            (43,876,729)           -                            (43,876,729)           
Ancillary services 4,428,277              5,983                     1,538,556              -                            (2,883,738)             -                            (2,883,738)             
Community services 269,048                 -                            -                            -                            (269,048)                -                            (269,048)                
Enterprise activities 216,782                 -                            220                        -                            (216,562)                -                            (216,562)                
Other outgo 3,704,681              3,829,510              4,656,505              -                            4,781,334              -                            4,781,334              
Interest on long-term liabilities 19,708,386            -                            -                            -                            (19,708,386)           -                            (19,708,386)           

Total governmental activities 627,927,564          5,790,443              263,236,219          3,691,945              (355,208,957)         -                            (355,208,957)         

Business-Type activities:
Enterprise activities 2,122                     -                            -                            -                            -                            (2,122)                   (2,122)                   

Total governmental and business-
type activities 627,929,686$        5,790,443$            263,236,219$        3,691,945$            (355,208,957)         (2,122)                   (355,211,079)         

General revenues:
Taxes and subventions:

Taxes levied for general purposes 128,197,988          -                            128,197,988          
Taxes levied for debt service 44,609,563            -                            44,609,563            
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 5,091,112              -                            5,091,112              

Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 288,315,825          -                            288,315,825          
Interest and investment earnings (loss) 2,258,645              (9)                          2,258,636              
Interagency revenues 1,048,118              -                            1,048,118              
Miscellaneous 3,723,294              7,883                     3,731,177              

Total general revenues 473,244,545          7,874                     473,252,419          

Change in net position 118,035,588          5,752                     118,041,340          

Net position, July 1, 2021 (735,552,532)         -                            (735,552,532)         

Net position, June 30, 2022 (617,516,944)$       5,752$                   (617,511,192)$       

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in
Net Position

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
17. 

Bond
Interest and All Total

General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Cash in County Treasury 205,714,672$  20,470,786$     48,840,891$     41,313,728$     316,340,077$  
Cash in banks 42,883               354,956             -                          1,923,639         2,321,478         
Cash in revolving fund 225,000             -                          -                          2,000                 227,000             
Cash with fiscal agent -                          87,288,005       -                          -                          87,288,005       
Collections awaiting deposit -                          -                          -                          14,650               14,650               

Receivables 32,178,242       72,841               138,303             7,492,989         39,882,375       
Due from grantor governments 33,790,821       -                          -                          5,187,834         38,978,655       
Due from other funds 2,946,568         22,304               -                          2,928,182         5,897,054         
Prepaid expenditures 16,100               -                          -                          4,280                 20,380               

Stores inventory 105,262             -                          -                          1,426,207         1,531,469         

Total assets 275,019,548$  108,208,892$  48,979,194$     60,293,509$     492,501,143$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 81,311,912$     3,682,487$       12,234,725$     1,612,947$       98,842,071$     
Due to grantor governments 65,820,039       -                          -                          1,649,951         67,469,990       
Unearned revenue 13,077,997       -                          -                          1,039,698         14,117,695       
Due to other funds 4,956,803         -                          -                          3,504,440         8,461,243         

Total liabilities 165,166,751     3,682,487         12,234,725       7,807,036         188,890,999     

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 346,362             -                          -                          1,432,487         1,778,849         
Restricted 44,818,264       104,526,405     36,744,469       51,053,986       237,143,124     
Assigned 15,891,754       -                          -                          -                          15,891,754       
Unassigned 48,796,417       -                          -                          -                          48,796,417       

Total fund balances 109,852,797     104,526,405     36,744,469       52,486,473       303,610,144     

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 275,019,548$  108,208,892$  48,979,194$     60,293,509$     492,501,143$  

 
 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET - 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  
June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
18. 

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds 303,610,144$          

position are different because:

resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in
governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $1,323,124,465 and

the accumulated depreciation is $696,668,861 (Note 4). 626,455,604            

therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.
Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2022 consisted of (Note 6):

General Obligation Bonds (469,262,966)$         
Accreted interest (25,182,150)             
Lease Revenue Bonds (55,030,000)             
Premium on issuance (40,016,725)             
Net pension liability (Notes 8 and 9) (247,054,000)           
Net OPEB liability (Note 10) (308,233,515)           
Compensated absences (5,525,332)               

(1,150,304,688)        

costs are charged to other funds on a full cost-recovery basis. Net
position of the Self-Insurance Fund is: 12,847,529              

recognized until the period in w hich it matures and is paid. In the
government-w ide statement of activities, it is recognized in the
period that it is incurred: (5,385,738)               

period they are incurred. In the government-w ide statements, they
are categorized as deferred outf low s and are amortized over the life
of the related debt. 1,240,640                

relating to other postemployment benefits (OPEB) are not reported
because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outf low s and inflow s of resources relating to OPEB
are reported (Note 10).

Deferred outf low s of resources relating to OPEB 61,176,944              
Deferred inf low s of resources relating to OPEB (331,490,156)           

(270,313,212)           

relating to pensions are not reported because they are applicable to
future periods. In the statement of net position, deferred outf low s
and inflow s of resources relating to pensions are reported (Notes 8
and 9).

Deferred outf low s of resources relating to pensions 95,354,777              
Deferred inf low s of resources relating to pensions (231,022,000)           (135,667,223)           

Total net position - governmental activities (617,516,944)$         

In governmental funds, deferred outf low s and inflow s of resources

In governmental funds, deferred outf low s and inflow s of resources

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not f inancial

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for w hich

In the governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is not

Losses on the refunding of debt are recognized as expenditures in the

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
19. 

Bond
Interest and All Total

General Building Redemption Non-Major Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenues:
Local control funding formula (LCFF):

State apportionment 276,528,575$ -$                    -$                    16,622,320$   293,150,895$ 
Local sources 114,895,574   -                      -                      -                      114,895,574   

Total LCFF 391,424,149   -                      -                      16,622,320     408,046,469   

Federal sources 120,733,568   -                      -                      36,791,987     157,525,555   
Other state sources 104,713,852   -                      300,894          16,272,451     121,287,197   
Other local sources 5,974,394       242,171          46,144,802     14,461,823     66,823,190     

Total revenues 622,845,963   242,171          46,445,696     84,148,581     753,682,411   

Expenditures:
Current:

Certif icated salaries 237,235,646   -                      -                      14,728,357     251,964,003   
Classif ied salaries 76,904,101     595,674          -                      13,503,026     91,002,801     
Employee benefits 185,060,292   345,063          -                      19,051,682     204,457,037   
Books and supplies 26,193,255     8,519              -                      14,879,399     41,081,173     
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 103,385,895   2,227,633       -                      4,758,527       110,372,055   
Other outgo 1,473,819       -                      -                      -                      1,473,819       

Capital outlay 9,148,969       8,892,742       -                      1,033,527       19,075,238     
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                      -                      40,800,000     2,825,000       43,625,000     
Interest -                      -                      21,139,437     2,637,404       23,776,841     

Total expenditures 639,401,977   12,069,631     61,939,437     73,416,922     786,827,967   

(Deficiency) excess of
revenues (under) over
expenditures (16,556,014)    (11,827,460)    (15,493,741)    10,731,659     (33,145,556)    

Other f inancing sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,162,296       3,687,472       -                      2,660,202       9,509,970       
Transfers out (2,660,202)      -                      -                      (6,849,768)      (9,509,970)      
Proceeds from the sale of bonds -                      110,455,000   -                      -                      110,455,000   
Deposit to escrow  fund for refunding (36,956,815)    -                      -                      (36,956,815)    
Premiums from issuance of bonds -                      4,749,370       11,392,574     -                      16,141,944     

Total other f inancing sources 
(uses) 502,094          81,935,027     11,392,574     (4,189,566)      89,640,129     

Change in fund balances (16,053,920)    70,107,567     (4,101,167)      6,542,093       56,494,573     

Fund balances, July 1, 2021 125,906,717   34,418,838     40,845,636     45,944,380     247,115,571   

Fund balances, June 30, 2022 109,852,797$ 104,526,405$ 36,744,469$   52,486,473$   303,610,144$ 
 

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -  
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
20. 

Net change in fund balances - Total Governmental Funds 56,494,573$         

activities are different because:

funds, but increases capital assets in the statement of

net position (Note 4). 19,083,643            

in the governmental funds (Note 4). (37,571,451)          

of capital assets is reported as revenue (loss). In the statement of
activities, only the resulting gain or loss is reported (Note 4) (52,835)                  

in the governmental funds, but increases the long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 6). (110,455,000)        

expenditure in the governmental funds, but decreases the

long-term liabilities in the statement of net position (Note 6). 43,625,000            

governmental funds, but decreases the long-term liabilities in the

statement of net position (Note 6). 36,815,000            

governmental funds (Note 6). (2,312,750)             

recognized as an other financing source in the governmental
funds, but decreases the liability in the statement of net
position. (Note 6). (9,516,481)             

resources are not recognized. In the government-wide
statements, deferred inflows and deferred outflows of
resources are amortized over the life of the debt. The net activity
in the deferred outflow for the current year is: (357,194)                

recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in
the period that it is incurred. 182,360                 

Payments made to the refunding escrow is an other financing use in

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities is an

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

Acquisition of capital assets is an expenditure in the governmental

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not recorded

In the governmental funds, the entire proceeds (loss) from the

Proceeds from debt are recognized as other financing sources

Premiums related to the issuance of long-term liabilities is

Accreted interest is an expense that is not recorded in the

In governmental funds, deferred inflows and deferred outflows of

In governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is

 
 

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -  
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
21. 

which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost recovery
basis. The change in net position for the Self-Insurance Fund
was: 215,073$               

employer contributions are made. In the statement of
activities, pension costs are recognized on the accrual basis.
This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension
costs and actual employer contributions was (Notes 8 and 9): 44,213,000            

absences are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured
by the amount of financial resources used (Notes 6). (196,469)                

liability are measured by the amounts earned during the year.
In the governmental funds, expenditures are measured by the
amount of financial resources used (Notes 6 and 10). 77,869,119            

Change in net position of governmental activities 118,035,588$       

In the statement of activities, expenses related to compensated

In the statement of activities, expenses related to net OPEB

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities for

In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when

 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
22. 

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Cafeteria Self

Enterprise Insurance
Fund Fund

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments:

Cash in County Treasury (1,114)$          10,319,957$   
Cash in banks 7,031             786                
Cash with fiscal agent -                    250,000          

Receivables -                    45,607           
Due from other funds -                    2,569,034       

Total current assets 5,917             13,185,384     

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 165                2,737             
Due to other funds -                    4,845             
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses -                    330,273          

Total current liabilities 165                337,855          

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 5,752$           12,847,529$   
 

 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN  

NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
23. 

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Cafeteria Self

Enterprise Insurance
Fund Fund

Operating revenues:
Self insurance premiums -$                      14,182,526$                
Other state revenue -                       65                              
Other local revenue 12,723               -                                

Total operating revenues 12,723               14,182,591                 

Operating expenses:
Classified salaries 5,612                355,089                      
Employee benefits 498                   211,459                      
Books and supplies 355                   26,014                        
Contract services 497                   767                            
Provision for claims and claim adjustment expenses -                       13,431,429                 

Total operating expenses 6,962                14,024,758                 

Net operating income 5,761                157,833                      

Non-operating income:
Interest (loss) income (9)                      57,240                        

Change in net position 5,752                215,073                      

Total net position, July 1, 2021 -                       12,632,456                 

Total net position, June 30, 2022 5,752$               12,847,529$                
 

 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
24. 

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Cafeteria Self

Enterprise Insurance
Fund Fund

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Cash received from self-insurance premiums and other revenue 12,723$             16,440,276$       
Cash paid for employee benefits (6,110)               -                       
Cash paid for claims -                       (13,559,589)       
Cash paid for other expenses (687)                  (4,014,755)         

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,926                (1,134,068)         

Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities:
Interest income received (9)                      57,240               

Change in cash and investments 5,917                (1,076,828)         

Cash and investments, July 1, 2021 -                       11,647,571        

Cash and investments, June 30, 2022 5,917$               10,570,743$       

Reconciliation of net operating income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Net operating income 5,761$               157,833$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables -                       2,257,685          
Due from other funds -                       (2,568,952)         

(Decrease) increase in:
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses -                       (128,160)            
Accounts payable 165                   (857,319)            
Due to other funds -                       4,845                

Total adjustments 165                   (1,291,901)         

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,926$               (1,134,068)$       
 

 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

TRUST FUND 
 June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
25. 

Scholarship
Trust

ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2)
Cash on hand and in banks 454,456$     

NET POSITION

Restricted for scholarships 454,456$     
 

 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

TRUST FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 
26. 

Scholarship
Trust

Additions:
Other local sources 51,541$       

Deduction: 
Contract services and operating

expenditures 32,486         

Change in net position 19,055         

Net position, July 1, 2021 435,401       

Net position, June 30, 2022 454,456$      
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
27. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District (the "District") accounts for its financial transactions in accordance 
with the policies and procedures of the California Department of Education's California School Accounting 
Manual. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The following 
is a summary of the more significant policies: 
 
Reporting Entity: The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance responsibilities 
over all activities related to public school education in the District. The Board is not included in any other 
governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board 
members have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to 
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 
 
The District, Sacramento County Schools Education Facilities Financing Corporation (the "Corporation") 
and Sacramento City Schools Joint Powers Financing Authority (the "Authority") have a financial and 
operational relationship which meet the reporting entity definition criteria of the Codification of 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, for inclusion of the 
Corporation and Authority as a component unit of the District. Therefore, the financial activities of the 
Corporation and the Authority have been included in the basic financial statements of the District as a 
blended component unit. 
 
The following are those aspects of the relationship between the District, the Corporation and the Authority 
which satisfy Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, 
criteria: 
 
A - Manifestations of Oversight 
 
1. The Corporation's and the Authority's Boards of Directors were appointed by the District's Board of 
 Education. 
 
2. The Corporation and the Authority have no employees. The District's Superintendent and Chief Business 

& Operations Officer function as agents of the Corporation and the Authority. Neither individual received 
additional compensation for work performed in this capacity. 

 
3. The District exercises significant influence over operations of the Corporation and the Authority as it is 

anticipated that the District will be the sole lessee of all facilities owned by the Corporation and the 
Authority. 

 
B - Accounting for Fiscal Matters 
 
1.  All major financing arrangements, contracts, and other transactions of the Corporation and the Authority 

must have the consent of the District. 
 
2. Any deficits incurred by the Corporation and the Authority will be reflected in the lease payments of the 

District. Any surpluses of the Corporation and the Authority revert to the District at the end of the lease 
period. 

 
3. It is anticipated that the District's lease payments will be the sole revenue source of the Corporation and 

the Authority. 
  
4. The District has assumed a "moral obligation," and potentially a legal obligation, for any debt incurred 

by the Corporation and the Authority. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
28. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
C - Scope of Public Service and Financial Presentation 
 
1. The Corporation and the Authority were created for the sole purpose of financially assisting the District. 
 
2. The Corporation is a nonprofit, public benefit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of 

California and recorded by the Secretary of State. The Authority was created pursuant to a joint powers 
agreement between the District and the California Statewide Communities Development Authority, 
pursuant to the California Government Code, commencing with Section 6500. The Corporation and the 
Authority were formed to provide financing assistance to the District for construction and acquisition of 
major capital facilities. Upon completion the District intends to occupy all Corporation and Authority 
facilities. When the Authority's Lease Revenue Bonds have been paid with state reimbursements and 
the District's developer fees, title of all Corporation and Authority property will pass to the District for no 
additional consideration. 

 
3. The Corporation's and the Authority's financial activity is presented in the financial statements in the 

Building Fund. Lease Revenue Bonds issued by the Authority are included in the government-wide 
financial statements. There are currently no outstanding Certificates of Participation under the 
Corporation as of June 30, 2022. 

 
Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are 
not included in the government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Position at the fund 
financial statement level. 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and 
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes 
place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions 
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Codification Section (GASB Cod. Sec.) N50.118-.121. 
 
Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the 
program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues 
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the District's general revenues. 
 
Allocation of indirect expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of 
Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Depreciation expense is 
specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of the respective function. Interest 
on general long-term liabilities is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the 
Statement of Activities. 
  
Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting: The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, 
each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted 
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, 
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in 
individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 
activities are controlled. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
29. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
A - Major Funds: 
 
1. General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and accounts for all 

revenues and expenditures of the District not encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues 
and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are 
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures and the capital improvement costs that are 
not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund. 

 
2. Building Fund: The Building Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for resources used for the 

acquisition or construction of capital facilities by the District. 
 
3. Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: The Bond Interest and Redemption Fund is a debt service fund 

used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt 
principal, interest, and related costs. All records relating to the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund are 
maintained by the Sacramento County Auditor-Controller. The revenue for this fund is raised by school 
district taxes which are levied, collected, and administered by County officials. The Education Code 
stipulates that the tax rate levied shall be sufficient to provide monies for the payment of principal and 
interest as they become due on outstanding school district bonds. 

 
B - Other Funds: 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. This classification includes the Student Activity, 
Charter Schools, Adult Education, Child Development and Cafeteria Funds. 
 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources used for the acquisition or construction of 
capital facilities by the District. This classification includes the Developer Fees, County School Facilities 
and Community Facilities Funds. 
 
The Self-Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for services rendered on a cost- 
reimbursement basis within the District. The Self-Insurance Fund is used to provide workers' compensation, 
dental and vision benefits to employees of the District. 
 
The Cafeteria Enterprise Fund is an enterprise fund within the District to operate a food service program 
including non-student related catering programs and other local food programs. 
 
The Scholarship Fund is a trust fund used to account for amounts held by the District as Trustee, to be 
used to provide scholarships to students of the District. 
 
Basis of Accounting: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to 
the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
 
Accrual: The governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary and 
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
30. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Modified Accrual: The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to 
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 
60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and 
interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by 
July 1. A public hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education 
complied with these requirements. 
 
Receivables: Receivables are made up principally of amounts due from the State of California and 
Categorical programs. The District has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was required 
as of June 30, 2022. 
 
Stores Inventory: Inventories in the General, Student Activity and Cafeteria Funds are valued at average 
cost. Inventory recorded in the General, Student Activity and Cafeteria Funds consists mainly of school 
supplies and consumable supplies. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the time the individual 
inventory items are transferred from the warehouse to schools and offices. 
 
Capital Assets: Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at acquisition value for the 
contributed asset. Additions, improvements and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life 
of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over 3 - 30 years depending on asset types. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources: In addition to assets, the statement of net position includes a 
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s), and as 
such will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The District has 
recognized a deferred loss on refunding reported in the Statement of Net Position. A deferred loss on 
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter life of the refunded or refunding debt. Additionally, the 
District has recognized a deferred outflow of resources related to the recognition of the net pension liability 
and net OPEB liability reported in the Statement of Net Position. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and as such, will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has recognized a deferred inflow of resources 
related to the recognition of the net pension liability and net OPEB liability reported in the Statement of Net 
Position. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
31. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) and Public Employers Retirement Fund B (PERF B) and 
additions to/deductions from STRP’s and PERF B’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by STRP and PERF B. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Certain investments are reported at fair value. 
 

STRP PERF B Total

Deferred outflows of resources 76,393,774$         18,961,003$         95,354,777$         

Deferred inflows of resources 184,309,000$       46,713,000$         231,022,000$       

Net pension liability 153,342,000$       93,712,000$         247,054,000$       

Pension expense 21,523,128$         5,858,087$          27,381,215$         
 

 
Compensated Absences: Compensated absences totaling $5,525,332 are recorded as a long-term liability 
of the District. The liability is for the earned but unused benefits. 
 
Accumulated Sick Leave: Sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's 
policy is to record sick leave as an operating expenditure or expense in the period taken since such benefits 
do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period 
for calculation of retirement benefits for certain STRP and PERF B employees, when the employee retires. 
 
Unearned Revenue: Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized 
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are recorded as unearned 
revenue until earned. 
  
Net Position: Net position is displayed in three components: 
 
1. Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 

accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances (excluding unspent bond proceeds) 
of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

 
2. Restricted Net Position - Restrictions of the ending net position indicate the portions of net position not 

appropriable for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restriction for 
legally restricted programs represents the portion of net position restricted to specific program 
expenditures. The restriction for debt service repayments represents the portion of net position which 
the District plans to expend on debt repayment in the ensuing year. The restriction for capital projects 
represents the portion of net position restricted for capital projects. The restriction for scholarships 
represents the portion of net position to be used to provide financial assistance to students of the District. 
It is the District's policy to first use restricted net position when allowable expenditures are incurred. 

 
3. Unrestricted Net Position – All other net position that does not meet the definitions of "restricted" or "net 

investment in capital assets". 
 
Fund Balance Classifications: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Sections 1300 and 
1800, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800) 
implements a five-tier fund balance classification hierarchy that depicts the extent to which a government 
is bound by spending constraints imposed on the use of its resources. The five classifications, discussed 
in more detail below, are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
32. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
A - Nonspendable Fund Balance: The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are 
not in spendable form, such as revolving fund cash, store’s inventory and prepaid expenditures. 
 
B - Restricted Fund Balance: The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to 
externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These are the same restrictions used to determine 
restricted net position as reported in the government-wide and fiduciary trust fund statements. 
 
C - Committed Fund Balance: The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal 
constraints self-imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. The constraints giving rise to 
committed fund balance must be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts 
may be determined subsequent to that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. Formal 
action by the Board of Education is required to remove any commitment from any fund balance. At June 
30, 2022, the District had no committed fund balances. 
 
D - Assigned Fund Balance: The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the District's 
Board of Education has approved to be used for specific purposes, based on the District's intent related to 
those specific purposes. The Board of Education can designate personnel with the authority to assign fund 
balances, however, as of June 30, 2022, no such designation has occurred. 
 
E - Unassigned Fund Balance: In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects 
the residual balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes. 
 
In any fund other than the General Fund, a positive unassigned fund balance is never reported because 
amounts in any other fund are assumed to have been assigned, at least, to the purpose of that fund. 
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund, that cannot be eliminated by reducing or 
eliminating amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance. 
 
Fund Balance Policy: The District has an expenditure policy relating to fund balances. For purposes of fund 
balance classifications, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balances first, followed in order 
by committed fund balances (if any), assigned fund balances and lastly unassigned fund balances. 
 
While GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do not require Districts to establish a minimum fund balance policy 
or a stabilization arrangement, GASB Cod. Sec. 1300 and 1800 do require the disclosure of a minimum 
fund balance policy and stabilization arrangements, if they have been adopted by the Board of Education. 
At June 30, 2022, the District has not established a minimum fund balance policy nor has it established a 
stabilization arrangement. 
 
Property Taxes: Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. 
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are 
due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of Sacramento bills and collects taxes for the 
District. Tax revenues are recognized by the District when received. 
 
Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable 
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, 
contracts, and other commitments when they are written. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
33. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Eliminations and Reclassifications: In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were 
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing 
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities column. 
 
Estimates: The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 
GASB 87 requires the recognition of certain assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified 
as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. Under this statement a lease is required to be recognized as a lease liability and 
an intangible right to use lease asset and the lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and deferred 
inflow of resources. This statement was originally effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2019, but due to the adoption of GASB 95, the implementation date was extended to reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2021. District management performed an analysis and determined that the 
implementation of GASB 87 did not have a material impact on the District’s financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2022 are reported at fair value and consisted of the following: 
 

Governmental Proprietary Business-Type Fiduciary
Funds Fund Total Activities Activities

Pooled Funds:
Cash in County Treasury 316,340,077$     10,319,957$           326,660,034$     (1,114)$           -$              

Deposits:
Cash on hand and in banks 2,321,478            786                           2,322,264            7,031               454,456   
Cash in revolving fund 227,000               -                                227,000                -                        -                 
Cash awaiting deposit 14,650                  -                                14,650                  -                        -                 

Total deposits 2,563,128            786                           2,563,914            7,031               454,456   

Investments:
Cash with fiscal agent 87,288,005          250,000                   87,538,005          -                        -                 

Total cash and
  investments 406,191,210$     10,570,743$           416,761,953$     5,917$             454,456$ 

Governmental Activities

 
 
Pooled Funds: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of 
its cash in the interest-bearing Sacramento County Treasurer's Pooled Investment Fund. The District is 
considered to be an involuntary participant in the financial statements at the amounts based upon the 
District's pro-rate share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation 
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
34. 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk: The District limits custodial credit risk by ensuring uninsured balances are 
collateralized by the respective financial institution. Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and are collateralized by the respective financial 
institution. At June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the District's accounts was $3,025,401 and the bank 
balance was $2,582,400. $764,976 of the bank balance was FDIC insured and $1,817,424 remained 
uninsured. 
 
Cash with Fiscal Agent: Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Governmental Funds represents funds held by Fiscal 
Agents restricted for capital projects and repayment of General Obligation Bonds. The District holds their 
funds with the Sacramento County Treasurer. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
Cash with Fiscal Agent held in the Proprietary Fund represents funds held as required by the District's third-
party administrator, Schools’ Insurance Authority, for the District's self-insurance activities. 
 
Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
At June 30, 2022, the District had no significant interest rate risk related to cash and investments held. 
 
Credit Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices other 
than the limitations of state law. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk: The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one 
issuer. At June 30, 2022, the District had no concentration of credit risk. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Interfund Activity: Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as transfers, except for the Self-
Insurance Fund activity which is recorded as income and expenditures of the Self-Insurance Fund and the 
funds which incur payroll costs, respectively. The unpaid balances at year end, as a result of such 
transactions, are shown as due to and due from other funds. 
 
Interfund Receivables/Payables: Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2022 
were as follows: 
 

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables

Major Funds:
General 2,946,568$             4,956,803$             
Building Fund 22,304                    -                              

Non-Major Funds:
Charter Schools 1,362,003               51,594                    
Adult Education 328,731                  14,722                    
Child Development 441,071                  2,008,357               
Cafeteria 216,813                  1,276,124               
Developer Fees Fund 579,564                  153,643                  

Proprietary Fund:
Self-Insurance 2,569,034               4,845                      

Totals 8,466,088$             8,466,088$             
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
35. 

NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 
 
Transfers: Transfers consist of transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources 
are to be expended. 
 
Transfers for the 2021-2022 fiscal year were as follows: 
 

Transfer from the General Fund to the Adult Education Fund for contribution
  to support the adult education program. 1,578,731$          

Transfer from the General Fund to the Charter Schools Fund for contribution 
  related to the strike financial penalties. 1,081,471            

Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund for Charter 
  fees. 1,946,119            

Transfer from the Charter Schools Fund to the General Fund for indirect 
  costs. 13,905                 

Transfer from the Adult Education Fund to the General Fund for indirect 
  costs. 45,020                 

Transfer from the Child Development Fund to the General Fund for 
  indirect costs. 499,801               

Transfer from the Cafeteria Fund to the General Fund for indirect 
  costs. 657,451               

Transfer from the County School Facilities Fund to the Building Fund to 
  reimburse bond expenditures with State Bond reimbursement funds 
  for modernization and new construction projects. 3,687,472            

9,509,970$          
 

  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
36. 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 is shown below: 
 

Balance Transfers Transfers Balance

July 1, and and June 30,

2021 Additions Deductions 2022

Governmental Activities

Non-depreciable:

Land 21,223,495$     -$                        -$                        21,223,495$     

Work-in-process 75,201,659       9,785,835          65,567,507       19,419,987       

Depreciable:

Buildings 951,392,985     70,286,270       2,831,080          1,018,848,175  

Site improvements 194,744,052     736,965             458,331             195,022,686     

Equipment 65,604,066       3,842,080          836,024             68,610,122       

Totals, at cost 1,308,166,257  84,651,150       69,692,942       1,323,124,465  

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (493,159,007)    (25,466,442)      (2,793,522)        (515,831,927)    

Site improvements (117,082,962)    (7,829,086)        (443,054)            (124,468,994)    

Equipment (52,928,041)      (4,275,923)        (836,024)            (56,367,940)      

Total accumulated

depreciation (663,170,010)    (37,571,451)      (4,072,600)        (696,668,861)    

Capital assets, net 644,996,247$   47,079,699$     65,620,342$     626,455,604$   
 

 
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 
 

Instruction 30,970,583$   
Food services 2,183,678       
All other pupil services 1,608,411       
Community services 210,236          
All other general administration 2,030,629       
Plant services 567,914          

 
Total depreciation expense 37,571,451$   

 
 
 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
37. 

NOTE 5 – SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS 
 
The District has established a Self-Insurance Fund to account for employee vision benefits, employee 
dental benefits and workers' compensation plans. The employee vision and dental plans are self insured 
and contract with a third party administrator for benefits processing. Until July 31, 1998 and from July 1, 
2001 through June 30, 2005, the workers' compensation plan provided coverage up to $250,000 and 
purchased excess insurance for claims over the retained coverage limit. Between August 1, 1998 and 
June 30, 2001, and after July 1, 2005, the District purchased insurance for the workers' compensation 
coverage. 
 
The liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses represents the ultimate cost of claims that 
have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. These claims 
will be paid in future years. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been no significant reductions in 
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. 
 
District management recomputes the liability annually using available updated claims data. Annually, the 
District obtains an actuarial study using a variety of statistical techniques to produce current estimates that 
consider claim frequency and other economic factors. The liability for workers compensation is based on 
an actuarial study dated June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 
2021, respectively. 
 
The liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows: 
 

June 30, June 30,
2021 2022

Unpaid claim and claim adjustment expenses,
beginning of year 348,069$         458,433$         

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment
expenses 13,796,510       13,431,429       

Total payments (13,686,146)      (13,559,589)      

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenses at end of year 458,433$         330,273$         

 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
38. 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
General Obligation Bonds: A summary of General Obligation Bonds payable as of June 30, 2022 follows: 
 
The Series 2007, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 Serial Bonds are authorized 
pursuant to the Election of 2002 and Election of 2012, and are payable from property taxes levied by the 
County of Sacramento. 
 

Current
Balance Current Year Balance

Interest Original July 1, Year Refunded & June 30,
Series Rate Maturity 2021 Issuance Matured 2022

2007 - CA 4.6 - 4.8% 2032 26,077,966$      -$                  -$                  26,077,966$      

2011 0.5 - 5.5% 2029 36,815,000        -                    36,815,000        -                    

2012 2.0 - 5.3% 2031 67,935,000        -                    7,195,000          60,740,000        

2013 - A 2.0 - 5.0% 2038 11,245,000        -                    405,000             10,840,000        

2013 - B 5.7% 2038 40,000,000        -                    -                    40,000,000        

2014 2.0 - 5.0% 2027 28,590,000        -                    3,730,000          24,860,000        

2015 2.0 - 5.0% 2030 22,035,000        -                    3,455,000          18,580,000        

2015 C1 2.0 - 5.0% 2041 60,900,000        -                    1,890,000          59,010,000        

2016 2.0-4.0% 2041 12,075,000        -                    400,000             11,675,000        

2017 - E 3.0-5.0% 2047 91,535,000        -                    1,830,000          89,705,000        

2017 - C 3.0-5.0% 2047 9,615,000          -                    195,000             9,420,000          

2018 - F 2.46% 2025 1,500,000          -                    200,000             1,300,000          

2019 - D 2.375-5.0% 2049 28,100,000        -                    5,300,000          22,800,000        

2021 - G 0.32% - 4.00% 2050 -                    77,100,000        11,195,000        65,905,000        

2021 Refunding 4.00% 2030 -                    33,355,000        5,005,000          28,350,000        

436,422,966$    110,455,000$    77,615,000$      469,262,966$    
 

 
 
The annual requirements to amortize the General Obligation Bonds payable and outstanding as of June 
30, 2022 are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 18,680,000$         19,673,483$         38,353,483$         
2024 22,812,074            21,111,691            43,923,765            
2025 23,985,453            20,371,255            44,356,708            
2026 24,721,992            19,665,896            44,387,888            
2027 25,540,759            18,865,272            44,406,031            

2028-2032 112,305,239         85,417,330            197,722,569         
2033-2037 57,612,449            52,077,457            109,689,906         
2038-2042 102,795,000         25,088,550            127,883,550         
2043-2047 59,590,000            11,234,250            70,824,250            
2048-2050 21,220,000            1,613,175              22,833,175            

469,262,966$       275,118,359$       744,381,325$       
 

  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
39. 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
On October 25, 2007, the District issued 2007 General Obligation Bonds totaling $64,997,966. Bond 
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On June 30, 2011, the District issued 2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $79,585,000. Bond 
proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, and General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001. The refunded bonds have been fully repaid. 
 
On June 14, 2012, the District issued 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $113,245,000. 
Bond proceeds were used to advance refund all of the District's 1999 Series B, 1999 Series C, General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001, and the 2002 Series A. Proceeds were also used to advance 
refund a portion of the District's 1999 Series D Bonds. The refunded bonds have been fully repaid. 
 
On June 27, 2013, the District issued 2013 Series A and Series B General Obligation Bonds totaling 
$70,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On January 15, 2014, the District issued 2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $44,535,000. 
Bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the District's 2002 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005. 
The refunded bonds have been fully repaid. 
 
On January 8, 2015, the District issued 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $32,740,000. 
Bond proceeds were used to refund the District's 2002, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 and 2007. 
The refunded bonds have been fully repaid. 
 
On May 24, 2016, the District issued 2016 Series D General Obligation Bonds totaling $14,000,000. Bond 
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On May 25, 2017, the District issued 2017 Series C and Series E General Obligation Bonds totaling 
$122,000,000. Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On July 1, 2018, the District issued 2018 Series F General Obligation Bonds totaling $10,000,000. Bond 
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On November 21, 2019, the District issued 2019 Series D General Obligation Bonds totaling $30,900,000. 
Bond proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On July 8, 2021, the District issued 2021 Series G General Obligation Bonds totaling $77,100,000. Bond 
proceeds are to be used for construction related projects. 
 
On July 8, 2021, the District issued 2021 General Obligation Refunding Bonds totaling $33,355,000. Bond 
proceeds were used to refund the remaining portion of the District's 2011 GO Refunding Bonds. The 
refunded bonds have been fully repaid. 
 
Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $141,816 for the year 
ended June 30, 2022, the District in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $5,787,193 over 
the next 8 years and obtained an economic gain of $5,608,228. 
 

 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
40. 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Calculation of difference in cash flow requirements and economic gain are as follows: 
 
Calculation of Cash Flow Savings:

Old debt service cash flows 44,196,050$       
Less: New debt service cash flows 38,408,857        

Total cash flow savings 5,787,193$        

Calculation of Economic Gain:

PV of old debt service cash flows 42,805,309$       
PV of new debt service cash flows 37,197,081        

Total economic gain 5,608,228$        
 

 
Lease Revenue Bonds: On February 4, 2014, the District issued Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 
Series A and Series B, totaling $44,825,000 and $29,460,000, respectively. Bond proceeds were used to 
make lease payments to the District pursuant to the Facility Lease and additionally, advance refund all of 
the District's 2002 Variable Rate Certificates of Participation (2002 COP). The Series A and Series B Bonds 
are secured by certain revenues, which consist of rental payments to be made by the District out of its 
general fund under a facility sublease as well as interest earning on funds held under a trust agreement. 
 
The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series A bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.0% to 
5.0% and are scheduled to mature through 2040 as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 2,770,000$        1,358,500$        4,128,500$        
2024 2,915,000          1,220,000          4,135,000          
2025 3,025,000          1,074,250          4,099,250          
2026 235,000             923,000             1,158,000          
2027 -                       911,250             911,250             

2028-2032 -                       4,556,250          4,556,250          
2033-2037 9,650,000          3,861,750          13,511,750        
2038-2040 8,575,000          871,500             9,446,500          

27,170,000$       14,776,500$       41,946,500$       
 

 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
41. 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2014 Series B bonds bear an interest rate of 4.09% and are 
scheduled to mature through 2033 as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 200,000$           1,139,474$        1,339,474$        
2024 200,000             1,131,294          1,331,294          
2025 240,000             1,123,114          1,363,114          
2026 3,215,000          1,113,298          4,328,298          
2027 3,635,000          981,805             4,616,805          

2028-2032 18,185,000        2,553,816          20,738,816        
2033 2,185,000          89,367               2,274,367          

27,860,000$       8,132,168$        35,992,168$       
 

 
 
Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities: A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year 
ended June 30, 2022 is shown below: 
 

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022 One Year

Debt:
General Obligation Bonds 436,422,966$     110,455,000$     77,615,000$       469,262,966$     18,680,000$       

Accreted interest 22,869,400         2,312,750           -                          25,182,150         -                          

Lease Revenue Bonds 57,855,000         -                          2,825,000           55,030,000         2,970,000           

Premium on issuance 30,500,244         16,141,944         6,625,463           40,016,725         3,095,555           
Other Long-Term Liabilities:

Net Pension Liability
(Notes 8 & 9) 510,272,000       -                          263,218,000       247,054,000       -                          

Net OPEB liability (Note 10) 317,738,269       -                          9,504,754           308,233,515       -                          

Compensated absences 5,328,863           196,469              -                          5,525,332           5,525,332           

1,380,986,742$  129,106,163$     359,788,217$     1,150,304,688$  30,270,887$       
 

 
Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. 
Principal and interest payments on the Lease Revenue Bonds are made from the Community Facilities 
Fund and Developer Fees Fund. Payments on the Net Pension Liability, Net OPEB liability and 
compensated absences are made from the fund for which the related employee worked. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
42. 

NOTE 7 – FUND BALANCES 
 
Fund balances, by category, at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 
 

Bond
Interest and All

General Building Redemption Non-Major
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total

Nonspendable:

Revolving cash fund 225,000$          -$                       -$                      2,000$             227,000$          

Stores inventory 105,262            -                          -                        1,426,207       1,531,469         
Prepaid expenditures 16,100              -                          -                        4,280               20,380              

Subtotal nonspendable 346,362            -                          -                        1,432,487       1,778,849         

Restricted:

Legally restricted programs:

Grants (unspent categorical revenues) 44,818,264      -                          -                        -                        44,818,264      

Student body activities -                          -                          -                        1,442,007       1,442,007         

Adult education operations -                          -                          -                        1,380,057       1,380,057         

Child development -                          -                          -                        880,662          880,662            

Cafeteria operations -                          -                          -                        13,159,115     13,159,115      

Charter schools -                          -                          -                        9,347,446       9,347,446         

Capital projects -                          104,526,405    -                        24,844,699     129,371,104    
Debt service -                          -                          36,744,469     -                        36,744,469      

Subtotal restricted 44,818,264      104,526,405    36,744,469     51,053,986     237,143,124    

Assigned:

2021-22 LCAP Supplemental 8,598,986         -                          -                        -                        8,598,986         

Carryover Funds for Departments 6,290,527         -                          -                        -                        6,290,527         
School Site Supplemental carryover 1,002,241         -                          -                        -                        1,002,241         

Subtotal assigned 15,891,754      -                          -                        -                        15,891,754      

Unassigned:
Designated for economic

uncertainty 12,763,716      -                          -                        -                        12,763,716      
Unassigned 36,032,701      -                          -                        -                        36,032,701      

Subtotal unassigned 48,796,417      -                          -                        -                        48,796,417      

Total fund balances 109,852,797$  104,526,405$  36,744,469$  52,486,473$  303,610,144$   
 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
43. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
General Information about the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan 
 
Plan Description: Teaching-certified employees of the District are provided with pensions through the State 
Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) – a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS).  The Teachers' Retirement 
Law (California Education Code Section 22000 et seq.), as enacted and amended by the California 
Legislature, established this plan and CalSTRS as the administrator. The benefit terms of the plans may 
be amended through legislation.  CalSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained 
at http://www.calstrs.com. 
 
Benefits Provided: The STRP Defined Benefit Program has two benefit formulas: 
 
 CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could 

be creditable to CalSTRS. 
 CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be 

creditable to CalSTRS. 
 
The Defined Benefit (DB) Program provides retirement benefits based on members' final compensation, 
age and years of service credit. In addition, the retirement program provides benefits to members upon 
disability and to survivors/beneficiaries upon the death of eligible members. There are several differences 
between the two benefit formulas which are noted below. 
 
CalSTRS 2% at 60 - CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a 
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final 
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five 
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for 
retirements after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members 
who have 30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the 
age factor up to the is 2.4 percent maximum. 
 
CalSTRS calculates retirement benefits based on a one-year final compensation for members who retired 
on or after January 1, 2001, with 25 or more years of credited service, or for classroom teachers with less 
than 25 years of credited service if the employer elected to pay the additional benefit cost prior to January1, 
2014. One-year final compensation means a member’s highest average annual compensation earnable for 
12 consecutive months calculated by taking the creditable compensation that a member could earn in a 
school year while employed on a full-time basis, for a position in which the person worked. For members 
with less than 25 years of credited service, final compensation is the highest average annual compensation 
earnable for any 36 consecutive months of credited service. 
 
CalSTRS 2% at 62 - CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a 
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final 
compensation for each year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age 
factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.  
 
All CalSTRS 2% at 62 members have their final compensation based on their highest average annual 
compensation earnable for 36 consecutive months of credited service. 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
44. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Contributions: Required member, employer and state contribution rates are set by the California Legislature 
and Governor and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Current contribution rates were established by 
California Assembly Bill 1469 (CalSTRS Funding Plan), which was passed into law in June 2014, and 
various subsequent legislation. 
 
The CalSTRS Funding Plan established a schedule of contribution rate increases shared among members, 
employers, and the State of California to bring CalSTRS toward full funding by fiscal year 2046. California 
Senate Bill 90 and California Assembly Bill 84 (collectively the “Special Legislation”), were signed into law 
in June 2019 and June 2020, respectively, and provided supplemental contributions to the DB Program 
along with supplemental contribution rate relief to employers through fiscal year 2021–22. 
 
A summary of statutory contribution rates and other sources of contributions to the DB Program pursuant 
to the CalSTRS Funding Plan and the Special Legislation, are as follows: 
 
Members - Under CalSTRS 2% at 60, the member contribution rate was 10.250 percent of applicable 
member earnings for fiscal year 2021-2022.  
 
Under CalSTRS 2% at 62, members contribute 50 percent of the normal cost of their retirement plan, which 
resulted in a contribution rate of 10.205 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year 2021-2022.  
 
According to current law, the contribution rate for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members is adjusted if the normal 
cost increases or decreases by more than 1 percent since the last time the member contribution rate was 
set. Based on the June 30, 2020, valuation adopted by the board in June 2021, the increase in normal cost 
was less than 1 percent. Therefore, the contribution rate for CalSTRS 2% at 62 members did not change 
effective July 1, 2021. 
 
Employers – 16.920 percent of applicable member earnings.  This rate reflects the original employer 
contribution rate of 19.10 percent resulting from the CalSTRS Funding Plan, and subsequently reduced for 
the 2.95 percentage points to be paid on behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90 and AB 84. 
 
Beginning in fiscal year 2021–22, the CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer 
supplemental contribution rate up or down by a maximum of 1% for a total rate of no higher than 20.25% 
and no lower than 8.25%. In June 2021, the CalSTRS board voted to keep the employer supplemental 
contribution rate the same for fiscal year 2021–22; it remained at 10.85% effective July 1, 2021. 
 
Through the Special Legislation approved in June 2019 and June 2020, the State made supplemental 
contributions of approximately $2.2 billion to CalSTRS on behalf of employers to supplant the amounts 
submitted by employers for fiscal years 2019–20 through 2021–22. Specifically, employers will remit 1.03%, 
2.95% and 2.18% less than is required by the CalSTRS Funding Plan for fiscal years 2019–20, 2020–21 
and 2021–22, respectively. 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
45. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
The CalSTRS employer contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2021-2022 through fiscal year 2045-46 
are summarized in the table below: 
 
  Pre-AB Increase per SB90 and 
 Effective Date 1469 Rate Funding Plan AB84 Impact1 Total 
 
 

 July 01, 2021 8.250% 10.850% (2.180%) 16.920% 
 July 01, 2022 to 
 June 30, 2046  8.250% (1) N/A (1) 
 July 01, 2046 8.250% Increase from prior rate ceases in 2046-47 
 

(1) The CalSTRS Funding Plan authorizes the board to adjust the employer contribution rate up or down by up 
to 1% each year, but no higher than 20.50% total and no lower than 8.250%. 

 
The District contributed $40,279,774 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
State – 10.828 percent of the members’ calculated based on creditable compensation from two fiscal years 
prior. 
 
The state is required to contribute a base contribution rate set in statute at 2.017%. Pursuant to the 
CalSTRS Funding Plan, the state also has a supplemental contribution rate, which the board can increase 
by up to 0.5% each fiscal year to help eliminate the state’s share of the CalSTRS unfunded actuarial 
obligation by 2046. In June 2021, the board approved an increase of 0.5% for fiscal year 2021–22, which 
will increase the state supplemental contribution rate to 6.311% effective July 1, 2021. 
 
Special legislation appropriated supplemental state contributions to reduce the state’s portion of the 
unfunded actuarial obligation of the DB Program in fiscal years 2019-20 through 2022-23. These 
contributions are funded from future excess General Fund revenues, pursuant to the requirements of 
California Proposition 2, Rainy-Day Budget Stabilization Fund Act, which passed in 2014. Accordingly, the 
contribution amounts are subject to change each year based on the availability of funding. For fiscal year 
2020–21, CalSTRS received $297.0 million in supplemental state contributions from Proposition 2 funds. 
Of this total, approximately $170.0 million is designated to cover forgone contributions due to the 
suspension of the 0.5% increase to the state supplemental contribution rate in fiscal year 2020–21. The 
remaining $127.0 million is designated to reduce the state’s share of CalSTRS’ unfunded actuarial 
obligation. 
 

  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
46. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
The CalSTRS state contribution rates effective for fiscal year 2021-2022 and beyond are summarized in 
the table below.  
   Supplemental 
   Rate Per 
 Effective Base CalSTRS SBMA 
 Date Rate Funding Plan Funding(1) Total 

 

 July 01, 2021 2.017% 6.311% 2.50% 10.828% 
 July 01, 2022 to 
 June 30, 2046 2.017% (2) 2.50% (2) 
 July 01, 2046 2.017% (3) 2.50% (3) 

 
(1) The SBMA contribution rate excludes the $72 million that is reduced from the required contribution in accordance with 

Education Code section 22954. 
(2) The board has limited authority to adjust the state contribution rate annually through June 2046 in order to eliminate the 

remaining unfunded actuarial obligation. The board cannot increase the supplemental rate by more than 0.5% in a fiscal year, 
and if there is no unfunded actuarial obligation, the supplemental contribution rate imposed would be reduced to 0%. 

(3) From July 1, 2046, and thereafter, the rates in effect prior to July 1, 2014, are reinstated, if necessary, to address any 
remaining unfunded actuarial obligation.  

 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The 
amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State 
support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 
 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 153,342,000$     
State’s proportionate share of the net pension liability

associated with the District 91,235,000        

244,577,000$     
 

 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The District’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District’s share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the contributions of all participating school districts and the State. At June 30, 2021, the District’s 
proportion was 0.337 percent, which was a decrease of 0.039 percent from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2020. 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
47. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $21,523,128 and revenue 
of $24,098,441 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 384,000$           16,319,000$       

Changes of assumptions 21,727,000        -                       

Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on investments -                       121,298,000       

Changes in proportion and differences between
District contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 14,003,000        46,692,000        

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 40,279,774        -                       

Total 76,393,774$       184,309,000$     
 

 
$40,279,774 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30,

2023 (31,745,800)$      
2024 (23,112,800)$      
2025 (35,991,800)$      
2026 (41,945,467)$      
2027 (8,859,967)$       
2028 (6,539,166)$        

 
Differences between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions and changes in 
proportion and differences between District contributions and proportionate share of contributions are 
amortized over a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 7 
years as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences 
between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year 
period. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
48. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the STRP was determined by applying 
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, and rolling forward the 
total pension liability to June 30, 2021 . The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, used 
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 

Valuation Date June 30, 2020 
Experience Study July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal 
Investment Rate of Return 7.10% 
Consumer Price Inflation 2.75% 
Wage Growth 3.50% 
Post-retirement Benefit Increases 2.00% simple for DB, maintain 85%  

   Purchasing power level for DB, not  
   applicable for DBS/CBB 
 
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent, which was 
unchanged from the prior fiscal year.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at statutory contribution rates 
in accordance with the rate increase per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment earnings were 
calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming that 
contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions, 
the STRP’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Mortality: CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality 
table and projection scales to reflect expected annual reductions in mortality rates at each age, resulting in 
increases in life expectancies each year into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom 
tables derived to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. The projection scale was set equal 
to 110 percent of the ultimate improvement factor from the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2016) table, 
issued by the Society of Actuaries. 
  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best 
estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS investment staff and 
investment consultants as inputs to the process.  
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
49. 

NOTE 8 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the CalSTRS board in January 2020 in 
conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each current and future valuation, CalSTRS 
consulting actuary reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital 
market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset 
allocation for each major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return are 
summarized in the following table: 
   Long-Term* 
  Assumed Asset Expected Real 
 Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
 Public Equity 42% 4.8% 
 Real Estate Assets 15 3.6 
 Private Equity 13 6.3 
 Fixed Income 12 1.3 
 Risk Mitigating Strategies 10 1.8 
 Inflation Sensitive 6 3.3 
 Cash / Liquidity 2 (0.4) 
 

* 20-year geometric average 
 
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate: 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.10%) Rate (7.10%) (8.10%)

District’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability 312,150,000$     153,342,000$     21,535,000$       

 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalSTRS financial report. 
 
 
NOTE 9 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B 
 
General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund B 
 
Plan Description: The schools cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan Public 
Employer’s Retirement Fund B (PERF B) is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS). Plan membership consists of non-teaching and non-certified employees of public 
schools (K-12), community college districts, offices of education, charter and private schools (elective) in 
the State of California. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
50. 

NOTE 9 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
The Plan was established to provide retirement, death and disability benefits to non-teaching and 
noncertified employees in schools. The benefit provisions for Plan employees are established by statute. 
CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at obtained at: 
 
 https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/acfr- 2021.pdf 
 
Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service, age, 
final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible 
members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after 
five years (10 years for State Second Tier members) of credited service. 
 
Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from members 
and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a percentage of 
applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and depend on the 
respective employer’s benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by periodic actuarial 
valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas and employee groups 
of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made when districts first join 
PERF B, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining contribution rates. 
 
The required contribution rates of most active plan members are based on a percentage of salary in excess 
of a base compensation amount ranging from zero dollars to $863 monthly. 
 
Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the year 
ended June 30, 2022 were as follows: 
 
Members - The member contribution rate was 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year 
2021-22. 
 
Employers - The employer contribution rate was 22.91 percent of applicable member earnings. 
 
The District contributed $16,163,003 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability of $93,712,000 or its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2020 The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating school districts.  At 
June 30, 2021 the District’s proportion was 0.461 percent, which was a decrease of 0.014 percent from its 
proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
51. 

NOTE 9 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $5,858,087. At June 30, 
2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 2,798,000$        221,000$           

Changes of assumptions -                       -                       

Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments -                       35,964,000        

Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                       10,528,000        

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 16,163,003        -                       

Total 18,961,003$       46,713,000$       
 

 
$16,163,003 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ending June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30,

2023 (11,966,667)$      
2024 (12,230,667)$      
2025 (9,715,666)$       
2026 (10,002,000)$       

 
Differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions and changes in proportion 
and differences between District contributions and proportionate share of contributions are amortized over 
a closed period equal to the average remaining service life of plan members, which is 4 years as of the  
June 30, 2021 measurement date. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected 
and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and amortized over a closed 5-year period. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
52. 

NOTE 9 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying 
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 , and rolling forward the 
total pension liability to June 30, 2021. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, used 
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 
 
 Valuation Date June 30, 2020 
 Experience Study June 30, 1997 through June 30, 2015 
 Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal 
 Investment Rate of Return 7.15% 
 Consumer Price Inflation 2.50% 
 Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service 
 Post-retirement Benefit Increases Contract COLA up to 2.00% until Purchasing 
       Power Protection Allowance Floor on 
        Purchasing Power applies 2.50% thereafter 

 
The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 90 percent of scale MP 2016. For more details on this 
table, please refer to the 2017 experience study report. 
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, mortality and 
retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS’ website. 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. 
 
  Long-Term* Expected Real Expected Real 
  Assumed Asset Rate of Return Rate of Return 
 Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10 (1) Years 11+ (2) 
 
 Global Equity 50% 4.80% 5.98% 
 Fixed Income 28 1.00 2.62 
 Inflation Assets - 0.77 1.81 
 Private Equity 8 6.30 7.23 
 Real Estate Assets 13 3.75 4.93 
 Liquidity  1 - (0.92) 
  
 * 10-year geometric average    
 (1) An expected inflation rate of 2.00% used for this period 
 (2) An expected inflation rate of 2.92% used for this period 
 
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection 
of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. 
The test revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability for the Plan. The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a detailed report that 
can be obtained at CalPERS’ website. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
53. 

NOTE 9 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND B (Continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building- block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical and 
forecasted information for all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. 
Using the expected nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was 
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using 
both short-term and long- term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single 
equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
 
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate: 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)

District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability 158,011,000$     93,712,000$       40,329,000$       

 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. 
 
 
NOTE 10 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
General Information - Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB) 
 
Plan Description: In addition to the pension benefits described in Notes 8 and 9, the District provides 
postemployment health care benefits to eligible employees and their dependents under a single employer 
defined benefit OPEB plan. The plan does not issue separate financial statements. 
 
The District established an irrevocable trust under the California Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust Program 
(CERBT) to prefund the costs of other postemployment benefits. The funds in the CERBT are held in trust 
and will be administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) as an agent 
multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are established and may be amended by District labor 
agreements which are approved by the Board of Education. The District’s contributions to the irrevocable 
trust is included in the CERBT, which is included in the CalPERS CAFR. Copies of the CalPERS’ CAFR 
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office – 400 P Street – Sacramento, CA 95814. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
54. 

NOTE 10 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
The CERBT fund, which is an Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 115 Trust, is set up for the purpose of 
(i) receiving employer contributions to prefund health and other post-employment benefits for retirees and 
their beneficiaries, (ii) invest contributed amounts and income therein, and (iii) disburse contributed 
amounts and income therein, if any, to pay for costs of administration of the fund and to pay for health care 
costs or other post-employment benefits in accordance with the terms of the District’s OPEB plan. 
 
Benefits Provided: Sacramento City Unified School District's Retired Employees Healthcare Plan (REHP), 
is a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the Sacramento City Unified School 
District. The plan does not issue separate financial statements. REHP provides medical insurance benefits 
to eligible retirees. Benefits are a negotiated component of each bargaining unit agreement. Currently, 
eligible retirees receive health care benefits that are paid 100% by the District. District teachers qualify for 
these benefits after attaining age 55 with at least five years of consecutive service to the District, age 50 
with 30 years of service (if a member prior to January 1, 2013), or approved disability retirement with 5 
years of service. CalPERS employees qualify for benefits after attaining age 50 (age 52, if a new CalPERS 
member on or after January 1, 2013) with 5 years of State or public agency service or approved disability 
and meeting the requirements outlined in their respective bargaining agreements. 
 
The District’s Governing Board has the authority to establish or amend the benefit terms offered by the 
Plan. The District’s Governing Board also retains the authority to establish the requirements for paying the 
Plan benefits as they come due. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms: The following is a table of plan participants as of the June 30, 2021 
valuation: 
 

Number of
Participants

Inactive Plan members, covered spouses, or
beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3,098                

Active employees 4,089                

7,187                
 

 
Contributions: California Government Code specifies that the District’s contribution requirements for 
covered employees are established and may be amended by the Governing Board. Contributions to the 
Plan are voluntary. Contributions to the Plan from the District were $31,199,420 for the year ended June 
30, 2022. 
 
OPEB Plan Investments: The plan discount rate of 6.8% was determined using the following asset 
allocation and assumed rate of return blended with the 20-year high grade municipal bond rate as of 
June 30, 2021: 
 
 Long-Term* Expected Real Expected Real 
 Assumed Asset  Rate of Return Rate of Return 
 Asset Class Allocation Year 1 - 10 Years 11+ 
 

 Global Equity 59% 4.80% 5.98% 
 Fixed Income 25 1.10 2.62 
 Treasury Inflation-Protected  
   Securities 5 0.25 1.46 
 Real Estate Investment Trusts 8 3.20 5.00 
 Commodities 3 1.50 2.87 
  *Geometric average 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
55. 

NOTE 10 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Rolling periods of time for all asset classes in combination we used to appropriately reflect correlation 
between asset classes. This means that the average returns for any asset class do not necessarily reflect 
the averages over time individually, but reflect the return for the asset class for the portfolio average. 
Additionally, the historic 30-year real rates of return for each asset class along with the assumed long-term 
inflation assumption was used to set the discount rate. The investment return was offset by assumed 
investment expenses of 25 basis points. It was further assumed that contributions to the plan would be 
sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
 
 Money-weighted rate of return on OPEB plan investments 7.00% 
 
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of OPEB plan investment 
expenses, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 
 
 Valuation date June 30, 2021 
 
 Measurement date June 30, 2021 
 

Funding Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay 
 

 General Inflation Rate 2.5% 
 
 Long Term Return on Assets 7.00% as of June 30, 2020 and June 30,  
  2019, net of plan investment expenses  
  and including inflation 
 
 Discount rate 6.80% as of June 30, 2021, determined  
  by the blending of the asset returns and the  
  20-year high grade municipal bond rate as  
  of June 30, 2021 less 0.1% for trust  
  administration fees. 
 
 Salary increase 3.0% per year, used only to allocate the  
  cost of benefits between service years 
 
 Assumed Wage inflation 3.0% per year; used as a component of  
  assumed salary increases 
 
 Health care cost trend rate 7.00% for 2021 and 2019, decreasing 0.5  
  percent per year thereafter to an ultimate  
  rate of 5.00% for year 2024 and later years. 
 
 Mortality For certificated employees the 2020 
  CalSTRS mortality tables were used 
  For classified employees the 2017 CalPERS  
  active mortality for miscellaneous  
  employees were used  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
56. 

NOTE 10 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
 Participants Valued Only current active employees and retired  
  participants and covered dependents are  
  valued. No future entrants are considered  
  in this valuation 
 
 Participation Rate Active Employees: 100% of active benefits-  
  eligible employees who qualify for District  
  paid retiree premiums are assumed to  
  elect to continue their current plan  
  coverage in retirement. Those not  
  currently covered are assumed to elect as  
  follows: 1) Waiving SCTA Actives - SCTA  
  Opt-Out Subsidy; 2) Waiving Non-SCTA  
  Actives - Kaiser HMO (Mgmt/Class) 
 
  15% of active employees who qualify  
  access to coverage in retirement, but not  
  for District paid premiums are assumed to  
  continue medical coverage in retirement. 
 
  Retired Participants: Existing medical plan  
  elections are assumed to be continued  
  until age 65 (Medicare eligibility) 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability:  
 

Total OPEB Total Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance, June 30, 2021 415,066,116$     97,327,847$       317,738,269$     

Changes for the year:
Service cost 8,647,600          -                       8,647,600          
Interest 28,912,863        -                       28,912,863        
Actuarial experience -                       19,605,182        (19,605,182)       
Assumption changes 10,859,088        -                       10,859,088        
Employer contributions -                       31,199,420        (31,199,420)       
Interest income -                       7,156,542          (7,156,542)         
Administrative expense -                       (36,839)              36,839               
Benefit payments (21,345,655)       (21,345,655)       -                       

Net change 27,073,896        36,578,650        (9,504,754)         

Balance, June 30, 2022 442,140,012$     133,906,497$     308,233,515$     
 

 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
57. 

NOTE 10 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
The changes in assumptions include a change in the discount rate from 7.0 percent in the prior valuation, 
to 6.8 percent in the current valuation. 
 
There were no changes between the measurement date and the year ended June 30, 2022, which had a 
significant effect on the District’s total OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Assumptions: The following presents the net OPEB liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 6.90 percent. The schedule also shows what the net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percent lower (5.90 percent) and 1 percent 
higher (7.90 percent): 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.80%) Rate (6.80%) (7.80%)

Net OPEB liability 369,356,112$     308,233,515$     257,868,745$     
 

 
The following table presents the net OPEB liability calculated using the heath care cost trend rate of 5.70 
percent. The schedule also shows what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a health 
care cost trend rate that is 1 percent lower (4.70 percent) and 1 percent higher (6.70 percent): 
 

1% Healthcare Cost 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
(4.70%) Rate (5.70%) (6.70%)

Net OPEB liability 253,301,677$     308,233,515$     376,526,483$     
 

 
OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized OPEB expense of $49,411,529. At June 30, 
2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 2,218,033$        132,090,514$     

Changes of assumptions 30,501,321        185,966,495       

Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on investments -                       13,433,147        

Benefits paid subsequent to measurement date 28,457,590        -                       

Total 61,176,944$       331,490,156$     
 

  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
58. 

NOTE 10 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
$28,457,590 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to benefits paid subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 
2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30,

2023 (79,599,169)$      
2024 (74,663,818)$      
2025 (66,176,574)$      
2026 (39,412,715)$      
2027 (35,737,280)$      

Thereafter (3,181,246)$       
 

 
Differences between projected and actual earnings on investment are amortized over a closed period of 5 
years as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date. Changes in assumptions and differences between 
expected and actual experience are amortized over a closed period of 7.13 years as of the June 30, 2021 
measurement date. 
 
 
NOTE 11 – JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS 
 
Schools Insurance Authority: The District is a member with other school districts of a Joint Powers Authority, 
Schools Insurance Authority (SIA), for the operation of a common risk management and insurance program 
for property and liability coverage. The joint powers agency is to be self-sustaining through member 
premiums. SIA enters into insurance agreements for coverage above self-insured retention layers, whereby 
it cedes various amounts of risk to other insurance companies or joint power authorities. SIA's Property, 
Liability and Workers' Compensation Programs provide self-insured retention of $100,000, $750,000 and 
$1,000,000 per incident, respectively. The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other 
risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks 
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There have been 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. The following is a summary 
of financial information for SIA at June 30, 2021 (most recent information available): 
 

Total assets 217,113,543$        
Deferred outflows 1,855,968$            
Total liabilities 87,859,871$          
Deferred inflows 751,640$               
Total net position 130,358,000$        
Total revenues 73,201,625$          
Total expenses 57,783,763$          
Change in net position 15,417,862$           

 
The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authority is such that the Joint Powers Authority 
is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes. 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
59. 

NOTE 12 – CONTINGENCIES 
 
The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business. In the 
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect 
the financial position or results of operations of the District. 
 
The District has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit 
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowances under terms of the 
grants, it is management's opinion that any required reimbursements of future revenue offsets subsequently 
determined will not have a material effect on the District's financial position or results of operations. 
 
At June 30, 2022, the District had approximately $18.7 million in outstanding construction contract 
commitments. 
  
 
NOTE 13 – MANAGMENT'S PLANS 
 
Since September 2018 when the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) disapproved the District’s 
adopted General Fund budget for the 2018-19 fiscal year, the Board of Education, Superintendent, 
management, staff, and labor partners have been collaborating to identify solutions that would address the 
structural deficit for current and future fiscal years’ financial projections.  
 
Due to Education Code provision, the District’s financial position resulted in a series of actions including a 
Fiscal Health Risk Analysis by the Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) and an audit 
by the California State Auditor. Additionally, SCOE appointed a fiscal advisor to work with the District to 
review the budget for accuracy and provide assistance to District staff.  
 
In December 2018, FCMAT issued the results of its analysis that concluded, unless changes are made, the 
District is at risk of insolvency, which leads to a state loan and an appointed administrator. The analysis 
focused on identifying district systems and processes where improvements can be made. Immediately, the 
District began taking steps to implement business process changes and adopt FCMAT’s recommendations. 
Additionally, in December of 2019, the State Auditor issued its independent performance audit report on 
the fiscal condition of the District. The report includes several recommendations to assist the District in 
moving towards fiscal solvency.  
 
The District’s proposed 2019-20 Budget continued a structural deficit into 2019-20 to allow for the time 
necessary to negotiate a solution that achieves long-term cost savings. SCOE recognized that the District 
made considerable progress towards stabilizing the budget, but disapproved the budget since the District 
expected to be $27 million short of the minimum required reserve in 2021-22 without an agreed upon 
solution.  
 
Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the District realized additional one-time savings in the 2019-20 
and 2020-21 fiscal years that helped bolster the District’s ending fund balance. The 2021-22 fiscal year saw 
a decline of $37.8 million in its unrestricted fund. 
 
Ongoing risks include a continued projected decline in enrollment and ADA, increased operating 
expenditures, such as rising special education costs and pension and health premium increases, and 
uncertain future state resources. However, the District is projecting improved fiscal stability due to the 
increase in on-going state funding and funding mechanisms put in place by the state to mitigate the decline 
in ADA. 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
60. 

NOTE 13 – MANAGMENT'S PLANS (Continued) 
 
The District’s 2022-23 First Interim multi-year projections indicate that the District will be able to meet its 
financial obligations for the current and two subsequent years. As of the 2022-23 First interim report, the 
District is projected to have positive cash balances at June 30 for all three fiscal years 2022-23, 2023-2024, 
and 2024-25. The District has taken measures to reduce expenditures and increase reserves, including the 
one-time savings resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as described above. The District has passed two 
Student-Centered Fiscal Recovery Plans, one on February 4, 2021 and the second on December 17, 2021 
to help address the District’s ongoing structural deficit. The District will continue to evaluate its programs 
and staffing levels, and other supply and services expenditures in order to determine whether additional 
non-negotiable savings may be achieved. 
 
 
NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On July 21, 2022, the 2022 General Obligation, Series A were issued in total of $225,000,000. The bonds 
were issued under Measure H. The bonds range in maturity date with a final payoff on August 1, 2052 with 
interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%.  
 
On July 21, 2022, the 2022 General Obligation Refunding Bonds were issued in total of $55,845,000. The 
bonds were issued to refund a certain portion of the 2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The bonds 
range in maturity date with a final payoff on July 1, 2031 with an interest rate of 5.00%.



 

 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GENERAL FUND  

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

 
61. 

Variance
Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

LCFF:
State apportionment 331,459,392$   330,403,324$   276,528,575$   (53,874,749)$    
Local sources 101,290,667     106,807,567     114,895,574     8,088,007        

Total LCFF 432,750,059     437,210,891     391,424,149     (45,786,742)      

Federal sources 46,193,654       190,826,286     120,733,568     (70,092,718)      
Other state sources 73,939,718       102,313,340     104,713,852     2,400,512        
Other local sources 6,385,645        8,925,474        5,974,394        (2,951,080)       

Total revenues 559,269,076     739,275,991     622,845,963     (116,430,028)    

Expenditures:
Current:

Certificated salaries 225,805,852     241,406,944     237,235,646     4,171,298        
Classified salaries 61,720,315       64,117,193       76,904,101       (12,786,908)      
Employee benefits 189,329,145     186,225,105     185,060,292     1,164,813        
Books and supplies 29,444,199       79,662,025       26,193,255       53,468,770       
Contract services and operating

expenditures 82,045,873       137,914,243     103,385,895     34,528,348       
Other outgo (150,180)          203,893           1,473,819        (1,269,926)       

Capital outlay 1,781,522        15,203,478       9,148,969        6,054,509        

Total expenditures 589,976,726     724,732,881     639,401,977     85,330,904       

(Deficiency) excess of revenues
(under) over expenditures (30,707,650)      14,543,110       (16,556,014)      (31,099,124)      

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,316,301        2,291,754        3,162,296        870,542           
Transfers out (266,000)          (266,000)          (2,660,202)       (2,394,202)       

Total other financing sources
(uses) 2,050,301        2,025,754        502,094           (1,523,660)       

Change in fund balance (28,657,349)      16,568,864       (16,053,920)      (32,622,784)      

Fund balance, July 1, 2021 125,906,717     125,906,717     125,906,717     -                      

Fund balance, June 30, 2022 97,249,368$     142,475,581$   109,852,797$   (32,622,784)$    

Budget

 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

 
62. 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 
 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

Service cost 33,273,763$        28,429,909$        20,002,277$        22,361,924$        8,647,600$     
Interest on total OPEB liability 24,982,078          28,454,100          25,888,179          26,023,049          28,912,863     
Differences betw een expected and
  actual experience -                       (135,537,910)       -                       (98,105,689)         -                     
Changes of assumptions (89,783,252)         (83,559,205)         29,041,398          (170,763,789)       10,859,088     
Benefit payments (20,462,037)         (19,351,654)         (19,644,632)         (18,690,251)         (21,345,655)   

Net change in total OPEB liability (51,989,448)         (181,564,760)       55,287,222          (239,174,756)       27,073,896     

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year (a) 832,507,858        780,518,410        598,953,650        654,240,872        415,066,116   

Total OPEB liability - end of year (b) 780,518,410$      598,953,650$      654,240,872$      415,066,116$      442,140,012$ 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer 48,000,844$        33,078,830$        28,640,257$        26,713,074$        31,199,420$   
Net investment income 3,951,473            4,395,048            4,575,947            3,013,601            26,761,724     
Administrative expenses (19,446)                (29,756)                (15,667)                (42,420)                (36,839)          
Other expenses -                       (72,482)                -                       -                       -                     
Benefit payments (20,462,037)         (19,351,654)         (19,644,632)         (18,690,251)         (21,345,655)   

Change in plan f iduciary net position 31,470,834          18,019,986          13,555,905          10,994,004          36,578,650     

Fiduciary trust net position - beginning of year (c) 23,287,118          54,757,952          72,777,938          86,333,843          97,327,847     

Fiduciary trust net position - end of year (d) 54,757,952$        72,777,938$        86,333,843$        97,327,847$        133,906,497$ 

Net OPEB liability - beginning (a) - (c) 809,220,740$      725,760,458$      526,175,712$      567,907,029$      317,738,269$ 

Net OPEB liability - ending (b) - (d) 725,760,458$      526,175,712$      567,907,029$      317,738,269$      308,233,515$ 

Plan f iduciary net position as a
  percentage of the total OPEB liability 7% 12% 13% 23% 30%

Covered employee payroll 263,777,849$      284,495,904$      271,833,894$      279,376,002$      302,034,133$ 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of 
  covered employee payroll 275% 185% 209% 114% 102%  

 
This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively. 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

 
63. 

Other Postemployment Benefits 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
2018 2019 2020* 2021 2022

Actuarially determined contribution 41,766,451$        29,997,546$        30,861,105$        31,958,000$        28,427,786$   

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution (33,078,830)         (28,640,257)         (26,713,074)         (31,199,420)         (28,457,590)   

Contribution deficiency (excess) 8,687,621$          1,357,289$          4,148,031$          758,580$             (29,804)$        

Covered employee payroll 284,495,904$      271,833,894$      279,376,002$      302,034,133$      343,087,662$ 

Contributions as a percentage of 
  covered employee payroll 11.63% 10.54% 9.56% 10.33% 8.29%  

 
 
*The ADC for the District's fiscal year end June 30, 2020 was determined as part of the June 30, 2019 valuation using a 3.90% discount rate. 
 
This is a 10 year schedule, however the information in this schedule is not required to be presented retrospectively. 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
64. 

State Teachers' Retirement Plan 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

District's proportion of 
  the net pension liability 0.382% 0.375% 0.371% 0.372% 0.385% 0.396% 0.376% 0.337%

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 233,056,000$ 252,331,000$ 299,780,000$ 344,390,000$ 353,827,000$ 357,334,000$ 364,571,000$ 153,342,000$ 

State's proportionate share of
  the net pension pension liability
  associated w ith the District 134,692,000   133,455,000   170,676,000   203,739,000   202,583,000   194,951,000   199,236,000   91,235,000     

Total net pension liability 367,748,000$ 385,786,000$ 470,456,000$ 548,129,000$ 556,410,000$ 552,285,000$ 563,807,000$ 244,577,000$ 

District's covered payroll 170,012,000$ 173,962,000$ 184,718,000$ 197,366,000$ 202,167,000$ 220,584,000$ 212,770,000$ 213,026,000$ 

District's proportionate share of
  the net pension liability as a 
  percentage of its covered payroll 137.08% 145.05% 162.29% 174.49% 175.02% 161.99% 171.35% 71.98%

Plan f iduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 76.52% 74.02% 70.04% 69.46% 70.99% 72.56% 71.82% 87.21%  

 
 
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.  
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

 
65. 

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

District's proportion of 
  the net pension liability 0.541% 0.534% 0.533% 0.518% 0.541% 0.527% 0.475% 0.461%

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 61,440,000$   78,659,000$   105,299,000$ 123,753,000$ 144,170,000$ 153,723,000$ 145,701,000$ 93,712,000$   

District's covered payroll 56,813,000$   59,079,000$   63,963,000$   66,095,000$   72,476,000$   73,410,000$   68,605,000$   66,484,000$   

District's proportionate share of

  the net pension liability as a 

  percentage of its covered payroll 108.14% 133.14% 164.62% 187.24% 198.92% 209.40% 212.38% 140.95%

Plan f iduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 83.38% 79.43% 73.89% 71.87% 70.85% 70.05% 70.00% 80.97%  

 
 
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.  
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
66. 

State Teachers' Retirement Plan 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Contractually required contribution 15,447,858$   19,820,280$   24,828,643$   29,172,733$   35,911,088$   36,383,635$   34,403,690$   40,279,774$   

Contributions in relation to the
contactually required contribution (15,447,858)   (19,820,280)   (24,828,643)   (29,172,733)   (35,911,088)   (36,383,635)   (34,403,690)   (40,279,774)   

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

District's covered payroll 173,962,000$ 184,718,000$ 197,366,000$ 202,167,000$ 220,584,000$ 212,770,000$ 213,026,000$ 238,060,000$ 

Contributions as a 
  percentage of covered payroll 8.88% 10.73% 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 17.10%* 16.15%** 16.92%***  

 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 
 
 * This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 18.13 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 1.03 percentage points to be paid on 
behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90. 
 
** This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.95 percentage points to be paid on 
behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90. 
 
*** This rate reflects the original employer contribution rate of 19.10 percent under AB1469, reduced for the 2.18 percentage points to be paid on 
behalf of employers pursuant to SB 90. 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying note to required supplementary information. 

 
67. 

Public Employer's Retirement Fund B 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Contractually required contribution 6,954,207$     7,577,683$     9,180,596$     11,256,216$   13,259,325$   13,529,537$   13,762,087$   16,163,003$   

Contributions in relation to the
contactually required contribution (6,954,207)     (7,577,683)     (9,180,596)     (11,256,216)   (13,259,325)   (13,529,537)   (13,762,087)   (16,163,003)   

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

District's covered payroll 59,079,000$   63,963,000$   66,095,000$   72,476,000$   73,410,000$   68,605,000$   66,484,000$   70,550,000$   

Contributions as a 
  percentage of covered payroll 11.77% 11.85% 13.89% 15.53% 18.06% 19.72% 20.70% 22.91%  

 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 
  
 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
68. 

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule: The District employs budget control by object codes and by individual 
appropriation accounts. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of 
Education to provide for revised priorities. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major 
object code. The originally adopted and final revised budgets for the General Fund are presented as 
Required Supplementary Information. The basis of budgeting is the same as GAAP. 
 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios: The Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB 
Liability presents multi-year information which illustrates the changes in the net OPEB liability for each year 
presented 
 
Schedule of the District's Contributions – OPEB: The Schedule of District Contributions is presented to 
illustrate the District’s required contributions relating to the OPEB. There is a requirement to show 
information for 10 years. However, until a full 10- year trend is compiled, governments should present 
information for those years for which information is available. 
 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability: The Schedule of the District’s 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability is presented to illustrate the elements of the District’s Net 
Pension Liability. There is a requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year 
trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is 
available. 
 
Schedule of the District's Contributions: The Schedule of District Contributions is presented to illustrate the 
District’s required contributions relating to the pensions. There is a requirement to show information for 10 
years. However, until a full 10- year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those 
years for which information is available. 
 
Changes of Benefit Terms: There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required Supplementary 
Information. 
 
Changes of Assumptions: The discount rate for the Net OPEB liability was 2.92, 3.56, 4.25, 3.90, 7.00 and 
6.80 percent in the June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 actuarial reports, respectively. 
 
The discount rates used for the Public Employer's Retirement Fund B (PERF B) was 7.50, 7.65, 7.65, 7.15, 
7.15, 7.15, 7.15 and 7.15 percent in the June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, and 2020 
actuarial reports, respectively. 
 
The following are the assumptions for State Teachers' Retirement Plan: 
 
 Measurement Period 
 As of As of As of As of As of As of  As of  
 June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 
 Assumption 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015  
 
Consumer price inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.00% 3.00% 
Investment rate of return 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.10% 7.60% 7.60% 
Wage growth 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.75% 3.75% 
 



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 
 

69. 

Student Charter Adult Child Developer County Community
Activity Schools Education Development Cafeteria Fees School Facilities Facilities
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash in County Treasury -$                      9,455,315$     73,183$          (28,611)$         7,630,102$     23,082,756$  -$                           1,100,983$     41,313,728$  
Cash in banks 1,442,007       -                        212,182          57,491             49,473             144,728          -                             17,758             1,923,639       
Cash in revolving account -                        -                        -                        -                        2,000               -                        -                             -                        2,000               
Collections Awaiting Deposit -                        -                        -                        -                        14,650             -                        -                             -                        14,650             
Receivables -                        113,484          24,805             2,405               7,269,916       75,709             4,891                    1,779               7,492,989       

Due from grantor government -                        916,724          1,001,503       3,269,607       -                        -                        -                             -                        5,187,834       

Due from other funds -                        1,362,003       328,731          441,071          216,813          579,564          -                             -                        2,928,182       
Prepaid expenditures -                        -                        4,280               -                        -                        -                        -                             -                        4,280               
Stores inventory 5,934               -                        -                        -                        1,420,273       -                        -                             -                        1,426,207       

Total assets 1,447,941$     11,847,526$  1,644,684$     3,741,963$     16,603,227$  23,882,757$  4,891$                  1,120,520$     60,293,509$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable -$                      417,072$        235,639$        214,155$        736,255$        2,492$             -$                           7,334$             1,612,947$     
Due to grantor government -                        1,649,951       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                             -                        1,649,951       
Unearned revenue -                        381,463          9,986               638,789          9,460               -                        -                             -                        1,039,698       
Due to other funds -                        51,594             14,722             2,008,357       1,276,124       153,643          -                             -                        3,504,440       

Total liabilities -                        2,500,080       260,347          2,861,301       2,021,839       156,135          -                             7,334               7,807,036       

Fund balances:

Nonspendable 5,934               -                        4,280               -                        1,422,273       -                        -                             -                        1,432,487       
Restricted 1,442,007       9,347,446       1,380,057       880,662          13,159,115     23,726,622     4,891                    1,113,186       51,053,986     

Total fund balance 1,447,941       9,347,446       1,384,337       880,662          14,581,388     23,726,622     4,891                    1,113,186       52,486,473     

Total liabilities and fund
balances 1,447,941$     11,847,526$  1,644,684$     3,741,963$     16,603,227$  23,882,757$  4,891$                  1,120,520$     60,293,509$   

 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 
 

70. 

Student Charter Adult Child Developer County Community
Activity Schools Education Development Cafeteria Fees School Facilities Facilities
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Revenues:
LCFF -$                      16,622,320$  -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                           -$                      16,622,320$  
Federal sources -                        582,763          919,200          7,124,134       28,165,890     -                        -                             -                        36,791,987     
Other state sources -                        3,670,152       2,438,615       6,200,532       280,459          -                        3,682,693            -                        16,272,451     
Other local sources 1,080,701       (37,548)           2,225,325       1,004,884       76,135             8,161,150       9,252                    1,941,924       14,461,823     

Total revenues 1,080,701       20,837,687     5,583,140       14,329,550     28,522,484     8,161,150       3,691,945            1,941,924       84,148,581     

Expenditures:
Current:

Certificated salaries -                        8,110,394       1,821,021       4,796,942       -                        -                        -                             -                        14,728,357     
Classified salaries -                        939,529          1,251,203       2,495,496       8,816,798       -                        -                             -                        13,503,026     
Employee benefits -                        5,764,286       2,015,256       5,094,780       6,177,360       -                        -                             -                        19,051,682     
Books and supplies 852,712           248,551          249,981          513,663          13,014,492     -                        -                             -                        14,879,399     
Contract services and 

operating expenditures -                        1,930,542       1,132,497       461,245          1,046,091       173,160          -                             14,992             4,758,527       
Capital outlay -                        -                        63,651             -                        643,337          326,539          -                             -                        1,033,527       
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        2,825,000       -                             -                        2,825,000       
Interest -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        717,496          -                             1,919,908       2,637,404       

Total expenditures 852,712           16,993,302     6,533,609       13,362,126     29,698,078     4,042,195       -                             1,934,900       73,416,922     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 227,989           3,844,385       (950,469)         967,424          (1,175,594)      4,118,955       3,691,945            7,024               10,731,659     

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -                        1,081,471       1,578,731       -                        -                        -                        -                             -                        2,660,202       
Transfers out -                        (1,960,024)      (45,020)           (499,801)         (657,451)         -                        (3,687,472)           -                        (6,849,768)      

Total other financing 
sources (uses) -                        (878,553)         1,533,711       (499,801)         (657,451)         -                        (3,687,472)           -                        (4,189,566)      

Net change in fund balances 227,989           2,965,832       583,242          467,623          (1,833,045)      4,118,955       4,473                    7,024               6,542,093       

Fund balances, July 1, 2021 1,219,952       6,381,614       801,095          413,039          16,414,433     19,607,667     418                       1,106,162       45,944,380     

Fund balances, June 30, 2022 1,447,941$     9,347,446$     1,384,337$     880,662$        14,581,388$  23,726,622$  4,891$                  1,113,186$     52,486,473$  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ORGANIZATION 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
71. 

Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of California, was established 
on July 7, 1936. The territory covered by the District does not include certain areas of the City of Sacramento 
but does include some contiguous territory located outside city boundaries, but within Sacramento County 
boundaries. There were no changes in the District boundaries in the current year under audit. The District 
operated forty-two elementary schools (grades K-6), seven elementary/middle schools (grades K-8), six 
middle schools (grades 7-8), two middle/high schools (grades 7-12), seven high schools (grades 9-12), 
three alternative schools, two adult education centers, two special education centers and forty-two 
children's centers and preschools, serving infants through age 12. Fifteen charter schools also operated in 
the District serving kindergarten through grade twelve, five of which were governed by the District Board of 
Education. 
 
  GOVERNING BOARD  
 
 Name Office Term Expires 
 
 Christina Pritchett President December 2024 
 Leticia Garcia  Vice President December 2022 
 Chinua Rhodes Second Vice President December 2024 
 Lisa Murawski Member December 2022 
 Jamee Villa Member December 2024 
 Darrel Woo Member December 2022 
 Lavania Grace Phillips Member December 2024 
 Jacqueline Zhang* Student Member June 2022 
  
  
  ADMINISTRATION  
 
  Jorge A. Aguilar  
  Superintendent  
 
  Lisa Allen  
  Deputy Superintendent  
 
  Brian Heap** 
  Chief Communications Officer 
 
  Vacant*** 
  Chief Continuous Improvement and Accountability Officer  
 

Bob Lyons 
Chief Information Officer 

 
  Cancy McArn 
  Chief Human Resources Officer  
 
  Rose F. Ramos 
  Chief Business and Operations Officer 
 

Vacant**** 
  Chief Academic Officer  
 
*Liam McGurk voted into office as the new Student Board Member in June 2022 for the 2022-23 fiscal year. 
**Tara Gallegos resigned September 17, 2021.  Brian Heap hired April 4, 2022. 
***Vincent Harris resigned August 25, 2021. 
****Christine Baeta resigned August 31, 2022.



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
72. 

Original Audited
Second Second Original Audited
Period Period Annual Annual
Report Report Report Report

Certificate Number: D6647E7F D6647E7F 871B73E2 871B73E2
Elementary:

Transitional Kindergarten through Third 9,805                9,805                10,094               10,094               
Fourth through Sixth 7,744                7,744                7,915                7,915                
Seventh and Eighth 5,360                5,360                5,444                5,444                
Special Education 140                   140                   142                   142                   
Community Day School 7                       7                       9                       9                       

23,056               23,056               23,604               23,604               

Secondary:
Ninth through Twelfth 9,525                9,525                9,797                9,797                
Special Education 92                     92                     89                     89                     

Total Secondary 9,617                9,617                9,886                9,886                

District ADA Totals 32,673               32,673               33,490               33,490               

Charter Schools

Certificate Number: B3FC0875 B3FC0875 773DF431 773DF431
Bowling Green Elementary - Classroom-Based:

Transitional Kindergarten through Third 385                   385                   386                   386                   
Fourth through Sixth 306                   306                   306                   306                   

Total Bowling Green Elementary Charter 691                   691                   692                   692                   

Certificate Number: E8557C97 E8557C97 DB8FD1CA DB8FD1CA
George Washington Carver School of Arts and

Science - Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth 232                   232                   220                   220                   

Certificate Number: E4C517D6 E4C517D6 43B22FE1 43B22FE1
New Joseph Bonnheim - Classroom-Based:

Transitional Kindergarten through Third 115                   115                   116                   116                   
Fourth through Sixth 88                     88                     88                     88                     

Total New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 203                   203                   204                   204                   

Certificate Number: DC73B46D DC73B46D 916DD38F 916DD38F
New Technology High - Classroom-Based:

Ninth through Twelfth 163                   163                   161                   161                   

Certificate Number: 6AE481FD ** 27CD5D0D **
The Met Sacramento High School -

Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth 215                   -                       218                   -                       

Non-Classroom-Based:
Ninth through Twelfth -                       215                   -                       218                   

Total Charter Schools 1,289                1,504                1,277                1,495                

** Second Period Report and Annual Report for The Met Sacramento High School will be revised to properly state the ADA generate

    Nonclassroom-Based ADA.  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
 

73. 

Statutory
Minutes 2021-2022 Number of Days
Require- Actual Traditional

Grade Level ment Minutes Calendar Status

District

Kindergarten 36,000 34,400 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 1 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 2 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 3 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 4 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 5 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 6 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 7 54,000 51,408 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 8 54,000 51,408 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 9 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 10 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 11 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 12 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance

Bowling Green Charter School - Classroom Based

Kindergarten 36,000 34,400 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 1 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 2 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 3 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 4 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 5 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 6 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance

George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science - Classroom Based

Grade 9 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 10 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 11 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 12 64,800 61,872 172 Out of Compliance

New Joseph Bonnheim Charter School - Classroom Based

Kindergarten 36,000 34,400 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 1 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 2 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 3 50,400 48,144 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 4 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 5 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance
Grade 6 54,000 51,584 172 Out of Compliance

New Technology High School - Classroom Based

Grade 9 64,800 65,336 167 Out of Compliance
Grade 10 64,800 65,336 167 Out of Compliance
Grade 11 64,800 65,336 167 Out of Compliance
Grade 12 64,800 65,336 167 Out of Compliance  

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
74. 

Pass-
Through

Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-

Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures

U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
of Education

Special Education Cluster:
84.027 IDEA: Basic and Local Assistance

Entitlement, Part B, Sec 611 13379 9,237,550$            
84.027 IDEA: Private School ISP 13379 429,627                  
84.173 IDEA Preschool Grants, Part B,

Section 619 (Age 3-5) 13430 272,873                  
84.027A IDEA: Mental Health Services,

Part B, Sec 611 14468 477,100                  
84.173A IDEA: Preschool Staff Development, Part B, Sec 619 13431 1,112                      
84.027A IDEA: Quality Assurance & Focused

Monitoring 13693 5,750                      
84.173A Alternative Dispute Resolution,

Part B, Sec 611 13007 68,609                    

Subtotal Special Education Cluster 10,492,621            

Adult Education Program:
84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ESL

Section 231 14508 138,809                  
84.002 Adult Education: Adult Basic Secondary Education

Section 231 13978 1,967                      
84.002A Adult Education: English Literacy and Civics

Education Local Grant 14109 17,690                    

Subtotal Adult Education Program 158,466                  

84.048 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education:

Secondary, Sec 131 (Vocational Education) 14894 588,196                  

Title I Program:
84.010 ESEA (ESSA): Title I, Part Basic Grants Low-Income

and Neglected 14329 13,189,910            
84.010 ESEA: School Improvement Funding for LEAs 15438 1,145,222              

Subtotal Title I Program 14,335,132            

Title III Program:
84.365 ESEA (ESSA): Title III, English Learner Student 

Program 14346 509,588                  
84.365 ESEA (ESSA): Title III, Immigrant Student Program 15146 10,426                    

Subtotal Title III Program 520,014                  
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
75. 

Pass-
Through

Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-

Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures

U.S. Department of Education - Passed through California Department
of Education (Continued)

84.126 Department of Rehabilitation: Workability II, Transitions
Partnership Program 10006 198,454$               

84.181 Special Education: Early Intervention Grants, Part C 23761 139,420                  
84.196 ESSA: Title IX, Part A, McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Gran 14332 70,143                    
84.060 Indian Education (From Federal Government) 10011 68,080                    
84.287 ESEA: Title IV, Part B, 21st Century Community

Learning Centers Program 14349 2,209,555              
84.336 Sacramento STEM Power * 36,428                    
84.367 ESEA: Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective 

Instruction 14341 1,919,696              
84.377 ESEA: Title I, School Improvement Grant (SIG) * 1,840,297              

84.424 ESEA: Title IV, Part A, Student Support and 

  Academic Enrichment 15396 2,317,429              

COVID-19: Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) Programs:
84.425 COVID-19: Elementary and Secondary School Emergency

  Relief (ESSER) Fund 1 15536 485,624                  
84.425 COVID-19: ESSER II Fund 15547 47,387,066            
84.425 COVID-19: ESSER III Fund 15559 18,778,834            

84.425U COVID-19: ESSER III Fund: Learning Loss 10155 4,874,982              
84.425C COVID-19: Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund

  (GEER): Learning Loss Mitigation 15517 2,830,311              
84.425 COVID-19: Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Grant: 

  ESSER II State Reserve 15618 2,363,315              
84.425 COVID-19: ELO Grant: GEER II 15619 12,571                    
84.425 COVID-19: ELO Grant: ESSER III State Reserve 

Emergency Needs 15620 16,109                    
84.425 COVID-19: ELO Grant: ESSER III State Reserve 

Learning Loss 15621 11,861                    
84.425 COVID-19:After School Education and Safety (ASES) Rate 

Increase: ESSER III State Reserve Afterschool Programs 15649 7,326,529              
84.425 COVID-19: 21st Century Community Learning Centers (CCLC) 

Rate Increase ESSER III State Reserve Afterschool Programs 15651 195,392                  
84.425 COVID-19: American Rescue Plan-Homeless Children and Youth 

(ARP-HCY) Program 15564 6,545                      

84.425F Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds (HEERF) Program P425F204408 220,568                  

Subtotal ESF Programs 84,509,707            

Total U.S. Department of Education 119,403,638          



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
76. 

Pass-
Through

Assistance Entity Federal
Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-

Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Passed through
California Department of Health Care Services

Child Development Coronavirus Response Programs:
93.575 Child Development: Coronavirus Response and Relief 

  Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSA) Act -
  One-time Stipend - COVID - 19 15555 1,930$                    

93.575 Child Development: Federal California State
   Preschool Program (13-14) * 71,140                    

93.596 Child Development: Federal California State 
  Preschool Program (13-14) 13609 18,963                    

Subtotal Child Development Coronavirus Response 92,033                    

93.674 Chafee Foster Care Independent Living * 96,193                    
93.600 Head Start - Head Start Cluster 10016 6,682,071              
93.566 Refugee Cash and Medical Assistance Program * 175,399                  

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Passed through
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration

93.243 Meadowview Project Aware Grant * 821                          

Total U.S. Department Health and Human Services 7,046,517              

U.S. Department of Agriculture - Passed through
California Department of Education

Child Nutrition Cluster:
10.555 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch, School 

Breakfast, Milk, Pregnant & Lactating Students) 13396 26,763,017            
10.559 Child Nutrition: Summer Food Service Program

Operations 13004 806,204                  

Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster 27,569,221            

10.558 Child Nutrition: Child Care Food Program 13666 2,333,551              

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 29,902,772            

U.S. Department of Defense

12.357 ROTC Language and Culture Training Grants * 291,727                  
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
 

77. 

 
Pass-

Through
Assistance Entity Federal

Listing Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying Expend-
Number Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number itures

U.S. Department of Labor

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Cluster:
17.259 Workforce Investment Act, Youth Activities 10055 165,682$               

U.S. Department of Treasury - Passed through
California Department of Education

21.019 COVID-19: Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF): Learning 
Loss Mitigation 25516 (13,719)                   

Total Federal Programs 156,796,617$       

* District is unable to provide PCA numbers.  
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  

WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
 

78. 

Bond Interest
and 

Redemption 
Fund

June 30, 2022 Unaudited Actual Financial Reporting
Ending Fund Balance 21,226,253$      

To correct debt issuance premiums recorded by
the Sacramento County Treasurer 15,518,216        

June 30, 2022 Audited Financial Statements Ending
Fund Balance 36,744,469$      

 
 
There were no adjustments proposed to any other funds of the District. 
 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
(UNAUDITED) 

 
 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
 

79. 

(Budget)
2023 2022 2021 2020

General Fund

Revenues and other  
financing sources 693,423,917$     626,008,259$     629,933,392$     557,546,896$     

Expenditures 651,256,668       639,401,977       591,568,014       532,129,368       
Other uses and transfers out -                       2,660,202          5,507,272          2,698,262          

Total outgo 651,256,668       642,062,179       597,075,286       534,827,630       

Change in fund balance 42,167,249$       (16,053,920)$      32,858,106$       22,719,266$       

Ending fund balance 152,020,046$     109,852,797$     125,906,717$     93,048,611$       

Available reserves 77,956,280$       48,796,417$       45,401,679$       84,052,645$       

Designated for economic

uncertainties 12,954,460$       12,763,716$       11,907,405$       10,624,585$       

Undesignated fund balance 65,001,820$       36,032,701$       33,494,274$       73,428,060$       

Available reserves as 
percentages of total
outgo 12.0% 7.6% 7.6% 15.7%

All Funds

Total long-term liabilities 1,120,033,801$  1,150,304,688$  1,380,986,742$  1,663,304,598$  

Average daily attendance

at P-2, excluding Adult

and Charter School 34,559               32,673               38,220               38,220               
 

 
The General Fund fund balance has increased by $39,523,452 over the past three years. The District has 
incurred operating deficits in one of the past three years, and anticipates incurring an operating deficit during 
the 2022-2023 fiscal year. The fiscal year 2022-2023 budget projects an increase of $42,167,249.  The fiscal 
year 2022-2023 First Interim Budget projects an increase of $79.8 million. For a district this size, the state 
recommends available reserves of at least 2% of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other 
uses. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District has met this requirement. 
 
Total long-term liabilities have decreased by $512,999,910 over the past two years. 
 
Average daily attendance has decreased by 5,547 over the past two years. The District anticipates an increase 
of 1,886 ADA for the 2022-2023 fiscal year. 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
 

80. 

   Included in District 
 Charter  Financial Statements, or 
 No. Charter Schools Chartered by District Separate Report 
 
 0598 Aspire Capitol Heights Academy Separate Report 
 0018 Bowling Green Charter Elementary Included as Charter Schools Fund 
 0775 California Montessori Project Capitol Campus Separate Report 
 1273 Capitol Collegiate Academy Separate Report 
 0588 George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science Included as Charter Schools Fund 
 1848 Growth Public Schools Separate Report 
 0640 Language Academy of Sacramento Separate Report 
 0586 The Met Sacramento High School Included as Charter Schools Fund 
 1690 New Joseph Bonnheim (NJB) Community Charter School Included as Charter Schools Fund 
 0585 New Technology High School Included as Charter Schools Fund 
 0596 Sacramento Charter High School Separate Report 
 1948 Sacramento Academic and Vocational Academy (SAVA) Separate Report 
 0552 Sol Aureus College Preparatory Separate Report 
 0491 St. HOPE Public School 7 Separate Report 
 1186 Yav Pem Suab Academy Separate Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FIRST 5 REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to supplementary information. 

 
 

81. 

Academic
and Support Child

Services* Care*

Revenues
Other local sources 165,195$          307,702$          

Expenditures:
Certificated salaries 93,834             106,412           
Classified salaries -                      74,117             
Employee benefits 62,733             107,009           
Books and supplies 8,148               1,569               
Contract services and operating

expenditures 480                  976                  
Indirect costs -                      17,619             

Total expenditures 165,195           307,702           

Change in fund balance -                      -                      

Fund balance, July 1, 2021 -                      -                      

Fund balance, June 30, 2022 -$                    -$                    
 

 
* Revenues and expenditures for the First 5 Grant are reflected in the District's Child Development Fund. 
See pages 69 to 70 of the financial statements for a complete presentation of the Child Development Fund. 
  
 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
82. 

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 
 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance: Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils 
attending classes of the District. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide 
the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides 
information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs. 
 
Schedule of Instructional Time: The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time 
as provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the 
amount of instructional time offered by the District, and whether the District complied with the provisions of 
Education Code Sections 46201 through 46206. 
 
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards: The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards includes the 
federal award activity of Sacramento City Unified School District, and is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Expenditures are recognized following the 
cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable 
or are limited as to reimbursement. The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect 
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements: This schedule 
provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited Actual Financial Report to the audited 
financial statements. 
 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis – Unaudited: This schedule provides information on the District's 
financial condition over the past three years and its anticipated condition for the 2022-2023 fiscal year, as 
required by the State Controller's Office. 
 
Schedule of Charter Schools: This schedule provides information for the California Department of Education 
to monitor financial reporting by Charter Schools. 
 
Schedule of First 5 Revenues and Expenditures: This schedule provides information about the First 5 
Sacramento County Program. 
 
 
NOTE 2 - EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
 
Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosure in the financial statements of districts which 
adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code Sections 22714 and 44929. For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the District did not adopt this program. 
 



 

 
(Continued) 

83. 

 

 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 
 
 
Board of Education 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations 
 
Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations  
 
We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District’s (District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 2021-2022 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education 
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (Audit Guide) applicable to the state laws and regulations listed 
below for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 Procedures  
Description Performed 
 
Attendance Yes 
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes 
Kindergarten Continuance Yes 
Independent Study Yes 
Continuation Education Yes 
Instructional Time Yes 
Instructional Materials Yes 
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes 
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes 
Early Retirement Incentive N/A, see reasoning 
Gann Limit Calculation Yes 
School Accountability Report Card Yes 
Juvenile Court Schools N/A, see reasoning 
Middle or Early College High Schools N/A, see reasoning 
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes 
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes 
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Yes 
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes 
District of Choice N/A, see reasoning 
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes 
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Yes 
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes 
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes 
Independent Study – Course-Based N/A, see reasoning 
Immunizations Yes 
Educator Effectiveness Yes 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G) Yes 
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Yes 
In Person Instruction Grant Yes 



 

 
(Continued) 

84. 

Attendance, for charter schools Yes 
Mode of Instruction, for charter schools Yes 
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study, 
  for charter schools Yes 
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based 
  Instruction, for charter schools Yes 
Annual Instructional Minutes-Classroom Based Yes 
Charter School Facility Grant Program N/A, see reasoning 
 
The District does not offer an Early Retirement Incentive Program; therefore, we did not perform any testing 
of the Early Retirement Incentive Program. 
 
The District does not have any Juvenile Court Schools; therefore, we did not perform any testing of Juvenile 
Court Schools. 
 
The District does not have any Middle or Early College High Schools; therefore, we did not perform any 
testing of Middle or Early College High Schools. 
 
The District is not reported as a District of Choice per the California Department of Education, therefore we 
did not perform any procedures related to District of Choice. 
 
The District did not report any ADA related to Independent Study - Course Based; therefore, we did not 
perform any testing of Independent Study - Course Based ADA.  
 
The District does not have a Charter School Facility Program; therefore, we did not perform any testing of 
Charter School Facility Program. 
 
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, 
Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to the state laws and regulations referred to above for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of the 2021-2022 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education 
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting (Audit Guide). Our responsibilities under those standards and 
the Audit Guide are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section 
of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
As described in Finding 2022-002, 2022-003, 2022-004, 2022-005, and 2022-006 in the accompanying 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs, Sacramento City Unified School District did not comply 
with the requirements regarding Instructional Time, Immunizations, Charter Schools – Attendance, and 
Charter Schools – Annual Instructional Minutes-Classroom Based. Compliance with such requirements is 
necessary, in our opinion, for Sacramento City Unified School District to comply with the requirements 
applicable to the state laws and regulations referred to above.  
 
Other Matter 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District's responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit 
are included in the accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Sacramento City 
Unified School District's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
State Compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 



 

 
 

85. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District's 
government programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it 
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with 
the requirements of the government program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide, 
we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.  
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and 
the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 2021-2022 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 
 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California  
December 9, 2022 



 

 
(Continued) 

 
86. 

 

 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
 
Board of Education 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
Sacramento, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Sacramento City Unified School District  as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Sacramento City Unified School District ’s basic  
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 9, 2022. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sacramento City Unified 
School District 's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento 
City Unified School District ’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We identified a deficiency in internal 
controls that was communicated to management as identified in the accompanying Schedule of Audit 
Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 2022-001. 
 
 



 

 
 

87. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sacramento City Unified School District 's 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District Response to Finding  
 
Sacramento City Unified School District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Sacramento City Unified School District's 
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California  
December 9, 2022 
 
 
 
 



 

 
(Continued) 

 
88. 

 

 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
THE FIRST 5 SACRAMENTO COUNTY PROGRAM 

 
 
 
Board of Education 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance on First 5 Sacramento County Program 
 
Opinion on Compliance on First 5 Sacramento County Program 
 
We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Program Guidelines for the First 5 Sacramento County Program that could 
have a direct and material effect on the First 5 Sacramento County Program for the year ended June 30, 
2022. 
 
In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its First 5 
Sacramento County Program for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance on Sacramento City Unified School District's 
First 5 Sacramento County Program based on our audit of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on First 5 
Sacramento County Program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Sacramento City Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 
legal determination of the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for the compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its First 5 Sacramento County Program. 



 

 
 

 
89. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it 
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's compliance with 
the requirements of the government program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Audit Guide, 
we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.  
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report on compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing over compliance and 
results of that testing based on requirements of the First 5 Sacramento County Program. Accordingly, this 
report is not suitable of any other purposes. 
 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California  
December 9, 2022 



 

 
(Continued) 

 
90. 

 

 
Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global  

 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE  
 
 
 
Board of Education 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Sacramento City Unified School District ’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of Sacramento City Unified School District ’s major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. Sacramento City Unified School District ’s major federal programs are identified in 
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, Sacramento City Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of Sacramento City Unified School District  and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sacramento 
City Unified School District ’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.   
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Sacramento 
City Unified School District ’s federal programs. 
 



 

 
(Continued) 

 
91. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on Sacramento City Unified School District ’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report 
on compliance about Sacramento City Unified School District ’s compliance with the requirements of each 
major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we, 
 
 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 
 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding Sacramento City Unified School District ’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 
 

 obtain an understanding of Sacramento City Unified School District ’s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sacramento City Unified School District 
’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not 
identified. 



 

 
 

 
92. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 

  
 Crowe LLP 
 
Sacramento, California  
December 9, 2022 
 



 

 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
93. 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

AL Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.425, 84.425C,
 84.425F, 84.425U

84.010

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

AL Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.425, 84.425C,
 84.425F, 84.425U

84.010

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs: $3,000,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No

STATE AWARDS

Type of auditor's' report issued on compliance for
state programs: Qualified

COVID-19: Education Stabilization 
Fund (ESF) Programs

Title I Programs

Title I Programs

COVID-19: Education Stabilization 
Fund (ESF) Programs

Type of Opinion

Unmodified
Unmodified

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
94. 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 

2022-001 DEFICIENCY - SEGREGATION OF DUTIES IN JOURNAL ENTRY PROCESSING (30000) 
 
Criteria: Sound accounting policies and proper segregation of duties require an internal control system be 
in place to ensure each transaction is complete, accurate and reviewed by a knowledgeable person prior 
to processing. 
 
Condition: Three individuals in the Accounting Services department have the ability to prepare and post 
journal entries into the financial system. This is a repeat finding of 2021-001. 
 
Effect: There exists opportunity for error or fraud to be committed related to financial reporting. 
 
Cause: The design of controls within the journal entry process does not mitigate the potential for fraud or 
error in financial reporting. 
 
Recommendation: We recommend that the District implement an internal control generating a log of journal 
entries prepared and posted by the same individual and require an independent individual to review and 
verify on a periodic basis. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District currently uses a manual process 
for the segregation of duties to mitigate the same individual preparing and posting their own journal entries 
into the financial system. The District will implement stronger internal controls by using the financial system 
to add an additional level of review and approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
95. 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
 
No matters were reported. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
96. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
2022-002 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE –INSTRUCTIONAL TIME (40000)  
 
Criteria: Determine, by grade level, the total number of days in each sampled school’s attendance calendar 
that were of at least the minimum length required, pursuant to Education Code sections 46112, 46113, 
46114, 46115, 46117, and 46119, for elementary schools, or sections 46141 and 46142, for junior high 
schools and high schools. Compare the total qualifying days by grade level for each sampled school to the 
standards set forth in Education Code section 41420 or 37670, as applicable.  
 
Condition: In the Spring of 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District had a teacher strike in where 8 days of 
instructional time were not provided. As a result of these lost instructional days, the District’s total 
instructional days fell below the requirement of 180 days at 172 days. Relatively, the number of instructional 
minutes by grade level fell below the minimums instructional minutes required by Education Code 46207.  
 

 
 
Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2021-22 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding  
described above.  
 
Effect: The District is not in compliance with article 8 (commencing with section 46200) of chapter 2 of part 
26 of the Education Code due to the loss of instructional minutes noted.  
 
Cause: The cause of the lost instructional days is due to the workforce strike.  
 
Fiscal impact: The financial penalty due to the minimum number of school days of 180 days not being met 
is a total of $26,709,878. The financial penalty due to the minimums number of minutes by grade level not 
being met is a total of $19,464,545. The total fiscal impact is $46,174,423. The District has properly accrued 
for this payable penalty as of June 30, 2022. 
 
Recommendation: The District should ensure minimum number of days and minutes are met for the school 
year.   

EC 46207

Grade Statutory Actual

Level Requirement Minutes

Kindergarten 36,000                34,400          

Grade 1 50,400                48,144          

Grade 2 50,400                48,144          

Grade 3 50,400                48,144          

Grade 4 54,000                51,584          

Grade 5 54,000                51,584          

Grade 6 54,000                51,584          

Grade 7 54,000                51,408          

Grade 8 54,000                51,408          

Grade 9 64,800                61,872          

Grade 10 64,800                61,872          

Grade 11 64,800                61,872          

Grade 12 64,800                61,872          



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
97. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

(Continued) 
 
2022-002 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE –INSTRUCTIONAL TIME (40000) (Continued) 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The loss of instructional days and minutes 
was a result of a workforce strike. The District will work to ensure the minimum number of days and minutes 
are met for the school year.  Additionally, the District has the ability to submit a waiver to the State Board 
of Education to make up the lost days by adding to the instructional calendar double the lost number of 
instructional days/minutes for two consecutive school years, contingent upon state approval and 
negotiations. 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
98. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

(Continued) 
 
2022-003 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE – IMMUNIZATIONS (40000)  
 
Criteria: Verify that each pupil had two doses of a varicella vaccine and two doses of a measles vaccine as 
required by Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 6025 prior to admission, or has a current 
medical exemption from varicella and measles immunization on file. If the pupil had only one dose of either 
vaccine prior to admission, verify the second dose was received within four calendar months after the first 
dose.  
 
Condition: Immunization records evidencing a second dose of varicella and measles vaccine were not 
obtained for one student, however, the student was admitted and attendance was claimed for the disallowed 
period.  
 
Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2021-22 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding  
described above.  
 
Effect: The District is not in compliance with the Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 6025 due 
to the inconsistency noted.  
 
Cause: The District improperly admitted the student and claimed average daily attendance in the period in 
which the second dose had not yet been received.  
 
Fiscal impact: The impact of this error is a total of $6,263. 
 
Recommendation: The District should ensure the Title 17, California Code of Regulations section 6025 
requirements are properly followed prior to admission.  
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District has established deadlines for 
immunization compliance, as well as a number of guides and reports to use in monitoring immunization, 
that is communicated at the beginning of the school year to school sites and the centralized enrollment 
center.  In the summer months, the District sends families personalized notices about missing 
immunizations.  The District also provides a free SCUSD Immunization Clinic for qualified students that 
runs before school starts and on a weekly basis throughout the school year. In addition to this resources, 
the District Student Support and Health Services Department will provide a monthly report to each school 
site with the list of students who are not compliant for immunizations.  The reports will be accompanied by 
a list of action steps to schools must take to ensure all students are compliant.  To ensure accountability, 
the District Student Support and Health Services Department will follow-up directly with school sites who 
do not take action.  The District will increase notifications and updates throughout the year to ensure new 
staff are up to date on immunization resources and required action steps. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
99. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

(Continued) 
 
2022-004 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE –CHARTER SCHOOL ATTENDANCE (10000)  
 
Criteria: Verify that the number of school days reported on the Annual attendance report, which should not 
include any emergency closure days, corresponds to the number of school days on the school calendar 
and should not fall below 175 days pursuant to Education Code section 47612.  
 
Condition: In the Spring of 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District’s Charter Schools had a teacher strike in 
where 8 days of instructional time were not provided. As a result of these lost instructional days, the Bowling 
Green, George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science, and New Jospeph Bonnheim Charter 
Schools’ total instructional days fell below the requirement of 175 days at 172 days. New Technology High 
Charter fell below the requirement of 175 days at 167 days. 
 
Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2021-22 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding  
described above.  
 
Effect: The District is not in compliance Education Code section 47612 due to the loss of instructional days 
noted.  
 
Cause: The cause of the lost instructional days is due to the workforce strike.  
 
Fiscal impact: The financial penalty due to the minimum number of school days of 175 days not being met 
is a total of $314,621. The District has properly accrued for this payable penalty as of June 30, 2022. 
 
Recommendation: The District should ensure minimum number of days and minutes are met for the school 
year.  
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The loss of instructional days and minutes 
was a result of a workforce strike. The District will work to ensure the minimum number of days and minutes 
are met for the school year.  Additionally, the District has the ability to submit a waiver to the State Board 
of Education to make up the lost days by adding to the instructional calendar double the lost number of 
instructional days/minutes for two consecutive school years, contingent upon state approval and 
negotiations. 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
100. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

(Continued) 
 
2022-005 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE –CHARTER SCHOOL ATTENDANCE (10000)  
 
Criteria:  Education Code Section 41601.  For purposes of this chapter, the governing board of each school 
district shall report to the Superintendent during each fiscal year the average daily attendance of the school 
district for all full school months during (1) the period between July 1 and December 31, inclusive, to be 
known as the “first period” report for the first principal apportionment, and (2) the period between July 1 and 
April 15, inclusive, to be known as the “second period” report for the second principal apportionment. Each 
county superintendent of schools shall report the average daily attendance for the schools and classes 
maintained by the county superintendent of schools and the average daily attendance for the county school 
tuition fund. Each report shall be prepared in accordance with instructions on forms prescribed and 
furnished by the Superintendent. 
 
Condition: The District reported The Met Sacramento High School ADA as Classroom-Based ADA in the 
Second Period Report and Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Met Sacarmento High 
School is a Nonclassroom-based program and the ADA should therefore, have been reported as 
Nonclassroom-based ADA. 
 
Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2021-22 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding  
described above.  
 
Effect: The District is not in compliance Education Code section 41601. 
 
Cause: This was caused by a clerical error.   
 
Fiscal impact: Not determinable. 
 
Recommendation: The District should ensure ADA is reported on the proper line items in the Second Period 
Report as well as the Period Annual report. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The District has identified the error and 
corrections necessary to accurately report the 2021-22 P-2 and Annual ADA for The Met. Management will 
revise the Second Period Report and the Annual Report and resubmit to the California Department of 
Education. 
 
  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

101. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

(Continued) 

2022-006 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE –CHARTER SCHOOL – ANNUAL INSTRUCTIONAL 
MINUTES – CLASSROOM BASED (40000)  

Criteria: Determine, by grade level, the total number of days in each sampled charter school’s attendance 
calendar that were of at least the minimum length required, pursuant to Education Code section 
47612.5(a)(1). 

Condition: In the Spring of 2021-2022 fiscal year, the District’s Charter Schools had a teacher strike in 
where 8 days of instructional time were not provided. As a result of these lost instructional days, the Bowling 
Green, George Washington Carver School of Arts and Science, and New Jospeph Bonnheim Charter 
Schools’ total instructional days fell below the requirement of 175 days at 172 days. New Technology High 
Charter fell below the requirement of 175 days at 167 days. Relatively, the number of instructional minutes 
by grade level fell below the minimums instructional minutes required by Education Code 47612.5.  

Context: We performed the audit procedures enumerated in the State of California 2021-22 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting and identified the finding 
described above.  

Effect: The District is not in compliance with Education Code section 47612.5(a)(1) due to the loss of 
instructional day and minutes noted.  

Cause: The cause of the lost instructional days is due to the workforce strike. 

Fiscal impact: The financial penalty due to the minimum number of school days of 175 days not being met is 
quantified above in Finding 2022-005. The financial penalty due to the minimums number of minutes by 
grade level not being met is a total of $463,970. The total fiscal impact is $778,591. The District has properly 
accrued for this payable penalty as of June 30, 2022. 

Recommendation: The District should ensure minimum number of days and minutes are met for the school 
year.  

EC 47612.5

Grade Statutory Actual

Level Requirement Minutes

Kindergarten 36,000    34,400   

Grade 1 50,400    48,144   

Grade 2 50,400    48,144   

Grade 3 50,400    48,144   

Grade 4 54,000    51,584   

Grade 5 54,000    51,584   

Grade 6 54,000    51,584   

Grade 9 64,800    61,872   

Grade 10 64,800    61,872   

Grade 11 64,800    61,872   

Grade 12 64,800    61,872   



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

 
102. 

SECTION IV - STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

(Continued) 
 
2022-006 DEFICIENCY – STATE COMPLIANCE –CHARTER SCHOOL – ANNUAL INSTRUCTIONAL 
MINUTES – CLASSROOM BASED (40000) (Continued) 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The loss of instructional days and minutes 
was a result of a workforce strike. The District will work to ensure the minimum number of days and minutes 
are met for the school year.  Additionally, the District has the ability to submit a waiver to the State Board 
of Education to make up the lost days by adding to the instructional calendar double the lost number of 
instructional days/minutes for two consecutive school years, contingent upon state approval and 
negotiations. 



 

 

 
 STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR  

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

  



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 
 

103. 

2021-001 DEFICIENCY - SEGREGATION OF DUTIES IN JOURNAL ENTRY PROCESSING (30000)  
 
Condition: Three individuals in the Accounting Services department have the ability to prepare and post 
journal entries into the financial system. This is a repeat finding of 2020-002.   
 
Recommendation: We recommend that the District implement an internal control generating a log of journal 
entries prepared and posted by the same individual and require an independent individual to review and 
verify on a periodic basis.  
 
Current Status: Not implemented. 
 
District Explanation if Not Implemented: See current year finding 2022-001. 
 
 
 
 
 
2021-002 STATE COMPLIANCE – SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD (72000) 
 
Condition: At the following sites, Bowling Green Elementary and West Campus High, one or more attributes 
on the school accountability report card was not consistent with the information on the Facility Inspection 
Tool (FIT) for the site. 
 
Recommendation: The District should ensure the school accountability report cards are completed 
appropriately based on the information of the most recent Facility Inspection Tool. 
 
Current Status: Implemented. 
 
District Explanation if Not Implemented: Not applicable. 
 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item No. 9.4 

 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2022 
 
Subject: Approve Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: )  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Department: Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation: Approve Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities. 
 
Background/Rationale: Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facility was last adopted in 1998 
and allows the Board to consider naming of facilities, or parts of facilities in honor of 
individuals, living or deceased, or geographical areas. The policy also calls for the 
appointment of a citizen advisory committee to review name suggestions and submit 
recommendation to the Board. 
 
Proposed revisions to the policy help to align the naming of facilities with the District’s 
mission and vision, provides more opportunity to consider names beyond what is 
currently in policy, further clarifies the process for appointing a citizen advisory 
committee that will review and recommend possible names to the Board of Education 
for their consideration.   
 
The Board first reviewed the proposed changes to Board Policy 7310 Faming of 
Facilities at the November 17, 2022 Board Meeting as a First Reading. No additional 
changes to the proposed policy have been made since that meeting and staff is seeking 
your Approval of the policy at this time. 
 
Financial Considerations: None 

 
LCAP Goal (s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy 
and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  



1. Executive Summary 
2. BP 7310 Naming of Facilities with tracked changes 
3. BP 7310 Naming of Facilities with changes accepted  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 10 minutes 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Nathaniel Browning, Director of Facilities  
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 2 of 2 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Approve Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities 
December 15, 2022  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 1 

 
I. Overview/History of Department or Program 
Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facility was last adopted in 1998 and allows the Board to consider 
naming of facilities, or parts of facilities in honor of individuals, living or deceased, or geographical 
areas. The policy also calls for the appointment of a citizen advisory committee to review name 
suggestions and submit recommendation to the Board. The policy allows for the renaming of 
facilities only under extraordinary circumstances and study. 
 
The current policy version does not take into account an alignment with the District’s vision and 
mission in the naming process. It also does not account for culturally or historically relevant 
names, the honoring of the diversity within our District, or names that may reflect the 
educational aspirations or instructional focus of a school. Revisions to the policy include greater 
clarity around the appointment of a citizen advisory committee that will review and recommend 
possible names to the Board of Education for their consideration. Lastly, the revisions add further 
clarity around the ability to rename facilities as the Board deems appropriate.  
 
II. Driving Governance: 
California Education Code 35160 provides the governing board with the authority to “initiate 
and carry on any program, activity, or may otherwise act in any manner which is not in conflict 
with or inconsistent with, or preempted by, any law and which is not in conflict with the 
purposes for which school districts are established.” 
 
California Education Code 221.2 codifies the California Racial Mascots Act that states, “The use 
of racially derogatory or discriminatory school or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames 
in California public schools is antithetical to the California school mission of providing an equal 
education to all.”  
 
The District’s Core Value which states, “We recognize that our system is inequitable by design 
and we vigilantly work to confront and interrupt inequities that exist to level the playing field 
and provide opportunities for everyone to learn, grow, and reach their greatness.” 
 
III. Budget: 
No budget impact. 
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures: 
College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students; 
Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
V. Major Initiatives: 
Ensuring Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities reflects the District’s mission and vision, 
provides additional guidance on naming criteria, and further defines the process for appointing 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Facilities Support Services 
Approve Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities 
December 15, 2022  
  

 

 
Facilities Support Services 2 

a citizen advisory committee to review and recommend possible names to the Board of 
Education. 
 
VI. Results: 
Review the proposed edits to Board Policy 7310 Naming of Facilities with approval at a 
subsequent Board meeting.      
 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps: 
Bring Board Policy 7310 back for approval at the December 15, 2022 Board meeting. 



Sacramento City USD |  BP  7310  Facilities 

Naming Of Facility 
    

 
The Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education Governing Boardbelieves all schools 
should be welcoming, inclusive, and inspiring places for all students. The Board desires to ensure that the 
names of District facilities reflect the District’s vision and mission. School facilities names shall consider 
the diverse community they serve. shall name schools or individual buildings in recognition of: 
 
The Board of Education should use the following criteria in considering naming a school or school 
facilities: 

 

1. 1. Individuals who have been , living or deceased for one year or more. , who have made 
outstanding contributions to the county or communityIn the case of a proposed name of an 
individual, criteria includes:  

a. Individuals who have made outstanding contributions to the county or community, or 
have made contributions of state, national, or worldwide significance.  

 The individual’s “primary legacy” (i.e. the key activities, advocacy or accomplishment 
for which the individual is most known) aligns with or reflects Sacramento City Unified 
School District’s vision and mission.  

b.  
 

 2. Individuals, living or deceased, who have made contributions of state, national or worldwide 
significance 

2. 3. GThe geographical area, landmark, cultural relevance, or historical event in which the school 
or building is located.  
 

3. Flora and Fauna of significant importance to the region. 
 

4. Other naming criteria, including: 
a. School/facility names that articulate aspirations of the educational outcomes for District 

students. 
b. School/facility names that reflect the instructional focus of the school. 
c. School/facility names should consider the diverse community that they serve. 
d. When possible, proposed names should avoid duplicating names of other schools in the 

region to prevent possible confusion. 

District facilities that might be named could include, but are not limited to, schools, theaters, building 
wings, libraries, cafeterias, multipurpose rooms, choice programs or schools, labs, maker spaces, sports 
complexes, fields, gymnasiums, swimming pools, administration offices, and honor walls. 

The Board encourages community participation in the process of selecting names. The Superintendent or 
appointee shall oversee the appointment of A a citizen advisory committee shall be appointed to review 
name suggestions and submit recommendations for the Board's consideration. 

Formatted: Left, Space Before:  1.5 pt, After:  Auto,
Don't add space between paragraphs of the same style,
Border: Bottom: (No border), Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of
the same style

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Font
color: Black

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0 pt, After:  0
pt, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, …
+ Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5", Pattern: Clear

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Font
color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Font
color: Black

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted ...
Formatted: List Paragraph

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted ...
Formatted ...
Formatted ...



 

The Board of Education has the discretion to change a facility's name at any time if they deem it 
appropriate for the benefit of the District. Specifically, the Board of Education will consider renaming 
facilities to reflect the mission, vision and/or values of the district. The Board of Education will take the 
name and history into account, and include an exhibit that represents the history of the name. (cf. 1220 - 
Citizen Advisory Committees) 

The renaming of existing schools or major facilities shall occur only under extraordinary circumstances 
and after thorough study.  

 

Memorials 

Upon request, the Board shall consider naming buildings, parts of buildings or athletic fields in honor of 
the contributions of students, staff members and community members who have been deceased for at least 
one year. 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

35160 Authority of governing boards 

Policy SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: November 16, 1998 Sacramento, California 

reviewed: November 19, 2001 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Font
color: Black

Formatted: Space Before:  0 pt, After:  8 pt, Line
spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li, Pattern: Clear

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131397/7


Sacramento City USD |  BP  7310  Facilities 

Naming Of Facility 
 
The Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education believes all schools should be 
welcoming, inclusive, and inspiring places for all students. The Board desires to ensure that the names of 
District facilities reflect the District’s vision and mission. School facilities names shall consider the 
diverse community they serve.  
 
The Board of Education should use the following criteria in considering naming a school or school 
facilities: 

1. Individuals who have been deceased for one year or more. In the case of a proposed name of an 
individual, criteria includes:  

a. Individuals who have made outstanding contributions to the county or community, or 
have made contributions of state, national, or worldwide significance.  

b. The individual’s “primary legacy” (i.e. the key activities, advocacy or accomplishment 
for which the individual is most known) aligns with or reflects Sacramento City Unified 
School District’s vision and mission.  
 

2. Geographical area, landmark, cultural relevance, or historical event.  
 

3. Flora and Fauna of significant importance to the region. 
 

4. Other naming criteria, including: 
a. School/facility names that articulate aspirations of the educational outcomes for District 

students. 
b. School/facility names that reflect the instructional focus of the school. 
c. School/facility names should consider the diverse community that they serve. 
d. When possible, proposed names should avoid duplicating names of other schools in the 

region to prevent possible confusion. 

District facilities that might be named could include, but are not limited to, schools, theaters, building 
wings, libraries, cafeterias, multipurpose rooms, choice programs or schools, labs, maker spaces, sports 
complexes, fields, gymnasiums, swimming pools, administration offices, and honor walls. 

The Board encourages community participation in the process of selecting names. The Superintendent or 
appointee shall oversee the appointment of a citizen advisory committee to review name suggestions and 
submit recommendations for the Board's consideration. 

The Board of Education has the discretion to change a facility's name at any time if they deem it 
appropriate for the benefit of the District. Specifically, the Board of Education will consider renaming 
facilities to reflect the mission, vision and/or values of the district. The Board of Education will take the 
name and history into account, and include an exhibit that represents the history of the name.   

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 



35160 Authority of governing boards 

Policy SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: November 16, 1998 Sacramento, California 

reviewed: November 19, 2001 

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131397/7


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
                                                                 Agenda Item#____9.5_____   

Meeting Date: December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve the Submission of Credential Waiver Applications to the California 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing  
 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resource Services 
 
Recommendation:   Approve the Submission of Credential Waiver Applications to the 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 
 
Background/Rationale:  In order to exercise additional options in which to fill vacant 
certificated positions, Human Resources will be submitting credential waiver 
applications to the Commission on Teacher Credentialing for approval. The teachers on 
the attached list hold a California Preliminary Teaching Credential in their respective 
subject areas. 
 
The Waiver requests are for specific certifications as teachers continue to work towards 
their English Language Authorizations, Bilingual Authorization or Basic Skills 
Requirement.  This approval authorizes and delegates to the Superintendent, or his 
designee, to take all necessary measures and action to obtain the approval of these 
credential waivers. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):   College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   

1. Executive Summary 
2. Waiver Request 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 min 
Submitted by: Cancy McArn, Ed.D., Chief Human Resources 

Officer  
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent Page 1 of 1 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Human Resource Services 
Approve the Submission of a Credential Waiver Application to the California 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
December 15, 2022 

 

  
 

 
Human Resource Services 1 

 
I. Overview/History of Department or Program 
 
Since July 1, 1994, the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (Commission) has had the 
sole authority to review requests by employing school districts to temporarily waive specific 
credential requirements for individuals. Waivers are requested by employing agencies when they 
have exhausted their attempts to find a credentialed individual or an individual who is eligible for 
an emergency permit. When adopting regulations and developing procedures for exercising its 
authority, the Commission established as the fundamental goal of the waiver process the 
transitioning of individuals from waivers to emergency permits and ultimately to full credentials.  
Since the requirements for credential waivers are at a level below those for emergency permits, 
regulations require that every waiver presented to the Commission's Appeals and Waivers 
Committee must go through a public notice process at the local level. Governing boards of public 
school districts must approve each waiver in a public meeting. 
 
II. Driving Governance: 
 
The Commission is the agency of California government that licenses teachers and other 
professionals who serve in the public schools. As the policy-making body that establishes and 
maintains standards for the education profession in the state, the Commission is concerned with 
the quality and effectiveness of the preparation of teachers and other school practitioners.  On 
behalf of the education profession and the public, one of the Commission’s most important 
responsibilities is to establish and implement strong, effective standards of quality for the 
preparation and assessment of teachers who will teach English learners.   
 
Twenty-five percent of all children enrolled in California public schools are designated as English 
learners and require specialized instruction in English language development. For these 
reasons, California has placed a high priority on preparing teachers to work with students from 
multicultural and linguistically diverse backgrounds. Since 1970, the State of California has 
required that classes designed to serve students primarily designated as English Learners in 
public schools must be taught by teachers who have the appropriate preparation to teach 
linguistically and culturally diverse students. 
 
III. Budget: N/A 
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures: 
 
In order to exercise additional options in which to fill vacant certificated position, Human 
Resources will be submitting credential waiver applications to the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing for approval.  The teachers in these current positions hold a California Preliminary 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Human Resource Services 
Approve the Submission of a Credential Waiver Application to the California 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
December 15, 2022 

 

  
 

 
Human Resource Services 2 

Teaching Credential in their respective subject area and have been working towards the English 
Language Authorizations, Bilingual Authorization or CBEST Exam.  However, additional time is 
needed to complete the credential process. 
 
V. Major Initiatives: 
 
The school district must submit these waiver requests for current employees who continue to 
complete programs and move toward this authorization, as well as for newly hired employees 
who need to enter into an approved program.  Having 100% of teachers qualified to teach English 
Language learners is essential. 
 
VI. Results: 
 
The following teachers will be able to continue in their current positions: 
 

• Matthew Marsango   

 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps: 
 
Staff recommends the approval of the Submission of a Credential Waiver Application to the 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing. 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING FOR December 15, 2022 
CREDENTIAL WAIVER REQUEST 

  

Name Position/Location Education 
Code Section 

Brief Description 
of Section 

  
 Matthew Marsango 
 CTE Teacher 

  
Teacher, Middle School 
Career & Technical 
Education 
 
Albert Einstein Middle 
School 

 
EC §44253.3 
  

Professional 
Preparation Program – 
Crosscultural, 
Language & Academic 
Development (CLAD) 
 

 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _9.6_ 

 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 

                Bargaining 2022-2023 Successor Agreement Negotiations 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resource Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive Sacramento City Teachers’ Association’s (SCTA) Initial 
Proposal Regarding Certificated Unit Collective Bargaining 2022-2023 Successor 
Agreement Negotiations. 
 
 
Background/Rationale: Under the Educational Employment Relations Act (EERA), the 
District and employee organizations shall publicly present their initial proposals related 
to collective bargaining, which shall thereafter be public records (Government Code § 
3547).  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:  N/A 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: 2 minutes 

Submitted by:  Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 

Approved by:   Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Subject:  Receive Sacramento City Teachers Association (SCTA) 
                Initial Proposal Regarding Certificated Unit Collective 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item #11.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 
2. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
3. Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
4. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
5. Change Notices – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 

  Robert Aldama, Interim Purchasing Manager 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 5  

GRANTS, ENTITLEMENTS AND OTHER INCOME AGREEMENTS – REVENUE 

Contractor New Grant   Amount 

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 
 
Expanded Learning 
Program 2022/23 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

8/1/22 – 6/30/23: Providers will develop, maintain and sustain expanded learning 
programming for the 2022/23 school year. All services will be provided in-person 
subject to federal, state, and local health and safety regulations pertaining to 
COVID-19.  Site-specific services are included in the attached contracts. 
Expanded Learning providers are selected through a Request for Qualifications 
process that includes evaluation by the site and Youth Development. Providers 
are required to meet enrollment and attendance targets and utilize the Youth 
Development Quality Assurance tool or a Self-Assessment tool as the monitoring 
and evaluation device on a monthly basis.  

2022/23 Expanded Learning Contracts 
Bigger Than Us Arts, SA23-00388 
Sites served: Abraham Lincoln, A.M. Winn, Bret Harte, Caleb 
Greenwood, Earl Warren, Father Keith B. Kenny, Golden Empire, James 
Marshall, John Still MS, Leataata Floyd, Mark Twain, Martin Luther King, 
Jr., Luther Burbank HS, Pacific, Phoebe Hearst, PS7 ES, School of 
Engineering and Science, Sequoia and Will C. Wood 
 

$133,200 
  Expanded Learning 

Opportunities Program Grant 
 
 

  
 

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

YOUTH DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
Studio T 
SA23-00340 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

10/1/22 – 6/30/23: Provide youth with opportunities to build 
positive self-esteem, learn the history of urban and 
traditional art, be physically active, host parent 
engagement activities and express themselves through 
visual and performing arts during the after school program 
hours at Tahoe, Camellia Basic, H.W. Harkness, Cesar 
Chavez, Woodbine Elementary Schools; School of Science 
and Engineering, Rosa Parks and Fern Bacon Middle 
Schools.  This program will meet with at least 15-20 
students per session for 30 weeks to express themselves 
artistically by learning different styles of dance; at the end 
of the program the youth will perform their dance routine(s) 
and display their visual art at the end of the program event 
held in collaboration with the afterschool program 

$100,800 
ASES Funds 

   
  



 Page 2 of 5  

   
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
National University 
SA23-00356 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

10/19/22-10/19/23.  Sacramento City Unified Leadership 
Program (SCULP) is a “grow our own” program that we are 
in partnership and collaboration with National University, 
Sacramento County Office of Education and Sacramento 
City Unified School District.  

$200,000 
2021-2022 

Educator 
Effectiveness 

Funds 

   
   
NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 
 
Center for Fathers and 
Families 
SA23-00394 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

1/1/22-6/30/23.  Center for Fathers and Families goal is to 
help increase academic achievement of youth while 
providing a safe and productive learning environment 
during the morning program, extra class and sports 
programs.  Program is set up to develop the child’s sense 
of independence, responsibility and self-worth; empower 
students to be academically successful.  Site being served 
is New Joseph Bonnheim.  

$135,394.57 
2021-2022 
Expanded 

Learning 
Opportunity 

Program Funds 

   
LEATAATA FLOYD 
 

 

Conditions for 
Learning 
SA23-00350 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

7/1/22-6/30/23.  Conditions for Learning will support 
Leataata Floyd Elementary educators approximately four 
(4) days/week in aligning the Leataata Floyd Elementary 
Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) with effective 
instruction practices and approaches to support the 
increase in student achievement.  

$156,000 
ESSER III Funds 

   
TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Cadence Solutions 
SA23-00408 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

YEAR 1 of 3.  Our current document management 
system, BMI AppExtender, is an on-premise system that 
was installed in 2007. Loss of critical documents from 
indexing errors necessitates a move to a new system. 
This document management is critical for retention of our 
Class 1 -Permanent, Class 2 -Optional, and Class 3 -
Disposable records in accordance with the California 
Code Of Regulations. OpenText is the #2 rated 
document management system according to Gartner's 
Magic Quadrant research methodology allowing for 
keyword searches, work-flows, and document 
recognition for ease of use. The system will be cloud-
hosted for data protection and business continuity. There 
is no software media delivered.  

 
Cadence Solutions, a Microsoft gold-rated partner, will 
provide implementation of OpenText and the Microsoft 
Azure cloud setup 

$145,600 
General Funds 

 
 

   
CDW-G 
R23-02535 
 

OpenText cloud-based document management 
implementation.  Our current document management 
system, BMI AppExtender, is an on-premise system that 
was installed in 2007. Loss of critical documents from 

$461,951.02 
ESSER III Funds 



 Page 3 of 5  

Utilizing California 
NVP SoftwareContract 
ADSPO16-130652 7-
16-70-37 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

indexing errors necessitates a move to a new system. 
This document management is critical for retention of our 
Class 1 -Permanent, Class 2 -Optional, and Class 3 -
Disposable records in accordance with the California 
Code Of Regulations. OpenText is the #2 rated 
document management system according to Gartner's 
Magic Quadrant research methodology allowing for 
keyword searches, work-flows, and document 
recognition for ease of use. The system will be cloud-
hosted for data protection and business continuity.  

 
OpenText is quoted by CDWG using the competitively bid 
California NVP SoftwareContract (ADSPO16-130652 7-
16-70-37). There is no software media delivered. Cadence 
Solutions, a Microsoft gold-rated partner, will provide 
implementation of Opentext and the Microsoft Azure cloud 
setup. Ongoing OpenText maintenance costs (year two 
and beyond) will be paid directly to Opentext. The first year 
initial cost will be paid by one time funds with year two and 
beyond ongoing funds. 
 

   
CAREER AND TECHNICAL DEPARTMENT 
 
UC Berkeley / UC 
Regents  
SA23-00404 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

11/1/22-8/31/25. CC+S to work with SCUSD and 
Community / Civic partners to collectively forg justice and 
generate joy across our most marginalized schools, 
districts and communities.  Be reimaginging the role and 
tremendous capacity of adolescents’ problem-solver and 
agents of change.  This can and must be considered amid 
California and national efforts to restructure educational 
systems in support of career pathways, community schools 
and other recent priorities. 
 
CC+S proposes a 3-year partnerships initiative to take 
work-based learning to a new level of collective impact 
where students’ sense of agency and research capacity is 
mobilized to address and impact our communities deepest 
/ greatest challenges such as homelessness, 
environmental resilience and education equity.  We believe 
this will also lift up SCUSD career pathways as a statewide 
and national model of inspiration. 
 
 

$250,000 
Career Technical 

Education 
Incentive Grant 
Program Funds 

   
 
Unrestricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

Core Districts  
SA23-00351 
 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 

9/1/22 – 6/30/23. Core District is a collaboration of school 
districts working together to improve student achievement 
through highly productive, meaningful partnership and 
learning between member school districts.  Core District 
will provide improvement assistance to the Superintendent, 
the District’s working Cabinet and Board, in addition 
providing detailed data and analytics to ensure that every 
student has what they need to thrive. 
 
 

$198,375 
General Funds 



 Page 4 of 5  

 
 

APPROVAL OF DECLARED SURPLUS MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

SITE/DEPT ITEM 
Serna Center, Albert 
Einstein MS, Edward 
Kemble Elem, John 

Sloat Elem. 

BACKGROUND: The Education Code regulates the procedures by which a 
school district can dispose of personal property. Education Code section 17546 
provides that the governing board may, by unanimous vote, dispose of items 
valued at $2,500 or less by private sale without advertising, by selling the 
items at public auction, or if the board finds that the property is of insufficient 
value to defray the costs of arranging a sale, the property may be donated to 
a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, or it may be 
disposed of in the local public dump. The District has held previous auctions, 
but they have generally cost more than they have netted for the District. 

 
STATUS: The District has determined these items are not repairable nor 
usable. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Education 
approve the salvage of the listed items per Education Code section 17546 

 
Items 

Computers (2 each) 
Chromebooks (196 
each) 
Monitor (1 each) 
Printers (3 each)   
Projectors (2 each) 

 
TOTAL VALUE 

$0.00 

DISPOSAL METHOD 
 

RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES PROJECTS   

Project: Lease-Leaseback Agreement for Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New 
Construction and Modernization 

 
Recommendation: Approve lease-leaseback contract with Balfour Beatty / Clark & Sullivan, a joint 

venture for preconstruction services of $74,810 for this project. Authorize staff 
to pursue a lease-leaseback contract with Balfour Beatty / Clark & Sullivan, a 
joint venture for construction services for this project using a fee-based 
contract with a percentage fee of 2.89%. Once plans are finalized, approved by 
Division of State Architect and the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of the 
project is developed, the construction contract will be submitted to the Board 
for approval. The cost of construction is currently estimated at $61,700,000.  
This Request for Proposal was publicly advertised on September 26, 2022 and 
October 3, 2022. 

 
Amount/Funding: $74,810 – Measure H Funds 
 
 
Bid No:    Gas Line Replacement at Pacific ES.  Replacing deteriorating gas lines.  

Existing lines pose safety concerns and require multiple service calls. 
  
Bids received: November 16, 2022 

Recommendation: Award to MBS Engineering 

Funding Source:  General Maintenance 

 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
   
MBS Engineering Inc. San Ramon, CA $101,000.00 



 Page 5 of 5  

   
 

 
CHANGE NOTICES – FACILITIES PROJECTS 
The following change notice is submitted for approval. 

Project: John Sloat Playground and Parking Lot  
 
Recommendation: California Design West Architectural Agreement was awarded $227,392.40 at 

the September 15, 2022 Board of Education Meeting.  Approve Amendment 
No. 1 to California Design West’s Architectural Agreement for Additional 
Architectural and Engineering Service Fees per SCUSDs request to add 
Kindergarten Play Equipment as well as additional paving upgrades to bike 
entry area. 

 
Amount/Funding: Increase of $10,072.00; Measure Q 
 

Project: Sequoia Restroom Replacement  
 
Recommendation: California Design West Architectural Agreement was awarded $134,661.58 at 

the November 3, 2022 Board of Education Meeting.  Approve Amendment No. 
1 to California Design West’s Architectural Agreement for Additional 
Architectural and Engineering Service Fees per SCUSDs request to add 
additional fencing, gates, and handrails. 

 
Amount/Funding: Increase of $17,020.00; Measure Q 
 

 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 1 of 8 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 

Between 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Youth Development Support Services 

 
And 

 
Bigger Than Us Arts 

  
The Sacramento City Unified School District (“District” or “SCUSD”) and Bigger Than Us Arts (“BTU 
Arts” or the “Contractor”) (collectively the “Parties”) hereby enter into this Agreement for program services 
(“Agreement”) effective on October 3, 2022 (“Effective Date”) with respect to the following recitals:   
 

                        RECITALS 
 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to engage BTU Arts to provide music, visual, and performing arts to 
SCUSD Expanded Learning Programs. Through arts engagement, BTU teaching artists’ goal is to instill 
and support positive forms of expression in the school community through the promotion of literacy in 
the arts.  These services will be provided at Abraham Lincoln Elementary, A.M. Winn Elementary, 
Bret Harte, Caleb Greenwood, Earl Warren, Father Keith B. Kenny, Golden Empire Elementary, 
James Marshall, John Still K-8, Leataata Floyd, Mark Twain, Martin Luther King, Jr. K-8, Luther 
Burbank High, Pacific Elementary, Phoebe Hearst Elementary, PS7 Elementary, School of 
Engineering and Science, Sequoia Elementary, Will C Wood; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, the ultimate goals of this agreement are to (1) meet with at least 15-20 students per session; 
(2) sessions will be one hour increments and BTU will provide three hours of instruction per week at all 
18 program sites for total of 30 weeks except Leataata Floyd (22 weeks); (3) provide staff and support for 
the arts classes and workshops;  (4) provide and disperse curriculum for the classes as well as the 
preparation for performance (5) support and enhance current arts activities in schools (6) provide 
performance opportunities for students within the program; and 

 

All services will be provided in-person subject to federal, state, and local health and safety 
regulations pertaining to COVID-19. The Contractor and all of its employees who will be working 
with students in person must abide by all local, California, and federal applicable law, including 
FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 1232g, and Ed. Code section 49060 et seq., which limits personally identifiable 
student records without parental consent with limited exceptions. All employees who will be 
working with students must undergo a criminal background investigation by SCUSD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 2 of 8 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:   
   

A. Roles and Responsibilities. 
 

i.       BTU Arts Program shall adhere to the scope of work outlined in this agreement.  BTU Arts 
Program will provide staff, and coordinate across specified program sites. BTU Arts Program will work 
with the SCUSD Youth Development Support Services staff in program implementation. Prior to any off 
site activities, BTU Arts will request approval from Youth Development area specialist and complete all 
needed school district documentation. BTU Arts Program will provide site management and supervision 
with a ratio of 1 to 20 adult/students and maintain at least 15 - 20 students in the program.  
 

ii. District shall provide contract management, administrative oversight, coordination of 
activities and logistics for the program and additional components. District shall provide and coordinate 
space and location of all trainings, events, and programs.  District shall coordinate the convening of all 
contractors to facilitate program planning and modifications. District shall coordinate the evaluation 
process and facilitate the evaluation team. 
 
B. Payment. For providing the obligations pursuant to this Agreement, BTU Arts Program shall 
invoice the District in three installments not to exceed the total amount of $133,200 ($128,250 + 4950 for 
22 weeks of Leataata Floyd program). The final installment shall not be invoiced until completion of all 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  
 
C. Independent Contractor.  While engaged in providing the services provided in this Agreement and 
otherwise performing as set forth in this Agreement, BTU Arts Program and each of BTU Arts Program 
employees, is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of 
the District. 
 
D. Insurance Requirements.  Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this Agreement, 
BTU Arts Program shall provide the District with a copy of its policy evidencing its comprehensive general 
liability insurance coverage in a sum not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. BTU Arts Program will also 
provide a written endorsement to such policy naming District as an additional insured, and such 
endorsement shall also state "Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any 
insurance carried by District shall be excess and noncontributory." If insurance is not kept in force during 
the entire term of the Agreement, District may procure the necessary insurance and pay the premium 
therefore, and the premium shall be paid by BTU Arts Program to the District. 
 

E.  Fingerprinting Requirements. As required by SCUSD, all individuals that come into contact with 
SCUSD students must undergo a criminal background investigation by SCUSD.  BTU Arts agrees that any 
employee it provides to the District shall be subject to the fingerprinting and TB requirements set forth in 
the California Education Code. The agency will be notified upon clearance.  Upon receipt of a subsequent 
arrest notification from DOJ, SCUSD shall within 48 hours notify BTU Arts of such a subsequent arrest 
notification.  If an employee is disqualified from working for District pursuant to the requirements of the 
California Education Code, BTU Arts agrees to provide a replacement employee within 15 days of 
receiving notification that the previous employee has been disqualified.  Failure to adhere to the terms of 
this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement.  

BTU Arts further agrees and certifies that any employee providing services directly to any student(s) of 
SCUSD whether qualifying as a Mandated Reporter as defined by California Penal Code §11165.7(a), or 
not, shall be provided annual training on child abuse and mandated reporting of child abuse or neglect 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 3 of 8 

utilizing an evidence-based training method which includes training on how to recognize conduct of adults 
which may trigger reasonable suspicion of abuse of children, i.e., “red-flag” or “grooming” behaviors. 

F. Confidential Records and Data. Each Party shall not disclose confidential records received from the 
other Party, including student records pursuant to FERPA, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, et seq., and California 
Education Code Section 49060, et seq. BTU Arts shall maintain the confidentiality of student or pupil 
records and shall not disclose such records to any third parties without the express written approval of the 
District.  In the event a Party receives a request for disclosure of such confidential records, whether under 
the California Public Records Act, a duly-issued subpoena, or otherwise, said Party shall tender the request 
to the other Party who shall be responsible for addressing said request, including the defense of its claim 
of confidentiality. The Party asserting its claim of confidentiality shall hold harmless and defend the Party 
receiving such a request from any liability, claim, loss, cost, attorney’s fees and damages, as adjudged by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, arising out of a refusal to disclose such confidential records. 
 
G. Period of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from October 3, 2022 through June 30, 
2023. The District may terminate this Contract with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate for 
cause.  A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Contract by the Contractor; (b) 
any act by the Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or property damage; 
or (c) the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt; Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of the Contractor's insolvency.   
 
Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory 
arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Contract shall cease and terminate.  In the event of 
such termination, the District may secure the required services from another contractor.  If the cost to the 
District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this Contract, the excess cost shall be charged 
to and collected from the Contractor.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any 
other rights or remedies available to the District.  Written notice by the District shall be deemed given when 
received by the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 
 
H. Indemnity. 

 
 i. BTU Arts Program shall indemnify and hold harmless the District, including the officers, 
employees, agents, and volunteers of the District, from and against all claims, damages, losses, expenses, 
including reasonable attorney fees and costs, arising out of the performance of the terms of this Agreement, 
caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of BTU Arts Program, 
any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by BTU Arts Program or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, except to the extent caused by the negligent act or omission or willful misconduct 
of the District. 
 
 ii. Sacramento City Unified School District shall indemnify and hold harmless BTU Arts 
Program, including the officers, employees, agents, and volunteers of BTU Arts Program from and against 
all claims, damages, losses, expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and costs, arising out of the 
performance of the terms of this Agreement, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission or 
willful misconduct of the District, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed the District or 
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except to the extent caused by the negligent act or 
omission or willful misconduct of BTU Arts Program. 
 
I. Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by final legislative 
act or a court of competent jurisdiction inclusive of appeals, if any, such provisions will not be deemed 
valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 4 of 8 

force and effect. 
 
J. Applicable Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California.  If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this Agreement, venue 
shall only be in the appropriate state or federal court having venue over matters arising in Sacramento 
County, California, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit 
by the District. 
 
K. Assignment.  This Agreement is made by and between BTU Arts Program and the District and any 
attempted assignment by them, their successors or assigns shall be void unless approved in writing by all 
Parties. 
 
L. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between  
BTU Arts Program and District with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous 
negotiations, proposals, commitments, writing advertisements publications and understandings of any 
nature whatsoever with respect to the same subject matter unless expressly included in this Agreement.  
BTU Arts Program hereby waives the presumption that any ambiguities in a contract are read against the 
drafter of same. The Parties further agrees and represents that each of them are the drafters of every part of 
this Agreement. 
 
M. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner except by written 
agreement signed by the parties. 

 
N. Execution In Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 
signatures of the Parties may appear on separate signature pages.  Facsimile or photocopy signatures shall 
be deemed original signatures for all purposes. 
 
O. Authority.  Each party represents that they have the authority to enter into this Agreement and that 
the undersigned are authorized to execute this Agreement. 

 
P. Approval/Ratification by Board of Education.  This Agreement shall be subject to 
approval/ratification by the District's Governing Board of Education and/or designee.  
 
Q. Nondiscrimination.  It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed 
under this contract, there will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in 
the work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, gender identity, 
sexual orientation, age or marital status. Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and California 
laws including, but not limited to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act. 
 
 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 5 of 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate. 
 
DISTRICT:  
 
 
By: _________________________________________  ___________________ 

Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer     Date 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

 
 
CONTRACTOR: 

 
By: _________________________________________  ___________________ 

Bigger Than Us Arts        Date 
 
 
Print Name: ________________________________  
 
 
Title: _____________________________________  
 
Phone Number: _____________________________ 
 
 
Email: _____________________________________ 
 
 

Matthew Valenzuela
Benwar Shepard

Matthew Valenzuela
11/02/2022

Matthew Valenzuela
Executive Director

Matthew Valenzuela
916-690-5856

Matthew Valenzuela
benwar@btuarts.org



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 6 of 8 

 
MOU- SCUSD Youth Development Support Services & BTU Arts 
Scope of Work 2021-22 School Year 
Attachment A 
 
Description of 
Service 

BTU Arts 
Deliverable(s)/Activities 

Timeframe 
 

Program Planning:  
In collaboration with 
SCUSD and other 
partners, BTU Arts  
 will plan, 
implement, modify 
and evaluate  BTU 
Arts  programming 
outlined in the MOU 
including: 

● Participate in 3 mandatory YDSS Supplemental Provider Meetings   
● BTU Arts staff will follow all the guidelines of SCUSD’s 

volunteer protocol.  SCUSD YDSS will provide a copy of the 
volunteer protocol to the agency. 

● Promote the SCUSD vision that every student is a responsible, 
productive citizen in a diverse and competitive world. 

● Provide sufficient staffing for program to maintain a 1:20 
(adult/student) ratio  

● BTU Arts staff will follow all the guidelines of Volunteer Protocol 
● Provide staff and support for the arts classes and workshops   
● Coordinate with school staff to assess current arts needs 
● Hire and manage all BTU Arts after school staff. 
● To place BTU employees at appropriate school sites 
● To support and enhance current arts activities in schools. 
● Develop a program plan for each site and review it quarterly with 

all staff. 

Meeting dates:  
 
Schedule date in 
11/2022 
 
Schedule date in    
February, 2023 
 
Schedule date in 
5/2023  

Program 
Management & 
Facilitation:   
BTU Arts  will 
provide staff, 
coordination and 
programming across 
designated sites, and 
will also: 

● Provide enrichment programming to at least 15-20 students per 
site. 

● Communicate regularly with SCUSD lead staff regarding project 
progress 

● Coordinate with site After School Program Manager regarding 
program delivery, field trips and/or additional student activities 

● Facilitate parent involvement in events/activities for parents of 
program participants 

● Facilitate communication between parents of participants and the 
school regarding announcements and information that pertains to 
the program participants 

● Participate in other SCUSD YDSS events  
● Other deliverables as agreed upon by  BTU Arts and the District 

On-going 

Program 
Evaluation: 
BTU Arts  will 
conduct ongoing 
program assessment 
and evaluation, and 
will aslo: 

● Maintain and provide to the SCUSD lead staff timely enrollment 
rosters and attendance records. Invoices for payment will only be 
processed once all documentation is submitted to designated 
YDSS staff. 

● Report to SCUSD lead staff regarding progress on overall 
outcomes 

● Provide mid-year update at the end of the semester 
(January/February 2023) 

● Provide final impact report on the impact and overall outcomes of 
the program on or before June 16, 2023, which should include 
results of pre/post tests showing student progress 

Ongoing  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 7 of 8 

 
 
Description of 
Service 

SCUSD Deliverable(s)/Activities Timeframe 
 

Program Planning 
Program; 
Management; 
Program Evaluation 
YDSS will:   
 

● SCUSD YDSS will pay BTU Arts Program the total amount of 
$133,200. 

● Train BTU Arts Program staff on SCUSD protocols, mission, 
vision, and structure. YDSS will provide resources for Mandated 
Reporter Training.  

● Provide information about BTU Arts’s program scope and 
deliverables to site administration  

● Provide classroom space for the program at each designated site 
once students return to sites for in-person instruction. 

● Once students return to campuses, BTU Arts will need prior 
permission from the area specialist to provide services in person 

● Assist in recruiting participants for the program through school 
advertising and outreach 

● Collect and share data per mutual agreement to be included in 
evaluation reports, to the extent permitted by law and regulation 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



MOU SCUSD-2022-23 Youth Development Support Services & Supplemental Provider Page 8 of 8 

COVID-19 Addendum 
 
In further consideration for this Agreement, The Contractor enters this COVID-19 Addendum as 
Contractor and its employees would be providing services from the school sites:  
1. Contractor agrees to strictly follow all currently applicable federal, state, county, city and/or district 

rules regarding protection from the COVID-19. Such guidelines may be found at: 
a. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html  

b. https://covid19.ca.gov/  

c. https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Pages/default.aspx 

d. https://www.cityofsacramento.org/Emergency-Management/COVID19  

e. https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mitigation_guidelines.pdf  

f. https://returntogether.scusd.edu/return-health 

2. Contractor agrees to strictly follow all currently applicable federal, state, county, city and/or district 
rules regarding reopening guidelines for child care providers.  Such guidelines may be found at: 

a. https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-
19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf 

3. School Administration and plant manager need to be aware of the staff and all the activities. 

4. Contractor will provide training to their staff on COVID-19 mitigation measures and how to remain 
safe at all times. 

5. Agency staff will only be at the sites during the hours agreed upon with the site administration. 

6. Agency staff are required to follow all District protocols while on-site at this time, including, but not 
limited to maintaining proper physical distancing, wearing a mask while inside district’s facilities, 
partaking in the health screening, washing their hands properly etc.  

7. The District reserves the right to stop the use of its facilities if it observes violation of the COVID-19 
rules.  

8. The District reserves the right to stop the agency from providing in-person services in case there is a 
spike in COVID infections. 

 
Bigger Than Us Arts: _________________________________________ 
 
Address: ______________________________________________________ 

 

Signature and Title: _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
Work Phone:                                                           Other Phone:   
 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://covid19.ca.gov/
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.cityofsacramento.org/Emergency-Management/COVID19
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mitigation_guidelines.pdf
https://returntogether.scusd.edu/return-health
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf
Matthew Valenzuela
2733 Riverside Blvd, Sacramento, CA 95818

Matthew Valenzuela
Benwar Shepard, Executive Director

Matthew Valenzuela
916-690-5856

















COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 1 OF 15  

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AND 

NATIONAL UNIVERSITY  
 

This Collaboration Agreement (“Agreement”) between NATIONAL UNIVERSITY, a 
California non-profit public benefit corporation ("NU"), and SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT (“COLLABORATOR”), is made as of October 19, 2022, referencing to the 
following facts: 

 
RECITALS 

A. NU is an independent institution of higher education accredited by the 
Commission for Senior Colleges and Universities of the Western Association of Schools and 
Colleges Senior College and University Commission (“WASCUC”) and offers undergraduate 
and graduate degrees and certificate programs in a variety of fields, including business, 
education, technology, and health care which are delivered both in classroom and online 
formats. The programs currently offered by NU are listed and described in its General Catalog 
(“General Catalog”) available online atwww.nu.edu. 

B. NU is an independent institution of higher education with its administrative 
offices in San Diego, California, and campuses located throughout California, as well as 
Nevada. 

 
C. NU is an affiliate of the National University System. The National University 

System is an alliance of operationally independent and separately accredited, non-profit 
educational institutions offering a variety of educational programs to diverse constituencies 
and a provider of technical assistance for online educational programs. 

 
D. The California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (“CTC”) is an agency in the 

Executive Branch of California State Government, created in 1970 by the Ryan Act as the 
autonomous state standards boards for educator preparation for the public schools of California, 
the licensing and credentialing of professional educators in the State of California, the enforcement 
of professional practices of educators, and the discipline of credential holders in the State of 
California. 

E. Pursuant to the provisions of the California Education Code, the governing board of any 
school district is authorized to enter into agreements with any university or college accredited by the 
CTC as an educator preparation institution to provide teaching practicum and administrative 
experience to University students enrolled in the credential curricula of such institutions (to include, 
without limitation, a Preliminary Administrative Services Credential). 

F. NU represents that it is accredited by the CTC as an educator preparation and 
credentialing institution 

http://www.nu.edu/


COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 2 OF 15  

G. COLLABORATOR is a California Public School District designated by the State of 
California. 

 
H. NU and COLLABORATOR are entering into this Agreement to facilitate 

offering of a Preliminary Administrative Services Credential program to employees of 
COLLABORATOR. 

I. NU and COLLABORATOR believe that this partnership will advance their 
respective missions by making the Preliminary Administrative Services Credentialing 
program available and more convenient to COLLABORATOR employees. 

 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Collaboration. 
 

1.1 NU and COLLABORATOR will collaborate in the offering of the Preliminary 
Administrative Services Credential program (the “Program"). 

 
1.2 NU Courses. The Program courses will be taught by NU faculty via an online 

format. In the event students take courses at any place other than the COLLABORATOR’s 
work sites or remotely using COLLABORATOR’s technology (e.g., computers or tablets), 
the tuition reduction offered in this Agreement will not be applicable, and students will be 
charged the standard, full tuition rate. 

 
1.3 Modality. NU will provide an online platform. 

1.4 Eligibility Requirements. Students wishing to enroll in the Program must 
comply with NU’s current Program admission requirements.   

 
1.5 Verification of Employment. NU will permit only those students who supply 

NU with proof of their employment status with COLLABORATOR to take courses at the 
reduced tuition rate described in this Agreement. COLLABORATOR shall verify that the 
students are currently active  employees of COLLABORATOR working in a position 
requiring a teaching credential issued by the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing (“CTC”) and that the employee possesses an active teaching credential, in order 
to be eligible to participate in the Program at the reduced tuition rate. 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 3 OF 15  

2. WASCUC and CTC Standards. The Program shall be conducted in accordance 
with all applicable WASCUC and CTC standards, policies and procedures. 

2.1 WASCUC Standards. NU is subject to the standards and policies of 
WASCUC. Therefore, COLLABORATOR and NU shall conduct all activities undertaken in 
connection with any project which includes student recruiting in strict compliance with the 
WASCUC standards and policies. 

2.2 ED Regulations. NU has been approved for various financial assistance 
programs sponsored or demonstrated by the United States Department of Education ("ED") 
including participation in tuition assistance programs provided for under Title IV of the 
Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended. The Act and regulations promulgated by ED 
include an Incentive Compensation Rule which provides that an institution participating in 
Title IV programs "may not provide any commission, bonus, or other incentive payment 
based directly or indirectly on success in securing enrollments or financial aid to any 
persons or entities engaged in any student recruiting or admission activities or in making 
decisions regarding the award of student: financial assistance." COLLABORATOR agrees 
that it will not compensate any employee or field representative based directly or indirectly 
upon success in securing enrollments. Further, COLLABORATOR agrees to conduct all 
activities and fully comply with the Incentive Compensation Rule. 

 
2.3 CTC Standards. NU shall ensure that the Program satisfies any and all CTC 

requirements for a Preliminary Administrative Services Credential to be issued to individuals 
who successfully complete the Program.   

 
3. Advertising and Promotion. 

 
3.1 Advertising Materials. NU and COLLABORATOR may publish, distribute, 

advertise, or communicate information regarding the Program in any appropriate medium at 
the advertising and/or communicating party’s sole expense; provided, however, that NU and 
COLLABORATOR will first deliver the proposed advertising copy or other material to the 
other party and obtain its written approval. 

3.2 Name Seal and Logo. Neither party may use the name, seal, or logo of the 
other party without its prior written consent. NU and COLLABORATOR will each make 
available its "brand" consistent with the terms of this Agreement. 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 4 OF 15  

4. Agreement Term and Termination. 
 

4.1 Term. Unless provided otherwise in the Addenda hereto, the term of the 
Agreement begins on the date of this Agreement and continues for a period of one year 
("Agreement Term") unless terminated sooner, or unless mutually extended in writing. 

4.2 Minimum Class Size. NU will offer the Program for the term of this Agreement 
unless the enrollment in any Program falls below fifteen (15) students during any two (2) 
consecutive months. In such event, NU may terminate this Agreement. 

4.3 Early Termination. NU or COLLABORATOR may terminate this Agreement 
at any time for any reason by giving forty-five (45)-days’ notice to the other party. 

4.4 Renewal. Unless otherwise provided for in the Addenda hereto, the Agreement 
Term will automatically renew on each anniversary date for a period of one year unless either 
party provides Notice of its intention to not renew the Agreement. 

 
5. Academic Related Responsibilities 

 
5.1 Academic Responsibility. NU will have exclusive control over the NU 

Programs. NU is not delegating, and will not delegate, any of its institutional rights or 
obligations. NU will make all academic judgments and decisions consistent with its published 
policies and procedures or its good faith reasonable judgment. 

5.2 Curriculum. Any course or program offered by NU will be subject to NU’s sole 
and absolute approval and will be consistent with WASCUC and all other requirements 
imposed by any agency or professional organization. 

5.3 Evaluation of Student Progress. Students will be evaluated at the 
completion of any course taken for academic credit using the grading rubric provided in the 
syllabus to determine if the students have satisfied the course requirements and met 
learning objectives. Any student who does not satisfy the course requirements and meet 
the learning objectives will not receive academic credit from NU. 

5.4 Academic Credit. NU will award academic credit to students who 
successfully complete courses and confer degrees or certificates on students who 
successfully complete NU Programs, under its published policies and procedures. NU 
makes no representation that academic credit awarded by NU will be accepted by any 
other institution in the United States or elsewhere. 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 5 OF 15  

5.5 Admissions. NU will evaluate each potential student in accordance with its 
published admissions criteria and will grant admission to those students who, in its discretion, 
it determines are qualified for admission into the NU Programs. 

 
5.6 Enrollment Agreement. NU will enter an enrollment agreement with each 

student admitted into the Program, which enrollment agreement will govern the rights and 
obligations of the student and NU. 

 
5.7 Teach Out. In the event the Agreement Term is terminated or not renewed as 

provided for in this Agreement or the Addenda hereto, and if active students remain at the end 
of the Agreement Term or any renewal term, such students may complete the Program online 
at the standard, full tuition rate. 

5.8 FERPA. All student records are protected under the United States Family 
Education Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA"). COLLABORATOR will maintain the 
confidentiality of any and all student data in accordance with FERPA, including 
procedures to ensure that all student records are keep in secured facilities and access to 
the records is limited to personnel who are authorized to have access to said data. These 
confidentiality requirements will survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

5.9 To the extent that any NU employees or contractors are on 
COLLABORATOR premises, NU will comply with the following pre-service screening 
requirements for all staff and contractors assigned by the NU to provide services to 
COLLABORATOR: 

5.10 Fingerprinting:  NU shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with all 
applicable fingerprinting and criminal background investigation requirements described 
in Education Code Section 45125.1.  NU’s responsibility shall extend to all NU 
employees, program staff, and subcontractors, regardless of whether such individuals are 
paid or unpaid, and/or acting as independent contractors of NU (“NU Party”).  NU shall 
not permit any NU Party to have any in-person contact with COLLABORATOR’s 
employees or students until NU has verified in writing to the COLLABORATOR’s 
Board of Education that such NU Party has not been convicted of a felony, as defined in 
Education Code Section 45125.1.  Verification of compliance with this requirement shall 
be provided in writing to COLLABORATOR prior to each NU Party’s participation in 
the program if there will be any in-person contact by any NU Party and prior to permitting 
in-person contact with COLLABORATOR’s employees or students.  

5.11 TB Testing:  Prior to permitting any NU Party to have in-person access to 
any COLLABORATOR employee or student under the terms of this Agreement, NU 
shall require each NU Party to submit evidence of an examination within the past sixty 
(60) days to determine that they are free of active tuberculosis.  NU agrees to adhere to 
the tuberculosis test requirements of Education Code Section 49406 for each NU Party.  
Verification of compliance with this requirement shall be provided in writing to 
COLLABORATOR prior to each NU Party’s in-person participation in the program and 
prior to permitting in-person contact with COLLABORATOR employees or students. 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 6 OF 15  

6. Tuition, Fees, and Student Services. 
   

6.1 Tuition.  NU will charge COLLABORATOR employees a tuition rate that is twenty-
five percent (25%) less than the NU’s standard tuition rate currently being charged at the time each 
course is offered. This rate is subject to normal tuition increases, as indicated in the most current 
version of the NU Catalog. NU will also charge COLLABORATOR employees all applicable fees 
and costs. This tuition reduction may not be applied in conjunction with any other University 
scholarship for which an employee may be eligible. Should COLLABORATOR employees take 
courses outside of the cohort with COLLABOARTOR, the tuition reduction offered in this 
Agreement will not be applicable and COLLABORATOR employees will be charged the standard, 
full tuition rate. 

6.2 Fees and Costs. In addition to tuition, NU may charge students fees and costs 
consistent with its published policies. 

6.3 Refund Policy. The refund policy for students enrolled in Program will be 
governed by NU published policies and procedures. 

6.4 Policies and Procedures. Students admitted to the Program will be subject to 
the applicable rules and regulations prescribed in the NU Catalog. Students shall be entitled 
to the same rights as other NU students. 

6.5 Student Assistance. NU will provide students assistance with student 
relationships, class scheduling, non-academic student advising, and special tutoring. 

 
6.6 Textbooks. NU will designate textbooks, course packs, and other instructional 

materials for students. COLLABORATOR employees will be independently responsible for 
purchasing any textbooks, course packs and/or other instructional materials as outlined on the 
course syllabus as requirements per course. 

6.7 Library Resources. Students enrolled in the Program will have access to 
NU's electronic library and shall be provided remote authentication. Students will not be 
charged for access to the electronic library. 

 
7. Confidentiality. 

7.1 Confidential Information. 
Confidential Information means information: 

(A) about the business affairs, finances, customer and supplier  lists, 
marketing, sales, methods of operation, trade secrets, designs, inventions, 
formulas, software programs, processes, techniques, research, technical data, 
curriculum or other learning information; 

(B) disclosed by one party to the other party, either directly or indirectly, 
in writing or orally or by drawings or observation; and 

(C) which has actual or potential economic value to the party disclosing it. 
 
 

 
 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 7 OF 15  

7.2 Duty of Confidentiality. Both parties acknowledge that they may be exposed 
to Confidential Information from the other party and agree to keep this information strictly 
confidential. Both parties will take all possible and necessary precautions against disclosure of 
the Confidential Information to anyone, other than as provided in the Agreement, during and 
after the Agreement Term. Both parties must not use the Confidential Information except to 
the extent necessary to discharge its obligations and provide the services under this Agreement. 

7.3 Remedies for Disclosure. Both parties agree that any unauthorized 
disclosure or use of the Confidential Information may cause immediate and irreparable 
harm to the other party for which money damages may not constitute a timely or adequate 
remedy. Accordingly, both parties agree that injunctive relief may be warranted in addition 
to any other available remedies. Both parties agree to give prompt Notice to the other party 
of any unauthorized misappropriation, disclosure, or use of the Confidential Information 
that may come to their attention and to take all steps at their own expense necessary to 
limit, stop, or otherwise remedy them is appropriation, disclosure, or use. 

7.4 Return of Confidential Information. After Notice by one party, or the 
termination of the Agreement, the other party must immediately return the Confidential 
Information of the other party and comply with the instructions regarding the return or 
disposition of the Confidential Information, including any copies or reproductions. 

 
8. Compliance With Laws. 

 
8.1 Non-Discrimination and Commitment to Equity, Diversity and Inclusion. 

The parties agree not to discriminate against any individual in the performance of 
this Agreement because of race, color, religion, sex, gender, ancestry, age, national origin or 
disability (as defined in The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 USC 12101, et seq. 
and any regulation promulgated thereunder) or any other unlawful basis. COLLABORATOR 
agrees to recognize and support the NU’s commitment to Diversity Equity and Inclusion. 

 
8.2 Title IX. NU strictly adheres to Title IX of the Education Amendments of 

1972, the federal Campus Sexual Violence Elimination Act; United States Department of 
Education regulations and directives; and NU’s sexual harassment policy and procedures 
(collectively, “Regulations”). Specifically, the Regulations apply to all students, employees, 
visitors, and other third parties on NU-controlled or affiliated property, including institutions 
and entities with whom NU places its employees or students. Further, such Regulations 
prohibit unequal treatment on the basis of sex/gender as well as sexual harassment, 
misconduct and violence. As a condition of employment, enrollment, doing business, or being 
permitted on NU-controlled or affiliated property, the above-mentioned individuals, 
organizations, and entities must agree to: (1) Report any and all allegations of discrimination, 
harassment, (including sexual harassment, or violence) promptly to NU’s Title IX 
Coordinator via the reporting form at the following link: https://www.nu.edu/reportit/,or by 
using one of the other methods of communication with the Title IX Coordinator found at the 
following link: https://www.nu.edu/title-ix/erp/; (2) Cooperate with NU’s investigation; and 
(3) Cooperate fully with all sanctions that NU may impose against those who are found to 
have violated the Regulations. If the individual, organization, or entity fails to adhere to any 

https://www.nu.edu/reportit/
https://www.nu.edu/title-ix/erp/


COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 8 OF 15  

of the aforementioned requirements, NU reserves the right to take appropriate action, 
including but not limited to: immediate removal from NU-controlled or affiliated property, 
discipline of employees and students (including termination of employment and/or 
enrollment); and/or termination of business or contractual relationships.  

8.3 Laws. Both parties will conduct their activities under the Agreement in 
strict compliance with all Laws. “Laws” means all applicable laws, ordinances, 
regulations, and other requirements of any country, federal, state, county, or municipal 
agency. 

8.4 Permits and License. Both parties will obtain all required licenses and permits 
for the performance of their obligations under the Agreement. 

8.5 Proof of Compliance. Both parties will certify and provide proof that they are 
in compliance with laws and have obtained required permits or licenses within ten (10) 
business days after receiving a request from the other party. 

 
9. Insurance And Indemnification. 

9.1 Liability Insurance. Both parties will maintain in force at all times during the 
Agreement Term, with insurance or self-insurance acceptable to each party, worker's 
compensation (the amount required by statute), employer's liability comprehensive general 
liability and auto liability, each in the amount of $1,000,000, and additional  insurance as may 
be necessary to cover each parties' obligations under the Agreement. Each party must furnish 
to the other party before the effective date of the Agreement certificates of insurance for all 
the insurance policies required under this Section showing the other party as an additional 
insured and other evidence of the required coverage. 

 
9.2 Indemnification by COLLABORATOR. COLLABORATOR shall, to the 

fullest extent permitted by law, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless NU and its officers, 
member entity employee, and agents for any and all liability, claims, litigation, judgments, 
causes of action, losses, expenses, damages, and liabilities arising out of, or incurred in 
connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of the obligations undertaken in 
connection with this Agreement, including, without limitation, breaches of obligations 
pertaining to compliance with WASC standards and ED regulations ("Claims"), except Claims 
arising through the sole active negligence or willful misconduct of NU. 

9.3 Indemnification by NU. NU shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless COLLABORATOR and its officers, member entity 
employees, and agents for any and all Claims arising out of, or incurred in connection with or 
arising directly or indirectly out of the obligations undertaken in connection with this 
Agreement, except Claims arising through the sole active negligence or willful misconduct of 
COLLABORATOR. 

9.4 Definition of Indemnify. "Indemnify" means to hold harmless from and 
defend from loss or liability with respect to any and all Claims (including reasonable costs 
and reasonable attorney' s fees at both trial and appellate levels), arising out of, or incurred in 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 9 OF 15  

connection with, an identified circumstance, incident, condition, relationship, time period, or 
other matter. This indemnity obligation shall apply for the entire time that any third party can 
make a Claim against either party for liabilities arising out of the obligations under this 
Agreement. 
10. Representations And Warranties 

 
10.1 Both Parties. Both parties represent and warrant that: 

 
(A) the parties have the power to enter into and perform this Agreement; 

and this Agreement's execution has been duly authorized by all necessary action; 
(B) following approval by COLLABORATOR’s Board of Education, no 

further consent or approval of any other person or governmental authority is necessary 
for this Agreement to be effective; and 

 
(C) the performance of the obligations assumed under the Agreement will 

not violate any laws or other applicable rules or regulations. 
 
10.2      Survival. All warranties and representations made by either party or in any 
certificate or other instrument delivered by either party as evidence of its compliance 
with obligations under the Agreement will be considered to have been relied upon by 
the other party and will survive the performance of all obligations under the  
Agreement. 

 
11. Enforcement. 

 
11.1 Claims. Any controversy or claim between the parties (including their trustees, 

directors, officers, shareholders and member entity employees) relating to, or arising out of, 
this Agreement must be submitted to Sacramento County Superior Court, including all 
controversies or claims based on contract, tort, equity, and all state and federal statutes.  

11.2    Attorneys' Fees. In the event either party requests arbitration or files a lawsuit 
for the interpretation, specific performance, or damages for the breach of the Agreement, the 
prevailing party is entitled to a judgment or award against the other in an amount equal to 
actual and reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred, together with all other appropriate 
legal or equitable relief. 

 
12. Notices. 

12.1 When Required. When this Agreement requires that a party give Notice to 
the other party, including specifically notices of default, termination, or a demand for 
arbitration, the Notice must comply with the requirements in this Article. 

 
12.2 Methods. Notice will be effective: 

 
(A) if personally delivered to the recipient, upon delivery; 



COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 9 OF 15  

(B) if mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known to the  party 
giving Notice, three mail delivery days after deposit in a U.S. Postal Service; 

 
(C) if mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, on receipt, if a return 

receipt confirms delivery; and 
 

(D) if delivered by overnight delivery (e.g., Federal Express/Airborne/United 
Parcel Service /OHL World Wide Express), charges prepaid or charged to the sender's 
account, on delivery. 

 
12.3 Recipients. Notices must be given to: 

 

If to NU, to: 
 

Dave C. Lawrence, MBA, Ed.D. 
Vice Chancellor, Admin. & Finance, CFO 
National University 
With copy to: Legal Department  
9388 Lightwave Ave 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Telephone Number:  (858) 642-8593 
Email: dlawrence@nu.edu and legal@nu.edu  

 

If to Sacramento City Unified School District, to: 
 
Rose F. Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
Email: rose-f-ramos@scusd.edu 

 
All communications for which Notice is not required, including those provisions 

permitting or requiring a party to "approve," "advise," or "consent" may be given by facsimile 
or other electronic communications. In these circumstances only the contact person for each 
party need receive the communication. 

mailto:dlawrence@nu.edu
mailto:legal@nu.edu
mailto:rose-f-ramos@scusd.edu


COLLABORATION AGREEMENT | PAGE 10 OF 15  

13. Assignment. The Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the 
express written consent of the other party. 

14. General Provisions. 
 

14.1 Relationship of the Parties. The parties agree that the terms of the Agreement 
do not constitute the formation of a partnership, joint venture, or other relationship and that no 
form of agency exists between the parties. Neither party will hold itself, or its agents or member 
entity employees, out to be an agent of the other party, and neither party will have authority to 
bind or obligate the other party in any manner whatsoever. 

 
14.2 Limitations on Authority. The rights, powers, and authority of both parties is 

subject to the following conditions and limitations: (a) neither party will have authority to 
perform any act on behalf of the other except as expressly authorized in this Agreement or 
otherwise expressly authorized in writing; (b) without the approval of the other party, neither 
party will authorize, or obligate the expenditure of any funds, or create any liability or expense 
for the other party; and (c) any contracts or obligations will require the signatures of both 
parties. 

 
14.3 Third Persons. Nothing in this Agreement, whether expressed or implied, is 

intended to confer any rights or remedies under, or by reason of, the Agreement on any persons 
other than the parties to it and their respective permitted transferees, successors, assigns, heirs, 
executors, administrators, and personal representatives, nor is anything in the Agreement 
intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of any third persons, nor will any 
provision give any third person any right of subrogation or action over or against either party 
to the Agreement. 

14.4 Expenses. Except as expressly provided in the Agreement, both parties will pay 
their own expenses incident to the Agreement and the transactions contemplated, including all 
fees of counsel and accountants. 

14.5 Waiver. One or more waivers of a term or condition in the Agreement by either 
party will not be construed as a waiver of any right to enforce the same or a different term   or 
condition in the event of future defaults. Delay or omission by either party to seek a remedy 
for any default of the Agreement or to exercise a right accruing to the party with respect to the 
default will not be construed as a waiver. 

14.6 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 
parties relating to the transactions contemplated. All contemporaneous contracts, 
understandings, representations, and statements, whether oral or written, and whether by a 
party or the party's legal counsel, are merged into the Agreement. No modification, waiver, 
amendment, discharge, or change of the Agreement will be valid unless it is in writing and 
signed by the party against which the enforcement of the modification, waiver, amendment, 
discharge, or change is or may be sought. 



11  

14.7 Construction and Interpretation. The parties have participated fully in 
negotiating, preparing, and drafting the Agreement and the rule that an ambiguity in language 
is to be construed against the author will have no effect as to the Agreement. Article and Section 
headings are not to be considered a part of the Agreement and are included solely for 
convenience. Handwritten or typed words will have no greater weight than printed words. 
Unless the context requires otherwise: the plural and singular numbers will each be deemed to 
include the other; masculine, feminine, and neuter genders will each be deemed to include the 
others; "will," "will not," or "agrees" are mandatory, and "may" is permissive; "or" is not 
exclusive; "includes" and "including" are not limiting; and "days" mean calendar days. 
"Written approval," or "consent" means written approval or consent given in advance of the 
action or event signed by the other party giving its approval or non-approval, and if a party 
does not give approval or disapproval, approval is deemed denied. 

 
14.8 Partial Invalidity. If any term or condition contained in the Agreement 

becomes to any extent invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement, or the 
application of the term or condition to persons or circumstances other than those with respect 
to which it is invalid or unenforceable, will not be affected and every other term, provision, 
and condition will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

14.9 Electronic Signature. The parties agree that the Agreement, ancillary contracts, 
and related documents will be considered signed when the signature of a party is delivered by 
Adobe Sign, or by a wet signature. This electronic signature will be treated in all respects as 
having the same effect as an original signature. 

14.10 Miscellaneous Provisions. This Agreement: 
 

(A) will be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by 
the parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, or assigns; 

(B) may be executed in any number of counterparts and sent by 
facsimile, each of which is deemed to be an original, but all of which together 
constitute one and the same instrument; 

 
(C) must be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California; and 
 

(D) except as otherwise expressly provided, has been entered into in 
Sacramento, California by COLLABORATOR and San Diego, California by 
NU as of the date set forth in the first line of the Agreement. 

 
[Signature Page to Follow] 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



12  

 
 
Accepted and Agreed: 

 

Sacramento City Unified School District  
 
 
 

By:    

 Rose Ramos, CBO 

 

 
National University 

 
 
 
 
By: 

 
Dave C. Lawrence, MBA, Ed.D. 
Vice Chancellor, Admin. & Finance, CFO



 

ADDENDUM A 
 
 

National University 
Tier 1 Program Courses - Curriculum Elements: 

EDA 655 

EDA 653 

EDA 654 

EDA 600A  

EDA 652 

EDA 656 

EDA 657 

EDA 658 

EDA 602A 

EDA 602B 

School Improvement Leadership 

Curriculum Leadership 

Instructional Leadership 

Applications in Leadership 

Visionary Leadership 

Professional Growth Leadership 

Org/Systems Leadership 

Community Leadership 

Internship A 

Internship B 

 

 

 

 



 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 1 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
Date: December 1, 2022 Place:  Sacramento, California 
 
Parties: Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of 

California, (hereinafter referred to as the "District"); and Center for Fathers and 
Families (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"). 

 
Recitals: 
 
 A. The District is a public school district in the County of Sacramento, State of 
California, and has its administrative offices located at the Serna Center, 5735 47th Avenue, 
Sacramento, CA 95824. 
 
 B. The District desires to engage the services of the Contractor and to have said 
Contractor render services on the terms and conditions provided in this Agreement. 
 
 C. California Government Code Section 53060 authorizes a public school district to 
contract with and employ any persons to furnish to the District, services and advice in financial, 
economic, accounting, engineering, legal, or administrative matters if such persons are specially 
trained, experienced and competent to perform the required services, provided such contract is 
approved or ratified by the governing board of the school district. Said section further authorizes 
the District to pay from any available funds such compensation to such persons as it deems 
proper for the services rendered, as set forth in the contract. 
 
 D. The Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform the 
services required by the District, and such services are needed on a limited basis. 
 
In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1.  SERVICES. 
The Contractor hereby agrees to provide to the District the services as described below 
(“Services”): 
 
Morning program, extra class and sports program at New Joseph Bonnheim 

 
 

ARTICLE 2.  TERM. 
This Agreement shall commence on November 1, 2022, and continue through June 30, 2023, 
unless sooner terminated, as set forth in Article 10 of this Agreement, provided all services under 
this Agreement are performed in a manner that satisfies both the needs and reasonable 
expectations of the District. The determination of a satisfactory performance shall be in the sole 
judgment and discretion of the District in light of applicable industry standards, if applicable. The 
term may be extended by mutual consent of the parties on the same terms and conditions by a 
mutually executed addendum. 
 

ARTICLE 3.  PAYMENT. 
District agrees to pay Contractor for services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this Agreement 
as follows: 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 2 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

 
 Flat Rate:  The total payment to Contractor, including travel and other expenses, shall be 
One Hundred Thirty-Five Thousand Three Hundred Ninety-Four and 57/100 Dollars 
($135,394.57). 
 
Payment shall be made within 30 days upon submission of periodic invoice(s) to the attention of 
New Joseph Bonnheim School, Sacramento City Unified School District, P. O. Box 246870, 
Sacramento, California 95824-6870. 
 

ARTICLE 4.  EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES. 
District will provide Contractor with access to all needed records and materials during normal 
business hours upon reasonable notice. However, District shall not be responsible for nor will it 
be required to provide personnel to accomplish the duties and obligations of Contractor under 
this Agreement. Contractor will provide all other necessary equipment and facilities to render the 
services pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 5.  WORKS FOR HIRE/COPYRIGHT/TRADEMARK/PATENT 
The Contractor understands and agrees that all matters specifically produced under this 
Agreement that contain no intellectual property or other protected works owned by Contractor 
shall be works for hire and shall become the sole property of the District and cannot be used 
without the District's express written permission. The District shall have the right, title and interest 
in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark and/or patent 
of said matter in the name of the District. The Contractor consents to the use of the Contractor's 
name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any 
purpose in any medium. 
 
As to those matters specifically produced under this Agreement that are composed of intellectual 
property or other protected works, Contractor must clearly identify to the District those protected 
elements included in the completed work. The remainder of the intellectual property of such 
completed works shall be deemed the sole property of the District. The completed works that 
include both elements of Contractor’s protected works and the District’s protected works, shall be 
subject to a mutual non-exclusive license agreement that permits either party to utilize the 
completed work in a manner consistent with this Agreement including the sale, use, performance 
and distribution of the matters, for any purpose in any medium. 
 

ARTICLE 6.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 
Contractor’s relationship to the District under this Agreement shall be one of an independent 
contractor. The Contractor and all of their employees shall not be employees or agents of the 
District and are not entitled to participate in any District pension plans, retirement, health and 
welfare programs, or any similar programs or benefits, as a result of this Agreement.  
 
The Contractor and their employees or agents rendering services under this agreement shall not 
be employees of the District for federal or state tax purposes, or for any other purpose. The 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to report 
as income its compensation from the District and to make the requisite tax filings and payments 
to the appropriate federal, state, and/or local tax authorities. No part of the Contractor’s 
compensation shall be subject to withholding by the District for the payment of social security, 
unemployment, or disability insurance, or any other similar state or federal tax obligation.  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 3 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the District harmless from any and all 
claims, losses, liabilities, or damages arising from any contention by a third party that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement. 
 
The District assumes no liability for workers' compensation or liability for loss, damage or injury 
to persons or property during or relating to the performance of services under this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 7.  FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS. 
Contractor agrees that any employee it assigns to provide services directly to, or have any 
contact with, pupil(s) of the District, shall be subject to the fingerprinting/background and TB 
requirements set forth in the California Education Code. Any employee that Contractor assigns 
to provide services directly to, or have any contact with, pupil(s) of the District shall have 
undergone the background check required in §45125(b)&(c), including response by DOJ, before 
any service or contact with pupil(s) of the District is allowed. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code §45125.1, Contractor shall provide a complete list to the District of 
all employees cleared by the DOJ who will provide services under this Agreement (or MOU) and 
shall certify in writing to the District that Contractor has no information that any of its employees 
who are required to have their fingerprints submitted to the Department of Justice (DOJ), and 
who may come in contact with pupils, have been convicted of a “violent or serious felony” as 
defined in §45122.1 or that they have been advised of any such arrest by the DOJ.   
 
Contractor shall continuously monitor through DOJ, and obtain subsequent arrest notification 
from DOJ, regarding any individual whose fingerprints were submitted pursuant to §45125.1 and 
who is or will be providing service directly to, or has contact with, pupil(s) of the District. Upon 
receipt of a subsequent arrest notification from DOJ, Contractor shall, within 24 hours, notify the 
District of such arrest notification and prohibit the employee from having any further contact with 
any pupil(s) of the District until such time as the employee’s arrest has been determined to not 
involve a “violent or serious felony” as defined in §45122.1 or the notification has been 
withdrawn by DOJ. If an employee is disqualified from working for the District pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Education Code, even if only temporarily, Contractor agrees to 
provide a replacement employee within 15 days of receiving notification that the previous 
employee has been disqualified.  
 
Contractor further agrees and certifies that any employee providing services directly to any 
pupil(s) of the District whether qualifying as a Mandated Reporter as defined by California Penal 
Code §11165.7(a), or not, shall be provided  annual training on child abuse and mandated 
reporting of child abuse or neglect utilizing an evidence-based training method which includes 
training on how to recognize conduct of adults which may trigger reasonable suspicion of abuse 
of children, i.e., “red-flag” or “grooming” behaviors. 
 
Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement (or 
MOU). 
 

ARTICLE 8.  VACCINATION REQUIREMENTS 
Per Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education Resolution No. 3233 
requirements, Contractor agrees that any employee, agent, or subcontractor it assigns to 
provide services at District facilities will be fully vaccinated against COVID-19, unless they have 
filed a valid exemption with Contractor. Individuals with valid exemptions shall undergo regular, 

https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/4.1_res_no_3233_vaccination_mandate.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 4 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

routine testing. Certification of compliance with the above requirements must be submitted using 
the following link prior to providing services at District facilities: 
https://app.informedk12.com/link_campaigns/vaccination-certification-for-contracted-
services?token=xpunqUbbV5yLWiurunPm8CiQ.   
 
Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 9.  MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION. 

Each of the Parties shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, its officers, agents 
and employees from any and all claims, liabilities and costs, for any damages, sickness, death, or 
injury to person(s) or property, including payment of reasonable attorney’s fees, and including 
without limitation all consequential damages, from any cause whatsoever, arising directly or 
indirectly from or connected with the operations or services performed under this Agreement, 
caused in whole or in part by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the Parties or its 
agents, employees or subcontractors.  
 
It is the intention of the Parties, where fault is determined to have been contributory, principles of 
comparative fault will be followed and each Party shall bear the proportionate cost of any 
damage attributable to fault of that Party. It is further understood and agreed that such 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 10.  INSURANCE. 
Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this Agreement, Contractor shall 
provide the District with a certificate of insurance reflecting its comprehensive general liability 
insurance coverage in a sum not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence naming District as an 
additional insured.  Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any 
insurance carried by District shall be excess and noncontributory. If insurance is not kept in 
force during the entire term of the Agreement, District may procure the necessary insurance and 
pay the premium therefore, and the premium shall be paid by the Contractor to the District. 

 
ARTICLE 11.  TERMINATION. 

The District may terminate this Agreement without cause upon giving the Contractor thirty days 
written notice. Notice shall be deemed given when received by Contractor, or no later than three 
days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 
The District may terminate this Agreement with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate 
for cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Agreement by the 
Contractor; (b) any act by the Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal 
injury or property damage; or (c) the Contractor confirms its insolvency or is adjudged a bankrupt; 
Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on 
account of the Contractor's insolvency.  
 
Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or 
satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Agreement shall cease and 
terminate. In the event of such termination, the District may secure the required services from 
another contractor. If the cost to the District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to 
this Agreement, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the Contractor. The 
foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other rights or remedies 
available to the District. Written notice by the District shall be deemed given when received by 
the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner. 

https://app.informedk12.com/link_campaigns/vaccination-certification-for-contracted-services?token=xpunqUbbV5yLWiurunPm8CiQ
https://app.informedk12.com/link_campaigns/vaccination-certification-for-contracted-services?token=xpunqUbbV5yLWiurunPm8CiQ


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 5 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

 
ARTICLE 12.  ASSIGNMENT. 

This Agreement is for personal services to be performed by the Contractor. Neither this 
Agreement nor any duties or obligations to be performed under this Agreement shall be assigned 
without the prior written consent of the District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the 
event of an assignment to which the District has consented, the assignee or his/her or its legal 
representative shall agree in writing with the District to personally assume, perform, and be 
bound by the covenants, obligations, and agreements contained in this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 13.  NOTICES. 
Any notices, requests, demand or other communication required or permitted to be given under 
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of 
service if served personally on the party to whom notice is to be given, or on the third day after 
mailing if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered or 
certified, postage prepaid, or on the day after dispatching by Federal Express or another 
overnight delivery service, and properly addressed as follows: 
 
District: 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
Attn:  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contracts 
5735 47th Ave 
Sacramento CA 95824 

Contractor: 
Center for Fathers & Families 
920 Del Paso Boulevard 
Sacramento CA  95815 

 
ARTICLE 14.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
understanding between them with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no 
promises, terms, conditions or obligations, oral or written, between or among the parties relating 
to the subject matter of this Agreement that are not fully expressed in this Agreement. This 
Agreement may not be modified, changed, supplemented or terminated, nor may any obligations 
under this Agreement be waived, except by written instrument signed by the party to be 
otherwise expressly permitted in this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 15.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 
The Contractor shall abide by and be subject to all applicable District policies, regulations, 
statutes or other laws regarding conflict of interest. Contractor shall not hire any officer or 
employee of the District to perform any service covered by this Agreement. If the work is to be 
performed in connection with a Federal contract or grant, Contractor shall not hire any employee 
of the United States government to perform any service covered by this Agreement. 
Contractor affirms to the best of their knowledge, there exists no actual or potential conflict of 
interest between Contractor’s family, business or financial interest and the services provided 
under this Agreement. In the event of a change in either private interest or services under this 
Agreement, any question regarding possible conflict of interest which may arise as a result of 
such change will be brought to the District’s attention in writing. 
 

ARTICLE 16.  NONDISCRIMINATION. 
It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed under contract, there 
will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in the work 
because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, age or marital 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 6 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

status. Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and California laws including, but not 
limited to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act. 
 

ARTICLE 17.  SEVERABILITY. 
Should any term or provision of this Agreement be determined to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law of the State of California, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be 
affected thereby. Each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced as 
written to the full extent permitted by law. 
 

ARTICLE 18.  RULES AND REGULATIONS. 
All rules and regulations of the District’s Board of Education and all federal, state and local laws, 
ordinance and regulations are to be strictly observed by the Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement. Any rule, regulation or law required to be contained in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be incorporated herein. 
 

ARTICLE 19.  APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE. 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this Agreement, venue shall only be in 
the appropriate state or federal court having venue over matters arising in Sacramento County, 
California, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by 
the District. 
 

ARTICLE 20.  RATIFICATION BY BOARD OF EDUCATION. 
To the extent the Agreement exceeds an expenditure above the amount specified in Education 
Code section 17605, this Agreement, as to any such exceeded amount, is not enforceable and 
is invalid unless and until the exceeded amount is approved and/or ratified by the governing 
board of the Sacramento City Unified School District, as evidenced by a motion of said board 
duly passed and adopted. 
 
Executed at Sacramento, California, on the day and year first above written. 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY 

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 

Rose Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 

 
     
_____________________________________ 

Date 

 
CENTER FOR FATHERS & FAMILIES 

 
 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 

 
 

 
      
____________________________________ 

Date 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 7 of 7 

SA23-00394 
Center for Fathers & Families 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION of COMPLIANCE 
 
Fingerprinting:  Education Code section 45125.1 provides that any contractor providing school 
site administrative or similar services to a school district must certify that employees who may 
come into contact with pupils have not been convicted of a serious or violent felony as defined 
by law. Those employees must be fingerprinted and the Department of Justice (DOJ) must 
report to the Contractor if they have been convicted of such felonies. No person convicted may 
be assigned to work under the contract. Depending on the totality of circumstances including (1) 
the length of time the employees will be on school grounds, (2) whether pupils will be in 
proximity of the site where the employees will be working and (3) whether the contractors will be 
working alone or with others, the District may determine that the employees will have only 
limited contact with pupils and neither fingerprinting nor certification is required.  
 
The District has determined that section 45125.1 is applicable to this Agreement, and that the 
employees assigned to work at a school site under this Agreement will have only limited contact 
with pupils, provided the following conditions are met at all times: 
 

1. Employees shall not come into contact with pupils or work in the proximity of pupils at 
any time except under the direct supervision of school district employees. 

2. Employees shall use only restroom facilities reserved for District employees and shall 
not use student restrooms at any time. 

3. Contractor will inform all employees who perform work at any school or District site of 
these conditions and require its employees, as a condition of employment, to adhere to 
them. 

4. Contractor will immediately report to District any apparent violation of these conditions. 
5. Contractor shall assume responsibility for enforcement of these conditions at all times 

during the term of this Agreement. 
 
If, for any reason, the Contractor cannot adhere to the conditions stated above, the Contractor 
shall immediately so inform the District and shall assign only employees who have been 
fingerprinted and cleared for employment by the Department of Justice. In that case, the 
Contractor shall provide to the District the names of all employees assigned to perform work 
under this Agreement. Compliance with these conditions, or with the fingerprinting requirements, 
is a condition of this Agreement, and the District reserves the right to suspend or terminate the 
Agreement at any time for noncompliance. 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________________ 
Authorized Signature of Contractor   Date 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Printed Name/Title 
 













 

 

February 10, 2022 
 
 

Conditions For Learning: A Proposal for Services 
 

Submitted to: Linda Bersinger, Principal, Leataata Elementary and Aprille Shafto, Instructional Superintendent, Sacramento 
City Unified School District 
Submitted by: Jason Knighton, Conditions For Learning 
 
Conditions For Learning is an educational nonprofit helping educators create classroom environments that are 
Engaging, Responsive, and Inspiring. Conditions For Learning will provide professional development and on-
site/virtual training at Leataata Floyd Elementary to support teachers in implementing strategies that increase 
academic rigor and social emotional support. 
 
Vision: To position Leataata Elementary as a vibrant center of learning and social change for students, families, and 
the community. 
 
Mission: Conditions For Learning will support Leataata Floyd Elementary educators in aligning the Leataata Floyd 
Elementary Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) with effective instructional practices and approaches to 
support the increase in student achievement. 
   

Conditions For Learning in partnership with Leataata Floyd educators and stakeholders will: 
 

• Continue a Literacy Cadre to support improved literacy outcomes for students (Internal Reading Data & CAASP).  
• Implement a Professional Learning Community (PLC) that utilizes Formative Assessments including Oral Reading 

Record Data, Narrative Writing, and Phonics Assessments (CORE, Lexia, Words Their Way, Phonics for Reading) 
• Implement Six Key Literacy Strategies: Reciprocal Teaching, Guided Reading, Literature Circles, Cross-Age 

Tutoring, Monthly Writing Samples, Phonics Instruction  
•  Develop Inventive Thinking, Adaptability, Managing Complexity and Self-Direction  

(21st Century Skills) – through Structuring Interaction, Project Based Learning – Bi-annual Learning Journey 
• Blend instruction and curriculum in language arts, science and social studies that captures student interest and 

motivates and challenges each child-regardless of ability level – to higher achievement (Sac City Strategic Plan) – and 
promote English Language Acquisition and Development through academic vocabulary instruction and authentic 
exhibitions/presentations through Units of Study and Project Based Learning 

• Explicitly Teach Interactive Communication-Social and Personal Skills (21st Century Skills) through Structuring 
Interaction 

Dates Description Days/Cost Total 
July 2022-June 2023 On-site Training and In-class Support for:   

Instructional Practices Coaching  
- Structuring Interaction 
- Reciprocal Teaching  
- Formative Assessment 
- Differentiation  
- Cross-Age Tutoring 
- Literature Circles 
- Guided Reading 
- Phonics Instruction  
- Professional Learning 

Community (PLC) Development 

August - September  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130 days x $1,200 
(approx. 4 days/week)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
total            $156,000 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Jason Knighton 
Founder & Educator 
Conditions For Learning 











Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

QUOTE CONFIRMATION

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

BOB LYONS,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your computing needs. The details of your quote are below. Click 

here to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

MZLW334 9/20/2022 OPENTEXT.V2.1YR 1592600 $461,951.02

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

OPENTEXT EXT ECM PLATFORM STD 600 6892173 $388.00 $232,800.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000030626

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OpenText Extended ECM Platform Standard - maintenance - 1 

named user

600 6426655 $92.00 $55,200.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000030627

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT INTLLGNT VIEWING STD L+M 1Y 600 6892192 $58.94 $35,364.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000055947

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT INTELLIGENT VIEWING STD MNT 600 7181821 $12.06 $7,236.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000055948

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT BLAZON CNT STE BASE L+M 1Y 1 6892205 $2,357.00 $2,357.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000028158

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OpenText Blazon for Content Suite - Base Module - 

maintenance (1 year) - 1

1 6846854 $542.00 $542.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000028183

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT BLAZON CNTSTE AO OCR L+M 1Y 1 6892207 $1,767.00 $1,767.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000028175

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Re-ocurring maintenance fees are highlighted in red.
These fees typically increase 7.5% per year.

Adds background OCR engine to the Blazon base system so that miscellanious documents
added to the system get automatically indexed and made fully text-searchable (without users having to send the
documents through Intelligent Capture or the PDF Compressor).

Publishes files to TIFF, PDF, or CSF, with option of watermarks, banners, markup burn-in, etc. 

Provides in-application universal viewing, redaction, annotation, collaboration features, and more.

The enterprise-level document management system with features such as records management, advamced searh, version control, collaboration,
API integration, and more. 

R23-02535

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/site-map.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/software.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/services/amplified-services.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/solutions.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/brand.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/research-hub.html
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6892173
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6426655
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6426655
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6892192
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7181821
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6892205
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6846854
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6846854
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6892207


Page 2 of 3

QUOTE DETAILS (CONT.)

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT BLAZON FOR CONTENT STE MNT 1 7181824 $408.00 $408.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000028178

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPEN TEXT INTELL CAPTURE ENT SVR BDL 1 7158626 $33,009.00 $33,009.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000006644

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPEN TEXT INTELL CAPTURE ENT SVR MNT 1 6846833 $6,356.83 $6,356.83

Mfg. Part#: 1000006645

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OpenText Capture Attended Client - license - 1 concurrent 

user

10 4714051 $1,414.00 $14,140.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000005710

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT INTELLIGENT CAPTURE MNT 10 7181826 $399.00 $3,990.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000005711

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPEN TEXT CAPTIVA SCANPLUS CLIENT UB 10 4714029 $707.00 $7,070.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000005714

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT INTEL CAPTURE SCANPLUS MNT 10 7181827 $199.00 $1,990.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000005715

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPEN TEXT PDF OPTIMIZE F CONTENT SVR 2 7158631 $6,905.00 $13,810.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000052225

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT PDF OPTIMIZATION LIC 2 7181829 $1,329.84 $2,659.68

Mfg. Part#: 1000052226

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPEN TEXT PDF OPTIMIZE F CONTENT SVR 2 7158631 $6,905.00 $13,810.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000052225

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OpenText's most robust OCR engine with features such as advanced recognition, document classification,
data-extraction, AI, database lookups, and more. Includes 1 million pages per year, one Attended Client and
one ScanPlus Client.  Also includes test, dev, and disaster recovery servers.

Concurrent users that validate and process documents scanned through intelligent capture

Concurrent users that scan documents through intelligent capture

Quantity "2" represents a total of 1 million pages per year that can be compressed and OCRd

Quantity "2" represents a total of 1 million pages per year that can be compressed and OCRd

http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7181824
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7158626
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6846833
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=4714051
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=4714051
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7181826
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=4714029
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7181827
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7158631
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7181829
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7158631


Page 3 of 3

QUOTE DETAILS (CONT.)

OPENTEXT PDF OPTIMIZATION LIC 2 7181829 $1,329.84 $2,659.68

Mfg. Part#: 1000052226

1 yr maintenance

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

OPENTEXT CVISION PDF COMPRESSOR 1 7158643 $26,781.83 $26,781.83

Mfg. Part#: 1000049201

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: California NVP Software (ADSPO16-130652 7-16-70-37)

SUBTOTAL

$461,951.02

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$461,951.02

PURCHASER BILLING INFO

DELIVER TO

Billing Address:

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST

ACCOUNTING SERVICES

5735 47TH AVE

SACRAMENTO, CA 95824-4528

Phone: (916) 277-6665

Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed

Shipping Address:

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST

PURCHASING SERVICES

3051 REDDING AVE

SACRAMENTO, CA 95820-2122

Phone: (916) 277-6664

Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Sales Contact Info 

Pat Hein   |  (866) 642-8073 | pathei@cdwg.com

Need Help?

My Account Support

Call 800.800.4239

About Us | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions 

This order is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

© 2022 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

This is a one-time volume pack of 10 million pages that can be compressed and OCRd. Since we anticipate this
pack will be used up during the document migration phase, we do not expect that SCUSD will have a reason 
to pay maintenance on this SKU in future years.

http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7181829
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7158643
https://www.cdwg.com/accountcenter/logon
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/help-center.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/about/overview.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/privacy-notice.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions.html
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


















Rose Ramos, CBO
5735 47th Avenue, Sacramento, CA  95824
(916) 643-9055
rose-f-ramos@scusd.edu



Rose Ramos

CBO













































�

�����������������

	
�
����
�����
���
��
�������

�����������
	
��
������������	� �!�"#$%&��%	'�()*�	+�&	�,-�.�/0.1,-	�-%	2,%��-1"�.1,-	3�,4�0.		
5��
�6�6��66��77�7���89:;	<:. 	=.���.	=�0��(�-.,>	�?		:;@<<	�-%	8;AA	B<-%	=.���.	
=�0��(�-.,>	�?		:;@<<	
��C�		A9:AD8EAA<AAAA	�-%	A9:AD@BAA<AAAA	
	
FG���6�H�������
	
=�0��(�-.,	�1.I	J-1K1�%	=0 ,,*	L1�.�10.	
;8B;	98. 	?!�-/�	
=�0��(�-.,>	�?		:;@<9	
	
��6�
�
M�*K,/�	M��..I	N	�*��O#=/**1!�-	�	P,1-.	Q�-./��		
9AA	��R1.,*	2�**	=/1.�	:AA>	
=�0��(�-.,>	�?>	:;@D9	
L�.�%	��	,K	L�0�()��	D;>	<A<<



�

�

�����������	��	�
�

����

��� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��� �������������� ����!�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

"�� ���#�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�

$�� ��%#���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�

&�� ���'�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�

(�� )*��������%#����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�

+�� ,�-�������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�

.�� ,�-����������������������/�'�-����������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�0�� ���1 �����* �����
��/� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� ������* ������������� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�

���� 2�������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

���� 3��'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�"�� ��������!�������4#-���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�$�� 4��*��� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�&�� 4�!�#���� ��������!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�

�(�� �#��������#���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�

�+�� ��#�����!������* �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�.�� �����#�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�0�� �  �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� �����#���5�
*�'�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� ���#�������5�����*'����!�
*�-�������������������������������������������������������������������������+�

���� 	��� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�"�� ���!������� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�$�� 	���!!������'�6��/���4#-'��!��%�����6��/�����������������������������������������������������������(�

�&�� 
�/�����'��%�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�(�� �#��!#����5����������!�2�!��� ��������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�+�� 	��1	��1	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�.�� ��� *����������*����-���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�0�� ��/�'�-�����!������� ��,�-���������/�������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� �--'� ��'����7���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� �������%8��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� ��-����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�



�

�

���� ������	
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� ��������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

� �� !�����"��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� ������#�$����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�%�� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�&�� ��������	�'�(�
���)�����������"�*����������������������������������������������������������������������������

�+�� ��������,�'�)�����������"����$��������������������������������������������������������������������������������

-.� ��������/�'�0���������#�������������1�2��������$����/���3�����
3������4����

���5������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� 6789:9;�<�=�0������/�������������5�����������������������������������������������������������������������

���� 6789:9;�<>�?�@ABC9DE�FGHI9;9GHJ�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� ����������'�#����������"�/����������)��������������������������������������������������������

���� ����������'�/����������*�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������

� �� ��������0�'�*���������"�K��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� ��������L�'����$����(�����	
������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�%�� ����������'�)�K�*�2M�&+�*��/���/	!�2M�N�*	#�(�����������������������������������������������������

�
�
�
�
�

O



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

�1�2
232�4	
�14��

5678�9:;7<7=7>8�<>:8>�?@A:;7<7=7>8�B>:8>CDE�F:=>F�:8�G9�%>;>HI>J�/.E�K,KK�?@L99>;=70>�
%:=>CDE�78�H:F>�:MF�>M=>J>F�7M=G�IN�:MF�I>=O>>M�P:<9GQJ�P>:==N�R�S<:JTU)Q<<70:M�:�VG7M=�
W>M=QJ>�?@%>0><GX>JCDE�:�S:<79GJM7:�VG7M=�W>M=QJ>�FQ<N�GJY:M7Z>F�:MF�>[78=7MY�QMF>J�=6>�<:O8�
G9�=6>�)=:=>�G9�S:<79GJM7:E�:8�8QI<>88GJE�:MF�):;J:H>M=G�S7=N�\M797>F�);6GG<�%78=J7;=E�:�8;6GG<�
F78=J7;=�FQ<N�GJY:M7Z>F�:MF�0:<7F<N�>[78=7MY�QMF>J�=6>�<:O8�G9�=6>�)=:=>�G9�S:<79GJM7:E�:8�
8QI<>88>>�?@%78=J7;=CD�?=GY>=6>JE�=6>�@]:J=7>8CD̂�

_��231
4�

`a�_�14E�=6>�%78=J7;=�78�:Q=6GJ7Z>F�QMF>J�)>;=7GM�/b-,c�G9�=6>�LFQ;:=7GM�SGF>�G9�
=6>�)=:=>�G9�S:<79GJM7:�=G�<>:8>�:�87=>�=G�:�F>0><GX>J�:MF�=G�6:0>�=6:=�F>0><GX>J�F>0><GX�:MF�
;GM8=JQ;=�=6>�XJGd>;=�GM�=6>�87=>�:MF�=G�<>:8>�I:;T�=G�=6>�%78=J7;=�=6>�;GHX<>=>F�XJGd>;=�:MF�
87=>e�:MF��

`a�_�14E�GM�=6>�F:=>�6>J>G9E�=6>�%78=J7;=�6:8�<>:8>F�=G�%>0><GX>J�=OG�?KD�X:J;><8�
G9�<:MF̂�fM>�78�<G;:=>F�:=�b-g.�Kg=6�)=J>>=�):;J:H>M=GE�Sh��g.+KKE�:MF�78�TMGOM�:8�LFO:JF�
'>HI<>�L<>H>M=:JN�);6GG<E�:MF�=6>�G=6>J�78�<G;:=>F�:=�b.,,�*KMF�)=J>>=�):;J:H>M=GE�Sh�
g.+KKE�:MF�78�TMGOM�:8�S>8:J�L�S6:0>Z�L<>H>M=:JN�);6GG<̂�56>8>�X:J;><8�:J>�X:J=7;Q<:J<N�
F>8;J7I>F�7M��i�����	1	:MF�86GOM�GM��i�����	j�:==:;6>F�6>J>=G�:MF�7M;GJXGJ:=>F�6>J>7M�IN�
J>9>J>M;>�?@)7=>CDe�:MF�

`a�_�14E�%78=J7;=�:MF�%>0><GX>J�6:0>�>[>;Q=>F�:�87=>�<>:8>�:=�=6>�8:H>�=7H>�:8�=678�
A:;7<7=7>8�B>:8>�O6>J>IN�=6>�%78=J7;=�78�<>:87MY�=6>�)7=>�=G�%>0><GX>J�?@)7=>�B>:8>CDe�:MF�

`a�_�14E�=6>�%78=J7;=�F>87J>8�=G�XJG07F>�9GJ�=6>�F>0><GXH>M=�:MF�;GM8=JQ;=7GM�G9�
;>J=:7M�OGJT�=G�I>�X>J9GJH>F�GM�XGJ=7GM8�G9�=6>�)7=>�O67;6�O7<<�7M;<QF>�;GM8=JQ;=7GM�G9�
7HXJG0>H>M=8�=G�I>�TMGOM�:8�=6>�S>8:J�S6:0>ZULFO:JF�'>HI<>�k>O�SGM8=JQ;=7GM�:MF�
(GF>JM7Z:=7GM�]JGd>;=�?@]JGd>;=CDe�:MF���

`a�_�14E�%78=J7;=�6:8�J>=:7M>F�B7GM:T78�?@hJ;67=>;=CD�=G�XJ>X:J>�X<:M8�:MF�
8X>;797;:=7GM8�9GJ�=6>�]JGd>;=�?@]<:M8�:MF�)X>;797;:=7GM8CD�:MF�=G�:;=�:8�=6>�%>87YM�]JG9>887GM:<�
7M�l>M>J:<�m>8XGM87I<>�S6:JY>�9GJ�=6>�]JGd>;=e�:MF��

`a�_�14E�=6>�lG0>JM7MY�PG:JF�G9�=6>�%78=J7;=�?@PG:JFCD�6:8�F>=>JH7M>F�=6:=�7=�78�7M�
=6>�I>8=�7M=>J>8=8�G9�=6>�%78=J7;=�:MF�9GJ�=6>�;GHHGM�I>M>97=�G9�=6>�;7=7Z>M8�J>87F7MY�7M�=6>�
%78=J7;=�=G�;GM8=JQ;=�=6>�]JGd>;=�IN�<>:87MY�=6>�)7=>�=G�%>0><GX>J�:MF�IN�87HQ<=:M>GQ8<N�
>M=>J7MY�7M=G�=678�A:;7<7=7>8�B>:8>�QMF>J�O67;6�=6>�%78=J7;=�O7<<�<>:8>�I:;T�=6>�;GHX<>=>F�]JGd>;=�
:MF�87=>�9JGH�%>0><GX>J�:MF�79�M>;>88:JNE�H:T>�B>:8>�]:NH>M=8e�:MF�

`a�_�14E�=6>�%78=J7;=�9QJ=6>J�:;TMGO<>FY>8�:MF�:YJ>>8�=6:=�7=�6:8�>M=>J>F�7M=G�=6>�
)7=>�B>:8>�:MF�=6>�A:;7<7=7>8�B>:8>�XQJ8Q:M=�=G�LFQ;:=7GM�SGF>�)>;=7GM�/b-,c�:8�=6>�I>8=�
:0:7<:I<>�:MF�HG8=�>[X>F7=7GQ8�H>:M8�9GJ�=6>�%78=J7;=�=G�8:=789N�7=8�8QI8=:M=7:<�M>>F�9GJ�=6>�
9:;7<7=7>8�=G�I>�XJG07F>F�IN�=6>�]JGd>;=�:MF�=G�:;;GHHGF:=>�:MF�>FQ;:=>�%78=J7;=�8=QF>M=8�:MF�
=G�Q=7<7Z>�7=8�9:;7<7=7>8�XJG;>>F8�>[X>F7=7GQ8<Ne�:MF�

`a�_�14E�=678�)7=>�B>:8>�:MF�A:;7<7=7>8�B>:8>�:J>�:O:JF>F�I:8>F�:�;GHX>=7=70>�
8G<7;7=:=7GM�XJG;>88�XQJ8Q:M=�=G�LFQ;:=7GM�SGF>�8>;=7GM�/b-,c�:MF�7M�;GHX<7:M;>�O7=6�=6>�
J>nQ7J>F�XJG;>FQJ>8�:MF�YQ7F><7M>8�9GJ�>0:<Q:=7MY�=6>�nQ:<797;:=7GM8�G9�XJGXG8>J8�:FGX=>F�:MF�
XQI<786>F�IN�=6>�PG:JF�=G�=6>�XJGXG8>J�XJG07F7MY�=6>�I>8=�0:<Q>�=G�=6>�8;6GG<�F78=J7;=E�=:T7MY�
7M=G�;GM87F>J:=7GM�=6>�XJGXG8>Jo8�F>HGM8=J:=>F�;GHX>=>M;>�:MF�XJG9>887GM:<�nQ:<797;:=7GM8�
M>;>88:JN�9GJ�=6>�8:=789:;=GJN�X>J9GJH:M;>�G9�=6>�8>J07;>8�J>nQ7J>Fe�:MF�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

12�3�456�789�:9;9<7=>?�>@�%909;>A9B�CD:�<>?EF<79E�=?�D�@D=B�D?E�=GADB7=D;�GD??9BH�
D?E��

12�3�456�%909;>A9B�8D:�B90=9C9E�789�I9D:9�%><FG9?7:H�D?E�

12�3�45J	%909;>A9B�B9AB9:9?7:�78D7�=7�8D:�789�9KA9B7=:9�D?E�9KA9B=9?<9�7>�A9B@>BG�
789�:9B0=<9:�:97�@>B78�=?�78=:�LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9H�D?E�

12�3�456�789�MDB7=9:�8D09�A9B@>BG9E�D;;�D<7:6�<>?E=7=>?:�D?E�78=?N:�B9OF=B9E�PQ�;DC�
7>�9K=:76�7>�8D09�8DAA9?9E�D?E�7>�8D09�P99?�A9B@>BG9E�AB9<9E9?7�7>�D?E�=?�<>??9<7=>?�C=78�
789�9K9<F7=>?�D?E�9?79B=?N�=?7>�>@�78=:�LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9�D?E�D;;�78>:9�<>?E=7=>?:�AB9<9E9?7�E>�
9K=:76�8D09�8DAA9?9E�D?E�8D09�P99?�A9B@>BG9E�=?�B9NF;DB�D?E�EF9�7=G96�@>BG�D?E�GD??9B�D:�
B9OF=B9E�PQ�;DC6�D?E�789�MDB7=9:�89B97>�DB9�?>C�EF;Q�DF78>B=R9E�7>�9K9<F79�D?E�9?79B�=?7>�78=:�
LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9H�D?E		

12�3�456�%909;>A9B�=:�DF78>B=R9E�7>�;9D:9�789�)=79�D:�;9::99�D?E�7>�E909;>A�789�
MB>S9<7�PQ�<>?:7BF<7=?N�789�MB>S9<7�>?�789�)=79�D?E�7>�;9D:9�789�<>GA;979E�MB>S9<7�D?E�)=79�
PD<T�7>�789�%=:7B=<76�D?E�8D:�EF;Q�DF78>B=R9E�789�9K9<F7=>?�D?E�E9;=09BQ�>@�78=:�LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9U�

�V1J	W2�3��V3�6�=?�<>?:=E9BD7=>?�>@�789�DP>09�B9<=7D;:�D?E�>@�789�GF7FD;�
<>09?D?7:�89B9=?D@79B�<>?7D=?9E6�789�MDB7=9:�89B97>�E>�89B9PQ�DNB99�D:�@>;;>C:X�

YZ[ \�]�!��� !�		

?̂�DEE=7=>?�7>�789�79BG:�D?E�9?7=7=9:�E9@=?9E�DP>09�>B�=?�:FP:9OF9?7�AB>0=:=>?:6�D?E�F?;9::�
789�<>?79K7�>789BC=:9�B9OF=B9:6�789�79BG:�E9@=?9E�=?�78=:�:9<7=>?�:8D;;6�@>B�D;;�AFBA>:9:�>@�78=:�
LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:96�8D09�789�G9D?=?N:�89B9=?�:A9<=@=9EU	

YZY[ _\���� ̀ ��a�>B�_
��� �a�G9D?:�bD;@>FB�b9D77Q�c�d;DBTe)F;;=0D?�D�f>=?7�
g9?7FB96�D�dD;=@>B?=D�f>=?7�g9?7FB96�>BND?=R9E�D?E�9K=:7=?N�F?E9B�789�;DC:�>@�789�)7D79�
>@�dD;=@>B?=D6�d>?7BD<7>Bh:�;=<9?:9�?FGP9B�i/,j*/.-�=::F9E�PQ�789�)7D79�>@�dD;=@>B?=D6�
d>?7BD<7>B:k�)7D79�I=<9?:9�b>DBE6�=?�D<<>BED?<9�C=78�E=0=:=>?�*6�<8DA79B�j6�>@�789�
bF:=?9::�D?E�MB>@9::=>?:�d>E96�D?E�=7:�:F<<9::>B:�D?E�D::=N?:U�

YZ[ _\���� ̀ ��l�	3�̀ ����!������a�G9D?:�789�(D?DN=?N�(9GP9B�>@�%909;>A9B6�
>B�D?Q�A9B:>?�DF78>B=R9E�7>�D<7�>?�P98D;@�>@�%909;>A9B�F?E9B�>B�C=78�B9:A9<7�7>�78=:�
LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9U�

YZm[ _� !�����	\ �"��!��a�DB9�E9@=?9E�=?��n�����	\�7>�78=:�LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9U��

YZ�[ _\�������a�>B�_
�����a�G9D?:�789�)D<BDG9?7>�d=7Q�o?=@=9E�)<8>>;�%=:7B=<76�D�
:<8>>;�E=:7B=<7�EF;Q�>BND?=R9E�D?E�9K=:7=?N�F?E9B�789�;DC:�>@�789�)7D79�>@�dD;=@>B?=DU�

YZp[ _\�������	3�̀ ����!������a�G9D?:�789�)FA9B=?79?E9?7�>@�789�%=:7B=<76�>B�D?Q�
>789B�A9B:>?�DF78>B=R9E�PQ�789�q>09B?=?N�b>DBE�>@�789�%=:7B=<7�7>�D<7�>?�P98D;@�>@�789�
%=:7B=<7�F?E9B�>B�C=78�B9:A9<7�7>�78=:�LD<=;=7=9:�I9D:9U�

YZ�[ _���������	�!�"����!���a�G9D?:6�D:�>@�D?Q�ADB7=<F;DB�7=G9X��

YZ�ZY[I=9?:�@>B�N9?9BD;�DE�0D;>B9G�7DK9:�D?E�D::9::G9?7:6�=@�D?Q6�?>7�789?�
E9;=?OF9?76�>B�C8=<8�789�%=:7B=<7�GDQ�A9BG=7�7>�B9GD=?�F?AD=EH��

YZ�Z[r89�)=79�I9D:9U��



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

12�234567�89:6;6<6=7�>=97=?��

12�2�3@97=A=B<7C�D6E5<7�FG�H9IC�A6B=D9;�D6E5<7C�JD6;;6BE�D6E5<7�9BJ�F<5=D�D6E5<7C�
D=7=D09<6FB7C�:F0=B9B<7C�:FBJ6<6FB7�FD�D=7<D6:<6FB7�H56:5�=K67<�FG�D=:FDJ�97�FG�
<5=�J9<=�FG�<567�89:6;6<6=7�>=97=?�

12�2L3@97=A=B<7C�D6E5<7�FG�H9IC�A6B=D9;�D6E5<7C�JD6;;6BE�D6E5<7�9BJ�F<5=D�D6E5<7C�
D=7=D09<6FB7C�:F0=B9B<7C�:FBJ6<6FB7�FD�D=7<D6:<6FB7�=7<9M;675=J�GF;;FH6BE�<5=�
J9<=�FG�D=:FDJ9<6FB�FG�<567�89:6;6<6=7�>=97=�9BJ�<F�H56:5�%=0=;FN=D�9BJ�<5=�
%67<D6:<�:FB7=B<�6B�HD6<6BE�H56:5�H6;;�BF<�6AN96D�FD�6AN=J=�<5=�FN=D9<6FB�FG�<5=�
)6<=?��

O23 �P������			

45=�GF;;FH6BE�@K56M6<7�9D=�9<<9:5=J�<F�9BJ�MI�D=G=D=B:=�6B:FDNFD9<=J�9BJ�A9J=�9�N9D<�FG�<567�
89:6;6<6=7�>=97=Q��	

O213 �P�����	R	S	
����	T�����U�� !	 V	���	W���Q��45=�J=7:D6N<6FB�FG�<5=�D=9;�
NDFN=D<I�:FB7<6<X<6BE�<5=�)6<=?	

O2O3 �P�����	Y	S	T�����U�� !	 V	���	�� $���Q��45=�A9N�FD�J69ED9A�J=N6:<6FB�FG�<5=�
ZDF[=:<?	

O23 �P�����	�	S	\"���!����	#�P��"�	�����	�!�	]����	�� $���	� ��̂	�"!��!�̂	
�!�	��_��!�	�� ���� !�Q��̀�J=<96;=J�J=7:D6N<6FB�FG�<5=�aX9D9B<==J�(9K6AXA�ZD6:=�
9BJ�<5=�NDF0676FB7�D=;9<=J�<F�<5=�N9IA=B<�FG�<59<�9AFXB<�<F�%=0=;FN=DC�6B:;XJ6BE�
<̀<9:5A=B<�*C�<5=�):5=JX;=�FG�>=97=�Z9IA=B<7�9BJ�Z9IFGG�%9<=7�9BJ�̀AFXB<7?	

O2�3 �P�����	T	S	\�!����	� !���"��� !	�� ���� !�Q��45=�NDF0676FB7�E=B=D9;;I�
J=7:D6M6BE�<5=�ZDF[=:<b7�:FB7<DX:<6FB?	

O2L3 �P�����	TS1	�	WU�����	� !���� !�	�� ���� !�Q��45=�NDF0676FB7�J=7:D6M6BE�
:FBJ6<6FB7�7N=:6G6:�<F�<5=�ZDF[=:<b7�:FB7<DX:<6FB?�

O2�3 �P�����	�	S	#�� ��!�"�	 V	� ���!����!�	T���Q��45=�(=AFD9BJXA�
H56:5�H6;;�A=AFD69;6c=�<5=�:FAA=B:=A=B<�9BJ�=KN6D9<6FB�J9<=7�FG�<5=�>=97=�4=DA?	

O2d3 �P�����	�	S	� !���"��� !	W����"��		

O2e3 �P�����	\	�	W����"��	 V	f��"��		

O2g3 �P�����	h	�	�� $���	
�� �	R������!�	

23 
����	 V	�� $���	�!�	W���		

213 %=0=;FN=D�5=D=MI�;=97=7�<5=�:FAN;=J�ZDF[=:<�<F�<5=�%67<D6:<C�9BJ�<5=�%67<D6:<�
5=D=MI�;=97=7�796J�:FAN;=<=J�ZDF[=:<�9BJ�)6<=�GDFA�%=0=;FN=D�XNFB�<5=�<=DA7�9BJ�
:FBJ6<6FB7�7=<�GFD<5�6B�<567�89:6;6<6=7�>=97=?���

2O3 45=�;=976BE�MI�%=0=;FN=D�<F�<5=�%67<D6:<�FG�<5=�:FAN;=<=J�ZDF[=:<�9BJ�)6<=�759;;�
BF<�9GG=:<�FD�D=7X;<�6B�9�A=DE=D�FG�<5=�%67<D6:<b7�;=97=5F;J�=7<9<=�NXD7X9B<�<F�<567�
89:6;6<6=7�>=97=�9BJ�6<7�G==�=7<9<=�97�;=77FD�XBJ=D�<5=�)6<=�>=97=?��%=0=;FN=D�759;;�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
���	�	�����	�������������	������	���	�� ���!���� 	� �	"���� ������ 	���#���		
$%&�$'(�)*+,-+./.	

01234256�31�78/6�829�71:9�8�:68;671:9�6;3836�42�376�(436�<5=;5823�31�376�(436�>68;6�
37=15?7153�376�@6=A�376=61B�829�376�@6=A�1B�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6D���

EFEG H;�31�376�(436I�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6�;78::�J6�966A69�829�012;343536�8�;5J:68;6D�

FG K���	

FLG ����������	
����	��	
�����M	N� �� �		

@74;�C804:4346;�>68;6�4;�:6?8::O�J42942?�12�376�P8=346;�5<12�6Q6053412�JO�376�P8=346;�829�
376�$4;3=403�R18=9S;�8<<=1/8:�1B�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6D��@76�T@6=AU�1B�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6�
B1=�376�<5=<1;6;�1B�$4;3=403S;�1J:4?83412�31�A8V6�>68;6�P8OA623;�;78::�01AA6206�12�
376�9836�W762�$6/6:1<6=�96:4/6=;�<1;;6;;412�1B�376�P=1X603�31�$4;3=403�829�W762�8::�
4A<=1/6A623;�31�J6�<=1/4969�JO�$6/6:1<6=�8=6�9636=A4269�JO�376�$4;3=403�31�J6�
01A<:6369�8;�;63�B1=37�42��Y�����	Z	31�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6D�

[2:6;;�68=:46=�36=A428369�<5=;5823�31�376�<=1/4;412;�1B�376�\123=803�$105A623;I�376�
@6=A�1B�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6�B1=�376�<5=<1;6;�1B�$4;3=403S;�1J:4?83412;�31�A8V6�>68;6�
P8OA623;�;78::�36=A42836�126�].̂�O68=�376=68B36=�1=�5<12�<8OA623�1B�376�B428:�:68;6�
<8OA623D���

F_G HB36=�$6/6:1<6=�78;�01A<:6369�012;3=503412�1B�376�P=1X603�829�376�$4;3=403�78;�
8006<369�376�P=1X603I�376�P8=346;�;78::�6Q60536�376�'6A1=8295A�1B�\1AA6206A623�
$836�83380769�76=631�8;��Y�����	��31�A6A1=48:4̀6�376�01AA6206A623�9836�1B�376�
>68;6�P8OA623;�829�6Q<4=83412�9836�1B�376�@6=AD��a13W437;382942?�374;�@6=AI�376�
P8=346;�76=6JO�80V21W:69?6�3783�6807�78;�1J:4?83412;I�95346;I�829�=4?73;�5296=�374;�
C804:4346;�>68;6�3783�6Q4;3�5<12�6Q6053412�1B�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6�829�<=41=�31�376�
J6?42242?�1B�376�>68;6�P8OA623�1J:4?83412;D�

FEG @76�@6=A�A8O�J6�6Q362969�1=�;71=36269�5<12�376�1005==6206�1B�376�68=:46;3�1B�
82O�1B�376�B1::1W42?�6/623;I�W7407�;78::�012;343536�376�629�1B�376�@6=Ab�

FEFLGH2�c/623�1B�$6B85:3�JO�$4;3=403�8;�96B4269�76=642�829�$6/6:1<6=S;�
6:603412�31�36=A42836�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6�8;�<6=A43369�76=642d�1=�

FEF_GH2�c/623�1B�$6B85:3�JO�$6/6:1<6=�8;�96B4269�76=642�829�$4;3=403S;�
6:603412�31�36=A42836�374;�C804:4346;�>68;6�8;�<6=A43369�76=642d�1=�

FEFEG\12;5AA83412�1B�376�$4;3=403S;�<5=078;6�1<3412�<5=;5823�31�376�
e58=823669�'8Q4A5A�P=406�829�f376=�P=1X603�\1;3I�C52942?I�829�P8OA623�
P=1/4;412;�429408369�42��Y�����	�	]Te58=823669�'8Q4A5A�P=406�P=1/4;412;Ûd�1=�

FEFGH�374=9g<8=3O�38V42?�1B�376�P=1X603�5296=�cA42623�$1A842I�12:O�4B�376�
@6=A�4;�62969�8;�429408369�A1=6�;<604B408::O�76=642d�1=�

FEFhG$8A8?6�1=�96;3=503412�1B�376�P=1X603I�12:O�4B�376�@6=A�4;�62969�8;�
429408369�A1=6�;<604B408::O�76=642D�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

12 ��3��!�			

45�67589:;<=>975�?7<�>@;�A;=8;�7?�>@;�67BCA;>;:�D<7E;6>�=5:�)9>;�FG�%;0;A7C;<�F=6H�>7�>@;�
%98><96>�=5:�?7<�7>@;<�I77:�=5:�0=AJ=FA;�67589:;<=>975K�>@;�%98><96>�8@=AA�B=H;�=AA�5;6;88=<G�
C=GB;5>8�CJ<8J=5>�>7�>@;�LJ=<=5>;;:�(=M9BJB�D<96;�D<70989758�95:96=>;:�95��N�����	�1	

�12 O����			

�1P2 %J<95I�>@;�Q;<B�7?�>@98�R=69A9>9;8�S;=8;K�>@;�%98><96>�8@=AA�@7A:�?;;�>9>A;�>7�>@;�
)9>;K�956AJ:95I�>@;�D<7E;6>K�=5:�57>@95I�95�>@98�R=69A9>9;8�S;=8;�7<�>@;�)9>;�S;=8;�8@=AA�
6@=5I;K�95�=5G�T=GK�>@;�%98><96>U8�7T5;<8@9C�95>;<;8>V�

�1W2 %J<95I�>@;�Q;<B�7?�>@98�R=69A9>9;8�S;=8;K�%;0;A7C;<�8@=AA�@=0;�=�A;=8;@7A:�
95>;<;8>�95�>@;�)9>;�CJ<8J=5>�>7�>@;�)9>;�S;=8;V�

�1X2 %J<95I�>@;�Q;<B�7?�>@98�R=69A9>9;8�S;=8;K�%;0;A7C;<�8@=AA�@7A:�>9>A;�>7�>@;�D<7E;6>�
9BC<70;B;5>8�C<709:;:�FG�%;0;A7C;<�T@96@�67BC<98;�?9M>J<;8K�<;C=9<8K�<;CA=6;B;5>8�
7<�B7:9?96=>9758�>@;<;>7V���

�1�2 4?�>@;�%98><96>�;M;<698;8�9>8�DJ<6@=8;�YC>975�CJ<8J=5>�>7�>@;�LJ=<=5>;;:�
(=M9BJB�D<96;�D<70989758�95:96=>;:�95��N�����	��7<�9?�%98><96>�B=H;8�=AA�5;6;88=<G�
C=GB;5>8�J5:;<�>@;�LJ=<=5>;;:�(=M9BJB�D<96;�D<70989758�95:96=>;:�95��N�����	�K�=AA�
<9I@>K�>9>A;�=5:�95>;<;8>�7?�%;0;A7C;<K�9>8�=889I58�=5:�8J66;887<8�95�95>;<;8>�95�=5:�>7�
>@;�D<7E;6>�=5:�>@;�)9>;�8@=AA�F;�><=58?;<<;:�>7�=5:�0;8>;:�95�>@;�%98><96>�=>�>@;�;5:�7?�
>@;�Q;<BV��Q9>A;�8@=AA�F;�><=58?;<<;:�>7�=5:�0;8>;:�95�>@;�%98><96>�@;<;J5:;<�T9>@7J>�
>@;�5;6;889>G�?7<�=5G�?J<>@;<�958><JB;5>�7?�><=58?;<Z�C<709:;:K�@7T;0;<K�>@=>�%;0;A7C;<�
=I<;;8�>7�;M;6J>;�=5G�958><JB;5>�<;[J;8>;:�FG�%98><96>�>7�B;B7<9=A9\;�>@;�>;<B95=>975�
7?�>@98�R=69A9>9;8�S;=8;�=5:�><=58?;<�7?�>9>A;�>7�>@;�D<7E;6>V�

]12 ^"���	�!$ 3��!�			

_C75�%98><96>U8�C788;88975�7?�>@;�D<7E;6>K�%;0;A7C;<�8@=AA�>@;<;=?>;<�C<709:;�>@;�%98><96>�T9>@�
[J9;>�J8;�=5:�;5E7GB;5>�7?�>@;�D<7E;6>K�=5:�>@;�%98><96>�8@=AA�:J<95I�>@;�Q;<B�C;=6;=FAG�=5:�
[J9;>AG�@=0;�=5:�@7A:�=5:�;5E7G�>@;�D<7E;6>K�T9>@7J>�8J9>K�><7JFA;�7<�@95:<=56;�?<7B�
%;0;A7C;<K�;M6;C>�=8�7>@;<T98;�B=G�F;�8;>�?7<>@�95�>@98�R=69A9>9;8�S;=8;V��%;0;A7C;<�T9AAK�=>�
>@;�<;[J;8>�7?�>@;�%98><96>�=5:�=>�%;0;A7C;<U8�678>K�E795�95�=5G�A;I=A�=6>975�95�T@96@�>@;�%98><96>�
=88;<>8�9>8�<9I@>�>7�8J6@�C788;88975�=5:�;5E7GB;5>�>7�>@;�;M>;5>�%;0;A7C;<�B=G�A=T?JAAG�:7�
87V��̀7>T9>@8>=5:95I�>@;�?7<;I795IK�%;0;A7C;<�8@=AA�@=0;�>@;�<9I@>�>7�958C;6>�>@;�D<7E;6>�=5:�
>@;�)9>;�=8�C<709:;:�@;<;95V�

a12 b�c����!���� !�	 d	���	e�������			

Q@;�%98><96>�<;C<;8;5>8K�670;5=5>8�=5:�T=<<=5>8�>7�%;0;A7C;<�=8�?7AA7T8f	

a1P2 e"�	g���!����� !	�!�	�N����!��			

Q@;�%98><96>�98�=�86@77A�:98><96>K�:JAG�7<I=59\;:�=5:�;M98>95I�J5:;<�>@;�h758>9>J>975�=5:�
A=T8�7?�>@;�)>=>;�7?�h=A9?7<59=V�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
���	�	�����	�������������	������	���	�� ���!���� 	� �	"���� ������ 	���#���		
$%&�$'(�)*+,-+./.	

0123 4!���������� 		

567�$89:;8<:�6=9�:67�>?@@�ABC7;�=DE�=?:6B;8:F�:B�7D:7;�8D:BG�:B�7H7<?:7�=DE�:B�E7@8/7;�
:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97G�=DE�:B�A7;>B;K�=@@�B>�8:9�E?:879�=DE�BL@8M=:8BD9�67;7?DE7;G�=DE�6=9�
E?@F�=?:6B;8N7E�:67�7H7<?:8BD�B>�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97O�

01P3 ��	Q������� �			

R78:67;�:67�7H7<?:8BD�=DE�E7@8/7;F�B>�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97�DB;�:67�(8:7�J7=97G�DB;�:67�
>?@>8@@K7D:�B>�B;�<BKA@8=D<7�C8:6�:67�:7;K9�=DE�<BDE8:8BD9�67;7B>�B;�:67;7B>G�DB;�:67�
<BD9?KK=:8BD�B>�:67�:;=D9=<:8BD9�<BD:7KA@=:7E�67;7LF�B;�:67;7LFG�<BD>@8<:9�C8:6�B;�
;79?@:9�8D�=�L;7=<6�B>�:67�:7;K9G�<BDE8:8BD9�B;�A;B/898BD9�B>�=DF�;79:;8<:8BD�B;�=DF�
=M;77K7D:�B;�8D9:;?K7D:�:B�C68<6�:67�$89:;8<:�89�DBC�=�A=;:F�B;�LF�C68<6�:67�$89:;8<:�
89�LB?DEG�B;�<BD9:8:?:79�=�E7>=?@:�?DE7;�=DF�B>�:67�>B;7MB8DMG�B;�;79?@:9�8D�:67�<;7=:8BD�
B;�8KAB98:8BD�B>�=DF�@87DG�<6=;M7�B;�7D<?KL;=D<7�C6=:9B7/7;�?ABD�=DF�B>�:67�A;BA7;:F�
B;�=997:9�B>�:67�$89:;8<:G�B;�?ABD�:67�(8:7G�7H<7A:�S7;K8::7E�TD<?KL;=D<79O�

01�3 �� ��� ���� 	�������� ��			

01�1U3$89:;8<:�<B/7D=D:9�=DE�=M;779G�L?:�BD@F�:B�:67�7H:7D:�:6=:�8:�K=F�@=C>?@@F�
EB�9BG�:6=:�9B�@BDM�=9�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97�;7K=8D9�8D�7>>7<:G�:67�$89:;8<:�C8@@�DB:�
977V�:B�7H7;<897�:67�ABC7;�B>�7K8D7D:�EBK=8D�C8:6�;79A7<:�:B�:67�S;BW7<:�9B�=9�
:B�<=?97�=�>?@@�B;�A=;:8=@�:7;K8D=:8BD�B>�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97O��

01�123X>�>B;�=DF�;7=9BD�:67�>B;7MB8DM�<B/7D=D:�89�E7:7;K8D7E�:B�L7�
?D7D>B;<7=L@7�B;�8D�9BK7�C=F�8D/=@8EG�B;�8>�$89:;8<:�96B?@E�>=8@�B;�;7>?97�:B�=L8E7�
LF�9?<6�<B/7D=D:G�:67DG�:B�:67�7H:7D:�8:�K=F�@=C>?@@F�EB�9BG�$89:;8<:�=M;779�:6=:�
:67�>8D=D<8=@�8D:7;79:�B>�$7/7@BA7;�96=@@�L7�=9�8DE8<=:7E�8D�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97O�

Y13 Z�[���� ����� �	�\	]�����[��			

$7/7@BA7;�;7A;797D:9G�<B/7D=D:9�=DE�C=;;=D:9�:B�:67�$89:;8<:�=9�>B@@BC9̂�

Y1U3 ]!�	_��� ������ 	� �	�̀ ���� ��			

$7/7@BA7;�89�=�a=@8>B;D8=�<BKA=DF�E?@F�B;M=D8N7E�=DE�7H89:8DM�?DE7;�:67�@=C9�B>�:67�
(:=:7�B>�a=@8>B;D8=G�6=9�:67�ABC7;�:B�7D:7;�8D:B�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97�=DE�:67�(8:7�J7=97b�
89�AB997997E�B>�>?@@�ABC7;�:B�@7=97G�@7=97�L=<VG�=DE�6B@E�;7=@�=DE�A7;9BD=@�A;BA7;:F�
=DE�6=9�E?@F�=?:6B;8N7E�:67�7H7<?:8BD�=DE�E7@8/7;F�B>�=@@�B>�:67�=>B;79=8E�=M;77K7D:9O�

Y123 4!���������� 			

$7/7@BA7;�6=9�:67�>?@@�ABC7;�=DE�=?:6B;8:F�:B�7D:7;�8D:BG�:B�7H7<?:7�=DE�:B�E7@8/7;�:689�
I=<8@8:879�J7=97G�=DE�:B�A7;>B;K�=@@�B>�8:9�E?:879�=DE�BL@8M=:8BD9�67;7?DE7;G�=DE�6=9�
E?@F�=?:6B;8N7E�:67�7H7<?:8BD�B>�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97O��

Y1P3 ��	Q������� �			

R78:67;�:67�7H7<?:8BD�=DE�E7@8/7;F�B>�:689�I=<8@8:879�J7=97�=DE�:67�(8:7�J7=97G�DB;�:67�
>?@>8@@K7D:�B>�B;�<BKA@8=D<7�C8:6�:67�:7;K9�=DE�<BDE8:8BD9�67;7B>�B;�:67;7B>G�DB;�:67�
<BD9?KK=:8BD�B>�:67�:;=D9=<:8BD9�<BD:7KA@=:7E�67;7LF�B;�:67;7LFG�<BD>@8<:9�C8:6�B;�
;79?@:9�8D�=�L;7=<6�B>�:67�:7;K9G�<BDE8:8BD9�B;�A;B/898BD9�B>�=DF�;79:;8<:8BD�B;�=DF�
=M;77K7D:�B;�8D9:;?K7D:�:B�C68<6�$7/7@BA7;�89�DBC�=�A=;:F�B;�LF�C68<6�$7/7@BA7;�89�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

123456�27�8249:;:3:<9�=�5<>=3?:�345<7�=4@�2>�:A<�>27<B2;4B6�27�7<93?:9�;4�:A<�87<=:;24�
27�;CD29;:;24�2>�=4@�?;<46�8A=7B<�27�<483C17=48<�EA=:92<0<7�3D24�=4@�2>�:A<�D72D<7:@�
27�=99<:9�2>�%<0<?2D<76�27�3D24�:A<�);:<6�<F8<D:�G<7C;::<5�H483C17=48<9I�

JK�L � 	M�!N�"O��P			

%<0<?2D<7�;9�42:�42E�427�A=9�;:�<0<7�1<<4�;4�1=4Q73D:8@�27�7<8<;0<79A;DI�

JKRL � 	�!�"����!���			

%<0<?2D<7�9A=??�42:�D?<5B<�=4@�%;9:7;8:�D=@C<4:9�2>�=4@�Q;456�7<?=:<5�:2�:A<�);:<�S<=9<6�
:A;9�T=8;?;:;<9�S<=9<6�27�;4�=4@�E=@�5<7;0<5�>72C�:A<�);:<6�=45�9A=??�42:�C27:B=B<�27�
<483C1<7�:A<�);:<6�<F8<D:�=9�C=@�1<�9D<8;>;8=??@�D<7C;::<5�D3793=4:�:2�:A<�D720;9;249�
2>�:A;9�T=8;?;:;<9�S<=9<�7<?=:<5�:2�%<0<?2D<7U9�>;4=48;4B�:A<�8249:738:;24�2>�:A<�D72V<8:I�

JK�L � !��!"��	�W����!��			

%<0<?2D<7�9A=??�42:�02?34:=7;?@�82CC<48<�=4@�=8:�;4:<45<5�:2�5;992?0<�27�:<7C;4=:<�
:A<�?<B=?�<F;9:<48<�2>�%<0<?2D<76�=:�27�1<>27<�:A<�?=:<9:�2>�:A<�>2??2E;4BX�

JK�KYLH;BA:<<4�Z/+[�C24:A9�>2??2E;4B�82CD?<:;24�2>�:A<�G72V<8:I��

JK�K\L]4<�Z/[�@<=7�>2??2E;4B�<FD;7=:;24�27�<=7?;<7�:<7C;4=:;24�2>�:A<�̂<7CI�

JK�K_L̀ >:<7�5;9C;99=?�=45�>;4=?�7<92?3:;24�2>�=4@�=45�=??�5;9D3:<9�1<:E<<4�:A<�
G=7:;<9�=45a27�=4@�:A;75bD=7:@�8?=;C9�7<?=:<56�;4�=4@�E=@6�:2�:A<�G72V<8:I�

&A;?<�:A<�?<=9<�5283C<4:9�=7<�;4�<>><8:6�%<0<?2D<7�9A=??�B;0<�%;9:7;8:�24<�A3457<5�
:E<4:@�Z/c,[�5=@9�E7;::<4�42:;8<�D7;27�:2�5;992?0;4B�27�:<7C;4=:;4B�:A<�?<B=?�<F;9:<48<�
2>�%<0<?2D<7I�

Y�KL ���� !���"��� !	d�������	

Y�KYLd� O�� e	���	���� !���"��� !	d��������

%<0<?2D<7�9A=??�D<7>27C�C=4=B<C<4:�=45�82275;4=:;24�9<70;8<96�D?=4�=45�9D<8;>;8=:;24�
8249:738:=1;?;:@�7<0;<E96�D720;5<�0=?3<b<4B;4<<7;4B�7<0;<E9�=45�7<82CC<45=:;249�=45�
2:A<7�7<0;<E9�=9�4<8<99=7@�:2�0<7;>@�:A=:�:A<�57=E;4B9�=45�9D<8;>;8=:;249�=7<�8?<=7�=45�
7<=924=1?@�=8837=:<�:2�C;4;C;f<�:A<�4<<5�>27�8A=4B<9�537;4B�:A<�8249:738:;24�DA=9<�
2>�:A<�D72V<8:6�;48?35;4B�13:�42:�?;C;:<5�:2�:A<�>2??2E;4BX�

Y�KYKYL g�!����	d��������

Y�KYKYKYL%<0<?2D<7�9A=??�=::<45�C<<:;4B9�1<:E<<4�:A<�̀78A;:<8:6�:A<�
%;9:7;8:6�%;9:7;8:�9;:<�D<79244<?6�=45�=4@�2:A<7�=DD?;8=1?<�82493?:=4:9�2>�
:A<�%;9:7;8:�=9�7<h3;7<5�:2�5;98399�:A<�G72V<8:6�;48?35;4B�135B<:6�982D<�
=45�98A<53?<I�

Y�KYKYK\L%<0<?2D<7�9A=??�=99;9:�:A<�̀ 78A;:<8:�E;:A�C=Q;4B�>27C=?�
D7<9<4:=:;249�:2�:A<�B20<74;4B�12=75�2>�%;9:7;8:I�)38A�=99;9:=48<�;9�
=4:;8;D=:<5�:2�;48?35<�>?227�D?=49�=45�<?<0=:;249�4<8<99=7@�>27�=4@�
=78A;:<8:37=?�D7<9<4:=:;24I�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

1�2121234%50567859�:;<66�8958<95�<�97=>;�:?;5@=65�AB�<�C79D<E�
<??58E<F65�E7�%A:E9A?EG�<B@�=8@<E5�<:�B5?5::<9HI�

1�21212�4%50567859�:;<66�8958<95�<B@�=8@<E5�E;5�?7D87B5BE:�7C�E;5�
J=<9<BE55@�(<KAD=D�L9A?5�<B@�:;<66�F5�89AD<9A6H�95:87B:AF65�C79�
5B:=9AB>�E;<E�E;5�L97M5?E�?<B�F5�<B@�A:�?7B:E9=?E5@�C79�B7�D795�E;<B�
E;<E�<D7=BEI�

1�21212N4&;A65�E;5�O9?;AE5?E�A:�<BEA?A8<E5@�E7�8970A@5�89AD<9H�
<::A:E<B?5G�%50567859�:;<66�<::A:E�%A:E9A?E�PAE;�QAEH�6<B@�=:5�A::=5:I�

1�21212�4O9?;AE5?E�:;<66�<?E�<:�65<@�<B@�%50567859�PA66�<::A:E�%A:E9A?E�
<B@�O9?;AE5?E�PAE;�%)O�950A5PG�AB8=EG�<B@�EAD5C9<D5�C79�:<D5I�

1�21212R4O9?;AE5?E�:;<66�<?E�<:�65<@�<B@�%50567859�PA66�<::A:E�PAE;�
950A5P�<B@�?7DD5BE�=87B�>57E5?;BA?<6�S�:7A6:�AB05:EA><EA7B�<B@�95879EI�

1�212124O9?;AE5?E�:;<66�<?E�<:�65<@�<B@�%50567859�PA66�<::A:E�PAE;�
950A5P�<B@�?7DD5BE�=87B�:=905H�7C�E;5�)AE5�C79�E;5�L97M5?EI�

1�21212T4 %50567859�PA66�8958<95�D55EAB>�DAB=E5:I�

1�212121�4L958<95�:?;5@=65�C79�895?7B:E9=?EA7B�@56A059<F65:G�:=FM5?E�E7�
%A:E9A?EU:�<88970<6G�<B@�8970A@5�895?7B:E9=?EA7B�@56A059<F65:�PAE;AB�EAD5�
C9<D5:�7C�<889705@�895?7B:E9=?EA7B�:?;5@=65I�

1�212V4 W�����	 X	Y����!	Y �"��!��I�

1�212V214 Z50A5P�L97M5?E�@5:A>B�<B@�F=@>5E�PAE;�%A:E9A?E�<B@�
O9?;AE5?E�F<:5@�7B�E;5�/,,[�Q7B:E9=?EA7B�%7?=D5BE:�:=FDAEE5@�E7�%)O�
E7\�

1�212V21214L970A@5� 95?7DD5B@<EA7B:� 7B� :AE5� =:5� <B@�
AD89705D5BE:G�:565?EA7B�7C�D<E59A<6:G�F=A6@AB>�:H:E5D:�<B@�
5]=A8D5BE�<B@�D5E;7@:�7C�L97M5?E�@56A059Ĥ�

1�212V212V4L970A@5�95?7DD5B@<EA7B:�7B�956<EA05�C5<:AFA6AEH�7C�
?7B:E9=?EA7B�D5E;7@:G�<0<A6<FA6AEH�7C�D<E59A<6:�<B@�6<F79G�EAD5�
95]=A95D5BE:�C79�897?=95D5BEG�AB:E<66<EA7B�<B@�?7B:E9=?EA7B�7C�
E;5�L97M5?E�<B@�:=F8<9E:�E;5957C�AC�95]=5:E5@G�<B@�C<?E79:�956<EAB>�
E7�?7:E�AB?6=@AB>G�F=E�B7E�6ADAE5@�E7G�?7B:E9=?EA7B�?7:E:�7C�
<6E59B<E5�@5:A>B:�7C�D<E59A<6:G�8956ADAB<9H�F=@>5E:�<B@�87::AF65�
5?7B7DA?:�E;<E�?7=6@�F5�<?;A505@�E;97=>;�<6E59B<E5�D5E;7@:�79�
:=F:EAE=EA7B:̂�

1�212V21234L970A@5�95?7DD5B@<EA7B:�7B�956<EA05�C5<:AFA6AEH�7C�
?7B:E9=?EA7B�D5E;7@:G�<0<A6<FA6AEH�7C�D<E59A<6:�<B@�6<F79G�EAD5�
95]=A95D5BE:�C79�897?=95D5BEG�AB:E<66<EA7B�<B@�?7B:E9=?EA7B�7C�
E;5�L97M5?E�<B@�:=F8<9E:�E;5957C�AC�95]=5:E5@G�<B@�C<?E79:�956<EAB>�
E7�?7:E�AB?6=@AB>G�F=E�B7E�6ADAE5@�E7G�?7B:E9=?EA7B�?7:E:�7C�
<6E59B<E5�@5:A>B:�7C�D<E59A<6:G�8956ADAB<9H�F=@>5E:�<B@�87::AF65�
5?7B7DA?:�E;<E�?7=6@�F5�<?;A505@�E;97=>;�<6E59B<E5�D5E;7@:�79�
:=F:EAE=EA7B:̂�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

1�2123212�4567089:�;<=>�6:08:?@�

1�2123212A4B��"�C�!��!����!�2�56:;=6:�=�0=<D:E:>F8>::68>F�
6:;76G�H76�%8IG68JG�6:08:?�=>9�=;;670=<�GK=GL�

1�2123212A214%:G=8<I� =6:=I� 7H� J7IG� I=08>F� M:@F@�
J7>IG6DJG87>�;67J:II:IN;67J:9D6:IO�I;:J8H8:9�P=G:68=<I�
=>9�:QD8;P:>GO�=>9�:QD8;P:>G�76�7GK:6�=I;:JGI�7H�GK:�
9:I8F>�97JDP:>GI�GK=G�J=>�R:�P798H8:9�G7�6:9DJ:�J7IGI�
=>9N76�GK:�G8P:�H76�=JK8:08>F�H8>=<�J7P;<:G87>�7H�GK:�
567S:JG�=>9N76�G7�:TG:>9�<8H:EJUJ<:�=>9N76�G7�6:9DJ:�
P=8>G:>=>J:N7;:6=G87>I�J7IGIO�?8GK7DG�98P8>DG87>�8>�GK:�
QD=<8GU�7H�P=G:68=<IN:QD8;P:>GN?76VP=>IK8;O�IJ7;:�76�
8>G:>9:9�;D6;7I:I�7H�GK:�567S:JGWX�

1�2123212A234567089:I�9:G=8<:9�:IG8P=G:�H76�;67;7I:9�
0=<D:E:>F8>::68>F�8G:PIX�

1�2123212A2Y4%:H8>:I�P:GK797<7FU�76�=;;67=JK:I�GK=G�
P=T8P8Z:�0=<D:X�=>9�

1�2123212A2�4[9:>G8H8:I�9:I8F>�JK78J:I�GK=G�J=>�R:�P76:�
:J7>7P8J=<<U�9:<80:6:9@���

1�2123212�4� !���"��������\	 ]�����2� 56:;=6:� 9:G=8<:9�
8>G:698IJ8;<8>=6U�J7>IG6DJG=R8<8GU�6:08:?�?8GK8>�̂ 7D6G::>�M/-W�
9=UI�7H�6:J:8;G�7H�GK:�;<=>I�H67P�GK:�%8IG68JG�GK=GL�

1�2123212�214_>ID6:I�J7>IG6DJG87>�97JDP:>GI�=6:�?:<<�
J77698>=G:9�=>9�6:08:?:9�H76�:6676IX�

1�2123212�234[9:>G8H8:I� G7� GK:� :TG:>G� V>7?>O�
J7>IG6DJG87>�9:H8J8:>J8:I�=>9�=6:=I�7H�J7>J:6>X�

1�2123212�2Y4 =̀JVEJK:JVI�9:I8F>�96=?8>FI�H76�8>J<DI87>�
7H�P798H8J=G87>IX�=>9�

1�2123212�2�4567089:I� GK:� %8IG68JG� ?8GK� ?68GG:>�
J7>H86P=G87>�GK=GL�

1�2123212�2�214a:QD86:P:>GI�>7G:9�8>�GK:�9:I8F>�
97JDP:>GI�;6:;=6:9�H76�GK:�567S:JG�=6:�J7>I8IG:>G�
?8GK�=>9�J7>H76P�G7�GK:�%8IG68JGbI�567S:JG�
6:QD86:P:>GI�=>9�9:I8F>�IG=>9=69I@�

1�2123212�2�234c=687DI�J7P;7>:>GI�K=0:�R::>�
J77698>=G:9�=>9�=6:�J7>I8IG:>G�?8GK�:=JK�7GK:6�I7�
=I�G7�P8>8P8Z:�J7>H<8JGI�?8GK8>�76�R:G?::>�
J7P;7>:>GI�7H�GK:�9:I8F>�97JDP:>GI@�

1�2123234 d7>H86P�(798H8J=G87>I�G7�%:I8F>�%6=?8>FI@�[H�GK:�
%8IG68JG�=JJ:;GI�%:0:<7;:6bI�J7PP:>GIO�8>J<D98>F�GK:�0=<D:E:>F8>::68>F�
=>9N76�J7>IG6DJG=R8<8GU�6:08:?�J7PP:>GIO�6:08:?�GK:�9:I8F>�97JDP:>GI�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

12�3245678�19:1�192;<�3288<41;�:7<�=72=<7>?�64327=27:1<@�6412�19<�564:>�
@<;6A4�@23B8<41;C�

�DDEDFG H4�@264A�;2I�61�6;�7<32A46J<@�19:1�%<0<>2=<7�6;�421�
:3164A�64�19<�3:=:361?�25�:�>63<4;<@�@<;6A4�=725<;;624:>I�:4@�19:1�
%<0<>2=<7K;�<L:864:1624�6;�8:@<�64�A22@�5:619�12�5:36>61:1<�324;17B31624�
:4@�@2<;�421�37<:1<�:4�:55678:160<�7<;=24;6M6>61?�25�:�@<;6A4�=725<;;624:>�
12�@<1<31�<7727;I�286;;624;�27�64324;6;1<436<;�64�19<�N2417:31�%23B8<41;�
27�12�:;3<71:64�328=>6:43<�O619�:==>63:M><�>:O;I�MB6>@64A�32@<;�27�
7<AB>:1624;C��P2O<0<7I�421964A�64�196;�=7206;624�;9:>>�:M72A:1<�
%<0<>2=<7K;�7<;=24;6M6>616<;�527�@6;320<764A�:4@�7<=27164A�:4?�<7727I�
64324;6;1<43?I�27�286;;624�=B7;B:41�12�19<�N2417:31�O61964�19<�
%<0<>2=<7K;�;1:4@:7@�25�3:7<�643>B@64AI�O6192B1�>6861:1624I�:4?�
:==>63:M><�>:O;I�27@64:43<I�7B><;I�27�7<AB>:1624;C���

�DDFG Q"����	 R	�� $���	� ���C�

�DDFDG S1�<:39�;1:A<�25�=>:4�7<06<O�64@63:1<@�:M20<I�
%<0<>2=<7�O6>>�B=@:1<�:4@�7<564<�19<�MB@A<1�25�19<�TB:7:41<<@�
(:L68B8�U763<�M:;<@�24�19<�82;1�7<3<41�;<1�25�@<;6A4�@23B8<41;C�
%<0<>2=<7�;9:>>�:>;2�:@06;<�19<�%6;17631�:4@�19<�S73961<31�65�61�:==<:7;�
19:1�19<�121:>�324;17B31624�32;1;�8:?�<L3<<@�19<�TB:7:41<<@�(:L68B8�
U763<�<;1:M>6;9<@�M?�19<�%6;17631�:4@�;9:>>�8:V<�7<3288<4@:1624;�527�
3277<3160<�:31624C�%<0<>2=<7�O6>>�5B719<7�=7206@<�64=B1�12�19<�%6;17631�:4@�
S73961<31�7<>:160<�12�0:>B<�25�324;17B31624I�8<:4;�:4@�8<192@;�527�
324;17B31624I�@B7:1624�25�324;17B31624�25�0:762B;�MB6>@64A�8<192@;�:4@�
324;17B31:M6>61?C�

�DDFDEG H4�<:39�MB@A<1�25�19<�TB:7:41<<@�(:L68B8�U763<I�
%<0<>2=<7�;9:>>�643>B@<�0:>B<;�25�;32=<;�25�O27V�;BM@606@<@�6412�
328=24<41�=:71;�64�;B55636<41�@<1:6>�12�;<70<�:;�19<�M:;6;�527�=72A7<;;�
=:?8<41;�@B764A�324;17B31624C�W96;�MB@A<1�25�19<�TB:7:41<<@�(:L68B8�
U763<�;9:>>�643>B@<I�:1�:�86468B8I�19<�52>>2O64A�645278:1624�@606@<@�6412�
:1�><:;1�19<�52>>2O64A�3:1<A276<;�527�<:39�;61<X�

�DDFDEDGY0<79<:@�:4@�=72561Z�

�DDFDEDEG)B=<706;624Z�

�DDFDEDFGT<4<7:>�324@61624;Z�

�DDFDED�G[:?2B1�\�(2M6>6J:1624�]421�827<�19:4�/̂ _Z�

�DDFDED̀G)BM8611:>;I�;:8=><;I�;92=�@7:O64A;�]421�827<�19:4�
*̂ _Z�

�DDFDED�Ga24@;�:4@�64;B7:43<�]421�827<�19:4�bCĉ _Z�

�DDFDEDdGN>2;<e2B1�@23B8<41:1624�]421�><;;�19:4�*̂ _Z�

�DDFDEDfG%<82>61624Z�

�DDFDEDgGH4;1:>>:1624Z�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

�112131�456789:;<=�

�1121314>;<;?9@?=�

�11213134A@?B;<8=�

�11213124CD<@E�F<G�(F;<B@<F<H@�(F<7FI?�J<6B�I@??�B9F<�
KLM=�F<G�

�112131�4N7<H9I;?B�F<G�%;?BE;HB�FHH@OBF<H@�J<6B�I@??�B9F<�
*LMP�

�11�4 � !���"��� !	Q����"��	�!�	�����!�	���!�

%@0@I6O@E�?9FII�OE@OFE@�F�OE@H6<?BE7HB;6<�?H9@G7I@�B6�87;G@�B9@�G@?;8<�B@FR�
B9E6789�B6�S;G�GFB@?P�A9FB�?H9@G7I@�?9FII�?96D�B9@�R7IB;OI@�O9F?@?�F<G�
;<B@EE@IFB;6<?�6T�G@?;8<U�H6<?BE7HBFS;I;BV�E@0;@DU�F<G�@?B;RFB;<8P�%@0@I6O@E�?9FII�
FI?6�OE@OFE@�F�T7II�H6<?BE7HB;6<�?H9@G7I@�T6E�B9@�NE6W@HB�G@BF;I;<8�B9@�
H6<?BE7HB;6<�FHB;0;B;@?P�%@0@I6O@E�?9FII�T7EB9@E�;<0@?B;8FB@U�E@H6RR@<G�F<G�
OE@OFE@�F�?H9@G7I@�T6E�B9@�O7EH9F?@�6T�RFB@E;FI?�F<G�@X7;OR@<B�E@X7;E;<8�I6<8�
I@FG�B;R@�OE6H7E@R@<BU�F<G�H66EG;<FB@�B9@�?H9@G7I@�D;B9�B9@�@FEIV�OE@OFEFB;6<�
6T�O6EB;6<?�6T�B9@�Y6<BEFHB�%6H7R@<B?�SV�B9@�ZEH9;B@HBP��

�11[4 � !���"��� !	���!!�!�	�!�	\����!�	

�11[14>6E�FII�6T�%@0@I6O@E]?�FHB;0;B;@?�E@IFB;<8�B6�H6<?BE7HB;6<�
OIF<<;<8�F<G�S;GG;<8U�%@0@I6O@E�?9FII�H6ROIV�D;B9�FII�FOOI;HFSI@�I@8FI�
E@X7;E@R@<B?U�;<HI7G;<8�S7B�<6B�I;R;B@G�B6�B96?@�?@B�T6EB9�;<�
Ĝ7HFB;6<�Y6G@�?@HB;6<�/_-,̀ P�

�11[134Y6<?7IB�D;B9�%;?BE;HB�?BFTT�;<�E@IFB;6<�B6�B9@�@a;?B;<8�?;B@P��
)@I@HB@G�G@0@I6O@E�?967IG�RFb@�?;B@�0;?;B?U�F?�<@@G@G�B6�E@0;@D�B9@�
H7EE@<B�?;B@�H6<G;B;6<?P��%7E;<8�B9;?�@0FI7FB;6<U�5@?O6<G@<B�RFV�
RFb@�E@H6RR@<GFB;6<?�E@IFB;<8�B6�?6;I?�;<0@?B;8FB;6<?�F<G�7B;I;BV�
I6HFB;6<?�F<G�HFOFH;B;@?U�;<�6EG@E�B6�R;<;R;c@�7<T6E@?@@<�H6<G;B;6<?P�

�11[124ZBB@<G�R@@B;<8?�FB�B9@�);B@�D;B9�B9@�ZEH9;B@HB�F<G�B9@�
G@?;8<�B@FR�F?�<@@G@GP�

�11[1�4NE60;G@�OIF<�E@0;@D�F<G�H6<?BE7HBFS;I;BV�?@E0;H@?�D;B9�F<�
@RO9F?;?�6<�@<?7E;<8�B9FB�B9@�NE6W@HB�HF<�S@�H6ROI@B@G�D;B9;<�B9@�
@?BFSI;?9@G�?H9@G7I@�F<G�D;B9;<�B9@�F0F;IFSI@�S7G8@BP�

�11[1[4NE60;G@�F�G@BF;I@G�F<FIV?;?�6T�FII�RFW6E�NE6W@HB�?V?B@R?�
D;B9�F<�@RO9F?;?�6<�O6??;SI@�0FI7@�@<8;<@@E;<8�O6??;S;I;B;@?P���

�11[1�4NE@OFE@�F<G�G;?BE;S7B@�?O@H;T;HFB;6<?�F<G�GEFD;<8?�
OE60;G@G� SV� %;?BE;HB� B6� TFH;I;BFB@� S;GG;<8� B6� %@0@I6O@Ed?�
?7SH6<BEFHB6E?P�

�11[1e45@0;@D�B9@�GEFD;<8?�F<G�?O@H;T;HFB;6<?�B6�@I;R;<FB@�FE@F?�
6T�H6<TI;HB�F<G�60@EIFOO;<8�;<�B9@�D6Eb�B6�S@�O@ET6ER@G�SV�0FE;67?�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23456789:58692;�:7<�=>8?�:�1>@=�86�@A>B>7:8>7C�5?:7C@�69<@9�9@D3@282�
4E�8?@�F95?>8@58�69�23456789:58692G�

�HHIHJKL67<358�M9@N4><�567O@9@75@2�=>8?�>71>8:8>672�86�F95?>8@58�
:7<�L)�O>9BG�L669<>7:8@�=>8?�&>289>58�:7<�8?@�F95?>8@58�>7�9@2M67<>7C�
86�23456789:5869�D3@28>672�69�M961><>7C�5A:9>O>5:8>67�86�:AA�
23456789:58692G�

�HHIHPK&*F�:MM961@<�MA:72�2?:AA�4@�38>A>Q@<�86�9@5@>1@�
23456789:5869�4><2�:7<�<@1@A6M�8?@�R)S�>7�:5569<:75@�=>8?�8?@�
A@:2@NA@:2@4:5T�:C9@@B@78�O69B2;�>75A3<>7C�8?@�9@D3>9@B@78�8?:8�
&@1@A6M@9�@7C:C@�>7�56BM@8>8>1@�4><<>7C�O69�23456789:58692�O69�:AA�
256M@2�6O�=69T�67�8?@�S96U@58�8?:8�56728>838@�B69@�8?:7�67@�?:AO�6O�
67@�M@95@78�V-G/WX�6O�8?@�R)SG�Y?@�&>289>58�9@M9@2@78:8>1@�2?:AA�4@�
M9@2@78�<39>7C�8?@�9@5@>M8�6O�4><2�O96B�23456789:58692G�

�HHIH�KZ:5?�M?:2@�R)S�2?:AA�4@�M9@2@78@<�86�8?@�&>289>58�>7�8?@�
O6AA6=>7C�B:77@9�=>8?>7�:�8?9@@�9>7C�4>7<@9�:2�=@AA�:2�234B>88@<�
@A@58967>5:AAE�:2�:�466TB:9T@<�S&[�67�:7�@\8@97:A�]*̂ �<9>1@_�

�HHIH�HKL61@9�2?@@8;�2>C7@<�4E�&@1@A6M@9�>7<>5:8>7C�8?@�
R)S�<6AA:9�:B6378�=>8?�:�5@98>O>5:8>67;�>7<>5:8>7C�8?:8�8?@�R)S�
>2�:AA�>75A32>1@�M@9�8?@�MA:72;�2M@5>O>5:8>672�:7<�:<<@7<:�V56789:58�
<653B@782XG��FA26�>75A3<@�5@98>O>5:8>67�28:8>7C;� &̀@1@A6M@9�
?@9@4E�5@98>O>@2�8?:8�8?@E�?:1@�9@1>@=@<�:AA�23456789:5869�
M96M62:A2�:7<�=?@8?@9�8?@�23456789:5869�@\5A3<@<�M698>672�6O�
8?@>9�256M@�&@1@A6M@9�?:2�>75A3<@<�:AA�56282�O69�:�56BMA@8@�R)S�
>7�:5569<:75@�=>8?�MA:72;�2M@5>O>5:8>672�:7<�:<<@7<:Ga�

�HHIH�H�KF�4><�8:43A:8>67�2?@@8�>7<>5:8>7C�8?@�49@:T<6=7�4E�
23456789:5869b89:<@�:A67C�=>8?�8?@�:MM96M9>:8@�C@7@9:A�567<>8>67�
:B6378;�68?@9�O@@2�V:2�234B>88@<�=>8?�8?@�9@2M672@�86�8?@�
c[dbSXG�

�HHIH�HeK̂ @?>7<�8?@�4><�8:43A:8>67�2?@@8�B@78>67@<�>7�
234<>1>2>67�0-G0G/G/Gf�:461@�2?63A<�4@�:�2?@@8�8?:8�>7<>5:8@2�
=?:8�>2�>75A3<@<�>7�8?@�C@7@9:A�567<>8>672;�=?>5?�2?63A<�B:85?�
=?:8�=:2�234B>88@<�>7�8?@�9@2M672@�86�8?@�c[dbSG�

�HHIH�H�KL6M>@2�6O�:AA�23456789:5869�4><2�9@5@>1@<�<>1><@<�
4E�89:<@�8?:8�5699@2M67<2�86�8?@�O>7:A�2M9@:<�2?@@8�=>8?�:�561@9�
2?@@8�>7<>5:8>7C�8?@�256M@�:7<�23456789:58692�8?:8�M961><@<�4><2�
:2�=@AA�:2�8?62@�8?:8�=@9@�:2T@<�86�4><;�438�<><�768�234B>8�:�
M96M62:AG�Y?>2�2?@@8�2?63A<�?:1@�8?@�<6AA:9�:B63782�O69�@:5?�
23456789:5869�8?:8�M961><@<�:�4><�=>8?�8?@�O>928�56A3B7�4@>7C�8?@�
M96M62@<�23456789:5869�O69�8?:8�89:<@G�

�HHIH�HIK̂ @?>7<�234<>1>2>67�0-G0G/G/G.�:461@�2?63A<�4@�8?@�
4><2�O69�8?:8�89:<@�=>8?�8?@�M96M62@<�23456789:5869�4><�67�86M�
:7<�8?@�68?@9�23456789:5869�4><2�>7�<@25@7<>7C�69<@9�4:2@<�67�
4@28�1:A3@�2569@G�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

�2232�2�4567�89:98;8�:;8<7=�>?�<>:@�?9A7�<9AB�?=>8�
C>:D=@CD>=B�?>=�@�BE7C9?9C�D=@A7�B6@FF�<7�@B�?>FF>GBH�

�2232�2�245G>�IJK�<9AB�?>=�B;<C>:D=@CDB�;E�D>�L:7�
M;:A=7A�56>;B@:A�&>FF@=B�IN0--O---KP���

�2232�2�2Q456=77�I+K�<9AB�?>=�B;<C>:D=@CDB�>17=�L:7�
M;:A=7A�56>;B@:A�&>FF@=B�IN0--O---KR�

�2232�2S4T?�&717F>E7=�9:D7:AB�D>�E=>E>B7�D>�B7F?UE7=?>=8�
E>=D9>:IBK�>?�D67�C>:BD=;CD9>:�>?�D67�V=>W7CDO�9D�8;BD�=7C7917�D67�
&9BD=9CDXB�E=9>=�G=9DD7:�@EE=>1@FR�T?�@EE=>17AO�&717F>E7=�8;BD�
E=>19A7�9DB�E=9C9:Y�I9DB�<9AK�D>�D67�&9BD=9CD�@D�F7@BD�DG7:DZU?>;=�
IJ.K�6>;=B�E=9>=�D>�&717F>E7=XB�=7C79ED�>?�*;<C>:D=@CD>=�<9AB�?>=�
D6>B7�E>=D9>:IBK�>?�D67�'>=[R��

�2232�2S24\7Y@=AF7BB�>?�D67�BC>E7�>?�G>=[�@:A�:>D�9:�
@:Z�G@Z�=7A;C9:Y�D67�:;8<7=�>?�*;<C>:D=@CD>=�<9AB�
<@B7A�>:�D67�>D67=�=7];9=787:DB�>?�D67� >̂:D=@CD�
&>C;87:DBO�D67�89:98;8�:;8<7=�>?�<>:@�?9A7�<9AB�?=>8�
*;<C>:D=@CD>=B�?>=�BC>E7IBK�>?�'>=[�D6@D�&717F>E7=�9B�
<9AA9:Y�D>�B7F?UE7=?>=8�B6@FF�<7�5G>�IJK�_9ABO�:>D�
9:CF;A9:Y�&717F>E7=XB�E=9C9:Ỳ<9AR�

�22324V=>A;C7�A7D@9F7A�C>:BD=;CD9>:�̂ V)�BC67A;F7B�D>�<7�
9:C>=E>=@D7A�9:D>�D67�V=>W7CD�A>C;87:DB�9:CF;A9:Y�9A7:D9?9C@D9>:�>?�
D67�V=>W7CD�C=9D9C@F�E@D6�@:A�@Y7:CZ�@EE=>1@FBR�

�2232Q4VF@:�D67�E6@B7B�@:A�BD@Y9:Y�>?�C>:BD=;CD9>:O�BD@Y9:Y�
@=7@BO�D78E>=@=Z�?7:C9:YO�>??9C7�D=@9F7=�EF@C787:DO�@CC7BBO�7DCR�@B�
=7];9=7AR�

�2232�4a:Z�>D67=�B7=19C7B�D6@D�@=7�=7@B>:@<F7�@:A�:7C7BB@=Z�D>�
C>:D=>F�D67�<;AY7D�@:A�BC67A;F7R�b9BD�D6>B7�@=7@B�G67=7�
B;<C>:B;FD@:DB�G9FF�<7�=7];9=7A�@:A�G67=7�D67�\7BE>:A7:D�6@B�9:U
6>;B7�7cE7=D9B7R��V=>19A7�=7B;87B�>?�E7=B>:B�E=>19A9:Y�7@C6�>?�
D67B7�B7=19C7B�@:A�?>=�[7Z�E7=B>::7F�@BB9Y:7A�D>�D67�V=>W7CDR�

�2Q4d����#���

V=7C>:BD=;CD9>:�B7=19C7B�>;DF9:7A�@<>17�G9FF�C>887:C7�>:�D67�A@D7�D67�&9BD=9CD�9BB;7B�
@�e>D9C7�D>�V=>C77A�G9D6�V=7C>:BD=;CD9>:�*7=19C7B�?>=�D67�aY=7787:DO�@:A�C>:CF;A7�
;E>:�@EE=>1@F�>?�D67�a87:A87:D�D>�D67�b7@B7�aY=7787:DB�<Z�&9BD=9CDXB�_>@=AO�>=�
D7=89:@D9>:�>?�D69B�aY=7787:D�<Z�79D67=�E@=DZ�E7=�D67�aY=7787:DXB�D7=8BR��a:Z�
7cD7:B9>:�B6@FF�<7�B;<W7CD�D>�=7@B>:@<F7�@EE=>1@F�9:�G=9D9:Y�<Z�D67�V@=D97BR��

�2�4f�"�����g	!h	i��!���	

TD�9B�8;D;@FFZ�@Y=77A�D6@D�@FF�8@D7=9@FB�E=7E@=7A�<Z�&717F>E7=�;:A7=�D69B�aY=7787:D�
B6@FF�<7C>87�D67�E=>E7=DZ�>?�D67�&9BD=9CD�@:A�&717F>E7=�B6@FF�6@17�:>�E=>E7=DZ�=9Y6D�
D67=79:�G6@DB>717=R��&717F>E7=�67=7<Z�@BB9Y:B�D>�&9BD=9CD�@:Z�C>EZ=9Y6DB�@BB>C9@D7A�
G9D6�D67�8@D7=9@FB�E=7E@=7A�E;=B;@:D�D>�D67�aY=7787:DR���



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

�1�234�!	5  6	� ���7	

89:;:�<=>>�?:�@A�BC:A�?BBD�CB>=EF�<=G9�%:0:>BC:;�@AH�=GI�EBAIG;JEG=BA�G:@KL�%=IG;=EG�
I9@>>�9@0:�@EE:II�GB�@>>��"�� !����� �	����M	�"�� !����� �	�����"��	 N	���"��M	
���"�	�!��!����!�	���6O"4M	� !��!��!�7	����6� �!	P	����6�!�M	�!�	
Q���� 4��	N���1��

�1R2� �4�!���� !	� 	Q���� 4��	N �	���� !���"��� !	S�������	

%=IG;=EG�@T;::I�GB�;:=K?J;I:�%:0:>BC:;�=A�G9:�GBG@>�@KBJAG�ABG�GB�:UE::H�):0:AGF�VBJ;�
G9BJI@AH�:=T9G�9JAH;:H�G:A�HB>>@;I�@AH�,,W/,,�XYZ-[+/,\[�VB;�G9:�C:;VB;K@AE:�BV�
I:;0=E:I�EBAG:KC>@G:H�?F�G9=I�]T;::K:AGL��%:0:>BC:;�I9@>>�?:�C@=H�KBAG9>F�VB;�G9:�
@EGJ@>�V::I�@AH�@>>B<:H�EBIGI�@AH�:UC:AI:I�VB;�@>>�G=K:�@AH�K@G:;=@>I�;:̂J=;:H�@AH�
:UC:AH:H�VB;�<B;D�;:̂J:IG:H�@AH�IC:E=V=:H�?F�G9:�%=IG;=EG�@I�EBKC>:G:HL��)@=H�@KBJAG�
I9@>>�?:�C@=H�<=G9=A�G9=;GF�X*,\�H@FI�JCBA�IJ?K=GG@>�GB�@AH�0:;=V=E@G=BA�?F�G9:�%=IG;=EG�
BV�@�KBAG9>F�?=>>=AT�IG@G:K:AG�I9B<=AT�EBKC>:G=BA�BV�G9:�G@IDI�VB;�G9@G�KBAG9�BA�@�
>=A:�=G:K�?@I=IL��_A�G9:�:0:AG�%:0:>BC:;�@AH�%=IG;=EG�EBAG=AJ:�<=G9�G9:�>:@I:W>:@I:?@ED�
@T;::K:AGI�VB;�G9:�H:0:>BCK:AG�BV�G9:�̀ ;Ba:EG[�G9=I�EBKC:AI@G=BA�VB;�I:;0=E:I�
;:AH:;:H�<=>>�?:�=AE>JH:H�@I�C@;G�BV�G9:�bJ@;@AG::H�(@U=KJK�̀;=E:�Xcb(̀ d\�GB�?:�C@=H�
GB�%:0:>BC:;�?F�%=IG;=EGL�

%:0:>BC:;�I9@>>�?:�;:ICBAI=?>:�VB;�@AF�@AH�@>>�EBIGI�@AH�:UC:AI:I�=AEJ;;:H�?F�
%:0:>BC:;[�=AE>JH=AT�?JG�ABG�>=K=G:H�GB�G9:�EBIGI�BV�9=;=AT�IJ?eEBAIJ>G@AGI[�EBAG;@EGB;I�
@AH�BG9:;�C;BV:II=BA@>I[�;:0=:<�BV�G9:�̀;Ba:EGfI�̀>@AI�@AH�)C:E=V=E@G=BAI[�;:0=:<�@AH�
C;:C@;@G=BA�BV�A:E:II@;F�HBEJK:AG@G=BA�;:>@G=AT�GB�G9:�H:0:>BCK:AG�BV�G9:�̀;Ba:EG[�@>>�
G;@0:>e;:>@G:H�:UC:AI:I[�@I�<:>>�@I�VB;�K::G=ATI�<=G9�%=IG;=EG�@AH�=GI�;:C;:I:AG@G=0:I[�
>BAT�H=IG@AE:�G:>:C9BA:�E9@;T:I[�EBCF=AT�:UC:AI:I[�I@>@;=:I�BV�%:0:>BC:;�IG@VV�@AH�
:KC>BF::I�<B;D=AT�BA�G9:�̀;Ba:EG[�B0:;9:@H[�@AH�@AF�BG9:;�;:@IBA@?>:�:UC:AI:I�
=AEJ;;:H�?F�%:0:>BC:;�=A�C:;VB;K@AE:�BV�G9:�I:;0=E:I�EBAG:KC>@G:H�?F�G9=I�]T;::K:AGL	

�1�2g����!��� !	��N ��	� !���"��� !	�����		

�1�12 h:VB;:�G9:�ABG=E:�GB�C;BE::H�<=G9�G9:�iBAIG;JEG=BA�̀9@I:�=I�=IIJ:H�
?F�G9:�%=IG;=EG[�G9=I�]T;::K:AG�K@F�?:�G:;K=A@G:H�@G�@AF�G=K:�<=G9BJG�E@JI:�
?F�%=IG;=EG�JCBA�VBJ;G::A�X/-\�H@FI�<;=GG:A�ABG=E:�GB�%:0:>BC:;L��_A�G9:�:0:AG�
BV�IJE9�@�G:;K=A@G=BA�?F�%=IG;=EG[�G9:�%=IG;=EG�I9@>>�C@F�%:0:>BC:;�VB;�@>>�
JAH=ICJG:H�I:;0=E:I�C:;VB;K:H�@AH�:UC:AI:I�=AEJ;;:H�C:;�G9=I�]T;::K:AG[�
IJCCB;G:H�?F�HBEJK:AG@;F�:0=H:AE:[�=AE>JH=AT[�?JG�ABG�>=K=G:H�GB[�C@F;B>>�
;:EB;HI[�=A0B=E:I�V;BK�G9=;H�C@;G=:I�;:G@=A:H�?F�%:0:>BC:;�CJ;IJ@AG�GB�G9=I�
]T;::K:AG[�@AH�:UC:AI:�;:CB;GI�JC�JAG=>�G9:�H@G:�BV�ABG=E:�BV�G:;K=A@G=BA�C>JI�
@AF�IJKI�HJ:�%:0:>BC:;�VB;�hB@;He@CC;B0:H�:UG;@�I:;0=E:IL��_A�@IE:;G@=A=AT�
G9:�I:;0=E:I�@EGJ@>>F�;:AH:;:H�9:;:JAH:;�JC�GB�G9:�H@G:�BV�G:;K=A@G=BA�BV�G9=I�
]T;::K:AG[�EBAI=H:;@G=BA�I9@>>�?:�T=0:A�GB�EBKC>:G:H�<B;D�@AH�<B;D�=A�C;BE:II�
G9@G�<BJ>H�?:IG�I:;0:�G9:�%=IG;=EG�=V�@�EBKC>:G:H�C;BHJEG�<@I�C;:I:AG:HL�

�1�1j2 _A�G9:�:0:AG�G9@G�G9:�̀@;G=:I�HB�ABG�;:@E9�@A�@T;::K:AG�BA�G9:�b(̀ [�
G9=I�]T;::K:AG�<=>>�?:�G:;K=A@G:H�@G�G9@G�G=K:L��_A�G9:�:0:AG�BV�IJE9�@�
G:;K=A@G=BA[�G9:�%=IG;=EG�I9@>>�C@F�%:0:>BC:;�AB�KB;:�G9@A�G9:�ABG�GB�:UE::H�
@KBJAG�=A�):EG=BA�/,L.�@?B0:L	

�1k2� !���"��� !	�����	



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

&21234526�78933�:4;�<4==2:<2�>46?�@46�>8A<8�9�<4:;69<;46�A7�62BCA62D�;4�E2�3A<2:72D�
A:�9<<46D9:<2�>A;8�F6;A<32�/�G<4==2:<A:H�>A;8�*2<;A4:�I-J/K�4@�L895;26�M�4@�&A1A7A4:�
+�4@�;82�NC7A:277�9:D�O64@277A4:7�L4D2�9:D�@46�>8A<8�&A1A7A4:�4@�;82�*;9;2�F6<8A;2<;�
95564193�A7�62BCA62D�<9:�E2�526@46=2D�E2@462�62<2A5;�4@�;82�62BCA62D�&A1A7A4:�4@�;82�
*;9;2�F6<8A;2<;�95564193P�

QR �!"���#���!"	!S	��!%���	

QR�!"���#���!"	!S	��!%���			

QQR &21234526�9H6227�;4�<9C72�;82�O64T2<;�;4�E2�D2123452DU�<4:7;6C<;2DU�
9:D�A:7;9332D�A:�9<<46D9:<2�>A;8�;82�;26=7�82624@�9:D�;82�L4:7;6C<;A4:�
O641A7A4:7�72;�@46;8�A:��V�����	WU�A:<3CDA:H�;8472�;8A:H7�62974:9E3X�A:@2662D�
@64=�;82�L4:;69<;�&4<C=2:;7�97�E2A:H�>A;8A:�;82�7<452�4@�;82�O64T2<;�9:D�
:2<27796X�;4�564DC<2�;82�7;9;2D�627C3;�212:�;84CH8�:4�=2:;A4:�A7�=9D2�A:�;82�
L4:;69<;�&4<C=2:;7P���

QQYR �!"�����	Z���	�	�!"���#���!"	[����#��			

\;�A7�8262EX�C:D267;44D�9:D�9H622D�;89;�;82�L4:;69<;�]A=2�@46�;8A7�O64T2<;�78933�
E2�̂D9X7�A:�>46D7_�ĜD9X7�A:�:C=E267_K�<932:D96�D9X7�@46�<4:7;6C<;A4:U�9:D�E2�
D̂9X7�A:�>46D7_�ĜD9X7�A:�:C=E267_K�<932:D96�D9X7�@46�<3472̀4C;U��<4==2:<A:H�
>A;8�;82�a4;A<2�;4�O64<22D�<4:7;6C<;A4:�58972�9:D�2:DA:H�>A;8�<4=532;A4:�4@�
;82�<4:7;6C<;A4:�>46?�>8A<8�>A33�4<<C6�:4�39;26�;89:�̂&9;2_�9:D�<3472̀4C;�D9;2�
GbL4:;69<;�]A=2cKP�]82�L4:7;6C<;A4:�*<82DC32�=C7;�E2�9<<25;2D�EX�;82�&A7;6A<;P�

QQdR [����#��	!S	e��#��		

&21234526�>A33�5641AD2�9�7<82DC32�4@�193C27U�9556412D�EX�;82�&A7;6A<;U�>8A<8�>A33�
E2�9;;9<82D�8262;4�97��V�����	f	Gb*<82DC32�4@�g93C27cKP��]82�*<82DC32�4@�
g93C27�=C7;�E2�9556412D�EX�;82�&A7;6A<;P�h2@26�;4�ij8AEA;�&�4@�;82�k9<A3A;A27�
l2972�72<;A4:�0-P0PJPm�

QQ�R 
�n#������	W������		

]A=2�A7�4@�;82�2772:<2�@46�933�>46?�&21234526�=C7;�526@46=�;4�<4=532;2�;82�
O64T2<;P��\;�A7�8262EX�C:D267;44D�9:D�9H622D�;89;�A;�A7�9:D�>A33�E2�DA@@A<C3;�9:Do46�
A=5477AE32�;4�97<26;9A:�9:D�D2;26=A:2�;82�9<;C93�D9=9H2�;89;�;82�&A7;6A<;�>A33�
7C7;9A:�A:�;82�212:;�4@�9:D�EX�62974:�4@�&21234526p7�D239Xq�;8262@462U�&21234526�
9H6227�;89;�A;�78933�59X�;4�;82�&A7;6A<;�;82�7C=�4@�Z��"�rs����	t#"�����
W!������uvYw���Q��K�526�D9X�97�3ABCAD9;2D�D9=9H27�@46�29<8�9:D�2126X�D9Xp7�
D239X�E2X4:D�;82�L4:;69<;�]A=2P���

QQ�QR\;�A7�8262EX�C:D267;44D�9:D�9H622D�;89;�;8A7�9=4C:;�A7�
:4;�9�52:93;XP�

QQ�QYR\:�;82�212:;�9:X�546;A4:�4@�;82�3ABCAD9;2D�D9=9H27�A7�:4;�
59AD�;4�;82�&A7;6A<;U�;82�&A7;6A<;�=9X�D2DC<;�;89;�9=4C:;�@64=�9:X�
=4:2X�DC2�46�;89;�=9X�E2<4=2�DC2�&21234526�C:D26�;8A7�k9<A3A;A27�
l2972P��]82�&A7;6A<;p7�6AH8;�;4�977277�3ABCAD9;2D�D9=9H27�A7�97�
A:DA<9;2D�8262A:�9:D�A:��V�����	WP�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

11�123456�7896�:;<8=>�?58@5�756�@A=B7<;@78A=�AC�756�D<AE6@7�8B�
:6FGH6:�CA<�@G;B6�GB�56<68=GC76<�BI6@8C86:�9GH�6J76=:�756�7896�AC�
@A9IF678A=�CA<�G�<6GBA=GKF6�7896�GB�756�%8B7<8@7�9GH�><G=7L���

11M3 N"���!����	#�O��"�	�����		

%606FAI6<�?8FF�@G;B6�756�D<AE6@7�7A�K6�@A=B7<;@76:�?8758=�756�P(D�GB�B67�CA<75�
G=:�:6C8=6:�8=�756�P(D�I<A08B8A=B�8=��O�����	�Q�G=:�%606FAI6<�?8FF�=A7�B66R�
G::878A=GF�@A9I6=BG78A=�C<A9�%8B7<8@7�8=�6J@6BB�AC�75G7�G9A;=7L�

11�3 # ��S����� !�		

TC�756�%)U�<6V;8<6B�@5G=>6B�7A�756�WA=7<G@7�%A@;96=7B�B;K98776:�KH�%8B7<8@7�
7A�%606FAI6<X�G=:�75AB6�@5G=>6B�@5G=>6�756�@A=B7<;@78A=�@AB7B�G=:YA<�
@A=B7<;@78A=�7896�CA<�756�D<AE6@7X�756=�75AB6�@5G=>6:�@AB7B�A<�7896�?8FF�K6�
5G=:F6:�GB�G�9A:8C8@G78A=�I;<B;G=7�7A�756�I<A08B8A=B�AC��O�����	ZL��

11[3 
�� �	 � �\���!��	 # !�� ��!�	 �!�	 �!S �����!�	 �]	
Z�\�����!�	 S	̂!�"������	_����� !�	

458B�D<AE6@7�8B�B;KE6@7�7A�FGKA<�@A9IF8G=@6�9A=87A<8=>�G=:�6=CA<@696=7�KH�756�
%6IG<796=7�AC�T=:;B7<8GF�̀6FG78A=B�I;<B;G=7�7A�aGKA<�WA:6�B6@78A=�/bb/L-�G=:�
487F6�+�AC�756�WGF8CA<=8G�WA:6�AC� 6̀>;FG78A=BL�%606FAI6<�BI6@8C8@GFFH�
G@R=A?F6:>6B�G=:�;=:6<B7G=:B�75G7�87�B5GFF�I6<CA<9�756�&A<R�AC�758B�WA=7<G@7�
?58F6�@A9IFH8=>�?875�GFF�756�GIIF8@GKF6�I<A08B8A=B�AC�%808B8A=�cX�DG<7�bX�W5GI76<�
/X�AC�756�aGKA<�WA:6L�

d13 #��!��!�!��			

eAFFA?8=>�:6F806<H�AC�IABB6BB8A=�AC�756�D<AE6@7�KH�%606FAI6<�7A�%8B7<8@7X�756�<6IG8<X�
89I<A0696=7X�<6IFG@696=7�G=:�9G8=76=G=@6�AC�756�D<AE6@7�G=:�756�)876�B5GFF�K6�G7�756�BAF6�
@AB7�G=:�6JI6=B6�G=:�756�BAF6�<6BIA=B8K8F87H�AC�756�%8B7<8@7X�B;KE6@7�A=FH�7A�GFF�I;=@5�F8B7�8769B�
G=:�?G<<G=786B�G>G8=B7�:6C6@7B�8=�9G76<8GFB�G=:�?A<R9G=B58I�AC�%606FAI6<�GB�I<A08:6:�8=�
�O�����	ZL��456�%8B7<8@7�B5GFF�IGH�CA<�A<�A756<?8B6�G<<G=>6�CA<�756�IGH96=7�AC�756�@AB7�AC�756�
<6IG8<�G=:�<6IFG@696=7�AC�756�D<AE6@7�<6B;F78=>�C<A9�A<:8=G<H�?6G<�G=:�76G<L��456�%8B7<8@7�
?G806B�756�K6=6C87B�AC�B;KB6@78A=B�/�G=:�c�AC�)6@78A=�/f*c�AC�756�WGF8CA<=8G�W808F�WA:6X�K;7�
B;@5�?G806<�B5GFF�=A7�F8987�G=H�AC�756�<8>57B�AC�756�%8B7<8@7�;=:6<�756�76<9B�AC�758B�eG@8F8786B�
a6GB6L�

213 g��������			

eAFFA?8=>�:6F806<H�AC�IABB6BB8A=�AC�756�D<AE6@7�KH�%606FAI6<�7A�%8B7<8@7X�756�@AB7�G=:�6JI6=B6B�
CA<�GFF�;78F87H�B6<08@6BX�8=@F;:8=>X�K;7�=A7�F89876:�7AX�6F6@7<8@87HX�=G7;<GF�>GBX�76F6I5A=6X�?G76<X�
B6?6<X�7<GB5�<69A0GFX�@GKF6�76F608B8A=X�EG=87A<8GF�B6<08@6X�B6@;<87HX�56G78=>X�?G76<X�8=76<=67�
B6<08@6X�:G7G�7<G=B98BB8A=X�G=:�GFF�A756<�;78F8786B�AC�G=H�7HI6�B5GFF�K6�IG8:�KH�%8B7<8@7L�

�13 h�O��	�!�	i����	̂�\ ���� !�			

UFF�G:�0GFA<69�<6GF�I<AI6<7H�7GJ6BX�BI6@8GF�7GJ6BX�IABB6BBA<H�8=76<6B7�7GJ6BX�KA=:B�G=:�BI6@8GF�
F86=�GBB6BB96=7B�A<�A756<�89IAB878A=B�AC�G=H�R8=:�?875�<6BI6@7�7A�756�D<AE6@7X�756�)876�G=:�756�
89I<A0696=7B�756<6A=X�@5G<>6:�7A�A<�89IAB6:�;IA=�68756<�%606FAI6<�A<�756�%8B7<8@7�A<�7568<�
<6BI6@7806�8=76<6B7B�A<�6B7G76B�8=�756�D<AE6@7X�B5GFF�G7�GFF�7896B�K6�IG8:�KH�%8B7<8@7L��T=�756�
606=7�G=H�IABB6BBA<H�8=76<6B7�7GJ�8B�F6086:�A=�%606FAI6<X�87B�B;@@6BBA<B�G=:�GBB8>=BX�KH�08<7;6�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23�4567�89:6;646<7�=<97<�2>�45<�*64<�=<97<?�&674>6:4�759;;�@9A�7B:5�@277<772>A�6C4<><74�49D�E6><:4;A?�
63�@2776F;<?�2>�759;;�><6GFB>7<�&<1<;2@<>?�647�7B::<772>7�9CE�9776HC7�32>�45<�3B;;�9G2BC4�45<><23�
I6456C�32>4AJ361<�K./L�E9A7�934<>�@><7<C49462C�23�@>223�23�@9AG<C4�FA�&<1<;2@<>M�

NOP Q"�#��"��	

NOPR����!S��T�	Q"�#��"��			

&<1<;2@<>�759;;�:2G@;A�I645�45<�6C7B>9C:<�><UB6><G<C47�97�6CE6:94<E�5<><�9CE�6C�
�V�����	RO�

NOOP �!��������	W�"����	
�������X	�"�	Y#�!�!����	
�������X	
Q"�#��"��			

NOOOP&<1<;2@<>�759;;�@>2:B><�9CE�G96C496C?�EB>6CH�45<�;63<�23�
45<�Z>2[<:4?�\2GG<>:69;�]<C<>9;�=69F6;64A�̂C7B>9C:<�9CE�_B42G2F6;<�
=69F6;64A�̂C7B>9C:<�4594�759;;�@>24<:4�&<1<;2@<>?�&674>6:4?�647�̀29>E�
)<GF<>7?�<G@;2A<<7?�9H<C47?�\2C74>B:462C�)9C9H<>K7L?�Z>2[<:4�
)9C9H<>K7L?�Z>2[<:4�̂C7@<:42>K7L?�9CE�_>:564<:4K7L�3>2G�9;;�:;96G7�32>�
F2E6;A�6C[B>A?�@>2@<>4A�E9G9H<?�@<>72C9;�6C[B>A?�E<945?�9E1<>4676CH�
6C[B>A?�9CE�G<E6:9;�@9AG<C47�9>676CH�3>2G?�2>�6C�:2CC<:462C�I645?�
2@<>9462C7�BCE<>�45<�Z>2[<:4M��a567�:21<>9H<�759;;�F<�@>216E<E�6C�9�
32>G�94�;<974�97�F>29E�97�̂C7B>9C:<�*<>16:<7�K̂*bL�82>G�\]�--�-0�
00�,,M��&<1<;2@<>�759;;�<C7B><�4594�Z>2EB:47�=69F6;64A�9CE�\2G@;<4<E�
b@<>9462C7�:21<>9H<?�86><�&9G9H<�=69F6;64A�:21<>9H<?�9CE�
_B42G2F6;<�=69F6;64A�:21<>9H<�6C:;BE6CH�2IC<E?�C2CJ2IC<E?�9CE�
56><E�9B42G2F6;<7?�9><�6C:;BE<E�I6456C�45<�9F21<�@2;6:6<7�9CE�94�45<�
><UB6><E�;6G647?�2>�&<1<;2@<>�759;;�@>2:B><�9CE�G96C496C�45<7<�
:21<>9H<7�7<@9>94<;AM�

NOOOcP&<1<;2@<>d7�E<EB:46F;<�2>�7<;3J6C7B><E�><4<C462C�32>�647�
\2GG<>:69;�]<C<>9;�=69F6;64A�̂C7B>9C:<�@2;6:A�759;;�C24�<D:<<E�361<�
452B79CE�E2;;9>7�Ke/?---L�32>�E<EB:46F;<�2>�4I<C4AJ361<�452B79CE�
E2;;9>7�Kef/?---L�32>�7<;3J6C7B><E�><4<C462C?�><7@<:461<;A?�BC;<77�
9@@>21<E�6C�I>646CH�FA�&674>6:4M�

NOOOgP_;;�7B:5�@2;6:6<7�759;;�F<�I>644<C�2C�9C�2::B>><C:<�32>GM�

NOOcP �V����	
�������X	Q"�#��"��	

NOOcOP̂3�&<1<;2@<>d7�BCE<>;A6CH�@2;6:A�;6G647�9><�;<77�459C�
><UB6><E?�7BF[<:4�42�0/M0MfM+�F<;2I?�&<1<;2@<>�G9A�@>2:B><�9CE�
G96C496C?�EB>6CH�45<�;63<�23�45<�Z>2[<:4?�9C�hD:<77�=69F6;64A�̂C7B>9C:<�
Z2;6:A�42�G<<4�45<�@2;6:A�;6G64�><UB6><G<C47�23�45<�><UB6><E�@2;6:6<7�
6C�2>E<>�42�794673A?�6C�9HH><H94<�I645�647�BCE<>;A6CH�@2;6:A?�45<�
6C7B>9C:<�><UB6><G<C47�5<><6CM��	

NOOcOcPa5<><�759;;�F<�C2�H9@�F<4I<<C�45<�@<>�2::B>><C:<�9G2BC4�
23�9CA�BCE<>;A6CH�@2;6:A�9CE�45<�749>4�23�45<�:21<>9H<�BCE<>�45<�
hD:<77�=69F6;64A�̂C7B>9C:<�Z2;6:AM��_CA�hD:<77�=69F6;64A�̂C7B>9C:<�
Z2;6:A�759;;�@>24<:4�&<1<;2@<>?�&674>6:4?�647� 2̀9>E�)<GF<>7?�
<G@;2A<<7?�9H<C47?�\2C74>B:462C�)9C9H<>K7L?�Z>2[<:4�)9C9H<>K7L?�
Z>2[<:4�̂C7@<:42>K7L?�9CE�_>:564<:4K7L�6C�9G2BC47�9CE�6C:;BE6CH�45<�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

2341565476�86�69:�;43:<�57��=�����	>	87?@43�:<9�*A22B9C97:83D�
E47?5:5476�F5;�87DGH�87?�:<8:�I4C2B596�J5:<�8BB�39KA539C97:6�;43�
E4CC93I58B�L97938B�M58N5B5:D�87?�OA:4C4N5B9�M58N5B5:D�87?�
PC2B4D936Q�M58N5B5:D�R76A387I9S	

TUUVUWXY<9�&56:35I:H�57�5:6�64B9�?56I39:547H�C8D�8II92:�:<9�PZI966�
M58N5B5:D�R76A387I9�[4B5ID�:<8:�N357\6�&919B4293Q6�235C83D�B5C5:6�:4�
:<9�C575CAC�39KA539C97:6�<93957S	

TUUWX ]#��!"�����!�			

&919B4293�6<8BB�39KA539�5:6�*ANI47:38I:43F6GH�5;�87DH�:4�234IA39�87?�C857:857�
E4CC93I58B�L97938B�M58N5B5:D�R76A387I9H�OA:4C4N5B9�M58N5B5:D�R76A387I9H�87?�
PZI966�M58N5B5:D�R76A387I9�F5;�*ANI47:38I:43�9B9I:6�:4�68:56;DH�57�283:H�:<9�
576A387I9�39KA539?�<93957�ND�234IA357\�87?�C857:85757\�87�PZI966�M58N5B5:D�
R76A387I9�[4B5IDG�J5:<�C575CAC�B5C5:6�8:�B986:�9KA8B�:4�:<9�8C4A7:�39KA539?�4;�
&919B4293�9ZI92:�J<939�6C8BB93�C575CAC�B5C5:6�839�293C5::9?�86�69:�;43:<�
N9B4JS	

TUU�X ^!�_���̀	�!�a�"����!"	�"�	��a�!b��̀�	
�������b	c"�#��"��	

TUU�UXR7�8II43?87I9�J5:<�2341565476�4;�69I:547�+d--�4;�:<9�
E8B5;43758�M8N43�E4?9H�&919B4293�87?�9193D�*ANI47:38I:43�6<8BB�N9�
39KA539?�:4�69IA39�:<9�28DC97:�4;�I4C29768:547�:4�5:6�9C2B4D996S	

TUU�UVX&919B4293�6<8BB�234IA39�87?�C857:857H�?A357\�:<9�B5;9�4;�
:<9�[34e9I:H�'43f936Q�E4C29768:547�R76A387I9�87?�PC2B4D93Q6�
M58N5B5:D�R76A387I9�;43�8BB�4;�5:6�9C2B4D996�97\8\9?�57�J43f�A7?93�
:<9�[34e9I:H�47@43�8:�:<9�*5:9�4;�:<9�[34e9I:S��Y<56�I41938\9�6<8BB�
I4193H�8:�8�C575CACH�C9?5I8B�87?�6A3\5I8B�:398:C97:H�?568N5B5:D�
N979;5:6H�39<8N5B5:8:547�:<9382DH�87?�6A3151436g�?98:<�N979;5:6S��
&919B4293�6<8BB�39KA539�5:6�*ANI47:38I:43F6GH�5;�87DH�:4�234IA39�87?�
C857:857�'43f936Q�E4C29768:547�R76A387I9�87?�PC2B4D93Q6�M58N5B5:D�
R76A387I9�;43�8BB�9C2B4D996�4;�*ANI47:38I:43F6GS��O7D�IB866�4;�
9C2B4D99�43�9C2B4D996�74:�I41939?�ND�8�*ANI47:38I:43Q6�576A387I9�
6<8BB�N9�I41939?�ND�&919B4293Q6�576A387I9S��R;�87D�IB866�4;�9C2B4D99�
43�9C2B4D996�97\8\9?�57�'43f�47�:<9�[34e9I:H�47�43�8:�:<9�*5:9�4;�
:<9�[34e9I:H�56�74:�234:9I:9?�A7?93�:<9�'43f936Q�E4C29768:547�
R76A387I9H�&919B4293�6<8BB�23415?9H�43�6<8BB�I8A69�8�*ANI47:38I:43�
:4�23415?9H�8?9KA8:9�576A387I9�I41938\9�;43�:<9�234:9I:547�4;�87D�
9C2B4D99F6G�74:�4:<93J569�234:9I:9?�N9;439�87D�4;�:<469�
9C2B4D99F6G�I4CC97I9�J43fS	

TUUTX h#�����i�	j��_	c"�#��"��k	h#�����i�	j��_	lm��	j��_n	c"�#��"��	

TUUTUX&919B4293�6<8BB�234IA39�87?�C857:857H�A7:5B�*AN6:87:58B�
E4C2B9:547H�oA5B?93Q6�p56f�FE4A369�4;�E476:3AI:547GH�43�65C5B83�;536:�
283:D�234293:D�I41938\9�8II92:8NB9�:4�:<9�&56:35I:H�566A9?�47�8�
392B8I9C97:�I46:�18BA9�N8656S��Y<9�I46:�6<8BB�N9�I47656:97:�J5:<�:<9�
:4:8B�392B8I9C97:�I46:�4;�8BB�576A38NB9�'43f�4;�:<9�[34e9I:�57IBA?9?�
J5:<57�:<9�E47:38I:�&4IAC97:6S��E41938\9�56�:4�576A39�8\8576:�8BB�
356f6�4;�8II5?97:8B�2<D65I8B�B466�87?�6<8BB�57IBA?9�J5:<4A:�B5C5:8:547�
:<9�2935B6�4;�187?8B56C�87?@43�C8B5I54A6�C56I<59;�FN4:<�J5:<4A:�87D�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

2343565378�9:;69<38;�16=68=>�79�7==?@68=>AB�C@938D2:9�2:6D6;:B�=3132�
6?5E7935>B�5E:F5B�C783=�<3C5?9G68=:B�:695EH?6D:B�F277<B�=7226@C:B�
I38<B�9638B�<?C5B�F39:B�I69B�5:99793C4B�23;E5838;B�C47D:B�68<�937538;J��
K71:96;:�CE622�38=2?<:�<:G93C�9:47162B�<:47235378B�38=9:6C:<�=7C5C�
<?:�57�:8F79=:4:85�7F�622�6@@23=6G2:�79<3868=:C�68<L79�26IC�38�5E:�
9:@639�68<�9:@26=:4:85�7F�<646;:<�68<�?8<646;:<�@795378C�7F�5E:�
@97@:95>B�68<�9:6C786G2:�=7C5C�F79�5E:�M9=E35:=5NC�68<�:8;38::938;�
C:913=:C�68<�:O@:8C:C�9:H?39:<�6C�6�9:C?25�7F�68>�38C?9:<�27CC�?@78�
5E:�'79D�68<�P97Q:=5B�38=2?<38;�=74@2:5:<�'79D�68<�'79D�38�
@97;9:CCB�57�5E:�F?22�38C?96G2:�162?:�5E:9:7FJ	

RSS�T �!��#��!"	
�������U	V"�#��"��	

RSS�ST&:1:27@:9�CE622�@97=?9:�68<�46385638�P722?5378�W36G3235>�
X8C?968=:�5E65�CE622�@975:=5�&:1:27@:9B�&3C593=5B�K78C59?=5378�
)686;:9YCAB�P97Q:=5�X8C@:=579YCAB�68<�M9=E35:=5YCA�F974�622�=2634C�F79�
G7<32>�38Q?9>B�@97@:95>�<646;:B�38=2?<38;�865?962�9:C7?9=:�<646;:B�
=2:68?@�=7C5CB�9:47162B�C5796;:B�<3C@7C62B�68<L79�?C:�7F�5E:�
@722?5685�693C38;�F974�7@:965378C�?8<:9�5E3C�Z6=32353:C�W:6C:B�68<�
<:F:8C:B�38=2?<38;�=7C5C�68<�:O@:8C:C�38=?99:<�38�5E:�381:C53;65378B�
<:F:8C:B�79�C:552:4:85�7F�=2634CJ��K71:96;:�CE622�6@@2>�57�C?<<:8�
68<L79�;96<?62�@722?5378�=78<35378C�9:C?2538;�F974�5E:�:C=6@:�79�
9:2:6C:�7F�C47D:B�16@79CB�F?4:CB�6=3<CB�62D623CB�57O3=�=E:43=62CB�
23H?3<CB�79�;6C:CB�865?962�;6CB�I6C5:�465:9362CB�79�75E:9�39935685CB�
=7856438685CB�79�@722?5685CB�38=2?<38;�6CG:C57CJ��[E3C�=71:96;:�CE622�
G:�@9713<:<�38�6�F794�65�2:6C5�6C�G976<�6C�X8C?968=:�*:913=:C�\FF3=:CB�
X8=J�YX*\A�Z794�K]�̂.0/B�79�&:1:27@:9�CE622�@97=?9:�68<�46385638�
5E:C:�=71:96;:C�C:@6965:2>J�

RSS�S_T&:1:27@:9�I699685C�5E65�68>�9:5976=531:�<65:�6@@23=6G2:�
57�=71:96;:�?8<:9�5E:�@723=>�CE622�@9:<65:�5E:�̀FF:=531:�&65:�7F�5E3C�
Z6=32353:C�W:6C:�68<�5E65�=78538?7?C�=71:96;:�I322�G:�46385638:<�79�
68�:O5:8<:<�9:@79538;�79�<3C=71:9>�@:937<�I322�G:�:O:9=3C:<�F79�6�
@:937<�7F�5E9::�Y+A�>:69CB�G:;38838;�F974�5E:�534:�5E65�5E:�'79D�
?8<:9�5E:�K78596=5�3C�=74@2:5:<J�

RSS�SaTXF�&:1:27@:9�3C�9:C@78C3G2:�F79�9:47138;�68>�@722?5685C�
F974�6�C35:B�5E:8�&:1:27@:9�CE622�:8C?9:�5E65�M8>�M?57B�38=2?<38;�
7I8:<B�878b7I8:<B�68<�E39:<B�69:�38=2?<:<�I35E38�5E:�6G71:�@723=3:C�
68<�65�5E:�9:H?39:<�23435CB�57�=71:9�35C�6?5747G32:�:O@7C?9:�F79�
5968C@79538;�5E:�@722?5685C�F974�5E:�C35:�57�68�6@@971:<�<3C@7C62�
C35:J��[E3C�=71:96;:�CE622�38=2?<:�5E:�)7579�K6993:9�M=5�̀8<79C:4:85B�
)K*�c-J�

RSSdT e�������	V"�#��"��	

RSSdST[E:�̀8535>�CE622�E61:�38�@26=:�68�f4G9:226�P723=>�38�5E:�
647?85�7F�ĝ -B---B---J��[E:�@723=>�CE622�G:�hZ7227I38;�Z794i�38�
:O=:CC�7F�5E:�6G71:�=6@5378:<�@723=3:C�68<�'79D:9CN�K74@:8C65378�
4̀@27>:9NC�W36G3235>J��̀13<:8=:�7F�5E3C�=71:96;:�CE622�G:�@9713<:<�78�
5E:�=:953F3=65:�7F�38C?968=:J�

	



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

1231345 ��  6	 6	��������	 6	7!�"��!��	�!�	8����	9�:"�����!��	
�!� �����!��	�!�	�����6������	

123134315%;0;<=>;?�@AB<<�C=D�E=FF;CE;�&=?G�C=?�@AB<<�HD�B<<=I�BCJ�
)KLE=CD?BED=?�D=�E=FF;CE;�&=?G�=C�DA;�M?=N;EDO�KCDH<�%;0;<=>;?�
BCP�HD@�)KLE=CD?BED=?Q@R�AB0;�>?=EK?;P�B<<�?;SKH?;P�HC@K?BCE;�BCP�
%;0;<=>;?�AB@�P;<H0;?;P�HC�PK><HEBD;�D=�DA;�%H@D?HED�E=F><;D;�
;CP=?@;F;CD@�Q=?�;CDH?;�HC@K?BCE;�>=<HEH;@R�BCP�E;?DHTHEBD;@�
HCPHEBDHCU�DA;�?;SKH?;P�E=0;?BU;@�AB0;�L;;C�=LDBHC;PO�BCP�DA;�
%H@D?HED�AB@�B>>?=0;P�DA;@;�P=EKF;CD@V	

12313435WCP=?@;F;CD@O�E;?DHTHEBD;@O�BCP�HC@K?BCE;�>=<HEH;@�@AB<<�
HCE<KP;�DA;�T=<<=IHCUX	

1231343315 Y�E<BK@;�@DBDHCU�DA;�T=<<=IHCUO�=?�=DA;?�
<BCUKBU;�BEE;>DBL<;�D=�DA;�%H@D?HEDX	

Z[AH@�>=<HEJ�@AB<<�C=D�L;�EBCE;<;P�BCP�DA;�E=0;?BU;�
BF=KCD@�@AB<<�C=D�L;�?;PKE;P�KCDH<�C=DHE;�AB@�L;;C�FBH<;P�
D=�%H@D?HEDO�Y?EAHD;EDO�BCP�\=C@D?KEDH=C�(BCBU;?�@DBDHCU�
PBD;�=T�EBCE;<<BDH=C�LJ�DA;�HC@K?BCE;�EB??H;?V��%BD;�=T�
EBCE;<<BDH=C�FBJ�C=D�L;�<;@@�DABC�DAH?DJ�Q*,R�PBJ@�BTD;?�
PBD;�=T�FBH<HCU�C=DHE;V]�

123134335 B̂CUKBU;�@DBDHCU�HC�>B?DHEK<B?�DA=@;�
HC@K?;PO�;_D;CD�=T�HC@K?BCE;O�<=EBDH=C�BCP�=>;?BDH=C�D=�
IAHEA�HC@K?BCE;�B>><H;@O�;_>H?BDH=C�PBD;O�D=�IA=F�
EBCE;<<BDH=C�C=DHE;�IH<<�L;�@;CDO�BCP�<;CUDA�=T�C=DHE;�
>;?H=PV��

1231343̀5Y<<�;CP=?@;F;CD@O�E;?DHTHEBD;@�BCP�HC@K?BCE;�>=<HEH;@�@AB<<�
@DBD;�DABD�%H@D?HEDO�HD@�a=B?P�(;FL;?@O�;F><=J;;@�BCP�BU;CD@O�
\=C@D?KEDH=C�(BCBU;?Q@RO�M?=N;ED�(BCBU;?Q@RO�bC@>;ED=?Q@R�BCP�
Y?EAHD;EDQ@R�B?;�CBF;P�BPPHDH=CB<�HC@K?;P@�KCP;?�B<<�>=<HEH;@�;_E;>D�
&=?G;?@c�\=F>;C@BDH=C�bC@K?BCE;�BCP�WF><=J;?@c� ĤBLH<HDJ�
bC@K?BCE;V��	

1231343�5Y<<�;CP=?@;F;CD@�@AB<<�IBH0;�BCJ�?HUAD�D=�@KL?=UBDH=C�
BUBHC@D�BCJ�=T�DA;�CBF;P�BPPHDH=CB<�HC@K?;P@V��

123134325%;0;<=>;?c@�BCP�)KLE=CD?BED=?@c�HC@K?BCE;�>=<HEJQ@R�@AB<<�
L;�>?HFB?J�BCP�C=CdE=CD?HLKD=?J�D=�BCJ�HC@K?BCE;�=?�@;<TdHC@K?BCE;�
FBHCDBHC;P�LJ�%H@D?HEDO�HD@�a=B?P�(;FL;?@O�;F><=J;;@�BCPe=?�
BU;CD@O�DA;�)DBD;�=T�\B<HT=?CHBO�\=C@D?KEDH=C�(BCBU;?Q@RO�M?=N;ED�
(BCBU;?Q@RO�bC@>;ED=?Q@RO�BCPe=?�Y?EAHD;EDQ@RV���

1231343�5 %;0;<=>;?c@�HC@K?BCE;�<HFHD�@AB<<�B>><J�@;>B?BD;<J�D=�
;BEA�HC@K?;P�BUBHC@D�IA=F�B�E<BHF�H@�FBP;�=?�@KHD�H@�L?=KUADV�

1231343f5g=�>=<HEJ�@AB<<�L;�BF;CP;PO�EBCE;<;PO�=?�F=PHTH;PO�BCP�
DA;�E=0;?BU;�BF=KCD@�@AB<<�C=D�L;�?;PKE;PO�KCDH<�%;0;<=>;?�=?�
%;0;<=>;?c@�L?=G;?�AB@�>?=0HP;P�I?HDD;C�C=DHE;�D=�%H@D?HEDO�Y?EAHD;EDO�
BCP�\=C@D?KEDH=C�(BCBU;?�@DBDHCU�PBD;�=T�DA;�BF;CPF;CDO�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23456578953:;�78:7<==8953:�3>�><4?7953:;�8:4�8�4<@7>5A953:�36�9B<�
7B8:C<D��&89<�36�82<:42<:9;�23456578953:;�78:7<==8953:�3>�><4?7953:�
28E�:39�F<�=<@@�9B8:�9B5>9E�G+-H�48E@�869<>�489<�36�285=5:C�:3957<D�

�IJ�JKJKLM:@?>8:7<�N>599<:�3:�8�O7=852@�284<P�F8@5@�@B8==�F<�
><9>387951<�93�8�489<�9B89�735:754<@�N59B�3>�A><7<4<@�&<1<=3A<>Q@�
7322<:7<2<:9�36�'3>R;�5:7=?45:C�@?F@<S?<:9�A3=575<@�A?>7B8@<4�8@�
><:<N8=@�3>�><A=87<2<:9@D��*854�A3=57E�5@�93�F<�><:<N<4�FE�&<1<=3A<>�
8:4�8==�*?F73:9>8793>@�63>�8�A<>534�36�651<�G/H�E<8>@�63==3N5:C�
732A=<953:�36�9B<�'3>R�3>�9<>25:8953:�36�9B5@�T875=595<@�U<8@<D��*?7B�
5:@?>8:7<�2?@9�B81<�9B<�@82<�731<>8C<�8:4�=5259@�8@�9B<�A3=57E�9B89�
N8@�5:�<66<79�4?>5:C�9B<�9<>2�36�9B5@�T875=595<@�U<8@<;�8:4�N5==�731<>�
&<1<=3A<>�8:4�8==�*?F73:9>8793>@�63>�8==�7=852@�284<D	

�IJ�JKJVL&<1<=3A<>Q@�8:4�*?F73:9>8793>@Q�5:@?>8:7<�A3=57EG@H�@B8==�
F<�A>528>E�8:4�:3:W73:9>5F?93>E�93�8:E�5:@?>8:7<�3>�@<=6W5:@?>8:7<�
285:985:<4�FE�&5@9>579;�59@�X38>4�)<2F<>@;�<2A=3E<<@�8:4Y3>�
8C<:9@;�9B<�*989<�36�Z8=563>:58;�Z3:@9>?7953:�)8:8C<>G@H;�[>3\<79�
)8:8C<>G@H;�M:@A<793>G@H;�8:4Y3>�]>7B59<79G@HD���

�IJ�JKJ��L]==�<:43>@<2<:9@�@B8==�N851<�8:E�>5CB9�93�@?F>3C8953:�
8C85:@9�8:E�36�9B<�:82<4�8445953:8=�5:@?><4@D��

�IJ�JKJ��L]==�A3=575<@�@B8==�F<�N>599<:�3:�8:�377?>><:7<�63>2D��

�IJ�JKJ�L]==�36�&<1<=3A<>Q@�5:@?>8:7<�@B8==�F<�N59B�5:@?>8:7<�
732A8:5<@�N59B�8:�]D)D�X<@9�>895:C�36�:3�=<@@�9B8:�]̂�_MD��

�IJ�JKJ�̀ LaB<�5:@?>8:7<�><S?5><2<:9@�@<9�63>9B�B<><5:�@B8==�5:�:3�
N8E�=5259�&<1<=3A<>Q@�=58F5=59E�8>5@5:C�3?9�36�3>�><=895:C�93�9B<�
A<>63>28:7<�36�9B<�'3>R�3>�><=89<4�87951595<@D��

�IJ�JKJ��LT85=?><�36�&<1<=3A<>�8:4Y3>�59@�*?F73:9>8793>G@H�93�
732A=E�N59B�9B<�5:@?>8:7<�><S?5><2<:9@�B<><5:�@B8==�F<�4<<2<4�8�
289<>58=�F><87B�36�9B<�T875=595<@�U<8@<�8:4�73:@959?9<�8�&<68?=9�FE�
&<1<=3A<>�A?>@?8:9�93�9B5@�T875=595<@�U<8@<D��

�

bcd)]Me&dc�fT�[]gd�MeadeaMfe]UUh�UdTa�XU]e(i�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

1231345 6!�"��!��	� ���7	
�����			

89:�;<=<>?�@A�<B?CDEBF:�?9E;;�B@>�G:�;:??�>9EB�>9:�A@;;@H<BI�E=@CB>?J	

KL((MNKOPQ�RMSMNPQ�
QOPTOQO8U�

VD@WCF>�Q<EG<;<>X�EBW�
K@=Y;:>:W�LY:DE><@B?Z�
[<D:�%E=EI:�Q<EG<;<>X�\�
)Y;<>�Q<=<>�

]*Z,,,Z,,,�Y:D�@FFCDD:BF:̂�
]_Z,,,Z,,,�EBBCE;�EIID:IE>:�
�
)CGF@B>DEF>@D?�̀@0:D�/,abJ�
]/Z,,,Z,,,�Y:D�@FFCDD:BF:̂�
]cZ,,,Z,,,�EBBCE;�EIID:IE>:�
�

MdKM))�QOPTOQO8U�
�
�
�

� %:0:;@Y:DJ��]*.Z,,,Z,,,�Y:D�
@FFCDD:BF:̂�]*.Z,,,Z,,,�
EBBCE;�EIID:IE>:�
�
)CGF@B>DEF>@D?�̀@0:D�/,abJ�
].Z,,,Z,,,�Y:D�@FFCDD:BF:̂�
].Z,,,Z,,,�EBBCE;�EIID:IE>:�
�

Pe8L(LTOQM�QOPTOQO8U�\�
PSU�Pe8L�
�

K@=G<B:W�)<BI;:�Q<=<>� ]*Z,,,Z,,,�̀;<=<>?�=EX�G:�=:>�
H<>9�MfF:??�Q<EG<;<>X�V@;<FX�
D:gC<D:W�9:D:<Bb�

&LN'MN)h�
KL(VMS)P8OLS�
�

� )>E>C>@DX�;<=<>?�YCD?CEB>�>@�
)>E>:�;EH�

M(VQLUMNh)�QOPTOQO8U�
�

� ]/Z,,,Z,,,�

TeOQ%MNh)�NO)'�̀KLeN)M�
L[�KLS)8NeK8OLSb�

� N:Y;EF:=:B>�K@?>�

VLQQe8OLS�QOPTOQO8U� � ]cZ,,,Z,,,�Y:D�@FFCDD:BF:̂�
]cZ,,,Z,,,�EBBCE;�EIID:IE>:�

e=GD:;;E�V@;<FX� � 89:�MB><>X�?9E;;�9E0:�<B�Y;EF:�
EB�e=GD:;;E�V@;<FX�<B�>9:�
E=@CB>�@A�]c,Z,,,Z,,,i��89:�
Y@;<FX�?9E;;�G:�j[@;;@H<BI�
[@D=k�<B�:fF:??�@A�>9:�EG@0:�
FEY><@B:W�Y@;<F<:?�EBW�&@Dl:D?h�
K@=Y:B?E><@B�M=Y;@X:Dh?�
Q<EG<;<>Xi��M0<W:BF:�@A�>9<?�
F@0:DEI:�?9E;;�G:�YD@0<W:W�@B�
>9:�F:D><A<FE>:�@A�<B?CDEBF:i�

�

OA�%:0:;@Y:D�B@D=E;;X�FEDD<:?�<B?CDEBF:�<B�EB�E=@CB>�ID:E>:D�>9EB�>9:�=<B<=C=�
E=@CB>?�D:gC<D:W�GX�%<?>D<F>Z�>9E>�ID:E>:D�E=@CB>�?9E;;�G:F@=:�>9:�=<B<=C=�
D:gC<D:W�E=@CB>�@A�<B?CDEBF:�A@D�YCDY@?:?�@A�>9:�K@B>DEF>i�89:D:A@D:Z�%:0:;@Y:D�
9:D:GX�EFlB@H;:WI:?�EBW�EID::?�>9E>�E;;�<B?CDEBF:�FEDD<:W�GX�<>�?9E;;�G:�W::=:W�
;<EG<;<>X�F@0:DEI:�A@D�E;;�EF><@B?�<>�Y:DA@D=?�<B�F@BB:F><@B�H<>9�>9:�K@B>DEF>i�

�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

�

�

�

234�567689�:;�6<9=>?<@4�;:>�83:94�9=A@:<8>?@8:>9�B3:94�9=A@:<8>?@8�C:49�<:8�4D@44C�
E<4�)6556:<�&:55?>9�FG0H---H---I�93?55�<:8�A4�5499�83?<�834�;:55:B6<J�?7:=<89K�

LE))MNLOPQ��RMSMNPQ�
QOPTOQO2U�

V>:C=@8�Q6?A6568W�?<C�
L:7X5484C�EX4>?86:<9H�
Y6>4�&?7?J4�Q6?A6568W�Z�
*X568�Q6768�

G0H---H---�X4>�
:@@=>>4<@4[�
G\H---H---�6<�
?JJ>4J?84�

M]LM**�QOPTOQO2U� � G0H---H---�X4>�
:@@=>>4<@4[�
G0H---H---�?<<=?5��
?JJ>4J?84�

P̂ 2E)ETOQM�QOPTOQO2U�_�
PSU�P̂ 2E�

L:7A6<4C�*6<J54�Q6768� G0H---H---�

'EN(MN*̀�LE)VMS*P2OES�� *8?8=8:>W�567689�
X=>9=?<8�8:�*8?84�5?B�

M)VQEUMǸ*��QOPTOQO2U� � G0H---H---�

S:8B68398?<C6<J�?<W836<J�6<�8369�Y?@6568649�Q4?94�8:�834�@:<8>?>WH�834�?A:14�
6<9=>?<@4�>4a=6>474<89�7?W�A4�7:C6;64C�?9�?XX>:X>6?84�;:>�9=A@:<8>?@8:>9H�
B683�&698>6@8b9�X>6:>�B>6884<�?XX>:1?5c�

defgh�������i�	j"�#��"��		

deffdg k�"���	j"����#l��!"	j"�#��"��		

&698>6@8�93?55�?8�?55�86749�;>:7�?<C�?;84>�&698>6@8̀9�?@@4X8?<@4�:;�834�V>:m4@8H�;:>�
834�A4<4;68�:;�&698>6@8�?<C�&4145:X4>H�?9�8346>�6<84>4989�7?W�?XX4?>H�7?6<8?6<�
>4<8?5�6<84>>=X86:<�6<9=>?<@4�8:�@:14>�5:99H�8:8?5�:>�X?>86?5H�:;�834�=94�:;�834�
V>:m4@8�C=4�8:�C?7?J4�:>�C498>=@86:<H�6<�?<�?7:=<8�?8�54?98�4a=?5�8:�834�
7?D67=7�49867?84C�Q4?94�V?W74<89�X?W?A54�=<C4>�8369�Y?@6568649�Q4?94�C=>6<J�
834�@=>>4<8�:>�?<W�;=8=>4�8B4<8W_;:=>�F\.I�7:<83�X4>6:Cc��2369�6<9=>?<@4�7?W�
A4�7?6<8?6<4C�?9�X?>8�:;�:>�6<�@:<m=<@86:<�B683�?<W�:834>�6<9=>?<@4�@:14>?J4�
@?>>64C�AW�834�&698>6@8H�?<C�9=@3�6<9=>?<@4�7?W�A4�7?6<8?6<4C�6<�B3:54�:>�6<�
X?>8�6<�834�;:>7�:;�X?>86@6X?86:<�AW�834�&698>6@8�6<�?�m:6<8�X:B4>9�?J4<@W�:>�:834>�
X>:J>?7�X>:16C6<J�X::54C�6<9=>?<@4c��2369�6<9=>?<@4�7?W�<:8�A4�7?6<8?6<4C�6<�
834�;:>7�:;�945;_6<9=>?<@4c���

deffg ��!l���n	j"�#��"��			

&698>6@8�93?55�?8�?55�86749�;>:7�?<C�?;84>�&698>6@8̀9�?@@4X8?<@4�:;�834�V>:m4@8H�
@?>>W�?<C�7?6<8?6<�6<�;:>@4�?�X:56@W�:;�X>:X4>8W�6<9=>?<@4�;:>�0--o�:;�834�
6<9=>?A54�>4X5?@474<8�1?5=4�B683�<:�@:6<9=>?<@4�X4<?58WH�:<�834�*684�?<C�834�
V>:m4@8H�8:J4834>�B683�?55�67X>:1474<89�834>4:<H�=<C4>�?�98?<C?>C�p?55�>69qr�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

12345614�7389573:�6:67384�;288�25�<6=6:>?��%>0>;2@>5�8A6;;�B>�36=><�68�
6<<747236;�73895><8�25�12C73895><8�4A>5>23�BD�E6D�2F�>3<258>=>34?��%7845714�
8A6;;�A60>�4A>�57:A4�42�@52195>�4A>�5>G975><�73895631>�4A529:A�6�H2734�@2E>58�
6:>31D�25�42�8>;FC73895>�6:67384�891A�;288>8�25�@254723�4A>5>2F�68�78�<>>=><�
@59<>34�BD�%7845714?��

I�JK L!���!�M����� !	�!�	N�M�!��	

I�JIKO2�4A>�F9;;>84�>P4>34�@>5=744><�BD�Q6;7F25376�;6ER�%>0>;2@>5�8A6;;�73<>=37FDR�
S>>@�63<�A2;<�A65=;>88�4A>�%7845714R�4A>�T51A74>14U8V�63<�Q23845914723�(636:>5U8VR�
4A>75�5>8@>1470>�12389;46348R�8>@6564>�12345614258R�B265<�=>=B>58R�2FF71>58R�
5>@5>8>346470>8R�6:>348R�63<�>=@;2D>>8R�73�B24A�73<707<96;�63<�2FF7176;�16@61747>8�
UWX3<>=374>>8YVR�6:67384�6;;�89748R�1;67=8R�73H95DR�<6=6:>8R�;288>8R�63<�>P@>38>8�
UWQ;67=8YVR�731;9<73:�B94�324�;7=74><�42�644253>DZ8�F>>8�63<�12848R�1698><�BDR�657873:�
294�2FR�5>89;473:�F52=R�25�7317<>346;�42R�73�EA2;>�25�73�@654R�4A>�@>5F25=631>�2F�4A>�
&25S�93<>5�4A78�Q2345614�BD�%>0>;2@>5�25�748�)9B12345614258R�0>3<258�63<[25�89@@;7>58?��
\2E>0>5R�%>0>;2@>5Z8�73<>=37F7164723�63<�A2;<�A65=;>88�2B;7:64723�8A6;;�B>�5><91><�
BD�4A>�@52@254723�2F�4A>�X3<>=374>>8Z�63<[25�T51A74>14Z8�;76B7;74D�42�4A>�>P4>34�4A>�
Q;67=U8V�78[65>�1698><�EA2;;D�BD�4A>�61470>�3>:;7:>31>�25�E7;;F9;�=78123<914�2F�4A>�
X3<>=374>>8R�63<[25�<>F>148�73�<>87:3�F95378A><�BD�4A>�T51A74>14R�68�F293<�BD�6�12954�
25�65B7456425�2F�12=@>4>34�H9578<714723?��OA78�73<>=37F7164723�63<�A2;<�A65=;>88�
2B;7:64723�2F�%>0>;2@>5�8A6;;�324�B>�1238459><�42�3>:64>R�6B57<:>R�25�24A>5E78>�5><91>�
63D�57:A4�25�2B;7:64723�2F�73<>=374D�4A64�E29;<�24A>5E78>�>P784�25�6578>�68�42�63D�
X3<>=374>>�25�24A>5�@>5823�<>8157B><�A>5>73?��OA78�73<>=37F7164723�63<�A2;<�A65=;>88�
2B;7:64723�731;9<>8R�B94�78�324�;7=74><�42R�63D�F67;95>�25�6;;>:><�F67;95>�BD�%>0>;2@>5�42�
12=@;D�E74A�63D�;6E�63<[25�@52078723�2F�4A>�Q2345614�%219=>348�73�845714�61125<631>�
E74A�4A>75�4>5=8R�63<�E74A294�;7=7464723R�63D�F67;95>�25�6;;>:><�F67;95>�2F�%>0>;2@>58�
2B;7:647238�5>:65<73:�63D�842@�@6D=>34�32471>�6147238�25�;7>38R�731;9<73:�Q707;�&6:>�
63<�]>36;4D�T88>88=>348�63<[25�̂5<>58�BD�4A>�%X_?���

I�JKO2�4A>�F954A>84�>P4>34�@>5=744><�BD�Q6;7F25376�;6ER�%>0>;2@>5�8A6;;�6;82�<>F>3<�
X3<>=374>>8R�64�748�2E3�>P@>38>R�731;9<73:�B94�324�;7=74><�42�644253>D8Z�F>>8�63<�12848R�
6:67384�6;;�Q;67=8�1698><�BDR�657873:�294�2FR�5>89;473:�F52=R�25�7317<>346;�42R�73�EA2;>�
25�73�@654R�4A>�@>5F25=631>�2F�4A>�&25S�93<>5�4A78�̀617;747>8�a>68>�BD�%>0>;2@>5R�748�
)9B12345614258R�0>3<258R�25�89@@;7>58?��\2E>0>5R�E74A294�7=@61473:�%>0>;2@>5Z8�
2B;7:64723�42�@5207<>�63�7==><764>�63<�23:273:�<>F>38>�2F�X3<>=374>>8R�%>0>;2@>5Z8�
<>F>38>�2B;7:64723�8A6;;�B>�5><91><�BD�4A>�@52@254723�2F�4A>�X3<>=374>>8Z�63<[25�
T51A74>14Z8�;76B7;74D�42�4A>�>P4>34�1698><�BD�4A>�82;>�3>:;7:>31>R�61470>�3>:;7:>31>R�25�
E7;;F9;�=78123<914�2F�4A>�X3<>=374>>8R�63<[25�<>F>148�73�<>87:3�F95378A><�BD�4A>�
T51A74>14R�68�F293<�BD�6�12954�25�65B7456425�2F�12=@>4>34�H9578<714723?��OA>�%7845714�8A6;;�
A60>�4A>�57:A4�42�611>@4�25�5>H>14�63D�;>:6;�5>@5>8>3464723�4A64�%>0>;2@>5�@52@28>8�42�
<>F>3<�4A>�X3<>=374>>8?��XF�63D�X3<>=374>>�@5207<>8�748�2E3�<>F>38>�<9>�42�F67;95>�42�
47=>;D�5>8@23<�42�4>3<>5�2F�<>F>38>R�5>H>14723�2F�4>3<>5�2F�<>F>38>R�25�123F;714�2F�
734>5>84�2F�@52@28><�12938>;R�%>0>;2@>5�8A6;;�5>7=B958>�891A�X3<>=374>>�F25�63D�
>P@>3<7495>8?��%>0>;2@>5Z8�<>F>38>�2B;7:64723�8A6;;�324�B>�1238459><�42�3>:64>R�
6B57<:>R�25�24A>5E78>�5><91>�63D�57:A4�25�2B;7:64723�2F�<>F>38>�4A64�E29;<�24A>5E78>�
>P784�68�42�63D�X3<>=374>>�25�24A>5�@>5823�<>8157B><�A>5>73?��%>0>;2@>5Z8�<>F>38>�
2B;7:64723�731;9<>8R�B94�78�324�;7=74><�42R�63D�F67;95>�25�6;;>:><�F67;95>�BD�%>0>;2@>5�42�
12=@;D�E74A�63D�@52078723�2F�;6ER�63D�F67;95>�25�6;;>:><�F67;95>�42�47=>;D�63<�@52@>5;D�
F9;F7;;�6;;�2F�748�2B;7:647238�93<>5�4A>�Q2345614�%219=>348�73�845714�61125<631>�E74A�4A>75�
4>5=8R�63<�E74A294�;7=7464723R�63D�F67;95>�25�6;;>:><�F67;95>�2F�%>0>;2@>5Z8�2B;7:647238�
5>:65<73:�63D�842@�@6D=>34�32471>�6147238�25�;7>38R�731;9<73:�Q707;�&6:>�63<�]>36;4D�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23343354673�869:;<�=<94<3�>?�7@4�&ABC��&414D;E4<�3@8DD�FG14�E<;5E7�6;7GH4�7;�7@4�
&G37<GH7�G6�7@4�41467�;I�86?�JD8G5K3LC���

M�NOP'G7@;Q7�DG5G787G;6�;I�7@4�E<;1G3G;63�@4<4G6R�GI�&414D;E4<S3�;>DGF87G;6�7;�
G69456GI?�869�@;D9�@8<5D433�7@4�A69456G7443�;<�G73�;>DGF87G;6�7;�94I469�A69456G7443�
83�E<;1G949�@4<4G6�3@8DD�>4�9474<5G649�7;�>4�1;G9�;<�Q646I;<H48>D4R�G6�T@;D4�;<�G6�E8<7R�
G7�G3�7@4�G67467G;6�;I�7@4�U8<7G43�7@87�7@434�HG<HQ53786H43�3@8DD�6;7�;7@4<TG34�8II4H7�7@4�
18DG9G7?�;<�46I;<H48>GDG7?�;I�&414D;E4<S3�8F<445467�7;�G69456GI?R�94I469R�869�@;D9�
@8<5D433�7@4�<437�;I�7@4�A69456G7443R�83�E<;1G949�@4<4G6C��VQ<7@4<R�&414D;E4<�3@8DD�>4�
869�<458G6�IQDD?�DG8>D4�;6�G73�8F<4454673�869�;>DGF87G;63�@4<4G6�7;�7@4�IQDD437�4W7467�
E4<5G7749�>?�D8TC�

M�N�PUQ<3Q867�7;�UQ>DGH�J;67<8H7�J;94�34H7G;6�XY-0R�7@4�&G37<GH7�3@8DD�E<;1G94�7G54D?�
6;7GIGH87G;6�7;�&414D;E4<�;I�7@4�<4H4GE7�;I�86?�7@G<9ZE8<7?�JD8G5�<4D87G6F�7;�7@G3�
J;67<8H7C��[@4�&G37<GH7�3@8DD�>4�467G7D49�7;�<4H;14<�G73�<483;68>D4�H;373�G6HQ<<49�G6�
E<;1G9G6F�38G9�6;7GIGH87G;6C�

M�N�PA6�86?�869�8DD�JD8G53�8F8G637�86?�;I�7@4�A69456G7443�>?�86?�45ED;?44�;I�
&414D;E4<R�86?�*Q>H;67<8H7;<R�86?;64�9G<4H7D?�;<�G69G<4H7D?�45ED;?49�>?�86?�;I�7@45�
;<�86?;64�I;<�T@;34�8H73�86?�;I�7@45�58?�>4�DG8>D4R�&414D;E4<S3�G69456GIGH87G;6�
;>DGF87G;6�@4<4G6�3@8DD�6;7�>4�DG5G749�G6�86?�T8?�>?�86?�DG5G787G;6�;6�7@4�85;Q67�;<�
7?E4�;I�9858F43R�H;5E46387G;6R�;<�>464IG73�E8?8>D4�>?�;<�I;<�&414D;E4<�;<�86?�
*Q>H;67<8H7;<�Q694<�T;<\4<3S�H;5E46387G;6�8H73R�9G38>GDG7?�>464IG7�8H73R�;<�;7@4<�
45ED;?44�>464IG7�8H73C�

M�N�P[@4�&G37<GH7�58?�<478G6�3;�5QH@�;I�7@4�5;64?3�9Q4�7;�&414D;E4<�83�3@8DD�>4�
H;63G94<49�64H4338<?R�Q67GD�9G3E;3G7G;6�;I�86?�3QH@�JD8G53�;<�Q67GD�7@4�&G37<GH7R�
2<H@G74H7K3L�869�J;637<QH7G;6�)868F4<K3L�@814�<4H4G149�T<G7746�8F<445467�I<;5�
&414D;E4<�7@87�&414D;E4<�TGDD�Q6H;69G7G;68DD?�94I469�7@4�&G37<GH7R�7@4�2<H@G74H7K3L�869�
J;637<QH7G;6�)868F4<K3LR�7@4G<�<43E4H7G14�;IIGH4<3R�8F4673�869�45ED;?443R�869�E8?�86?�
9858F43�9Q4�>?�<483;6�;I�3477D45467�;<�]Q9F5467C�

M�N̂P&414D;E4<S3�94I4634�869�G69456GIGH87G;6�;>DGF87G;63�@4<4Q694<�3@8DD�3Q<1G14�7@4�
H;5ED47G;6�;I�';<\R�G6HDQ9G6F�7@4�T8<<867?:FQ8<86744�E4<G;9R�869:;<�7@4�74<5G687G;6�
;I�7@4�J;67<8H7C�

M̂ NP ���"�"�	_!���"	

M̂ NMP !̀���	̀�a�"�	bc���	��!%���	_������d			

AIR�I;DD;TG6F�94DG14<?�;I�E;33433G;6�;I�7@4�U<;]4H7�>?�&414D;E4<�7;�&G37<GH7R�8DD�;I�7@4�
U<;]4H7�869�7@4�*G74�G3�78\46�E4<586467D?�Q694<�7@4�E;T4<�;I�45G6467�9;58G6R�7@4�
[4<5�3@8DD�H4834�83�;I�7@4�98?�E;33433G;6�3@8DD�>4�3;�78\46C��	

M̂ NMNMP [@4�IG686HG8D�G674<437�;I�&414D;E4<�3@8DD�>4�DG5G749�7;�7@4�85;Q67�;I�
E<G6HGE8D�E8?54673�EQ<3Q867�7;�7@4�e)U�E<;1G3G;63�G69GH8749�G6��f�����	��7@87�
8<4�7@46�9Q4�;<�E837�9Q4�7;F47@4<�TG7@�8DD�<458G6G6F�869�3QHH449G6F�E<G6HGE8D�
E8?54673�EQ<3Q867�7;�7@4�e)U�E<;1G3G;63�G69GH8749�G6��f�����	��I;<�7@4�
<458G694<�;I�7@4�;<GFG68D�[4<5C��V;<�4W85ED4R�GI�8DD�;I�7@4�U<;]4H7�869�7@4�*G74�
G3�78\46�87�7@4�469�;I�7@4�7@G<9�?48<�;I�7@4�[4<5R�&414D;E4<�3@8DD�>4�467G7D49�7;�
<4H4G14�I<;5�7@4�45G6467�9;58G6�8T8<9�7@4�3Q5�;I�8DD�E<G6HGE8D�E8?54673�
EQ<3Q867�7;�7@4�e)U�E<;1G3G;63�G69GH8749�G6��f�����	��7@87�T;QD9�@814�>446�
;TG6F�I;<�7@4�I;Q<7@�?48<�7@<;QF@�7@4�469�;I�7@4�[4<5�@89�7@4<4�>446�6;�78\G6FC�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

123134 567�89:9;<7�=>�?67�9@9ABC�D>�9;EC�F69::�87�G9DB�?=�?67�%DF?AD<?H���

1234I ���	I�J�!�	��� �	� 	�� $���	K������L			

M>�9::�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�9;B�?67�)D?7�DF�?9P7;�G7AQ9;7;?:E�R;B7A�?67�G=@7A�=>�7QD;7;?�
B=Q9D;�9;B�%707:=G7A�DF�F?D::�G7A>=AQD;S�?67�@=AP�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�9;B�69F�;=?�E7?�
B7:D07A7B�G=FF7FFD=;�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�?=�%DF?AD<?C�?67�57AQ�F69::�<79F7�9F�=>�?67�B9E�
G=FF7FFD=;�F69::�87�F=�?9P7;H��567�>D;9;<D9:�D;?7A7F?�=>�%707:=G7A�F69::�87�?67�9Q=R;?�
%707:=G7A�69F�7TG7;B7B�?=�B9?7�>=A�@=AP�G7A>=AQ7B�=;�?67�NA=O7<?C�FR8O7<?�?=�
B=<RQ7;?9?D=;�A79F=;98:E�F9?DF>9<?=AE�?=�?67�%DF?AD<?H�

123U4�������	I�J�!�			

M>C�>=::=@D;S�B7:D07AE�=>�G=FF7FFD=;�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�8E�%707:=G7A�?=�%DF?AD<?C�:7FF�?69;�9::�
=>�?67�NA=O7<?�9;B�?67�)D?7�DF�?9P7;�G7AQ9;7;?:EC�=A�D>�9::�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�9;B�?67�)D?7�=A�
9;E�G9A?�?67A7=>�DF�?9P7;�?7QG=A9AD:EC�R;B7A�?67�G=@7A�=>�7QD;7;?�B=Q9D;H��

123U314 56DF�V9<D:D?D7F�W79F7�F69::�<=;?D;R7�D;�>R::�>=A<7�9;B�7>>7<?�9;B�F69::�
;=?�87�?7AQD;9?7B�8E�0DA?R7�=>�?69?�G9A?D9:�?9PD;S�9;B�?67�N9A?D7F�@9D07�?67�
87;7>D?�=>�9;E�:9@�?=�?67�<=;?A9AEC�9;B��

123U34 567A7�F69::�87�9�G9A?D9:�989?7Q7;?�=>�9;E�GAD;<DG9:�G9EQ7;?F�
GRAFR9;?�?=�?67�X(N�GA=0DFD=;F�D;BD<9?7B�D;��Y�����	��9F�9�A7FR:?�=>�?67�
9GG:D<9?D=;�=>�?67�;7?�GA=<77BF�=>�9;E�7QD;7;?�B=Q9D;�9@9AB�?=�?67�
GA7G9EQ7;?�=>�?6=F7�G9EQ7;?F�67A7R;B7AH��567�N9A?D7F�9SA77�?=�;7S=?D9?7C�D;�
S==B�>9D?6C�>=A�9;�7ZRD?98:7�FG:D?�=>�?67�;7?�GA=<77BF�=>�9;E�7QD;7;?�B=Q9D;�
9@9AB�9;B�9�<=AA7FG=;BD;S�A7BR<?D=;�D;�?67�G9EQ7;?F�A7ZRDA7B�GRAFR9;?�?=�?67�
X(N�GA=0DFD=;F�D;BD<9?7B�D;��Y�����	�H��

1[34 K�����	�!�	K����"��� !			

M>C�>=::=@D;S�B7:D07AE�=>�G=FF7FFD=;�=>�9::�=A�9�G=A?D=;�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�8E�%707:=G7A�?=�%DF?AD<?C�
?67�NA=O7<?�DF�?=?9::E�=A�G9A?D9::E�B7F?A=E7B�BR7�?=�>DA7C�9<?F�=>�09;B9:DFQC�>:==BC�F?=AQC�
79A?6ZR9P7C�\<?F�=>�X=BC�=A�=?67A�<9FR9:?E�87E=;B�?67�<=;?A=:�=>�7D?67A�G9A?E�67A7?=C�?67�57AQ�
F69::�7;B�9;B�%DF?AD<?�F69::�;=�:=;S7A�87�A7ZRDA7B�?=�Q9P7�9;E�G9EQ7;?F�A7ZRDA7B�GRAFR9;?�?=�
?67�X(N�GA=0DFD=;F�D;BD<9?7B�D;��Y�����	��?69?�9A7�?67;�BR7�=A�G9F?�BR7�=A�9;E�A7Q9D;D;S�9;B�
FR<<77BD;S�GAD;<DG9:�G9EQ7;?F�GRAFR9;?�?=�?67�X(N�GA=0DFD=;F�D;BD<9?7B�D;��Y�����	��>=A�?67�
A7Q9D;B7A�=>�?67�=ADSD;9:�57AQH��	

1]34 �̂�����!�			

1]314M>C�9>?7A�?67�N9A?D7F�6907�7T7<R?7B�?67�(7Q=A9;BRQ�=>�_=QQ7;<7Q7;?�%9?7�
9??9<67B�67A7?=�9F��Y�����	�̀�?67�NA=O7<?�87<=Q7F�B7F?A=E7B�=A�B9Q9S7B�87E=;B�
A7G9DAC�?67�%DF?AD<?�Q9E�B7?7AQD;7�D?F�RF7�=>�?67�NA=O7<?�989?7BH��567A79>?7AC�?67�%DF?AD<?�
F69::�6907�;=�=8:DS9?D=;�?=�Q9P7C�;=A�F69::�%707:=G7A�6907�?67�ADS6?�?=�B7Q9;BC�?67�
W79F7�N9EQ7;?F�9F�D;BD<9?7B�D;�?67�X(N�GA=0DFD=;F�D;BD<9?7B�D;��Y�����	��?=�?6DF�
V9<D:D?D7F�W79F7H��567�57AQ�F69::�<79F7�9?�?69?�?DQ7H�	

1]34567�N9A?D7F�67A78E�9SA77�?69?�?67�;7?�GA=<77BF�=>�?67�%DF?AD<?aF�A7;?9:�
D;?7AARG?D=;�D;FRA9;<7�?69?�?67�%DF?AD<?�QRF?�Q9D;?9D;�BRAD;S�?67�57AQC�9F�A7ZRDA7B�
67A7D;C�F69::�<=;F?D?R?7�9�FG7<D9:�>R;B�>=A�?67�G9EQ7;?�=>�?67�W79F7�N9EQ7;?F�D;BD<9?7B�
D;�?67�X(N�GA=0DFD=;F�D;BD<9?7B�D;��Y�����	�H��	



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23456789�&:;<=:><�;8?@@�?;�;AAB�?;�C=?><:>?D@9�?E<9=�;F>8�919B<G�?CC@H�<89�B9<�C=A>99I;�
AE�:<;�:B;F=?B>9�CA@:>H�:B<9BI9I�<A�>A19=�<8?<�@A;;�JKL9<�M=A>99I;NOG�9:<89=�<AP	

2345426 Q9C?:=�<89�M=AR9><�<A�EF@@�F;9S��

234546 Q9C@?>9�<89�M=AR9><G�?<�<89�&:;<=:><T;�;A@9�>A;<�?BI�9UC9B;9G�V:<8�
C=AC9=<H�AE�9WF?@�A=�X=9?<9=�1?@F9�<A�<89�M=AR9><�:YY9I:?<9@H�C=:A=�<A�<89�<:Y9�
AE�<89�I9;<=F><:AB�A=�I?Y?X9G�?BI�<8?<�=9C@?>9Y9B<G�AB>9�>AYC@9<9IG�;8?@@�D9�
;FD;<:<F<9I�:B�<8:;�Z?>:@:<:9;�[9?;9�DH�?CC=AC=:?<9�9BIA=;9Y9B<\�A=��

2345456 ]U9=>:;9�<89�&:;<=:><T;�CF=>8?;9�AC<:Â_̀ âbcdedfgĥ _̀ _̂iĵklmnon_njp̂
qjlpj�B�?;�:BI:>?<9I�:B�<89�r)M�C=A1:;:AB;�:BI:>?<9I�:B��s�����	��<A�<8:;�
Z?>:@:<:9;�[9?;9S	

234�6789�&:;<=:><�;8?@@�BA<:EH�&919@AC9=�AE�V8:>8�>AF=;9�AE�?><:AB�:<�I9;:=9;�<A�<?t9�
V:<8:B�<8:=<H�J+-O�I?H;�?E<9=�<89�A>>F==9B>9�AE�<89�I9;<=F><:AB�A=�I?Y?X9S��789�L9<�
M=A>99I;�AE�?@@�:B;F=?B>9�C?H?D@9�V:<8�=9;C9><�<A�<89�M=AR9><�;8?@@�D9�?1?:@?D@9�<A�<89�
&:;<=:><�?BI�;8?@@�D9�F;9I�<A�I:;>8?=X9�<89�&:;<=:><u;�AD@:X?<:AB;�FBI9=�<8:;�*9><:ABS�	

�46 v�����	

�426wx	y����!z��			

&919@AC9=�;8?@@�8?19�<89�=:X8<�?<�?@@�=9?;AB?D@9�<:Y9;�<A�9B<9=�FCAB�<89�*:<9�<A�
>AB;<=F><�<89�M=AR9><�CF=;F?B<�<A�<8:;�Z?>:@:<:9;�[9?;9S��ZA@@AV:BX�<89�?>>9C<?B>9�AE�<89�
M=AR9><�DH�&:;<=:><G�&919@AC9=�Y?H�9B<9=�<89�M=AR9><�?<�=9?;AB?D@9�<:Y9;�V:<8�?I1?B>9�
BA<:>9�?BI�?==?BX9Y9B<�V:<8�&:;<=:><�EA=�CF=CA;9;�AE�Y?t:BX�?BH�=9C?:=;�=9WF:=9I�<A�
D9�Y?I9�DH�&919@AC9=S�

�46wx	y�������			

789�&:;<=:><�;8?@@�8?19�<89�=:X8<�<A�9B<9=�FCAB�<89�*:<9�?<�?@@�<:Y9;S��&:;<=:><�;8?@@�>AYC@H�
V:<8�?@@�;?E9<H�C=9>?F<:AB;�?BI�C=A>9IF=9;�=9WF:=9I�DH�&919@AC9=S���

246 v����"��"�{	|#������"�	

2426v����"��"�	�"�	|#������"�	�x	���	y�������			

}BH�?;;:XBY9B<�A=�;FD@9?;9�DH�&:;<=:><�;8?@@�D9�;FDR9><�<A�?@@�AE�<89�EA@@AV:BX�
>ABI:<:AB;P�

242426 78:;�Z?>:@:<:9;�[9?;9�?BI�<89�AD@:X?<:AB�AE�<89�&:;<=:><�<A�Y?t9�<89�
C?HY9B<;�=9WF:=9I�CF=;F?B<�<A�<89�r)M�C=A1:;:AB;�:BI:>?<9I�:B��s�����	��;8?@@�
=9Y?:B�AD@:X?<:AB;�AE�<89�&:;<=:><\�?BI�

24246 789�&:;<=:><�;8?@@G�V:<8:B�<8:=<H�J+-O�I?H;�?E<9=�<89�I9@:19=H�<89=9AEG�
EF=B:;8�A=�>?F;9�<A�D9�EF=B:;89I�<A�&919@AC9=�?�<=F9�?BI�>AYC@9<9�>ACH�AE�?BH�
?;;:XBY9B<�A=�;FD@9?;9S�

246v����"��"�	�x	y����!z��			

&919@AC9=�Y?H�?;;:XB�:<;�=:X8<G�<:<@9�?BI�:B<9=9;<�:B�<8:;�Z?>:@:<:9;�[9?;9G�:B�V8A@9�A=�:B�
C?=<�<A�AB9�A=�YA=9�?;;:XB99;G�AB@H�?E<9=�<89�V=:<<9B�>AB;9B<�AE�&:;<=:><G�V8:>8�&:;<=:><�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

2344�567�859:;<65;=4>�237??64@A�B6�;<<3C5D:57�<?;44�=:�:EE:F731:�;C;35<7�7?:�&3<793F7�
854:<<�;5@�85734�7?:�&3<793F7�?;<�F65<:57:@�35�293735CA��B67237?<7;5@35C�;5>7?35C�76�7?:�
F6579;9>�F657;35:@�35�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:I�56�F65<:57�E96D�7?:�&3<793F7�<?;44�=:�9:J839:@�
35�F655:F7365�237?�;5>�;<<3C5D:57�=>�&:1:46K:9�76�;�4:5@:9�E69�K89K6<:<�6E�E35;5F35C�
7?:�L96M:F7�;<�465C�;<�7?:9:�;9:�567�;@@37365;4�F6<7<�76�7?:�&3<793F7A�

NO P����"���!"Q	R�S�#��	T"�	U#�V�"��!"	

NWOP����"���!"X	
����	P����"����	Y"�Z	T�	U��	�!���	[����"	

NWNWO \]F:K7�;<�67?:923<:�:]K9:<<4>�K9613@:@�35�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:I�7?3<�
G;F34373:<�H:;<:�<?;44�567�7:9D35;7:I�569�<?;44�&3<793F7�?;1:�;5>�93C?7�76�7:9D35;7:�
7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:�69�=:�:57374:@�76�7?:�;=;7:D:57�6E�;5>�5:F:<<;9>�K;>D:57<�
K89<8;57�76�7?:�̂ )L�K9613<365<�35��_�����	��69�;5>�9:@8F7365�7?:9:6EA��̀?:�
6=43C;7365<�?:9:85@:9�6E�&3<793F7�<?;44�567�=:�67?:923<:�;EE:F7:@�=>�9:;<65�6E�
;5>�@;D;C:�76�69�@:<798F7365�6E�;44�69�;5>�K;97�6E�7?:�L96M:F7a�7?:�7;b35C�6E�7?:�
L96M:F7�69�;5>�K697365�7?:9:6E�=>�F65@:D5;7365�69�67?:923<:a�7?:�K96?3=37365I�
43D37;7365�69�9:<793F7365�6E�&3<793F7c<�8<:�6E�7?:�L96M:F7a�7?:�357:9E:9:5F:�237?�
<8F?�8<:�=>�;5>�K931;7:�K:9<65�69�F6579;F769a�7?:�&3<793F7c<�;FJ83<37365�6E�7?:�
625:9<?3K�6E�7?:�L96M:F7�d67?:9�7?;5�K89<8;57�76�;5�:]K9:<<�K9613<365�6E�7?3<�
G;F34373:<�H:;<:ea�;5>�K9:<:57�69�E8789:�4;2�76�7?:�F6579;9>�567237?<7;5@35CA��f7�
3<�7?:�357:57365�6E�7?:�L;973:<�?:9:76�7?;7�;44�5:F:<<;9>�K;>D:57<�K89<8;57�76�
7?:�̂)L�K9613<365<�35@3F;7:@�35��_�����	��<?;44�F657358:�76�=:�K;>;=4:�35�;44�
:1:57<I�;5@�7?:�6=43C;7365<�6E�7?:�&3<793F7�?:9:85@:9�<?;44�F657358:�85;EE:F7:@�
854:<<�7?:�9:J839:D:57�76�K;>�69�K:9E69D�7?:�<;D:�<?;44�=:�7:9D35;7:@�69�
D6@3E3:@�K89<8;57�76�;5�:]K9:<<�K9613<365�6E�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:A�

NWNO B67?35C�F657;35:@�?:9:35�<?;44�=:�@::D:@�;�2;31:9�=>�7?:�&3<793F7�6E�
;5>�93C?7<�7?;7�37�D;>�?;1:�76�=935C�;�<:K;9;7:�;F7365�237?�9:<K:F7�76�;5>�\1:57�
6E�&:E;847�=>�&:1:46K:9�?:9:85@:9�69�85@:9�;5>�67?:9�;C9::D:57�76�9:F61:9�
7?:�F6<7<�;5@�:]K:5<:<�;<<6F3;7:@�237?�7?;7�;F7365A��̀?:�&3<793F7�F61:5;57<�;5@�
;C9::<�7?;7�37�2344�9:D;35�6=43C;7:@�85@:9�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:�35�;FF69@;5F:�
237?�37<�7:9D<A���

NWNgO G6446235C�F6DK4:7365�6E�7?:�L96M:F7I�7?:�&3<793F7�2344�567�7;b:�;5>�
;F7365�76�7:9D35;7:I�9:<F35@�69�;163@�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:I�567237?<7;5@35C�7?:�
=;5b98K7F>I�35<641:5F>I�9:69C;53h;7365I�F6DK6<37365I�9:;@M8<7D:57I�43J83@;7365I�
@3<<6487365I�235@35Ci8K�69�67?:9�K96F::@35C�;EE:F735C�&:1:46K:9�69�;5>�;<<3C5::�
6E�&:1:46K:9�35�;5>�<8F?�K96F::@35CI�;5@�567237?<7;5@35C�;5>�;F7365�237?�
9:<K:F7�76�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:�2?3F?�D;>�=:�7;b:5�=>�;5>�798<7::�69�9:F:31:9�
6E�&:1:46K:9�69�6E�;5>�;<<3C5::�6E�&:1:46K:9�35�;5>�<8F?�K96F::@35C�69�=>�;5>�
F6897�35�;5>�<8F?�K96F::@35CA��G6446235C�F6DK4:7365�6E�7?:�L96M:F7I�:]F:K7�;<�
67?:923<:�:]K9:<<4>�K9613@:@�35�7?3<�G;F34373:<�H:;<:I�&3<793F7�2;31:<�;44�93C?7<�
562�69�?:9:;E7:9�F65E:99:@�=>�4;2�76�J837I�7:9D35;7:�69�<899:5@:9�7?3<�G;F34373:<�
H:;<:�69�7?:�L96M:F7�69�;5>�K;97�7?:9:6EA��

NWN�O &3<793F7�;Fb5624:@C:<�7?;7�&:1:46K:9�D;>�;<<3C5�;5�357:9:<7�35�<6D:�
69�;44�6E�7?:�5:F:<<;9>�K;>D:57<�K89<8;57�76�7?:�̂)L�K9613<365<�35@3F;7:@�35�
�_�����	��76�;�4:5@:9�35�69@:9�76�6=7;35�E35;5F35C�E69�7?:�F6<7�6E�F65<798F735C�
7?:�L96M:F7�;5@�7?;7�7?:�4:5@:9�D;>�9:4>�65�7?:�E69:C635C�F61:5;57<�;5@�
K9613<365<�35�F655:F7365�237?�<8F?�E35;5F35CA�

NOR�������j�	k�l#���	S!�	T��#��"���	



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23�&4567486�96�9:;�64<=�7=95>:9?@;�?=@4=1=5�&=1=@>A=7�45�>7�<9;�?=�4:�B=39C@6�C:B=7�6D45�
E>:67986F�&4567486�<9;�4:�465�5>@=�B4587=64>:�:>643;�&=1=@>A=7�>3�6D45�3986�9:B�7=GC=56�
H7466=:�955C79:8=5�37><�&=1=@>A=7�>3�A=73>7<9:8=�>3�'>7I�9:B�9�H7466=:�A@9:�37><�
&=1=@>A=7�6>�7=<=B;�9:;�A>6=:649@�B=39C@6�C:B=7�6D=�6=7<5�>3�6D45�E>:67986�6D96�6D=�
&4567486�<9;�9B145=�&=1=@>A=7�>3�4:�H7464:JK�&=1=@>A=7�5D9@@F�H46D4:�6=:�L0-M�89@=:B97�
B9;5�>3�&4567486N5�7=GC=56F�B=@41=7�9�H7466=:�8C7=�A@9:�6D96�<==65�6D=�&4567486N5�
7=GC47=<=:65�4:�465�7=GC=56�3>7�955C79:8=5K�&=1=@>A=7N5�394@C7=�6>�A7>14B=�5C8D�H7466=:�
955C79:8=5�>3�A=73>7<9:8=�9:B�6D=�7=GC47=B�H7466=:�A@9:F�H46D4:�6=:�L0-M�89@=:B97�
B9;5�>3�7=GC=56F�H4@@�8>:5646C6=�9�<96=749@�?7=98D�>3�6D45�E>:67986�5C33484=:6�6>�OC5643;�
6=7<4:964>:�3>7�89C5=K	

PQRS�������T�	U����	�!	V����"���	S����!W��	X!�	��#��	

PQPYR Z�!#"��	X!�	V����"���!"			

[D=�&4567486F�4:�465�5>@=�B4587=64>:F�H46D>C6�A7=OCB48=�6>�9:;�>6D=7�74JD6�>7�
7=<=B;F�<9;�6=7<4:96=�6D=�*46=�\=95=�9:B�]984@464=5�\=95=�9:B̂>7�6=7<4:96=�
&=1=@>A=7N5�74JD6�6>�A=73>7<�6D=�H>7I�>3�6D=�]984@464=5�\=95=�?95=B�CA>:�9:;�>3�
6D=�3>@@>H4:J_�

PQPYPYR&=1=@>A=7�7=3C5=5�>7�394@5�6>�=̀=8C6=�6D=�'>7I�>7�9:;�
5=A979?@=�A976�6D=7=>3a�>7�

PQPYPR&=1=@>A=7�394@5�6>�8><A@=6=�594B�'>7I�H46D4:�6D=�64<=�
5A=8434=B�>7�9:;�=̀6=:54>:�6D=7=>3a�>7�

PQPYPQR&=1=@>A=7�A=75456=:6@;�394@5�>7�7=3C5=5�6>�A=73>7<�'>7I�>7�
A7>14B=�<96=749@�>3�5C33484=:6�GC9@46;�95�6>�?=�4:�8><A@49:8=�H46D�6D=�
]984@464=5�\=95=a�>7�

PQPYP�Rb74>7�6>�8><A@=64>:�>3�6D=�b7>O=86F�&=1=@>A=7�45�9BOCBJ=B�
9�?9:I7CA6F�34@=5�9�A=6464>:�3>7�7=@4=3�95�9�B=?6>7F�>7�9�A=6464>:�45�34@=B�
9J94:56�&=1=@>A=7�H46D>C6�465�8>:5=:6F�9:B�6D=�A=6464>:�:>6�B45<455=B�
H46D4:�54̀6;�Lc-M�B9;5a�>7�

PQPYPdRb74>7�6>�6D=�8><A@=64>:�>3�6D=�b7>O=86F�&=1=@>A=7�<9I=5�9�
J=:=79@�9554J:<=:6�3>7�6D=�?=:=346�>3�465�87=B46>75F�>7�9�7=8=41=7�45�
9AA>4:6=B�>:�988>C:6�>3�465�4:5>@1=:8;a�>7�

PQPYP�R&=1=@>A=7�A=75456=:6@;�>7�7=A=96=B@;�7=3C5=5�9:B̂>7�394@5F�
=̀8=A6�4:�895=5�3>7�HD48D�=̀6=:54>:�>3�64<=�45�A7>14B=BF�6>�5CAA@;�
=:>CJD�A7>A=7@;�5I4@@=B�H>7I=75�>7�A7>A=7�<96=749@5�6>�8><A@=6=�6D=�
'>7I�4:�6D=�64<=�5A=8434=Ba�>7�

PQPYPeR&=1=@>A=7� 394@5� 6>� <9I=� A7><A6� A9;<=:6� 6>�
*C?8>:67986>75F�>7�3>7�<96=749@F�>7�3>7�@9?>7a�>7�

PQPYPfR&=1=@>A=7�A=75456=:6@;�B457=J97B5�@9H5F�>7�>7B4:9:8=5F�>7�
4:567C864>:5�>3�&4567486�95�4:B4896=B�4:��g�����	SF�>7�>6D=7H45=�4:�
14>@964>:�>3��g�����	Sa�>7�

PQPYP�R&=1=@>A=7�394@5�6>�5CAA@;�@9?>7F�4:8@CB4:J�6D96�>3�
*C?8>:67986>75F�6D96�45�5C33484=:6�6>�A7>5=8C6=�6D=�'>7I�>7�6D96�89:�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

1234�56�783926:�15;7�8<<�2;7=3�=<=9=6;>�2?�<8@23�=9A<2:=B�23�;2�@=�
=9A<2:=B�26�;7=�&234C�23�

DDEEFEF�G%=0=<2A=3�23�5;>�)H@I26;38I;23J>K�5>L83=�2;7=315>=�56�
@3=8I7M�B=?8H<;M�23�56�>H@>;86;58<�052<8;526�2?�86:�A3205>526�2?�;75>�
N8I5<5;5=>�O=8>=M�56I<HB56P�@H;�62;�<595;=B�;2�8�<8A>=�56�<5I=6>56P�23�
3=P5>;38;526Q�

DDEEDG � ��R����� !	 R	S����!��� !	

DDEEDEFGTA26�;7=�2IIH33=6I=�8;�%5>;35I;U>�>2<=�B=;=39568;526�2?�
86:�2?�;7=�8@20=�I26B5;526>M�23�HA26�%=0=<2A=3V>�?85<H3=�;2�A=3?239�
86:�98;=358<�I20=686;M�I26B5;526�23�8P3==9=6;�56�;75>�N8I5<5;5=>�
O=8>=M�%5>;35I;�98:M�15;72H;�A3=WHB5I=�;2�86:�2;7=3�35P7;�23�3=9=B:M�
>=30=�135;;=6�62;5I=�HA26�%=0=<2A=3�86B�5;>�)H3=;:�2?�%5>;35I;U>�
;=39568;526�2?�;75>�N8I5<5;5=>�O=8>=�86BL23�%=0=<2A=3V>�35P7;�;2�
A=3?239�;7=�&234�2?�;75>�N8I5<5;5=>�O=8>=Q��X75>�62;5I=�15<<�I26;856�;7=�
3=8>26>�?23�;=39568;526Q���

DDEEDEDG T6<=>>M�15;756�?5?;==6�J/.K�B8:>�8?;=3�;7=�>=305I=�2?�;7=�
62;5I=M�86:�86B�8<<�I26B5;526J>K�>78<<�I=8>=M�86B�86:�86B�8<<�
052<8;526J>K�>78<<�I=8>=M�23�83386P=9=6;�>8;5>?8I;23:�;2�%5>;35I;�?23�
;7=�I233=I;526�2?�;7=�I26B5;526J>K�86BL23�052<8;526J>K�@=�98B=M�;75>�
N8I5<5;5=>�O=8>=�86B�;7=�)5;=�O=8>=�>78<<�I=8>=�86B�;=39568;=C�
A3205B=BM�721=0=3M�5?�;7=�?85<H3=�>;8;=B�56�;7=�62;5I=�I8662;�@=�
I233=I;=B�15;756�?5?;==6�J/.K�B8:>�8?;=3�;7=�>=305I=�2?�62;5I=M�%5>;35I;�
98:�I26>=6;�;2�86�=Y;=6>526�2?�;59=M�A3205B=B�%=0=<2A=3�56>;5;H;=B�
86B�B5<5P=6;<:�AH3>H=B�I233=I;50=�8I;526�15;756�;7=�8AA<5I8@<=�?5?;==6�
J/.KZB8:�A=352B�86B�H6;5<�;7=�052<8;526�5>�I233=I;=BQ�TA26�%5>;35I;�
B=;=39568;526M�%=0=<2A=3�>78<<�62;�@=�=6;5;<=B�;2�3=I=50=�86:�?H3;7=3�
A8:9=6;�H6;5<�;7=�=6;53=�&234�5>�?565>7=BQ���

DDEEDEGTA26�X=39568;526M�%5>;35I;�98:�599=B58;=<:�>=30=�135;;=6�
62;5I=�2?�;=6B=3�HA26�)H3=;:�17=3=@:�)H3=;:�>78<<�780=�;7=�35P7;�;2�
;84=�20=3�86B�A=3?239�;75>�N8I5<5;5=>�O=8>=�26<:�5?�)H3=;:[�

DDEEDEEFG &5;756�;73==�J*K�B8:>�8?;=3�>=305I=�HA26�5;�
2?�;7=�62;5I=�2?�;=6B=3M�P50=>�%5>;35I;�135;;=6�62;5I=�2?�
)H3=;:V>�56;=6;526�;2�;84=�20=3�86B�A=3?239�;75>�N8I5<5;5=>�
O=8>=C�86B�

DDEEDEEDG \299=6I=>�A=3?23986I=�2?�;75>�N8I5<5;5=>�
O=8>=�15;756�;73==�J*K�B8:>�?329�B8;=�2?�>=3056P�2?�5;>�
62;5I=�;2�%5>;35I;Q�

DDEEDE�G)H3=;:�>78<<�62;�H;5<5]=�%=0=<2A=3�56�I29A<=;56P�;7=�
3̂2W=I;�5?�;7=�%5>;35I;�62;5?5=>�)H3=;:�2?�;7=�%5>;35I;V>�2@W=I;526�;2�
%=0=<2A=3V>�?H3;7=3�A83;5I5A8;526�56�;7=�I29A<=;526�2?�;7=�̂32W=I;Q��
)H3=;:�=YA3=>><:�8P3==>�;78;�86:�B=0=<2A=3�175I7�)H3=;:�A32A2>=>�
;2�?H<?5<<�)H3=;:V>�2@<5P8;526>�5>�>H@W=I;�;2�%5>;35I;V>�8AA3208<Q���

DDEEDE_G̀?�)H3=;:�?85<>�;2�62;5?:�%5>;35I;�23�@=P56�A=3?23986I=�8>�
56B5I8;=B�7=3=56M�%5>;35I;�98:�;84=�20=3�;7=�&234�86B�=Y=IH;=�;7=�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

'234�52�62789:5;2<�=>�?<>�7:5@2A�;5�7?>�A::7�?A1;B?=9:�?5�5@:�
:C8:<B:�2D�&:1:928:3�?<AE23�;5B�*F3:5>G��&:1:928:3�?<A�;5B�*F3:5>�
B@?99�=:�9;?=9:�52�&;B53;65�D23�?<>�:C6:BB�62B5�23�25@:3�A?7?H:B�5@:�
&;B53;65�;<6F3B�5@:3:=>G��I;7:�;B�2D�5@:�:BB:<6:�;<�5@;B�J?6;9;5;:B�K:?B:G��
LD�5@:�&;B53;65�5?4:B�21:3�5@:�'234�?B�@:3:;<�8321;A:AM�&;B53;65�7?>M�
N;5@2F5�9;?=;9;5>�D23�B2�A2;<HM�5?4:�82BB:BB;2<�2D�?<A�F5;9;O:�;<�
62789:5;<H�5@:�'234�?99�7?5:3;?9BM�?889;?<6:BM�89?<M�?<A�25@:3�
8328:35>�=:92<H;<H�52�&:1:928:3�?B�7?>�=:�2<�5@:�*;5:�2D�5@:�'234M�
;<�=2<A:A�B523?H:M�23�83:1;2FB9>�8?;A�D23G�

PPQQR �SS���	!S	T����"���!"	

PPQQQ�RLD�&;B53;65�5:37;<?5:B�5@:�*;5:�K:?B:�?<A�5@:�J?6;9;5;:B�
K:?B:�8F3BF?<5�52�5@;B�B:65;2<M�5@:�*;5:�?<A�?<>�;78321:7:<5B�=F;95�
F82<�5@:�*;5:�B@?99�1:B5�;<�&;B53;65�F82<�5:37;<?5;2<�2D�5@:�*;5:�K:?B:�
?<A�J?6;9;5;:B�K:?B:M�?<A�&;B53;65�B@?99�5@:3:?D5:3�=:�3:UF;3:A�52�8?>�
2<9>�5@:�83;<6;8?9�?72F<5B�5@:<�AF:�?<A�2N;<H�8F3BF?<5�52�5@:�V)W�
8321;B;2<B�;<A;6?5:A�;<��X�����	�M�9:BB�?<>�A?7?H:B�;<6F33:A�=>�
&;B53;65�AF:�52�&:1:928:3YB�A:D?F95M�?65BM�23�27;BB;2<BG�

PPQQQPRI@:�&;B53;65�B@?99�3:5?;<�?99�3;H@5B�;5�82BB:BB:B�8F3BF?<5�52�
5@;B�J?6;9;5;:B�K:?B:�;<69FA;<HM�N;5@2F5�9;7;5?5;2<G�

PPQQQPQ�R I@:�3;H@5�52�?BB:BB�9;UF;A?5:A�A?7?H:B�AF:�
=:6?FB:�2D�?<>�832Z:65�A:9?>[�?<A�

PPQQQPQPR \99�3;H@5B�5@:�&;B53;65�@29AB�52�A:7?<A�
8:3D237?<6:� 8F3BF?<5� 52� &:1:928:3YB� 3:UF;3:A�
8:3D237?<6:�=2<AG�

PPQQQR&:1:928:3�B@?99M�2<9>�;D��23A:3:A�52�A2�B2�=>�5@:�&;B53;65M�
;77:A;?5:9>�3:721:�D327�5@:�*;5:�?99�23�?<>�7?5:3;?9B�?<A�8:3B2<?9�
8328:35>�=:92<H;<H�52�&:1:928:3�5@?5�@?1:�<25�=::<�;<623823?5:A�;<�
5@:�62<B53F65;2<�2D�5@:�'234M�23�N@;6@�?3:�<25�;<�89?6:�;<�5@:�'234G��
I@:�&;B53;65�3:5?;<B�5@:�3;H@5M�=F5�<25�5@:�2=9;H?5;2<M�52�4::8�?<A�FB:�
?<>�7?5:3;?9B�?<A�8:3B2<?9�8328:35>�=:92<H;<H�52�&:1:928:3�5@?5�
@?1:�<25�=::<�;<623823?5:A�;<�5@:�62<B53F65;2<�2D�5@:�'234M�23�N@;6@�
?3:�<25�;<�89?6:�;<�5@:�'234G��&:1:928:3�?<A�;5B�*F3:5>�B@?99�=:�9;?=9:�
F82<�5@:�8:3D237?<6:�=2<A�D23�?99�A?7?H:B�6?FB:A�5@:�&;B53;65�=>�
3:?B2<�2D�&:1:928:3YB�D?;9F3:�52�62789:5:�5@:�'234�F<A:3�5@;B�
J?6;9;5;:B�K:?B:G�

PPQQQ�RL<�5@:�:1:<5�5@?5�5@:�&;B53;65�B@?99�8:3D237�?<>�8235;2<�2DM�
23�5@:�N@29:�2D�5@:�'234M�8F3BF?<5�52�5@:�8321;B;2<B�2D�5@:�V:<:3?9�
]2<A;5;2<BM�5@:�&;B53;65�B@?99�<25�=:�9;?=9:�<23�?662F<5�52�&:1:928:3�
;<�?<>�N?>�D23�5@:�5;7:�N;5@;<�N@;6@M�23�5@:�7?<<:3�;<�N@;6@M�5@:�
'234�;B�8:3D237:A�=>�5@:�&;B53;65�23�D23�?<>�6@?<H:B�5@:�&;B53;65�7?>�
7?4:�;<�5@:�'234�23�D23�5@:�72<:>�:C8:<A:A�=>�5@:�&;B53;65�;<�
B?5;BD>;<H�69?;7B�?<AE23�BF;5B�?<AE23�25@:3�2=9;H?5;2<B�;<�62<<:65;2<�
N;5@�5@:�'234G�

PPQQQ̂RL<�5@:�:1:<5�5:37;<?5;2<�D23�6?FB:�;B�A:5:37;<:A�52�@?1:�
<25�=::<�D23�6?FB:M�5@:�5:37;<?5;2<�B@?99�=:�A::7:A�52�@?1:�=::<�?�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

23456782697�:94�;97137637;3�3::3;2613�8<�9:�2=3�<853�>823�8<�2=3�
?@4?9423>�23456782697�:94�;8@<3A�

��BBB�CD7�2=3�31372�2=82�2=3�*623�E38<3�87>�F8;6G6263<�E38<3�843�
234567823>�:94�87H�438<97I�79�8GG9J87;3<�94�;95?37<82697�J6GG�K3�
L48723>�:94�2=3�G9<<�9:�87H�8726;6?823>�?49:62�KH�&313G9?34�94�87H�
65?8;2�94�65?8645372�9:�&313G9?34M<�K97>67L�;8?8;62HA�

��BBBNCD:�2=3�3O?37<3�29�2=3�&6<246;2�29�:676<=�2=3�'94P�3O;33><�
2=3�@7?86>�Q@8487233>�)8O65@5�R46;3I�&313G9?34�87>�*@432H�<=8GG�
?8H�>6::3437;3�29�&6<246;2�J62=67�2J372HS973�TU0V�>8H<�9:�&6<246;2W<�
43X@3<2A��&6<246;2�58H�8??GH�87H�859@72<�92=34J6<3�>@3�29�
&313G9?34�29�2=6<�>6::3437;3A�

��BBBYCZ=3�&6<246;2�<=8GG�=813�2=3�46L=2�TK@2�<=8GG�=813�79�
9KG6L82697V�29�8<<@53�87>[94�8<<6L7�29�8�43?G8;35372�;97248;294�94�
;97<24@;2697�5878L34I�94�92=34�2=64>�?842H�J=9�6<�X@8G6:63>�87>�=8<�
<@::6;6372�43<9@4;3<�29�;95?G323�2=3�'94PI�2=3�46L=2<�9:�&313G9?34�
@7>34�62<�<@K;97248;2<�J62=�87H�94�8GG�*@K;97248;294<A��D7�2=3�31372�
9:�87�8<<@5?2697�94�8<<6L75372�KH�2=3�&6<246;2I�79�*@K;97248;294�
<=8GG�=813�87H�;G865�8L867<2�2=3�&6<246;2�94�2=64>�?842H�:94�'94P�
?34:9453>�KH�*@K;97248;294�94�92=34�582234<�846<67L�?4694�29�
23456782697�9:�2=3�F8;6G6263<�E38<3A��Z=3�&6<246;2�94�87H�2=64>�?842HI�
8<�2=3�;8<3�58H�K3I�<=8GG�K3�G68KG3�97GH�:94�9KG6L82697<�29�2=3�
*@K;97248;294�846<67L�8:234�8<<@5?2697�94�8<<6L75372A��*=9@G>�2=3�
&6<246;2�<9�3G3;2I�&313G9?34�<=8GG�3O3;@23�87>�>3G6134�8GG�>9;@5372<�
87>�28P3�8GG�<23?<I�67;G@>67L�2=3�G3L8G�8<<6L75372�9:�62<�;97248;2@8G�
46L=2<I�8<�2=3�&6<246;2�58H�43X@643I�:94�2=3�?@4?9<3�9:�:@GGH�13<267L�67�
2=3�&6<246;2�2=3�46L=2<�87>�K373:62<�9:�62<�*@K;97248;294<�@7>34�
*@K;97248;2<�94�92=34�9KG6L82697<�94�;955625372<A��&313G9?34�5@<2�
67;G@>3�2=6<�8<<6L75372�?4916<697�67�8GG�9:�62<�F8;6G6263<�E38<3<�J62=�
62<�*@K;97248;294<A�

��BBB\C]GG�?8H5372<�>@3�&313G9?34�=343@7>34�<=8GG�K3�<@K̂3;2�29�
8�46L=2�9:�9::<32�KH�2=3�&6<246;2�:94�3O?37<3<I�>858L3<I�G9<<3<I�;9<2<I�
;G865<I�94�4365K@4<35372<�<@::343>�KHI�94�>@3�29I�2=3�&6<246;2�8<�8�
43<@G2�9:�87H�>3:8@G2I�8;2<I�94�956<<697<�9:�&313G9?34A��

��BBB_�CZ=3�:943L967L�?4916<697<�843�67�8>>62697�29�87>�792�67�
G656282697�9:�87H�92=34�46L=2<�94�4353>63<�8186G8KG3�29�&6<246;2A�

��B�C �̀���"���!"	!a	b����!c��	a!�	�!"��"��"��	

��B�B_C &6<246;2�67�62<�<9G3�>6<;432697�58H�234567823�2=3�F8;6G6263<�E38<3�67�
J=9G3�94�67�?842�@?97�2=433�T+V�>8H<�J462237�7926;3�29�&313G9?34A���

��B�B�C d?97�7926;3I�&313G9?34�<=8GGe�

��B�B�B_Cf38<3�9?3482697<�8<�>643;23>�KH�2=3�&6<246;2�67�2=3�7926;3g�

��B�B�B�CZ8P3� 73;3<<84H� 8;2697<� :94� 2=3� ?4923;2697� 87>�
?43<34182697�9:�2=3�'94P�8<�<997�8<�?9<<6KG3g�87>�



�

����������	
����		 ����		
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

112�2123456789:;5�:<<�5=8>;89?�>@ABC9;6:B;>�:9D�E@6BF:>5�C6D56>�
:9D�59;56�89;C�9C�G@6;F56�>@ABC9;6:B;>�:9D�E@6BF:>5�C6D56>H�

112�23 &8;F89�*,�D:I>�CG�;F5�9C;8B5J�%505<CE56�>F:<<�>@A78;�;C�;F5�%8>;68B;�
:�E:I759;�:EE<8B:;8C9�GC6�;F5�:B;@:<�BC>;�GC6�<:AC6J�7:;568:<>J�:9D�>5608B5>�
E56GC675DJ�89B<@D89?�:<<�%505<CE56K>�:9D�)@ABC9;6:B;C6L>MN�7CA8<8O:;8C9�:9DPC6�
D57CA8<8O:;8C9�BC>;>J�;F:;�8>�@9E:8DH��%505<CE56�>F:<<�F:05�9C�B<:87>�:?:89>;�
;F5�%8>;68B;�5=B5E;�GC6�;F5�:B;@:<�BC>;�GC6�<:AC6J�7:;568:<>J�:9D�>5608B5>�
E56GC675D�;F:;�:D5Q@:;5<I�DCB@759;5D�;F6C@?F�;875>F55;>J�890C8B5>J�65B58E;>J�
C6�C;F56R8>5H��%8>;68B;�>F:<<�E:I�:<<�@9D8>E@;5D�890C8B5L>M�GC6�RC6S�E56GC675D�
@9;8<�;F5�9C;8B5�CG�;56789:;8C9H�

112�2�3 T9D56�:�;56789:;8C9�GC6�BC9059859B5J�;F5�%8>;68B;�65;:89>�;F5�68?F;�;C�
:<<�;F5�CE;8C9>�:0:8<:A<5�;C�;F5�%8>;68B;�8G�;F565�8>�:�;56789:;8C9�GC6�B:@>5H�

112U3V���� W��	X�������	YW !	V�������	V�Z�"��	

112U2[3 ���!��	 Z	V�Z�"��	�\	V�������	V�Z�!��			

4F5�GC<<CR89?�>F:<<�A5�]̂059;>�CG�%5G:@<;_�CG�;F5�%8>;68B;�@9D56�;F8>�̀:B8<8;85>�
a5:>5H��4F5�;567>�]̂059;�CG�%5G:@<;_�:9D�]%5G:@<;J_�RF595056�;F5I�:65�@>5D�:>�
;C�;F5�%8>;68B;�89�;F5�)8;5�a5:>5�C6�;F8>�̀:B8<8;85>�a5:>5J�>F:<<�C9<I�75:9�C95�C6�
7C65�CG�;F5�GC<<CR89?�5059;>b	

112U2[2[3̀ :8<@65�AI�;F5�%8>;68B;�;C�E:I�E:I759;>�65Q@865D�E@6>@:9;�
;C�;F5�c(d�E6C08>8C9>�89��e�����	�J�:9D�;F5�BC9;89@:;8C9�CG�;F8>�
G:8<@65�GC6�:�E568CD�CG�GC6;IfG805�L-.M�D:I>H�

112U2[213̀ :8<@65�AI�;F5�%8>;68B;�;C�E56GC67�:9I�7:;568:<�BC059:9;J�
BC9D8;8C9�C6�:?655759;�89�;F8>�̀ :B8<8;85>�a5:>5�:9D�;F:;�G:8<@65�
BC9;89@5>�GC6�:�E568CD�CG�GC6;IfG805�L-.M�D:I>�:G;56�%505<CE56�
E6C08D5>�%8>;68B;�R8;F�R68;;59�9C;8B5�>E5B8GI89?�;F:;�G:8<@65�:9D�
65Q@5>;89?�;F:;�;F5�G:8<@65�A5�6575D85Dg�E6C08D5DJ�FCR5056J�8G�;F5�
G:8<@65�>;:;5D�89�;F5�9C;8B5�B:99C;�A5�BC665B;5D�R8;F89�;F5�:EE<8B:A<5�
E568CDJ�%505<CE56�>F:<<�9C;�R8;FFC<D�8;>�BC9>59;�;C�:9�5=;59>8C9�CG�
;875�8G�BC665B;805�:B;8C9�8>�89>;8;@;5D�AI�;F5�%8>;68B;�R8;F89�;F5�
:EE<8B:A<5�E568CD�:9D�D8<8?59;<I�E@6>@5D�@9;8<�;F5�D5G:@<;�8>�BC665B;5DH�

112U213 X�������	 !	V�������h�	V�Z�"��			

iG�;F565�F:>�A559�:9�̂059;�CG�%5G:@<;�C9�;F5�%8>;68B;N>�E:6;J�%505<CE56�7:I�
5=56B8>5�:9I�:9D�:<<�6575D85>�?6:9;5D�E@6>@:9;�;C�;F8>�̀ :B8<8;85>�a5:>5g�
E6C08D5DJ�FCR5056J�;F565�>F:<<�A5�9C�68?F;�@9D56�:9I�B86B@7>;:9B5>�;C�
:BB5<56:;5�:9I�CG�;F5�E:I759;>�65Q@865D�E@6>@:9;�;C�;F5�c(d�E6C08>8C9>�89�
�e�����	��C6�C;F56R8>5�D5B<:65�;FC>5�E:I759;>�9C;�;F59�E:>;�D@5�;C�A5�
8775D8:;5<I�D@5�:9D�E:I:A<5H�	

112U212[3%505<CE56�7:I�65>B89D�8;>�<5:>5A:BS�CG�;F5�d6Cj5B;�;C�;F5�
%8>;68B;�@9D56�;F8>�̀:B8<8;85>�a5:>5�:9D�65f659;�;F5�d6Cj5B;�:9D�)8;5�;C�
:9C;F56�<5>>55�GC6�;F5�657:8989?�4567�GC6�9C�<5>>�;F:9�;F5�G:86�
7:6S5;�0:<@5�GC6�<5:>89?�;F5�d6Cj5B;�:9D�)8;5J�RF8BF�>F:<<�A5b�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

11232124245 67�89:;7<�=><>?9@7>=�AB�8�9;<;8CCBD
8E?>>=�;F:7�8FF?8@G>?H�:?	

11232124215 IJ�87�8FF?8@G>?�K877:<�A>�8E?>>=�<:L�87�
89:;7<�>M;8C�<:�<N>�9>87�A><O>>7�8�%@G<?@K<�8FF?8@G8C�
87=�8�%>0>C:F>?�8FF?8@G8C�J:?�<N>�P?:Q>K<�87=�)@<>L�A:<N�
F?>F8?>=�AB�(6IDK>?<@J@>=�8FF?8@G>?GR	

112321215%@G<?@K<SG�:AC@E8<@:7�<:�98T>�<N>�F8B9>7<G�?>M;@?>=�
F;?G;87<�<:�<N>�U(P�F?:0@G@:7G�@7=@K8<>=�@7��V�����	��GN8CC�A>W�

11232121245 I7K?>8G>=�AB�<N>�89:;7<�:J�K:G<GL�
>XF>7G>GL�87=�=898E>G�@7K;??>=�AB�%>0>C:F>?�@7�?>D
?>7<@7E�<N>�P?:Q>K<�87=�)@<>H�87=�

11232121215 %>K?>8G>=�AB�<N>�89:;7<�:J�?>7<�%>0>C:F>?�
?>K>@0>G�@7�?>DC><<@7E�<N>�P?:Q>K<�87=�)@<>R�

11232125%@G<?@K<�8E?>>G�<N8<�<N>�<>?9G�:J�<N@G�Y8K@C@<@>G�Z>8G>�
K:7G<@<;<>�J;CC�87=�G;JJ@K@>7<�7:<@K>�:J�<N>�?@EN<�:J�%>0>C:F>?�<:�?>D
?>7<�<N>�P?:Q>K<�87=�)@<>�@7�<N>�[0>7<�:J�%>J8;C<�O@<N:;<�>JJ>K<@7E�8�
G;??>7=>?�:J�<N@G�Y8K@C@<@>G�Z>8G>L�87=�J;?<N>?�8E?>>G�<N8<�7:�8K<G�:J�
%>0>C:F>?�@7�?>D?>7<@7E�8G�F>?9@<<>=�N>?>@7�GN8CC�K:7G<@<;<>�8�
G;??>7=>?�:?�<>?9@78<@:7�:J�<N@G�Y8K@C@<@>G�Z>8G>L�A;<�<N8<L�:7�<N>�
K:7<?8?BL�@7�<N>�>0>7<�:J�87�[0>7<�:J�%>J8;C<�AB�<N>�%@G<?@K<�<N>�?@EN<�
<:�?>D?>7<�<N>�P?:Q>K<�87=�)@<>�GN8CC�0>G<�@7�%>0>C:F>?�8G�@7=@K8<>=�
N>?>@7R�

112325 \�������]�	� !��!"�!�	̂������� !			

_7C>GG�<N>?>�N8G�A>>7�=898E>L�=>G<?;K<@:7L�8�̀8T@7EL�:?�%>0>C:F>?�N8G�8K<>=L�
J8@C>=�<:�8K<L�:?�@G�@7�=>J8;C<�8G�@7=@K8<>=�8A:0>�F?:0@=@7E�%@G<?@K<�O@<N�<N>�?@EN<�
<:�<>?9@78<>�J:?�K8;G>L�<N>�%@G<?@K<�GN8CC�K:7<@7;>�<:�?>98@7�C@8AC>�J:?�<N>�
F8B9>7<G�?>M;@?>=�F;?G;87<�<:�<N>�U(P�F?:0@G@:7G�@7��V�����	��87=�<N:G>�
89:;7<G�GN8CC�A>�F8B8AC>�<:�%>0>C:F>?�8<�<N>�<@9>�87=�@7�<N>�9877>?�<N>?>@7�
F?:0@=>=R�

11232�5 � 	a����b	�V��"����			

c:�?>9>=B�N>?>@7�K:7J>??>=�;F:7�:?�?>G>?0>=�<:�%>0>C:F>?�@G�@7<>7=>=�<:�A>�
>XKC;G@0>�87=�>0>?B�G;KN�?>9>=B�GN8CC�A>�K;9;C8<@0>�87=�GN8CC�A>�@7�8==@<@:7�<:�
>0>?B�:<N>?�?>9>=B�E@0>7�;7=>?�<N@G�Y8K@C@<@>G�Z>8G>�:?�7:O�:?�N>?>8J<>?�>X@G<@7E�
8<�C8O�:?�@7�>M;@<BR��c:�=>C8B�:?�:9@GG@:7�<:�>X>?K@G>�87B�?@EN<�:?�F:O>?�8KK?;@7E�
;F:7�87B�%>J8;C<�GN8CC�@9F8@?�87B�G;KN�?@EN<�:?�F:O>?�:?�GN8CC�A>�K:7G<?;>=�<:�
A>�8�O8@0>?�<N>?>:JL�A;<�87B�G;KN�?@EN<�87=�F:O>?�98B�A>�>X>?K@G>=�J?:9�<@9>�
<:�<@9>�87=�8G�:J<>7�8G�98B�A>�=>>9>=�>XF>=@>7<R��I7�:?=>?�<:�>7<@<C>�%>0>C:F>?�
<:�>X>?K@G>�87B�?>9>=B�?>G>?0>=�<:�@<�@7�<N@G�8?<@KC>L�@<�GN8CC�7:<�A>�7>K>GG8?B�<:�
E@0>�87B�7:<@K>L�:<N>?�<N87�G;KN�7:<@K>�8G�98B�A>�?>M;@?>=�@7�<N@G�6?<@KC>�:?�AB�
C8OR�

112�5������!�b	d����!��� !	�"��"�!�	� 	�"����	� !������	e��	 f	4g�g	



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

223�345 6789�:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?�89�9ABC?<>�>D�>?EF8G;>8DG�;9�HED18I?I�BJ�9?<>8DG9�
..0-�;GI�..00�DK�>7?�LD1?EGF?G>�MDI?�DK�>7?�*>;>?�DK�M;=8KDEG8;N�B?8GO�;�
HDE>8DG�DK�>7?�PF?EO?G<J�6?EF8G;>8DG�DK�QAB=8<�MDG>E;<>9�R<>�DK�0S.ST�

223�34345*?<>8DG�..0-�DK�>7?�LD1?EGF?G>�MDI?�9>;>?9U�

VG�>7?�?1?G>�;�G;>8DG;=�?F?EO?G<J�D<<AE9N�;GI�HAB=8<�WDEXN�B?8GO�
H?EKDEF?I�BJ�<DG>E;<>N�89�9>DHH?IN�I8E?<>=J�DE�8GI8E?<>=JN�B?<;A9?�DK�
>7?�KE??Y8GO�DE�I81?E98DG�DK�F;>?E8;=9N�?ZA8HF?G>�DE�=;BDEN�;9�>7?�
E?9A=>�DK�;G�DEI?E�DE�;�HED<=;F;>8DG�DK�>7?�QE?98I?G>�DK�>7?�[G8>?I�
*>;>?9N�DE�DK�;G�DEI?E�DK�;GJ�K?I?E;=�;A>7DE8>JN�;GI�>7?�<8E<AF9>;G<?9�
DE�<DGI8>8DG9�;E?�9A<7�>7;>�8>�89�8FHE;<>8<;B=?�W8>78G�;�E?;9DG;B=?�
>8F?�>D�HED<??I�W8>7�;�9AB9>;G>8;=�HDE>8DG�DK�>7?�WDEXN�>7?G�>7?�
HAB=8<�;O?G<J�;GI�>7?�<DG>E;<>DE�F;JN�BJ�WE8>>?G�;OE??F?G>N�
>?EF8G;>?�9;8I�<DG>E;<>T�

223�34325*?<>8DG�..00�DK�>7?�LD1?EGF?G>�MDI?�9>;>?9U�

*A<7�;G�;OE??F?G>�97;==�8G<=AI?�>7?�>?EF9�;GI�<DGI8>8DG9�DK�>7?�
>?EF8G;>8DG�DK�>7?�<DG>E;<>�;GI�HED1898DG�KDE�>7?�H;JF?G>�DK�
<DFH?G9;>8DG�DE�FDG?JN�8K�;GJN�W78<7�?8>7?E�H;E>J�97;==�H;J�>D�>7?�
D>7?E�DE�;GJ�D>7?E�H?E9DGN�AGI?E�>7?�K;<>9�;GI�<8E<AF9>;G<?9�8G�>7?�
<;9?T�

223�325 MDFH?G9;>8DG�>D�&?1?=DH?E�97;==�B?�I?>?EF8G?I�;>�>7?�9D=?�
I89<E?>8DG�DK�&89>E8<>�DG�>7?�B;989�DK�>7?�E?;9DG;B=?�1;=A?�DK�>7?�'DEX�IDG?N�
8G<=AI8GO�HE?H;E;>DEJ�WDEXT��R9�;G�?\<?H>8DG�>D�>7?�KDE?OD8GO�;GI�;>�>7?�
&89>E8<>]9�I89<E?>8DGN�8G�>7?�<;9?�DK�;GJ�KA==J�<DFH=?>?I�9?H;E;>?�8>?F�DE�HDE>8DG�
DK�>7?�'DEX�KDE�W78<7�>7?E?�89�;�9?H;E;>?�HE?18DA9=J�9ABF8>>?I�AG8>�HE8<?�DE�
8>?F�DG�>7?�;<<?H>?I�9<7?IA=?�DK�1;=A?9N�>7;>�HE8<?�F;J�<DG>ED=T��67?�&89>E8<>N�
;>�8>9�9D=?�I89<E?>8DGN�F;J�;IDH>�>7?�*<7?IA=?�DK�̂;=A?9�QE8<?�;9�>7?�1;=A?�DK�
>7?�WDEX�IDG?�DE�;GJ�HDE>8DG�>7?E?DKT	

223_5 #̀�a�"��!"	!b	c!�d	

223_345 &89>E8<>�8G�8>9�9D=?�I89<E?>8DG�F;J�9A9H?GIN�I?=;J�DE�8G>?EEAH>�>7?�
'DEX�8G�W7D=?�DE�8G�H;E>�KDE�9A<7�H?E8DI�DK�>8F?�;9�>7?�&89>E8<>�F;J�I?>?EF8G?�
AHDG�>7E??�e+f�I;J9�WE8>>?G�GD>8<?�>D�&?1?=DH?ET��

223_34345RG�;ICA9>F?G>�F;J�B?�F;I?�KDE�<7;GO?9�8G�>7?�<D9>�DK�
H?EKDEF;G<?�DK�>7?�'DEX�<;A9?I�BJ�;GJ�9A9H?G98DGN�I?=;J�DE�
8G>?EEAH>8DGT��gD�;ICA9>F?G>�97;==�B?�F;I?�>D�>7?�?\>?G>U�

223_3434345 67;>�H?EKDEF;G<?�89N�W;9�DE�WDA=I�7;1?�
B??G�9D�9A9H?GI?IN�I?=;J?I�DE�8G>?EEAH>?I�BJ�;GD>7?E�
<;A9?�KDE�W78<7�&?1?=DH?E�89�E?9HDG98B=?h�DE�

223_3434325 67;>�;G�?ZA8>;B=?�;ICA9>F?G>�89�F;I?�DE�
I?G8?I�AGI?E�;GD>7?E�HED1898DG�DK�>7?�*8>?�@?;9?�DE�>7?�
:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?h�DE�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	���	� !���"��� !	�!�	# ���!����� !	�� $���		
%&'�%()�*+,-.,/0/	

1123242425 6789�97:�;<;=:>;?@>�@A�&@BC�D8;�97:�E?B:F9�
@B�?>E?B:F9�B:;<G9�@A�%:0:G@=:BH;�A8?G<B:�9@�=:BA@BI�8>J�@A�
?9;�@KG?L89?@>;�7:B:<>E:BM�

112324242�5 67:�E:G8J�F@<GE�>@9�780:�K::>�80@?E:E�@B�
I?9?L89:E�KJ�%:0:G@=:BN;�B:8;@>8KG:�E?G?L:>F:M�

112324215O>J�8EP<;9I:>9;�?>�F@;9�@A�=:BA@BI8>F:�I8J�780:�8�A?Q:E�
@B�=:BF:>98L:�A::�8;�=B@0?E:E�?>�97:�;:F9?@>�@>�R@BI89�A@B�SB@=@;:E�
T78>L:�UBE:B�?>��V�����	WM��67?;�8I@<>9�;78GG�K:�A<GG�F@I=:>;89?@>�
A@B�8GG�%:0:G@=:BH;�8>E�?9;�)<KF@>9B8F9@BX;YH�F78>L:;�?>�97:�F@;9�@A�
=:BA@BI8>F:�@A�97:�R8F?G?9?:;�Z:8;:�F8<;:E�KJ�8>J�;<F7�;<;=:>;?@>[�
E:G8J�@B�?>9:BB<=9?@>M�

125 
������� !	 \	W�������	
�������]	

%?;9B?F9H;�A?>8>F?8G�@KG?L89?@>;�<>E:B�97?;�T@>9B8F9�;78GG�K:�G?I?9:E�9@�97:�=8JI:>9�@A�97:�
F@I=:>;89?@>�=B@0?E:E�?>�97?;�T@>9B8F9M��̂@9D?97;98>E?>L�8>J�@97:B�=B@0?;?@>�@A�97?;�T@>9B8F9[�
?>�>@�:0:>9�;78GG�%?;9B?F9�K:�G?8KG:[�B:L8BEG:;;�@A�D7:97:B�8>J�FG8?I�?;�K8;:E�@>�F@>9B8F9�@B�
9@B9[�A@B�8>J�;=:F?8G[�F@>;:_<:>9?8G[�?>E?B:F9�@B�?>F?E:>98G�E8I8L:;[�?>FG<E?>L[�K<9�>@9�G?I?9:E�
9@[�G@;9�=B@A?9;�@B�B:0:><:[�G@;9�K@>E?>L�F8=8F?9J[�8B?;?>L�@<9�@A�@B�?>�F@>>:F9?@>�D?97�97?;�
T@>9B8F9�A@B�97:�;:B0?F:;�=:BA@BI:E�?>�F@>>:F9?@>�D?97�97?;�T@>9B8F9M�

1�25 � �����	

OGG�>@9?F:;[�F:B9?A?F89:;�@B�@97:B�F@II<>?F89?@>;�7:B:<>E:B�;78GG�K:�;<AA?F?:>9GJ�L?0:>�8>E�;78GG�
K:�E::I:E�9@�780:�K::>�B:F:?0:E�A?0:�X.Y�E8J;�8A9:B�E:=@;?9�?>�97:�̀>?9:E�)989:;�I8?G�?>�
B:L?;9:B:E�@B�F:B9?A?:E�A@BI�D?97�=@;98L:�A<GGJ�=B:=8?E�@B�@>:�X/Y�K<;?>:;;�E8J�8A9:B�E:=@;?9�
D?97�8>�@0:B>?L79�E:G?0:BJ�;:B0?F:�D?97�=B@@A�@A�8F9<8G�E:G?0:BJa	

b\	� 	W�������c	 b\	� 	W���� d��c	
	

)8FB8I:>9@�T?9J�̀>?A?:E�)F7@@G�%?;9B?F9�
.e*.�-e97�O0:><:�
)8FB8I:>9@[�TO��f.+g-�
O99>a��hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh�

i8GA@<B�i:899J�j�TG8BCk)<GG?08>�8�l@?>9�
m:>9<B:�-,,�T8=?9@G�(8GG�)<?9:�f,,[�
)8FB8I:>9@[�TO[�f.+/-�
O99>a��6:E�R@@BkSB:;?E:>9�8>E�'JG:�

RB8>E;:>k%?B:F9@B�
�
n���	�	� d]	� c	
	

�

%:?EB::�)8C8?[�o;_M�
%8>>?;�&@G?0:B�':GG:J�
g,,�T8G?A@B>?8�)9B::9[�)<?9:�-,,��
)8>�RB8>F?;F@[�TO�f-///�

�

%:0:G@=:B�8>E�%?;9B?F9[�KJ�>@9?F:�L?0:>�7:B:<>E:B[�I8J�E:;?L>89:�E?AA:B:>9�8EEB:;;:;�9@�D7?F7�
;<K;:_<:>9�>@9?F:;[�F:B9?A?F89:;�@B�@97:B�F@II<>?F89?@>;�D?GG�K:�;:>9M�

1p25 q�!��!�	�\\���	

67?;�R8F?G?9?:;�Z:8;:�;78GG�?><B:�9@�97:�K:>:A?9�@A�8>E�;78GG�K:�K?>E?>L�<=@>�%:0:G@=:B�8>E�
%?;9B?F9�8>E�97:?B�B:;=:F9?0:�;<FF:;;@B;[�9B8>;A:B::;�8>E�8;;?L>;M�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

2�34  !	5�����!"��	6�����	7�8����	�9	:"�	6�����	

;<�=>?�?1?<=�@<A�@BC??D?<=�EF<=@G<?H�G<�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�I>FMKH�N?�NC?@E>?H�NA�?G=>?C�
O@C=A�@<H�=>?C?@P=?C�Q@G1?H�NA�=>?�F=>?C�O@C=AR�IME>�Q@G1?C�I>@KK�N?�KGDG=?H�=F�=>?�O@C=GEMK@C�
NC?@E>�IF�Q@G1?H�@<H�I>@KK�<F=�N?�H??D?H�=F�Q@G1?�@<A�F=>?C�NC?@E>�>?C?M<H?CS�

2�34 T����������9	

;<�=>?�?1?<=�@<A�OCF1GIGF<�FP�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�I>@KK�N?�>?KH�G<1@KGH�FC�M<?<PFCE?@NK?�NA�@<A�
EFMC=�FP�EFDO?=?<=�UMCGIHGE=GF<R�=>@=�>FKHG<B�I>@KK�<F=�G<1@KGH@=?�FC�C?<H?C�M<?<PFCE?@NK?�@<A�
F=>?C�OCF1GIGF<�>?C?FPR�M<K?II�?KGDG<@=GF<�FP�=>?�G<1@KGH�OCF1GIGF<�D@=?CG@KKA�@K=?CI�=>?�CGB>=I�
@<H�FNKGB@=GF<I�?DNFHG?H�G<�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�FC�=>?�*G=?�L?@I?S�

2V34 5��"���"��W	���"���	�"�	$!��X�����!"�	

YZE?O=�@I�=F�=>?�=?CDG<@=GF<�CGB>=I�FP�NF=>�[@C=G?I�@I�G<HGE@=?H�>?C?G<R�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�
D@A�<F=�N?�@D?<H?HR�E>@<B?HR�DFHGPG?HR�@K=?C?H�FC�=?CDG<@=?H�QG=>FM=�=>?�QCG==?<�
@BC??D?<=�FP�NF=>�[@C=G?I�>?C?=FS�

2\34  ��] ��] ��	
����	

>̂GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�I>@KK�N?�H??D?H�@<H�EF<I=CM?H�=F�N?�@�_<?=̀<?=̀<?=�K?@I?a�@<H�=>?�&GI=CGE=�
>?C?NA�@BC??I�=>@=�@KK�O@AD?<=I�G=�D@b?I�OMCIM@<=�=F�=>?�c)[�OCF1GIGF<I�G<��d�����	��I>@KK�
N?�@<�@NIFKM=?�<?=�C?=MC<�=F�&?1?KFO?CR�PC??�@<H�EK?@C�FP�@<A�?ZO?<I?IR�E>@CB?I�FC�I?=̀FPPIS�

�34 �d��#��!"	�"	�!#"���8����	

>̂GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�D@A�N?�?Z?EM=?H�G<�I?1?C@K�EFM<=?CO@C=IR�?@E>�FP�Q>GE>�I>@KK�N?�@<�
FCGBG<@K�@<H�@KK�FP�Q>GE>�I>@KK�EF<I=G=M=?�F<?�@<H�=>?�I@D?�G<I=CMD?<=S�

e34 f����!8��	�"�	f�������	g�8����"�������		

'>?<?1?C�M<H?C�=>?�OCF1GIGF<I�FP�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�=>?�@OOCF1@K�FP�&?1?KFO?C�FC�=>?�&GI=CGE=�
GI�C?hMGC?HR�FC�&?1?KFO?C�FC�=>?�&GI=CGE=�GI�C?hMGC?H�=F�=@b?�IFD?�@E=GF<�@=�=>?�C?hM?I=�FP�=>?�
F=>?CR�=>?�@OOCF1@K�FC�C?hM?I=�I>@KK�N?�BG1?<�PFC�&?1?KFO?C�NA�&?1?KFO?CiI�j?OC?I?<=@=G1?�@<H�
PFC�=>?�&GI=CGE=�NA�=>?�&GI=CGE=iI�j?OC?I?<=@=G1?R�@<H�@<A�O@C=A�>?C?=F�I>@KK�N?�@M=>FCGk?H�=F�
C?KA�MOF<�@<A�IME>�@OOCF1@K�FC�C?hM?I=S�

234 588�������	
��	

>̂GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�I>@KK�N?�BF1?C<?H�NA�@<H�EF<I=CM?H�G<�@EEFCH@<E?�QG=>�=>?�K@QI�FP�=>?�
*=@=?�FP�l@KGPFC<G@R�@<H�1?<M?H�G<�=>?�lFM<=A�QG=>G<�Q>GE>�=>?�*G=?�GI�KFE@=?HS�

34 5��!�"�9m�	����	

;P�?G=>?C�O@C=A�NCG<BI�@<�@E=GF<�FC�OCFE??HG<B�G<1FK1G<B�=>?�[CFO?C=A�FC�=F�?<PFCE?�=>?�=?CDI�
FP�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�FC�=F�H?EK@C?�CGB>=I�>?C?M<H?CR�?@E>�O@C=A�I>@KK�N?@C�=>?�EFI=�FP�G=I�FQ<�
@==FC<?AIi�P??IS�

�34 ��8��!"�	

>̂?�E@O=GF<I�FC�>?@HG<BI�G<�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?�@C?�PFC�EF<1?<G?<E?�F<KA�@<H�G<�<F�Q@A�H?PG<?R�
KGDG=�FC�H?IECGN?�=>?�IEFO?�FC�G<=?<=�FP�@<A�OCF1GIGF<I�FC�I?E=GF<I�FP�=>GI�J@EGKG=G?I�L?@I?S�



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

234 ���!�	5������"��	

6789�:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?�;AB�>7?�<CDD?9ECAB8AF�*8>?�@?;9?�<C==?<>81?=G�<CA>;8A�;==�CH�>7?�
;FD??I?A>9�CH�>7?�J;D>8?9�7?D?>C�K8>7�D?9E?<>�>C�;AG�I;>>?D�<C1?D?B�CD�I?A>8CA?B�8A�>789�
:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?�;AB�AC�ED8CD�;FD??I?A>9�CD�LAB?D9>;AB8AF�E?D>;8A8AF�>C�;AG�I;>>?D�97;==�M?�
?HH?<>81?�HCD�;AG�ELDEC9?N����

�34 �#�����	5��#��"���		

J;D>8?9�97;==�EDCIE>=G�?O?<L>?�;AB�B?=81?D�;==�BC<LI?A>9�;AB�8A9>DLI?A>9�D?;9CA;M=G�
D?PL?9>?B�>C�F81?�?HH?<>�>C�>7?�EDC1898CA9�CH�>789�:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?N��

Q34 R�������	�"�	�S������	T"�!�U!�����			

67?�V?<8>;=9�9?>�HCD>7�;>�>7?�M?F8AA8AF�CH�>789�:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?�;AB�>7?�;>>;<7?B�WO78M8>9�;D?�
7?D?MG�8A<CDECD;>?B�8A>C�8>9�>?DI9�;AB�EDC1898CA9�MG�>789�D?H?D?A<?N�

�34 X���	!Y	���	����"��	

68I?�89�CH�>7?�?99?A<?�K8>7�D?9E?<>�>C�?;<7�CH�>7?�>?DI9Z�<C1?A;A>9Z�;AB�<CAB8>8CA9�CH�>789�
:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?N�

[34 �!���	$�%�#��	

\�E;D>G�97;==�M?�?O<L9?B�HDCI�>7?�E?DHCDI;A<?�CH�;AG�CM=8F;>8CA�8IEC9?B�8A�>789�:;<8=8>8?9�
@?;9?�;AB�>7?�?O78M8>9�7?D?>C�HCD�;AG�E?D8CB�;AB�>C�>7?�?O>?A>�>7;>�;�E;D>G�89�ED?1?A>?B�HDCI�
E?DHCDI8AF�>7;>�CM=8F;>8CAZ�8A�K7C=?�CD�8A�E;D>Z�;9�;�D?9L=>�CH�B?=;G9�<;L9?B�MG�>7?�C>7?D�E;D>G�
CD�>78DB�E;D>8?9Z�;�FC1?DAI?A>;=�;F?A<G�CD�?A>8>GZ�;A�;<>�CH�]CBZ�E;AB?I8<Z�K;DZ�>?DDCD89IZ�
<818=�B89>LDM;A<?Z�HCD<?9�CH�A;>LD?Z�H8D?Z�H=CCBZ�?;D>7PL;̂?Z��9>D8̂?9Z�CD�=C<̂CL>9Z�;AB�>7;>�ACA_
E?DHCDI;A<?�K8==�AC>�M?�;�B?H;L=>�7?D?LAB?D�CD�;�FDCLAB9�HCD�>?DI8A;>8CA�CH�>789�:;<8=8>8?9�
@?;9?N��

��34 T"���U������!"	

C̀A?�CH�>7?�J;D>8?9�7?D?>CZ�ACD�>7?8D�D?9E?<>81?�<CLA9?=Z�97;==�M?�B??I?B�>7?�BD;H>?D9�CH�>789�
:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?�HCD�ELDEC9?9�CH�<CA9>DL8AF�>7?�EDC1898CA9�>7?D?CHN��67?�=;AFL;F?�8A�;==�E;D>9�
CH�>789�:;<8=8>8?9�@?;9?�97;==�8A�;==�<;9?9�M?�<CA9>DL?B�;<<CDB8AF�>C�8>9�H;8D�I?;A8AFZ�AC>�9>D8<>=G�
HCD�CD�;F;8A9>�;AG�CH�>7?�J;D>8?9�7?D?>CN�

a*b]̀ \6cVW*�d̀ �̀We6�J\]Wf�

4 	



�

����������	
����		 ����	�	
����	�	�����	�������������	������	 ��	�!"���#���!"	�"�	$!���"�����!"	��!%���		
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010	

2 	324 �55	36�7�8�9�:;<�=>?:@<A�;>1<�B>CA<D�:;@A�E>B@F@:@<A�G<>A<�:H�I<�<J<BC:<D�IK�
:;<@?�?<AL<B:@1<�HMM@B<?A�N;H�>?<�DCFK�>C:;H?@O<D9�>A�HM�:;<�PMM<B:@1<�&>:<Q�

R����4�S	R S	RT7��S�HU�:;<�D>:<�@UD@B>:<D�I<FHNV��

&>:<DV�WWWWWWWWWW9�X-WW�
�
�
*>B?>Y<U:H�Z@:K�[U@M@<D�*B;HHF�&@A:?@B:��
�
�
�
\KV�� � � � � � � � � � � � �

]>Y<V�� � � � � � � � � � � �
�
@̂:F<V��� � � � � � � � � � � �

&>:<DV�WWWWWWWWWW9�X-WW�
�
�
\>FMHC?�\<>::K�_�ZF>?̀a*CFF@1>U�>�bH@U:�
c<U:C?<�
�
\KV�� � � � � � � � � � � � �

]>Y<V�� � � � � � � � � � � �
�
@̂:F<V��� � � � � � � � � � � �

�
	

defghijkilgmfnn

oepqfrphstilgnfuvehfgiwfxfqfvhiyz{i|ghg}fh}ioges~�

�vxp��pei��iiiiiiiiii��



�

�����������	�
��������������� ���������
��������������������������� �!���"����	#���$���	#��#��%	���#�����	#���	&�������
'()�'*+�,-./0.121�

�345657���

��8���9�:�;5�75<"�<
�:57��

���������������������9�����=��	#�>	�?�

��	&���?���@ABCD�@EC2AFGHIJCDI�)AKLMA�NAJ�@OPBQDRSQTOP�CPI�*OIADPTFCQTOP�UDOVASQ�
���������?��W/X0�YXQE�+QDAAQ�+CSDCKAPQOZ�@[��X0-YY�CPI�W0..�,YPI�+QDAAQ�+CSDCKAPQOZ�
@[�X0-YY�
��"?��./X.1-,..Y....�
�
U\]�̂\_�̀[̀�*H['\(abH(�_H]][@H�cNb_�N\�/�'H+�[+�̂dbNe�(�\f�,YN'�+_�+�\f�
_\]]HN@H�[aH�g�N�\f�[�̂b�NH�(hb@h�iH[]+�N�-jk0ẀY,l�H�f]\*�_hH�N(�@\]�\f�̂\_�
1�\f�ecb̂'�H+_[_H+�iHbNe�fc]_hH]�'H+Z�bN�]�*�i)�jj�Ue�1.�g�_h[_�U\]�̂dbNe�H�\f�
YX_h�+_�@\N_�e�1m/1�no�N�f* d̂�./Xo.-,o.1�
�
[PI�
�
��"?��./X.1Wj..Y....��
�
U\]�̂\_�̀[̀�*H['\(abH(�_H]][@H�cNb_�N\�/�'H+�[+�̂dbNe�(�\f�,YN'�+_Z�+�\f�
_\]]HN@H�[aH�g�N�\f�[�̂�bNH�(hb@h�iH[]+�N�-jk0ẀY,l�H�f]\*�_hH�N(�@\]�\f�̂\_G�
\f�ecb̂'�H+_[_H+�iHbNe�fc]_hH]�'H+�bN�]�*�i)�jj�U[eH�1.�g�_h[_�U\]�̂dbNe�H�\f�
YX_h�+_�@\N_�e�-mW1�no�N�f* d̂�./Xo1Wjo.1�
�
�
�
�
�



�

����������	
����������������� ���������
���������������������� ����!�"����#� ��
$���%��
$��$��&
���$�����
$���
'�����
()*�(+,�-./01/232�

�

�456�6	���

7�8�96�	6:#�:���9:;��	��

<������������"�=�
��������"�
>�����8�������������%�'����
�����������������������$��
%=
$� ����7����
=��� ����
$���%��������
'��?�

�

� �

�



�

�����������	�
��������������� ���������
����������������������������� ���!����	"���#���	"��"��$	���"�����	"���	%�����
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010�

�234546���

789:9!6��;�$924$8$��:4���9!;��
<63�:��:<=��6��<>6?�
8!;4!7?�9!;��9@$�!6��:<A4>4<!>�

BCCDEFGH�DIG�CFG�CGIJK�DLH�MIN1OKONLK�IGPDCGH�CN�*OCG�QGDKG�MDRJGLCKS�CFG�TDEOPOCOGK�QGDKGS�
CFG�UVDIDLCGGH�)DWOJVJ�XIOEG�DLH�NCFGI�IGPDCGH�ENKCS�YVLHOLZS�DLH�MDRJGLC�MIN1OKONLK[�

�
\ �



�

����������	
����������������� ���������

���������������������� ����!�"����#� ��
$���%��
$��$��&
���$�����
$���
'������ �

()*�(+,�-./01/232�

�45676	���

8�#�9:���;#<	9=�	6;#��9;>6<6;#<�

?@@ABCDE�AFD�@CD�GDHDFAI�BJHK@FLB@MJH�@DFNK�AHE�BJHEM@MJHK�OJF�@CD�PFJQDB@R



�

���������	
������������������� �����	
�
�
�������������������� ���!�"����#� ���$���%����$�$��&����$�����$����'���������������
()*�(+,�-./01/232�

�456768��	
�
�

9���6:���;#�686;#9�
�

<==>?@AB�>CA�=@A�DEA?F>G�=ACHD�>IB�?JIBF=FJID�KJC�=@A�LCJMA?=N�



�

�������������	
���������
�� �
������
���������
����
������
���� ���!����"���#����"�
"��$���"��
���"����%���������������
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010�

�234546���
�

$�$789!:;$�7	��7$$�!��$�!6�:96��
�
� <=>?�)@)ABCD&E)�AF�GA))@DG@)@D<�&C<@�>?�HIJKH�LLLLLLLLLLLLLM�N-LLM�IOH�>?�
PIHK�QR�IOH�QKJSKKO�TIUVWXY�TKIJJR�Z�GUIY[\*XUU>1IO�I�]W>OJ�̂KOJXYK��_̀&K1KUWaKYbcM�I?�
dK??WYM�IOH�J=K�*IeYIPKOJW�G>JR�EO>V>KH�*e=WWU�&>?JY>eJ�_̀&>?JY>eJbcM�I?�dK??KKf�
�
0f�&K1KUWaKY�IOH�&>?JY>eJ�=I1K�aYK1>WX?UR�KOJKYKH�>OJW�I�FIe>U>J>K?�dKI?K�HIJKH�I?�WV�
LLLLLLLLLLLLLM�N-LLM�_J=K�̀dKI?Kbc�VWY�J=K�UKI?>Og�QR�&K1KUWaKY�JW�&>?JY>eJ�WV�J=K�eWPaUKJKH�
hYWiKeJ�>O�jG>JRkM�GIU>VWYO>IM�YKVKYKOeKH�>O�J=K�dKI?Kf�
�
Nf�&>?JY>eJ�=KYKQR�eWOV>YP?�J=K�VWUUWS>Ogl�
�

Cf�<=IJ�IUU�eWO?JYXeJ>WO�WV�J=K�hYWiKeJ�YKmX>YKH�JW�QK�aKYVWYPKH�aXY?XIOJ�JW�J=K�
FIe>U>J>K?�dKI?K�=I?�QKKO�eWPaUKJKH�QR�&K1KUWaKY�>O�IUU�YK?aKeJ?n�
�

Tf�<=IJ�&>?JY>eJ�=I?�IeeKaJKH�IOH�KOJKYKH�>OJW�aW??K??>WO�WV�J=K�hYWiKeJ�IOH�OWS�
WeeXa>K?�?IPKn�IOH�
�

Gf�<=IJ�J=K�JKYP�VWY�J=K�dKI?K�hIRPKOJ?�XOHKY�J=K�FIe>U>J>K?�dKI?K�eWPPKOeKH�WO�
LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLM�N-LL�IOH�S>UU�Koa>YK�IJ�00l/p�hf)f�WO�LLLLLLLLLLLM�N-LLf�
�
634q�$�$789!:;$�7	��7$$�!��$�!6�:96��4q�9����6�:�9!:�9r8��:�WO�J=K�
HIJK�>OH>eIJKH�QKUWSl��
�
�
&IJKHl�LLLLLLLLLL�LL�M�N-LL�
�
�
*IeYIPKOJW�G>JR�EO>V>KH�*e=WWU�&>?JY>eJ��
�
�
�
TRl�� � � � � � � � � � � � �

DIPKl�� � � � � � � � � � � �
�
<>JUKl��� � � � � � � � � � � �

&IJKHl�LLLLLLLLLL�LL�M�N-LL�
�
�
TIUVWXY�TKIJJR�Z�GUIY[\*XUU>1IO�I�]W>OJ�
K̂OJXYK��
�
TRl�� � � � � � � � � � � � �

DIPKl�� � � � � � � � � � � �
�
<>JUKl��� � � � � � � � � � � �
�

�
�



�

�����������	��
���������
�� �
������
���������
����
������
���� ���!���	"���#���	"�
"��$	��"��
��	"���	%���������������
&'(�&)*�+,-./-010�

�234546���
�

�7!869:�647!�8�3�;:���
�
<==>?@AB�CD�>�BA=>CEAB�FGHIA?=�JHKD=GL?=CHK�*?@ABLEA�MC=@�>�BLG>=CHK�KH�EHKNAG�=@>K�=@A�
JHK=G>?=�OCPAQ�>KB�MC=@�DRA?CSC?�PCEAD=HKAD�=@>=�&A1AEHRAG�D@>EE�PAA=T���
�
UOH�VA�<==>?@AB�WC>�<BBAKBLPTX�
�
�
�



�

�����������	�
��������������� ����������
��������������������������� �!���"����	#���$���	#��#��%	���#�����	#���	&����������������
'()�'*+�,-./0.121�

�345657���
�

8�4�9:���;
�<=�:�8�
� �

>??@ABCD�EF�@�DC?@EGCD�+ABCDHGC�IJ�K@GHCF�?B@?�AILMGECF�NE?B�?BC�OCPHEOCLCQ?F�IJ�?BC�
RIQF?OHA?EIQ�SOI2EFEIQF�TUVBEWE?�X'YZ�@QD�?B@?�B@F�WCCQ�@MMOI2CD�W[�?BC�'EF?OEA?\�
�
]̂I�_C�>??@ABCD�KE@�>DDCQDHL\̀



�

�����������	�
��������������� ����������
���������������������� ����!�"���#� ��	$���%���	$��$��&	���$�����	$���	'����������������
()*�(+,�-./01/232�

�4�5657���

�

�89:��7���698���8��&�#7�

�

������������������	'�������	���;���"�$���<<�������	��������	'���=�
�



�

�
�����������

�
�	
�����	
���	
��	��	�������	��	�����������
�
�
	���������������� �!"#$%��$�&�'()��*�%��+,�-�./-0+,��,$�1+$��,0!�-0+,�2�+3�/-���
�44
�55�5���6789�:8-��;-���-�;�/��'�,-+<��=��89>::��,$�69??�@:,$�;-���-�;�/��'�,-+<�
�=��89>::�
��A���?78?B6C??:????��,$�?78?B>@??:????�
�
DE���4�F�������
�
;�/��'�,-+��0-G�H,0I0�$�;/�++)�J0�-�0/-�
96@9�76-��= �,.��
;�/��'�,-+<��=��89>:7�
�
��4�
�
K�)I+.��K��--G�L��)��M";.))0 �,���N+0,-�O�,-.����
7??���P0-+)�1�))�;.0-��8??<�
;�/��'�,-+<��=<�89>B7�
J�-�$����+I�J�/�'(���B9<�:?::



�

�
���������	�
��
���

�����������

����

��� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 �� �������!"��������#�$�!����%��������������������������������������������������������������������������������

&�� ��#'������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(�� �)'����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

*�� ��#'����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

+�� ���,������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

-�� �'.#�/�'���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�0�� 
��1�#��#�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

���� 2�����������#)���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

���� 34������$�)'��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

���� 5������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

� �� �4#���#����4#��!�����%�	�##�!��/������#4'��������������������������������������������������������� �

�&�� 2�.#�����������������������#�!������������������������������������������������������������������������������ �

�(�� 67897:7;<=<>?;:�?@�<A7���/�,�.�#�������������������������������������������������������������������������������&�

�*�� ���4#��!����%���%�'���)������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�+�� ������'������%��4�,���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�-�� 2���#�!�������������#�!�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

�0�� ��������%��4#���#���!4'�#��!����������������������������������������������������������������������������(�

���� 
���!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�

���� ���%��������!�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�

���� 
���%%������,�5��/�#��'.,��%��)�����5��/�#���������������������������������������������������������*�

� �� ��/�#���,��)�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�

�&�� �'��%'����B�	���������%�1�%���!��������������������������������������������������������������������*�

�(�� CDE>F=<>?;:�GD:?EH<7������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�

�*�� ���!4��������	�4���#.�#�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�

�+�� ��/�,�.�#���%�����#�!��2�.#��������/�������������������������������������������������������������������+�

�-�� �..,�!��,����I���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�

�0�� ����#��)J��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�

���� 	�.����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+�



�

���� �����	
��������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��

���� �������	
���������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��

���� ��������	�������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��

���� ���	��	���	 ������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��

�!�� "#$%&�'()&*$&	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	+�

�,�� ��������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	+�

� -./0102�3�4�5&6(7�8&9%$0:20#;�#<�=02&	����������������������������������������������������������������������������	>?�

� -./0102�@�4�8&9%$0:20#;�#<�A$#)&%2		��������������������������������������������������������������������������	>>	

	



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

�23����4���
'

5678'879:';:<8:'=>)79:'?:<8:@A'B<9:B'<8'CD'$:E:FG:H'1.I'/,//'=>JDD:E970:'$<9:@AI'78'
F<B:'<KB':K9:H:B'7K9C'GL'<KB'G:9M::K'96:')<EH<F:K9C'N79L'OK7D7:B')E6CC;'$789H7E9I'<'8E6CC;'
B789H7E9'BP;L'CHQ<K7R:B'<KB'0<;7B;L':S7897KQ'PKB:H'96:';<M8'CD'96:')9<9:'CD'N<;7DCHK7<I'<8';:88CH'
=>$789H7E9@AI'<KB'T<;DCPH'T:<99L'U'N;<HVW)P;;70<K'<'XC7K9'Y:K9PH:''=>$:0:;CZ:H@AI'<'N<;7DCHK7<'
XC7K9'Y:K9PH:'BP;L'CHQ<K7R:B'<KB':S7897KQ'PKB:H'96:';<M8'CD'96:')9<9:'CD'N<;7DCHK7<I'<8';:88::'
=9CQ:96:HI'96:'>[<H97:8@A\''

]��234��'
'

^_�]�4�I'96:'$789H7E9'EPHH:K9;L'CMK8'9MC'=/A'Z<HE:;8'CD';<KB';CE<9:BI'̀K:'78';CE<9:B'
<9'a-b.'/b96')9H::9')<EH<F:K9CI'Nc''b.+//I'<KB'78'VKCMK'<8'JBM<HB'&:FG;:'J;:F:K9<HL'
)E6CC;I'<KB'96:'C96:H'78';CE<9:B'<9'a.,,'*/KB')9H::9')<EH<F:K9CI'Nc''b.+//I'<KB'78'VKCMK'<8'
N:8<H'J'N6<0:R'J;:F:K9<HL')E6CC;\''(CH:'Z<H97EP;<H;L'B:8EH7G:B'7K'�d������4�<KB'86CMK'CK'
�d������e'<99<E6:B'6:H:9C'<KB'7KECHZCH<9:B'6:H:7K'GL'9678'H:D:H:KE:'=>)79:@Af'<KB'

'
^_�]�4�I'96:'$789H7E9'B:87H:8'9C'ZHC07B:'DCH'96:'B:0:;CZF:K9'<KB'ECK89HPE97CK'CD'

E:H9<7K'MCHV'9C'G:'Z:HDCHF:B'CK'ZCH97CK8'CD'96:')79:I'7KE;PB7KQ'ECK89HPE97CK'CD'7FZHC0:F:K98'
9C'G:'VKCMK'<8'96:'N:8<H'N6<0:RWJBM<HB'&:FG;:'g:M'NCK89HPE97CK'<KB'(CB:HK7R<97CK'[HCh:E9'
=>[HCh:E9@Af'<KB''

'
^_�]�4�I'<8'FCH:'Z<H97EP;<H;L'B:8EH7G:B'7K'96:'i<E7;797:8'?:<8:'G:9M::K'96:'[<H97:8'

B<9:B'<8'CD'96:'JDD:E970:'$<9:I'96:'$:0:;CZ:H'<QH::8'9C'Z:HDCHF'96:'MCHV'CD'96:'[HCh:E9'<KB'
;:<8:'96:'ECFZ;:9:B'[HCh:E9'<KB')79:'G<EV'9C'96:'$789H7E9'=>i<E7;797:8'?:<8:@AI'M67E6'i<E7;797:8'
?:<8:'78'7KECHZCH<9:B'6:H:7K'GL'9678'H:D:H:KE:f'<KB'

'
^_�]�4�I'96:'jC0:HK7KQ'TC<HB'CD'96:'$789H7E9'=>TC<HB@A'6<8'B:9:HF7K:B'96<9'79'78'7K'

96:'G:89'7K9:H:898'CD'96:'$789H7E9'<KB'DCH'96:'ECFFCK'G:K:D79'CD'96:'E797R:K8'H:87B7KQ'7K'96:'
$789H7E9'9C'ECK89HPE9'96:'[HCh:E9'GL';:<87KQ'96:')79:'9C'$:0:;CZ:H'<KB'GL'7FF:B7<9:;L':K9:H7KQ'
7K9C'96:'i<E7;797:8'?:<8:'PKB:H'M67E6'$789H7E9'M7;;'ECK89HPE9'96:'[HCh:E9'<KB';:<8:'G<EV'96:'
ECFZ;:9:B'[HCh:E9'<KB')79:'DHCF'$:0:;CZ:Hf'<KB'

'
^_�]�4�I'96:'$789H7E9'DPH96:H'B:9:HF7K:8'96<9'79'6<8':K9:H:B'7K9C'9678')79:'?:<8:'<KB'

96:'i<E7;797:8'?:<8:'ZPH8P<K9'9C'JBPE<97CK'NCB:'8:E97CK'1a-,k'<8'96:'G:89'<0<7;<G;:'<KB'FC89'
:SZ:B797CP8'F:<K8'DCH'96:'$789H7E9'9C'8<978DL'798'8PG89<K97<;'K::B'DCH'96:'D<E7;797:8'9C'G:'ZHC07B:B'
GL'96:'[HCh:E9'<KB'9C'<EECFFCB<9:'<KB':BPE<9:'$789H7E9'89PB:K98f'<KB'

^_�]�4�I'9678')79:'?:<8:'<KB'i<E7;797:8'?:<8:'<H:'<M<HB:B'G<8:B'CK'<'ECFZ:97970:'
8C;7E79<97CK'ZHCE:88'ZPH8P<K9'9C'JBPE<97CK'NCB:'8:E97CK'1a-,k'<KB'7K'ECFZ;7<KE:'M796'96:'
H:lP7H:B'ZHCE:BPH:8'<KB'QP7B:;7K:8'DCH':0<;P<97KQ'96:'lP<;7D7E<97CK8'CD'ZHCZC8:H8'<BCZ9:B'<KB'
ZPG;786:B'GL'96:'TC<HB'9C'96:'ZHCZC8:H'ZHC07B7KQ'96:'G:89'0<;P:'9C'96:'8E6CC;'B789H7E9I'9<V7KQ'
7K9C'ECK87B:H<97CK'96:'ZHCZC8:Hm8'B:FCK89H<9:B'ECFZ:9:KE:'<KB'ZHCD:887CK<;'lP<;7D7E<97CK8'
K:E:88<HL'DCH'96:'8<978D<E9CHL'Z:HDCHF<KE:'CD'96:'8:H07E:8'H:lP7H:Bf'<KB'

^_�]�4�I'96:'8:;:E97CK'CD'96:'$:0:;CZ:H'M<8'ECKBPE9:B'7K'<'D<7H'<KB'7FZ<H97<;'
F<KK:Hf'<KB'

^_�]�4�I'G<8:B'CK'96:'<GC0:'D7KB7KQ8I'96:'$789H7E9'78'<P96CH7R:B'PKB:H'JBPE<97CK'
NCB:'8:E97CK'1a-,k'9C';:<8:'96:')79:'9C'$:0:;CZ:H'<KB'9C'6<0:'$:0:;CZ:H'B:0:;CZ'<KB'E<P8:'
96:'ECK89HPE97CK'CD'96:'[HCh:E9'96:H:CK'<KB';:<8:'96:'ECFZ;:9:B'[HCh:E9'<KB')79:'G<EV'9C'96:'
$789H7E9'GL'F:<K8'CD'96:'i<E7;797:8'?:<8:I'<KB'96:'TC<HB'6<8'BP;L'<P96CH7R:B'96:':S:EP97CK'<KB'
B:;70:HL'CD'9678')79:'?:<8:'7K'CHB:H'9C':DD:E9P<9:'96:'DCH:QC7KQf'<KB'



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

'
'
23�4�5�6'789':;<7=9>'8;09'?9<@A<B9C';DD';E7>6'EAFC=7=AF>';FC'78=FG>'<9HI=<9C'JK'D;L'

7A'9M=>76'7A'8;09'8;??9F9C6';FC'7A'8;09'J99F'?9<@A<B9C'?<=A<'7A';FC'=F'EAFF9E7=AF'L=78'789'
9M9EI7=AF';FC'9F79<=FG'=F7A'78=>')=79'N9;>96';FC'78A>9'EAFC=7=AF>'?<9E9C9F7'CA'9M=>76'8;09'
8;??9F9C6';FC'8;09'J99F'?9<@A<B9C'=F'<9GID;<';FC'CI9'7=B96'@A<B6';FC'B;FF9<';>'<9HI=<9C'
JK'D;L6';FC'789':;<7=9>'89<97A';<9'FAL'CIDK';I78A<=O9C'7A'9M9EI79';FC'9F79<'=F7A'78=>')=79'
N9;>9P';FC'

23�4�5�6'$909DA?9<';>'D9>>99'=>';I78A<=O9C';FC'EAB?979F7'7A'D9;>9'789')=79'@<AB'
$=>7<=E7';FC'7A'C909DA?';FC'E;I>9'789'EAF>7<IE7=AF'A@'789':<AQ9E7'AF'789')=796';FC'8;>'CIDK'
;I78A<=O9C'789'9M9EI7=AF';FC'C9D=09<K'A@'78=>')=79'N9;>9R'
'

�S2T�U3�4�VS4�6'=F'EAF>=C9<;7=AF'A@'789'?<AB=>9>';FC'A@'789'BI7I;D'EA09F;F7>'
EAF7;=F9C'89<9=F6';FC'A789<'0;DI;JD9'EAF>=C9<;7=AF6'789'<9E9=?7';FC'>I@@=E=9FEK'A@'L8=E8'=>'
89<9JK';EWFALD9CG9C6'789':;<7=9>'89<97A'CA'89<9JK';G<99';>'@ADDAL>X'
'
YZ[ \�]����������'
�
F̂D9>>'789'EAF79M7'ED9;<DK'A789<L=>9'<9HI=<9>6';DD'LA<C>';FC'?8<;>9>'C9@=F9C'=F'789'_;E=D=7=9>'
N9;>9'>8;DD'8;09'789'>;B9'B9;F=FG'=F'78=>')=79'N9;>9R'
'

Z[ �̀ ��������'
'
a89'@ADDAL=FG'bM8=J=7>';<9';77;E89C'7A';FC'JK'<9@9<9FE9'=FEA<?A<;79C';FC'B;C9';'?;<7'A@'78=>'
)=79'N9;>9R'
'


ZYZ[ �̀ ������5�����	���\��!��c������]���������X''a89'D9G;D'C9>E<=?7=AF'A@'789'<9;D'
?<A?9<7K'EAF>7=7I7=FG'789')=79R'
'

Z
Z[ �̀ ������d���\��!��c������]��������#�!�X''a89'B;?'A<'C=;G<;B'C9?=E7=AF'A@'789'
:<AQ9E7'AF'789')=79R'

'
eZ[ �������]���������''
'
a89'$=>7<=E7'89<9JK'D9;>9>'7A'789'$909DA?9<6';FC'789'$909DA?9<'89<9JK'D9;>9>'@<AB'789'$=>7<=E7'
789')=796'>IJQ9E7'AFDK'7A':9<B=779C'bFEIBJ<;FE9>6'=F';EEA<C;FE9'L=78'789'?<A0=>=AF>'A@'78=>'
)=79'N9;>96'7A'8;09';FC'7A'8ADC'@A<'789'79<B'A@'78=>')=79'N9;>9R''a8=>')=79'N9;>9'>8;DD'AFDK'7;W9'
9@@9E7'=@'789'_;E=D=7=9>'N9;>9'=>'9M9EI79C'JK'789'$=>7<=E7';FC'$909DA?9<'L=78=F'78<99'f*g'C;K>'A@'
9M9EI7=AF'A@'78=>')=79'N9;>9R''
'
�Z[ �������!h��]��������#�!�����������'
�
a89':;<7=9>';G<99'78;7'789'EAB?D979C':<AQ9E7';FC')=79'L=DD'J9'D9;>9C'J;EW'7A'789'$=>7<=E7'
?I<>I;F7'7A'789'_;E=D=7=9>'N9;>9'@A<'789'79<B'789<9A@R'''
'
iZ[ U���''�
�
a89'79<B'A@'78=>')=79'N9;>9'>8;DD'EABB9FE9';>'A@'789'b@@9E7=09'$;79';FC'>8;DD'79<B=F;79'AF'
789'D;>7'C;K'A@'789'a9<B'A@'789'_;E=D=7=9>'N9;>96'?<A0=C9C'789'$=>7<=E7'8;>'?;=C'7A'789'$909DA?9<6'
A<'=7>';>>=GF996';DD'?;KB9F7>'L8=E8'B;K'J9'CI9'IFC9<'789'_;E=D=7=9>'N9;>96';FC'?<A0=C9C'78=>'
)=79'N9;>9'8;>'FA7'J99F'79<B=F;79C'?I<>I;F7'7A'789'79<B=F;7=AF'?<A0=>=AF>'A@'789'_;E=D=7=9>'
N9;>9R'�



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

'
23 ��4����'''
�
56'7869:;<=>?:86'@8='?A<'B<>9<'8@'?A<'):?<'CD'?A<'$:9?=:7?'?8'?A<'$<0<B8E<='>6;'@8='8?A<='F88;'
>6;'0>BG>CB<'7869:;<=>?:86H'?A<'$<0<B8E<='9A>BB'E>D'I6<'$8BB>='JK1L,,M'?8'?A<'$:9?=:7?'GE86'
<N<7G?:86'8@'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<L'''
�
P23 Q�����������
�

P2R23 Q�����������ST���� �!������U����#�!�'''
'
5@'?A<'$:9?=:7?'<N<=7:9<9':?9'8E?:86'?8'EG=7A>9<'?A<'V=8W<7?'EG=9G>6?'?8'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'
O<>9<H'?A<6'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<'9A>BB'?<=Y:6>?<'7867G==<6?BD'Z:?A'?A<'$:9?=:7?[9'CGD'8G?'>6;'
?<=Y:6>?:86'8@'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<L'
'
P2\23 Q�����������] �����]�U� ����4�]�����T��''�
'
5@'$<0<B8E<=';<@>GB?9'EG=9G>6?'?8'?A<'E=80:9:86J9M'8@'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<'>6;'?A<'$:9?=:7?'
?<=Y:6>?<9'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<'EG=9G>6?'?8'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<'E=80:9:86J9M'>BB8Z:6F'
?<=Y:6>?:86H'?A<6'?A<'$<0<B8E<='9A>BB'C<';<<Y<;'?8'C<':6';<@>GB?'8@'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<'
>6;'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<'9A>BB'>B98'?<=Y:6>?<'>?'?A<'9>Y<'?:Y<'>9'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<L�
�
P2
23 Q�����������] �����]�U� ����4�]�����!�'''
'
5@'$:9?=:7?';<@>GB?9'EG=9G>6?'?8'?A<'E=80:9:86J9M'8@'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<H'?A<'$<0<B8E<=H'
8=':?9'>99:F6<<H'Z:BB'A>0<'?A<'=:FA?H'@8='?A<'?A<6'=<Y>:6:6F'?<=Y'8@'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<H'?8̂''

'
P2
2R23_>̀<'E899<99:86'8@'?A<'):?<L''
'
P2
2\235@':?';<<Y9':?'>EE=8E=:>?<H'7>G9<'>EE=>:9>B'8@'?A<'):?<'>6;'>'9?G;D'8@'?A<'
?A<6'=<>986>CB<'G9<9'?A<=<8@L''
'
P2
2
23a<bB<?'?A<'):?<c'>6;'
'
P2
2�23)?8E'>BB'%8=̀'>9987:>?<;'Z:?A'?A<'):?<'O<>9<L'''

'
d23 Q������������''�
'
$G=:6F'?A<'?<=Y'8@'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<H'?A<'$:9?=:7?'9A>BB'A8B;'@<<'?:?B<'?8'?A<'):?<H':67BG;:6F'?A<'
):?<H'>6;'68?A:6F':6'?A:9'):?<'O<>9<'8='?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<'9A>BB'7A>6F<H':6'>6D'Z>DH'?A<'
$:9?=:7?[9'8Z6<=9A:E':6?<=<9?':6'?A<'):?<L�
'
e23 f�T������������
�
_:?B<'?8'>BB':YE=80<Y<6?9'Y>;<'86'?A<'):?<';G=:6F'?A<'?<=Y'A<=<8@'9A>BB'C<'A<B;H'0<9?'>6;'
?=>69@<='EG=9G>6?'?8'?A<'?<=Y9'8@'?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<L'�
'
R�23 ���"��	��'''
'
_A<'B<>9<C>7̀'8@'?A<'78YEB<?<;'V=8W<7?'>6;'):?<'CD'?A<'$<0<B8E<='?8'?A<'$:9?=:7?'EG=9G>6?'?8'
?A<'X>7:B:?:<9'O<>9<'9A>BB'68?'<@@<7?'8='=<9GB?':6'>'Y<=F<='8@'?A<'<9?>?<9'8@'?A<'$:9?=:7?':6'?A<'



�

����������� � ��	��
�
�
������������������������������������������ ���������!����������������"� ��
#$%&#'(&)*+,-+./0&

(1234&567&283&#3/39:;3<&=8599&>:6216?3&2:&85/3&5&935=38:97&3=2523&16&283&(123&;?<=?562&2:&281=&
(123&@35=3&28<:?A8:?2&283&23<B&83<3:CD&
&
EEFG H�	����I�����J&&&
&
K83&#1=2<1>2&<3=3</3=&283&<1A82&C:<&56L&:C&12=&7?9L&5?28:<1M37&<3;<3=362521/3=&2:&3623<&?;:6&283&
(123&52&56L&<35=:65N93&21B3&2:&16=;3>2&283&=5B34&;<:/1737&283&#1=2<1>2&C:99:O=&599&=5C32L&
;<3>5?21:6=&<3P?1<37&NL&283&#3/39:;3<D&
�
EQFG R�������"�J����&&
&
(?NS3>2&2:&56L&<1A82=&283&#1=2<1>2&B5L&85/3&?673<&283&T5>191213=&@35=3&U16&283&5N=36>3&:C&56&
V/362&:C&#3C5?92W&2:&;:==3==1:6&567&36S:LB362&:C&283&(1234&283&#1=2<1>2&83<3NL&>:/36562=&567&
5A<33=&2852&12&O199&6:2&25X3&56L&5>21:6&2:&;<3/362&283&#3/39:;3<&C<:B&85/16A&P?132&567&
;35>35N93&;:==3==1:6&567&36S:LB362&:C&283&(123&7?<16A&283&23<B&83<3:C&567&O1994&52&283&
<3P?3=2&:C&283&#3/39:;3<4&2:&283&3Y2362&2852&12&B5L&95OC?99L&7:&=:4&S:16&16&56L&93A59&5>21:6&16&
O81>8&283&#3/39:;3<&5==3<2=&12=&<1A82&2:&=?>8&;:==3==1:6&567&36S:LB362D&&
&
EZFG [����&&&
�
K83&#3/39:;3<&5A<33=&2852&52&599&21B3=&2852&12&1=&16&;:==3==1:6&:C&283&(1234&12&O199&6:2&>:BB124&
=?CC3<&:<&;3<B12&56L&O5=23&:6&283&(1234&567&2852&12&O199&6:2&O199C?99L&:<&X6:O16A9L&?=3&:<&;3<B12&
283&?=3&:C&283&(123&C:<&56L&1993A59&;?<;:=3&:<&5>2D&
�
E
FG \�������]������ ������������ �����̂����������&&&
�
K83&_5<213=&=85994&C<:B&21B3&2:&21B34&3Y3>?234&5>X6:O937A3&567&7391/3<4&:<&>5?=3&2:&N3&
3Y3>?2374&5>X6:O937A37&567&7391/3<374&=?>8&=?;;93B362=&83<32:&567&=?>8&C?<283<&
16=2<?B362=&5=&B5L&<35=:65N9L&N3&<3P?1<37&C:<&>:<<3>216A&56L&16573P?523&:<&16>:<<3>2&
73=><1;21:6&:C&283&(123&83<3NL&935=37&:<&16236737&=:&2:&N3&:<&C:<&>5<<L16A&:?2&283&3Y;<3==37&
1623621:6&:C&281=&(123&@35=3&567&283&T5>191213=&@35=3D&
&
È FG H�a��������������I�����b����� �&&&
�
K83&#1=2<1>2&<3;<3=362=4&>:/36562=&567&O5<<562=&2:&283&#3/39:;3<&5=&C:99:O=c&
&

È FEFGb���d�	���������������e����� ���&
�
K83&#1=2<1>2&1=&5&=>8::9&71=2<1>24&7?9L&:<A561M37&567&3Y1=216A&?673<&283&f:6=212?21:6&567&
95O=&:C&283&(2523&:C&f591C:<615D&
&
È FQFG]������������&&&
&
K83&#1=2<1>2&85=&283&C?99&;:O3<&567&5?28:<12L&2:&3623<&162:4&2:&3Y3>?23&567&2:&7391/3<&
281=&(123&@35=34&567&2:&;3<C:<B&599&:C&12=&7?213=&567&:N91A521:6=&83<3?673<4&567&85=&7?9L&
5?28:<1M37&283&3Y3>?21:6&:C&281=&(123&@35=3D&
&
È FZFG���g���������&&&
&
K:&283&N3=2&:C&283&#1=2<1>2h=&5>2?59&X6:O937A34&631283<&283&3Y3>?21:6&567&7391/3<L&:C&
281=&(123&@35=3&6:<&283&T5>191213=&@35=34&6:<&283&C?9C199B362&:C&:<&>:B;9156>3&O128&283&
23<B=&567&>:67121:6=&83<3:C&:<&283<3:C4&6:<&283&>:6=?BB521:6&:C&283&2<56=5>21:6=&
>:623B;95237&83<3NL&:<&283<3NL4&>:6C91>2=&O128&:<&<3=?92=&16&5&N<35>8&:C&283&23<B=4&



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

2345676348'39':930686348'3;'<4='9>879627634'39'<4='<?9>>@>47'39'64879A@>47'73'BC62C'
7C>'$6879627'68'43B'<':<97='39'D='BC62C'7C>'$6879627'68'D3A45E'39'2348767A7>8'<'5>;<AF7'
A45>9'<4='3;'7C>';39>?364?E'39'9>8AF78'64'7C>'29><7634'39'6@:3867634'3;'<4='F6>4E'2C<9?>'
39'>42A@D9<42>'BC<783>0>9'A:34'<4='3;'7C>':93:>97='39'<88>78'3;'7C>'$6879627E'39'A:34'
7C>')67>E'>G2>:7'H>9@677>5'I42A@D9<42>8J'

'
K
L�LM��NO����P����!�'''

'
QC>'$6879627'C<8'23@:F6>5'B67C'<FF'<88>88@>47'9>RA69>@>478'6@:38>5'A:34'67'D='7C>'
S<F6;3946<'I406934@>47<F'TA<F67='U27'VHADF62'W>83A92>'S35>')>27634'/1,,,'XYZ[X\]'
V̂SITU_̀'64'2344>27634'B67C'7C>'H93a>27E'<45'43';A97C>9'>406934@>47<F'9>06>B'3;'7C>'
H93a>27'68'4>2>88<9=':A98A<47'73'SITU'D>;39>'7C>'234879A27634'3;'7C>'H93a>27'@<='
23@@>42>J'

�
K
L
LM����������������!�����	�'''

'
K
L
LKLM $6879627'230>4<478'<45'<?9>>8E'DA7'34F='73'7C>'>G7>47'7C<7'67'@<='F<B;AFF='
53'83E'7C<7'83'F34?'<8'7C68')67>'b><8>'9>@<648'64'>;;>27E'7C>'$6879627'B6FF'437'8>>c'73'
>G>9268>'7C>':3B>9'3;'>@64>47'53@<64'B67C'9>8:>27'73'7C>'H93a>27'83'<8'73'2<A8>'<'
;AFF'39':<976<F'7>9@64<7634'3;'7C68')67>'b><8>'<45'7C>'d<26F676>8'b><8>J''
'
K
L
LeLM f;';39'<4='9><834'7C>';39>?364?'230>4<47'68'5>7>9@64>5'73'D>'
A4>4;392><DF>'39'64'83@>'B<='640<F65E'39'6;'$6879627'8C3AF5';<6F'39'9>;A8>'73'<D65>'D='
8A2C'230>4<47E'7C>4E'73'7C>'>G7>47'7C>='@<='F<B;AFF='53'83E'7C>'H<976>8'<?9>>'7C<7'
7C>';64<426<F'647>9>87'3;'$>0>F3:>9'8C<FF'D>'<8'64562<7>5'64'7C>'d<26F676>8'b><8>J'

'
K
LLMg�������h����	''
�
Q3'7C>'D>87'3;'7C>'$6879627i8'<27A<F'c43BF>5?>E'7C>')67>'68':93:>9F='j34>5';39'678'647>45>5'
:A9:38>'<45'7C>'A8>'39'<2760676>8'2347>@:F<7>5'D='7C68')67>'b><8>'B6FF'437'234;F627'B67C'
F32<FE'87<7>'39';>5>9<F'F<BJ'
'
K
LkLMl�m��'''
�
Q3'7C>'D>87'3;'7C>'$6879627i8'<27A<F'c43BF>5?>E'<FF'7<G>8'<45'<88>88@>478'<9>':<65'
2A99>47'<45'8A2C'7<G>8'<45'<88>88@>478'B6FF'234764A>'73'D>':<65'73'7C>'>G7>47'7C<7'7C>'
$6879627'68'437'>G>@:7J'

'
KLM n�P��������������o�����p�����P��'''
�
QC>'$>0>F3:>9'9>:9>8>478E'230>4<478'<45'B<99<478'73'7C>'$6879627'<8';3FF3B8q'
'

KLKLMp ��r�	���������������m�����!�'''
�
QC>'$>0>F3:>9'68'<'S<F6;3946<'23@:<4='5AF='39?<46j>5'<45'>G68764?'A45>9'7C>'F<B8'3;'
7C>')7<7>'3;'S<F6;3946<E'C<8':3B>9'73'>47>9'6473'7C68')67>'b><8>'<45'7C>'d<26F676>8'b><8>s'
68':388>88>5'3;';AFF':3B>9'73'F><8>E'F><8>D<2cE'<45'C3F5'9><F'<45':>9834<F':93:>97='<45'
C<8'5AF='<A7C396j>5'7C>'>G>2A7634'<45'5>F60>9='3;'<FF'3;'7C>'<;39>8<65'<?9>>@>478J'
'



�

����������� � ��	��
�
��
����������������������������������������� ���������!����������������"� ��
#$%&#'(&)*+,-+./0&

1
23245������������&&
�
678&#8/89:;8<&7=>&?78&@A99&;:B8<&=CD&=A?7:<E?F&?:&8C?8<&EC?:G&?:&8H8IA?8&=CD&?:&D89E/8<&
?7E>&(E?8&J8=>8G&=CD&?:&;8<@:<K&=99&:@&E?>&DA?E8>&=CD&:L9EM=?E:C>&78<8ACD8<G&=CD&7=>&DA9F&
=A?7:<EN8D&?78&8H8IA?E:C&:@&?7E>&(E?8&J8=>8O&
&
1
2P24���Q���������&&&
�
R8E?78<&?78&8H8IA?E:C&=CD&D89E/8<F&:@&?7E>&(E?8&J8=>8&:<&?78&S=IE9E?E8>&J8=>8G&C:<&?78&
@A9@E99K8C?&:@&:<&I:K;9E=CI8&BE?7&?78&?8<K>&=CD&I:CDE?E:C>&78<8:@&:<&?78<8:@G&C:<&?78&
I:C>AKK=?E:C&:@&?78&?<=C>=I?E:C>&I:C?8K;9=?8D&78<8LF&:<&?78<8LFG&I:C@9EI?>&BE?7&:<&
<8>A9?>&EC&=&L<8=I7&:@&?78&?8<K>G&I:CDE?E:C>&:<&;<:/E>E:C>&:@&=CF&<8>?<EI?E:C&:<&=CF&
=M<88K8C?&:<&EC>?<AK8C?&?:&B7EI7&?78&#8/89:;8<&E>&C:B&=&;=<?F&:<&LF&B7EI7&?78&
#8/89:;8<&E>&L:ACDG&:<&I:C>?E?A?8>&=&D8@=A9?&ACD8<&=CF&:@&?78&@:<8M:ECMG&:<&<8>A9?>&EC&
?78&I<8=?E:C&:<&EK;:>E?E:C&:@&=CF&9E8CG&I7=<M8&:<&8CIAKL<=CI8&B7=?>:8/8<&A;:C&=CF&:@&
?78&;<:;8<?F&:<&=>>8?>&:@&?78&#8/89:;8<G&:<&A;:C&?78&(E?8G&8HI8;?&@:<&T8<KE??8D&
UCIAKL<=CI8>O&
&
1
2�24���V��W��X� Y&&&
�
#8/89:;8<&E>&C:?&C:B&C:<&7=>&E?&8/8<&L88C&EC&L=CZ<A;?IF&:<&<8I8E/8<>7E;O&
&
1
2[24�������	�����&&&
�
678<8&E>&C:&;8CDECM&:<G&?:&?78&ZC:B98DM8&:@&#8/89:;8<G&?7<8=?8C8D&=I?E:C&:<&;<:I88DECM&
L8@:<8&=CF&I:A<?&:<&=DKECE>?<=?E/8&=M8CIF&B7EI7&BE99&K=?8<E=99F&=D/8<>89F&=@@8I?&?78&
=LE9E?F&:@&#8/89:;8<&?:&;8<@:<K&E?>&:L9EM=?E:C>&ACD8<&?7E>&(E?8&J8=>8&:<&?78&S=IE9E?E8>&
J8=>8O&

&
1\24 ]������ ������]�������Y&&&
�
678&#8/89:;8<&=CD&?78&#E>?<EI?&>7=99&I:K;9F&BE?7&?78&EC>A<=CI8&<8̂AE<8K8C?>&=CD&?78&
ECD8KCE?F&<8̂AE<8K8C?>&=>&ECDEI=?8D&EC&?78&S=IE9E?E8>&J8=>8O&&&&
&
1_24 5���	�������������������	&&&
�
67E>&(E?8&J8=>8&K=F&L8&=>>EMC8D&=CD̀:<&?78&(E?8&>AL98=>8DG&=>&=&B7:98&:<&EC&;=<?G&LF&?78&
#8/89:;8<&:C9F&A;:C&?78&;<E:<&B<E??8C&I:C>8C?&:@&?78&#E>?<EI?&?:&>AI7&=>>EMCK8C?&:<&>AL98=>8G&
B7EI7&>7=99&C:?&L8&AC<8=>:C=L9F&BE?7789DO&&&&
&
1a24 b����� ���������c����� �&&&
�
678&#E>?<EI?&=M<88>&?7=?&E?&BE99&C:?&K:<?M=M8G&>899G&8CIAKL8<G&=>>EMCG&?<=C>@8<&:<&I:C/8F&?78&
(E?8&:<&=CF&;:<?E:C&?78<8:@&DA<ECM&?78&?8<K&:@&?7E>&(E?8&J8=>8&EC&=CF&B=F&?7=?&B:A9D&EC?8<@8<8&
BE?7&:<&DEKECE>7&#8/89:;8<d>&EC?8<8>?>&ECDEI=?8D&EC&?7E>&(E?8&J8=>8O&
&
324 ����������e��������� ������ ��&&&
�
#8/89:;8<&=M<88>&?:&Z88;&?78&(E?8&=CD&8/8<F&;=<?&?78<8:@&@<88&=CD&I98=<&:@&=CF&=CD&=99&
8CIAKL<=CI8>&=CD̀:<&9E8C>G&ECI9ADECM&BE?7:A?&9EKE?=?E:CG&;98DM8>G&I7=<M8>G&8CIAKL<=CI8>G&
I9=EK>G&K8I7=CEI&9E8C>&=CD̀:<&:?78<&9E8C>&@:<&:<&=<E>ECM&:A?&:@&:<&EC&I:CC8I?E:C&BE?7&B:<Z&:<&
9=L:<&D:C8G&>8</EI8>&;8<@:<K8DG&:<&K=?8<E=9>&:<&=;;9E=CI8>&A>8D&:<&@A<CE>78D&@:<&:<&EC&
I:CC8I?E:C&BE?7&?78&(E?8&:<&?78&T<:f8I?O&&TA<>A=C?&?:&?78&S=IE9E?E8>&J8=>8G&#8/89:;8<&@A<?78<&



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

234556'78'92:'948;97<:'2=>'?@<<:'2=>'>A6BC2435'2=:'2=>'2<<'B<2A;6'8='DCABC'2=:'5=B@;E42=B5'
2=>F84'<A5=';2:'84'B8@<>'E5'E265>G'2=>'78'6205'2=>'C8<>'$A674AB7'?455'2=>'C24;<566'?48;'2=:'
2=>'2<<'6@BC'<A5=6G';84732356G'2=>'B<2A;6'8?'<A5=6'2=>'6@A76'84'87C54'948B55>A=36'95472A=A=3'
7C54578H''ICA6'6@E65B7A8='>856'=87'299<:'78'J54;A775>'K=B@;E42=B56H'

LMNO ����!���
�
P<<'=87AB56G'B547A?AB2756'84'87C54'B8;;@=AB27A8=6'C545@=>54'6C2<<'E5'6@??ABA5=7<:'3A05='2=>'6C2<<'
E5'>55;5>'78'C205'E55='45B5A05>'?A05'Q.R'>2:6'2?754'>5986A7'A='7C5'S=A75>')72756';2A<'A='
453A67545>'84'B547A?A5>'?84;'DA7C'9867235'?@<<:'94592A>'84'8=5'Q1R'E@6A=566'>2:'2?754'>5986A7'
DA7C'2='8054=A3C7'>5<A054:'6540AB5'DA7C'9488?'8?'2B7@2<'>5<A054:T�
'
UV����W�����!�X� UV����W�����Y��X�

�
)2B42;5=78'ZA7:'S=A?A5>')BC88<'$A674AB7'
.[*.'-[7C'P05=@5'
)2B42;5=78G'ZP''\.+/-'
P77=T'']̂2;5G'IA7<5_'
'

2̀<?8@4'̀5277:'a'Z<24bF)@<<A02='2'c8A=7'
d5=7@45''
-,,'Z29A78<'(2<<')@A75'\,,G'
)2B42;5=78G'ZPG'\.+1-'
P77=T''I5>'e884FJ456A>5=7'2=>'&:<5'

e42=>65=F$A45B784'
'

f������!�Yg���X�
�

f������!�Yg���X'

$5A>455')2b2AG'K6hH'
$2==A6'%8<A054'&5<<5:'
/,,'Z2<A?84=A2')74557G')@A75'-,,''
)2='e42=BA6B8G'ZP'\-111'

'

'
IC5'$505<8954'2=>'7C5'$A674AB7G'E:'=87AB5'3A05='C545@=>54G';2:'>56A3=275'>A??545=7'2>>456656'
78'DCABC'6@E65h@5=7'=87AB56G'B547A?AB2756'84'87C54'B8;;@=AB27A8=6'DA<<'E5'65=7H'
'
LLNO i�����	��VV�!�'
�
ICA6')A75'j5265'6C2<<'A=@45'78'7C5'E5=5?A7'8?'2=>'6C2<<'E5'EA=>A=3'@98='7C5'$505<8954'2=>'7C5'
$A674AB7'2=>'7C5A4'45695B7A05'6@BB566846'2=>'266A3=6H'
'
LkNO ���l����������f������U�Y������g�m���f�����'''
�
n='7C5'505=7'2=:'23455;5=7'B8=72A=5>'A='7CA6')A75'j5265'6C8@<>'E5'E452BC5>'E:'5A7C54'9247:'
2=>'7C5452?754'D2A05>'E:'7C5'87C54'9247:G'6@BC'D2A054'6C2<<'E5'<A;A75>'78'7C5'9247AB@<24'E452BC'
68'D2A05>'2=>'6C2<<'=87'E5'>55;5>'78'D2A05'?@7@45'B8;9<A2=B5'DA7C'2=:'754;'C5458?'84'2=:'
87C54'E452BC'C545@=>54H'
'
L�NO �����������g''
�
n='7C5'505=7'2=:'9480A6A8='8?'7CA6')A75'j5265'6C2<<'E5'C5<>'A=02<A>'84'@=5=?84B52E<5'E:'2=:'
B8@47'8?'B8;9575=7'o@4A6>AB7A8=G'6@BC'C8<>A=3'6C2<<'=87'A=02<A>275'84'45=>54'@=5=?84B52E<5'2=:'
87C54'9480A6A8='C5458?G'@=<566'5<A;A=27A8='8?'6@BC'A=02<A>'9480A6A8=';2754A2<<:'2<7546'7C5'4A3C76'
2=>'8E<A327A8=6'5;E8>A5>'A='7CA6')A75'j5265'84'7C5'e2BA<A7A56'j5265H'
'



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

2345 6���������7�����	�������"���8�!������''
'
9:;<=>'?@'>A'>B<'><CDEF?>EAF'CEGB>@'AH'IA>B'J?C>E<@'?@'EFKE;?><K'EF'>B<'L?;EME>E<@'N<?@<O'>BE@')E><'
N<?@<'D?P'FA>'I<'?D<FK<KO';B?FG<KO'DAKEHE<KO'?M><C<K'AC'><CDEF?><K'QE>BAR>'>B<'QCE>><F'
?GC<<D<F>'AH'IA>B'J?C>E<@'B<C<>AS'
'
245 T���	�������6���� ��'''
'
UB<'$<0<MA=<C'?GC<<@'>B?>'>B<'AIMEG?>EAF@'AH'>B<'$<0<MA=<C'?C<'?I@AMR><'?FK'RF;AFKE>EAF?M'
?FK'FA>'@RIV<;>'>A'?FP';B?CG<@'AC'@<>AHH@'?G?EF@>'>B<'$E@>CE;>'QB?>@A<0<CS'
'
2W45 �X�! ���������� ����Y����'''
'
UBE@')E><'N<?@<'D?P'I<'<:<;R><K'EF'@<0<C?M';ARF><C=?C>@O'<?;B'AH'QBE;B'@B?MM'I<'?F'ACEGEF?M'
?FK'?MM'AH'QBE;B'@B?MM';AF@>E>R><'AF<'?FK'>B<'@?D<'EF@>CRD<F>S'
'
2
45 Z�����Y�������Z�����!��[�Y������������''
'
%B<F<0<C'RFK<C'>B<'=CA0E@EAF@'AH'>BE@')E><'N<?@<'?==CA0?M'IP'>B<'$<0<MA=<C'AC'>B<'$E@>CE;>'E@'
C<\REC<KO'AC'>B<'$<0<MA=<C'AC'>B<'$E@>CE;>'E@'C<\REC<K'>A'>?]<'@AD<'?;>EAF'?>'>B<'C<\R<@>'AH'>B<'
A>B<CO'@R;B'?==CA0?M'AC'@R;B'C<\R<@>'@B?MM'I<'GE0<F'HAC'>B<'$<0<MA=<C'IP'>B<'$<0<MA=<C'
<̂=C<@<F>?>E0<'?FK'HAC'>B<'$E@>CE;>'IP'>B<'$E@>CE;>'̂<=C<@<F>?>E0<O'?FK'?FP'=?C>P'B<C<>A'@B?MM'
I<'?R>BACE_<K'>A'C<MP'R=AF'?FP'@R;B'?==CA0?M'AC'C<\R<@>S'
'
2̀ 45 6YY��!��������'''
'
UBE@')E><'N<?@<'@B?MM'I<'GA0<CF<K'IP'?FK';AF@>CR<K'EF'?;;ACK?F;<'QE>B'>B<'M?Q@'AH'>B<')>?><'
AH'a?MEHACFE?O'?FK'0<FR<K'EF'>B<'aARF>P'QE>BEF'QBE;B'>B<')E><'E@'MA;?><KS'
'
b�45 6������cd��e���''
�
fH'<E>B<C'=?C>P'ICEFG@'?F'?;>EAF'AC'=CA;<<KEFG'EF0AM0EFG'>B<')E><'AC'>A'<FHAC;<'>B<'><CD@'AH'>BE@'
)E><'N<?@<'AC'>A'K<;M?C<'CEGB>@'B<C<RFK<CO'<?;B'=?C>P'@B?MM'I<?C'>B<';A@>'AH'E>@'AQF'?>>ACF<P@g'
H<<@S'
'
bh45 ��Y�����'''
'
UB<';?=>EAF@'AC'B<?KEFG@'EF'>BE@')E><'N<?@<'?C<'HAC';AF0<FE<F;<'AFMP'?FK'EF'FA'Q?P'K<HEF<O'
MEDE>'AC'K<@;CEI<'>B<'@;A=<'AC'EF><F>'AH'?FP'=CA0E@EAF@'AC'@<;>EAF@'AH'>BE@')E><'N<?@<S'
'
b245 ������6	��������'''
�
UBE@')E><'N<?@<'?FK'>B<';ACC<@=AFKEFG'L?;EME>E<@'N<?@<';AMM<;>E0<MP';AF>?EF'?MM'AH'>B<'
?GC<<D<F>@'AH'>B<'J?C>E<@'B<C<>A'QE>B'C<@=<;>'>A'?FP'D?>><C';A0<C<K'AC'D<F>EAF<K'EF'>BE@')E><'
N<?@<'?FK'FA'=CEAC'?GC<<D<F>@'AC'RFK<C@>?FKEFG'=<C>?EFEFG'>A'?FP'@R;B'D?>><C'@B?MM'I<'
<HH<;>E0<'HAC'?FP'=RC=A@<S''''
'
bb45 e ������6�� ���!��'''
�
J?C>E<@'@B?MM'=CAD=>MP'<:<;R><'?FK'K<ME0<C'?MM'KA;RD<F>@'?FK'EF@>CRD<F>@'C<?@AF?IMP'
C<\R<@><K'>A'GE0<'<HH<;>'>A'>B<'=CA0E@EAF@'AH'>BE@')E><'N<?@<S'
'
b�45 [�!������i�!��Y������'''



�

����������� � ��	��
�
������������������������������������������� !���������"����������������#�!��
$%&'$()'*+,-.,/01'

�
234'546789:;';48'<=>83'98'834'?4@7AA7A@'=<'837;')784'B49;4'9>4'34>4?C'7A6=>D=>984E'7A8='78;'84>F;'
9AE'D>=07;7=A;'?C'837;'>4<4>4A64G'
'
HIJK L�����M����������!�'''
�
27F4'7;'=<'834'4;;4A64'N783'>4;D468'8='4963'=<'834'84>F;O'6=04A9A8;O'9AE'6=AE787=A;'=<'837;'
)784'B49;4G'
�
HJK P��!��"�#� ��''
'
Q'D9>8C';39::'?4'4R6S;4E'<>=F'834'D4><=>F9A64'=<'9AC'=?:7@987=A'7FD=;4E'7A'837;')784'B49;4'
9AE'834'4R37?78;'34>48='<=>'9AC'D4>7=E'9AE'8='834'4R84A8'8398'9'D9>8C'7;'D>404A84E'<>=F'
D4><=>F7A@';S63'=?:7@987=AO'7A'N3=:4'=>'7A'D9>8O'9;'9'>4;S:8'=<'E4:9C;'69S;4E'?C'834'=834>'D9>8C'
=>'837>E'D9>874;O'9'@=04>AF4A89:'9@4A6C'=>'4A878CO'9A'968'=<'T=EO'D9AE4F76O'N9>O'84>>=>7;FO'
6707:'E7;8S>?9A64O'<=>64;'=<'A98S>4O'<7>4O'<:==EO'49>83US9V4O'=>';8>7V4;'=>':=6V=S8;O'9AE';S63'
A=AWD4><=>F9A64'N7::'A=8'?4'9'E4<9S:8'34>4SAE4>'=>'9'@>=SAE;'<=>'84>F7A987=A'=<'837;')784'
B49;4G''
'
HXJK Y����Z��������'
�
[=A4'=<'834'\9>874;'34>48=O'A=>'8347>'>4;D468704'6=SA;4:O';39::'?4'E44F4E'834'E>9<84>;'=<'837;'
)784'B49;4'=>'834']967:7874;'B49;4'<=>'DS>D=;4;'=<'6=A;8>S7A@'834'D>=07;7=A;'=<'4963G''234'
:9A@S9@4'7A'9::'D9>8;'=<'837;')784'B49;4';39::'7A'9::'69;4;'?4'6=A;8>S4E'966=>E7A@'8='78;'<97>'
F49A7A@O'A=8';8>768:C'<=>'=>'9@97A;8'9AC'=<'834'\9>874;'34>48=G'
'

�
Y��̂ YL�����̂ _�̀ �aPO'834'\9>874;'3904'69S;4E'837;')784'B49;4'8='?4'4R46S84E'?C'8347>'
>4;D468704'=<<764>;'N3='9>4'ES:C'9S83=>7b4EO'9;'=<'834'c<<468704'$984G'
'
d����L�e�d�e�df̀ ��e'=A'834'E984'7AE76984E'?4:=Ng''
'
$984Eg''hhhhhhhhhhO'/,hh'
'
'
)96>9F4A8='i78C'jA7<74E')63==:'$7;8>768''
'
'

kCg''''' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '

[9F4g''hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh'

278:4g''hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh'

$984Eg''hhhhhhhhhhO'/,hh'
'
'
k9:<=S>'k4988C'l'i:9>Vm)S::709A'9'n=7A8'
o4A8S>4''
kCg''''' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '

[9F4g''' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '

278:4g'' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '

'
'

pqrstusvwxywwwwwwwwwwxx

zv{|}w~�w�|�{��

�vs�{�s}��w�|�{�qv}{|w�{r{�{q}w���w�|}|�{}�w�|v���



�

�������������	��
��
�
� � ���
�����
��������
�������
����������
���
� 
����!��"#���!��!��$��
�!������!����%
#��
��
&'()&*+),-./0.123�

�456768���
�

��9���:�	�;6�86< �<=�	68��
�
����#�
������
��
����:
#��>���!�?������"!�@�;
#���
��?��A�
)
���%
#�A))BCDEF)BGE2CHIJKLEFK)(CMNOC)PCL)BQRDSFTUSVQR)ERK)*QKCFRVHESVQR)WFQXCUS)
����

A))Y/Z0)1ZSG)+SFCCS)+EUFEMCRSQ[)B\))Z0-11)ERK)Y0..),1RK)+SFCCS)+EUFEMCRSQ[)
B\))Z0-11)
�� A))./Z.3-,..1....)
�
W]̂ )_]̀ )a\a)*J\&]'bcJ')̀Ĵ \̂BJ)dPc̀)P])/)&J+)\+)_ecPf)')]g),1P&)+̀ )+)]g)
]̀̂ ĴPBJ)\bJ)h)P)]g)\)_c)PJ)'icBi)jJ\̂ +)P)-kl0Ya1,m)J)ĝ ]*)̀iJ)P')B]̂ )]g)_]̀ )
3)]g)fdc_&)J+̀ \̀ J+)jJcPf)gd̂ ìĴ )&J+[)cP)̂)*)j()kk)Wf)3.)h)̀i\̀ )W]̂ )_ecPf)J)]g)
1Z̀i)+̀ )B]P̀ )f)3n/3)op)P)g*_e)./Zp.-,p.3)
)
\RK)
)
\WPq))./Z.3Yk..1....)
)
W]̂ )_]̀ )a\a)*J\&]'bcJ')̀Ĵ \̂BJ)dPc̀)P])/)&J+)\+)_ecPf)')]g),1P&)+̀ [)+)]g)
]̀̂ ĴPBJ)\bJ)h)P)]g)\)_)cPJ)'icBi)jJ\̂ +)P)-kl0Ya1,m)J)ĝ ]*)̀iJ)P')B]̂ )]g)_]̀ I)
]g)fdc_&)J+̀ \̀ J+)jJcPf)gd̂ ìĴ )&J+)cP)̂)*)j()kk)W\fJ)3.)h)̀i\̀ )W]̂ )_ecPf)J)]g)
1Z̀i)+̀ )B]P̀ )f)-nY3)op)P)g*_e)./Zp3Ykp.3)
)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)



�

�������������	��
��
�
� � ���
�����
��������
�������
����������
�� 
�!
����"��#$���"��"��%��
�"������"����&
$��
'()*'+,*-./01/234�

�567�78���
�

9�	�:7�87;!�;<��:;=��8��
�
>���$�
��������?����������������"����
� �$����"��@���
�	��
��������#�&
$�����
����	��
��
�
��"��#?�"����$��9
�
 �?
����  �$�"��#$����
����&
$�A�
�

�
�
�
�

�



















From: Torrie Moreno
To: Jeffrey Winn
Subject: Pacific underground gas line replacement
Date: Tuesday, November 1, 2022 11:13:00 AM
Attachments: Pacific Gas Line Repair 1A Map.pdf

Pacific Gas Line Repair Scope (003).pdf
02 41 00 Site Demolition.pdf
017329 Cutting and Patching.pdf
31 23 33 Trenching and Backfilling.pdf
32 16 00 Site Concrete.pdf
33 00 00 Site Utilities.pdf
32 12 00 Asphalt Paving.pdf
22 10 00 Plumbing Piping Systems REV 07-15-2022.pdf
22 05 53 Plumbing Identification.pdf
22 00 50 Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods.pdf
33 00 00 Site Utilities.pdf
32 12 36 Pavement Sealer and Striping.pdf

The Sacramento City Unified School
District is accepting proposals for
UNDERGROUND GAS LINE
REPLACEMENT at Pacific
Elementary School, located at 6201 41st

St. Sacramento, CA 95824. A mandatory
bid walk will be held on November  7th at
10 am. Questions are due by November
10th at 10 am. The proposals are due
November 16th, 2022, by 2pm and will
only be accepted electronically, as a reply
to this email.
If you have any questions, please respond
to this email.
 
Thank you,

mailto:Torrie-Moreno@scusd.edu
mailto:Jeffrey-Winn@scusd.edu



33


YFRC 



torrie-moreno

Callout

GAS VALVE #1



torrie-moreno

Rectangle



torrie-moreno

Rectangle



torrie-moreno

Rectangle



torrie-moreno

Rectangle



torrie-moreno

Callout

GAS VALVE #2



torrie-moreno

Text Box

PACIFIC ELEMENTARY GAS LINE REPLACEMENT



torrie-moreno

Rectangle



torrie-moreno

Callout

ROOMS REQUIRING GAS












Pacific Elementary Gas Line Repair 


Install underground piping for all existing gas lines 


 


 


 Supply all labor, material, and equipment to complete  
project 


 Locate all gas lines throughout campus 


 Saw cut and jack hammer concrete/asphalt as needed  


 Install new piping for all identified areas between gas 
valve #1 and #2 and for rooms (16,17, 19, 20, and 21) 
requiring gas 


 Test system as needed  


 Back fill all trenches and patch concrete/asphalt as 
needed 


 Pricing will be a “not to exceed” (NTE) amount 
 


 


 








 SITE DEMOLITION 
 02 41 00 - 1 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 


 
SECTION 02 41 00 


 
SITE DEMOLITION 


 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.01 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 


A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this Section, 
as if repeated herein. 


 
1.02 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 


 
A. Section 01 50 00, Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls. 
B.   Section 01 57 13, Erosion Control 
C.   Section 31 00 00, Earthwork. 


 
1.03 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 


 
A. Conform to applicable jurisdictional authority regulations and codes for disposal of debris. 


 
B. Coordinate clearing Work with utility companies 


 
C. Maintain emergency access ways at all times. 


 
D. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and ordinances regarding hazardous materials, 


including contaminated soils, hazardous material transformers, and similar materials or 
components.  


 
1.04 SUBMITTALS: 
 


A. Schedule: Submit a detailed sequence of demolition and removal work, including dates for shutoff, 
capping, and continuance of utility services. 


 
B. Procedures: Submit written procedures documenting the proposed methods to be used to control 


dust and noise. 
 


1.05  EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 


A. Contractor shall acquaint himself with all site conditions.  If unknown active utilities are 
encountered during work, notify Architect promptly for instructions.  Failure to notify will make 
Contractor liable for damage to these utilities arising from Contractor's operations subsequent to 
discovery of such unknown active utilities. 
 


B. Conduct demolition to minimize interference with adjacent structures or items to remain. Maintain 
protected egress and access at all times. 







 SITE DEMOLITION 
 02 41 00 - 2 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
1.06  PROTECTION 


 
A. Adequate protection measures shall be provided to protect workmen and passers-by on and off the 


site. Adjacent property shall be fully protected throughout the operations.  Blasting will not be 
permitted. Prevent damage to adjoining improvements and properties both above and below grade.  
Restore such improvements to original condition should damage occur.  Replace trees and shrubs 
outside building area disturbed by operations. 


 
B. In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the Contractor shall be solely and 


completely responsible for working conditions at the job site, including safety of all persons and 
property during performance of the work.  This requirement shall apply continuously and shall not 
be limited to normal working hours. 


 
C. Safety Precautions Prevent damage to existing elements identified to remain or to be salvaged, and 


prevent injury to the public and workmen engaged on site. Demolish roofs, walls and other building 
elements in such manner that demolished materials fall within foundation lines of building. Do not 
allow demolition debris to accumulate on site. Pull down hazardous work at end of each day; do not 
leave standing or hanging overnight, or over weekends. 


 
1. Protect existing items which are not indicated to be altered. Protect utilities designated to 


remain from damage. 
2. Protect trees, plant growth, and features designated to remain as final landscaping as shown on 


drawings. 
3. Protect bench marks from damage or displacement. 


 
D. Trees:  Carefully protect existing trees that are to remain.  Provide temporary irrigation as necessary 


to maintain health of trees. 
 
E. Fire Safety: The contractor shall conform to chapter 33 of the California Fire Code (CFC), "Fire Safety 


During Construction and Demolition”, at all times during the construction process. A copy of this 
chapter can be provided. 


 
F. Any construction review of the Contractor's performance conducted by the Geotechnical Engineer is 


not intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures, in, on, or near 
the construction site. 


 
G. Surface Drainage:  Provide for surface drainage during period of construction in manner to avoid 


creating nuisance to adjacent areas.  The contractor shall make a reasonable effort on a daily basis 
to keep all excavations and the site free from water during entire progress of work, regardless of 
cause, source, or nature of water. 


 
H. Adjacent streets and sidewalks shall be kept free of mud, dirt or similar nuisances resulting from 


earthwork operations. 
 
I. The site and adjacent influenced areas shall be watered as required to suppress dust nuisance.  Dust 


control measures shall be in accordance with the local jurisdiction. 
 







 SITE DEMOLITION 
 02 41 00 - 3 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
Not Used 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
 
3.01 EXAMINATION 
 


A. Examine conditions of work in place before beginning work; report defects. 
 


B. Report existence of hazardous materials or unsafe structural conditions. 
 
3.02 PREPARATION 
 


A. Scheduling: 
 


1. General: Coordinate and schedule demolition work as required by the Owner and as necessary 
to facilitate construction progress. 


 
B. Hazardous Materials: 


 
1. General: Identify chemicals, gases, explosives, acids, flammables, or other dangerous materials 


before proceeding with demolition operations, and notify such jurisdictional agencies as may be 
required. Collect and legally dispose of such materials at official disposal locations away from 
the site. 


2. Asbestos: If asbestos or materials containing asbestos are encountered, stop work immediately 
and contact the Owner. Do not proceed with demolition until directed by Owner. 


 
C. Utility and Service Termination 


 
1. Locate and identify existing utility, service and irrigation system components affected by work of 


this contract.  Review existing record drawings, conduct site investigations, contact 
Underground Service Alert and other qualified cable/pipe/line locator services, and implement 
all other means necessary to define the location of underground systems.   


2. Prior to beginning any demolition, properly disconnect all water, gas and electrical power supply 
at appropriate disconnect locations.  Obtain all necessary releases and approvals from serving 
utility companies.  


3. Prior to demolition or disconnect, obtain Owners approval that such system does not impact 
facilities or systems beyond the extent of this contract.  


4. Mark location of disconnected systems.  Identify and indicate stub-out locations on Project 
Record Documents. 


 
D. Verify that existing plant life and features designated to remain are tagged or identified. 
 


1. The Architect will mark the features, trees, and shrubs to remain within the construction area.  
Contractor shall not commence clearing and grubbing operations until authorized by the Owner 
and all protective measures are in place. 


 







 SITE DEMOLITION 
 02 41 00 - 4 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


E. Coordinate the time and duration of all system disconnects with Owner. 
 


 3.03 DEMOLITION 
 


A. General Requirements 
 


1. Clear areas required for access to site and execution of Work, including pavements, structures, 
foundations, vegetation, trash and debris. 


2. Coordinate with Owner the time of day and route to remove demolished materials from 
premises. 


3. Remove demolished materials from site as work progresses.  Upon completion of work, leave 
areas of work in clean condition. 


4. Remove all buried debris, rubble, trash, or other material not deemed suitable by the 
Geotechnical Engineer.  


5. Fill all voids or excavations resulting from clearing, demolition, or removal of vegetation with 
specified fill material.   


 
B. Fixture and Equipment Removal: 


 
1. Remove existing fixtures and equipment as identified and shown on drawings and required by 


Architect.  
2. Verify all service connections to fixtures and equipment designated for removal have been 


properly disconnected.   
3. Remove all conductors from conduit at all abandoned circuits.  


 
3.04 UTILITY AND BUILDING SERVICES REMOVAL AND RE-INSTALLATION 
 


A. Where crossing paths and potential points of interference with existing utility services are shown or 
can be reasonably inferred from surface conditions or evidence of subsurface systems, such as 
meter boxes, vaults, relief vents, cleanouts and similar components.  


 
1. Review all contract documents showing crossing paths and potential points of interference. 
2. Pot-hole or determine by other means the accurate depth and location of such utilities.   
3. Incorporate all costs required to complete work under this contract, including additional 


trenching, re-routing of existing and new utilities, and all means necessary to construct work 
under this contract. 


4. No additional cost to the Owner will be allowed for work necessary to accommodate utility 
conflicts where such crossing paths are shown on contract drawings or can be reasonably 
inferred from surface conditions or components.  


 
B. Remove all conductors from conduit at all abandoned electrical circuits.  
 
C. Seal off ends of all piping, drains and other components as directed by Architect and serving utility. 
 
D. Where necessary to maintain service to existing utility and building systems, relocate or redirect all 


conduit and conductors, piping, drains, and associated system components.  
 


1. Re-circuit all electrical as required.  







 SITE DEMOLITION 
 02 41 00 - 5 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


2. Re-circuit all landscape irrigation valving and control systems as required.  
3. Temporarily terminate landscape system components in approved boxes or with approved caps, 


suitable for re-connection or extension.  
4. Extend or otherwise modify all site drainage systems, including catch basins, drain inlets and 


piping.  Fine grade to maintain proper drainage flow pattern to drains.  
 
E. Demolish structure in an orderly and careful manner.  


 
1. Use of explosives prohibited. 


  
3.05 SITE PAVEMENT REMOVAL  
 


A. Remove sidewalk and curb where required for new construction as specified and as indicated on the 
Drawings. 


 
1. Remove all paving by saw-cutting.  
2. Remove concrete paving and curbing at locations shown on drawings.  Locate closest adjacent 


expansion or weakened plane joint to define start of removal or saw-cutting.  
 
B. Remove asphalt concrete paving areas where required for new construction as specified and as 


indicated on the Drawings. 
 


1. Remove all paving by saw-cutting.  
2. Remove paving assembly as required to expose subgrade.  


 
3.06 LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION SYSTEMS DEMOLITION AND RENOVATION 
 


A. Clearing, grubbing, and planting demolition. 
 


1. Remove grass and grass roots to a minimum depth of two inches below existing grade. 
2. Remove all shrubs, plants and other vegetation within the area of the work unless designated to 


remain.  Grub and remove all roots of all vegetation to a depth of 24 inches below existing 
grade.  


3. Remove only those trees which are specifically designated for removal, or as shown on the 
drawings, within the construction area.  Remove all stumps.  Remove root ball and root systems 
larger than 1 inch in diameter to a depth of two feet below existing or finished grades, 
whichever is lower and a minimum of five feet beyond the edge of paving, structure, wall or 
walkway.    


4. Hand cut existing tree roots over 1 inch in diameter as necessary for trenching or other new 
construction, apply multiple coats of emulsified asphalt sealant especially made for horticultural 
use on cut or damaged plant tissues to cut faces and adjacent surfaces.  Cover exposed roots 
with wet burlap to prevent roots from dying out until backfilling is complete. 


5. Disking and mixing of vegetation, trash, debris, and other deleterious materials with surface 
soils prior to grading is not permitted.  


6. Remove all buried debris, organic material, rubble, trash, or other material not deemed suitable 
by the Geotechnical Engineer.  


7. Fill all voids or excavations resulting from clearing, demolition, or removal of vegetation with fill 
material in compliance with Section 31 00 00. 







 SITE DEMOLITION 
 02 41 00 - 6 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


8. Selected equipment of such sizes and capacities that the existing environment is disturbed as 
little as possible, and to afford ease of mobility within limited and relatively confined work 
areas.  Make every effort to preserve the topography in its natural state.   


9. Keep drains, catch basins, surface drainage courses and related drainage system components 
clear of debris and construction materials. 


10. Remove irrigation piping and appurtenances as necessary within area of work, unless noted 
otherwise to remain.  Replace irrigation piping and appurtenances to irrigate new and/or 
existing landscaping.  Contractor shall be responsible for temporary landscape irrigation until 
such time that irrigation system is restored and operational. 


 
3.07 DISPOSAL 


Demolished materials become property of the Contractor and shall be removed from premises, except 
those items specifically listed to be retained by Owner. 
 
A. Dispose of all demolished material, trash, debris, and other materials not used in the work in 


accordance with the regulations of jurisdictional authority. 
 
B. It is recommended that all materials that are of a recyclable nature, be transported to a suitable 


legal recycling facility instead of a dump or refuse facility (unless they are one-in-the same). 
 
C. Burning and Burying of Materials: NOT ALLOWED. 


 
D. Haul Routes: 


 
1. Obtain permits as required by jurisdictional agencies. Establish haul routes in advance; post 


flagmen for the safety of the public and workmen. 
2. Keep streets free of mud, rubbish, etc.; assume responsibility for damage resulting from hauling 


operations; hold Owner free of liability in connection therewith. 
 


E. Remove demolished materials and debris from site on a daily basis.  
 


3.08 CLEANING 
 


A. Upon completion of work of this Section promptly remove from the working area all scraps, debris. 
  
B. Clean excess material from surface of all remaining paved surfaces and utility structures. 
 
C. Power wash all concrete surfaces to remove stains, dried mud, tire marks, and rust spots. 
 


 
END OF SECTION 








CUTTING AND PATCHING 
SECTION 01730-1 


 
 


  


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Date 


PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 DESCRIPTION 
 


1.1.1  Work included:  This Section establishes general requirements pertaining to cutting 
(including excavating), fitting, and patching of the Work.  Each CONTRACTOR shall do 
all cutting, fitting, or patching of Work as required to make its several parts come together 
properly and fit to receive or be received by work of other CONTRACTORS shown upon, 
or reasonably implied by, the Drawings and Specifications for the completed structure as 
OWNER AND / OR ARCHITECT may direct.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR shall do the 
following: 


 
1.1.1.1 Uncover work to provide for installing, inspecting, or both, of ill-timed work; 
 
1.1.1.2 Remove and replace work not conforming to requirements of the Contract 


Documents; and 
 
1.1.1.3 Remove and replace defective work. 


 
1.1.2   All costs caused by defective or ill-timed work shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR. 
 
1.1.3 The CONTRACTOR shall not endanger any work by cutting, excavating, or otherwise 


altering work and shall not cut or alter work of any other CONTRACTOR except with 
consent of ARCHITECT. 


 
1.1.4 Related work: 
 


1.1.4.1 Documents affecting work of this Section include, but are not necessarily limited 
to, the Conditions of the Contract and Sections in Division 1 of these 
Specifications. 


 
1.1.4.2 In addition to other requirements specified, upon the OWNER AND / OR 


ARCHITECT’S request, uncover work to provide for inspection by the OWNER 
AND / OR ARCHITECT of the covered work and remove samples of installed 
materials for testing. 


 
1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


1.2.1   Use adequate numbers of skilled personnel who are thoroughly trained and experienced 
in the necessary crafts and who are completely familiar with the specified requirements 
and the methods needed for proper performance of the work of this Section. 


 
1.3 SUBMITTALS 
 


1.3.1  Request for OWNER AND / OR ARCHITECT’S consent: 
 


1.3.1.1  Prior to cutting which effects structural safety, submit written request to the 
ARCHITECT for permission to proceed with cutting. 


 
1.3.1.2 Should conditions of the Work, or schedule, indicate a required change of 


materials or methods for cutting and patching, so notify the OWNER AND / OR 
ARCHITECT and secure written permission. 







CUTTING AND PATCHING 
SECTION 01730-2 


 
 


  


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Date 


 


PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS 
 


2.1.1 For replacement of items removed, use materials complying with pertinent Section of 
these Specifications. 


 
 


PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.1 SURFACE CONDITIONS 
 


3.1.1 Inspection: 
 


3.1.1.1 Inspect existing conditions, including elements subject to movement or damage 
during cutting, excavating, patching, and backfilling. 


 
3.1.1.2 After uncovering the work, inspect conditions affecting installation of the new 


work. 
 


3.1.2 Discrepancies: 
 


3.1.2.1 If uncovered conditions are not as anticipated, immediately notify the OWNER 
AND / OR ARCHITECT and secure needed directions. 


 
3.1.2.2 Do not proceed until unsatisfactory conditions are corrected. 
 


3.2 PREPARATION PRIOR TO CUTTING 
 


3.2.1 Provide required protection including, but not necessary limited to, shoring, bracing, and 
support to maintain structural integrity of the Work. 


 
3.2.2 Locate all utilities prior to cutting and/or excavation. 
 


3.3 PERFORMANCE 
 


3.3.1 Perform required excavating and backfilling as required under other pertinent Sections of 
these Specifications. 


 
3.3.1.1 Perform cutting and demolition by methods that will prevent damage to other 


portions of the Work and provide proper surfaces to receive installation of repair 
and new work. 


 
3.3.1.2 Perform fitting and adjusting of products to provide finished installation complying 


with the specified tolerances and finishes. 
 
 
 


END OF SECTION 








 TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 31 23 33 - 1 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 


 


 SECTION 31 23 33 
 


TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 


1.01 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS  
 


A. The general conditions, supplementary conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this section 
as if repeated herein. 


 
1.02 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 


 
A. Section 01 50 00, Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls. 


 
B. Section 31 00 00, Earthwork. 
 
C. Section 31 32 00 Soil Stabilization 
 
D. Section 33 40 00, Site Drainage. 
 
E. Section 33 00 00, Site Utilities. 
 
F. Section 32 80 00, Irrigation. 


 
G. Section 32 12 00, Asphalt Concrete Paving   
 


1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


A. Use only new materials and products, unless existing materials or products are specifically shown 
otherwise on the Drawings to be salvaged and re-used. 


 
B. All materials, components, assemblies, workmanship and installation are to be observed by the 


Owner's Inspector of Record.  Work not so inspected is subject to uncovering and replacement. 
 
C. Contractor / Installer shall have been in business for five (5) years providing/finishing similar size 


projects and complexity. 
 


1.04 SUBMITTALS 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 33 00. 
 
B. Submit Manufacturers data and shop drawings. 


 
1.05 WARRANTY 


 
A. Submit fully executed warranty for work and materials in this section per 01 78 36. 







 TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 31 23 33 - 2 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
1.06 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 


 
A. California Building Code current edition. 
  
B. California Plumbing Code current edition. 
 


1.07 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 


A. Transport, store and handle in strict accord with the local jurisdiction. 
 
B. Make delivery to job when notified by Contractor verifying that the job is ready to receive the work 


of this Section and that arrangements have been made to properly store, handle and protect such 
materials and work. 


 
1.08 PROJECT CONDITIONS 


 
A. Contractor shall acquaint himself with all existing site conditions.  If unknown active utilities are 


encountered during work, notify Architect promptly for instructions.  Failure to notify will make 
Contractor liable for damage to these utilities arising from Contractor's operations subsequent to 
discovery of such unknown active utilities. 


 
B. Field verify that all components, backing, etc. by others are installed correctly to proceed with 


installation of products as herein specified. 
 
C. Trench dewatering may be necessary.  Contractor shall provide any and all tools, equipment and 


labor necessary for trench dewatering no matter what the source.  Dewatering shall be continuous 
until all site utilities are installed and backfilled. 


 
1.09 PROTECTION 
 


A. Adequate protection measures shall be provided to protect workers and passers-by on and off the 
site. Adjacent property shall be fully protected throughout the operations.  Blasting will not be 
permitted.  Prevent damage to adjoining improvements and properties both above and below grade. 
 Restore such improvements to original condition should damage occur.  Replace trees and shrubs 
outside building area disturbed by operations.  Repair all trenches in grass areas with new sod 
(seeding not permitted) and "stake-off" for protection. 


 
B. Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for working conditions at the job site, including 


safety of all persons and property during performance of the work.  This requirement shall apply 
continuously and shall not be limited to normal working hours. 


 
C. Any construction review of the Contractor's performance conducted by the Architect or Owner is not 


intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures, in, on or near the 
construction site. 


 
D. Provide shoring, sheeting, sheet piles and or bracing to prevent caving, erosion or gullying of sides of 


excavation. 
 







 TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 31 23 33 - 3 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


E. Surface Drainage:  Provide for surface drainage during period of construction in manner to avoid 
creating nuisance to adjacent areas.  Keep all excavations free from water during entire progress of 
work, regardless of cause, source or nature of water. 


 
F. Adjacent streets and sidewalks shall be kept free of mud, dirt or similar nuisances resulting from 


earthwork operations. 
 
G. The site and adjacent influenced areas shall be watered as required to suppress dust nuisance. 
 
H. Trees:  Carefully protect existing trees which are to remain. 


 
1.10 TRENCH SAFETY PROVISIONS 
 


A. General Contractor shall be solely responsible for safety design, construction and coordination with 
agencies having jurisdiction.  If such plan varies from shoring system standards established by 
Construction Safety Orders, plan shall be prepared by registered civil or structural engineer. 


 
B. Nothing herein shall be deemed to allow use of shoring, sloping or protective system less effective 


than that required by Construction Safety Orders of California State Division of Industrial Safety. 
 
C. When trenching through paved surface, provide steel trench plates to cover open trenches daily until 


trenches are backfilled. 
 
1.11 SEASONAL LIMITS 
 


A. No backfill material shall be placed, spread or rolled during unfavorable weather conditions.  When 
work is interrupted by heavy rains, full operations shall not be resumed until field tests indicate that 
moisture content and density of fill are satisfactory. 
 


B. Material above optimum moisture shall be processed per section 310000, 3.08, B. 
 


1.12 TESTING 
 


A. General:  Refer to Section 01 45 00 – Quality Requirements. 
  
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 MATERIALS 
 


A. Backfill materials:  Pipeline and conduit trench backfill as shown on the plans and as specified below. 
 
1. ¾ inch crush rock.  
2. Native Materials:  Soil native to Project Site, free of wood, organics, and other deleterious 


substances.  Rocks shall not be greater than __-inches. 
3. Sand:  Fine granular material, free of organic matter, mica, loam or clay. 
4. Lean Mix Concrete/Controlled Density Backfill: 2 sacks cement slurry.  
5. Class 2 aggregate base, ¾” rock, per Caltrans section 26-1.02B 


 







 TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 31 23 33 - 4 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


B. Water:  Furnish all required water for construction purposes, including compaction and dust control. 
 Water shall be potable. 


 
C. Provide other bedding and backfill materials as described and specified in Section 31 00 00, Section 


33 40 00 and Divisions 15 and 16. 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
 
3.01 INSPECTION  
 


A. Verification of Conditions: 
 


1. Examine areas and conditions under which work is to be performed. 
2. Identify conditions detrimental to proper or timely completion of work and coordinate with 


General Contractor to rectify. 
 
3.02 COORDINATION 


 
A. General Contractor shall coordinate work as herein specified, in accordance with drawings and as 


required to complete scope of work with all related trades. 
 


3.03 INSTALLATION  
 


A. Perform work in accordance with pipe manufacturer’s recommendations, as herein specified and in 
accordance with drawings. 


 
3.04 TRENCHING 
 


A. Make all trenches open vertical construction with sufficient width to provide free working space at 
both sides of trench around installed item as required for caulking, joining, backfilling and 
compacting; not less than 12 inches wider than pipe or conduit diameter, unless otherwise noted. 


 
B. Carefully excavate around existing utilities to avoid unnecessary damage.  The contractor shall 


anticipate and perform hand work near existing utilities as shown on the survey, without additional 
claims or cost. 


 
C. Trench straight and true to line and grade with bottom smooth and free of edges or rock points. 
 
D. Where depths are not shown on the plans, trench to sufficient depth to give minimum fill above top 


of installed item measured from finish grade above the utility as follows:  
 


1. Sewer pipe:      depth to vary 
2. Storm drain pipe:     depth to vary 
3. Water pipe - Fire Supply:  36 inches 
4. Water pipe – Domestic Supply:  30 inches 


 
E. Where trench through existing pavement saw cut existing pavement in straight lines.  Grind existing 


asphalt on each side of trench 3” wide x ½ the depth of the section. Apply tact coat to vertical 
surfaces before installing new asphalt.  Replace asphalt and concrete pavement sections to matched 







 TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 31 23 33 - 5 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


existing conditions.  In concrete pavement provide expansion and control joints to match existing 
joint layout. 


 
3.05 BACKFILL 
 


A. Pipe Trench Backfill is divided into three zones: 
 


1. Bedding:  Layer of material directly under the pipe upon which the pipe is laid. 
2. Pipe Zone:  Backfill from the top of the bedding to 6 inches (compacted) over the top of the pipe. 
3. Upper Zone:  Backfill between top of Pipe Zone and to surface of subgrade. 


 
B. Bedding:  Type of material and degree of compaction for bedding backfill shall be as defined in the 


Details and Specifications. 
 
C. Pipe Zone and Upper Zone Backfill: 
 


1. Type of material and degree of compaction Pipe Zone and Upper Zone Backfill shall be as 
required by Drawings, Details, & Specifications.   


2. Upper Zone Backfill shall not be placed until conformance of Bedding and Pipe Zone Backfill with 
specified compaction test requirements has been confirmed. 


3. Backfill shall be brought up at substantially the same rate on both sides of the pipe and care shall 
be taken so that the pipe is not floated or displaced.  Material shall not be dropped directly on 
pipe. 


 
D. Backfill Compaction: 
 


1. Backfill shall be placed in layers which, when compacted shall not exceed 6 inches in thickness.  
Each layer shall be spread evenly and thoroughly mixed to insure uniformity.  Do not backfill 
over, wet, frozen or soft subgrade surfaces.  Employ a placement method that does not disturb 
or damage foundation walls, perimeter drainage, foundation damp-proofing, waterproofing or 
protective cover. 


2. When moisture content of fill material is below that required to achieve specified density, add 
water until proper moisture content is achieved.  When moisture content is above that required, 
aerate by blading or other methods until specified moisture content is met, see section 310000, 
3.08, B. 


3. After each layer has been placed, mixed and spread evenly, it shall be thoroughly compacted to 
____% of maximum dry density while at specified moisture content. Compact each layer over its 
entire area until desired density has been obtained. 


4. The top ___ inches of subgrade compaction under pavement or building shall be per Earthwork 
section 31 00 00. 


5. Compaction:  All backfill operations shall be observed by the Inspector of Record and/or 
Geotechnical Engineer.  Field density tests shall be made to check compaction of fill material.  If 
densities are not satisfactory, Contractor will be required to change equipment or procedure or 
both, as required to obtain specified densities.  Notify Inspector and Architect at least 24 hours 
in advance of any operation. 


 
 
 
 







 TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING 
 31 23 33 - 6 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


3.06 TRENCH AND SITE RESTORATION 
 


A. Finished surface of trenches shall be restored to a condition equal to, or better than the condition as 
existed prior to excavation work. 


 
3.07 PROTECTION 
 


A. Protect existing surfaces, structures, and utilities from damage.  Protect work by others from 
damage.  In the event of damage, immediately repair or replace to satisfaction of Owner. 


 
B. Repair existing landscaped areas to as new condition.  Replant trees, shrubs or groundcover with 


existing materials if not damaged or with new materials if required.  Replace damaged lawn areas 
with sod, no seeding will be permitted. 


 
C. Replace damaged pavement with new compatible matching materials.  Concrete walks to be 


removed to nearest expansion joint and entire panel replaced.  Asphalt to be cute neatly and 
replaced with new materials. 


 
D. Any existing materials removed or damaged due to trenching to be returned to new condition. 
 


3.08 SURPLUS MATERIAL 
 
A. Remove excess excavated material, unused materials, damaged or unsuitable materials from site. 


 
3.09 CLEANING 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 74 00. 
 
B. Contractor will keep the work areas in a clean and safe condition so his rubbish, waste, and debris do 


not interfere with the work of others throughout the project and at the completion of work. 
 
C. After completion of work in this section, remove all equipment, materials, and debris.  Leave entire 


area in a neat, clean, acceptable condition. 
 


 
END OF SECTION 








 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 1 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


SECTION 32 16 00 
 


SITE CONCRETE 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 
 


A. The Section describes the requirements for providing portland cement concrete paving, including 
accessibility ramps, sidewalks, accessible routes of travel, vehicular travel, drain structures, sewer 
structures, thrust blocks and for other non-structural or non-vehicular applications. 


 
1.02 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 


A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this Section, as 
if repeated herein. 


 
1.03 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 
 


A. Section 01 45 00, Testing Lab Services.  
 


B. Section 31 00 00, Earthwork. 
 
1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


A. Use only new materials and products. 
 
B. Use materials and products of one manufacturer whenever possible. 
 
C. All materials, components, assemblies, workmanship and installation are to be observed by the Owner's 


Inspector of Record.  Work not so inspected is subject to uncovering and replacement. 
D. Sieve analysis from testing laboratories identifying rock/sand percentages within the concrete mix; or 


class 2 aggregate base shall have the current project name and project location identified on the report. 
Outdated analytical reports greater than 90 days old will not be accepted  


 
1.05 SUBMITTALS 
 


A. Refer to Section 13 33 00. 
 
B. Manufacturer's Data:  Submit list and complete descriptive data of all products proposed for use.  


Include manufacturer's specifications, published warranty or guarantee, installation instructions, and 
maintenance instructions. 


 
C. Materials list:  Submit to the Architect a complete list of all materials proposed to be used in this portion 


of the work.  Submitted items should include but are not limited to sand, gravel, admixtures, surface 
treatments, coloring agents, sealers, fibers, cast-in-place accessories, forming and curing products and 
concrete mix designs. 


 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 2 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


D. With concrete submittal, provide documented history of mix design performance. 
 
1.06 WARRANTY 
 


A. Refer to General Conditions and Section 01 78 36. 
 
1.07 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 
 


A. California Building Code, latest edition.  
 
B. ACI Standards, ACI 211.1, ACI 318-14, ACI 302, IR-04, ACI 301-16, ACI 305R-10, ACI 306R-16, ACI 308-16. 
 
C. ASTM C-94, Specification for Ready-Mixed Concrete. 
 
D. Concrete Reinforcing Steel Institute (CRSI) Manual of Standard Practice (latest edition). 
 
E. ASTM – American Society for Testing and Materials.  


 
1.08 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 


A. Deliver undamaged products to job in manufacturer's sealed containers and/or original bundles with 
tags and labels intact. 


 
B. Store materials in protected, dry conditions off of ground and in areas so as to not interfere with the 


progress of the work. 
 
C. Transport, store and handle in strict accord with the manufacturer's written recommendations. 
 
D. Make delivery to job when notified by Contractor verifying that the job is ready to receive the work of 


this Section and that arrangements have been made to properly store, handle and protect such materials 
and work. 


 
E. Store cement in weather tight building, permitting easy inspection and identification.  Protect from 


dampness.  Lumpy or stale cement will be rejected.  
 
F. Aggregates:  Prevent excessive segregation, or contamination with other materials or other sizes of 


aggregate.  Use only one supply source for each aggregate stock pile.  
 
1.09 TESTING 


 
A. General:  Refer to Section 01 40 00 – Quality Requirements. 
 
B. Cement and Reinforcing shall be tested in accordance with CBC Section 1910A.  Testing of reinforcing 


may be waived in accordance with Section 1910A.2 when approved by the Structural Engineer and DSA. 
 
1.10 ADEQUACY AND INSPECTION 
 


A. Design, erect, support, brace and maintain formwork and shoring to safely support all vertical and lateral 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 3 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


loads that might be applied until such loads can be carried by concrete. 
 
B. Notify Inspector, Architect and DSA at least 48 hours prior to placing of concrete. 


 
1.11 PROTECTION 
 


A. Finish surfaces shall be protected at all times from concrete pour.  Inspect forming against such work 
and establish tight leak-proof seal before concrete is poured.  Finish work damaged, defaced or 
vandalized during the course of construction shall be replaced by contractor at contractor expense. 


 
1.12 FIELD MEASUREMENTS 
 


A. Make and be responsible for all field dimensions necessary for proper fitting, slopes and completion of 
work. Report discrepancies to Architect before proceeding. 


 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 MATERIALS 
 


A. Cement:  Portland cement, ASTM C150, Type II, per ACI 318-14 Section 26.4.  
 
B. Concrete Aggregates:  Normal weight aggregates shall conform to ASTM C33, except as modified by this 


section.  Combined grading shall meet limits of ASTM C33.  Lightweight aggregate shall conform to ASTM 
C330, suitably processed, washed and screened, and shall consist of durable particles without adherent 
coatings. 


 
C. Water:  Clean and free from deleterious amounts of acids, alkalis, scale, or organic materials and per ACI 


318-14 Section 26.4.1.3.1. 
 
D. Fly Ash:  Western Fly Ash, conforming to ASTM C618 for Class N or Class F materials (Class C is not 


permitted).  Not more than 15% (by mass) may be substituted for portland cement. 
 
E. Water Reducing Admixture:  Admixture to improve placing, reduce water cement ratio, and ultimate 


shrinkage may be used.  Provide WRDA 64 by Grace Construction Products or approved equal.  
Admixture shall conform to ASTM C494 and ACI 318-14 Section 26.4.1.4.19(a).  Such admixture must 
receive prior approval by the Architect, Structural Engineer, and the Testing Lab, and shall be included in 
original design mix. 


 
F. Air-entraining Admixture:  Daravair 1000 by Grace Construction Products or approved equal. Admixture 


must conform to ASTM C260 and ACI 318-14, section 26.4.1.4. 
 
G. Surface Retarder (for exposed aggregate finishes):  Rugasol-S by Sika Corporation or approved equal. 
 
H. Form Coating:  Material which will leave no residue on concrete surface that will interfere with surface 


coating, as approved by the Architect. 
 
I. Reinforcement Bars:  New billet steel deformed bars conforming to requirements of ASTM A615 or 


ASTM A706; Grade 60.  Dowels for installation through expansion joints or construction joints to existing 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 4 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


sidewalks or concrete features shall be smooth or shall be sleeved on one end for slippage. 
 
J. Reinforcing supports: Galvanized metal chairs or spacers or metal hangers, accurately placed 3’-0” 


O.C.E.W. Staggered and each support securely fastened to steel reinforcement in place.  Bottom bars in 
footings may be supported with 3” concrete blocks with embedded wire ties. Concrete supports without 
wire ties will not be allowed. 


 
K. Truncated Domes:  Vitrified Polymer Composite (VPC), Cast-In-Place Detectable/Tactile Warning Surface 


Tiles; “Armor-Tile”, “Access Tile Tactile Systems”, or approved equal.  Tiles shall comply with Americans 
with Disabilities Act and the California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 24, Part 2, Chapter 11B (dome 
spacing shall be 2.35”).  Install tiles as recommended by manufacturer. Color, federal yellow (FS 33538). 


 
L. Curing Compound (for exterior slabs only):  Burke Aqua Resin Cure by Burke by Edoco, 1100 Clear by 


W.R. Meadows or accepted equal.  Water based membrane-forming concrete curing compound meeting 
ASTM C 309 and C1315. 


 
M. Concrete Bonding Agent:  Weld-Crete by Larson Products Corp., Daraweld C by Grace Construction 


Products or accepted equal. 
 
N. Patching Mortar:  Meadow-Crete GPS, one-component, trowel applied, polymer enhanced, shrinkage-


compensated, fiber reinforced, cementitious repair mortar for horizontal, vertical and overhead 
applications as manufactured by W.R. Meadows or accepted equal. 


 
O. Non-shrink Grout:  Masterflow 713 Plus by Master Builders or approved equal.  Premixed,non-metallic, 


no chlorides, non-staining and non-shrinking per CRD-C621, Corps of Engineers Specification and ASTM C 
1107, Grades B and C.   


 
P. Aggregate Base:  Class 2 AB per Caltrans specification section 26-1.02A. 
 
Q. Expansion Joint Material:  Preformed 3/8" fiber material, full depth of concrete section, with bituminous 


binder manufactured for use as concrete expansion joint material, as accepted by the Architect. 
 
R. Joint sealant for expansion joints: Single component silicone sealant, Type S, ASTM D5893. 


 
1. Reference Standard:  ASTM C920, Grade P, Class 25, Use T. 
2. Dow Corning 890-SL (self-leveling) Silicone, or accepted equal. 
3. Dow Corning 888-NS (non-sagging) Silicone, at slopes exceeding 5%.  May not be used at asphalt 


surfaces. 
4. Color: Custom color as selected by Architect. 


     
S. Pre- Formed plastic Expansion Joint; W.R. Meadows 3/8” “Snap Cap”, Tex-Trude expansion joint cap, or 


an approved equal. 
 
T. Adhesive Anchoring (Epoxy): Hilty HIT-HY 200 Safe Set, or approved equal. 


 
2.02 CONCRETE DESIGN AND CLASS 
 


A. Class “B”:  Concrete shall have 1" max. size aggregate, shall have 3000 psi min. at 28 day strength with a 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 5 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


maximum water to cementitious ratio no greater than 0.50. Use for exterior slabs, including walks, 
vehicular paved surfaces, manhole bases, poured-in-place drop inlets, curbs, valley gutters, curb & 
gutter and other concrete of like nature.  


            
B. Slump Limits:  Provide concrete, at point of final discharge, of proper consistency determined by Test 


Method ASTM C143 with a slumps of 4" plus or minus 1". 
 
C. Mix Design:  All concrete used in this work will be designed for strength in accordance with provisions of 


ASI 318-14 Section 26.4.  Should the Contractor desire to pump concrete, a modified mix design will 
need to be submitted for review.  Fly ash may be used in concrete to improve workability in amounts up 
to 15% of the total cementitious weight. 


 
D. Air Entrainment; Per the Local Jurisdiction minimum requirements, or 3% minimum. 


 
2.03 MIXING OF CONCRETE 


 
A. Conform to requirements of CBC, Chapter 19A. 
 
B. All concrete shall be mixed until there is uniform distribution of material and mass is uniform and 


homogenous; mixer must be discharged completely before the mixer is recharged. 
 
C. Concrete shall be Ready-mixed Concrete:  Mix and deliver in accordance with the requirements set forth 


in ASTM C94 and ACI 301.  Batch Plant inspection may be waived in accordance with CBC Section 
1705A.3.3.1, when approved by Structural Engineer and DSA. 


 
1. Approved Testing Laboratory shall check the first batching at the start of the work and furnish mix 


proportions to the Licensed Weighmaster. 
2. Licensed Weighmaster to positively identify materials as to quantity and to certify to each 


load by ticket. 
3. Ticket shall be transmitted to Project Inspector by truck driver with load identified thereon.  


Project Inspector will not accept load without load ticket identifying mix and will keep daily 
record of pours, identifying each truck, its load and time of receipt and will transmit two 
copies of record to DSA. 


4. At end of project, Weighmaster shall furnish affidavit to DSA on form satisfactory to DSA, 
certifying that all concrete furnished conforms in every particular and to proportions 
established by mix designs.  


5. Placement of concrete shall occur as rapidly as possible after batching and in a manner which 
will assure that the required quality of the concrete is maintained.  In no case may concrete 
be placed more than 90 minutes from batch time. 


6. Water may be added to the mix only if neither the maximum permissible water-cement ratio 
nor the maximum slump is exceeded. In no case shall more than 10 gallons of water shall be 
added to a full 9 yard load, or 1 gal. per yard on remaining concrete within the drum 
providing load tag indicates at time of mixing at plant will allow for additional water. 


 
2.04 MATERIALS TESTING 
 


A. Materials testing of concrete and continuous batch plant inspection may be waived in accordance CBC 
Sections 1704A.4.4 when approved by Structural Engineer and DSA. 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 6 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
B. Testing of concrete shall be performed per article 3.12 of this specification. 


 
2.05 EQUIPMENT 
 


A. Handling and mixing of concrete:  Project Inspector may order removal of any equipment which in his 
opinion is insufficient or in any way unsuitable. 


 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.01 APPROVAL OF FORMS AND REINFORCEMENTS  
 


A. Forms and reinforcements are subject to approval by the Project Inspector, and notice of readiness to 
place first pour shall be given to DSA, Architect and Structural Engineer 48 hours prior to placement of 
concrete.  Before placing concrete, clean tools, equipment and remove all debris from areas to receive 
concrete.  Clean all reinforcing and other embedded items off all coatings oil, and mud that may impair 
bond with concrete.  


 
B. All reinforcing steel shall be adequately supported by approved devices on centers close enough to 


prevent any sagging. 
 
C. All reinforcing bar lap splices shall be staggered a minimum of 5 ft. 
  
D. Additional reinforcing steel shall be placed around all utility boxes, valve boxes, manhole frames and 


covers that are located within the concrete placements. 
 


1. The bars shall be placed so that there will be a minimum of 1 ½” clearance and a maximum of 3” 
clearance.  The reinforcing steel shall be placed mid-depth of concrete slab. 


 
E. At all right angles or intersections of concrete walks, additional 2’x2’ #5, 90 degree bars shall be added at 


all inside corners for additional crack control.  The bars shall be placed 2” from concrete forms and 
supports at mid-depth of slab. 


 
3.02 PROTECTION 
 


A. Protect work and materials of this Section prior to and during installation, and protect the installed work 
and materials of other trades. 


 
B. In the event of damage, make all repairs and replacements necessary to the approval of the Architect at 


no additional cost to the Owner. 
  
C. Sub-Grade in vehicular concrete paved areas:  Subgrade shall be clean, shaped and compact to hard 


surface free from elevations or depressions exceeding 0.05’ in 10' from true plan.  Compact per Section 
31 00 00.  Compaction and moisture content shall be verified immediately prior to placement of 
concrete.  Proof roll subbase in presence of geotechnical engineer prior to placement of aggregate base. 


 
3.03 CLEANING 
 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 7 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


A. Reinforcement and all other embedded items at time of placing concrete to be free of rust, dirt oil or any 
other coatings that would impair bond to concrete. 


 
B. Remove all wood chips, sawdust, dirt, loose concrete and other debris just before concrete is to be 


poured.  Use compressed air for inaccessible areas.  Remove all standing water from excavations. 
 
3.04 FORMING 
 


A. Form material shall be straight, true, sound and able to withstand deformation due to loading and 
effects of moist curing.  Materials which have warped or delaminated, or require more than minor 
patching of contact surfaces, shall not be reused. 


 
B. Build forms to shapes, lines, grades and dimensions indicated.  Construct form work to maintain 


tolerances required by ACI 301.  Forms shall be substantial, tight to prevent leakage of concrete, and 
properly braced and tied together to maintain position and shape.  Butt joints tightly and locate on solid 
backing.  Chamfer corners where indicated.  Form bevels, grooves and recesses to neat, straight lines.  
Construct forms for easy removal without hammering, wedging or prying against concrete. 


 
C. Space clamps, ties, hangers and other form accessories so that working capacities are not exceeded by 


loads imposed from concrete or concreting operations. 
 
D. Build openings into vertical forms at regular intervals if necessary to facilitate concrete placement, and 


at bottoms of forms to permit cleaning and inspection. 
 
E. Build in securely braced temporary bulkheads, keyed as required, at planned locations of construction 


joints. 
 
F. Slope tie-wires downward to outside of wall. 
 
G. Brace, anchor and support all cast-in items to prevent displacement or distortion. 
 
H. During and immediately after concrete placing, tighten forms, posts and shores.  Readjust to maintain 


grades, levels and camber. 
 
I. Concrete paving, Curbs, Curb and Gutters, Ramps: 


    
1. Expansion Joints:  Install at locations indicated, and so that maximum distance between joints is 20’ 


for exterior concrete unless otherwise shown.  Expansion joint material shall be full depth of 
concrete section.  Recess for backer rod and sealant where required.  Expansion joints shall not 
exceed ¼ inch depth measured from finish surface to top of felt or sealant, and ½ inch width. 


2. Curbs, Valley Gutter, and Curb & Gutter:  Install expansion joints at 60’ on center, except when 
placing adjacent to concrete walks, the expansion joints shall align with the expansion joints shown 
for the concrete walks.   Expansion joint material shall be full depth of concrete section.  Recess for 
backer rod and sealant will be required. 


3. Isolation Joints:  3/8” felt between walls and exterior slabs or walks so that paved areas are isolated 
from all vertical features, unless specifically noted otherwise on plans. 


4. Exterior Concrete Paving:  Install expansion joints at 20’ on center maximum, both directions, unless 
shown otherwise on plans. 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 8 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


5. Ramps; whether shown or not all ramps shall have control joints and expansion joints. 
  
a. Control joints on ramps shall be aligned and be placed in between with the vertical posts for the 


handrails. The curbs, if required shall have control joints that align with the handrail posts. 
b. Expansion joints shall be placed at the upper, intermediate, and bottom landings. 


 
3.05 FORM COATING 
 


A. Before placement of reinforcing steel, coat faces of all forms to prevent absorption of moisture from 
concrete and to facilitate removal of forms.  Apply specified material in conformance with 
manufacturer's written directions. 


 
B. Before re-using form material, inspect, clean thoroughly and recoat. 
 
C. Seal all cut edges.  


 
3.06 INSTALLATION 
 


A. General: Reinforcement shall be accurately placed at locations indicated on the drawings within required 
tolerances and providing required clearances.  Reinforcement shall be secured prior to placement of 
concrete such that tolerances and clearances are maintained.  Coverage shall be in accordance with 
Section 1907A.7 of the CBC.  Keep a person on the job to maintain position of reinforcing as concrete is 
placed.  Reinforcement must be in place before concreting is begun.  Install dowels as shown on 
drawings.  Give notice whenever pipes, conduits, sleeves, and other construction interferes with 
placement; obtain method of procedure to resolve interferences.  All expansion and construction joints 
in concrete shall have dowels of size and spacing as shown, or as approved by Architect.  


 
B. Placing Tolerances: 


 
1. Per ACI 301 or CRSI/WCRSI Recommended Practice for Placing Reinforcing Bars, unless otherwise 


shown.  
2. Clear distance between parallel bars in a layer shall be no less than 1”, the maximum bar diameter 


not 1 ½ times the maximum size of coarse aggregate.  
 


C. Splices: 
 
1. General:  Unless otherwise shown on drawings, splice top reinforcing at midspan between supports, 


splice bottom reinforcing at supports and stagger splices at adjacent splices 5 foot minimum.  Bar 
laps shall be wired together.  Reinforcing steel laps shall be as follows: 
a. Lap splices in concrete:  Lap splice lengths shall not be less than 62 bar diameter for No. 5 bar, 


56” minimum for No. 6 bars.   No. 4 bar shall have a minimum of 24” splice.  93 bar diameters 
for No. 7 bars and larger.  


b. All splices shall be staggered at 5 feet minimum. 
 
3.07 INSPECTION 
 


A. Approval of reinforcing steel, after installation, must be received from Inspector.  Architect, Structural 
Engineer and DSA must be notified 48 hrs. in advance of beginning of concrete placement operations. 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 9 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
B. Slope of concrete forms and finish condition shall be checked with a two foot (2’) digital level.   


 
3.08 PLACING OF CONCRETE 
 


A. Adjacent finish surfaces shall be protected at all times during the concrete pour and finishing.  Verify 
that all formwork is tight and leak-proof before concrete is poured.  Finish work defaced during the 
concrete pour and finishing shall be replaced at no extra cost to the owner. 


 
B. Transport concrete from mixer to place of final deposit as rapidly as practicable by methods which will 


prevent separation or loss of ingredients.  Deposit as close as practicable in final position to avoid re-
handling or flowing.  Partially hardened concrete must not be deposited in work.  Concrete shall not be 
wheeled directly on top of reinforcing steel. 


 
C. Placing:  Once started, continue concrete pour continuously until section is complete between 


predetermined construction joints.  Prevent splashing of concrete onto adjacent forms or reinforcement 
and remove such accumulation of hardened or partially hardened concrete from forms or reinforcement 
before work proceeds in that area.  Free fall of concrete shall not to exceed 4'-0" in height.  If necessary, 
provide lower openings in forms to inject concrete and to reduce fall height. 


 
D. Remove form spreaders as placing of concrete progresses. 
 
E. Place footings as monolithic and in one continuous pour. 
 
F. Keep excavations free of standing water, but moisture condition sub-grade before concrete placement. 
                 
G. Compacting:  All concrete shall be compacted by mechanical vibrators.  Concrete shall be thoroughly 


worked around reinforcement and embedded fixtures and into corners of forms.  Vibrating shall not be 
applied to concrete which has already begun to initially set nor shall it be continued so long as to cause 
segregation of materials. 


 
H. Concrete Flatwork:   
 


1. All flatwork shall be formed and finished to required line and grades.  Flatwork shall be true and flat 
with a maximum tolerance of 1/8" in 10’ for flatness. Flatwork which is not flat and are outside of 
the maximum specified tolerances shall be made level by the Contractor at no additional expense to 
the Owner. 


    
I. Placing in hot weather:  Comply with ACI 305R-10.  Concrete shall not exceed 85 degrees F at time of 


placement.  Concrete shall be delivered, placed and finished in a sufficiently short period of time to 
avoid surface dry checking. Concrete shall be kept wet continuously after tempering until 
implementation of curing compound procedure in accordance with this specification.   


 
J. Placing in cold weather:  Comply with ACI 306R-16.  Protect from frost or freezing.  No antifreeze 


admixtures are permitted.  When deposited concrete during freezing or near-freezing weather, mix shall 
have temperature of at least 50 degrees F but not more than 90 degrees F.  Concrete shall be maintained 
at temperature of at least 50 degrees F for not less than 72 hours after placing or until it has thoroughly 
hardened.  Provide necessary thermal coverings for any flat work exposed to freezing temperatures. 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 10 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
K. Horizontal construction joint:  Keep exposed concrete face of construction joints continuously moist 


from time of initial set until placing of concrete; thoroughly clean contact surface by chipping entire 
surface not earlier than 5 days after initial pour to expose clean hard aggregate solidly embedded, or by 
approved method that will assure equal bond, such as green cutting.  If contact surface becomes 
contaminated with soil, sawdust or other foreign matter, clean entire surface and re-chip entire surface 
to assure proper adhesion. 


 
3.09 CONCRETE FINISHES 
 


A. Concrete Slab Finishing:  Finish slab as required by ACI 302.1R.  Use manual screeds, vibrating screeds to 
place concrete level and smooth.  Use “jitterbugs” or other special tools designed for the purpose of 
forcing the course aggregate below the surface leaving a thick layer of mortar 1 inch in thickness.  
Surface shall be free from trowel marks, depressions, ridges or other blemishes. Tolerance for flatness 
shall be 1/8" in 10'.  Provide final finish as follows: 
 
1. Flatwork, medium broom finish:  Typical finish to be used at all exterior walks and stairs.   
2. Ramps, heavy broom finish: Concrete surfaces with slope greater than 5% including all ramps. 


Brooming direction shall run perpendicular to slope to form non-slip surface 
3. Under no circumstances can water be added to the top surface of freshly placed concrete. 


 
B. Curb Finishing:  Steel trowel. 
 
C. Joints and Edges:  Mark-off exposed joints, where indicated, with ¼” radius x 1” deep jointer or edging 


tool.  Joints to be clean, cut straight, parallel or square with respect to concrete walk edge.  Tool all 
edges of exposed expansion and contraction joints, walk edges, and wherever concrete walk adjoins 
other material or vertical surfaces. 


 
1. The expansion joints shall be full depth as shown in the plan details. Failure to do so will result in 


non-compliance and shall be immediately machine cut by the contractor at his expense.                       
 
D. Exposed Concrete Surface Finishing (not including top surface of flatwork): Remove fins and rough spots 


immediately following removal of forms from concrete which is to be left exposed.  Damaged and 
irregular surfaces and holes left by form clamps and sleeves shall be patched with grout.  Tie wires are to 
be removed to below exposed surface and holes pointed up with neat cement paste similar to procedure 
noted under "Patching" below.  Removal of tie wires shall extend to distance of 2" below established 
grade lines.  Ends of tie wires shall be cut off flush at all other, unexposed locations.  Care shall be taken 
to match adjacent finishes of exposed concrete surface.  After patching, all concrete that is to remain 
exposed, shall be sacked with a grout mixture of 1-part cement, 1 1/2- parts fine sand and sufficient 
water to produce a consistency of thick paint.  After first wetting the concrete surface, apply mixture 
with a brush and immediately float entire surface vigorously using a wood float.  Keep damp during 
periods of hot weather.  When set, excess grout shall be scraped from wall with edge of steel trowel, 
allowed to set for a time, then wiped or rubbed with dry burlap.  Entire finishing operation of any area 
shall be completed on the same day.  This treatment shall be carried to 4" below grade, and all patching 
and sacking shall be done immediately upon removal of the forms. 


 
E. Stair Treads and Risers: Tool exterior stair tread nosing per ADA requirements and as detailed.  Paint or 


stain tooled area at every stair tread nosing or as detailed.  Stair tread nosing shall contain no pockets, 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 11 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


voids or spalls.  Patching is not allowed.  Damaged nosing shall be replaced. 
 
3.10 CURING 
 


A. Cured Concrete in Forms:  Keep forms and top on concrete between forms continuously wet until 
removal of forms, 7 days minimum.  Maintain exposed concrete in a continuous wet condition for 14 
days following removal of forms. 


 
B. Flatwork/Variable Height Curbs, Curb and gutter, Valley Gutter:  Cure utilizing Curing Compound.  If 


applicable, the Contractor shall verify that the approved Curing Compound is compatible with the 
approved colorant system.  Upon completion of job, wash clean per manufacturer’s recommendations. 


 
1. Curing compound shall be applied in a wet puddling application. Spotty applications shall be reason 


for rejection and possibly concrete removal and replacement at the contractor’s expense with no 
compensation from the owner.              


 
C. No Curing Compound shall be applied to areas scheduled to receive resilient track surface including, 


curbs, ramps, run ways, etc.  
 
3.11 DEFECTIVE CONCRETE 
 


A. Determination of defective concrete shall be made by the Architect or Engineer.  His opinion shall be 
final in identifying areas to be replaced, repaired or patched.   


 
B. The Owner reserves the right to survey the flatwork, if it is determined to be outside of the maximum 


tolerance for flatness.  If the flatwork is found to be out of tolerance, then the Contractor will be 
required to replace concrete.  The Contractor will be responsible for reimbursing the Owner for any 
surveying costs incurred. Determination of flatwork flatness, surveying and any remedial work must be 
completed far enough in advance so that the project schedule is maintained, delays are avoided and the 
new flatwork or flatwork repairs are properly cured. 


 
C. As directed by Architect, cut out and replace defective concrete.  All defective concrete shall be removed 


from the site.  No patching is to be done until surfaces have been examined by Architect and permission 
to begin patching has been provided. 


 
D. Permission to patch any area shall not be considered waiver of right, by the Owner, to require removal 


of defective work, if patching does not, in opinion of Architect, satisfactorily restore quality and 
appearance of surface. 


 
E. Defective concrete is: 
 


1. Concrete that does not match the approved mix design for the given installation type.  
2. Concrete not meeting specified 28-day strength. 
3. Concrete which contains rock pockets, voids, spalls, transverse cracks, exposed reinforcing, or 


other such defects which adversely affect strength, durability or appearance. 
4. Concrete which is incorrectly formed, out of alignment or not plumb or level. 
5. Concrete containing embedded wood or debris. 
6. Concrete having large or excessive patched voids which were not completed under Architect's 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 12 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


direction. 
7. Concrete not containing required embedded items. 
8. Excessive Shrinkage, Traverse cracking, Crazing, Curling; or Defective Finish. Remove and 


replace if repair to an acceptable condition is not feasible. 
9. Concrete that is unsuitable for placement or has set in truck drum for longer than 90 minutes 


from the time it was batched. 
10. Expansion joint felt that is not isolating the full depth of the concrete section, and recessed as 


required for backer rod and sealant where required. 
11. Concrete that is excessively wet or excessively dry and will not meet the minimum or 


maximum slump required per mix design. 
12. Finished concrete with oil stains from equipment use, and or rust spots that cannot be 


removed. 
13. Control joints (weakened planed joints) that do not meet the required minimum depth shown 


on the drawings. 
 
F. Patching:  Install specified Patching Mortar per manufacturer’s recommendations. REPAIRS TO 


DEFECTIVE CONCRETE WHICH AFFECT THE STRENGTH OF ANY STRUCTURAL CONCRETE MEMBER 
OR COMPONENT ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE ARCHITECT AND DSA.   


 
3.12 CONCRETE TESTING 
 


A. Comply with CBC Section 1903A, 1905A.1.16, 1910A and 1705A.3 and as specified in B. below.  Costs of 
tests will be borne by the Owner. 


 
B. Four identical cylinder samples for strength tests of each class of concrete placed each day shall be taken 


not less than once a day, or not less than once for each 50 cubic yards of concrete, or not less than once 
for each 2,000 square feet of surface area for slabs or walls.  In addition, samples for strength tests for 
each class of concrete shall be taken for seven-day tests at the beginning of the concrete work or 
whenever the mix or aggregate is changed. 


 
C. Strength tests will be conducted by the Testing Lab on one cylinder at seven (7) days and two cylinders at 


twenty-eight (28) days.  The fourth remaining cylinder will be available for testing at fifty-six (56) days if 
the 28-day cylinder test results do not meet the required design strength. 


 
D. On a given project, if the total volume of concrete is such that the frequency of testing required by 


paragraph B. above would provide less than five strength tests for a given class of concrete, tests shall be 
made from at least five randomly selected batches or from each batch if fewer than five batches are 
used. 


 
E. Cost of retests and coring due to low strength or defective concrete will be paid by Owner and back-


charged to the Contractor. 
 
F. Each truck shall be tested for slump before concrete is placed. 


 
3.13 REMOVAL OF FORMS 
 


A. Remove without damage to concrete surfaces. 
 







 SITE CONCRETE 
 32 16 00 - 13 
 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


B. Sequence and timing of form removal shall insure complete safety of concrete structure. 
 
C. Forms shall remain in place for not less than the following periods of time.  These periods represent 


cumulative number of days during which temperature of air in contact with concrete is 60 degrees F and 
above. 


 
1. Vertical forms of foundations, walls and all other forms not covered below: 5 days. 
2. Slab edge screeds or forms: 7 days. 
3. Concrete columns and beam soffits: 28 days. 


 
D. Concrete shall not be subjected to superimposed loads (structure or construction equipment) until it has 


attained its full design strength and not for a period of at least 21 days after placing.  Concrete systems 
shall not be subjected to construction loads in excess of design loads.  


 
3.14 CLEANING 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 74 00. 
 
B. Upon completion of work of this Section promptly remove from the working area all scraps, debris and 


surplus material of this Section. 
  
C. Clean excess material from surface of all concrete walks and utility structures. 
 
D. Power wash all concrete surfaces to remove stains, dried mud, tire marks, and rust spots. 


 
 


END OF SECTION 
 
 
 








 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 1 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
REVISION SUMMARY 


 
 


SECTION 33 00 00 
 


SITE UTILITIES 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 


A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this 
Section, as if repeated herein. 


 
1.02 SCOPE OF WORK 
  


A. The work includes, but is not necessarily limited to, the following: 
 


1. Domestic water piping system. 
2. Fire protection piping systems. 
3. Sewer piping system. 


 
B. Other items that may be specified or shown on the Drawings. 


 
1.03 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 


 
A. Section 01 50 00, Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls. 


B. Section 31 23 33, Trenching and Backfilling. 


C. Section 32 16 00, Site Concrete. 


D. Section 33 00 00, Earthwork. 


1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


A. Use only new materials and products, unless existing materials or products are specifically shown 
otherwise on the drawings to be salvaged and re-used. 


 
1. Sun damaged or discolored PVC pipe will be rejected. 


 
B. All materials, components, assemblies, workmanship and installation are to be observed by the 


Owner's Inspector of Record.  Work not so inspected is subject to uncovering and replacement. 
 
C. The representatives of the Owner’s testing lab will not act as supervisor of construction, nor will 


they direct construction operations.  Neither the presence of the Owner’s testing lab 
representatives nor the testing by the Owner’s testing lab shall excuse the contractors or 
subcontractors for defects or deficiencies discovered in their work during or following completion 
of the project.  Correcting inadequate compaction is the sole responsibility of the contractor. 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 2 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
D. Contractor shall be solely responsible for all subgrades built. Any repairs resulting from inadequate 


compaction or incorrect grades will be the responsibility of the contractor.  
 
E. Per 2016 NFPA 13 provide Contractor's material and test certificate to the Owner, Architect, Project 


Inspector and Local Fire Authority.  
 
1.05 SUBMITTALS 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 33 00. 
 
B. Manufacturer's Data:  Submit list and complete descriptive data of all products proposed for use.  


Include manufacturer's specifications, published warranty or guarantee, installation instructions, 
and maintenance instructions. 


 
C. Provide sieve analysis from accredited testing lab on pipe bedding material.  Analysis shall have a 


current date not older than project contract signing date. 
 
D. Substitution: Provide all data of proposed material being submitted as a substitution.  Provide 


comparison with specified product data and identify all differences.  Failure to provide comparison 
will be reason for rejection. 


 
1.06 FEES, PERMITS, AND UTILITY SERVICES 
 


A. Obtain and pay for permits and service charges required for installation of Work.  Arrange for 
required inspections and secure written approvals from authorities having jurisdiction. 


 
B. Upon completion of work within right-of-way, provide copies of written final approval to the 


Architect. 
 
1.07 WARRANTY 
 


A. Refer to General Conditions and Section 01 78 36. 
 
1.08 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 
 


A. ANSI/ASTM D698-00 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate 
Mixtures, Using 5.5 lb (2.49 Kg) Rammer and 12 inch (304.8 mm) Drop. 


 
B. ANSI/ASTM D1556-00 - Test Method for Density of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone Method. 
 
C. ANSI/ASTM D1557-02 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate 


Mixtures Using 10 lb. (4.54 Kg) Rammer and 18 inch (457 mm) Drop. 
 
D. ANSI/ASTM D 3017-05 Test Methods for Moisture Content of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixture by 


Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth). 
 
E. ANSI/ASTM D 4318-05 Test Method for Liquid Limit, Plastic Limit, and Plasticity Limit. 
 
F. CALTRANS Standard Specifications. 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 3 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
G. CAL-OSHA, Title 8, Section 1590 (e). 
 
H. Any work within the street, highway or right-of-way shall be performed in accordance with the 


requirement of the governmental agencies having jurisdiction, and shall not begin until all of those 
governing authorities have been notified. 


 
I. NFPA 13, 24 and 25, latest editions. 
 
J. California State Health and Safety Code Section 116875, Lead Free Public Water Systems. 
 
K. California Plumbing Code, latest edition. 


 
1.09 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 


A. Transport, store and handle in strict accord with the local jurisdiction. 
 
B. Make delivery to job when notified by Contractor verifying that the job is ready to receive the work 


of this Section and that arrangements have been made to properly store, handle and protect such 
materials and work. 


 
1.10 PROJECT CONDITIONS 
 


A. Existing civil, mechanical and electrical improvements are shown on respective site plans to the 
extent known.  Should the Contractor encounter any deviation between actual conditions and those 
shown, he is to immediately notify the Architect before continuing work. 


 
1.11 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS 
 


A. Contractor shall acquaint himself with all site conditions.  If unknown active utilities are 
encountered during work, notify Architect promptly for instructions.  Failure to notify will make 
Contractor liable for damage to these utilities arising from Contractor's operations subsequent to 
discovery of such unknown active utilities. 


  
1.12 PROTECTION  
 


A. Adequate protection measures shall be provided to protect workmen and passers-by on and off the 
site. Adjacent property shall be fully protected throughout the operations.  Blasting will not be 
permitted. Prevent damage to adjoining improvements and properties both above and below 
grade.  Restore such improvements to original condition should damage occur.  Replace trees and 
shrubs outside building area disturbed by operations. 


 
B. In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the Contractor shall be solely and 


completely responsible for working conditions at the job site, including safety of all persons and 
property during performance of the work.  This requirement shall apply continuously and shall not 
be limited to normal working hours. 


 
C. Any construction review of the Contractor's performance conducted by the Geotechnical Engineer 


is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures, in, on, or 
near the construction site. 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 4 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
D. Provide shoring, sheeting, sheet piles and or bracing to prevent caving, erosion or gullying of sides 


of excavation. 
 
E. Surface Drainage:  Provide for surface drainage during period of construction in manner to avoid 


creating nuisance to adjacent areas.  The contractor shall make a reasonable effort on a daily basis 
to provide pumps and all equipment necessary to keep all excavations and the site free from water 
during entire progress of work, regardless of cause, source, or nature of water. 


 
F. Adjacent streets and sidewalks shall be kept free of mud, dirt or similar nuisances resulting from 


earthwork operations. 
 
G. The site and adjacent influenced areas shall be watered as required to suppress dust nuisance.  Dust 


control measures shall be in accordance with the local jurisdiction.   
 
H. Trees:  Carefully protect existing trees that are to remain.  Provide temporary irrigation as necessary 


to maintain health of trees. 
 


1.13 SEASONAL LIMITS 
 


A. No fill material shall be placed, spread or rolled during unfavorable weather conditions.  When work 
is interrupted by rains, fill operations shall not be resumed until field tests indicate that moisture 
content and density of fill are satisfactory. 


 
1.14  RECORD DRAWINGS  
 


A. Keep a daily record of all pipe placed in ground, verified by Project Inspector. 
 
B. Upon completion of this Contract, furnish one tracing showing all outside utility lines, piping, etc., 


installed under this Contract.  Locate and dimension all work with reference to permanent 
landmarks. 


 
C. All symbols and designations used in preparing "RECORD" drawings shall match those used in 


Contract drawings. 
 
D. Properly identify on as-builts and provide dimensions for all stubs for future connections. Provide 


concrete markers 6” dia. 12” deep, flush with finish grade at the ends of all stubbed pipes. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 MATERIALS - GENERAL 
 


A. Provide each item listed herein or shown on drawings of quality noted or approved equal.  All 
material shall be new, full weight, standard in all respects and in first-class condition.  Insofar as 
possible, all materials used shall be of same brand or manufacture throughout for each class of 
material or equipment.  Materials shall be of domestic manufacture and shall be tested within 
Continental United States. 


 
B. Grade or quality of materials desired is indicated by trade names or catalog numbers stated herein. 
 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 5 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


C. Dimensions, sizes, and capacities shown are minimum and shall not be changed without permission 
of Architect. 


 
D. All materials in this section used for any public water system or domestic water for human 


consumption shall be lead free. 
 


1. For the purposes of this section, “lead free” means not more than 0.2 percent lead when used 
with respect to solder and flux and not more than 8 percent when used with respect to pipes 
and pipe fittings. 


2. All pipe, pipe or plumbing fitting or fixtures, solder, or flux shall be certified by an independent 
American National Standards Institute (ANSI) accredited third party, including, but not limited 
to, NSF International, as being in compliance with this section. 


 
E. All materials used for fire system piping shall be UL and FM approved. 


 
2.02 VALVE BOXES 
 


A. Provide at each valve or cock in ground a Christy, Brooks, or equal to Christy G05CT, concrete valve 
box with cover marked for service, domestic water shall be marked “Water” and fire supply shall be 
marked “Fire”.  Furnish extension handles for each size square nut valve, and provide “fork” handle 
for each size of “wheel handle” valve as required.  Do not locate valve boxes in walk, or covered 
passages, curbs, or curb & gutters, unless necessary.  If valve location is within concrete or asphalt 
paved surface valve box shall be as detailed on plans for such condition.  Provide valve box 
extensions as required to set bottom of valve box to bottom of piping in which valve is installed.  
Provide Owner with set of special wrenches and/or tools as required for operation of valves. 


 
2.03 PIPES AND FITTINGS 
 


A. Sanitary Sewer:  PVC sewer pipe and fittings with Ring-Tite joints, ASTM D3034 SDR35. 
 
B. Domestic water Lines 3 1/2” and smaller:  Type K copper tubing, hard temper, with wrought copper 


fittings.  
 
C. Water lines 4” and larger:  AWWA C-900 Class 150/DR18 with rubber gasket joints. 
 
D. Fire lines 4” and larger: AWWA C-900 Class 200/DR14 with rubber gasket joints. 
 
E. Solder:  Lead Free.  95/5; 95% Tin / 5% Antimony. 
 
F. Ductile Iron Pipe; Class 350, Cement Lined 
 
G. Ductile Iron Pipe Fittings; AWWA C110, C153, Ebba Iron, Star Romac, Sigma, or approved equal. 
 
H. Mechanical Fitting Bolts; Bolts and nuts shall be carbon steel with a minimum 60,000 psi tensile 


strength conforming to ASTM A 307, Grade A.  Bolts shall be standard ANSI B1.1 Class 2A course 
threads.  Nuts shall conform to ASTM A 563 and be standard ANSI B1.1, Class 2A course thread.  All 
bolts and nuts shall be zinc coated. 


 
I. Fasteners Anti-Rust Coatings; After assembly, coat all fasteners with an Asphaltic Bituminous 


coatings conforming to latest edition NFPA 24. 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 6 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
J. Ductile Iron Pipe Wrap; 8 mil polyethylene pipe wrap conforming to ANSI/AWWA C105/A21.5 


standards. 
 
K. Pipe Insulation; Pipe exposed to atmospheric conditions ½” thru 4” NPT; Johns Manville rigid 


fiberglass insulation, Micro Lok HP; Owens Corning Fiberglas SSL II; Conforming   to ASTM C 612, 
Type 1A or type 1B.  


 
L. Aluminum field applied pipe insulation jacket; comply with ASTM B209, ASTM C1729,    ASTM C1371 


Manufacturers; Childers Metals; ITW Insulation Systems Aluminum           Jacketing; or an approved 
equal.  


 
1. Finish shall be flat mill finish 
2. Factory Fabricated Fitting Covers; 45 and 90 degree elbows, tee’s, valve covers, end caps, 


unions, shall be of the same thickness and finish of jacket.  
3. The fittings shall be composed of 2-pieces 
4. Adhesives; per the manufacturers requirements 
5. Joint Sealant; shall be silicone, and shall be aluminum in color.   


 
M. Sewer Forced Main; HDPE, DR 11, color gray with green stripe by JM Eagle or approved equal. 
 


2.04 SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES 
 


A. Shall be constructed as shown on plan details. 
 
2.05 CLEANOUTS 
 


A. Cleanouts of same diameter as pipe up to 8” in size shall be installed in all horizontal soil and waste 
lines where indicated and at all points of change in direction.  Cleanouts shall be located not less 
than 18” from building so as to provide sufficient space for rodding. No horizontal run over 100 feet 
shall be without cleanout whether shown on drawings or not. 


 
B. All cleanout boxes shall be traffic rated with labeled lid, Christy G05CT or approved equal.  Lid shall 


be vandal proof with stainless steel screws 
 


2.06 UNIONS 
 


A. Furnish and install one union at each threaded or soldered connection to equipment and 2 unions, 
one on each side of valves on pipes ½” to 3”. 


 
B. Locate unions so that piping can be easily disconnected for removal of equipment or valve.  Provide 


type specified in following schedule: 
 


Type of Pipe Union 
 
Steel Pipe: 150 lb. Screwed malleable ground joint, brass, brass-to-iron seat, black 


or galvanized to match pipe. 
 
Copper tubing: Brass ground joint with sweat connections. 
 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 7 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


PVC Sch 80 pipe: PVC union, FIPT X FIPT 
 
2.07 VALVES 
 


A. Provide valves as shown and other valves necessary to segregate branches or units.  Furnish valves 
suitable for service intended.  Valves shall be properly packed and lubricated.  Valves shall be non-
rising stem.  Place unions adjacent to each threaded or sweat fitting valve.  Install valves with 
bonnets vertical.  All valves shall be lead free. 


 
B. Valves ½” thru 2”; shall be made of bronze, full size of pipe and lead free. Nibco S-113-FL Series; 


American G-300 Series; Matco 511 FL Series; Apollo 102T-FL Series.  Brass valves of brass parts 
within valves will not be accepted. 


 
C. Valves, 2 ½” thru 3” shall be class 150; Shall be made of bronze, full size of pipe; Jenkins Fig. 2310 J; 


Lunkinheimer Fig. 2153; Crane Fig. 437; Stockham Fig. B-128. 
 
D. Valves, Flanged; 4” thru 12” Ductile Iron Resilient Wedge Gate Valve; Nibco F 609 RW; American 


2500 Series; Kennedy 8561; Mueller 2360 Series. 
 
2.07 FIRE HYDRANTS 
 


A. Clow 960 Factory Painted or per Local Jurisdiction Requirements, or an approved equal, 36" 
minimum bury, two 2-1/2" hose nozzles, one 4-1/2" pumper nozzle, and break-off check valve, 
Clow LBI 400A or approved equal .  Hydrant shall conform to, and installation shall comply with the 
Local Jurisdiction. 


 
2.08 POST INDICATOR  


 
A. Post Indicator shall be Mueller Co. A-20806 (adjustable) with tamper switch or an   approved equal. 


 
2.09 BACKFLOW PREVENTERS 
 Double Check Valve, Double Check Detector and Reduced Pressure Backflow Preventers 
 


A. Backflow preventers shall be as approved by the local agency and by the State of California’s 
Department of Health Services most recent list of approved reduced pressure backflow preventers. 
All approved backflow preventers shall have ductile iron bodies. 


 
1. Provide Backflow preventer blankets with locking device.  Weatherguard R-30 insulated or 


equal. 
2. Provide ball valve at all test ports with brass plug in valve. 
3. Provide a minimum of 2 valve tamper switches on fire prevention Backflows.   


 
2.10 TAPPING SLEEVE 
 


A. Shall be used on pipe sizes 6” thru 12” and shall be made with stainless steel material including 
stainless steel bolts.  Flanges shall be ductile iron or high carbon steel.  Gaskets shall seal full 
circumference of pipe.  Shall be manufactured for operating pressure of 200 psi, and shall pass test 
pressure of 300 psi.  Romac SST series; Smithblair 662; Mueller H304; Ford “FAST” tapping sleeve. 


 
2.11 SERVICE SADDLES 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 8 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
A. Shall be used on pipe size 2” thru 4”.  Body shall be made from ductile iron with epoxy coating or 


bronze.  Cascade Style CSC-1; A.Y. McDonald model 3891 AWWA/3892 FNPT; Smith-Blair #317; Ford 
S70, S71, S90, (style B). 


 
2.11 TRACER WIRE 
 


A. No. 10 THW solid copper wire.  Solder all joints 
 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.01 DRAWINGS AND COORDINATION 
    


A. General arrangement and location of piping, etc., are shown on Drawings or herein specified.  Install 
work in accord therewith, except for minor changes that may be necessary on account of other 
work or existing conditions.  Before excavation, carefully examine other work that may conflict with 
this work.  Install this work in harmony with other craft and at proper time to avoid delay of work. 


 
B. Verify invert elevations at points of connection to existing systems prior to any excavation.  If invert 


elevations differ from that shown on drawings, notify Architect immediately.  
     
C. In advance of construction, work out minor changes if conflicts occur with electrical or mechanical. 


Relocate services to suit actual conditions and work of other trades to avoid conflict therewith.  Any 
adjustments or additional fittings to make adjustments shall not be cause for additional costs to the 
owner.  


 
D. Execute any work or apparatus shown on drawings and not mentioned in specifications, or vice 


versa.  Omission from Drawings or Specifications of any minor details of construction, installation, 
materials, or essential specialties does not relieve Contractor of furnishing same in place complete. 


 
E. Graded pipes shall take precedence. If conflict should occur while placing the domestic water and 


fire service piping, the contractor shall provide any and all fittings necessary to route the water lines 
over or under such conflicting pipes at no additional costs to the owner. 


 
3.02 ACCESS 
 


A. Continuously check for clearance and accessibility of equipment or materials specified herein to be 
placed.  No allowance of any kind shall be made for negligence on part of Contractor to foresee 
means of installing his equipment or materials into proper position. 


 
 
3.03 EXCAVATING AND BACKFILLING 
 


A. Excavation and Bedding: 
 


1. General:  Trench straight and true to line and grade with bottom smooth and free of 
irregularities or rock points.  Trench width to be a minimum of 12" wider than outside diameter 
of pipe.  Follow manufacturer's recommendations for use of each kind and type of pipe. 


2. Bedding:  Provide a bedding as noted on drawing details for the full length of the pipe.  Bedding 
shall have a minimum thickness beneath the pipe of 4" or 1/8 the outside diameter of the pipe, 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 9 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


which ever is greater.  Provide bell holes and depressions for pipe joints only of size required to 
properly make joint. 


3. If the trenches for the site utilities falls within areas to be lime treated, the piping shall be 
installed prior to any lime treatment operations, providing the elevation of the piping is below 
the treatment section.  
a. If trenching is necessary in areas that have been previously lime treated the contractor shall 


backfill the trench with class 2 aggregate base, with minimum section equal to the lime 
treated section and compacted to 95%. 


 
B. Laying of Pipe: 


 
1. General:  Inspect pipe prior to placing.  Sun damaged pipe will be rejected.  Set aside any 


defective or damaged material.  Do not place pipe in water nor place pipe when trenches or 
weather are unsuitable.  Lay pipe bell upgrade, true to line and grade. 
a. Sewer pipe shall be laid in strict conformity to the prescribed line and grade, with grade 


bars set and each pipe length checked to the grade line.  Three consecutive points on the 
same rate of slope shall be used at all times to detect any variation from a straight grade.  In 
any case of discrepancy, work shall be stopped and the discrepancy immediately reported 
to the Owner’s Representatives.  In addition, when requested by the Owner's 
Representative, a string line shall be used in the bottom of the trench to insure a straight 
alignment of the sewer pipe between manholes.  The maximum deviation from grade shall 
not be in excess of 1/4 inch.  In returning the pipe to grade, no more than ¼” depression 
shall result. 


b. The Contractor shall expose the end of existing pipe to be extended, for verification of 
alignment and elevation, prior to trenching for any pipe which may be affected.  All costs of 
such excavation and backfill shall be included in the price paid for the various items of work. 


c.  A temporary plug, mechanical type shall be installed on sewer pipe at the point of 
connection to existing facilities.  If connecting to a public facility the plug shall conform to 
the requirements of the local jurisdiction.  This plug shall remain in place until the 
completion of the balling and flushing operation. 


2. Bell and Spigot Joints:  Lubricate inside of bells and outside of spigots with soap solution.  
Wedge joints tight.  Bell of bell and spigot pipe to be pointed upgrade. 


 
C. Backfilling: 


 
1. General:  Do not start backfill operations until required testing has been accomplished.  
2. Compaction and Grading:  Remainder of backfill shall be in accordance with Section 31 23 33 – 


TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING. 
3. If trenching in area previously lime or cement treated backfill top of trench section, same depth 


as lime or cement treatment with Class 2 Aggregate Base compacted to 95% minimum relative 
compaction. 


 
3.04 INSTALLATION OF WATER PIPING 
 


A. The contractor shall be responsible for determining the installed depth of all water piping, based on 
surfaces grades and minimum required depth of cover. 


 
B. Immediately cap or plug ends of, and opening in, pipe and fittings to exclude dirt until final 


connections made.  Use reducing fittings where any change in pipe size occurs.  Bushings shall not 
be used. 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 10 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
C. General:  Should existing conditions or other work prevent the running of pipes or the setting of 


equipment at the points indicated by drawings, changes as authorized by the Architect shall be 
made without additional cost to the Owner. 


 
D. All bolts used on mechanical fittings shall be thoroughly coated with an asphaltic bituminous 


coating conforming to 2016 NFPA 24, 10.4.1.1. 
 
E. All buried metal shall be incased with 8 mil polyethylene wrap so that no soil is in contact with 


metal.  Ends of polyethylene wrap shall be taped to provide seal with pipe. 
 
F. Do not install water lines in same trench with non-metallic sewer lines unless bottom of water pipe 


at all points is at least 12" above top of sewer line and water line is placed on solid shelf excavated 
at one side of common trench with a minimum of 12 inch horizontal separation. 


 
G. Under no circumstance shall a fitting be located directly under a structural footing without prior 


approval from the Architect. 
 
H. In locations where existing domestic pipe is rerouted, the new pipe shall be assembled using 


restrained fittings at all joints including factory pipe joints. Tapped restrained blind flanges shall be 
temporarily installed at each end of the assembled pipes until testing and chlorination is completed 
and approved.  


 
3.05 CLOSING IN OF UNINSPECTED WORK 
 


A. Do not allow or cause work installed to be covered up or enclosed before it has been inspected, 
tested, and approved.  Should work be enclosed or covered up before it has been approved, 
uncover work at own expense.  After it has been inspected, tested and approved, make repairs 
necessary to restore work of other contractors to condition in which it was found at time of cutting. 


 
3.06 CARE AND CLEANING 
    


A. Repair or replace broken, damaged, or otherwise defective parts, materials, and work.  Leave entire 
work in new condition satisfactory to Architect.  At completion, carefully clean and adjust 
equipment, fixtures and trim that are installed as part of this work.  Leave systems and equipment 
in satisfactory new operating condition. 


 
B. Drain and flush piping to remove grease and foreign matter. 
 
C. Sewer piping shall be balled and flushed. 
 
D. Clean out and remove surplus materials and debris resulting from the work, including surplus 


excavated material. 
 
E. Flush fire service piping in the presence of the project inspector. Flushing shall be continued for a 


sufficient time as necessary to ensure all foreign material has been removed.  Flow rate shall be 
equal to site fire flow requirements. 


 
3.07 SEWER INTERNAL INSPECTIONS 
 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 11 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


A. Upon completion of construction and prior to final inspection, the Contractor shall clean the entire 
new pipeline of all dirt and debris.  Any dirt or debris in previously existing pipes or ditches in the 
area, which resulted from the new installation, shall also be removed.  Pipes shall be cleaned by the 
controlled balling and flushing method.  Temporary plugs shall be installed and maintained during 
cleaning operations at points of connection to existing facilities to prevent water, dirt, and debris 
from entering the existing facility. 


 
3.08 TEST OF PIPING 
  


A. Pressure Test piping at completion of roughing-in, in accord with following schedule, and show no 
loss in pressure or visible leaks after minimum duration or four (4) hours at test pressures indicated. 


 
B. Chlorination tests shall be performed after all fixtures and any required mechanical devices are 


installed and the entire system is complete and closed up. 
 
C. In cases where new domestic water piping is assembled for re-routing of existing domestic  water 


pipe , the contractor shall perform the following testing prior to connecting the new water pipe to 
the existing system. 


 
1. The pipe shall be pressure tested and per the test schedule.  
2. The pipe shall be pressure tested down within the trench. 
3. The contractor shall dig a temporary ditch below the existing pipe to drain to a sump that is 


lower than the bottom of the trench and to the side of the trench. The sump shall be 30% larger 
than the total volume of water within the testing pipe assembly. 


4.  After pressure testing and chlorination has taken place and accepted, the contractor shall drain 
the pipe into the sump and pump the sump out as it is filling. 


5. The temporary test fittings at each end of the pipe assembly shall be removed and the final 
restrained couplings installed.  


6. The existing piping shall be cut and the water within the pipe shall drain below the pipe to the 
temporary sump. Pump the sump as it is being filled up. Take extreme caution not to 
contaminate the existing pipe with any contaminates within the trench. 


7.  Before making the final coupling connections, the restrained couplings at each end of the new 
pipe shall be thoroughly swabbed inside the fitting with a solution of chlorine mixed with water 
at a rate of 1part chlorine to 4 parts potable water. 


8. After final connections are made, a visual inspection shall be made after fittings are wiped off. If 
after 1 hr, no noticeable drips are noted the pipe can be backfilled.   


9. The contractor shall flush all water piping affected by chlorination until it is within acceptable 
levels approved by certified testing lab. 


      
TEST SCHEDULE 


 
System Tested Test Pressure PSIG Test With 
 
Public water mains Per local jurisdiction requirements. 
 
Private domestic water piping and 
fire mains serving fire hydrants: 150 Lbs. Water   4 hrs. 
 
 
Fire Protection Piping from 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 12 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


PIV to fire riser: 200 Lbs. Water pressure, 4 hrs duration with no 
pressure loss. 


 
Sanitary Sewer Piping: Sewer system shall be tested for leakage per 


local jurisdiction requirements. 
 


D. Testing equipment, materials, and labor shall be furnished by contractor. 
 
3.09 WATER SYSTEM STERILIZATION 
 


A. Public Water Mains: Shall be flushed and disinfected per the local jurisdiction requirements 
 
B. Clean and disinfect all site water systems connected to the domestic water systems in accordance 


with AWWA Standard C651 and as required by the local Building and Health Department Codes, and 
EPA.   


 
1. Clean and disinfect industrial water system in addition to the domestic water system.  
2. Disinfect existing piping systems as required to provide continuous disinfection upstream to 


existing valves.  At Contractors option, valves may be provided to isolate the existing piping 
system from the new piping system. 


 
C. Domestic water sterilization shall be performed by a licensed “qualified applicator” as required by 


CAL-EPA Pesticide Enforcement Branch for disinfecting and sterilizing drinking water. 
 
D. Disinfecting Agent:  Chlorine product that is a registered product with Cal-EPA for use in California 


potable water lines, such as Bacticide, CAL-EPA Registration No. 37982-20001. 
 
E. Contractor to provide a 1” service valve connected to the system at a point within 2’-0” of its 


junction with the water supply line.  After sterilization is complete Contractor to provide cap at 
valve. 


 
F. Sterilization Procedure to be as follows: 
 


1. Flush pipe system by opening all outlets and letting water flow through the system until clear 
water flows from all outlets. 


2. Inject disinfecting agent to provide a minimum chlorine residual concentration of at least 50 
parts per million (ppm) of free chlorine at each outlet. 


3. Provide sign at all outlets which reads “Water Sterilization in Progress – Do not operate”.  
Remove signs at conclusion of test. 


4. Close all outlets and valves, including valve connecting to water supply line and 1” service valve. 
 Retain treated water in pipe for a minimum of twenty-four hours.  Should chlorine residual at 
pipe extremities be less than 50 PPM at this time, pipe shall be re-chlorinated.  As an option, 
the water systems may be filled with a water-chlorine solution containing a minimum of 200 
PPM of chlorine and allowed to stand for three hours. 


5. After chlorination, flush lines of chlorinated water and refill from domestic supply. Continue 
flushing until residual chlorine is less than or equal to 0.2 ppm, or a residual the same as that of 
the test water. 


 
G. Chemical and bacteriological tests shall be conducted by a state-certified laboratory and approved 


by the local authorities having jurisdiction. 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 13 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


H. Submit written report to Health Department as required by State Regulations.  Provide a copy of 
report to Architect prior to completion of project. 


I. The costs of sterilization and laboratory testing shall be paid for by the contractor. 
 
3.10 CLEANING 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 74 00. 
 
B. Upon completion of work of this Section promptly remove from the working area all scraps, debris 


and surplus material of this Section. 
 


 
END OF SECTION 


 








       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 1 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


SECTION 32 12 00 
ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 


 
 
 
 


SECTION 32 12 00 
 


ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 


PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 


A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this Section, as 
if repeated herein. 


 
1.02 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 


 
A. Section 01 50 00, Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls. 


B. Section 31 00 00, Earthwork. 


C. Section 31 23 33, Trenching and Backfilling. 


D. Section 32 80 00, Irrigation 


E. Section 33 40 00, Site Drainage. 


1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


A. Use only new materials and products, unless existing materials or products are specifically shown 
otherwise on the Drawings to be salvaged and re-used. 


 
B. All materials, components, assemblies, workmanship and installation are to be observed by the Owner's 


Inspector of Record.  Work not so inspected is subject to uncovering and replacement. 
 
C. The representatives of the Owner’s testing lab will not act as supervisor of construction, nor will they 


direct construction operations.  Neither the presence of the Owner’s testing lab representatives nor the 
testing by the Owner’s testing lab shall excuse the contractors or subcontractors for defects discovered 
in their work during or following completion of the project.  Correcting inadequate compaction is the 
sole responsibility of the contractor. 


 
D. Contractor shall provide verification that asphalt mix temperature meets the requirements of this 


specification at time of application. 
 
E. Contractor shall be solely responsible for all subgrades built. Any repairs resulting from inadequate 


compaction are the responsibility of the contractor. 
 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 2 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


F. Sieve analysis from testing laboratories identifying rock/sand percentages within the asphalt mix shall 
have a testing date within 90 days of contract signing.  


 
G. Sieve analysis from a testing laboratory identifying rock/sand percentages within the class 2 aggregate 


base rock shall have a testing date within 90 days of contract signing. 
 


1.04 SUBMITTALS 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 33 00. 
 
B. Manufacturer's Data:  Submit list and complete descriptive data of all products proposed for use.  


Include manufacturer's specifications, published warranty or guarantee, installation instructions, and 
maintenance instructions. 


 
1.05 WARRANTY 
 


A. Refer to General Conditions and Section 017836.  
 
1.06 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 
 


A. ANSI/ASTM D698-00 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures, 
Using 5.5 lb (2.49 Kg) Rammer and 12 inch (304.8 mm) Drop. 


 
B. ANSI/ASTM D1556-00 - Test Method for Density of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone Method. 
 
C. ANSI/ASTM D1557-02 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate 


Mixtures Using 10 lb. (4.54 Kg) Rammer and 18 inch (457 mm) Drop. 
 
D. ANSI/ASTM D 3017-05 Test Methods for Moisture Content of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixture by 


Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth). 
 
E. ANSI/ASTM D 4318-05 Test Method for Liquid Limit, Plastic Limit, and Plasticity Limit. 
 
F. CALTRANS Standard Specifications. 
 
G. CAL-OSHA, Title 8, Section 1590 (e). 
 
H. Any work within the street, highway or right-of-way shall be performed in accordance with the 


requirement of the governmental agencies having jurisdiction, and shall not begin until all of those 
governing authorities have been notified. 


 
1.07 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 


A. Transport, store and handle in strict accord with the local jurisdiction. 
 
B. Make delivery to job when notified by Contractor verifying that the job is ready to receive the work of 


this Section and that arrangements have been made to properly store, handle and protect such materials 
and work. 


 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 3 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


1.08 PROJECT CONDITIONS 
 


A. Environmental Requirements: 
 


1. Base Course:  Do not lay base course on muddy subgrade, during wet weather, or when 
atmospheric temperature is below 40 degrees F. 


2. Asphalt Surfacing:  Do not apply asphaltic surfacing on wet base, during wet weather, or when 
atmospheric temperature is below 50 degrees F. 


 
1.09 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS 
 


A. Contractor shall acquaint himself with all site conditions.  If unknown active utilities are encountered 
during work, notify Architect promptly for instructions.  Failure to notify will make Contractor liable for 
damage to these utilities arising from Contractor's operations subsequent to discovery of such unknown 
active utilities. 


  
1.10 PROTECTION  
 


A. Adequate protection measures shall be provided to protect workmen and passers-by on and off the site. 
Adjacent property shall be fully protected throughout the operations.  Blasting will not be permitted. 
Prevent damage to adjoining improvements and properties both above and below grade.  Restore such 
improvements to original condition should damage occur.  Replace trees and shrubs outside building 
area disturbed by operations. 


 
B. In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the Contractor shall be solely and 


completely responsible for working conditions at the job site, including safety of all persons and property 
during performance of the work.  This requirement shall apply continuously and shall not be limited to 
normal working hours. 


 
C. Any construction review of the Contractor's performance conducted by the owner’s representative is not 


intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures, in, on, or near the 
construction site. 


 
D. Surface Drainage:  Provide for surface drainage during period of construction in manner to avoid 


creating nuisance to adjacent areas.  The contractor shall make a reasonable effort on a daily basis to 
keep all excavations and the site free from water during entire progress of work, regardless of cause, 
source, or nature of water. 


 
E. Adjacent streets and sidewalks shall be kept free of mud, dirt or similar nuisances resulting from 


earthwork operations. 
 
F. The site and adjacent influenced areas shall be watered as required to suppress dust nuisance.  Dust 


control measures shall be in accordance with the local jurisdiction.   
 


1.11 SEASONAL LIMITS 
 


A. No fill material shall be placed, spread or rolled during unfavorable weather conditions.  When work is 
interrupted by rains, fill operations shall not be resumed until field tests indicate that moisture content 
and density of fill are satisfactory. 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 4 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
1.12 TESTING 
 


A. General:  Refer to Section 01 40 00 – Quality Requirements. 
 
B. Geotechnical Engineer:  Owner is retaining a Geotechnical Engineer to determine compliance of fill with 


Specifications, and to direct adjustments in fill operations.  Costs of Geotechnical Engineer will be borne 
by Owner; except those costs incurred for re-tests or re-inspection will be paid by Owner and 
backcharged to Contractor.   


 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 MATERIALS 
 


A. Sterilant: Soil sterilizer shall be CIBA GEIGY's Pramatol 25-E or Thompson-Hayward Casoron. 
 


1. Soil sterilizer shall be applied in strict accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 
 
B. Base Course Aggregate:  State Specifications, Section 26, Class 2 aggregate base (3/4" max.). 
 
C. Asphalt Binder:  Steam-refined paving asphalt conforming to State Specifications, Section 92, viscosity 


grade PG 64-10.  Asphalt binder additives for HMA per Caltrans approved list of manufacturer’s. 
 
D. Liquid Asphalt Tack Coat:  Per CALTRANS section 94. 
 
E. Surface Course Aggregate:  Mineral aggregates for Type "B" asphalt concrete, conforming to State 


Specifications 39-2.02, Type B, ½” maximum, medium grading. 3/8" maximum grading at Playcourt. 
 
F. Seal Coat:  shall be a pre-mixed asphalt emulsion blended with select fillers and fibers such as: 
 


1. “Park-Top No. 302”, Western Colloid Products. 
2. “OverKote”, Reed and Gram. 
3. “Drivewalk”, Conoco Oil. 


 
G. Wood Headers and Stakes:  Pressure treated. 
 
H. Pavement Marking:  Colors as directed by Architect.  Colors of painted traffic stripes and pavement 


markings must comply with ASTM D 6628. 
 


1. Waterborne traffic line - colors white, yellow and red, State specification PTWB-01R3. 
2. Waterborne traffic line for the international symbol of accessibility and other curb markings – blue, 


red and green, Federal specification TT-P-1952F. 
 
I. Precast Concrete Bumpers:  3000 psi at 28 day minimum strength; 48" length unless otherwise indicated; 


provide with steel dowel anchors and concrete epoxy. 
 
J. Pavement Epoxy; K-Lite; Ktepx-590; Ennis Epoxy HPS2 or an approved equal. 
 
K. Crack Filler;   







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 5 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
1. Cracks up to ½”: QPR model CAR08, 10oz asphalt crack filler; Star STA-FLEX Trowel Grade crack filler 


or approved equal. 
2. Cracks ¼” – 1”:  “Docal 1100 Viscolastic, distributed by Conoco, Inc., Elk Grove, CA, (916) 685-9253, 


or approved equal. 
3. Cracks greater than 1”:  Hot Mix, Topeka. 


 
L. Reclaimed Asphalt Paugment (RAP).  HMA Type A or Type B may be produced using RAP providing it 


does not exceed 15% of the aggregate blend. 
 
2.02 MIXES 
 


A. General:  Plant mixed conforming to State Specifications, Section 39, Type B, ½”  maximum, medium 
grading.  3/8" maximum grading shall be used at hardcourt. 


 
B. Temperature of Hot Mix Asphalt:  Not less than 275 degrees F nor more than 325 degrees F when added 


to aggregate. 
 
C. Temperature of Hot Mix Aggregate:  Not less than 250 degrees F nor more than 325 degrees F when 


asphalt is added. 
 
D. Temperature of Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete:  Asphalt shall be not less than 285 degrees at time of 


application, nor more than 350 degrees.  Asphalt not meeting the required temperature shall not be 
used. 


 
E. Temperature of Warm Mix Asphalt:  Mixing and placement; Per the approved manufactures heat range 


recommendations for mixing and placement. 
 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 


DISTRICT DESIGN STANDARDS 
 


 
- Slope hardcourts at 1.0%min and 1.8% max, typical all directions. 
- Provide 3/8” HMA at hardcourts and ½”HMA at parking lots. 
- Confirm with District if new asphalt paving is to receive seal coat. 
- Spec section 321236 Pavement Sealer and Striping is not required if this section is used. 
- It is recommended that existing utilities beneath pavement that is being removed be replaced with new. 
Confirm with District utilities to be replaced.  Underground utility locating to be provided with topographic 
survey. 
- At hardcourts, provide concrete flush curb at asphalt edges where abutting landscaping. 
- Aggregate base thickness supporting asphalt paving shall meet recommendations as provided in Geotechnical 
Report. 
 
 
 
3.01 EXAMINATION OF CONDITIONS 
 


A. Conditions of Work in Place:  Subsurfaces which are to receive materials specified under this Section 
shall be carefully examined before beginning work hereunder, and any defects therein shall be reported, 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 6 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


in writing, to the Architect.  Work shall not be started until such defects have been corrected.  Starting of 
work shall imply acceptance of conditions as they exist. 


 
3.02 PREPARATION 
 


A. Sub-Grade:  Clean, shape and compact to hard surface free from elevations or depressions exceeding 
0.05’ in 10' from true plan.  Compact per Section 31 00 00.  Compaction and moisture content shall be 
verified immediately prior to placement of aggregate base.  Proof roll subbase in presence of 
geotechnical engineer prior to placement of aggregate base. 


 
B. Cleaning:  Existing surfaces and new surface shall be clean of all dirt, sand, oil or grease. All cracks shall 


be cleaned and free of all debris and vegetation. Hose down entire area with a strong jet of water to 
remove all debris.  


 
3.03 INSTALLATION 
 


A. Headers: 
 


1. General:  Install as edging to asphalt paving, except where adjoining existing pavement, concrete 
curbs, walks or building. 


2. Existing Headers:  Remove existing headers where new paving will join existing. Saw cut existing 
asphalt to provide clean edge.


3. Lines and Levels:  Install true to line and grade.  Cut off tops of stakes 2-inches below top of header 
so they will not be visible on completion of job. 


 
B. Asphalt Paving: 
 


1. Base Course:  Install in accord with State Specifications, Section 26.  Compact to relative compaction 
of not less than 95%, ASTM D1557.  The material shall be deposited on the subgrade in such a 
manner as to provide a uniform section of material within five percent tolerance of the 
predetermined required depth.  Deposition will be by spreader box or bottom dump truck to 
prevent segregation of the material.  The material so deposited on the subgrade shall have sufficient 
moisture which, in the opinion of the Architect is adequate to prevent excessive segregation.  It shall 
then be immediately spread to its planned grade and cross section.  Undue segregation of material, 
excessive drifting or spotting of material will not be permitted.  If in the opinion of the site 
geotechnical engineer, the material is unsuitably segregated, it shall be removed or completely 
reworked to provide the desired uniformity of the material. 
a. Moisture content and compaction of base material shall be tested immediately prior to 


placement of asphalt paving. 
2. Sterilant:  Apply specified material at manufacturer's recommended rate.  Applicator of sterilant 


material shall be responsible for determining location of all planter areas. Apply specified material 
over entire base course area just prior to application of asphalt.  Follow manufacturer's printed 
directions. 


3. Liquid Asphalt Tack Coat:  Apply as "tack coat" to all vertical surfaces of existing paving, curbs, walks, 
and construction joints in surfacing against which paving is to be placed.   


4. Asphalt Concrete Surface Course: 
a. Comply with State Specifications, 39-6 except as modified below. 


1) Final gradation shall be smooth, uniform and free of ruts, humps, depressions or 
irregularities, with a minimum density of 91% of the theoretical maximum specific gravity 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 7 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


determined by California Test Method #309.  Maximum variation 1/8 inch in 10' when 
measured with steel straightedge in any one direction.  Test paved areas for proper 
drainage by applying water to cover area.  Correct portions that do not drain properly by 
patching with plant mix.  In no case shall accessible parking spaces or loading and unloading 
areas exceed 2% slope in any direction. 


2) Asphalt material shall be delivered to the project site in a covered condition to maintain 
acceptable temperature. Onsite inspector shall verify temperature of asphalt upon truck 
arrival to the site.  


5. Placement and adjustment of Frames, Covers, Boxes and Grates:  The Contractor shall set and adjust 
to finish grade all proposed and existing frames, covers, boxes, and grates of all manholes, drop 
inlets, drain boxes, valves, cleanouts, electrical boxes and other appurtenant structures prior to 
placement of asphaltic concrete. 


6. Water Testing:  All paved areas shall be water tested, to check drainage, in the presence of the 
project inspector prior to placement of seal coat.  The surface of asphalt paving shall not vary more 
than 1/8 inch above or below the grade established on the plans.  If variations in grade are present, 
they will be corrected by overlaying paving and/or pavement removal and replacement as directed 
by the Architect. 


7. Patching:  Cut existing paving square and plumb at all edges to be joined by new paving.  In trenches; 
grind existing asphalt on each side of trench 3” wide x ½ the depth of the section. Apply tact coat to 
vertical surfaces before installing new work.  Warp carefully to flush surface, with seal over joints, 
and feather edge.  Sawcut, remove and patch existing paving where cutting is necessary for 
installation of piping or conduits under Divisions 2, 15 and 16. 


 
C. Seal Coat: 
 


1. Seal coat shall be applied no sooner than 30 days from time of asphalt placement, no exceptions. 
2. Surface Preparation:  surface and cracks shall be clean of all dirt, sand, oil or grease. All cracks shall 


be filled to a level condition after curing. Make multiple fill applications until a level condition is 
achieved. Failure to do so will be the reason for rejection. Hose down entire area with a strong jet of 
water to remove all debris. Remove soft, loose, or otherwise damaged areas of asphalt concrete to 
full depth of damage and replace with compacted hot mix asphalt concrete as specified herein.  
Minor holes and imperfections may be patched using hot mix asphalt or mastic using sand/SS-1-H.  
Use wire brush for removal of oil and grease; prime with shellac or synthetic resin as recommended 
by manufacturer of pavement sealer material.  


3. Seal Coat Seal Application:  Thoroughly mix materials and apply in the presence of the onsite 
inspector. Failure to do so will be cause for rejection.   Apply in accordance with manufacturer's 
written instructions. 
a. The minimum application rate for each applied coat shall be 30gals per 1000 sq. ft. Two coats of 


sealcoat will be required.  
b. Clean-Up and Precautions:  As recommended by pavement sealer material manufacturer.   


 
D. Asphalt Concrete Overlay Paving: 
 


1. Comply with State Specifications, 39-6 except as modified below. 
2. Grind or remove existing asphalt concrete paving at limits of overlay paving to provide a minimum 1 


1/2" overlay thickness.  Limits of grinding or removal shall be field verified to insure that finished 
paving surface will have a one percent minimum slope. 


3. Thoroughly clean surface to remove vegetation, dirt, sand, gravel and water from surface and from 
cracks.  Vegetation shall be treated 7 days prior to removal with an herbicide. 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 8 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


4. Cracks greater than 1 inch shall be filled with hot mix asphalt and rolled and compacted. Cracks less 
than one inch shall be filled with crack filler.  Potholes shall be filled with hot-mix rolled and 
compacted.  Contractor shall have Engineer approve crack and pothole repair prior to overlay.  
Provide leveling courses of hot mix asphalt as required to achieve finish grades shown on the 
drawings. 
a.  Cracks less than one inch in width shall be level after curing. Contractor shall make multiple 


filling applications as necessary to achieve a level condition.   
5. Place overlay when ambient air temperature is 40 degrees F. and rising, and when pavement is dry. 
6. An asphalt tack coat shall be applied to existing surface area at a rate of 0.20 gallons per square 


yard.  Application width shall be width of fabric plus 2 to 6 inches. 
7. Place, spread and compact asphalt overlay to provide a minimum density of 95% of maximum 


theoretical unit weight as determined by California Test Method #304.  Maximum variation 1/8" in 
10' when measured with steel straight edge in any one direction.  Test paved areas for proper 
drainage by applying water to cover area.  Correct portions that do not drain properly by patching 
with plant mix.  Minimum compacted overlay thickness 1 1/2 inches. 


 
E. Pavement Marking: pavement markings shall be done only after the seal coat has thoroughly dried.  


Existing surfaces to be striped with traffic paint shall be cleaned of dust, dirt, grime, oil, rust or other 
contaminants which will impair the quality of work or interfere with proper bond of paint coats.  
Surfaces shall be thoroughly cleaned by whatever means necessary that will satisfactorily accomplish the 
purpose without damage to asphalt concrete. Provide measured layouts, temporary markings, 
templates, and other means necessary to provide required marking. Prepare and apply paint in 
accordance with manufacturer’s instructions; paint shall be applied by spray and shall achieve complete 
coverage free from voids and thin spots. Where indicated on the Drawings, paint parking stall strips, 
lettering, arrows, accessible symbols, playfield markings, etc. on asphalt concrete paving.  Paint strips 
shall be 4 inches wide (except otherwise indicated) and applied with two (2) coats of herein specified 
Traffic Line Paint; white (except as otherwise specified or indicated). 


 
1. Paints shall be delivered to the site in unopened containers. 


a. Paint shall not be diluted, or watered down. 
b. Paint shall be applied in 10-12 wet mil thickness (4-6 mil dried). Each coat thickness shall be 


verified by the project inspector. 
2. International Accessible Symbol:  Symbol shall be white figures on a blue background. Blue shall be 


equal to PMS 293C.  Lines and symbols shall be accurately formed and true to line and form; lines 
shall be straight and uniform in width. Painted edges shall be clean cut and free from raggedness, 
and corners shall be cut sharp and square. Tolerances:  Apply striping within a tolerance 1/2 inch in 
50 feet.  Apply markings and striping to widths indicated with a tolerance of 1/4 inch on straight 
sections and 1/2 inch on curved sections. 


 
F. Colors: As directed by Architect 
 
G. Precast Concrete Bumpers:  Install in location where shown, using steel rebar dowels, and epoxy. 
 


3.04 DEFECTIVE ASPHALT; 
             Defective asphalt is as described below. 
 


A. Exposed rock pockets on the finished surface that lack the # 8- #200 fines that is required per the sieve 
analysis.    


 







       ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING 
 32 12 00 - 9 
                                


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


B. Asphalt not placed to the design grades. 
 
C. Asphalt that ponds water. 
 
D. Asphalt that was compacted below the minimum required temperature and is cracked.  
   
E. Asphalt that fails to meet the minimum compaction requirements.   
 
F. Asphalt that lacks the minimum thickness required per plan. 
 
G. New asphalt contaminated by a petroleum product, or spilled paint. 
 
H. Asphalt that has depressions, cracks, scored divits from dumpster wheels, heavy equipment use, heavy 


construction products, 
 
I. Asphalt placed on pumping, unstable sub-grades.  


  
3.05 CLEANING 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 74 00. 
 
B. Upon completion of work of this Section promptly remove from the working area all scraps, debris and 


surplus material of this Section. 
 
C. Clean excess material from surface of all concrete walks and utility structures. 


 
 


END OF SECTION 








  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 1 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


 
SECTION 22 10 00 


PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 


PART 1 - GENERAL  


1.1 SUMMARY 


A. Section Includes: 


1. Pipe and fittings. 


2. Valves. 


3. Domestic water piping specialties. 


4. Gas piping specialties. 


5. Drain and waste piping specialties. 


1.2 RELATED REQUIREMENTS  


A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and 
Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 


B. Section 22 00 50 Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods. 


1.3 ACTION SUBMITTALS 


A. For additional requirements, refer to Section 22 00 50, Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods. 


B. Product Data: Submit manufacturer's technical product data and installation instructions for plumbing 
piping systems materials and products. 


1.4 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS  


A. For additional requirements, refer to Section 22 00 50, Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods. 


B. Provide welding certificate for all gas pipe welders. 


C. Gas Pipe Installer Qualifications: Provide evidence of current qualifications for individuals performing 
work requiring qualifications. 


1.5 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS 


A. For additional requirements, refer to Section 22 00 50, Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods. 


B. Maintenance Data: Submit maintenance data and parts lists for plumbing piping systems materials and 
products. Include this data in Operation and Maintenance Manual. 


1.6 MAINTENANCE MATERIAL SUBMITTALS 


A. Furnish to Owner, with receipt, one valve key for each key operated hydrant, bibb, or faucet installed. 


1.7 QUALITY ASSURANCE  


A.  For additional requirements, refer to Section 22 00 50, Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods.  







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 2 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


B. Gas Pipe Installer Qualifications: Individuals performing tasks requiring qualifications under Federal and 
State regulations shall be qualified by the gas utility supplying Project site. The qualifications shall be 
current at the time of performing the Work. 


C. NFPA/ANSI Compliance: Fabricate and install natural gas systems in accordance with latest edition of 
NFPA 54/ANSI Z223.1 "National Fuel Gas Code." 


D. Pipe Welding: Qualify procedures and operators according to ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code. 


E. Fabricate and install natural gas systems in accordance with California Plumbing Code. 


F. Utility Compliance: Fabricate and install natural gas systems in accordance with local gas utility 
company requirements. 


PART 2 - PRODUCTS 


2.1 MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS  


A. Provide piping materials and factory-fabricated piping products of sizes, types, pressure ratings, 
temperature ratings, and capacities as indicated. Provide materials and products complying with 
California Plumbing Code. Where more than one type of material or product is indicated, selection from 
materials or products specified is Contractor's option. 


B. Potable-water piping and components shall comply with NSF 14, NSF 61, and NSF 372. Plastic piping 
components shall be marked with "NSF-pw." 


2.2 PIPE AND FITTINGS ATTACHED TO AND BELOW BUILDINGS INCLUDING 5 FEET FROM 
BUILDINGS 


A. Piping and fittings attached to covered walkways and corridors shall comply with the requirements of 
this article. 


B. Drain and Waste Pipe Above Grade: Cast iron soil pipe and fittings, asphaltic coated, conforming to 
ASTM A888 and Cast Iron Soil Pipe Institute Standard (CISPI) 301 and so marked. Pipe and fittings 
shall be as manufactured by AB&I, Charlotte, Tyler Pipe, or equal. Pipe and fittings shall be the 
products of a single manufacturer. At Contractor’s option, vertical piping above floor from lavatories, 
sinks, and drinking fountains may be Schedule 40 galvanized steel pipe with black cast iron drainage 
fittings, or DWV weld pipe and fittings. 


1. Joints above grade: No-Hub pipe conforming to ASTM A888 and CISPI 301. Couplings 
conforming to ASTM 1277 and CISPI 310, with stainless steel bands. Provide products by 
ANACO-Husky, Tyler, Ideal or equal. Provide sway brace at 20'-0" maximum spacing for 
suspended pipe with No-Hub joints. Provide a brace on each side of a change in direction of 90 
degrees or more. Brace riser joints at each floor and at 15 foot maximum intervals (also see 
Specification Section 22 00 50). 


C. Drain and Waste Pipe Below Grade: Cast iron soil pipe and fittings, asphaltic coated, conforming to 
ASTM A888 and CISPI 301 and so marked. Pipe and fittings shall be as manufactured by AB&I, 
Charlotte, Tyler Pipe, or equal. Pipe and fittings shall be the products of a single manufacturer. At 
Contractor’s option, hub and spigot cast iron soil pipe and fittings, asphaltic coated, conforming to 
ASTM A-74 and so marked, may be used. 


1. Joints below grade: ANACO-Husky SD 4000, Clamp-All 125, or equal couplings and No-Hub 
fittings, meeting the requirements of FM 1680, SD Class I and ASTM C1540.  


2. Joints below grade (hub and spigot option): Neoprene gaskets conforming to ASTM C564, as 
manufactured by Ty-Seal, Dual-Tite, or equal. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 3 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


D. Vent Pipe: 


1. 3 inch and larger: Cast iron soil pipe and fittings conforming to ASTM A888 and Cast Iron Soil 
Pipe Institute Standard 301 and so marked. Joints in cast iron vent pipe shall be the same as 
specified for cast iron waste pipe above grade. 


2. 2-1/2 inch and smaller: Cast iron soil pipe and fittings as specified for sizes 3 inch and larger, 
Schedule 40 galvanized steel pipe with black cast iron drainage fittings, or DWV copper pipe and 
fittings. 


3. Vent pipe buried in ground and to 6 inches above ground: Cast iron soil pipe and fittings 
conforming to ASTM A888 and Cast Iron Soil Pipe Institute Standard 301 and so marked. Joints 
in cast iron vent pipe shall be the same as specified for cast iron waste pipe below ground. 


E. Type DWV copper tubing or No-Hub cast iron pipe and fittings may be used for concealed rainwater 
leaders. Where no-hub piping is used, the fittings and couplings shall match those used for waste 
piping. 


F. Grease Waste (GW) and Vent (GV) Pipe Underground to 6 Inches Aboveground: George Fisher 
Sloane, Inc., “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, Inc., “Rionfuse CF,” IPEX, Inc., “Enfield,” or equal, Schedule 
40 polypropylene pipe and fittings assembled with electrofusion joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM 
F1412. 


G. Grease Waste (GW) and Vent (GV) Pipe Aboveground: 


1. In inaccessible spaces or within walls, George Fisher Sloane, Inc., “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, 
Inc., “Rionfuse CF,” IPEX, Inc., “Enfield,” or equal, flame-retardant schedule 40 polypropylene 
pipe and fittings assembled with electrofusion joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM F1412. 


2. In accessible areas: George Fisher Sloan, Inc. “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, Inc. “Blueline,” IPEX, 
Inc. "Labline," or equal, flame retardant Schedule 40 polypropylene drainage pipe and fittings, 
with mechanical joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM F1412. 


3. Vent pipe aboveground: 3 Inches and Larger: Service weight cast iron soil pipe and fittings; 2-1/2 
inches and smaller: Schedule 40 galvanized steel pipe with black cast iron drainage fittings. 


H. Acid Waste (AW) and Vent (AV) Pipe Underground to 6 Inches Aboveground: George Fisher Sloane, 
Inc., “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, Inc., “Rionfuse CF,” IPEX, Inc., “Enfield,” or equal, Schedule 40 
polypropylene pipe and fittings assembled with electrofusion joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM 
F1412. 


I. Acid Waste (AW) and Vent (AV) Pipe Aboveground:  


1. In inaccessible spaces or within walls, George Fisher Sloane, Inc., “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, 
Inc., “Rionfuse CF,” IPEX, Inc., “Enfield,” or equal, flame-retardant Schedule 40 polypropylene 
pipe and fittings assembled with electrofusion joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM F1412. 


2. In accessible areas: George Fisher Sloan, Inc. “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, Inc. “Blueline,” IPEX, 
Inc. "Labline," or equal, flame retardant Schedule 40 polypropylene drainage pipe and fittings, 
with mechanical joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM F1412. 


J. Water Pipe (Tempered Water, Tempered Water Return, Hot Water, Hot Water Return and Cold Water): 
ASTM B88, Type L copper tubing, hard-temper, with wrought copper fittings. Provide full solder cup for 
all fittings. Capped or plugged outlets shall be Schedule 40 screwed brass. Water piping below slab: 
ASTM B88, Type K copper tubing, hard temper, with wrought copper fittings. At Contractor’s option, 
pipe runs below slab having no branches may be ASTM B88, Type K annealed copper tubing without 
joints. See Section 22 00 50 for pipe protection requirements for below slab copper piping. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 4 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


K. Temperature and Pressure Relief Valve Piping: ASTM B88, Type L copper tubing, hard-temper, with 
wrought copper fittings. Provide full solder cup for all fittings. Capped or plugged outlets shall be 
Schedule 40 screwed brass. 


L. Gas Pipe: Schedule 40 black steel conforming to ASTM A53, with malleable iron threaded fittings above 
grade for piping 2 inch and smaller; welded piping below grade and for above grade piping larger than 2 
inches, with Class 150 welding fittings. 


1. Appliance Flexible Connectors for Indoor Equipment Without External Spring Isolation: 


a. Contractor may choose one of the following: 


1) Direct gas pipe connection. 


2) Appliance flexible connector: 


a) Comply with ANSI Z21.24.  


b) Polymer or hot-dipped PVC coated corrugated 304 stainless steel. 


c) Operating-Pressure Rating: 0.5 psig. 


d) End Fittings: Zinc-coated steel. 


e) Maximum Length: 30 inches. 


f) Manufacturers: Dormont, Series 30C, 31, 40C, 41, and 51, Brasscraft model 
ProCoat, or equal. 


b. Provide with end connections compatible with equipment and piping system. 


c. Equipment located in spaces normally accessible to building occupants, other than 
maintenance personnel, shall utilize direct gas pipe connection. 


d. Provide anti-microbial PVC coating for use with appliances located in kitchen areas. 


2. Flexible Gas Connector for Outdoor Equipment Without External Spring Isolation: 


a. Contractor may choose one of the following: 


1) Direct gas pipe connection. 


2) Corrugated stainless steel hose with 304 stainless steel braid covering, CSA 
certified. Metraflex model GASCT, Unisource Manufacturing series 400, or equal. 
Provide with end connections compatible with equipment and piping system. 


3. Flexible Gas Connector for Equipment with External Spring Isolation, Indoors and Outdoors: 


a. Where Drawings indicate installation of mechanical equipment on spring isolation rails 
spring mounted curbs, or spring hangers, provide metal flexible connectors, Metraflex 
Metraloop, or equal by Unisource Mfg. Co., or Flexicraft Industries, CSA certified for 4 
inches of movement in all directions. 


4.  Flexible Gas Connection System for Movable Gas-Fired Cooking Equipment: 


a. System shall include flexible PVC coated braided stainless steel hose, quick disconnect 
fitting, full port CSA certified ball valve, 2 swivel elbows, coiled steel restraining cable and 
mounting hardware. Assembly shall be certified per ANSI Z21.69/CSA 6.16, “Connectors 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 5 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


for Movable Gas Appliances.” Size as required for appliance connection, 48” minimum 
hose length. Install per manufacturer’s instructions. Connectors shall be Dormont Safety 
System, T&S Safe-T-Link, or equal. 


M.  Compressed Air Pipe: Type K copper tubing, hard temper, with wrought copper fittings. Capped or 
plugged outlets shall be screwed brass. 


N. Condensate Drain Piping:  


1. Inside buildings provide ASTM B88, Type L copper tubing and fittings. Provide Wye fittings with 
capped cleanout plug for tubing up to 1 inch size. Provide wrought or cast DWV fittings for sizes 
1-1/4 inch and larger. 


2. Outside buildings provide ASTM B88, Type L copper pipe and fittings, cast iron drain pipe and 
fittings or Schedule 40 galvanized steel pipe and cast iron drain or vent fittings. 


3. Connect condensate drains to mechanical equipment per equipment manufacturer's 
recommendations; provide P-trap where required. Slope piping to drain, with 1 inch in 10 foot 
minimum pitch. Provide di-electric couplings or unions at connections to dissimilar materials. 


4. Where Drawings indicate installation of mechanical equipment on spring isolation rails spring 
mounted curbs, or spring hangers, provide threaded metal connector at mechanical equipment, 
Metraflex Model SST, or equal by Unisource Mfg. Co., or Flexicraft Industries. Arrange flexible 
connection to ensure drainage of condensate, and support flexible connection at each end of 
connector, to ensure proper alignment. 


5. Where condensate drain P-traps are required, install trap using Wye fitting on inlet and outlet of 
trap. Provide cap on top of each Wye, made removable for cleaning and inspection. Drill 1/8 inch 
diameter hole in cap at outlet of the trap to allow venting of the system. Minimum depth of trap 
should be 4 inches, or as recommended by the manufacturer in printed literature. 


6. Provide cleanout tees or “Y” at each change in direction. 


O. Condensing-Type Equipment Condensate Drain Pipe: CPVC pipe and fittings conforming to ASTM D-
2846. 


1. Provide CPVC condensate drain pipe for condensing water heaters, furnaces, and where shown 
on Drawings. 


2. Piping and fittings shall be as manufactured by Spears Manufacturing, Charlotte Pipe and foundry 
Co., or equal. 


P. Deionized Water Piping:  


1. Polyvinylidene Fluoride (PVDF) Pressure Rated Pipe and Fittings: Schedule 80 PVDF pressure 
rated pipe and fittings. Pipe and fittings shall meet ASTM D-1785. Threaded fittings shall comply 
with ASTM D-2464. The pipe and fittings shall be sterilized and capped or packaged immediately 
after production and all seals shall be intact when the material is delivered to the jobsite. 


2. Provide continuous channel support under all horizontal piping, B-line, Grinnell, or equal PVC 
coated channel systems, series B11 through B72 with matching pipe clamps as appropriate, or 
equal. 


2.3 SITE PIPING AND FITTINGS TO 5 FEET FROM BUILDINGS 


A. Buried Drain, Waste, and Vent Piping: 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 6 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. Install piping from street connection to the property line in accordance with local requirements.  


2. 4 inches and larger: PVC, ASTM D3034 - SDR 35; use matching Ring Tite fittings. 


3. 3 inches and smaller: Cast iron soil pipe and fittings, asphaltic coated, conforming to ASTM A888 
and Cast Iron Soil Pipe Institute Standard 301 and so marked. Pipe and fittings shall be as 
manufactured by AB&I, Charlotte, Tyler pipe, or equal. Provide ANACO-Husky SD 4000, Clamp-
All 125, or equal couplings and No-Hub fittings, meeting the requirements of FM 1680, SD Class I 
and ASTM C1540. Pipe and fittings shall be the product of a single manufacturer. 


B. Grease Waste (GW) and Vent (GV) Pipe: George Fisher Sloane, Inc., “Fuseal PP,” Orion Fittings, Inc., 
“Rionfuse CF,” IPEX, Inc, “Enfield,” or equal, polypropylene pipe and fittings assembled with 
electrofusion joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM F1412. 


C. Acid Waste (AW) and Vent (AV) Pipe: George Fisher Sloane, Inc., “Fuseal,” Orion Fittings, Inc., 
“Rionfuse CF,” IPEX, Inc., “Enfield,” or equal, polypropylene pipe and fittings assembled with 
electrofusion joints. Piping shall comply with ASTM F1412. 


D. Water Service Piping:  


1. Sizes 2 inches and larger (not under building): Gasket style PVC conforming to ASTM 
D2241-SDR21, Class 200 with gasket type fittings or ductile iron mechanical joint couplings. 
Gasket fittings shall be one piece injection molded PVC fittings, equal to Flo-Seal water main 
fittings for PVC pressure pipe, 200 psi, ASTM D-3139.  


2. Sizes less than 2 inches: Type K copper tubing, hard temper, with wrought copper fittings. See 
Section 22 00 50 for pipe protection requirements for below grade copper piping. 


3. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. J.M. Eagle. 


b. P.W. Pipe. 


c. Ipex Series Pipe. 


E. Water Service Piping Above Grade:  


1. Sizes 3 inches and larger: Class 150 flanged ductile cast iron water pipe conforming to 
AWWA/ANSI C150/A21.50 and manufactured in accordance with AWWA/ANSI C151/A21.51. 
Fittings shall conform to AWWA/AWWA C110/A21.10, Class 250 pattern. Pipe and fittings shall 
have factory applied cement-mortar lining in accordance with AWWA/ANSI C104/A21.4. Flanges 
shall conform to ASME/ANSI B16.1. 


2. Piping 2-1/2 inches and smaller: Type K copper tubing, hard temper, with brazed wrought copper 
fittings. 


F. Gas Piping Underground: Performance Pipe, “DriscoPlex” 6500 PE 2708 (yellow), Polypipe, Inc., 
“Polypipe”, or equal, polyethylene gas distribution pipe, ASTM D2513, ASTM D3261, and ASTM D2683 
fittings with fusion welded joints. Provide piping labeled for natural gas in accordance with CPC.  


1. Electrically isolate underground ferrous gas piping from the rest of the gas system with listed or 
approved isolation fittings installed a minimum of six inches above grade. 


2. Provide Central Plastics Corp., Perfection, or equal, anodeless, single seal riser for transition 
from below grade polyethylene to schedule 40 steel piping above grade. Minimum horizontal 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 7 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


length shall be 30 inches. Minimum vertical length shall be 30 inches, or greater as required. 
Provide fusion connection to polyethylene pipe below grade, and screwed connection to steel 
pipe above grade. 


G. Gas Piping Aboveground to 30 inches Belowground: Schedule 40 black steel with beveled ends for 
welding, with Class 150 welding fittings. Mitering to form elbows or tees will not be permitted; where 
branch tee connections of welded piping are required, Bonney "Weldolet" Allied Pipe Fittings, or equal 
fittings may be used if the branch is one-half of the diameter of the main or less. 


H. Drainage Pipe, Perforated or Un-perforated: J-M PVC, P.W. Pipe, or equal drainage pipe and fittings or 
non-reinforced concrete sewer pipe ASTM C14. 


2.4 FIRE PROTECTION PIPING  


A. Refer to specification Section 21 10 00 “Fire Protection.” 


2.5 PIPE JOINING MATERIALS 


A. Refer to piping Articles in this Section for special joining materials not listed below. 


B. Pipe-Flange Gasket Materials: Suitable for chemical and thermal conditions of piping system contents. 


1. ASME B16.21, nonmetallic, flat, asbestos-free, 1/8-inch (3.2-mm) maximum thickness unless 
thickness or specific material is indicated 


a. Full-Face Type: For flat-face, Class 125, cast iron and cast bronze flanges. 


b. Narrow-Face Type: For raised-face, Class 250, cast iron and steel flanges. 


2. AWWA C111, rubber, flat face, 1/8-inch (3.2mm) thick, unless otherwise indicated; and full-face 
or ring type, unless other indicated. 


3. Flange Bolts and Nuts: AWWA C111, carbon steel, unless otherwise indicated. 


4. Plastic, Pipe-Flange Gasket, Bolts and Nuts: Type and material recommended by piping system 
manufacturer, unless otherwise indicated. 


C. Solder Filler Metals: ASTM B 32, 100 percent lead free alloys. Include water-flushable flux according to 
ASTM B813. 


D. Brazing Filler Metals: AWS A5.8, BCup-5 Series, copper-phosphorus unless otherwise indicated. Sil-
Fos 15, or equal. 


E. Welding Filler Metals: Comply with ASME B31.1 for welding materials appropriate for wall thickness and 
chemical analysis of steel pipe being welded. 


F. Solvent Cements for Joining CPVC Piping: ASTM F 493. 


1. CPVC solvent cement shall have VOC content of 490 g/L or less.  


2. Adhesive primer shall have VOC content of 550 g/L or less.  


3. Solvent cement and adhesive primer shall comply with testing and product requirements of South 
Coast Air Quality Management District, Rule 1168. 


G. Solvent Cements for Joining PVC Piping: ASTM D 2564. Include primer according to ASTM F 656. 


1. PVC solvent cement shall have VOC content of 510 g/L or less.  







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 8 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


2. Adhesive primer shall have VOC content of 550 g/L or less. 


3. Solvent cement and adhesive primer shall comply with testing and product requirements of South 
Coast Air Quality Management District, Rule 1168. 


2.6 VALVES AND FITTINGS FOR POTABLE WATER SYSTEMS 


A. General: 


1. Provide valves and fittings conforming to lead-free requirements of California Health and Safety 
Code Section 116875. 


a. Provide valves listed to NSF/ANSI 61-G or NSF/ANSI 372 for valve materials for potable-
water service. 


1) Exception: Main distribution gate valves above 1-1/2 inches located underground 
outside building are not required to conform lead-free requirements of California 
Health and Safety Code Section 116875. 


B. Gate Valves: 


1. General: Furnish valves in copper lines with adapters to suit valve/line requirements. 


2. 1-1/2 inches and smaller: Minimum 200 psi CWP, bronze body, threaded bonnet, rising or non-
rising stem, solid wedge, threaded or solder ends, conforming to MSS SP-80. Milwaukee UP148, 
UP149, Nibco T-113-LF, S-113-LF, or equal. 


3. 2 inches through 3 inches: Minimum 200 psi CWP, bronze body, threaded bonnet, non-rising 
stem, solid wedge, threaded or solder ends, conforming to MSS SP-80. Nibco T-113-LF, S-113-
LF, or equal. 


4. Main distribution gate valves underground outside building above 1-1/2 inches:  


a. Underground valves 2 inches thru 12 inches: 250 psi, iron body, Non-rising stem, bolted 
bonnet, resilient wedge valves, conforming to AWWA C509, equipped with operating nuts, 
Mueller Series 2360, Nibco F-619-RW-SON, or equal. 


1) Underground valves 3 inches and smaller may be furnished with operating nuts or 
hand-wheels, and with Ring-Tite joint ends. 


2) Furnish and deliver to Owner one wrench of each size required for operating 
underground valves. 


C. Ball Valves: 


1. 2 inches and smaller: 600 psi CWP, cast bronze or brass body, full port, two piece, threaded 
ends, and reinforced PTFE seal, conforming to MSS SP-110. Nibco T-685-80-LF, Milwaukee 
UPBA400, Apollo 77C-LF10, Kitz 868, or equal. 


2. 2-1/2 inches: Apollo 77C-LF10, or equal. 


D. Swing Check Valves: 


1. Minimum 200 psi CWP, bronze or brass body, suitable for regrinding, threaded ends, conforming 
to MSS SP-80. Milwaukee UP509, Nibco T-413LF, Kitz 822T, or equal. 


E. Butterfly Valves:  







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 9 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. General: Tight closing, full lug type, with resilient seat suitable for minimum working pressure of 
200 psig, conforming to MSS SP-67. Bi-direction dead end service with downstream flange 
removed. 


2. Provide valves with the following: 


a. Seats: suitable for 40 degrees F for cold water service and 250 degrees F for hot water 
service. Seats shall cover inside surface of body and extend over body ends. 


b. Bodies: ductile iron or cast iron. 


c. Discs: Bronze or stainless steel. 


d. Stems or Shafts: Stainless steel. Install valves with stems horizontal. 


e. Control Handles: Suitable for locking in any position or with 10 degree or 15 degree 
notched throttling plates to hold valve in selected position. Provide extended necks to 
compensate for insulation thickness. Provide gear operator for valves 5 inches and larger. 


3. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. 2 through 12 inches: Watts Regulator Co., model DBF-03. 


F. Silent Check Valves (for use on pump discharge): 


1. General: Provide spring loaded check valves at pump discharge of all pumps. 


a. 2 inches and smaller: Minimum 300 psi CWP, bronze body, Apollo 61LF, Milwaukee 
UP548-T, or equal. 


b. 2-1/2 inches and larger: Class 250, cast iron body, suitable for regrinding, Mueller 
103MAP, or equal. 


G. Calibrated Balancing Valves: 


1. General: Calibrated orifice ball type rated for 400 psig maximum operating pressure and 250 
degrees F. maximum operating temperature. 


a. Body: Brass. 


b. Ball: 304 Stainless Steel. 


c. Seat: Glass and Carbon filled TFE. 


d. End Connections: Threaded. 


e. Pressure Gage connections: Integral capped readout valves with internal check valves and 
drain port, for use with portable pressure differential meter. 


f. Handle Style: Dial, with memory stops to retain set position.  


2. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. 3 Inch and Smaller: Bell & Gossett model CB, “LF” series. 


2.7 VALVES AND FITTINGS FOR NON-POTABLE WATER, COMPRESSED AIR, AND GAS SYSTEMS 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 10 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


A. Gate Valves:  


1. 2-1/2 inches and smaller: Class150, bronze body, union bonnet, rising stem, solid wedge, 
threaded or solder ends, conforming to MSS SP-80. Hammond IB641, IB648, Nibco T-134, S-
134, Milwaukee 1151, 1169, or equal. 


2. 3 inches and larger: Class 125, iron body, bronze mounted, bolted bonnet, non-rising stem, solid 
wedge, flanged ends, conforming to MSS SP-70. Hammond IR-1138, Nibco F619, Milwaukee 
F2882A, Stockham G-612, or equal. 


3. Underground valves 2 inches thru 12 inches: 250 psi, iron body, Non-rising stem, bolted bonnet, 
resilient wedge valves, conforming to AWWA C509, equipped with operating nuts, Mueller Series 
2360, Nibco F-619-RW-SON, or equal. 


a. Underground valves 3 inches and smaller may be furnished with operating nuts or hand-
wheels, and with Ring-Tite joint ends. 


b. Furnish and deliver to Owner one wrench of each size required for operating underground 
valves. 


B. Ball Valves:  


1. 2 inches and smaller: 600 psi CWP, 150 psi SWP, cast bronze body, full port, two piece, threaded 
ends, and reinforced PTFE seal, conforming to MSS SP-110. Nibco T585-70, Milwaukee BA-400, 
Stockham T-285, or equal.  


2. 2-1/2 inches and larger: Class 150, carbon steel body, full port, two piece, stainless steel vented 
ball, flanged ends, and reinforced PTFE seal, conforming to MSS SP-72. Nibco F-515-CS-F-66-
FS, Milwaukee F20-CS-15-F-02-GO-VB, or equal. 


3. Compressed Air Services: 600 psi CWP, 150 psi SWP, bronze body, full port, three piece, 
threaded ends, and reinforced PTFE seal, conforming to MSS SP-110. Nibco Model T-595-Y, 
Milwaukee BA-300, or equal.  


C. Swing Check Valves: Class 125 or 150, bronze body, suitable for regrinding, threaded ends, conforming 
to MSS SP-80. Stockham B-321, Milwaukee 509, Nibco T-433, or equal. 


D. Butterfly Valves:  


1. General: Tight closing, full lug type, with resilient seat suitable for minimum working pressure of 
200 psig, conforming to MSS SP-67. Bi-direction dead end service with downstream flange 
removed. 


2. Provide valves with the following: 


a. Seats: Suitable for 40 degrees F for cold water service and 250 degrees F for hot water 
service. Seats shall cover inside surface of body and extend over body ends. 


b. Bodies: Ductile iron or cast iron. 


c. Discs: Bronze or stainless steel. 


d. Stems or Shafts: Stainless steel.  


e. Control Handles: Suitable for locking in any position or with 10 degree or 15 degree 
notched throttling plates to hold valve in selected position. Provide extended necks to 
compensate for insulation thickness. Provide gear operator for valves 5 inches and larger. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 11 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. 2 through 12 inches: Milwaukee Valve, CL series, Nibco, Inc., Model LD2000-3, or equal. 


E. Silent Check Valves (for use on pump discharge):  


1. General: Provide spring loaded check valves at pump discharge of all pumps. 


2. 2 inches and smaller: 250 psi CWP, bronze body, Nibco Model T-480, Milwaukee 548-T, or 
equal. 


3. 2-1/2 inches and larger: Class 250, cast iron body, wafer style, suitable for regrinding. Nibco 
Model F960, Milwaukee 1400, Mueller 103MAP, or equal. 


F. Calibrated Balance Valves (Symbol CBV): Provide globe style valves for precision regulation and control 
rated 175 psi for sizes 2-1/2 inches through 12 inches and rated 240 psi for bronze sizes 2 inches and 
below. Each valve shall have two metering/test ports with internal check valves and protective caps. All 
valves must be equipped with visual position readout and concealed memory stops for repeatable 
regulation and control. 


1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. Bell & Gossett Circuit Setter Plus. 


b. Armstrong CBV. 


c. Flow Design Inc. Accusetter. 


d. Tour & Andersson. 


e. Circuit Sensor with butterfly valve above 3 inches.  


f. Illinois Series 5000 through 2 inches. 


G. Flow Control Valves: Automatic pressure compensating flow control valves shall be Griswold, Flow 
Design, Inc., or equal. 


H. Building Gas Shut-Off Valves: 


1. 2 inches and smaller: Provide 175 psi SWP ball valve, CSA listed, full port, lockwing type, with 
AGA painted grey finish. Jomar 175-LWN, or equal. 


2. Above 2 inches: Provide ReSun D-126, Key Port, or equal, lubricated plug cock, CSA listed, 
rectangular port, full pipe area, 125 psi SWP, flanged ends. Provide T-Handle socket wrench and 
adapter fittings as required for operation of valves. Provide one package of spare lubricant sticks, 
sizes as required for valve sizes. Lubricant shall be the product recommended by valve 
manufacturer for use with type of gas conveyed by the piping system. 


3. Provide valves same size as upstream piping. Make any reduction in size of gas piping 
downstream of shutoff valves. 


I. Gas Shut-off Valve Above Grade:  


1. 2 inches and smaller: Provide Milwaukee BB2-100, Jomar T-100NE, or equal, ball valve, CSA 
listed, full port.  







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 12 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


2. Above 2 inches: Provide ReSun D-126, Key Port, or equal, CSA listed, rectangular port, full pipe 
area, 125 psi SWP, flanged ends. Provide T-Handle socket wrench and adapter fittings as 
required for operation of valves. Provide one package of spare lubricant sticks, sizes as required 
for valve sizes. Lubricant shall be the product recommended by valve manufacturer for use with 
type of gas conveyed by the piping system. 


3. Provide valves same size as upstream piping. Make any reduction in size of gas piping 
downstream of shutoff valves. 


J. For Gas Service Below Grade:  


1. Lubricated plug cocks: ReSun Model D-126, Key Port, or equal, lubricated plug cock, CSA listed, 
rectangular port, full pipe area, 125 psi SWP, flanged ends. Provide extended lubrication stem, 
arranged to allow for lubrication of the valve from grade. The extension must be constructed to 
allow for lubrication of the valve and for operation of the valve from grade. Provide T-Handle 
socket wrench and adapter fittings as required for operation of valves. Provide one package of 
spare lubricant sticks, sizes as required for valve sizes. Lubricant shall be the product 
recommended by valve manufacturer for use with type of gas conveyed by the piping system. 


a. Provide flanged ends on valves installed below grade. Connect to polyethylene piping with 
flanges and stainless steel bolts. 


b. Anchor each valve flange to valve box with welded angle iron, or provide vertical stiff leg, 
minimum 18 inches into earth. 


c. Provide Central Double O Seal Transition Fittings, or equal, flanged style for connection 
between valve and piping system. 


d. Wrap valve, flanges and exposed pipe with PASCO Specialty & Mfg., Inc., or equal tape 
wrap, installed in accordance with requirements listed under “Pipe Protection”. 


2. Molded polyethylene body ball valves: Nordstrom Valves - Polyvalve II for sizes 1-1/4 inches to 2 
inches, and Polyvalve for sizes 2 inches and larger, or equal. Valves 1 inch and smaller shall be 
listed lubricated plug cocks, with transition fittings.. 


a. Provide stub ends to match SDR of the piping, arranged for butt fusion welding. Provide 
valve body material to suit the adjacent piping system. 


b. Provide wrench to suit the valve operator.  


K. Seismic Gas Shut-Off Valves: Certified by State of California and compliant with ASCE 25. Provide 
standard or high pressure model as required to match site gas pressure. Provide unit arrangement per 
Drawings schedule and details. 


1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by one of the 
following: 


a. Little Firefighter Corporation, models NAGV, VAGV, and AGV. 


b. Seismic Safety Products, LLC, Northridge series. 


2.8 DOMESTIC WATER PIPING SPECIALTIES 


A. Hose Bibbs: 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 13 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. Acorn Engineering Co. 


b. Woodford Manufacturing Co. 


2. Hose Station: Leonard THS-25-VB-CW, Symmons, or equal. 


B. Wall Hydrants: 


1. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. Acorn Engineering Co. 


b. Woodford Manufacturing Co. 


c. Mifab, Inc. 


C. Water Hammer Arrestors: 


1. Provide water hammer arrestors conforming to lead-free requirements of California Health and 
Safety Code Section 116875, with nesting type bellows contained within a casing having 
sufficient displacement volume to dissipate the calculated kinetic energy generated in the piping 
system. Water hammer arrestors shall be sized for type and number of fixtures served. Provide 
all stainless steel shell construction with stainless steel bellows and threaded connection to water 
system. 


2. Water hammer arrestors shall be certified under P.D.I. Standard WH201 and by ASSE Standard 
1010. 


3. Select units in accordance with the requirements of Plumbing and Drainage Institute Standard 
P.D.I. WH201. Install above ceilings or behind wall access door at each plumbing fixture, or 
where plumbing fixtures are installed in groups, at each group of fixtures. 


4. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. Josam Company, series 75000. 


b. Smith (Jay R.) Mfg. Co., Hydrotrol 5005-5050. 


c. Mifab, series WHB. 


D. Water Filters: 


1. Provide Cuno Incorporated, Aqua Pure model AP510, or equal, point of use water filters, 
conforming to lead-free requirements of California Health and Safety Code Section 116875, in 
locations indicated on Drawings. 


a. Provide model AP517 filter cartridge at each location, with 5 micron rating and 2,000 gallon 
rating, to remove sediment, rust, scale and chlorine taste and odor from incoming water. 2 
gallon per minute capacity.  


b. Provide one spare cartridge for each unit provided. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 14 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


E. Reduced Pressure Backflow Preventers for Potable Water Systems: 


1. Provide reduced pressure principle backflow preventer conforming to lead free requirements of 
California Health and Safety Code Section 116875. 


a. Reduced-pressure principle backflow preventer assembly, consisting of shutoff valves on 
inlet and outlet, and strainer on inlet., Backflow preventer shall include test cocks, and 
pressure differential relief valve located between two positive seating check valves. 
Construct in accordance with ASSE Standard 1013. 


b. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements and local water authorities having 
jurisdiction, available manufacturers offering products that may be incorporated into the 
Work include the following, or equal: 


1) 2 inches and smaller: Wilkins 975XL2, Febco LF825YRP, Watts LF919. 


2) 2-1/2 thru 10 inches: Wilkins 475AXL, Febco LF860RP. 


3) 2-1/2 and 3 inches: Watts LF009. 


2. Provide LeMeur, Hot-Box, WattsBox, or equal, two piece reinforced aluminum, fiberglass, welded 
angle with expanded metal, backflow preventer enclosure, sized to suit the size of backflow 
preventer. Install on concrete pad, in accordance with manufacturer's written installation 
instructions. 


3. Provide substantial padlock and chain to lock valves in open position, and turn key over to Project 
Inspector. 


a. Padlocks shall be as specified under Section 08 70 00. 


b. Chain shall be of carbon steel, 3/8 inch wire diameter, fully welded links and weight of 140 
pounds per 100 lineal feet. Chain shall be hot galvanized. 


4. Provide capped connections at each test cock. Install in accordance with requirements of 
Authority Having Jurisdiction. 


5. For units installed within buildings, provide drain, connected to unit, to collect spillage from 
atmospheric vent. Run drain to nearest floor sink or drain. 


6. Provide two concrete filled, 6-inch diameter pipe bollards to protect all exposed piping from motor 
vehicle damage. 


F. Reduced Pressure Backflow Preventers for Non-Potable Water Systems:  


1. Refer to Section 211000 for backflow preventers for fire protection service. 


2. Provide reduced-pressure principle backflow preventer consisting of assembly, including shutoff 
valves on inlet and outlet, and strainer on inlet, equal to Febco 825Y or 880, as required Wilkins, 
Aames, or equal. Backflow preventer shall include test cocks, and pressure differential relief valve 
located between two positive seating check valves. Construct in accordance with ASSE Standard 
1013. 


3. Provide LeMeur, Hot-Box, or equal, two piece backflow preventer enclosure, sized to suit the size 
of backflow preventer. Install on concrete pad, in accordance with manufacturer's written 
installation instructions. 


4. Provide substantial padlock and chain to lock valves in open position, and turn key over to Project 
Inspector. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 15 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


a. Padlocks shall be as specified under Section 08 70 00. 


b. Chain shall be of carbon steel, 3/8 inch wire diameter, fully welded links and weight of 140 
pounds per 100 lineal feet. Chain shall be hot galvanized. 


5. Provide capped connections at each test cock. Install in accordance with requirements of 
Authority Having Jurisdiction. 


6. For units installed within buildings, provide drain, connected to unit, to collect spillage from 
atmospheric vent. Run drain to nearest floor sink or drain. 


7. Provide two concrete filled, 6-inch diameter pipe bollards to protect all exposed piping from motor 
vehicle damage. 


8. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements and local water authorities having 
jurisdiction, available manufacturers offering products that may be incorporated into the Work 
include the following, or equal: 


a. Ames. 


b. Febco Sales, Inc. 


c. Watts Regulator Company. 


d. Clow. 


G. Double Check Valve Backflow Preventers:  


1. Refer to Section 211000 for backflow preventers for fire protection service. 


2. Provide double detector check valve assembly consisting of two spring loaded brass check 
valves, two cast iron bronze fitted gate valves and four test cocks, equal to Febco Model 856 or 
876 as required. Construct in accordance with ASSE Standard 1048. 


3. Provide LeMeur, Hot-Box, or equal, two piece backflow preventer enclosure, sized to suit the size 
of backflow preventer. Install on concrete pad, in accordance with manufacturer's written 
installation instructions. 


4. Provide substantial padlock and chain to lock valves in open position and turn key over to Project 
Inspector. 


a. Padlocks shall be as specified under Section 08 70 00. 


b. Chain shall be of carbon steel, 3/8 inch wire diameter, fully welded links and weight of 140 
pounds per 100 lineal feet. Chain shall be hot galvanized. 


5. Provide capped connections at each test cock. Install in accordance with requirements of 
Authority Having Jurisdiction. 


6. Provide two concrete filled, 6 inch diameter pipe bollards to protect all exposed piping from motor 
vehicle damage. 


7. Provide Christy, or equal, utility box sized as required to suit backflow assembly, complete with 
two piece reinforced concrete lid, concrete extensions, insulation and other construction details 
shown on the drawings. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 16 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


8. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements and local water authorities having 
jurisdiction, available manufacturers offering products that may be incorporated into the Work 
include the following, or equal: 


a. Ames. 


b. Febco Sales, Inc. 


c. Watts Regulator Company. 


d. Clow. 


H. Potable Water Pressure-Regulating Valve:  


1. Provide pressure-regulating valves, single-seated, direct-operated type, bronze body, integral 
strainer, complying with requirements of ASSE Standard 1003, and the lead-free requirements of 
California Health and Safety Code Section 116875. Size for maximum flow rate and inlet and 
outlet pressure indicated on Drawings. 


2. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. Cla-Val Company. 


b. Watts Regulator Company. 


I. Thermostatic Water Temperature Control Valve:  


1. Provide thermostatic water temperature control valve conforming to lead free requirements of 
California Health and Safety Code Section 116875, with size as noted on Drawings, complete 
with union angle strainer checkstops. Valves shall be thermostatic type, with a maximum 
temperature setting as follows: 


2. Provide surface recessed semi-recessed mounted, white enameled or stainless steel cabinet with 
locking door for control valves. Including:  


a. Control valve cabinet and valve shall be provided as a package, and include thermostatic 
water mixing valve, thermometer, safety checkstops, volume control valve and internal 
piping. 


3. Where indicated on drawings, provide a temperature alarm system, utilizing a micro-processor 
based controller and solid state temperature controller. Provide audible and visual indication of 
high and low temperature set points. Provide required hardware and wiring for a complete 
operating system. 


a. Provide isolation transformer for control of the alarm system. 


b. Provide solenoid valve and shock absorber, installed and wired to the alarm module. 


4. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. Leonard Valve Company. 


b. Lawler Manufacturing Co., Inc. 


c. Powers. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 17 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


J. Relief Valves:  


1. Provide relief valves as indicated, of size and capacity as selected by Contractor for proper 
relieving capacity, in accordance with ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code. 


2. Combined Pressure-Temperature Relief Valves: Bronze body, test lever, thermostat, complying 
with ANSI A21.22 listing requirements for temperature discharge capacity. Provide temperature 
relief at 210 degrees F, and pressure relief at 150 psi. 


3. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. Watts Regulator Company. 


b. Cash (A.W.) Valve Manufacturing Corporation. 


c. Zurn Industries, Inc.; Wilkins-Regulator Division. 


K. Trap Primers:  


1. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. MiFab, Inc.  


b. Precision Plumbing Products.  


c. Sioux Chief Manufacturing Company. 


L. Water Meter:  


1. Provide and install prefabricated water meter and bypass assembly, sized as indicated on the 
Drawings, complete with strainer, adapter, couplings, spool piece and test nipple. The meter shall 
be compound type, with two measuring chambers and a single billing register. Pipe materials 
used in construction of the assembly shall be ductile iron, and the meter shall be bronze with 
stainless steel trim. 


2. Install the meter and accessories in a Christy, Brooks, or equal, series "R" pit Model R37, 4 feet 
by 7 feet by 3 feet deep; complete with 4 piece checker plate parkway lid (screw down type), and 
8 inch round meter reading lid. Install meter in accordance with the requirements of the Authority 
Having Jurisdiction. 


3. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements and local water authorities having 
jurisdiction, available manufacturers offering products that may be incorporated into the Work 
include the following, or equal: 


a. Badger Meter, Inc. 


b. Sensus North America Water. 


c. Neptune Technology Group. 


d. Hershey Meters. 


2.9 GAS PIPING SPECIALTIES 


A. Gas Pressure Regulating Valves:  







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 18 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. Provide single-stage, spring-loaded, corrosion-resistant gas pressure regulators, with die-cast 
aluminum or cast iron body, complying with ANSI Z21.80. Unit shall be with atmospheric vent, 
internal relief overpressure protection, threaded ends for 2 inches and smaller, flanged ends for 
2-1/2 inches and larger. For inlet and outlet gas pressures, specific gravity, and volume flow refer 
to Drawings schedule.  


2. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


Size Manufacturer/Model 


1/2 inch Elster (American, Singer) model 1213B 
Itron (Actaris, Slumberger, Sprague) model 
B42R. 


3/4 thru 1-1/4inches Elster (American, Singer) model 1813C 
Sensus (Ivensys, Equimeter, Rockwell) model 
143-80-12 
Itron (Actaris, Slumberger, Sprague) models 
B42R, B57R, B58R 


1-1/2 thru 2 inches Elster (American, Singer) models 1813, 1813B 
Sensus (Ivensys, Equimeter, Rockwell) model 
243 
Itron (Actaris, Slumberger, Sprague) models 
B43SR, B34R, B38R 


B. Gas and Air Outlets:  


1. Gas Outlets: Deck mounted Chicago 982-907BC duplex, T&S Brass, or equal; deck mounted 
Chicago 980-907BC single, or equal, deck-mounted Chicago 984-907BC, four outlets, or equal. 
Provide integral check valve, and single lever handle in compliance with ADA requirements. 


2. Air Outlets: Panel mounted Chicago 986-937CH; deck-mounted Chicago 980-937CH, T&S Brass, 
or equal. Provide integral check valve, and single lever handle in compliance with ADA 
requirements. 


3. Air Hose Valve: Lincoln 815 coupler and 11659 nipple, Grover, or equal, with ball valve on inlet. 
Refer to drawing details for additional requirements. Provide Wilkerson Model CB6-04-000 air 
pressure regulator, or equal. 


4. Hose Reels: Lincoln Model 85062, Grover or equal. Provide heavy-duty type with delivery hose, 
universal swivel, ball stop, shut-off valve, control valve and filter as required. Connect services to 
reels with ball valve. 


2.10 DRAIN AND WASTE PIPING SPECIALTIES 


A. Cleanouts:  


1. General: Install cleanouts of same diameter as pipe (4 inch maximum) in all horizontal soil and 
waste lines where indicated and at all points of change in direction. Cleanouts shall be located 
not less than 18 inches from building construction so as to provide sufficient space for rodding. 
No horizontal run over 50 feet inside buildings or 100 feet outside buildings shall be without 
cleanout, whether shown on Drawings or not. Provide two-way cleanouts where indicated on 
drawings, and where required for satisfactory use. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 19 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


a. Provide cleanouts in waste drop from each sink and urinal.  


b. Provide one wrench for each size and type of cleanout used. Turn over to Owner at 
completion of the project, and obtain receipt. Place receipt in Operation and Maintenance 
Manuals.  


2. Cleanouts in floor and in concrete sidewalks: Ducco Cast Iron with nickel bronze top, clamping 
collar and ABS plastic plug: Zurn ZN-1400-KC, or equal, with square or round top to suit floor 
construction. 


3. Cleanouts in composition floors: Zurn ZN-1400-X-DX, or equal (nickel bronze top). 


4. Cleanouts in concealed, aboveground cast-iron soil or waste lines: Zurn Z-1440A, or equal, with 
ABS plastic plug. 


5. Cleanouts in walls: Zurn Z-1441 or Z-1443, or equal, with stainless steel cover. Provide long 
sweep elbow or combination wye at connection to riser and install with surface of cleanout within 
½ inch of front face of finished wall.  


a. Where space does not permit the above installation, provide Zurn Z-1446, or equal, with 
stainless steel access cover, and vandal resistant screw.  


b. Install face of cleanout plug within 1/2 inch of front face of finished wall. 


6. Cleanouts exterior to building in landscaped areas: Zurn Z-1449-BP, or equal, cleanout ferrule 
with tapered bronze plug. Where located at grade, provide 18 by 18 by 6 inch concrete pad; 
Trowel concrete smooth and edge; set flush with finished grade. 


7. Cleanouts in drive areas: Zurn -1400-HD-KC, or equal, with heavy-duty top and ABS plastic plug. 


8. Cleanouts in acid waste systems: Zurn ZN-1404, or equal, cleanout access housing, with ductile 
cast iron body and nickel bronze top. Extend acid waste piping within the cleanout, and terminate 
with threaded cap. Secure acid waste pipe inside cleanout access housing with setscrews 
provided. 


B. Floor Drains: 


1. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. J.R. Smith. 


b. MIFAB. 


c. Watts. 


d. Zurn. 


C. Floor Sinks:  


1. Floor Sinks: Provide anchoring flange (seepage pan) at all floor sinks, and provide flashing clamp 
in locations where floor membrane is used. Provide cast iron "P" trap and trap primer connection 
at P-Trap.  


2. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 20 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


a. J.R. Smith. 


b. MIFAB. 


c. Watts. 


d. Zurn. 


D. Hopper Drains:  


1. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. Zurn. 


b. J.R. Smith. 


E. Area Drain:  


1. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. Brooks. 


b. J.R. Smith. 


c. Old Castle Precast. 


d. Watts. 


e. Zurn. 


F. Backwater Valves:  


1. Provide Zurn Model Z-1090 J. R. Smith 7012, or equal flapper type backwater valve where 
indicated on drawings. Install in accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations. 


2. Provide Christy Model B16, Brooks, or equal utility box, 12 inches by 22 inches size, for 
installation of backwater valve. 


3. Provide Zurn Model Z-1091, J.R. Smith 7070, or equal terminal type backwater valve, and install 
in catch basin piping at the outlet of the catch basin. 


G. Roof Drains and Overflow Drains:  


1. See Architectural Drawings for drain style to be used. 


2. Provide offset downspout boots where required for connection of exposed sheet metal 
downspouts to underground cast iron or PVC piping. 


3. Provide rainwater leader nozzles on overflow piping. Nozzle body shall be bronze with threaded 
inlet and bronze wall flange with mounting holes. Size nozzle to match connected rainwater 
leader. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 21 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


4. Manufacturers: Drawing schedules indicate Basis of Design products. Subject to compliance with 
requirements, provide product indicated on Drawings, or comparable product by one of the 
following, or equal: 


a. J.R. Smith. 


b. Mifab. 


c. Zurn. 


PART 3 - EXECUTION 


3.1 EXAMINATION 


A. Examine areas and conditions under which plumbing piping systems are to be installed. Do not proceed 
with Work until unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected in manner acceptable to Contractor. 


B. Make all arrangements for the utilities required. Pay all costs involved in obtaining the services including 
gas service and meter, water meter, pressure reducing valve, access boxes, street work. Connect to 
site utilities. Verify the location of all services. No extra cost will be allowed if services are not as shown. 


C. Determine sanitary sewer and storm drain location and elevation at all points of connection before 
installing any piping. Notify Architect immediately if indicated grades cannot be maintained. 


D. At time of final connection, and prior to opening valve to allow pressurization of water and gas piping 
from existing systems, on site or off site, perform a pressure test to indicate static pressure of existing 
systems. If pressure on water piping is greater than 80 psi, or gas pressure is not as indicated on 
Contract Documents, inform Architect immediately. Do not allow piping systems to be pressurized 
without written consent of the Architect. 


3.2 INSTALLATION OF WATER PIPING  


A. Run all water piping generally level, free of traps or unnecessary bends, arranged to conform to the 
building requirements, and to suit clearance for other mechanical work such as ducts, flues, conduits, 
and other work. No piping shall be installed so as to cause unusual noise from the flow of water therein 
under normal conditions. 


B. Provide manufactured water hammer arrestors, sized and installed in accordance with Plumbing and 
Drainage Institute Standard PDI WH201. 


1. Locate water hammer arrestors at every plumbing fixture, or, where fixtures are located in groups, 
at every group of fixtures, and as indicated on Drawings. 


2. Install water hammer arresters above accessible ceilings, or install access doors for service. 


C. In freezing locations arrange water piping to drain as shown. 


D. Install piping on room side of building insulation. 


E. Check final location of rubber rings within couplings on PVC water piping with gauge or as 
recommended by manufacturer. Make connection to valves with cast iron adapters connected to water 
pipe with cast iron couplings. Furnish and install anchors or thrust blocks. 


F. For all faucets, hose bibbs, or other water outlets delivering industrial hot and/or cold water, provide a 
sign, permanently mounted, indicating "CAUTION: NON-POTABLE WATER, DO NOT DRINK". Each 
sign shall be permanently engraved with black uppercase letters on a yellow background. Letters shall 
be minimum 1-1/4 inch high. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 22 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3.3 INSTALLATION OF SANITARY AND STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEMS  


A. Make joints in PVC sewer pipe with PVC-type couplings and rubber rings. 


B. Check final location of rubber rings within the couplings with gauge or as recommended by the 
manufacturer. Make joints between PVC pipe and cast iron pipe or fittings using cast iron adapter 
fittings, installed as recommended by the manufacturer. 


1. Ring-Tite cast iron pipe fittings may be used in lieu of standard fittings. Make connection to valves 
with cast iron adapters connected to the pipe with PVC couplings. 


C. Sewer Piping: Run all horizontal sanitary drain piping inside of building on a uniform grade of not less 
than 1/4 inch per foot unless otherwise noted or later approved. Unless otherwise noted on the plans, 
piping shall have invert elevations as shown and slope uniformly between given elevations. 


D. Storm Drain Piping: Run all horizontal storm drain piping inside of building on a uniform grade of not 
less than 1/4 inch per foot. Unless otherwise noted on the plans, piping shall have invert elevations as 
shown and slope uniformly between given elevations. 


E. Install rainwater leader nozzles at exposed bottom of leaders where they spill onto grade. 


F. Run all drainage piping as straight as possible and provide easy bends with long turns; make all offsets 
at an angle of 45 degrees or less. 


G. Grade all vent piping so as to free itself quickly of any water condensation. 


H. Where possible, join groups of vent risers together with one enlarged outlet through roof. Maintain 
minimum of 10 foot horizontal or 3 foot vertical clearance from air intakes. 


I. Install drip pan under storm drain piping, sanitary drain piping, and vent piping that must be run over 
kitchen areas. 


J. Hubless Cast Iron Joints: Comply with coupling manufacturer's installation instructions. 


3.4 INSTALLATION OF GREASE WASTE PIPING SYSTEMS  


A. Install to comply with all manufacturers’ recommendations. 


B. All buried pipe shall be bedded in and backfilled with 4 inches of sand, and installed as recommended 
by manufacturer. 


C. Install piping beginning at low point, true to grades and alignment indicated with unbroken continuity of 
invert. Maintain continuous pressure test on piping installed below grade, until all work has progressed 
to above grade. 


D. Electrofusion joints: Make polypropylene drainage piping joints according to ASTM F 1290. 


3.5 INSTALLATION OF ACID WASTE PIPING SYSTEMS  


A. Install to comply with all manufacturers’ recommendations. 


B. All buried pipe shall be bedded in and backfilled with 4 inches of sand, and installed as recommended 
by manufacturer. 


C. Install piping beginning at low point, true to grades and alignment indicated with unbroken continuity of 
invert. Maintain continuous pressure test on piping installed below grade, until all work has progressed 
to above grade. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 23 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


D. Electrofusion joints: Make polypropylene drainage piping joints according to ASTM F 1290. 


E. Connection to Building Sewer: At point of connection of acid waste piping to building sewer, provide 
fitting of same material as acid waste piping. 


3.6 INSTALLATION OF NATURAL GAS PIPING  


A. Install natural gas piping in accordance with Division 22 Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods 
sections. 


B. Use sealants on metal gas piping threads that are chemically resistant to natural gas. Use sealants 
sparingly, and apply to only male threads of metal joints. 


C. Remove cutting and threading burrs before assembling piping. 


D. Do not install defective piping or fittings. Do not use pipe with threads that are chipped, stripped, or 
damaged. 


E. Plug each gas outlet, including valves, with threaded plug or cap immediately after installation and 
retain until continuing piping or equipment connections are completed. 


F. Ground gas piping electrically and continuously within project, and bond tightly to grounding connection. 


G. Install drip-legs in gas piping where indicated and where required by code or regulation. 


1. Install "Tee" fitting with bottom outlet plugged or capped at bottom of pipe risers. 


2. Where gas supply is connected to equipment with flexible connectors, install drip-leg in piping on 
downstream side of flexible connector, and install shut off valve on piping on upstream side of 
flexible connector. 


H. Install piping with 1/64 inch per foot (1/8 percent) downward slope in direction of flow. 


I. Install piping parallel to other piping. 


J. Paint all gas piping installed in exposed exterior locations. For additional requirements, refer to Section 
22 00 50, Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods, article, Painting. 


K. Provide shutoff valve downstream of meter. 


L. Provide exterior shutoff valve at each building. Provide sign affixed to wall at valve location reading: 
“Gas Shut-Off.” Size and location of the sign shall be as required by the Authority Having Jurisdiction. 
Where gas piping enters a building in more than one location, exterior shutoff valves shall have a 
permanently attached metal tag identifying the area served by that valve, in addition to sign on wall. 


M. Provide watertight Schedule 40 PVC conduit to protect gas piping installed below covered walk, covered 
driveways, and where noted on Drawings. Extend sleeve at least 12 inches beyond any area where it is 
required to be installed, and terminate with valve box extended to grade, and marked “GAS”. 


N. Maintain minimum of 12 inch clearance between gas piping and steam piping above 200 degrees F. 


3.7 PIPE JOINTS AND CONNECTIONS 


A. General: 


1. Cutting: Cut pipe and tubing square, remove rough edges or burrs. Bevel plain ends of steel pipe. 


2. Remove scale, slag, dirt and debris from inside and outside of pipe before assembly. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 24 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3. Boss or saddle type fittings or mechanically extracted tube joints will not be allowed. 


B. Threaded Pipe: Thread pipe with tapered pipe threads according to ASME B1.20.1. Cut threads full and 
clean using sharp dies. Ream threaded pipe ends to remove burrs and restore full ID. Join pipe fittings 
and valves as follows: 


1. Apply thread compound to external pipe threads: Rectorseal No. 5, Permatex No. 1, or equal. 


2. Damaged Threads: Do not use pipe or pipe fittings with threads that are corroded or damaged. 


C. Flanged Joints: Select appropriate asbestos-free, nonmetallic gasket material in size, type, and 
thickness suitable for domestic water service. Join flanges with gasket and bolts according to 
ASME B31.9. 


D. Joint Construction for Solvent-Cemented Plastic Piping: Clean and dry joining surfaces. Join pipe and 
fittings according to the following: 


1. Comply with ASTM F 402 for safe-handling practice of cleaners, primers, and solvent cements. 
Apply primer. 


2. CPVC Piping: Join according to ASTM D 2846/D 2846M Appendix. 


3. PVC Piping: Join according to ASTM D 2855. 


E. Copper Pipe and Tubing (Except pneumatic control piping): All joints shall be brazed according to 
ASME Section IX, Welding and Brazing Qualifications, except domestic water piping 1-1/4 inches and 
smaller when not buried in the ground or concrete and type DWV plumbing piping may be soldered. 


1. Soldered joints: Apply water-flushable flux to end of tube. Join copper tube and fittings according 
to ASTM B 828. 


F. Cast Iron Soil Pipe:  


1. No-Hub fittings shall be made with a torque wrench. 


2. Hub joints shall be with Ty-Seal couplings. 


3. Wrought iron, steel, or copper pipe shall have a ring or part of a coupling screwed on to form a 
spigot end if caulked into a joint. 


4. Connect cast iron sewer piping to outside service pipe with cast iron or vitrified LOP reducers or 
increasers as required. Caulking of smaller pipe into the larger without a reducer or increaser will 
not be permitted. 


G.  Welded Pipe:  


1. Make up with oxyacetylene or electric arc process. 


2. All line welds shall be of the single "V" butt type. Welds for flanges shall be of the fillet type. 


3. Where the branch is two pipe sizes smaller than the main or smaller, Bonney Weldolets, 
Threadolets, Nibco, or equal, may be used in lieu of welding tees. 


H. PVC Sewer and Drainage Pipe (outside building as allowed only): Four inches and larger shall be bell 
and spigot, assembled in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. Joint shall be tested in 
accordance with ASTM D3212. Solvent weld joints below 4 inches in size, schedule 40 PVC with 
matching fittings, assembled per manufacturer’s instructions. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 25 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


I. Polyethylene and Polypropylene Pipe: Assemble with fusion joints in strict accordance with 
manufacturer's instructions. 


J. Make joints in PVC water pipe with PVC couplings and rubber rings, Manville Ring-Tite, PW Pipe, or 
equal. Check final location of rubber rings with the couplings with gauge or as recommended by the 
manufacturer. Make joints between PVC pipe and cast iron pipe or fittings using cast iron or PVC 
adapter fittings, installed as recommended by the manufacturer. Ring-Tite PVC or cast iron pipe fittings 
may be used in lieu of standard fittings. Make connection to valves with cast iron adapters connected to 
the water pipe with PVC couplings. 


K. Flexible Connections:  


1. Furnish and install Thermo Tech., Inc. F/J/R, Metraflex, or equal, flexible couplings with limiter 
bolts on piping connections to all equipment mounted on anti-vibration bases, on each connection 
to each base mounted pump and where shown. Couplings shall be suitable for pressure and type 
of service. 


2. Anchor piping securely on the system side of each flexible connection. 


3.8 INSTALLATION OF VALVES 


A. Install valves as indicated on Drawings and in the following locations: 


1. Shutoff Valves: Install on inlet of each plumbing equipment item, and on inlet of each plumbing 
fixture, and elsewhere as indicated. 


2. Drain Valves: Install on each plumbing equipment item located to completely drain equipment for 
service or repair. Install at base of each riser, at base of each rise or drop in piping system, and 
elsewhere indicated or required to completely drain potable water system. 


3. Provide gate or globe valves on inlet and outlet of each water heater or pump. 


B. General: 


1. Valves shall be full line size unless indicated otherwise on Drawings. 


2. Install horizontal valves with valve stem above horizontal, except butterfly valves. 


3. Install valves with unions or flanges at each piece of equipment arranged to allow service, 
maintenance, and equipment removal without system shutdown. 


4. Locate valves for easy access and provide separate support where necessary. 


5. Install valves in position to allow full stem movement. 


6. Install exposed polished or enameled connections with special care showing no tool marks or 
exposed threads. 


7. Butterfly valves conforming to the paragraph “Butterfly Valves” may be used in lieu of gate or 
globe valves for locations above grade.  


8. Ball valves conforming to the paragraph “Ball Valves” may be used in lieu of gate valves for 
locations above grade for services 2-1/2 inches and smaller. 


9. Valves 2-1/2 inches and smaller (except ball valves) in nonferrous water piping systems may be 
solder joint type with bronze body and trim. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 26 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


10. Rigidly fasten hose bibbs, hydrants, fixture stops, compressed air outlets, and similar items to the 
building construction.  


C. Gate Valves: 


1. Furnish valves in copper lines with adapters to suit valve / line requirements. 


2. Underground gate valves: 


a. Underground valves 3 inches and smaller may be furnished with operating nuts or hand-
wheels, and with Ring-Tite joint ends. 


b. Furnish and deliver to Owner one wrench of each size required for operating underground 
valves. 


D. Swing Check Valves: Install in horizontal position with hinge pin level. 


E. Butterfly Valves: Install with stems horizontal. 


F. Silent Check Valves: Install in horizontal or vertical position between flanges. 


G. Calibrated Balancing Valves: Install calibrated balancing valves per manufacturers’ recommendations, 
including requirements for straight pipe lengths at valve inlet and outlet. 


H. Gas Shut-Off Valves: 


1. Provide line size ball valve in gas line to each appliance. 


2. Provide line size ball valve in gas line, to be used as emergency shut-off for science classrooms. 
Install valve in locking box where indicated on the drawings.  


3. Provide line size electric solenoid gas valve in gas line to kitchen equipment (if not supplied with 
appliance) under Type 1 hood. Interlock with hood fire alarm system. 


I. Valve Adjustment: Adjust or replace valve packing after piping systems have been tested and put into 
service but before final adjusting and balancing. Replace valves if persistent leaking occurs. 


3.9 INSTALLATION OF CLEANOUTS  


A. Cleanouts: Install in piping as indicated, as required by California Plumbing Code, at each change in 
direction of piping greater than 45 degrees. Install at maximum intervals of 50 feet for piping 4 inches 
and smaller and 100 feet for larger piping inside buildings, and at base of each conductor. 


B. Flashing Flanges: Install flashing flange and clamping device with each cleanout passing through water 
resistant membrane. 


3.10 INSTALLATION OF FLOOR DRAINS AND FLOOR SINKS 


A. Install drains in accordance with manufacturer's written instructions and in locations indicated. Install 
floor drains with lip of drain slightly below finished floor to ensure drainage. Install floor sinks flush with 
finished floor. Coordinate with other trades to ensure that floor slopes to drain. Provide flashing flange 
and clamping device with each drain passing through water resistant membrane. 


B. Install vented P-trap below each drain. Where trap primers are indicated, install trap primer connection 
in the P-trap. 


3.11 INSTALLATION OF ROOF DRAINS AND OVERFLOW DRAINS  







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 27 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


A. Install roof drains and overflow roof drains in accordance with manufacturer's written instructions and in 
locations indicated. 


B. Coordinate with roofing as necessary to interface roof drains with roofing work. 


3.12 INSTALLATION OF HOPPER DRAINS 


A. Install hopper drain in wall, in sheet metal box, with access door. 


1. Size access door and box to suit the size required for hopper drain and trap primer, and solder all 
seams of box. Seal all penetrations to box with non-hardening waterproof sealant. Provide locking 
door in occupied spaces. 


B. Grind top and sides of funnel, if required, to suit wall thickness. 


3.13 BACKFLOW PREVENTER INSTALLATION  


A. Install backflow preventers where indicated on Drawings. Provide drain connection available from the 
manufacturer at drain connection, pipe drain outlet to the nearest floor drain. 


1. Where drain pans are shown on the Drawings, pipe drain pan outlet to nearest floor drain. 


3.14 TRAP PRIMER INSTALLATION  


A. Install as indicated in manufacturers printed literature, with 1/2 inch, Type L, hard copper piping to trap 
primer connection on floor drains and floor sinks where indicated on Drawings. At Contractor’s option, 
Type K annealed copper tubing without joints may be used be used below slab only. See Section 22 00 
50 for pipe protection requirements for below slab copper piping/tubing.  


B. Install trap primer piping with 1/4 inch per foot slope, to insure that the line will drain fully to the floor 
drain or floor sink.  


1. Provide ball valve to the inlet at each trap primer location. 


C. Install trap primer and distribution unit exactly as called for in manufacturers printed installation 
instructions. Connect to domestic water piping from the top of the water line, in order to prevent foreign 
material from entering directly into primer assembly. 


D. Mount trap primer in wall, in sheet metal box, with Karp or equal access door. Size access door and box 
to suit valve operation, and solder all seams of box. Seal all penetrations to box with non-hardening 
waterproof sealant. Provide locking door where installed in occupied spaces.  


E. Where one trap primer will be used for more than one trap, provide a distribution unit with feeder piping 
for a maximum of four traps sized for equal pressure drop to each trap. 


3.15  INSTALLATION OF GAS PRESSURE REGULATING VALVES  


A. Install as indicated; comply with utility requirements. In locations where regulators are installed in 
confined spaces, pipe atmospheric vent to outdoors, full size of outlet. Install gas shutoff valve upstream 
and downstream of each pressure-regulating valve. 


3.16 GAS PIPING EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS  


A. Connect gas piping to each gas-fired equipment item, with union, drip leg and shutoff gas cock full size 
of supply line shown. Reduce only at connection to equipment. Comply with equipment manufacturer's 
instructions. 


1. Route gas vent and gas relief to outside. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 28 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


2. Gas shutoff valve shall be placed as close as possible to equipment in a location where it can be 
serviced. Distance from equipment to valve shall not exceed 6 feet. 


3.17 EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS  


A. Piping Runouts to Fixtures: Provide hot and cold water piping runouts to fixtures of sizes indicated. 


B. Mechanical Equipment Connections: Connect hot and cold water piping system and gas piping system 
to mechanical equipment as indicated, and provide with shutoff valve and union for each connection. 


3.18 KITCHEN EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION 


A. Coordinate all work with Specification Section for kitchen equipment.  


B. All equipment shall be fully connected. 


C. Furnish and install all required "P" traps. 


D. Provide stops on all hot and cold water lines at equipment, in an accessible position. Include lines to 
kettle and range swing faucets. 


E. Water pressure for dishwasher and glass-washer to be 25 pound maximum. Provide pressure reducing 
valves on water line to washers. 


F. All floor openings are to be sealed watertight. 


G. Indirect waste lines required for standard or fabricated items of kitchen equipment, except sinks, shall 
be furnished and installed by the kitchen equipment contractor. 


H. Provide all sink drains. All indirect drains shall terminate above floor sinks at least 1-1/2 times ID of drain 
line and shall be so set that flare will not spill on floor area. 


I. Provide approved vacuum breaker or anti siphon device on water lines to equipment wherever required. 


J. Provide gas pressure regulators for modular front manifold cooking equipment assemblies. Pressure 
regulators shall be adjustable from 2 inch to 7 inch water column and shall be set for approximately 6 
inches W.C. at manifold connection. 


K. All gas pressure regulators shipped loose with gas fired equipment shall be installed by plumbing 
contractor. 


L. The kitchen equipment contractor will provide all equipment trim including faucets and sink wastes and 
swing faucets at kettles all to be installed by Plumbing contractor. 


M. All horizontal piping lines connected to equipment shall be run at the highest possible elevation not less 
than 6 inches above floor. Piping rough-in shall be stubbed in walls wherever possible. 


N. Vent piping for waste lines shall be concealed wherever possible and vertical vents for island or 
free-standing equipment shall be avoided. Any required exposed vents shall be submitted to the 
Architect for approval. 


O. Kitchen equipment contractor to furnish coffee maker. Plumbing contractor shall provide a cold water 


connection terminating in a 3-0 length of 1/4 inch OD soft copper tubing with a 1/4 inch female flare 
fitting on the end. 


P. Fire protection systems for ventilators and cooking equipment are furnished and installed by kitchen 
equipment contractor unless shown otherwise on the drawings. Gas valves which are a part of the fire 
protection systems are furnished only. Plumbing Contractor shall install gas valves. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 29 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


Q. Connect movable gas-fired cooking equipment utilizing flexible gas connection system. 


3.19 LABORATORY EQUIPMENT AND CASEWORK INSTALLATION 


A. Coordinate all work with Specification Section for Laboratory Equipment and Casework. 


B. Furnish and install all required P-traps. Traps shall be Enfield, Fuseal, or equal. 


C. Provide stops on all hot and cold water lines at equipment in an accessible position. 


D. Seal floor openings watertight. 


E. Provide approved vacuum breaker or anti-siphon device on water lines to equipment wherever required. 


F. All horizontal piping lines connected to equipment shall be run at the highest possible elevation not less 
than 6 inches above floor. Piping rough-in shall be stubbed in walls wherever possible. 


G. Vent piping for waste lines shall be concealed and vents for island or freestanding equipment shall be 
looped. 


3.20 DOMESTIC WATER SYSTEM STERILIZATION  


A. Clean and disinfect new or altered hot and cold water piping connected to domestic water systems 
using methods prescribed by the Health Authority. If the Health Authority does not prescribe methods, 
clean and disinfect new or altered hot and cold water piping using methods given in the California 
Plumbing Code. 


1. A water treatment company that has a current state EPA license to apply disinfectant chlorine in 
potable water shall perform the procedure. 


3.21 CARE AND CLEANING  


A. Repair or replace broken, damaged, or otherwise defective parts, materials, and work. Leave entire 
work in condition satisfactory to Architect. At completion, carefully clean and adjust equipment, fixtures, 
and trim that are installed as part of this work. Remove labels from stainless steel sinks, except 316 
stainless steel sink labels should be retained to confirm that the correct material has been provided. 
Leave systems and equipment in satisfactory operating condition. 


3.22 OPERATIONAL TESTS  


A. Test each piece of equipment to show that it will operate in accordance with indicated requirements. 


3.23 TESTING AND BALANCING 


A. See Section 23 05 93 of Specifications for testing and balancing requirements. 


3.24 CLEANING UP  


A. Upon completion of Work remove materials, equipment, apparatus, tools, and the like, and leave 
premises clean, neat, and orderly. 







  PLUMBING PIPING SYSTEMS 
  22 10 00 - 30 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


[END OF SECTION 22 10 00] 








  PLUMBING IDENTIFICATION 
  22 05 53 - 1 


 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


 
SECTION 22 05 53 


PLUMBING IDENTIFICATION 


PART 1 – GENERAL 


1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 


A. Nameplates. 


B. Tags. 


C. Stencils. 


D. Pipe Markers. 


1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 


A. Refer to the General Conditions, Special Conditions and Division 1 General Requirements.  The 
requirements of these sections apply to this section.  


B. Section 09 90 00 - Paints and Coatings:  Identification painting. 


1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS 


A. ASME A13.1 - Scheme for the Identification of Piping Systems; The American Society of Mechanical 
Engineers; 2007. 


1.04 SUBMITTALS 


A. See Section 00 72 00 - Submittals, for submittal procedures. 


B. Chart and Schedule:  Submit valve chart and schedule, including valve tag number, location, function, 
and valve manufacturer's name and model number. 


C. Product Data:  Provide manufacturers catalog literature for each product required. 


D. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions:  Indicate special procedures, and installation. 


E. Project Record Documents:  Record actual locations of tagged valves. 


PART 2 – PRODUCTS 


2.01 MANUFACTURERS 


A. Brady Corporation:  www.bradycorp.com. 


B. Seton Identification Products:  www.seton.com/aec. 


2.02 NAMEPLATES 


A. Description:  Laminated three-layer plastic with engraved letters. 


1. Letter Color:  White. 


2. Letter Height:  Equipment, control panels 1 inch. 



http://www.seton.com/aec





  PLUMBING IDENTIFICATION 
  22 05 53 - 2 


 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3. Letter Height:  Thermostats and small control components, 1/4 inch. 


4. Background Color:  Black. 


2.03 TAGS 


A. Metal Tags:  Brass with stamped letters; tag size minimum 1-1/2 inch diameter with smooth edges. 


B. Chart:  Typewritten letter size list in anodized aluminum frame. 


2.04 STENCILS 


A. Stencils:  With clean cut symbols and letters of following size: 


1. Access Doors and Similar Operational Instructions:  Minimum 3/4" high letters. 


B. Stencil Paint:  As specified in Section 09 90 00, semi-gloss enamel, colors conforming to ASME A13.1. 


2.05 PIPE MARKERS 


A. Comply with ASME A13.1. 


B. Plastic Pipe Markers:  Factory fabricated, flexible, semi- rigid plastic, preformed to fit around pipe or pipe 
covering; minimum information indicating flow direction arrow and identification of fluid being conveyed. 


C. Underground Plastic Pipe Markers:  Bright colored continuously printed plastic ribbon tape, minimum 6 
inches wide by 4 mil thick, manufactured for direct burial service. 


D. Service Markers:  Identify buried plugged or capped pipe with concrete marker, 4 inch diameter by 30 
inches long, set flush with grade.  Provide engraved brass nameplate identifying pipe stub. 


PART 3 – EXECUTION 


3.01 PREPARATION 


A. Degrease and clean surfaces to receive adhesive for identification materials. 


B. Prepare surfaces in accordance with Section 09 90 00 for stencil painting. 


3.02 INSTALLATION 


A. Install plastic nameplates with corrosive-resistant mechanical fasteners, or adhesive.  Apply with 
sufficient adhesive to ensure permanent adhesion and seal with clear lacquer. 


B. Install tags with corrosion resistant chain. 


C. Apply stencil painting in accordance with Section 09 90 00. 


D. Install plastic pipe markers in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 


E. Install underground plastic pipe markers 6 to 8 inches below finished grade, directly above buried pipe. 


F. Identify domestic hot water heating equipment, including water heaters, pumps, expansion tanks, etc. 
with plastic nameplates.  


G. Identify control panels and major control components outside panels with plastic nameplates. 


H. Identify valves in main and branch piping with tags. 







  PLUMBING IDENTIFICATION 
  22 05 53 - 3 


 


 


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


I. Tag automatic controls, instruments, and relays.  Key to control schematic. 


J. Identify piping, concealed or exposed, with plastic pipe markers.   Identify service, flow direction, and 
pressure.  Install in clear view and align with axis of piping.  Locate identification not to exceed 20 feet (6 
m) on straight runs including risers and drops, adjacent to each valve and Tee, at each side of 
penetration of structure or enclosure, and at each obstruction. 


K. Provide red ceiling dots to locate valves above T-bar type panel ceilings.  Locate in corner of T-bar 
panel closest to equipment. 


[END OF SECTION 22 05 53] 








  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 1 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


 
SECTION 22 00 50 


BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 


PART 1 - GENERAL  


1.1 SUMMARY 


A. Section Includes: 


1. Electric motors. 


2. Motor starters. 


3. Strainers. 


4. Valve boxes. 


5. Gauges. 


6. Thermometers. 


7. Access Doors. 


8. Expansion loops. 


9. Flexible joints. 


10. Insulation. 


1.2 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 


A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and 
Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 


B. This Section is a part of each Division 22 Section. 


1.3 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 


A. Furnish and install any incidental work not shown or specified which is necessary to provide a complete 
and workable system. 


B. Make all temporary connections required to maintain services during the course of this Contract without 
additional cost to the Owner. Notify the Owner seven days in advance before disturbing any service.  


C. Plumbing work done under this contract shall not adversely affect the operation of the existing plumbing 
systems.  


1.4 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 


A. Where material or equipment is specified to conform to referenced standards, it shall be assumed that 
the most recent edition of the standard in effect at the time of bid shall be used. 


1. CSA – Canadian Standards Association International. 


2. ANSI - American National Standards Institute. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 2 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3. ASTM - American Society for Testing and Materials. 


4. CCR - California Code of Regulations. 


a. Title 8 - Division of Industrial Safety, Subchapter 7; General Industry Safety Orders, 
Articles 31 through 36. 


5. NCPWB - National Certified Pipe Welding Bureau. 


6. CEC - California Electrical Code. 


7. NEMA - National Electrical Manufacturers' Association. 


8. NFPA - National Fire Protection Association. 


9. OSHA - Occupational Safety and Health Act. 


10. UL - Underwriters' Laboratories, Inc. 


B. Requirements of Regulatory Agencies: 


1. The publications listed below form part of this specification; comply with provisions of these 
publications except as otherwise shown or specified. 


a. California Building Code, 2022. 


b. California Electrical Code, 2022. 


c. California Energy Code, 2022. 


d. California Fire Code, 2022. 


e. California Green Building Standards Code, 2022. 


f. California Mechanical Code, 2022. 


g. California Plumbing Code, 2022. 


h. California Code of Regulations, Title 24. 


i. California Health and Safety Code. 


j. CAL-OSHA. 


k. California State Fire Marshal, Title 19 CCR. 


l. National Fire Protection Association. 


m. Occupational Safety and Health Administration. 


n. Other applicable state laws. 


2. Nothing in Drawings or specifications shall be construed to permit work not conforming to these 
codes, or to requirements of authorities having jurisdiction. It is not the intent of Drawings or 
specifications to repeat requirements of codes except where necessary for clarity. 


1.5 DRAWINGS 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 3 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


A. Examine Contract Documents prior to bidding of work and report discrepancies in writing to Architect. 


B. Drawings showing location of equipment and materials are diagrammatic and job conditions will not 
always permit installation in location shown. The Plumbing Drawings show general arrangement of 
equipment and materials, etc., and shall be followed as closely as existing conditions, actual building 
construction, and work of other trades permit. 


1. Architectural and Structural Drawings shall be considered part of the Work. These Drawings 
furnish Contractor with information relating to design and construction of the Project. Architectural 
Drawings take precedence over Plumbing Drawings. 


2. Because of the small scale of Plumbing Drawings, not all offsets, fittings, and accessories 
required are shown. Investigate structural and finish conditions affecting the Work and arrange 
Work accordingly. Provide offsets, fittings, and accessories required to meet conditions. Inform 
Architect immediately when job conditions do not permit installation of equipment and materials in 
the locations shown. Obtain the Architects approval prior to relocation of equipment and 
materials. 


3. Relocate equipment and materials installed without prior approval of the Architect. Remove and 
relocate equipment and materials at Contactors’ expense upon Architects’ direction. 


4. Minor changes in locations of equipment, piping, etc., from locations shown shall be made when 
directed by the Architect at no additional cost to the Owner providing such change is ordered 
before such items of work, or work directly connected to same are installed and providing no 
additional material is required. 


C. Execute work mentioned in Specifications and not shown on Drawings, or vice versa, the same as if 
specifically mentioned or shown in both. 


1.6 FEES AND PERMITS  


A. Obtain and pay for all permits and service required in installation of this work; arrange for required 
inspections and secure approvals from authorities having jurisdiction. Comply with requirements of 
Division 01. 


B. Arrange for utility connections and pay charges incurred, including excess service charges. 


1. Bear the cost of construction related to utility services, from point of connection to utility services 
shown on Contract Documents. This includes piping, excavation, backfill, meters, boxes, check 
valves, backflow prevention devices, general service valves, concrete work, and the like, whether 
or not Work is performed by Contractor, local water/sanitation district, public utility, other 
governmental agencies or agencies’ assigns. 


C. Prior to the start of construction, contact local gas company representative and coordinate location of 
gas meter and piping. In addition, coordinate time required for installation, in order to avoid delay to the 
Project. 


D. Coordination: 


1. General: 


a. Coordinate plumbing Work with trades covered in other Specifications Sections to provide 
a complete, operable and sanitary installation of the highest quality workmanship. 


2. Electrical Coordination: 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 4 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


a. Refer to the Electrical Drawings and Specifications, Division 26, for service voltage and 
power feed wiring for equipment specified under this section. Contractor has full 
responsibility for the following items of work: 


1) Review the Electrical Drawings and Division 26 Specifications to verify that electrical 
services provided are adequate and compatible with equipment requirements. 


2) If additional electrical services are required above that indicated on Electrical 
Drawings and in Division 26, such as more control interlock conductors, larger 
feeder, or separate 120 volt control power source, include cost to furnish and install 
additional electrical services as part of the bid. 


3) Prior to proceeding with installation of additional electrical work, submit detailed 
drawings indicating exact scope of additional electrical work. 


3. Mechanical Coordination: 


a. Arrange for pipe spaces, chases, slots and openings in building structure during progress 
of construction, to accommodate mechanical system installation. 


b. Coordinate installation of supporting devices. Set sleeves in poured-in-place concrete and 
other structural components during progress of construction. 


c. Coordinate requirements for access panels and doors for mechanical items requiring 
access where concealed behind finished surfaces. Access panels and doors are specified 
in Division 08 Section “Access Doors and Frames.” 


d. Coordinate with other trades equipment locations, pipe, duct and conduit runs, electrical 
outlets and fixtures, air inlets and outlets, and structural and architectural features. Provide 
information on location of piping and seismic bracing to other trades as required for a 
completely coordinated project. 


1.7 SUBMITTALS - GENERAL 


A. Refer to Division 01 Submittals Section(s) for additional requirements. 


B. Submittal packages may be submitted via email as PDF electronic files, or as printed packages. PDFs 
shall be legible at actual size (100 percent). Provide seven copies of printed submittal packages. 


C. Provide submittal of materials proposed for use as part of this Project. Product names in Specifications 
and on Drawings are used as standards of quality. Furnish standard items on specified equipment at no 
extra cost to the Contract regardless of disposition of submittal data. Other materials or methods shall 
not be used unless approved in writing by Architect. Architect's review will be required even though "or 
equal" or synonymous terms are used.  


1. Partial or incomplete submittals will not be considered. 


2. Quantities are Contractor's responsibility and will not be reviewed. 


3. Provide materials of the same brand or manufacturer for each class of equipment or material. 


4. Identify each item by manufacturer, brand, trade name, number, size, rating, or other data 
necessary to properly identify and review materials and equipment. Words "as specified" are not 
sufficient identification. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 5 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


5. Identify each submittal item by reference to items’ Specification Section number and paragraph, 
by Drawing and detail number, and by unit tag number. 


6. Organize submittals in same sequence as in Specification Sections. 


7. Show physical arrangement, construction details, finishes, materials used in fabrications, 
provisions for piping entrance, access requirements for installation and maintenance, physical 
size, mechanical characteristics, foundation and support details, and weight. 


a. Submit Shop Drawings, performance curves, and other pertinent data, showing size and 
capacity of proposed materials. 


b. Specifically indicate, by drawn detail or note, that equipment complies with each 
specifically stated requirement of Contract Documents. 


c. Drawings shall be drawn to scale and dimensioned (except schematic diagrams). Drawings 
may be prepared by vendor but must be submitted as instruments of Contractor, 
thoroughly checked and signed by Contractor before submission to Architect for review. 


d. Catalog cuts and published material may be included with supplemental scaled drawings. 


D. Review of submittals will be only for general conformance with design concept and general compliance 
with information given in Contract Documents. Review will not include quantities, dimensions, weights or 
gauges, fabrication processes, construction methods, coordination with work of other trades, or 
construction safety precautions, which are sole responsibility of Contractor. Review of a component of 
an assembly does not indicate acceptance of an assembly. Deviations from Contract Documents not 
clearly identified by Contractor are Contractor’s responsibility and will not be reviewed by Architect. 


E. Within reasonable time after award of contract and in ample time to avoid delay of construction, submit 
to Architect Shop Drawings or submittals on all items of equipment and materials provided. Provide 
submittal in at least seven copies and in complete package.  


1. Shop Drawings and submittals shall include Specification Section, Paragraph number, and 
Drawing unit symbol or detail number for reference. Organize submittals into booklets for each 
Specification section and submit in loose-leaf binders with index. Deviations from the Contract 
Documents shall be prominently displayed in the front of the submittal package and referenced to 
the applicable Contract requirement. 


F. Furnish to the Project Inspector complete installation instructions on material and equipment before 
starting installation. 


1.8 ACTION SUBMITTALS 


A. Product Data: Submit manufacturer's technical product data and installation instructions for plumbing 
systems materials and products. 


B. Shop Drawings. 


C. Sustainable Design Submittals: 


1. Product Data: For adhesives and sealants, documentation of compliance including printed 
statement of VOC content and chemical components. 


2. Laboratory Test Reports: For adhesives and sealants, indicating compliance with requirements 
for low-emitting materials. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 6 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


D. Pipe, pipe or plumbing fittings, fixtures, solder and flux installed in a system providing water for human 
consumption shall comply with lead free requirements of the California Health and Safety Code Section 
116875. Provide submittal information for products third-party certified by an approved laboratory as 
complying with California Health and Safety Code Section 116875. 


E. Delegated-Design Submittals: For seismic supports, anchorages, restraints, and vibration isolators 
indicated to comply with performance requirements and design criteria. 


1. Calculations performed for use in selection of seismic supports, anchorages, and restraints shall 
utilize criteria indicated in Structural Contract Documents. 


2. Include design calculations and details for selecting vibration isolators and vibration isolation 
bases complying with performance requirements, design criteria, and analysis data signed and 
sealed by the California registered structural engineer responsible for their preparation. 


3. Supports, anchorages and restraints for piping, ductwork, and equipment shall be an OSHPD 
pre-approved system such as TOLCO, ISAT, Mason, or equal. Pipes, ducts and equipment shall 
be seismically restrained in accordance with requirements of current edition of California Building 
Code. System shall have current OPM number and shall meet additional requirements of 
authority having jurisdiction. Provide supporting documentation required by the reviewing 
authority and the Architect and Engineer. Provide layout drawings showing piping, ductwork and 
restraint locations.  


a. Bracing of Piping and Equipment: Specifically state how bracing attachment to structure is 
accomplished. Provide shop drawings indicating seismic restraints, including details of 
anchorage to building. In-line equipment must be braced independently of piping, and in 
conformance with applicable building codes. Provide calculations to show that pre-approval 
numbers have been correctly applied in accordance with general information notes of pre-
approval documentation. Gas pipe bracing shall be designed in accordance with California 
Building Code Section 1615A.1.22 and ASCE 7-10 Section 13.6. Coefficient Ip = 1.5 shall 
be used for gas piping bracing calculations. 


b. In lieu of the above or for non-standard installations not covered in the above pre-approved 
systems, Contractor shall provide layout drawings showing piping, ductwork, and restraint 
locations, and detail supports, attachments and restraints, and furnish supporting 
calculations and legible details sealed by a California registered structural engineer, in 
accordance with 2016 California Building Code 


4. Additional Requirements: In addition to the above, conform to all state and local requirements. 


1.9 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS 


A. Provide layouts for plumbing systems, for inclusion in coordinated layout specified in Section 23 80 00. 
Comply with requirements for layouts specified in Section 23 80 00. 


1.10 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS 


A. Operation and Maintenance Data: 


1. Refer to Division 01 for complete instructions. 


2. Furnish three complete sets of Operation and Maintenance Manual bound in hardboard binder, 
and one compact disc containing complete Operation and Maintenance Manual in searchable 
PDF format. Provide Table of Contents. Provide index tabs for each piece of equipment in binder 
and disc. Begin compiling data upon approval of submittals. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 7 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


a. Sets shall incorporate the following: 


1) Product Data. 


2) Shop Drawings. 


3) Record Drawings. 


4) Service telephone number, address and contact person for each category of 
equipment or system. 


5) Complete operating and maintenance instructions for each item of plumbing 
equipment and systems. 


6) Copies of guarantees/warrantees for each item of equipment and systems. 


7) Test data and system balancing reports. 


8) Typewritten maintenance instructions for each item of equipment listing lubricants to 
be used, frequency of lubrication, inspections required, adjustment, etc. 


9) Manufacturers' bulletins with parts numbers, instructions, etc., for each item of 
equipment. 


10) Control diagrams and literature. 


11) A complete list or schedule of all scheduled valves giving the number of the valve, 
location and the rooms or area controlled by the valve. Identify each valve with a 
permanently attached metal tag stamped with number to match schedule. Post list in 
frame under plastic on wall in mechanical room or where directed by Architect. 


12) Check test and start reports for each piece of plumbing equipment provided as part 
of the Work. 


13) Commissioning and Preliminary Operation Tests required as part of the Work. 


b. Post service telephone numbers and/or addresses in an appropriate place as designated 
by the Architect. 


B. Record Drawings:  


1. Refer to Division 01, Record Documents, for requirements governing Work specified herein.  


2. Upon completion of the work, deliver to Architect the following: 


a. Originals of drawings showing the Work exactly as installed.  


b. One complete set of reproducible drawings showing the Work exactly as installed.  


c. One compact disc with complete set of drawings in PDF format showing the Work exactly 
as installed. 


d. Provide Contractor’s signature, verifying accuracy of record drawings. 


e. Obtain the signature of the Project Inspector for all record drawings.  


1.11 SUBSTITUTIONS 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 8 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


A. Refer to Division 01 for complete instructions. Requirements given below are in addition to or are 
intended to amplify Division 01 requirements. In the case of conflict between requirements given herein 
and those of Division 01, Division 01 requirements shall apply. 


B. It is the responsibility of Contractor to assume costs incurred because of additional work and or changes 
required to incorporate proposed substitute into the Project. Refer to Division 01 for complete 
instructions. 


C. Substitutions will be interpreted to be all manufacturers other than those specifically listed in the 
Contract Documents by brand name, model or catalog number. 


D. Only one request for substitution will be considered for each item of equipment or material. 


E. Substitution requests shall include the following: 


1. Reason for substitution request. 


2. Complete submittal information as described herein; see “Submittals.” 


3. Coordinated scale layout drawings depicting position of substituted equipment in relation to other 
work, with required clearances for operation, maintenance and replacement. 


4. List optional features required for substituted equipment to meet functional requirements of the 
system as indicated in Contract Documents. 


5. Explanation of impact on connected utilities. 


6. Explanation of impact on structural supports. 


F. Installation of reviewed substitution is the Contractors’ responsibility. Any mechanical, electrical, 
structural, or other changes required for installation of reviewed substituted equipment or material must 
be made by the Contractor without additional cost to the Owner. Review by the Architect of the 
substituted equipment or material, including dimensioned Drawings will not waive these requirements. 


G. Contractor may be required to compensate the Architect for costs related to substituted equipment or 
material. 


1.12 QUALITY ASSURANCE 


A. Manufacturer's Qualifications: Firms regularly engaged in manufacture of plumbing systems products, of 
types, materials, and sizes required, whose products have been in satisfactory use in similar service for 
not less than 5 years. 


B. Contractor's Qualifications: Firm with at least 5 years of successful installation experience on projects 
with plumbing systems work similar to that required for this Project. 


C. California Health and Safety Code Compliance: For products covered under the scope of HSC 116875 
for potable water service. Products for potable water service shall be third-party certified by an approved 
laboratory as complying with California Health and Safety Code Section 116875. 


D. Comply with applicable portions of California Plumbing Code pertaining to selection and installation of 
plumbing materials and products. 


E. All materials and products shall be new and shall match existing. 


1.13 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 9 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


A. Protect equipment and piping delivered to Project site from weather, humidity and temperature 
variations, dirt, dust and other contaminants. 


1.14 FIELD CONDITIONS 


A. Contractor shall visit Project site and examine existing conditions in order to become familiar with 
Project scope. Verify dimensions shown on Drawings at Project site. Bring discrepancies to the attention 
of Architect. Failure to examine Project site shall not constitute basis for claims for additional work 
because of lack of knowledge or location of hidden conditions that affect Project scope. 


B. Information on Drawings relative to existing conditions is approximate. Deviations from Drawings 
necessary during progress of construction to conform to actual conditions shall be approved by the 
Architect and shall be made without additional cost to the Owner. The Contractor shall be held 
responsible for damage caused to existing services. Promptly notify the Architect if services are found 
which are not shown on Drawings. 


1.15 WARRANTY  


A. Refer to Division 01 for warranty requirements, and duration and effective date of Contractor’s Standard 
Guarantee.  


B. Repair or replace defective work, material, or part that appears within the warranty period, including 
damage caused by leaks. 


C. On failure to comply with the warranty requirements within a reasonable length of time after notification 
is given, the Architect/Owner shall have the repairs made at the Contractor's expense. 


PART 2 - PRODUCTS 


2.1 GENERAL 


A. Materials or equipment of the same type shall be of the same brand wherever possible. All materials 
shall be new and in first class condition. 


B. All sizes, capacities, and efficiency ratings shown are minimum, except that gas capacity is maximum 
available. 


C. Refer to Sections 22 10 00 and 23 80 00 for specific system piping materials. 


2.2 MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS 


A. No material installed as part of this Work shall contain asbestos. 


B. Insulation products, including insulation, insulation facings, jackets, adhesives, sealants and coatings 
shall not contain polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) in penta, octa, or deca formulations in 
amounts greater than 0.1 percent (by mass). 


2.3  ELECTRIC MOTORS 


A. General Motor Requirements: Comply with NEMA MG 1 unless otherwise indicated. Comply with IEEE 
841 for severe-duty motors. 


1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. U.S. Motors. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 10 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


b. Century Electric. 


c. General Electric. 


d. Lincoln. 


e. Gould. 


B. Motor Characteristics: Designed for continuous duty at ambient temperature of 40 deg. C and at altitude 
of 3300 feet above sea level. Capacity and torque shall be sufficient to start, accelerate, and operate 
connected loads at designated speeds, at installed altitude and environment, with indicated operating 
sequence, and without exceeding nameplate ratings or considering service factor. 


1. Motors exceeding the nameplate amperage shall be promptly replaced at no cost to the Owner. 
Horsepower shown is minimum and shall be increased as necessary to comply with above 
requirements. Furnish motors with splash-proof or weatherproof housings, where required or 
recommended by the manufacturer. Match the nameplate voltage rating with the electrical service 
supplied. Check Electrical Drawings. Provide a transformer for each motor not wound specifically 
for system voltage. 


C. Polyphase Motors: NEMA MG 1, Design B, medium induction motor, premium efficiency as defined in 
NEMA MG 1. Select motors with service factor of 1.15. Provide motor with random-wound, squirrel cage 
rotor, and permanently lubricated or regreasable, shielded, antifriction ball bearings suitable for radial 
and thrust loading. Temperature rise shall match insulation rating. Provide Class F insulation. 


1. Multispeed motors shall have separate windings for each speed. 


D. Polyphase Motors with Additional Requirements: 


1. Motors Used with Reduced-Voltage and Multispeed Controllers: Match wiring connection 
requirements for controller with required motor leads. Provide terminals in motor terminal box, 
suited to control method. 


2. Motors Used with Variable Frequency Controllers: 


a. Separately Connected Motors: Ratings, characteristics, and features coordinated with and 
approved by controller manufacturer. 


b. Windings: Copper magnet wire with moisture-resistant insulation varnish, designed and 
tested to resist transient spikes, high frequencies, and short time rise pulses produced by 
pulse-width modulated inverters. 


c. Energy- and Premium-Efficient Motors: Class B temperature rise; Class F insulation. 


d. Inverter-Duty Motors: Class F temperature rise; Class H insulation. 


e. Thermal Protection: Comply with NEMA MG 1 requirements for thermally protected motors. 


f. Each motor shall be provided with a shaft grounding device for stray current protection. 


3. Severe-Duty Motors: Comply with IEEE 841, with 1.15 minimum service factor. 


E. Single-Phase Motors:  


1. Select motors with service factor of 1.15. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 11 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


2. Motors larger than 1/20 hp shall be one of the following, to suit starting torque and requirements 
of specific motor application: 


a. Permanent-split capacitor. 


b. Split phase. 


c. Capacitor start, inductor run. 


d. Capacitor start, capacitor run. 


3. Multispeed Motors: Variable-torque, permanent-split-capacitor type. 


4. Bearings: Prelubricated, antifriction ball bearings or sleeve bearings suitable for radial and thrust 
loading. 


5. Motors 1/20 HP and Smaller: Shaded-pole type. 


F. Thermal Protection: Internal protection to automatically open power supply circuit to motor when winding 
temperature exceeds a safe value calibrated to temperature rating of motor insulation. Thermal-
protection device shall automatically reset when motor temperature returns to normal range. 


2.4 MOTOR STARTERS 


A. Square D, Allen Bradley, or equal, in NEMA Type 1 enclosure, unless otherwise specified or required. 
Minimum starter size shall be Size 1. Provide NEMA 3R enclosure where exposed to outdoors. 


B. Provide magnetic motor starters for equipment provided under the Mechanical Work. Starters shall be 
non-combination type. Provide part winding or reduced voltage start motors where shown or as 
hereinafter specified. Minimum size starter shall be Size 1. 


1. All starters shall have the following: 


a. Cover mounted hand-off-automatic switch. Starters installed exposed in occupied spaces 
shall have key operated HOA switch. 


b. Ambient compensated thermal overload. 


c. Fused control transformer (for 120 or 24 volt service). 


d. Pilot lights, integral with the starters. Starters located outdoors shall be in NEMA IIIR 
enclosures. 


2. Where three phase motors are provided for two-speed operation, provide two speed motor 
starters. 


3. Starters for single-phase motors shall have thermal overloads. NEMA I enclosure for starters 
located indoors, NEMA IIIR enclosure for starters located outdoors. 


4. Provide OSHA label indicating the device starts automatically. 


2.5 STRAINERS FOR POTABLE WATER SYSTEMS 


A. Strainers: Full line size, conforming to lead-free requirements of California Health and safety Code 
Section 116875. "Y" pattern, 125 psi SWP minimum, with 304 stainless steel screens. Install all 
strainers with a blow-off hose valve with hose adapter. Strainer shall have gasketed cover with straight 
thread. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 12 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering 
products that may be incorporated into the Work include the following, or equal: 


a. 3 inches and smaller: bronze or brass body, threaded ends, with 20 mesh screen. Watts 
LF777SI, Wilkins SXL. 


b. 4 inches and larger: Cast iron body, flanged ends, 1/16 inch or 1/8 inch screen as normally 
supplied for each size. Watts 77F-DI-125, Mueller 758. 


2.6 STRAINERS FOR NON-POTABLE WATER SYSTEMS 


A. Charles M. Bailey #100A, Armstrong, Muessco, or equal, Fig. 11 "Y" pattern, 125 psi WP minimum, with 
monel screens with 20 square mesh for 2 inches and smaller and 3/64 inch perforations for 2-1/2 inches 
and larger. Install all strainers with a blow-off hose valve with hose adapter. Strainer shall have 
gasketed cover with straight thread.  


2.7 VALVE BOXES 


A. General: 


1. Where several valves or other equipment are grouped together, provide larger boxes of 
rectangular “vault” type adequately sized for condition and similar in construction to those 
specified above. 


2. Provide valve box extensions as required to set bottom of valve box tight up to top of piping in 
which valve is installed. 


3. Provide a tee handle wrench for each size, Alhambra Foundry Co. #A-3008, or equal. 


B. Valve Boxes in Traffic Areas: Provide Christy No. G5 traffic valve box, Brooks, or equal, 10-3/8 inches 
inside diameter with extensions to suit conditions, with cast iron or steel locking cover. Provide Owner 
with set of special wrenches or tools as required for operation of valves. 


C. Valve Boxes in Non-Traffic Areas: Provide Christy No. F22, Brooks, or equal, 8 inches inside diameter 
by 30 inches long, with cast iron or steel locking cover. Provide Owner with set of special wrenches or 
tools as required for operation of valves. Cut bottom of plastic body for operation of valves. 


D. Valve Box (Rectangular Vault Type): Precast concrete or cast iron with cast iron or steel locking type 
covers lettered to suit service – Brooks No. 3-TL, Christy No. B3, Fraser No. 3, Alhambra A-3004 or A-
3005, Alhambra E-2202, or E-2702, or equal, with extension to suit conditions. 


2.8 GAUGES 


A. Marsh "Series J", U.S. Gage, Danton 800, or equal, with bronze bushed movement and front 
recalibration. Dials shall be white with black numerals, 3-1/2 inch dial face. Normal reading shall be at 
mid-scale. Provide a needle valve on each gauge connection. Supply a gauge piped with branch 
isolation valves across the inlet and outlet of each pump and where shown on the Drawings.  


B. Provide Pete's Plug II, Sisco P/T, or equal, test plug with Nordel core {and gasketed cap}, on inlet and 
outlet of each coil, boiler, condenser, chiller and heat exchanger and where shown on Drawings. 


2.9 THERMOMETERS 


A. Marsh, Taylor, Palmer, or equal, 5 inch diameter bimetal dial, adjustable from face, with adjustable 
positioner, located to be easily read from normal personnel approach. Normal reading shall be at mid-
scale.  







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 13 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. Provide extension for insulation. 


2. Provide thermometers with steel bulb chambers and brass separable sockets. 


B. Provide Pete's Plug II, Sisco P/T, or equal, test plug with Nordel core, on inlet and outlet of each coil, 
boiler, and heat exchanger and provide two digital electronic test thermometers for each range of fluid 
temperature and where shown on Drawings. 


2.10 ACCESS DOORS 


A. Where floors, walls, or ceilings must be penetrated for access to mechanical equipment, provide access 
doors, 14 inch by 14 inch minimum size in usable opening. Where entrance of a serviceman may be 
required, provide 20 inch by 30 inch minimum usable opening. Locate access doors/panels for non-
obstructed and easy reach. 


1. All access doors less than 7'-0" above floors and exposed to public access shall have keyed 
locks.  


B. Access doors shall match those supplied in Division 08 in all respects, except as noted herein. 


C. Provide stainless steel access doors for use in toilet rooms, shower rooms, kitchens and other damp 
areas. Provide steel access doors with prime coat of baked-on paint for all other areas.  


D. Do not locate access doors in highly visible public areas such as lobbies, waiting areas, and primary 
entrance areas. Coordinate with the Architect when access is required in these areas. 


E. Where specific information or details relating to access panels different from the above is shown or 
given on the Drawings or other Divisions of work, then that information shall supersede this 
specification. 


F. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers offering products 
which may be incorporated into the Work include Milcor, Karp, Nystrom, or Cesco, equal to the 
following: 


1. Milcor 


a. Style K (plaster). 


b. Style DW (gypsum board). 


c. Style M (Masonry). 


d. Style "Fire Rated” where required. 


2.11 THERMAL AND SEISMIC EXPANSION LOOPS 


A. Manufactured assembly consisting of inlet and outlet elbow fittings, two sections of flexible metal hose 
and braid, and 180-degree return bend. Return bend section shall have support lug and plugged FPT 
drain. Flexible hose shall consist of corrugated metal inner hose and braided metal outer sheath. 
Assemblies shall be constructed from materials compatible with the fluid or gas being conveyed and 
shall be suitable for the system operating pressure and temperature. Provide assembly selected for 4 
inches of movement. 


B. Provide CSA certified expansion loops for use in natural or propane gas piping systems. 


C. Where used in potable water systems, provide expansion loops of certified lead-free construction. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 14 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


D. Basis-of-Design Product: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide Metraflex Inc., Metraloop 
series, or comparable product by one of the following, or equal: 


1. Flexicraft Industries. 


2.12 FLEXIBLE JOINTS 


A. Where indicated on Drawings, provide Metraflex Metrasphere, Style R, Mason Industries, or equal, 
Spherical Expansion Joints. Provide control units at each expansion joint, arranged to limit both 
expansion and compression. 


B. Flexible joints at entry points to building shall be Barco Ductile iron, Advanced Thermal Systems, or 
equal, threaded style with stainless ball and mineral filled seal. 


2.13 PIPE GUIDES 


A. Where flexible connections are indicated on Drawings, provide Metraflex style IV, B-Line, or equal, pipe 
guides in locations recommended by manufacturer. Maximum spacing from flexible connection to first 
pipe guide is 4 pipe diameters, and maximum spacing from second pipe guide is 14 pipe diameters. 


2.14 EQUIPMENT IDENTIFICATION  


A. Identify each piece of equipment with a permanently attached engraved bakelite plate, 1/2 inch high 
white letters on black background. 


2.15 PIPE IDENTIFICATION  


A. Identify each piping system and indicate the direction of flow by means of Seton, Inc., Marking Services 
Inc., Reef Industries, Inc., or equal, pre-tensioned, coiled semi-rigid plastic pipe labels formed to 
circumference of pipe, requiring no fasteners or adhesive for attachment to pipe. 


B. The legends and flow arrows shall conform to ASME A13.1. 


2.16 INSULATION WORK 


A. General: 


1. For insulating domestic hot water pumps, refer to Section 225000, Plumbing Equipment, 


2. Insulation products, including insulation, insulation facings, jackets, adhesives, sealants and 
coatings shall not contain polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) in penta, octa, or deca 
formulations in amounts greater than 0.1 percent (by mass). 


3. Adhesives and sealants shall comply with testing and product requirements of South Coast Air 
Quality Management District, Rule 1168. 


4. The term "piping" used herein includes pipe, valves, strainers and fittings. 


5. Apply insulating cement to fittings, valves and strainers and trowel smooth to the thickness of 
adjacent covering. Cover with jacket to match piping. Extend covering on valves up to the bonnet. 
Leave strainer cleanout plugs accessible. 


6. Provide pre-formed PVC valve and fitting covers.  


7. Provide Calcium Silicate rigid insulation and sheet metal sleeve, 18 inch minimum length at each 
pipe hanger. Seal ends of insulation to make vapor tight with jacket. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 15 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


8. Test insulation, jackets and lap-seal adhesives as a composite product and confirm flame spread 
of not more than 25 and a smoke developed rating of not more than 50 when tested in 
accordance with UL723 or ASTM E84. 


9. Clean thoroughly, test and have approved, all piping and equipment before installing insulation 
and/or covering. 


10. Repair all damage to existing pipe and equipment insulation whether or not caused during the 
work of this contract, to match existing adjacent insulation for thickness and finish, but conforming 
to flame spread and smoke ratings specified above. 


B. Insulation of Piping:  


1. Insulate domestic hot and tempered water with minimum 3-1/2 pounds per cubic foot density 
fiberglass with ASJ-SSL jacket. Insulation thickness shall be the following: 


a. Pipe 3/4 inches and smaller: 1 inch thick. 


b. Pipe 1 inch through 1-1/2 inches: 1-1/2 inches thick. 


c. Pipe 2 inches and larger: 2 inches thick. 


2. Insulate domestic hot water piping under slab on grade with Owens Corning Foamglas, 
preformed pipe insulation, or equal. Inorganic, incombustible, foamed or cellulated glass with 
annealed, rigid, hermetically sealed cells. Cover pipe and fittings with insulation manufacturer’s 
recommended jacketing. Insulation thickness shall be the following:  


a. Pipe 3/4 inches and smaller: 2 inches thick. 


b. Pipe 1 inch and larger: 3 inches thick. 


3. Insulate domestic cold water piping located within building, outside of insulation envelope in 
outside walls, vented attic spaces, and unheated spaces, including equipment rooms and below 
raised floor with 1 inch thick molded fiberglass, minimum 3-1/2 pound per cubic foot density, with 
ASJ-SSL jacket. 


4. Insulate domestic cold water piping located outside building exposed to weather with minimum 
3-1/2 pounds per cubic foot density fiberglass with ASJ-SSL jacket. Insulation thickness for all 
pipe sizes: 2 inches. 


5. Insulate roof drain and overflow drain bodies, horizontal sections of rainwater leader piping and 
overflow piping, and condensate drains within the building envelope with 1 inch thick fiberglass, 
minimum 3-1/2 pound per cubic foot density, with ASJ-SSL jacket. 


6.  Insulate condensate drain piping in freezer with 3/4 inch thick Therma-Cel, Armaflex, or equal. 
Seal water tight per manufacturer's directions. Install heat tape prior to insulation of piping, in 
accordance with manufacturer's directions. 


7. Insulate electrically heat-traced grease waste piping under slab on grade with Owens Corning 
Foamglas, preformed pipe insulation, or equal. Inorganic, incombustible, foamed or cellulated 
glass with annealed, rigid, hermetically sealed cells. Cover pipe and fittings with insulation 
manufacturer’s recommended jacketing. Insulation thickness for all pipe sizes: 3 inches. 


8. Exposed insulated piping within the building shall have a Zeston 2000 25/50, Proto Lo-Smoke, or 
equal, PVC jacket and fitting cover installed over the insulation, applied per manufacturer's 
instructions. Insulation shall be vapor tight before applying PVC jacket and fitting covers. Verify 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 16 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


suitability with manufacturer of insulation. Insulation with pre-applied polymer jacket may be 
substituted at Contractor’s option. 


9.  Where insulated piping is exposed to the weather apply aluminum jacket secured with 1/2 inch 
stainless-steel bands on 12 inch centers. Insulation shall be vapor tight before applying metal 
jacket, and aluminum fitting covers. Install jacketing with 2-inch overlap at longitudinal seams and 
end joints. Overlap longitudinal seams arranged to shed water. Seal end joints with weatherproof 
sealant recommended by insulation manufacturer. Cover fittings with glass cloth, two coats of 
Foster Sealfas 30-36, and factory-fabricated aluminum fitting covers, of same material, finish, and 
thickness as jacket. Insulation shall be vapor tight before applying metal jacket and fitting covers. 


a. Fitting covers: 


1) Preformed 2-piece or gore, 45- and 90-degree, short- and long-radius elbows. 


2) Tee covers. 


3) Flange and union covers. 


4) End caps. 


5) Beveled collars. 


6) Valve covers. 


7) Field fabricate fitting covers only if factory-fabricated fitting covers are not available. 


b. Jacket thickness: 


1) Pipes 10 inches diameter and smaller: Minimum .016 inch thick jacket with smooth 
finish. 


2) Pipes 12 inches diameter and larger: Minimum .020 inch thick jacket with smooth 
finish. 


PART 3 - EXECUTION 


3.1 EXISTING MATERIALS  


A. Remove existing equipment, piping, wiring, construction, etc., which interferes with Work of this 
Contract. Promptly return to service upon completion of work in the area. Replace items damaged by 
Contractor with new material to match existing. 


B. Removed materials which will not be re-installed and which are not claimed by Owner shall become 
property of Contractor and shall be removed from Project site. Consult Owner before removing any 
material from Project site. Carefully remove materials claimed by Owner to prevent damage and deliver 
to Owner-designated storage location. 


C. Existing piping and wiring not reused and are concealed in building construction may be abandoned in 
place and all ends shall be capped or plugged. Remove unused piping and wiring exposed in 
Equipment Rooms or occupied spaces. Material shall be removed from Project premises. Disconnect 
power, water, gas, pump or any other active energy source from piping or electrical service prior to 
abandoning in place. 


D. Existing piping, ductwork, and equipment modified or altered as part of this Work shall comply with the 
most recent applicable code requirements. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 17 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3.2 FRAMING, CUTTING AND PATCHING  


A. Special framing, recesses, chases and backing for Work of this Section, unless otherwise specified, are 
covered under other Specification Sections. 


B. Contractor is responsible for placement of pipe sleeves, hangers, inserts, supports, and location of 
openings for the Work. 


C. Cutting, patching, and repairing of existing construction to permit installation of equipment, and 
materials is the responsibility of Contractor. Repair or replace damage to existing work with skilled 
mechanics for each trade. 


D. Cut existing concrete construction with a concrete saw. Do not utilize pneumatic devices. 


E. Core openings through existing construction for passage of new piping and conduits. Cut holes of 
minimum diameter to suit size of pipe and associated insulation installed. Coordinate with building 
structure, and obtain Structural Engineer's approval prior to coring through existing construction. 


3.3 PLUMBING DEMOLITION 


A. Refer to Division 01 Sections “Cutting and Patching” and “Selective Demolition” for general demolition 
requirements and procedures. 


B. Disconnect, dismantle and remove mechanical systems, equipment, and components indicated to be 
removed. Coordinate with all other trades. 


1. Piping to Be Removed: Remove portion of piping indicated to be removed and cap or plug 
remaining piping with same or compatible piping material. 


2. Piping to Be Abandoned in Place: Drain piping and cap or plug piping to remain with same or 
compatible piping material. Refrigerant system must be evacuated per EPA requirements. 


3. Equipment to Be Removed: Drain down and cap remaining services and remove equipment. 


4. Equipment to Be Removed and Reinstalled: Disconnect and cap services and remove, clean, and 
store equipment; when appropriate, reinstall, reconnect, and make equipment operational. 


5. Equipment to Be Removed and Salvaged: Disconnect and cap services and remove equipment 
and deliver to Owner. 


C. If pipe, insulation, or equipment to remain is damaged in appearance or is unserviceable, remove 
damaged or unserviceable portions and replace with new products of equal capacity and quality. 


3.4 ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS  


A. Provide adequate working space around electrical equipment in compliance with the California Electrical 
Code. Coordinate the Mechanical Work with the Electrical Work to comply. 


B. Furnish necessary control diagrams and instructions for the controls. Before permitting operation of any 
equipment which is furnished, installed, or modified under this Section, review all associated electrical 
work, including overload protection devices, and assume complete responsibility for the correctness of 
the electrical connections and protective devices. Motors and control equipment shall conform to the 
Standards of the National Electrical Manufacturers' Association. All equipment and connections 
exposed to the weather shall be NEMA IIIR with factory-wired strip heaters in each starter enclosure 
and temperature control panel where required to inhibit condensation. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 18 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


C. All line voltage and low voltage wiring and conduit associated with the Temperature Control System are 
included in this Section. Wiring and conduit shall comply with Division 26. 


3.5 PIPING SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS 


A. Drawing plans, schematic and diagrams indicate general location and arrangement of piping systems. 
Indicated locations and arrangements were used to size pipe and calculate friction loss, expansion, 
pump sizing, and other design considerations. Install piping as indicated unless deviations to layout are 
approved on coordination drawings. 


3.6 PRIMING AND PAINTING  


A. Perform priming and painting on the equipment and materials as specified herein. 


B. See Division 09 Painting Section(s) for detailed requirements. 


C. Priming and Painting: 


1. Exposed ferrous metals, including piping, which are not galvanized or factory-finished shall be 
primed and painted.  


a. Black Steel Piping: 


1) Primer: One coat gray Sherwin-Williams Pro Industrial Pro-Cryl Universal Primer, 
comparable products by Rust-Oleum, Kelly Moore, or equal. 


2) Topcoat: Two coats gray Sherwin-Williams Pro Industrial Waterbased Alkyd 
Urethane Enamel, comparable products by Rust-Oleum, Kelly Moore, or equal. 


2. Metal surfaces of items to be jacketed or insulated except piping shall be given two coats of 
primer unless furnished with equivalent factory finish. Items to be primed shall be properly 
cleaned by effective means free of rust, dirt, scale, grease and other deleterious matter and then 
primed with the best available grade of zinc rich primer. After erection or installation, all primed 
surfaces shall be properly cleaned of any foreign or deleterious matter that might impair proper 
bonding of subsequent paint coatings. Any abrasion or other damage to the shop or field prime 
coat shall be properly repaired and touched up with the same material used for the original 
priming. 


3. Where equipment is provided with nameplate data, the nameplate shall be masked off prior to 
painting. When painting is completed, remove masking material. 


3.7 EXCAVATING  


A. Perform all excavating required for work of this Section. Provide the services of a pipe/cable locating 
service prior to excavating activities to determine location of existing utilities. 


B. Unless shown otherwise, provide a minimum of 2'-6" cover above top of pipe to finished grade for all 
service piping, unless otherwise noted. Trim trench bottom by hand or provide a 4 inch deep minimum 
bed of sand to provide a uniform grade and firm support throughout entire length of pipe. For all PVC 
pipe and for PE gas pipe, bed the pipe in 4 inch sand bed. Pipe bedding materials should be clean 
crushed rock, gravel or sand of which 100 percent will pass a 1 inch sieve. For pipes that are larger than 
10 inches in diameter, at least 95 percent should pass a 3/4 inch sieve, and for pipes 10 inches in 
diameter or smaller, 100 percent should pass a 1/2 inch sieve. All other materials should have a 
minimum sand equivalent of 50. Only a small proportion of the native soils will meet these requirements 
without extensive processing; therefore, importation of pipe bedding materials should be anticipated. 
Pipe bedding materials shall be compacted in lifts not exceeding 6 inches in compacted thickness. Each 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 19 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


lift shall be compacted to not less than 90 percent relative compaction at or above the optimum moisture 
content, in accordance with ASTM Specification D2940, except that bedding materials graded such that 
100 percent of the material will pass a No. 200 sieve shall be compacted in 6 inch lifts using a single 
pass of a flat-plate, vibratory compactor or vibratory drum. Pipe bedding materials should extend at least 
to the spring line. 


C. Maintain all warning signs, barricades, flares, and red lanterns as required. 


D. For all trenches 5 feet or more in depth, submit copy of permit detailed drawings showing shoring, 
bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground 
during the excavation of such trenches. Obtain a permit from the Division of Industrial Safety prior to 
beginning excavations. A copy of the permit shall be available at the site at all times.  


3.8 BACKFILLING 


A. Backfill shall comply with applicable provisions of Division 31 of these Specifications.  


B. Except under existing or proposed paved areas, walks, roads, or similar surfaces, backfill for other types 
of pipe shall be made using suitable excavated material or other approved material. Place backfill in 8 
inch layers, measured before compaction, and compact with impact hammer to at least 90 percent 
relative compaction per ASTM D2940. 


1. Backfill plastic pipe and insulated pipe with sand for a minimum distance of 12 inches above the 
top of the pipe. Compact using mechanical tamping equipment. 


C. Entire backfill for excavations under existing or proposed pavements, walks, roads, or similar surfaces, 
under new slabs on grade, shall be made with clean sand compacted with mechanical tamping 
equipment vibrator to at least 90 percent relative compaction per ASTM D2940. Remove excess earth. 
Increase the minimum compaction within the uppermost two feet of backfill to 95 percent. 


D. Replace or repair to its original condition all sod, concrete, asphalt paving, or other materials disturbed 
by the trenching operation. Repair within the guarantee period as required. 


3.9 PIPING SYSTEMS INSTALLATION  


A. At time of final connection, and prior to opening valve to allow pressurization of water and gas piping 
from existing systems, on site or off site, perform a pressure test to indicate static pressure of existing 
systems. If pressure on water piping is greater than 80 psi, or gas pressure is not as indicated on 
Contract Documents, inform Architect immediately. Do not allow piping systems to be pressurized 
without written consent of the Architect. 


B. General: 


1. All piping shall be concealed unless shown or otherwise directed. Allow sufficient space for ceiling 
panel removal. 


2. Installation of piping shall be made with appropriate fittings. Bending of piping will not be 
accepted. 


3. Install piping to permit application of insulation and to allow valve servicing. 


4. Where piping or conduit is left exposed within a room, the same shall be run true to plumb, 
horizontal, or intended planes. Where possible, uniform margins are to be maintained between 
parallel lines and/or adjacent wall, floor, or ceiling surfaces. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 20 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


5. Horizontal runs of pipes and/or electrical conduit suspended from ceilings shall provide for a 
maximum headroom clearance. The clearance shall not be less than 6'-6" without written 
approval from the Architect. 


6. Close ends of pipe immediately after installation. Leave closure in place until removal is 
necessary for completion of installation. 


7. Each piping system shall be thoroughly flushed and proved clean before connection to 
equipment. 


8. Pipe the discharge of each relief valve, air vent, backflow preventer, and similar device to floor 
sink or drain. 


9. Install exposed polished or enameled connections with special care showing no tool marks or 
threads at fittings. 


10. Install horizontal valves with valve stem above horizontal. 


11. Use reducing fittings; bushings shall not be allowed. Use eccentric reducing fittings wherever 
necessary to provide free drainage of lines and passage of air. 


12. Verify final equipment locations for roughing-in. 


13. Service Markers: Mark the location of each plugged or capped pipe with a 4 inch round by 30 inch 
long concrete marker, set flush with finish grade. Provide 2-1/2 inch diameter engraved brass 
plate as part of monument marker. 


14. Furnish and install anchors or thrust blocks on PVC water lines in the ground, at all changes in 
direction of piping, and at all connections or branches from mains 1-1/2 inch and larger. Form 
anchors or thrust blocks by pouring concrete between pipe and trench wall. Thrust blocks shall be 
of adequate size and so placed as to take thrusts created by maximum internal water pressure. 
Sizing and placement shall be per manufacturer's recommendations, CPC, and IAPMO 
installation standards. Anchor piping to building construction. 


15. Sanitary Sewer and Storm Drain: Grade piping inside building uniformly 1/4 inch per foot if 
possible but not less than 1/8 inch per foot. Run piping as straight as possible. Make piping 
connections between building piping and outside service pipe with cast iron reducers or 
increasers. Slope sewers uniformly between given elevations where invert elevations are shown. 


16. Where piping is installed in walls within one inch of the face of stud, provide a 16 gauge sheet 
metal shield plate on the face of the stud. The shield plate shall extend a minimum of 1-1/2 inches 
beyond the outside diameter of the pipe. 


C. Expansion Loops: 


1. Install expansion loops where piping crosses building expansion or seismic joints, between 
buildings, between buildings and canopies, and as indicated on Drawings. 


2. Install expansion loops of sizes matching sizes of connected piping. 


3. Install grooved-joint expansion joints to grooved-end steel piping. 


4. Materials of construction and end fitting type shall be consistent with pipe material and type of 
gas or liquid conveyed by the piping system in which expansion loop is installed. 


D. Sleeves: 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 21 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. Install Adjus-to-Crete, Pipeline Seal and Insulator, or equal, pipe sleeves of sufficient size to allow 
for free motion of pipe, 24 gauge galvanized steel. The space between pipe and sleeves through 
floor slabs on ground, through outside walls above or below grade, through roof, and other 
locations as directed shall be caulked with oakum and mastic and made watertight. The space 
between pipe and sleeve and between sleeve and slab or wall shall be sealed watertight. 


2. At Contractor's option, Link-Seal, Metraflex Metraseal, or equal, casing seals may be used in lieu 
of caulking. Wrap pipes through slabs on grade with 1 inch thick fiberglass insulation to 
completely isolate the pipe from the concrete.  


E. Floor, Wall, and Ceiling Plates: 


1. Fit all pipes with or without insulation passing through walls, floors, or ceilings, and all hanger 
rods penetrating finished ceilings with chrome-plated or stainless escutcheon plates. 


F. Firestopping: 


1. Pack the annular space between the pipe sleeves and the pipe through all floors and walls with 
UL listed fire stop, and sealed at the ends. All pipe penetrations shall be UL listed, Hilti, 3M Pro-
Set, or equal.  


a. Install fire caulking behind mechanical services installed within fire rated walls, to maintain 
continuous rating of wall construction.  


2. Provide SpecSeal Systems UL fire rated sleeve/coupling penetrators for each pipe penetration or 
fixture opening passing through floors, walls, partitions or floor/ceiling assemblies. All Penetrators 
shall comply with UL Fire Resistance Directory (Latest Edition), and in accordance with Chapter 
7, CBC requirements.  


3. Sleeve penetrators shall have a built in anchor ring for waterproofing and anchoring into concrete 
pours or use the special fit cored hole penetrator for cored holes. 


4. Copper and steel piping shall have SpecSeal plugs on both sides of the penetrator to reduce 
noise and to provide waterproofing. 


5. All above Systems to be installed in strict accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 


6. Alternate firestopping systems are acceptable if approved equal. However, any deviation from the 
above specification requires the Contractor to be responsible for determining the suitability of the 
proposed products and their intended use, and the Contractor shall assume all risks and liabilities 
whatsoever in connection therewith.  


G. Flashing: 


1. Flashing for penetrations of metal or membrane roof for mechanical items such as flues and 
pipes shall be coordinated with the roofing manufacturer and roofing installer for the specific 
roofing type. The work of this section shall include furnishing, layout, sizing, and coordination of 
penetrations required for the mechanical work.  


a. Furnish and install flashing and counterflashing in strict conformance with the requirements 
of the roofing manufacturer. Submit shop drawing details for review prior to installation. 


b. Furnish and install counterflashing above each flashing required. Provide Stoneman, or 
equal, vandalproof top and flashing combination. Provide vandalproof top for each 
plumbing vent through roof. Elmdor/Stoneman Model 1540, 1550, 1570, or equal. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 22 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


2. For all other types of roofing system, furnish and install around each pipe, where it passes 
through roof, a flashing and counterflashing. All flashing shall be made of four pound seamless 
sheet lead with 6 inch minimum skirt and steel reinforced boot. Counterflashing shall be cast iron. 
For vents, provide vandalproof top and flashing combination. Elmdor/Stoneman Model 1100-4, 
1100-5, 1100-7, or equal. 


H. Hangers and Supports: 


1. General: Support equipment and piping so that it is firmly held in place by approved iron hangers 
and supports and special hangers. Hanger and support components shall support weight of 
equipment and pipe, fluid, and pipe insulation based on spacing between supports with minimum 
factor of safety of five based on ultimate strength of material used. Do not exceed manufacturer's 
load rating. Pipe attachments or hangers, of same size as pipe or tubing on which used, or 
nearest available. Rigidly fasten hose faucets, fixture stops, compressed air outlets, and similar 
items to the building construction. The Architect shall approve hanger material before installation. 
Do not support piping with plumbers' tape, wire rope, wood, or other makeshift devices. Where 
building structural members do not match piping support spacing, provide “bridging” support 
members firmly attached to building structural members in a fashion approved by the structural 
engineer. 


a. Materials, design, and type numbers per Manufacturers' Standardization Society (MSS), 
Standard Practice (SP)-58. 


1) Provide copper-plated or felt-lined hangers for use on copper tubing. 


2. Hanger components shall be provided by one manufacturer: B-Line, Grinnell, Unistrut, Badger, or 
equal. 


3. Riser clamps: B-line model B3373, or equal. 


4. Pipe Hanger and Support Placement and Spacing:  


a. Vertical piping support spacing: Provide riser clamps for piping, above each floor, in 
contact with the floor. Provide support at joints, branches, and horizontal offsets. Provide 
additional support for vertical piping, spaced at or within the following maximum limits:  


Pipe 
Diameter 


Steel 
Threaded or 


Welded 
(Note 3) 


Steel  
Gas 


Copper 
Brazed or  
Soldered 
(Note 3) 


CPVC & PVC 
(Note 2) 


1/2 - 1” 12 ft. 6 ft. Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft. 


Base and 
Each Floor 


(Note 1) 


1-1/4 - 2” 12 ft. Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft. 


Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft.. 


Base and 
Each Floor 


(Note 1) 


2-1/2 - 3” 12 ft. Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft. 


Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft. 


Base and 
Each Floor 


(Note 1) 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 23 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


Over 4” 12 ft. Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft. 


Each Floor, 
Not to Ex-
ceed 10 ft. 


Base and 
Each Floor 


(Note 1) 


1) Note 1: Provide mid-story guides. 


2) Note 2: For PVC piping, provide for expansion every 30 feet per IAPMO installation 
standard. For CPVC piping, provide for expansion per IAPMO installation standard. 


3) Note 3: Spacing of hangers and supports for piping assembled with mechanical 
joints shall be in accordance with standards acceptable to authorities having 
jurisdiction. 


b. Vertical cast iron piping support spacing: Base and each floor not to exceed 15 feet. 


c. Horizontal piping, hanger and support spacing: Locate hangers and supports at each 
change of direction, within one foot of elbow, and spaced at or within following maximum 
limits:  


Pipe  
Diameter 


Steel 
Threaded or 


Welded 
(Note 2) 


Steel  
Gas 


Copper 
Brazed or  
Soldered 


(Notes 2, 3) 


CPVC & PVC 
(Note 1) 


1/2 - 1" 6 ft. 6 ft. 5 ft. 3 ft. 


1-1/4 - 2" 7 ft. 10 ft. 6 ft. 4 ft. 


2-1/2 - 3" 10 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft. 4 ft. 


Over 4" 10 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft.  4 ft. 


1) Note 1: For PVC piping, provide for expansion every 30 feet per IAPMO installation 
standard. For CPVC piping, provide for expansion per IAPMO installation standard. 


2) Note 2: Spacing of hangers and supports for piping assembled with mechanical 
joints shall be in accordance with standards acceptable to authorities having 
jurisdiction.  


3) Note 3: Includes all refrigerant piping, including vapor and hot gas pipes. 


d. Horizontal cast iron piping support spacing: 


1) Support piping at every other joint for piping length of less than 4 feet. 


2) For piping longer than 4 feet, provide support on each side of the coupling, within 18 
inches of each joint. 


3) Hanger shall not be installed on the coupling. 


4) Provide support at each horizontal branch connection. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 24 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


5) Provide sway brace at 40 foot maximum spacing for suspended pipe with no-hub 
joints, except where a lesser spacing is required by the seismic design criteria used 
in delegated design for seismic systems. Refer to Article, Submittals.  


6) Provide a brace on each side of a change in direction of 90 degrees or more. 


5. Suspended Piping: 


a. Individually suspended piping: B-Line B3690 J-Hanger or B3100 Clevis, complete with 
threaded rod, or equal. All hangers on supply and return piping handling heating hot water 
or steam shall have a swing connector at point of support. 


Pipe Size Rod Size Diameter 


2" and Smaller 3/8" 


2-1/2" to 3-1/2" 1/2" 


4" to 5" 5/8" 


6" 3/4" 


b. Trapeze Suspension: B-Line 1-5/8 inch width channel in accordance with manufacturer's 
published load ratings. No deflection to exceed 1/180 of a span. 


c. Trapeze Supporting Rods: Shall have a safety factor of five; securely anchor to building 
structure. 


d. Pipe Clamps and Straps: B-Line B2000, B2400; isolate copper pipe with two thicknesses of 
2 inches wide 10-mil polyvinyl tape. Where used for seismic support systems, provide B-
Line B2400 series pipe straps. 


e. Concrete Inserts: B-line B22-I continuous insert or B2500 spot insert. Do not use actuated 
fasteners for support of overhead piping unless approved by Architect. 


f. Steel Connectors: Beam clamps with retainers. 


6. Support to Structure:  


a. Wood Structure: Provide and install wood blocking as required to suit structure. Provide lag 
screws or through bolts with length to suit requirements, and with size (diameter) to match 
the size of hanger rods required. 


1) Do not install Lag screws in tension without written review and acceptance by 
Structural Engineer. 


Side Beam Angle Clip B-Line B3062---MSS Type 34 


Side Beam Angle Clip B-Line B3060 


Ceiling Flange B-Line B3199 


2) Blocking for support of piping shall be not less than 2 inch thick for piping up to 2 
inch size. Provide 3 inch blocking for piping up through 5 inch size, and 4 inch 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 25 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


blocking for larger piping. Provide support for blocking in accordance with Structural 
Engineers requirements. 


3) Where lag screws are used, length of screw shall be 1/2 inch less than the wood 
blocking. Pre-drill starter holes for each lag screw. 


b. Steel Structure: Provide and install additional steel bracing as required to suit structure. 
Provide through bolts with length to suit requirements of the structural components. 
Burning or welding on any structural member may only be done if approved by the 
Architect. 


7. Rubber Neoprene Pipe Isolators: 


a. Pipe isolators shall comprise an internal rubber or neoprene material that isolates pipe 
from hanger and structure. Install at all piping located in acoustical walls. Refer to 
Architectural Drawings for location of acoustical walls. 


b. Isolation material shall be either a rubber or neoprene material that prevents contact 
between the pipe and the structure. The rubber shall have between a 45 to 55 durometer 
rating and a minimum thickness of 1/2 inch. 


c. Acceptable Suppliers: 


1) Vertical runs: Acousto-Plumb or equal. 


2) Horizontal runs: B-Line, Vibraclamp; Acousto-Plumb or equal. 


8. Provide support for piping through roof, arranged to anchor piping solidly in place at the roof 
penetration. 


9. Provide rigid insulation and a 12 inch long, 18 gauge galvanized sheet iron shield between the 
covering and the hanger whenever hangers are installed on the outside of the pipe covering. 


10. Insulate copper tubing from ferrous materials and hangers with two thicknesses of 3 inch wide, 10 
mil polyvinyl tape wrapped around pipe. 


11. Provide a support or hanger close to each change of direction of pipe either horizontal or vertical 
and as near as possible to concentrated loads. 


12. Suspend rods from concrete inserts with removable nuts where suspended from concrete decks. 
Power actuated inserts will not be allowed. 


3.10 UNION AND FLANGE INSTALLATION  


A. Install Watts, Epco, Nibco, or equal, dielectric unions or flanges at points of connection between copper 
or brass piping or material and steel or cast iron pipe or material except in drain, waste, vent, or 
rainwater piping. Bushings or couplings shall not be used. Dielectric unions installed in potable water 
systems shall conform to the lead-free requirements of the California Health and Safety Code Section 
116875. 


B. Install unions in piping NPS 2” and smaller, and flanges in piping NPS 2-1/2” and larger whether shown 
or not at each connection to all equipment and tanks, and at all connections to all automatic valves, 
such as temperature control valves. Unions installed in potable water systems shall conform to the lead-
free requirements of the California Health and Safety Code Section 116875. 


C. Locate the unions for easy removal of the equipment, tank, or valve. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 26 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3.11 ACCESS DOOR INSTALLATION  


A. Furnish and install access doors wherever required whether shown or not for easy maintenance of 
mechanical systems; for example, at concealed valves, strainers, traps, cleanouts, dampers, motors, 
controls, operating equipment, etc. Access doors shall provide for complete removal and replacement of 
equipment. 


3.12 CONCRETE WORK  


A. Concrete work required for work of this Section shall be included under another section of the 
Specification, unless otherwise noted, including poured-in-place concrete work for installing precast 
manholes, catch basins, etc., and shall include reinforced concrete bases for pumps, tanks, 
compressors, fan units, boilers, unless the work is specifically indicated on the Drawings to be furnished 
under this Section. 


B. Thrust blocks, underground anchors, and pads for cleanouts, valve access boxes and washer boxes are 
included under this Section of the Specification. Concrete shall be 3000 psi test minimum. Refer to 
Division 03 for concrete types. 


3.13 PIPE PROTECTION  


A. Wrap bare galvanized and black steel pipe buried in the ground and to 6" above grade, including piping 
in conduit, with one of the following, or equal: 


1. Polyethylene Coating: Pressure sensitive polyethylene coating, "X-Tru-Coat" as manufactured by 
Pipe Line Service Corporation or "Green Line" wrap as manufactured by Roystron Products, or 
equal. 


a. Field Joints and Fittings: Protecto Wrap #1170 tape as manufactured by Pipe Line Service 
Corporation, or Primer #200 tape by Roystron Products, or equal. Installation shall be as 
per manufacturer's recommendation and instructions. 


2. Tape Wrap: Pressure-sensitive polyvinyl chloride tape, "Transtex #V-l0 or V-20", "Scotchwrap 
50", Slipknot l00, PASCO Specialty & Mfg., Inc., or equal, with continuous identification. Tape 
shall be a minimum of 20 mils thick for fittings and irregular surfaces, two wraps, 50 percent 
overlap, 40 mils total thickness. Tape shall be laminated with a suitable adhesive; widths as 
recommended by the manufacturer for the pipe size. Wrap straight lengths of piping with an 
approved wrapping machine. 


B. Field Joints: Valves and Fittings: double wrap polyvinyl chloride tape as above. Provide at least two 
thicknesses of tape over the joint and extend a minimum of 4 inches over adjacent pipe covering. Build 
up with primer to match adjacent covering thickness. Width of tape of fittings shall not exceed 3 inches. 
Tape shall adhere tightly to all surfaces of the fittings without air pockets. 


C. Testing: Test completed wrap of piping, including all epoxy painted piping with Tinker and Rasor Co. 
test machine (San Gabriel, CA - 818-287-5259), Pipeline Inspection Company (Houston, TX - 713-681-
5837), or equal. 


D. Cleaning: Clean all piping thoroughly before wrapping. 


1. Inspection: Damaged or defective wraps shall be repaired as directed. No wrapped pipe shall be 
covered until approved by Architect. 


E. Sleeve copper piping/tubing installed below slab with “Polywrap-C” polyethylene sleeve, as 
manufactured by Northtown Pipe Protection Products, or equal. Sleeve shall be a minimum of 6 mils 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 27 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


thick, colored blue for domestic water piping and orange for other piping. Install sleeve per 
manufacturer’s recommendations and instructions. 


F. Sleeve copper piping/tubing installed outside building below grade with “Polywrap-C” polyethylene 
sleeve, as manufactured by Northtown Pipe Protection Products, or equal. Sleeve shall be a minimum 
of 6 mils thick, colored blue for domestic water piping. Install sleeve per manufacturer’s 
recommendations and instructions. 


G. Sleeve cast iron and ductile iron pipe below grade and below slab with “Polywrap” polyethylene sleeve, 
as manufactured by Northtown Pipe Protection Products, or equal. Sleeve shall be a minimum of 8 mils 
thick, colored natural. Install sleeve per manufacturer’s recommendations and instructions. 


H. Covering: No rocks or sharp edges shall be backfilled against the wrap or sleeve. When backfilling with 
other than sand, protect wrap with an outer wrapping of Kraft paper; leave in place during backfill. 


3.14 PIPE IDENTIFICATION  


A. Provide temporary identification of each pipe installed, at the time of installation. Temporary 
identification shall be removed and replaced with permanent identification as part of the work. 


B. Apply the legend and flow arrow at all valve locations; at all points where the piping enters or leaves a 
wall, partition, cluster of piping or similar obstruction, at each change of direction and at approximately 
20'-0" intervals on pipe runs. Variations or changes in locations and spacing may be made with the 
approval of the Architect. There shall be at least one marking in each room. Markings shall be located 
for maximum visibility from expected personnel approach. 


1. Apply legend and flow arrow at approximately 10’-0” intervals in science classrooms and science 
prep rooms. 


C. Wherever two or more pipes run parallel, the markings shall be supplied in the same relative location on 
each. 


D. Each valve on non-potable water piping shall be labeled with a metal tag stamped "DANGER -- 
NON-POTABLE WATER" in 1/4 inch high letters. 


E. Apply markings after painting and cleaning of piping and insulation is completed. 


3.15 EXPANSION ANCHORS IN HARDENED CONCRETE  


A. Refer to Structural Drawings. 


B. Qualification Tests: The specific anchor shall have a current ICC-ES report and evaluated in cracked 
concrete in accordance with Acceptance Criteria AC193. If the specific anchor satisfies cyclic testing 
requirements per Acceptance Criteria AC01, Section 5.6, the full allowable shear and tension loads 
listed in the current ICC-ES report and manufacturer’s recommendations for the specific anchor may be 
used. Otherwise, the design shear and tension loads shall not be more than 80% of the listed allowable 
shear and tension loads for the specific anchor. 


C. Installation: The anchors must be installed in accordance with the requirements given in ICC Research 
Committee Recommendations for the specific anchor. 


D. Testing: Fifty percent of the anchors shall be load-tested on each job to twice the allowable capacity in 
tension, except that if the design load is less than 75 pounds; only one anchor in ten need be tested. If 
any anchor fails, all anchors must be tested. The load test shall be performed in the presence of a 
special inspector. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 28 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


E. The load may be applied by any method that will effectively measure the tension in the anchor, such as 
direct pull with a hydraulic jack, a torque wrench calibrated using the specific anchor or calibrated 
spring-loading devices. Anchors in which the torque is used to expand the anchor without applying 
tension to the bolt may not be verified with a torque wrench. 


3.16 PIPING SYSTEM PRESSURE TESTING  


A. General: 


1. Perform operational tests under simulated or actual service conditions, including one test of 
complete plumbing installation with fixtures and other appliances connected. 


2. Repair leaks and defects with new materials, and retest piping or portion thereof until satisfactory 
results are obtained. 


B. Piping Systems: Test piping systems in accordance with the following requirements and applicable 
codes:  


1. Authority having jurisdiction shall witness tests of piping systems. 


2. Notify Architect at least seven days in advance of testing. 


3. All piping shall be tested at completion of roughing-in, or at other times as directed by Architect. 


4. Furnish necessary materials, test pumps, gases, instruments and labor required for testing. 


5. Isolate from system equipment that may be damaged by test pressure. 


6. Make connections to existing systems with flanged connection. During testing of new work, 
provide a slip-in plate to restrict test pressure to new systems. Remove plate and make final 
connection to existing system at completion of testing. 


a. Authority having jurisdiction shall witness final connection to system. 


C. Test Schedule: No loss in pressure or visible leaks shall show after four hours at the pressures 
indicated. 


D. Testing of Sanitary Sewer, Drain, Vent, and Storm Drain may be done in segments in order to limit 
pressure to within manufacturer’s recommendations. Test to 10 feet above highest point in the system. 


System Tested Test Pressure PSI Test With 


Sanitary Sewer, Drain, Vent 10 Ft. Hd. Water 


Storm Drain, Condensate Drains 10 Ft. Hd. Water 


Domestic Water 125 Water 


Natural Gas (PE) 60 Air & Non-corrosive Leak 
Test Fluid 


Natural Gas (Steel) 100 Air & Non-corrosive Leak 
Test Fluid 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 29 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


Compressed Air  200 lb. Air & Non-corrosive Leak 
Test Fluid 


Deionized Water 50 Water 


1. Flush deionized water lines with deionized water after test and approval. 


2. Non-corrosive leak test fluid shall be suitable for use with piping material specified, and with the 
type of gas conveyed by the piping system. 


3.17 TRACER WIRES  


A. Provide tracer wire for non-metallic gas and water pipe in ground outside of buildings. Use AWG #14 
tracer wire with low density high molecular weight polyethylene insulation, and lay continuously on pipe 
so that it is not broken or stressed by backfilling operations. Secure wire to the piping with tape at 18 
inch intervals. Solder all joints. Tracer wire insulation shall be colored yellow for gas piping, blue for 
water piping. 


B. Terminals: Precast concrete box and cast iron locking traffic cover, Brooks 3TL, or equal; cover marked 
with name of service; 6 inches of loose gravel below box. Plastic terminal board with brass bolts; identify 
line direction with plastic tags. Test for continuity between terminals, after backfilling, in presence of 
Inspector. 


C. Alternate: Use electronically detectable plastic tape with metallic core, Terra Tape D, manufactured by 
Reef Industries, Inc., Seton, Inc., Marking Services, Inc., or equal; tape 2 inches wide, continuously 
imprinted "CAUTION WATER (GAS, etc.) LINE BELOW". Install, with printed side up, directly over pipe, 
18 inches below finish grade. Backfill material shall be as specified for the particular condition where 
pipe is installed, but avoid use of crushed rock or of earth with particles larger than l/2 inch within the top 
12 inches of backfill. Take precautions to insure that tape is not damaged or misplaced during backfill 
operations. Terminal boxes not required. 


3.18 OPERATION OF SYSTEMS  


A. Do not operate any plumbing equipment for any purpose, temporary or permanent, until all of the 
following has been completed: 


1. Complete all requirements listed under “Check, Test and Start Requirements.” 


2. Piping has been properly cleaned. Piping systems shall be flushed and treated prior to operation. 


3. Filters, strainers etc. are in place. 


4. Bearings have been lubricated, and alignment of rotating equipment has been checked. 


5. Equipment has been run under observation, and is operating in a satisfactory manner. 


B. Provide test and balance agency with one set of Contract Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change 
orders issued, applicable shop drawings and submittals and temperature control drawings. 


3.19 CHECK, TEST AND START REQUIREMENTS  


A. An authorized representative of the equipment manufacturer shall perform check, test and start of each 
piece of plumbing equipment. The representative may be an employee of the equipment manufacturer, 
or a manufacturer-certified contractor. Submit written certification from the manufacturer stating that the 
representative is qualified to perform the check test and start of the equipment. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 30 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


1. As part of the submittal process, provide a copy of each manufacturer’s printed startup form to be 
used.  


2. Some items of specified equipment may require that check, test and start of equipment must be 
performed by the manufacturer, using manufacturer’s employees. See specific equipment Articles 
in these Specifications for this requirement. 


3. Provide all personnel, test instruments, and equipment to properly perform the check, test and 
start work. 


4. When work has been completed, provide copies of reports for review, prior to final observation of 
work.  


B. Provide copies of the completed check, test and start report of each item of equipment, bound with the 
Operation and Maintenance Manual.  


C. Upon completion of the work, provide a schedule of planned maintenance for each piece of equipment. 
Indicate frequency of service, recommended spare parts (including filters and lubricants), and methods 
for adjustment and alignment of all equipment components. Provide a copy of the schedule with each 
operating and maintenance manual. Provide a copy of certification from the Owner’s representative 
indicating that they have been properly instructed in maintenance requirements for the equipment 
installed.  


3.20 PRELIMINARY OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND TESTS  


A. Prior to observation to determine final acceptance, put all mechanical systems into service and check 
that work required for that purpose has been done, including but not limited to the following condensed 
check list. Provide indexed report to tabulating the results of all work. 


1. All equipment has been started, checked, lubricated and adjusted in accordance with the 
manufacturer's recommendations. 


2. Correct rotation of motors and ratings of overload heaters are verified. 


3. Specified filters are installed and spare filters have been turned over to Owner. 


4. All manufacturers’ certificates of start-up specified have been delivered to the Owner. 


5. All equipment has been cleaned, and damaged painted finishes touched up. 


6. Missing or damaged parts have been replaced. 


7. Flushing and chemical treatment of piping systems has been completed and water treatment 
equipment, where specified, is in operation. 


8. Equipment labels, pipe marker labels, ceiling markers and valve tags are installed. 


9. Valve tag schedules, corrected control diagrams, sequence of operation lists and start-stop 
instructions have been posted. 


10. Preliminary test and balance work is complete, and reports have been forwarded for review. 


11. Automatic control set points are as designated and performance of controls checks out to agree 
with the sequence of operation. 


12. Operation and Maintenance Manuals have been delivered and instructions to the operating 
personnel have been made. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 31 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


B. Prior to the observation to determine final acceptance, operate all mechanical systems as required to 
demonstrate that the installation and performance of these systems conform to the requirements of 
these specifications. 


1. Operate and test all mechanical equipment and systems for a period of at least five consecutive 8 
hour days to demonstrate the satisfactory overall operation of the project as a complete unit. 


2. Commence tests after preliminary balancing and adjustments to equipment have been checked. 
Immediately before starting tests, install air filters and lubricate all running equipment. Notify the 
Architect at least seven calendar days in advance of starting the above tests. 


3. During the test period, make final adjustments and balancing of equipment, systems controls, and 
circuits so that all are placed in first class operating condition. 


4. Where Utility District rebates are applicable, demonstrate that the systems meet the rebate 
program requirements. 


C. Review of Contractor's Tests: 


1. All tests made by the Contractor or manufacturers' representatives are subject to observation and 
review by the Owner. Provide timely notice prior to start of each test, in order to allow for 
observation of testing. Upon the completion of all tests, provide a letter to confirm that all testing 
has been successful. 


D. Test Logs: 


1. Maintain test logs listing the tests on all mechanical systems showing dates, items tested, 
inspectors' names, remarks on success or failure of the tests. 


E. Preliminary Operation: 


1. The Owner reserves the right to operate portions of the plumbing system on a preliminary basis 
without voiding the guarantee. 


3.21 CERTIFICATES OF INSTALLATION 


A. Contractor shall complete applicable “Certificates of Installation” forms contained in the California 
Building Energy Efficiency Standards and submit to the authorities having jurisdiction for approval and 
issuance of final occupancy permit, as described in the California Energy Code. 


3.22  DEMONSTRATION AND TRAINING 


A. An authorized representative of the equipment manufacturer shall train Owner-designated personnel in 
maintenance and adjustment of equipment. The representative may be an employee of the equipment 
manufacturer, or a manufacturer-certified contractor. Submit written certification from the manufacturer 
stating that the representative is qualified to perform the Owner training for the equipment installed. 


1. As part of the submittal process, provide a training agenda outlining major topics and time 
allowed for each topic.  


2. Some items of specified equipment require that training must be performed by the manufacturer, 
using manufacturer’s employees. See specific equipment Articles in these Specifications for this 
requirement. 







  BASIC PLUMBING MATERIALS AND METHODS 
  22 00 50 - 32 


 


 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
VERSION DATE JULY 15, 2022 


3. Contractor shall provide three copies of certification by Contractor that training has been 
completed, signed by Owner’s representative, for inclusion in Operation and Maintenance 
Manual. Certificates shall include: 


a. Listing of Owner-designated personnel completing training, by name and title. 


b. Name and title of training instructor. 


c. Date(s) of training. 


d. List of topics covered in training sessions. 


4. Refer to specific equipment Articles for minimum training period duration for each piece of 
equipment. 


[END OF SECTION 22 00 50] 








 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 1 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
 


SECTION 33 00 00 
 


SITE UTILITIES 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 


A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this 
Section, as if repeated herein. 


 
1.02 SCOPE OF WORK 
  


A. The work includes, but is not necessarily limited to, the following: 
 


1. Domestic water piping system. 
2. Fire protection piping systems. 
3. Sewer piping system. 


 
B. Other items that may be specified or shown on the Drawings. 


 
1.03 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 


 
A. Section 31 23 33, Trenching and Backfilling. 


B. Section 32 16 00, Site Concrete. 


1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


A. Use only new materials and products, unless existing materials or products are specifically shown 
otherwise on the drawings to be salvaged and re-used. 


 
1. Sun damaged or discolored PVC pipe will be rejected. 


 
B. All materials, components, assemblies, workmanship and installation are to be observed by the 


Owner's Inspector of Record.  Work not so inspected is subject to uncovering and replacement. 
 
C. The representatives of the Owner’s testing lab will not act as supervisor of construction, nor will 


they direct construction operations.  Neither the presence of the Owner’s testing lab 
representatives nor the testing by the Owner’s testing lab shall excuse the contractors or 
subcontractors for defects or deficiencies discovered in their work during or following completion 
of the project.  Correcting inadequate compaction is the sole responsibility of the contractor. 


 
D. Contractor shall be solely responsible for all subgrades built. Any repairs resulting from inadequate 


compaction or incorrect grades will be the responsibility of the contractor.  
 
E. Per 2016 NFPA 13 provide Contractor's material and test certificate to the Owner, Architect, Project 


Inspector and Local Fire Authority.  
 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 2 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


1.05 SUBMITTALS 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 33 00. 
 
B. Manufacturer's Data:  Submit list and complete descriptive data of all products proposed for use.  


Include manufacturer's specifications, published warranty or guarantee, installation instructions, 
and maintenance instructions. 


 
C. Provide sieve analysis from accredited testing lab on pipe bedding material.  Analysis shall have a 


current date not older than project contract signing date. 
 
D. Substitution: Provide all data of proposed material being submitted as a substitution.  Provide 


comparison with specified product data and identify all differences.  Failure to provide comparison 
will be reason for rejection. 


 
1.06 FEES, PERMITS, AND UTILITY SERVICES 
 


A. Obtain and pay for permits and service charges required for installation of Work.  Arrange for 
required inspections and secure written approvals from authorities having jurisdiction. 


 
B. Upon completion of work within right-of-way, provide copies of written final approval to the 


Architect. 
 
1.07 WARRANTY 
 


A. Refer to General Conditions and Section 01 78 36. 
 
1.08 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 
 


A. ANSI/ASTM D698-00 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate 
Mixtures, Using 5.5 lb (2.49 Kg) Rammer and 12 inch (304.8 mm) Drop. 


 
B. ANSI/ASTM D1556-00 - Test Method for Density of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone Method. 
 
C. ANSI/ASTM D1557-02 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate 


Mixtures Using 10 lb. (4.54 Kg) Rammer and 18 inch (457 mm) Drop. 
 
D. ANSI/ASTM D 3017-05 Test Methods for Moisture Content of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixture by 


Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth). 
 
E. ANSI/ASTM D 4318-05 Test Method for Liquid Limit, Plastic Limit, and Plasticity Limit. 
 
F. CALTRANS Standard Specifications. 
 
G. CAL-OSHA, Title 8, Section 1590 (e). 
 
H. Any work within the street, highway or right-of-way shall be performed in accordance with the 


requirement of the governmental agencies having jurisdiction, and shall not begin until all of those 
governing authorities have been notified. 


 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 3 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


I. NFPA 13, 24 and 25, latest editions. 
 
J. California State Health and Safety Code Section 116875, Lead Free Public Water Systems. 
 
K. California Plumbing Code, latest edition. 


 
1.09 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 


A. Transport, store and handle in strict accord with the local jurisdiction. 
 
B. Make delivery to job when notified by Contractor verifying that the job is ready to receive the work 


of this Section and that arrangements have been made to properly store, handle and protect such 
materials and work. 


 
1.10 PROJECT CONDITIONS 
 


A. Existing civil, mechanical and electrical improvements are shown on respective site plans to the 
extent known.  Should the Contractor encounter any deviation between actual conditions and those 
shown, he is to immediately notify the Architect before continuing work. 


 
1.11 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS 
 


A. Contractor shall acquaint himself with all site conditions.  If unknown active utilities are 
encountered during work, notify Architect promptly for instructions.  Failure to notify will make 
Contractor liable for damage to these utilities arising from Contractor's operations subsequent to 
discovery of such unknown active utilities. 


  
1.12 PROTECTION  
 


A. Adequate protection measures shall be provided to protect workmen and passers-by on and off the 
site. Adjacent property shall be fully protected throughout the operations.  Blasting will not be 
permitted. Prevent damage to adjoining improvements and properties both above and below 
grade.  Restore such improvements to original condition should damage occur.  Replace trees and 
shrubs outside building area disturbed by operations. 


 
B. In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the Contractor shall be solely and 


completely responsible for working conditions at the job site, including safety of all persons and 
property during performance of the work.  This requirement shall apply continuously and shall not 
be limited to normal working hours. 


 
C. Any construction review of the Contractor's performance conducted by the Geotechnical Engineer 


is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures, in, on, or 
near the construction site. 


 
D. Provide shoring, sheeting, sheet piles and or bracing to prevent caving, erosion or gullying of sides 


of excavation. 
 
E. Surface Drainage:  Provide for surface drainage during period of construction in manner to avoid 


creating nuisance to adjacent areas.  The contractor shall make a reasonable effort on a daily basis 
to provide pumps and all equipment necessary to keep all excavations and the site free from water 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 4 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


during entire progress of work, regardless of cause, source, or nature of water. 
 
F. Adjacent streets and sidewalks shall be kept free of mud, dirt or similar nuisances resulting from 


earthwork operations. 
 
G. The site and adjacent influenced areas shall be watered as required to suppress dust nuisance.  Dust 


control measures shall be in accordance with the local jurisdiction.   
 
H. Trees:  Carefully protect existing trees that are to remain.  Provide temporary irrigation as necessary 


to maintain health of trees. 
 


1.13 SEASONAL LIMITS 
 


A. No fill material shall be placed, spread or rolled during unfavorable weather conditions.  When work 
is interrupted by rains, fill operations shall not be resumed until field tests indicate that moisture 
content and density of fill are satisfactory. 


 
1.14  RECORD DRAWINGS  
 


A. Keep a daily record of all pipe placed in ground, verified by Project Inspector. 
 
B. Upon completion of this Contract, furnish one tracing showing all outside utility lines, piping, etc., 


installed under this Contract.  Locate and dimension all work with reference to permanent 
landmarks. 


 
C. All symbols and designations used in preparing "RECORD" drawings shall match those used in 


Contract drawings. 
 
D. Properly identify on as-builts and provide dimensions for all stubs for future connections. Provide 


concrete markers 6” dia. 12” deep, flush with finish grade at the ends of all stubbed pipes. 
 
PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 MATERIALS - GENERAL 
 


A. Provide each item listed herein or shown on drawings of quality noted or approved equal.  All 
material shall be new, full weight, standard in all respects and in first-class condition.  Insofar as 
possible, all materials used shall be of same brand or manufacture throughout for each class of 
material or equipment.  Materials shall be of domestic manufacture and shall be tested within 
Continental United States. 


 
B. Grade or quality of materials desired is indicated by trade names or catalog numbers stated herein. 
 
C. Dimensions, sizes, and capacities shown are minimum and shall not be changed without permission 


of Architect. 
 
D. All materials in this section used for any public water system or domestic water for human 


consumption shall be lead free. 
 


1. For the purposes of this section, “lead free” means not more than 0.2 percent lead when used 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 5 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


with respect to solder and flux and not more than 8 percent when used with respect to pipes 
and pipe fittings. 


2. All pipe, pipe or plumbing fitting or fixtures, solder, or flux shall be certified by an independent 
American National Standards Institute (ANSI) accredited third party, including, but not limited 
to, NSF International, as being in compliance with this section. 


 
E. All materials used for fire system piping shall be UL and FM approved. 


 
2.02 VALVE BOXES 
 


A. Provide at each valve or cock in ground a Christy, Brooks, or equal to Christy G05CT, concrete valve 
box with cover marked for service, domestic water shall be marked “Water” and fire supply shall be 
marked “Fire”.  Furnish extension handles for each size square nut valve, and provide “fork” handle 
for each size of “wheel handle” valve as required.  Do not locate valve boxes in walk, or covered 
passages, curbs, or curb & gutters, unless necessary.  If valve location is within concrete or asphalt 
paved surface valve box shall be as detailed on plans for such condition.  Provide valve box 
extensions as required to set bottom of valve box to bottom of piping in which valve is installed.  
Provide Owner with set of special wrenches and/or tools as required for operation of valves. 


 
2.03 PIPES AND FITTINGS 
 


A. Sanitary Sewer:  PVC sewer pipe and fittings with Ring-Tite joints, ASTM D3034 SDR35. 
 
B. Domestic water Lines 3 1/2” and smaller:  Type K copper tubing, hard temper, with wrought copper 


fittings.  
 
C. Water lines 4” and larger:  AWWA C-900 Class 150/DR18 with rubber gasket joints. 
 
D. Fire lines 4” and larger: AWWA C-900 Class 200/DR14 with rubber gasket joints. 
 
E. Solder:  Lead Free.  95/5; 95% Tin / 5% Antimony. 
 
F. Ductile Iron Pipe; Class 350, Cement Lined 
 
G. Ductile Iron Pipe Fittings; AWWA C110, C153, Ebba Iron, Star Romac, Sigma, or approved equal. 
 
H. Mechanical Fitting Bolts; Bolts and nuts shall be carbon steel with a minimum 60,000 psi tensile 


strength conforming to ASTM A 307, Grade A.  Bolts shall be standard ANSI B1.1 Class 2A course 
threads.  Nuts shall conform to ASTM A 563 and be standard ANSI B1.1, Class 2A course thread.  All 
bolts and nuts shall be zinc coated. 


 
I. Fasteners Anti-Rust Coatings; After assembly, coat all fasteners with an Asphaltic Bituminous 


coatings conforming to latest edition NFPA 24. 
 
J. Ductile Iron Pipe Wrap; 8 mil polyethylene pipe wrap conforming to ANSI/AWWA C105/A21.5 


standards. 
 
K. Pipe Insulation; Pipe exposed to atmospheric conditions ½” thru 4” NPT; Johns Manville rigid 


fiberglass insulation, Micro Lok HP; Owens Corning Fiberglas SSL II; Conforming   to ASTM C 612, 
Type 1A or type 1B.  







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 6 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
L. Aluminum field applied pipe insulation jacket; comply with ASTM B209, ASTM C1729,    ASTM C1371 


Manufacturers; Childers Metals; ITW Insulation Systems Aluminum           Jacketing; or an approved 
equal.  


 
1. Finish shall be flat mill finish 
2. Factory Fabricated Fitting Covers; 45 and 90 degree elbows, tee’s, valve covers, end caps, 


unions, shall be of the same thickness and finish of jacket.  
3. The fittings shall be composed of 2-pieces 
4. Adhesives; per the manufacturers requirements 
5. Joint Sealant; shall be silicone, and shall be aluminum in color.   


 
M. Sewer Forced Main; HDPE, DR 11, color gray with green stripe by JM Eagle or approved equal. 
 


2.04 SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES 
 


A. Shall be constructed as shown on plan details. 
 
2.05 CLEANOUTS 
 


A. Cleanouts of same diameter as pipe up to 8” in size shall be installed in all horizontal soil and waste 
lines where indicated and at all points of change in direction.  Cleanouts shall be located not less 
than 18” from building so as to provide sufficient space for rodding. No horizontal run over 100 feet 
shall be without cleanout whether shown on drawings or not. 


 
B. All cleanout boxes shall be traffic rated with labeled lid, Christy G05CT or approved equal.  Lid shall 


be vandal proof with stainless steel screws 
 


2.06 UNIONS 
 


A. Furnish and install one union at each threaded or soldered connection to equipment and 2 unions, 
one on each side of valves on pipes ½” to 3”. 


 
B. Locate unions so that piping can be easily disconnected for removal of equipment or valve.  Provide 


type specified in following schedule: 
 


Type of Pipe Union 
 
Steel Pipe: 150 lb. Screwed malleable ground joint, brass, brass-to-iron seat, black 


or galvanized to match pipe. 
 
Copper tubing: Brass ground joint with sweat connections. 
 
PVC Sch 80 pipe: PVC union, FIPT X FIPT 


 
2.07 VALVES 
 


A. Provide valves as shown and other valves necessary to segregate branches or units.  Furnish valves 
suitable for service intended.  Valves shall be properly packed and lubricated.  Valves shall be non-
rising stem.  Place unions adjacent to each threaded or sweat fitting valve.  Install valves with 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 7 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


bonnets vertical.  All valves shall be lead free. 
 
B. Valves ½” thru 2”; shall be made of bronze, full size of pipe and lead free. Nibco S-113-FL Series; 


American G-300 Series; Matco 511 FL Series; Apollo 102T-FL Series.  Brass valves of brass parts 
within valves will not be accepted. 


 
C. Valves, 2 ½” thru 3” shall be class 150; Shall be made of bronze, full size of pipe; Jenkins Fig. 2310 J; 


Lunkinheimer Fig. 2153; Crane Fig. 437; Stockham Fig. B-128. 
 
D. Valves, Flanged; 4” thru 12” Ductile Iron Resilient Wedge Gate Valve; Nibco F 609 RW; American 


2500 Series; Kennedy 8561; Mueller 2360 Series. 
 
2.07 FIRE HYDRANTS 
 


A. Clow 960 Factory Painted or per Local Jurisdiction Requirements, or an approved equal, 36" 
minimum bury, two 2-1/2" hose nozzles, one 4-1/2" pumper nozzle, and break-off check valve, 
Clow LBI 400A or approved equal .  Hydrant shall conform to, and installation shall comply with the 
Local Jurisdiction. 


 
2.08 POST INDICATOR  


 
A. Post Indicator shall be Mueller Co. A-20806 (adjustable) with tamper switch or an   approved equal. 


 
2.09 BACKFLOW PREVENTERS 
 Double Check Valve, Double Check Detector and Reduced Pressure Backflow Preventers 
 


A. Backflow preventers shall be as approved by the local agency and by the State of California’s 
Department of Health Services most recent list of approved reduced pressure backflow preventers. 
All approved backflow preventers shall have ductile iron bodies. 


 
1. Provide Backflow preventer blankets with locking device.  Weatherguard R-30 insulated or 


equal. 
2. Provide ball valve at all test ports with brass plug in valve. 
3. Provide a minimum of 2 valve tamper switches on fire prevention Backflows.   


 
2.10 TAPPING SLEEVE 
 


A. Shall be used on pipe sizes 6” thru 12” and shall be made with stainless steel material including 
stainless steel bolts.  Flanges shall be ductile iron or high carbon steel.  Gaskets shall seal full 
circumference of pipe.  Shall be manufactured for operating pressure of 200 psi, and shall pass test 
pressure of 300 psi.  Romac SST series; Smithblair 662; Mueller H304; Ford “FAST” tapping sleeve. 


 
2.11 SERVICE SADDLES 
 


A. Shall be used on pipe size 2” thru 4”.  Body shall be made from ductile iron with epoxy coating or 
bronze.  Cascade Style CSC-1; A.Y. McDonald model 3891 AWWA/3892 FNPT; Smith-Blair #317; Ford 
S70, S71, S90, (style B). 


 
2.11 TRACER WIRE 
 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 8 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


A. No. 10 THW solid copper wire.  Solder all joints 
 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.01 DRAWINGS AND COORDINATION 
    


A. General arrangement and location of piping, etc., are shown on Drawings or herein specified.  Install 
work in accord therewith, except for minor changes that may be necessary on account of other 
work or existing conditions.  Before excavation, carefully examine other work that may conflict with 
this work.  Install this work in harmony with other craft and at proper time to avoid delay of work. 


 
B. Verify invert elevations at points of connection to existing systems prior to any excavation.  If invert 


elevations differ from that shown on drawings, notify Architect immediately.  
     
C. In advance of construction, work out minor changes if conflicts occur with electrical or mechanical. 


Relocate services to suit actual conditions and work of other trades to avoid conflict therewith.  Any 
adjustments or additional fittings to make adjustments shall not be cause for additional costs to the 
owner.  


 
D. Execute any work or apparatus shown on drawings and not mentioned in specifications, or vice 


versa.  Omission from Drawings or Specifications of any minor details of construction, installation, 
materials, or essential specialties does not relieve Contractor of furnishing same in place complete. 


 
E. Graded pipes shall take precedence. If conflict should occur while placing the domestic water and 


fire service piping, the contractor shall provide any and all fittings necessary to route the water lines 
over or under such conflicting pipes at no additional costs to the owner. 


 
3.02 ACCESS 
 


A. Continuously check for clearance and accessibility of equipment or materials specified herein to be 
placed.  No allowance of any kind shall be made for negligence on part of Contractor to foresee 
means of installing his equipment or materials into proper position. 


 
 
3.03 EXCAVATING AND BACKFILLING 
 


A. Excavation and Bedding: 
 


1. General:  Trench straight and true to line and grade with bottom smooth and free of 
irregularities or rock points.  Trench width to be a minimum of 12" wider than outside diameter 
of pipe.  Follow manufacturer's recommendations for use of each kind and type of pipe. 


2. Bedding:  Provide a bedding as noted on drawing details for the full length of the pipe.  Bedding 
shall have a minimum thickness beneath the pipe of 4" or 1/8 the outside diameter of the pipe, 
which ever is greater.  Provide bell holes and depressions for pipe joints only of size required to 
properly make joint. 


 
B. Laying of Pipe: 


 
1. General:  Inspect pipe prior to placing.  Sun damaged pipe will be rejected.  Set aside any 


defective or damaged material.  Do not place pipe in water nor place pipe when trenches or 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 9 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


weather are unsuitable.  Lay pipe bell upgrade, true to line and grade. 
a. Sewer pipe shall be laid in strict conformity to the prescribed line and grade, with grade 


bars set and each pipe length checked to the grade line.  Three consecutive points on the 
same rate of slope shall be used at all times to detect any variation from a straight grade.  In 
any case of discrepancy, work shall be stopped and the discrepancy immediately reported 
to the Owner’s Representatives.  In addition, when requested by the Owner's 
Representative, a string line shall be used in the bottom of the trench to insure a straight 
alignment of the sewer pipe between manholes.  The maximum deviation from grade shall 
not be in excess of 1/4 inch.  In returning the pipe to grade, no more than ¼” depression 
shall result. 


b. The Contractor shall expose the end of existing pipe to be extended, for verification of 
alignment and elevation, prior to trenching for any pipe which may be affected.  All costs of 
such excavation and backfill shall be included in the price paid for the various items of work. 


c.  A temporary plug, mechanical type shall be installed on sewer pipe at the point of 
connection to existing facilities.  If connecting to a public facility the plug shall conform to 
the requirements of the local jurisdiction.  This plug shall remain in place until the 
completion of the balling and flushing operation. 


2. Bell and Spigot Joints:  Lubricate inside of bells and outside of spigots with soap solution.  
Wedge joints tight.  Bell of bell and spigot pipe to be pointed upgrade. 


 
C. Backfilling: 


 
1. General:  Do not start backfill operations until required testing has been accomplished.  
2. Compaction and Grading:  Remainder of backfill shall be in accordance with Section 31 23 33 – 


TRENCHING AND BACKFILLING. 
3. If trenching in area previously lime or cement treated backfill top of trench section, same depth 


as lime or cement treatment with Class 2 Aggregate Base compacted to 95% minimum relative 
compaction. 


 
3.04 INSTALLATION OF WATER PIPING 
 


A. The contractor shall be responsible for determining the installed depth of all water piping, based on 
surfaces grades and minimum required depth of cover. 


 
B. Immediately cap or plug ends of, and opening in, pipe and fittings to exclude dirt until final 


connections made.  Use reducing fittings where any change in pipe size occurs.  Bushings shall not 
be used. 


 
C. General:  Should existing conditions or other work prevent the running of pipes or the setting of 


equipment at the points indicated by drawings, changes as authorized by the Architect shall be 
made without additional cost to the Owner. 


 
D. All bolts used on mechanical fittings shall be thoroughly coated with an asphaltic bituminous 


coating conforming to 2016 NFPA 24, 10.4.1.1. 
 
E. All buried metal shall be incased with 8 mil polyethylene wrap so that no soil is in contact with 


metal.  Ends of polyethylene wrap shall be taped to provide seal with pipe. 
 
F. Do not install water lines in same trench with non-metallic sewer lines unless bottom of water pipe 


at all points is at least 12" above top of sewer line and water line is placed on solid shelf excavated 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 10 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


at one side of common trench with a minimum of 12 inch horizontal separation. 
 
G. Under no circumstance shall a fitting be located directly under a structural footing without prior 


approval from the Architect. 
 
H. In locations where existing domestic pipe is rerouted, the new pipe shall be assembled using 


restrained fittings at all joints including factory pipe joints. Tapped restrained blind flanges shall be 
temporarily installed at each end of the assembled pipes until testing and chlorination is completed 
and approved.  


 
3.05 CLOSING IN OF UNINSPECTED WORK 
 


A. Do not allow or cause work installed to be covered up or enclosed before it has been inspected, 
tested, and approved.  Should work be enclosed or covered up before it has been approved, 
uncover work at own expense.  After it has been inspected, tested and approved, make repairs 
necessary to restore work of other contractors to condition in which it was found at time of cutting. 


 
3.06 CARE AND CLEANING 
    


A. Repair or replace broken, damaged, or otherwise defective parts, materials, and work.  Leave entire 
work in new condition satisfactory to Architect.  At completion, carefully clean and adjust 
equipment, fixtures and trim that are installed as part of this work.  Leave systems and equipment 
in satisfactory new operating condition. 


 
B. Drain and flush piping to remove grease and foreign matter. 
 
C. Sewer piping shall be balled and flushed. 
 
D. Clean out and remove surplus materials and debris resulting from the work, including surplus 


excavated material. 
 
E. Flush fire service piping in the presence of the project inspector. Flushing shall be continued for a 


sufficient time as necessary to ensure all foreign material has been removed.  Flow rate shall be 
equal to site fire flow requirements. 


 
3.07 SEWER INTERNAL INSPECTIONS 
 


A. Upon completion of construction and prior to final inspection, the Contractor shall clean the entire 
new pipeline of all dirt and debris.  Any dirt or debris in previously existing pipes or ditches in the 
area, which resulted from the new installation, shall also be removed.  Pipes shall be cleaned by the 
controlled balling and flushing method.  Temporary plugs shall be installed and maintained during 
cleaning operations at points of connection to existing facilities to prevent water, dirt, and debris 
from entering the existing facility. 


 
3.08 TEST OF PIPING 
  


A. Pressure Test piping at completion of roughing-in, in accord with following schedule, and show no 
loss in pressure or visible leaks after minimum duration or four (4) hours at test pressures indicated. 


 
B. Chlorination tests shall be performed after all fixtures and any required mechanical devices are 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 11 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


installed and the entire system is complete and closed up. 
 
C. In cases where new domestic water piping is assembled for re-routing of existing domestic  water 


pipe , the contractor shall perform the following testing prior to connecting the new water pipe to 
the existing system. 


 
1. The pipe shall be pressure tested and per the test schedule.  
2. The pipe shall be pressure tested down within the trench. 
3. The contractor shall dig a temporary ditch below the existing pipe to drain to a sump that is 


lower than the bottom of the trench and to the side of the trench. The sump shall be 30% larger 
than the total volume of water within the testing pipe assembly. 


4.  After pressure testing and chlorination has taken place and accepted, the contractor shall drain 
the pipe into the sump and pump the sump out as it is filling. 


5. The temporary test fittings at each end of the pipe assembly shall be removed and the final 
restrained couplings installed.  


6. The existing piping shall be cut and the water within the pipe shall drain below the pipe to the 
temporary sump. Pump the sump as it is being filled up. Take extreme caution not to 
contaminate the existing pipe with any contaminates within the trench. 


7.  Before making the final coupling connections, the restrained couplings at each end of the new 
pipe shall be thoroughly swabbed inside the fitting with a solution of chlorine mixed with water 
at a rate of 1part chlorine to 4 parts potable water. 


8. After final connections are made, a visual inspection shall be made after fittings are wiped off. If 
after 1 hr, no noticeable drips are noted the pipe can be backfilled.   


9. The contractor shall flush all water piping affected by chlorination until it is within acceptable 
levels approved by certified testing lab. 


      
TEST SCHEDULE 


 
System Tested Test Pressure PSIG Test With 
 
Public water mains Per local jurisdiction requirements. 
 
Private domestic water piping and 
fire mains serving fire hydrants: 150 Lbs. Water   4 hrs. 
 
 
Fire Protection Piping from 
PIV to fire riser: 200 Lbs. Water pressure, 4 hrs duration with no 


pressure loss. 
 
Sanitary Sewer Piping: Sewer system shall be tested for leakage per 


local jurisdiction requirements. 
 


D. Testing equipment, materials, and labor shall be furnished by contractor. 
 
3.09 WATER SYSTEM STERILIZATION 
 


A. Public Water Mains: Shall be flushed and disinfected per the local jurisdiction requirements 
 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 12 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


B. Clean and disinfect all site water systems connected to the domestic water systems in accordance 
with AWWA Standard C651 and as required by the local Building and Health Department Codes, and 
EPA.   


 
1. Clean and disinfect industrial water system in addition to the domestic water system.  
2. Disinfect existing piping systems as required to provide continuous disinfection upstream to 


existing valves.  At Contractors option, valves may be provided to isolate the existing piping 
system from the new piping system. 


 
C. Domestic water sterilization shall be performed by a licensed “qualified applicator” as required by 


CAL-EPA Pesticide Enforcement Branch for disinfecting and sterilizing drinking water. 
 
D. Disinfecting Agent:  Chlorine product that is a registered product with Cal-EPA for use in California 


potable water lines, such as Bacticide, CAL-EPA Registration No. 37982-20001. 
 
E. Contractor to provide a 1” service valve connected to the system at a point within 2’-0” of its 


junction with the water supply line.  After sterilization is complete Contractor to provide cap at 
valve. 


 
F. Sterilization Procedure to be as follows: 
 


1. Flush pipe system by opening all outlets and letting water flow through the system until clear 
water flows from all outlets. 


2. Inject disinfecting agent to provide a minimum chlorine residual concentration of at least 50 
parts per million (ppm) of free chlorine at each outlet. 


3. Provide sign at all outlets which reads “Water Sterilization in Progress – Do not operate”.  
Remove signs at conclusion of test. 


4. Close all outlets and valves, including valve connecting to water supply line and 1” service valve. 
 Retain treated water in pipe for a minimum of twenty-four hours.  Should chlorine residual at 
pipe extremities be less than 50 PPM at this time, pipe shall be re-chlorinated.  As an option, 
the water systems may be filled with a water-chlorine solution containing a minimum of 200 
PPM of chlorine and allowed to stand for three hours. 


5. After chlorination, flush lines of chlorinated water and refill from domestic supply. Continue 
flushing until residual chlorine is less than or equal to 0.2 ppm, or a residual the same as that of 
the test water. 


 
G. Chemical and bacteriological tests shall be conducted by a state-certified laboratory and approved 


by the local authorities having jurisdiction. 
H. Submit written report to Health Department as required by State Regulations.  Provide a copy of 


report to Architect prior to completion of project. 
I. The costs of sterilization and laboratory testing shall be paid for by the contractor. 


 
3.10 CLEANING 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 74 00. 
 
B. Upon completion of work of this Section promptly remove from the working area all scraps, debris 


and surplus material of this Section. 
 


 







 SITE UTILITIES 
 33 00 00 - 13 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


END OF SECTION 
 








 PAVEMENT SEALER STRIPING AND SIGNAGE 
 32 12 36 - 1 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
SECTION 32 12 36 


 
PAVEMENT SEALER STRIPING AND SIGNAGE 


 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.01 INCLUSION OF OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 


A. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions and Division 1 are fully applicable to this Section, 
as if repeated herein. 


 
 
1.02 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE 
 


A. Section 01 50 00:  Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls 
 
 
1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 


A. Applicator Qualification:  Company specializing in the application of seal coat with two (2) years 
documented experience. 


 
B. Reference and Standards: 


 
1. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) 
2. State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans) - "Standard Specifications", (latest 


Edition.). 
 
1.04 SUBMITTALS 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 33 00. 
 
B. Manufacturer's Data:  Submit list and complete descriptive data of all products proposed for use.  


Include manufacturer's specifications, rate of application, published warranty or guarantee, 
installation instructions, and maintenance instructions. 


 
1.05 WARRANTY 
 


A. Refer to General Conditions and Section 01 78 36. 
 
1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 


A. Transport, store and handle in strict accord with the local jurisdiction. 
 
B. Make delivery to job when notified by Contractor verifying that the job is ready to receive the work 


of this Section and that arrangements have been made to properly store, handle and protect such 
materials and work. 







 PAVEMENT SEALER STRIPING AND SIGNAGE 
 32 12 36 - 2 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


 
1.07 PROJECT CONDITIONS 
 


A. Do not apply seal coat during wet weather or when atmospheric temperature is below 50 degrees. 
 
1.08 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS 
 


A. Contractor shall acquaint himself with all site conditions.  If unknown conditions are encountered 
during work, notify Architect promptly for instructions.  Failure to notify will make Contractor liable 
for damage to these utilities arising from Contractor's operations subsequent to discovery of such 
unknown active utilities. 


 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.01 MATERIALS 
 


A. Seal Coat:  shall be an asphalt emulsion blended with select fillers and fibers such as: 
 


1. "Park-Top No. “327”, a Western Colloid Product. 
2. "OverKote", Reed and Graham. 
3. “Park Top No. “302” with sand. (When specifically called for in the drawings).                 


 
B. Precast Concrete Bumpers:  3000 psi at 28 day minimum strength; 48" length unless otherwise 


indicated; provide with steel dowel anchors and concrete epoxy. 
 
C. Crack Fill:   
 


1. Cracks 1/8” – 1”:  “Docal 1100 Viscolastic, distributed by Conoco, Inc., Elk Grove, CA, (916) 685-
9253, or an approved equal. 


2. Cracks greater than 1”:  “Topeka” Hot Mix. 
  
2.02 PAVEMENT MARKING PAINT 
 


A. Approved Manufacturers:   TT-P-1952 F traffic paint. 
  


B. Colors: As directed by Architect and California Building Code 
 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.01 INSPECTION 
 


A. Examine areas to receive asphalt sealcoat and verify following: 
 


1. Absence of wet receiving surfaces or other conditions to adversely affect execution of his work. 
2. No foreseeable rain within 72 hrs. after application. 
3. Daytime temperatures of 50 degrees and rising.   


 
B. Do not start work until unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected and/or daytime temperatures 







 PAVEMENT SEALER STRIPING AND SIGNAGE 
 32 12 36 - 3 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


are maintained above the minimum. 
 
.3.02 PAVEMENT SEALER (Seal Coat) 
 


A. Surface Preparation:  surface and cracks shall be clean of all dirt, vegetation, sand, oil or grease.  
Broom, blow and hose down entire area with a strong jet of water to remove all debris, dirt and 
sand. 


 
1. Remove soft, loose, or otherwise damaged areas of asphalt concrete to full depth of damage 


and replace with compacted hot mix asphalt concrete as specified herein. 
a. Minor holes and imperfections may be patched using hot mix asphalt or a mastic consisting 


of sand and SS-1-H. 
2. Fill all cracks with a mastic filler up to a level condition. Provide multiple fills on deeper cracks so 


the cured product is level. Any shrinkage within the cracks will be refilled until it cures level.  
 
B. Seal Coat Application: Thoroughly mix water with raw materials and apply in accordance with the 


following,  
  


1. No more than 15% by volume of water can be added to the sealcoat raw mix. 
2. The water shall be added onsite to the raw mix in the presence of the project inspector. 


a. Any deviation from this procedure will be cause for rejection and re-application at the 
contractor expense with no additional cost to the owner. 


b. The contractor shall supply a measuring devise to accurately measure the added water and 
be verifiable by the project inspector.    


3. The contractor shall place 2 coats of seal coat. 
a. The first coat shall be applied at a rate of 25 gals per 1000 sq. ft.  
b. The second coat shall be applied at a rate of 15 gals. per 1000 sq. ft. 
c. Both applications shall be applied in the presence of the project inspector. Failure to do so 


will be reason for rejection and reapplication by the contractor at his expense with no extra 
cost to the owner. The second coat of sealcoat shall not be applied until the first coat 
thoroughly dried.  


d. Keep vehicles off the fresh coated surface for a minimum of 24 hrs. or longer in cooler 
climates.          


 
C. Clean-Up and Precautions:  As recommended by pavement sealer material manufacturer. 
 


1. Remove all utility box lids, including drop inlet grates and clean seal coat from edges of lids so 
future removal is possible  


 
3.03 PAVMENT MARKING 
 


A. Painted pavement markings shall be done only after the seal coat has thoroughly dried. 
 


B. Clean surfaces to be painted with traffic paint of dust, dirt, grime, oil, rust or other contaminants 
 which will impair the quality of work or interfere with proper bond of paint coats.  Surfaces shall 
be cleaned to the extent by whatever means necessary that will satisfactorily accomplish the 
purpose of cleaning the surface without damage to asphalt concrete. 


 







 PAVEMENT SEALER STRIPING AND SIGNAGE 
 32 12 36 - 4 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


C. Provide measured layouts, temporary markings, templates, and other means necessary to provide 
required marking. 


 
D. Prepare and apply paint in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions; paint shall be applied by 


spray and shall achieve complete coverage free from voids and thin spots. 
 


1. The each coat of paint shall be sprayed at a rate of 10-12 mils wet, 5-7 mils dry 
2. The first coat of paint shall thoroughly dry before the second coat is applied. 
3. Paint shall not be applied during any windy conditions or anticipated rain events.              


 
E. Where indicated on the Drawings, paint parking stall strips, lettering, arrows, accessible symbols, 


playfield markings, etc. on asphalt concrete paving.  Paint stripes shall be 3 inches wide (except 
otherwise indicated) and applied with two (2) coats of herein specified Traffic Line  Paint; white 
(except as otherwise specified or indicated on the drawings). 


 
1. International Accessible Symbol:  Symbol shall be white figures on a blue background. Blue shall 


be equal to color No. 15080 in Fed. Std. 595a.   
 
F. Lines and symbols shall be accurately formed and true to line and form; lines shall be straight and 


uniform in width. 
 
G. Painted edges shall be clean cut and free from raggedness, and corners shall be cut sharp and 


square. 
 
H. Tolerances:  Apply striping within a tolerance of 1/2 inch in 50 feet.  Apply markings and striping to 


widths indicated with a tolerance of 1/4 inch on straight sections and 1/2 inch on curved sections. 
 
3.04 SITE SIGNAGE 
 


A. Provide and erect site signage at the locations shown in the drawing and drawing  detail(s) 
 


1. Products; 
a. Sign Post; 1-1/2” (1.90”O.D.) Sch. 40 Galv. Pipe  
b. Post Cap; 1-1/2” (1.90” I.D.) Galv. Domed Cap 
c. Sign Brackets; U-Clamp steel plate bracket with bolts sized for 1-1/2” 1.90” O.D.) pipe. 2 per 


sign.                                                                         
d. Sign Post Sleeve; 2” (2.38” O.D.) Sch. 40 Galv. Pipe with 3/8 X3” bolt & Nut. 
e. Concrete Footing; 4 sack, 2500 psi 
f. “Stop” Sign; MUTCD; R1-1 
g. “Accessible Parking Sign” with $250 Fine; MUTCD (Ca) R99C 
h. Accessible Parking Lot Entrance Sign; MUTCD (Ca) R100B 
i. “Van Accessible” Sign; MUTCD (Ca) R7-8b 
j. “Passenger Loading Zone Only” Sign; G-66 RA5 
k. Sign Sleeve Through Bolt; 3/8” zinc plated bolt, nut, and lock washer.  


 
2. Installation 


 
a. Pier Footings shall be per diameter and depth shown in the drawing detail. 







 PAVEMENT SEALER STRIPING AND SIGNAGE 
 32 12 36 - 5 
 


SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PROJECT NAME / NUMBER 
REVISED JULY 15, 2022 


b. Pier shall crown 1” higher in the center than the surrounding finish grade except when 
installing the post in a lawn area, the last 4” to the top of the pier shall be 12”X12” square. 
The top shall match the adjacent sidewalk elevation with a 1” crown higher in the center. 


c. Sleeves and posts shall be installed to within 1/8” of plumb in 80”. 
d. Top of sleeves shall be placed no greater than 3”and no less than 2” above finish grade with 


a 7/16” hole for the through bolt. 
e. All sleeves and posts shall be placed so the post top is no greater than 3” but no less than 2” 


taller than the top of the highest mounted sign.   
f. All signage shall be mounted to 80” (6’-8”) to the bottom of the sign(s) measured from finish 


grade. Exception; The parking lot accessible entrance signage shall be mounted no less than 
36” and no greater than 40” when placed within a “Planter”, other wise it shall be installed 
at 80” to the bottom of the sign. 


g. The accessible parking lot entrance sign shall have the name of the code enforcing agency 
along with the phone number. This information shall be an integral part of the sign when 
ordered. 


h. All posts shall have post caps installed and locked down by set screw. Glue on is not 
acceptable. 


 
3.05 PROTECTION 
 


A. Provide barricades, warning signs and devices as required to protect sealcoat and          
Striping during application and drying period. 
 


3.06    DEFECTIVE SEALCOAT 
 


A. The following description of sealcoat is considered defective and shall be corrected per the 
Engineers instructions. 


 
1. Sealcoat that’s pealing, scaling, or blistering 
2. Sealcoat diluted greater than 15% the maximum dilution rate. 
3. Sealcoat that doesn’t fill all of the crevasses within the asphalt up to a level and   smooth 


surface. 
4. Sealcoat that lacks the minimum coverage rate as directed in specifications. 
5. Sealcoat applied over petroleum products such as diesel, oil, grease, etc. 


 
3.07 CLEANING 
 


A. Refer to Section 01 74 00. 
 
B. Upon completion of work of this Section promptly remove from the working area all scraps, debris 


and surplus material of this Section. 
 
C. Clean excess material from surface of all concrete walks and utility structures. 
 
D. Clean all striping overspray from the asphalt, if necessary use blackout paint for made for asphalt. 


 
 


END OF SECTION 







 
Jeffrey Winn
SCUSD Facilities Maintenance Manager
916-395-3970 ext. 450013
916-741-1052 cell
 





 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TOAGREEMENT FOR  
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services ("Amendment") is entered into between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and California Design West Architects Inc. ("Architect ") 
(collectively the "Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Architectural Services originally entered to on September 8, 
2022. 

 
1. Approval of this Amendment: This Amendment shall be subject to the approval of the 

District's Board of Education ("Board"). Upon approval by the Board, the effective date of this 
Amendment shall be December 15, 2022; 

 
2. Extension of Term of the Agreement: This Amendment shall extend the current Architect 

staffing on the Project from September 2023 to December 2023; 
 

3. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Architect for the current staffing 
on the Project until December 31, 2023, and will pay for the increased services from and after December 15, 
2022, on a not to exceed basis up to a maximum of $237,464.40, as reflected below, unless this Amendment 
is further extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Per attached letter dated November 18, 2022, from California Design West Architects Inc. 

requesting additional services; District accepts additional services 
 

Per attached letter dated November 18, 2022, from California Design West Architects Inc. requesting 
additional services to add Kindergarten Play Equipment, as well as additional paving upgrades to the bike 
entry area.  No other changes to contract or assigned projects and assigned services provided; District 
accepts increase in service request and corresponding change order in contract amount. 

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ................................................................................................ $227,392.40 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order ..................................................................... $227,392.40 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................... ... $10,072.00 

 
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$237,464.40 

 
 
 
 
 

 
FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Rose F Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Chris Ralston, Director III 



 

 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Architect Services shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the Agreement for 
Architect Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Architect Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective 
Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: December 15, 2022 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 California Design West 
Architects Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Rose Ramos 
CBO 

 Mitch McAllister 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
2100 19TH STREET 
SACRAMENTO, CA 95818 
916.446.2466   |   OFFICE 

 
 
November 18, 2022 
 
 
 
Chris Ralston 
Director of Facilities 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
RE: Additional Services Proposal for Architectural and Engineering Services  

John Sloat Elementary School Paving Repairs and Site Security Fencing project 
 
Dear Chris,  
 
Thank you for allowing the opportunity to provide Additional Architectural and Engineering Services 
for the John Sloat Elementary School – Paving Repairs and Site Security Fencing project. We 
appreciate the opportunity to work with you and look forward to working with the Sacramento City 
Unified School District on this project, and many successful projects in the future.  
 
The District has decided to add Kindergarten Play Equipment, as well as additional paving upgrades 
to the bike entry area, which was not included in our original fee proposal or cost estimate.   
 
We will provide services to design and oversee construction for this project, including Schematic 
Design, Design Development, Construction Documents, Bidding, DSA Access Review only, 
Construction Administration, and DSA Closeout. We will coordinate project documents between the 
geotechnical engineer, all required engineering, Local Fire Marshal, and other work as required. We 
will assist the District’s funding consultant to obtain any funding available for this project, if 
applicable. 
 
Since this is a part of a larger project, we proposed a reduced lump-sum fee to add above listed 
scope to our project, with the fixed additional A&E fee below. Please see attached added scope cost 
estimate as well.  
 

FIXED ADDITIONAL A&E FEES $ 10,072.00 
 
Please contact me with any questions.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Shane Trump, AIA 
 



JOHN SLOAT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL

GRADING / DEMOLITION / MOBILIZATION 1 EA 100,000.00$        100,000.00$                

DEMO / REPLACE CONCRETE PLAY AREA - KINDER 3,500 SF 22.00$                 77,000.00$                  

STRIPING - KINDER 1 EA 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                  

STRIPING - KINDER 1 EA 10,000.00$          10,000.00$                  

CONCRETE CURB - KINDER 200 LF 55.00$                 11,000.00$                  

DEMO AC UNDER (E) PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 2,300 SF 5.00$                   11,500.00$                  

DEMO / EXPOSE OF (E) PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 1 EA 5,000.00$            5,000.00$                    

POURED-IN-PLACE FALL PROTECTION - KINDER 2,300 SF 37.00$                 85,100.00$                  

ADDED KINDER PLAY EQUIPMENT + INSTALLATION 1 EA 200,000.00$        200,000.00$                4% 8,000.00$                

CONCRETE CURB - ES 240 LF 75.00$                 18,000.00$                  

POURED-IN-PLACE FALL PROTECTION - ES 3,000 SF 37.00$                 111,000.00$                

IRRIGATION REPAIR 600 LF 25.00$                 15,000.00$                  

GRADING / PLANTING AT NEW PAVING 5,000 SF 8.00$                   40,000.00$                  

NEW STORM DRAIN 150 LF 50.00$                 7,500.00$                    

NEW STORM DRAIN INLETS 2 EA 2,000.00$            4,000.00$                    

NEW STORM DRAIN ADA GRATES 8 EA 500.00$               4,000.00$                    

DEMO (E) FENCING 1,900 LF 15.00$                 28,500.00$                  

ORNAMENTAL FENCING + MOW STRIP 350 LF 260.00$               91,000.00$                  

CHAIN LINK FENCING + MOW STRIP 1,000 LF 185.00$               185,000.00$                

SALVAGE & REINSTALL FENCING 75 LF 150.00$               11,250.00$                  

STANDARD VEHICULAR GATES 4 EA 5,000.00$            20,000.00$                  

ROLLING GATES 0 EA 10,000.00$          -$                             

MAN GATES 8 EA 5,000.00$            40,000.00$                  

CONCRETE SEAT WALLS 65 LF 250.00$               16,250.00$                  

DEMO, GRADE, NEW PIP PLAY AREA - SMALL KINDER AREA 2,300 SF 38.00$                 87,400.00$                  

CONCRETE CURB 220 LF 55.00$                 12,100.00$                  

RAMP, LANDING, CURB ACCESS 1 EA 7,000.00$            7,000.00$                    

DEMO, GRADE, NEW PIP PLAY AREA - MAIN 2,000 SF 38.00$                 76,000.00$                  

CONCRETE CURB 240 LF 75.00$                 18,000.00$                  

RAMP, LANDING, CURB ACCESS 1 EA 7,000.00$            7,000.00$                    

COMPLETE AC DEMO, GRADING AND REPLACEMENT 64,000 SF 8.00$                   512,000.00$                

LIME TREAT AC AREA 64,000 SF 4.00$                   256,000.00$                0% -$                         

PARKING STRIPING 1 EA 5,000.00$            5,000.00$                    

WHEEL STOPS 8 EA 400.00$               3,200.00$                    

REVISED DAMAGED PARKING CONCRETE WALK 1,000 SF 22.00$                 22,000.00$                  

HARDCOURT STRIPING 1 EA 25,000.00$          25,000.00$                  

US MAP STRIPING? 1 EA 15,000.00$          15,000.00$                  

4 NEW BASKETBALL SETS 4 EA 12,000.00$          48,000.00$                  

PASSENGER LOADING AREA CONCRETE 2,000 SF 22.00$                 44,000.00$                  

PASSENGER LOADING AREA ASPHALT 0 SF 16.00$                 -$                             

TRUNCATED DOMES / SIGNAGE ADA UPGRADES 5 EA 600.00$               3,000.00$                    

ADDED BIKE ENTRY AREA CONCRETE 700 SF 22.00$                 15,400.00$                  8% 1,232.00$                

ADDED LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION AT OLD BIKE AREA 700 SF 15.00$                 10,500.00$                  8% 840.00$                   

ADDED BIKE RACK 1 EA 2,500.00$            2,500.00$                    0% -$                         

SD CONNECTIONS 23 EA 750.00$               17,250.00$                  

SD INLET RELOCATION 6 EA 5,000.00$            30,000.00$                  

SD LINE REPLACEMENT 750 LF 100.00$               75,000.00$                  

WATER CONNECTIONS / SOV's 10 EA 1,000.00$            10,000.00$                  

WATER LINE REPLACEMENT 400 LF 100.00$               40,000.00$                  

WATER LINE CONNECTIONS 15 EA 1,000.00$            15,000.00$                  

SEWER CONNECTIONS / CLEANOUTS 10 EA 2,000.00$            20,000.00$                  

SEWER / GAS LINE REPLACEMENT 425 LF 150.00$               63,750.00$                  

ADDED GAS LINE VALVES / CONNECTIONS 8 EA 2,000.00$            16,000.00$                  

SUBTOTAL 2,557,200.00$             

CONTINGENCY 4.0% 102,288.00$                

PLA 15.0% 383,580.00$                

CONTRACTOR OHP 12.0% 306,864.00$                

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE 3,349,932.00$             

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

DSA FEES - DOES NOT INCLUDE CCD REVIEW HOURS 1.5% 50,248.98$                  ADDED SERVICES
ARCHITECTURAL, CIVIL, LANDSCAPE ORIGINAL 216,564.40$        226,636.40$                10,072.00$              

TOPO SURVEY PROVIDED BY DISTRICT 14,000.00$                  

UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATING PROVIDED BY DISTRICT 10,000.00$                  

TESTING & INSPECTION 1.0% 33,499.32$                  

GEOTECH / PAVING RECOMMENDATIONS 8,000.00$                    

INSPECTOR FEES 2.0% 66,998.64$                  

CM FEES 2.5% 83,748.30$                  

TOTAL PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS ~16% 493,131.64$                

TOTAL PROJECT COST

CONSTRUCTION COST 3,349,932.00$             

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COST 493,131.64$                

TOTAL PROJECT COST 3,843,063.64$             

COST ESTIMATE FOR PAVING REPAIRS AND SITE SECURITY FENCING 

11/10/2022



 

 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TOAGREEMENT FOR  
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 
This Amendment to the Agreement for Architectural Services ("Amendment") is entered into between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District ("District") and California Design West Architects Inc. ("Architect ") 
(collectively the "Parties"): 

 
Section I. Amendment to Agreement for Architectural Services originally entered to on November 1, 
2022. 

 
1. Approval of this Amendment: This Amendment shall be subject to the approval of the 

District's Board of Education ("Board"). Upon approval by the Board, the effective date of this 
Amendment shall be December 15, 2022; 

 
2. Extension of Term of the Agreement: This Amendment shall extend the current Architect 

staffing on the Project from June 2023 to December 2023; 
 

3. Fee and Method of Payment: The District shall continue to pay Architect for the current staffing 
on the Project until December 31, 2023, and will pay for the increased services from and after December 15, 
2022, on a not to exceed basis up to a maximum of $151,681.58, as reflected below, unless this Amendment 
is further extended or modified. 

 
Description of Scope Change: basis for change order 

 
Per attached letter dated November 18, 2022, from California Design West Architects Inc. 

requesting additional services; District accepts additional services 
 

Per attached letter dated November 18, 2022, from California Design West Architects Inc. requesting 
additional services to add additional fencing, gates, and handrails.  No other changes to contract or assigned 
projects and assigned services provided; District accepts increase in service request and corresponding 
change order in contract amount. 

 
Description of funding changes to contract: 

 
Original contract amount. ................................................................................................ $134,661.58 
Previous change orders through change order #- ..................................................................... $0.00 
Contract amount prior to this change order ..................................................................... $134,661.58 
Amount of this change order.......... ............................................................................... ... $17,020.00 

 
 

NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT......... ........................................................................... ......$151,681.58 
 
 
 
 

 
FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

Rose F Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Chris Ralston, Director III 



 

 
 
 

Section IL All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 
All other provisions of the Agreement for Architect Services shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby reaffirmed. If there is any conflict between this Amendment No. 1 and any provision of the Agreement for 
Architect Services, the provisions of this Amendment No. 1 shall control. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 

Architect Services to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the Effective 
Date. 

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below: 

 
 

DATE: December 15, 2022 
 
 

Sacramento City Unified School 
District 

 California Design West 
Architects Inc. 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Rose Ramos 
CBO 

 Mitch McAllister 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
2100 19TH STREET 
SACRAMENTO, CA 95818 
916.446.2466   |   OFFICE 

 
 
November 18, 2022 
 
 
 
Chris Ralston 
Director of Facilities 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
RE: Additional Services Proposal for Architectural and Engineering Services  

Sequoia Elementary School – Toilet Building and Site Security Fencing project 
 
Dear Chris,  
 
Thank you for allowing the opportunity to provide Additional Architectural and Engineering Services 
for the Sequoia Elementary School – Toilet Building and Site Security Fencing project. We 
appreciate the opportunity to work with you and look forward to working with the Sacramento City 
Unified School District on this project, and many successful projects in the future.  
 
The District has decided to add additional fencing, gates, and handrails, which was not included in 
our original fee proposal or cost estimate.   
 
We will provide services to design and oversee construction for this project, including Schematic 
Design, Design Development, Construction Documents, DSA Review, Bidding, Construction 
Administration, and DSA Closeout. We will coordinate project documents between the geotechnical 
engineer, all required engineering, Local Fire Marshal, and other work as required. We will assist the 
District’s funding consultant to obtain any funding available for this project, if applicable. 
 
Since this is a part of a larger project, we proposed a reduced lump-sum fee to add this scope to our 
project, with the fixed additional A&E fee below. Please see attached revised Cost Estimate.  
 

FIXED ADDITIONAL A&E FEES $ 17,020.00 
 
Please contact me with any questions.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Shane Trump, AIA 
 



SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

CONSTRUCTION COST

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL

MOBILIZATION / GRADING / DEMOLITION / BONDS 1 EA 100,000.00$      100,000.00$         

TOILET BUILDING 540 SF 600.00$             324,000.00$         

TOILET BUILDING - MINIMAL OVERHANG 335 SF 75.00$               25,125.00$           

SITE - REVISED ELECTRICAL 1 EA 75,000.00$        75,000.00$           

SITE - FA 350 LF 100.00$             35,000.00$           

FACP UPGRADES 1 EA 40,000.00$        40,000.00$           

SITE SEWER 50 LF 150.00$             7,500.00$             

SITE WATER 150 LF 100.00$             15,000.00$           

SITE CONCRETE 1,200 SF 16.00$               19,200.00$           

SITE AC PATCHBACK 2,000 SF 12.00$               24,000.00$           

DRY ROT REPAIR - ADD ALT 8 EA 4,000.00$          32,000.00$           

PAINT (E) CAMPUS - ADD ALT 50,000 SF 3.50$                 175,000.00$         

DEMO (E) FENCING 200 LF 15.00$               3,000.00$             

ADDITIONAL FENCING DEMO 500 LF 15.00$               7,500.00$             8% 600.00$                   

ORNAMENTAL FENCING + MOW STRIP 230 LF 250.00$             57,500.00$           

ADDED ORNAMENTAL FENCING 115 LF 200.00$             23,000.00$           4% 920.00$                   

ADDED ORNAMENTAL FENCING + MOW STRIP 890 LF 250.00$             222,500.00$         4% 8,900.00$                

STANDARD VEHICULAR GATES 2 EA 7,500.00$          15,000.00$           

ADDED VEHICULAR GATES 5 EA 7,500.00$          37,500.00$           8% 3,000.00$                

REVISE GATE / RAMP / HANDRAILS / WALK AT (E) FENCE GATE 1 EA 15,000.00$        15,000.00$           8% 1,200.00$                

MAN GATES 3 EA 5,000.00$          15,000.00$           

ADDED MAN GATES 6 EA 5,000.00$          30,000.00$           8% 2,400.00$                

SUBTOTAL 1,297,825.00$      

CONTINGENCY 8.0% 103,826.00$         

PLA / INFLATION 15.0% 194,673.75$         

CONTRACTOR OHP 14.0% 181,695.50$         

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 1,778,020.25$      

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

DSA FEES - DOES NOT INCLUDE CCD REVIEW HOURS 1.5% 26,670.30$           ADDED SERVICES
ARCHITECTURAL, CIVIL, M/E/P, STRUCTRUAL, LANDSCAPE ORIG FEE: 128,248.58$      145,268.58$         17,020.00$              

TOPO SURVEY PROVIDED BY DISTRICT 6,000.00$             

UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATING PROVIDED BY DISTRICT 6,800.00$             

GEOTECH REPORT PROVIDED BY DISTRICT 7,100.00$             

TESTING & INSPECTION ESTIMATE 1.0% 17,780.20$           

INSPECTOR FEES ESTIMATE 2.5% 44,450.51$           

CM FEES ESTIMATE 2.5% 44,450.51$           

TOTAL PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COSTS ~18% 298,520.10$         

TOTAL PROJECT COST

CONSTRUCTION COST 1,778,020.25$      

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT COST 298,520.10$         
TOTAL PROJECT COST 2,076,540.35$      

COST ESTIMATE FOR NEW TOILET BUILDING AND SITE SECURITY FENCING 

11/10/2022



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1b  
 

 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated December 15, 2022 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated December 15, 2022 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Ed.D, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 12/15/2022

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
CARROLL MICHELLE A Counselor, Middle School SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/17/2022 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PERM 10/17/22                                                                                           
FANANAPAZIR MELODY B School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/30/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/22                                                                                               
FLOREZ JULIE B Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/14/22                                                                                                  
FREDRICKSON KYLE 0 Teacher, Elementary CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 10/3/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 10/3/22                                                                                                   
MCNAIR SHUNLANTE B Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/7/22                                                                                                   
PELLEGRI LILIA B Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 11/8/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/8/22                                                                                                   
ROSENBERG LAUREL B Librarian, Middle School LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 11/10/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/10/22                                                                                                
SAFAR ANDREA B Teacher, Elementary PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 11/18/2022 6/30/2023 REEMPL PROB 11/18/22                                                                                                   
STECK ASHIKA B Teacher, Spec Ed CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 10/25/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 10/25/22                                                                                              
WARD SUMMER 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 11/30/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/30/22                                                                                               
WESTFALL AMY 0 Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22                                                                                                
WORSHAM SIMONE B Admin, Teaching and Learning SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/3/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/3/22                                                                                                   

LEAVES
BAHRAMZI GHAZALA A Teacher, Spec Ed FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/30/2022 12/16/2022 LOA (UNPD) 11/30-12/16/22                                                                                            
BAYZE JESSICA A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 11/8/2022 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA RTN (PD) 11/8/22                                                                                                
BOLTZ CASSANDRA A Teacher, Elementary EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/30/2022 12/23/2022 LOA (UNPD) 11/30-12/23/22                                                                                               
BOSTOCK GREGORY A Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/10/2022 12/2/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 11/10-12/2/22                                                                                     
GAMBOA CHERRYLYNNE A Teacher, Elementary ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/10/2022 6/30/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 10/10-6/30/23                                                                            
HACKER LARAE B School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/28/2022 1/22/2023 LOA (PD) 11/28/22-1/22/23                                                                                              
JOHNSON LYNELL A Teacher, K-8 MARTIN L. KING JR ELEMENTARY 12/12/2022 2/15/2023 LOA (PD) 12/12-2/15/23                                                                                           
PEREZ ALEJANDRA A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 10/25/2022 12/19/2022  LOA EXT (PD) 10/25-12/19/22                                                                                             
PERRY SAMANTHA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. A. M. WINN - K-8 12/1/2022 12/23/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 12/1-12/23/22                                                                                     
PERRY SAMANTHA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 12/1/2022 12/23/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA12/1-12/23/22                                                                                     
QUADRO KAYLA A Teacher, K-8 JOHN H. STILL - K-8 12/5/2022 2/10/2023 LOA (PD) 12/5-2/10/23                                                                                            
SANCHEZ LEANA A Teacher, Middle School SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 12/3/2022 1/27/2023 LOA (PD) 12/3-1/27/23                                                                                                
SANCHEZ HEIDII A Teacher, Spec Ed CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 11/18/2022 11/28/2022 ADMIN LOA RTN (PD) 11/18/22                                                                                         
SARABA SUZANNE A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (PD) 11/14/22 -6/30/23                                                                                          
SAUNDERS MICHELLE A Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 11/18/2022 1/27/2023 LOA (PD) 11/18-1/27/23                                                                                           
SAUNDERS MICHELLE A Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 1/28/2023 4/28/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/28-4/28/23                                                                                      
VAN LANINGHAM RAYMOND A Teacher, Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 9/12/2022 11/30/2022 LOA (PD) 9/12-11/30/22                                                                                                 
WENELL NITAL A Teacher, Middle School FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/19/2022 12/23/2022 EXTEND LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA  11/19-12/23/22                                                                                   
WOLF JAIME A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 10/10/2022 11/28/2022 AMEND LOA (PD) 10/10-11/28/22                                                                                         
WOLF JAIME A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 11/29/2022 6/30/2023 AMEND LOA (PD) RTN 11/29/22                                                                                           
ZAMUDIO CHAR A Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 11/18/2022 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (UNPD) 11/18/22                                                                                               

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
DENNIS MAYA B Counselor, Middle School KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 11/1/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 11/1/22                                                                                                
HUNT VANESSA B Teacher, Elementary A. M. WINN - K-8 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 7/1/22
NICKEL KIMBERLY A Teacher, Middle School ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/14/2022 1/13/2023 STATUS CHG TO PERM EFF 09/02/08                                                                                         
POLONSKY MARLEY A Teacher, Spec Ed CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 REA 11/7/22                                                                                                          
ROBB MICHELE B Coordinator III, InstTech CURRICULUM & PROF DEVELOP 10/17/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 10/17/22                                                                           
SCHROEDER VICKY A Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 9/1/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 9/1/22                                                                                                     
WHITE CELESTE B Principal, Elementary School JOHN BIDWELL ELEMENTARY 11/8/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 11/8/22                                                                                                   

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
CHEETHAM KATHERINE A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 10/24/2022 SEP/RESIGN 10/24/22 
LYNCH JONAH A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. FERN BACON MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 11/7/2022 SEP/RESIGN 11/7/22                                                                                                      
MC CARTY CHRISTINA A School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 12/23/2022 SEP/ RETIRE 12/23/22                                                                                                    
SANCHEZ DAVID C Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 10/22/2022 12/10/2022 SEP  12/10/22                                                                                                       
SJOLIE KIRSTEN A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 11/18/2022 SEP/RESIGN 11/18/22                                                                                                     

TRANSFER
DOOLITTLE MOLLY A Teacher, Resource, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 8/28/2022 TR 7/1/22                                                                                         

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
December 15, 2022



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
SANCHEZ HEIDII A Teacher, Spec Ed CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 11/29/2022 6/30/2023 TR 11/29/22                                                                                                
SEVILLA MARIA A Teacher, Elementary CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 12/2/2022 6/30/2023 ADMIN TR 12/2/22                                                                                          
STADEL MARGARET A Teacher, Elementary NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 TR 11/28/22                                                                                        



Page 1 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 12/15/2022

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY

ASUNCION VINCE B Board Cert Behavior Analyst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/7/22
BECK ALYSSA B Spec II Student Support Svcs STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 11/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/1/22
BROWN AKEENA B Campus Monitor JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 10/27/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 10/27/22
DE CAMP ABRAHAM B Plumber FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
DEAN RICHARD B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 12/5/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/5/22
DRISCOLL DANIELLE B Board Of Education Spclst BOARD OF EDUCATION 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/14/22
FLORES GARCIA SUSANA B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual WOODBINE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/9/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/9/22
FRIAS CHERILE B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/12/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/12/22
GALINDO RUBIO MARLENE B Clerk II CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 11/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/1/22
GALVAN JESUS B Recruitment & Selection Spclst HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 11/17/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/17/22
GARCIA CHRISTINA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/1/22
GOFF KEVIN B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/1/22
HARRISON TAMARA B Health Aide HEALTH SERVICES 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/14/22
HAWKINS TRACEY B Specialist II, Grounds Maint FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
HERNANDEZ MARTINEZ BERNARDETTE B Career Information Technician CAREER & TECHNICAL PREPARATION 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/14/22
HOLMAN TODD B Custodian O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 10/17/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 10/17/22
JENKINS MATTHEW B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 11/8/2022 12/1/2022 EMPLOY PROB 11/8/22
JONES DONNA B Office Tchncn II CAREER & TECHNICAL PREPARATION 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
KELLER HANNAH B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/7/22
KELLY CONOR B Board Cert Behavior Analyst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/1/22
MORENO GRANADOS ERIKA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
NANBU JON B Security Officer SECURITY SERVICES 12/5/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 12/5/22
ROBINSON XAVIER B Noon Duty JOHN H. STILL - K-8 11/8/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/8/22
RUIZ ACOSTA VERONICA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/7/22
SANCHEZ JACQUELINE B Noon Duty CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 11/3/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/3/22
STROBLE DESIREE B Noon Duty ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/7/22
THOMAS CHARLENE B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/14/22
TURNER SAMANI B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
VANG KIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/15/2022 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PROB 11/15/22
VERLOD BELINDA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
VU HOA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/28/22
WARD STEPHEN B Coord II, Research and Data STRATEGY & CONTINOUS IMPRVMNT 11/15/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 11/15/22

LEAVES
ARAGON DAWN A Clerk II JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 11/1/2022 1/1/2023 LOA (PD) 11/1-1/1/23
BEZINSKAYA ANNA B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual A. M. WINN - K-8 10/31/2022 12/21/2022 LOA (PD) 10/31/22-12/21/22
BEZINSKAYA ANNA B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual A. M. WINN - K-8 12/22/2022 3/10/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 12/22-3/10/23
DEARY NANCY A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/1/2022 12/31/2022 EXT LOA (PD) 11/1-12/31/22
HALL INDIGEO A School Plant Ops Mngr I SUCCESS ACADEMY 7/1/2022 11/1/2022 EXT ADMIN LOA (PD) 7/1/22
HALL INDIGEO A School Plant Ops Mngr I SUCCESS ACADEMY 11/2/2022 11/2/2022 ADMIN LOA RTN (PD) 11/2/22
MARSHALL KA'RON A Campus Monitor WEST CAMPUS 9/1/2022 2/28/2023 LOA (PD) 9/1-2/28/22
MILLER MICHELLE A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/12/2022 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 11/12/22
MONTILLA PEACHES YENNARY A Child Care Attendant, Chld Dev EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 11/21/2022 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (UNPD) 11/21/22
MOSS MELISSA B Certified Occup Therapy Asst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 8/1/2022 1/26/2023 LOA (UNPD) 1/27/23-7/31/23
MOSS MELISSA B Certified Occup Therapy Asst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 1/27/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (UNPD) 1/27/23-7/31/23
PHILLIPS TARA A Nutr Serv Purch and Wrhse Spec NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 12/1/22
SAGRERO LEDEZMA BYANCA B Office Tchncn II SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/7/2022 12/11/2022 LOA (PD) 11/7-12/11/22
STRONG GENE A Campus Monitor HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 11/10/2022 12/5/2022 LOA (UNPD) 11/10-12/5/22
SWANSON BRENDIN B Mngr III, Project Manager FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 12/6/2022 6/30/2023 ADMEN LOA RTN (PD) 9/21-12/6/22
TAYLOR LAVITA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 11/28/22
WASHINGTON DON B Plumber FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 9/15/2022 10/18/2022 LOA (PD) 9/15-10/18/22
WASHINGTON DON B Plumber FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 10/19/2022 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 10/19/22

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
December 15, 2022



Page 2 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
CALDERON MELISSA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/2/2022 5/31/2023 REA/STCHG 12/2/22                                                                                                 
CHEUNG ANNA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/28/2022 11/30/2022 STCHG 11/28/22                                                                                                
CRUZ NATALIA B School Office Manager I PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/9/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 11/9/22                                                                                                   
DEL TORO YESENIA A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 11/7/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 11/7/22                                                                                                  
DONALDSON TIMOTHY B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 12/1/22                                                                                          
HALL INDIGEO A Custodian ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 11/3/2022 6/30/2023 REA 11/3/22                                                                                  
JENKINS MATTHEW B Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 12/2/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 12/2/22                                                                                                 
LU JIAN QIN B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 REA/ STCHG 12/1/22                                                                                                       
MARTINEZ SARA B Spec II Student Support Svcs STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 10/17/2022 6/30/2023 REA 10/17/22                                                                                                        
MORALES OMAR B School Plant Ops Mngr I MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 11/14/22                                                                   
MORGAN SARA B Spec II Student Support Svcs STUDENT SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS 10/3/2022 6/30/2023 REA 10/3/22                                                                                                         
PENA YOLANDA A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 12/1/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 12/1/22                                                                                                    
RIVAS LALENA A Transition Asst SpEd SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/1/2022 12/31/2022 REA/STCHG 11/1/22                                                                                                       
SOLORZANO-FOSTER AZIZA B Office Tchncn III SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/15/2022 3/31/2023 REA/ STCHG 11/15/22                                                                                     
TURNER TANISHA B HR Services, Change Mgt Coord HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 9/1/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 9/1/22                                                                                 
VANG TOMMY B Office Tchncn III SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 11/15/2022 6/30/2023 REA/ STCHG 11/15/22                                                                                        
WINN JEFFREY B Manager III, Facilities Maint FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 7/1/22                                                                                                  
YNIGUEZ MELISSA B Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 11/14/2022 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 11/14/22                                                                   

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
BROWN ERIKA A Administrative Asst-EIS LEARNING SUPPORT UNIT B 7/1/2022 12/9/2022 SEP/RESIGN 12/9/22                                                                                                    
DIXON JASON B Mngr II, Dist Ops & Sec Srvs BUILDINGS & GROUNDS/OPERATIONS 7/1/2022 12/2/2022 SEP/RESIGN 12/2/22                                                                                                    
EASON LEANGELA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 9/1/2022 11/10/2022 SEP/RESIGN 11/10/22                                                                                                   
GARCIA MARIA B Teacher Assistant, Bilingual BG CHACON ACADEMY 7/1/2022 9/1/2022 SEP/RESIGN 9/1/22                                                                                                       
GRAY JENNIFER B Inst Aid, Spec Ed FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 9/1/2022 12/2/2022 SEP/RESIGN 12/2/22                                                                                                      
JAQUEZ SABRINA B Credential Auditor HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 7/1/2022 10/31/2022 SEP/RESIGN 10/31/22                                                                                                   
KUE KA A Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 7/1/2022 12/9/2022 SEP/RESIGN 12/9/22                                                                                                    
LARA ADRIANA A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/27/2022 6/16/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/22                                                                                                      
THAO WILSON B Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 11/1/2022 12/9/2022 SEP/RESIGN 12/9/22                                                                                                    
VARGAS-RODRIGUEZ BERNABE B Campus Monitor LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 11/2/2022 11/14/2022 SEP/TERM 11/14/22                                                        

TRANSFER
HALEEM JOANNE A Instructional Aide MARTIN L. KING JR ELEMENTARY 10/26/2022 6/30/2023 TR 10/26/22                                                                                                        
ONEIL BRYCE A Custodian LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 11/28/2022 6/30/2023 ADMIN TR 11/28/22                                                                                                         



Page 3 of 3

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _11.1c___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
 
Subject: Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the period of November 1-30, 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve attached list of warrants and checks. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  The detailed list of warrants, checks and electronic transfers issued 
for the period of November 1-30, 2022 are available for the Board members upon request. 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  Normal business items that reflect payments from district funds. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached: 
• Warrants, Checks and Electronic Transfers for the period of November 1-30, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



la.ksl

Page 1 : 1 Sacramento City Unified School District
Warrants, Checks and Electronic Funds Transfers November 2022

Account Document Numbers Fund Amount 

97409805 - 97410385 581 items 12,293,471.93$         

General (01) 8,524,619.98$           

Charter (09) 60,785.78$                

Adult Education (11) 41,917.15$                

Child Development (12) 16,850.00$                

Cafeteria (13) 1,186,305.63$           

Building (21) 1,608,006.67$           

Developer Fees (25) 12,654.48$                

Cafeteria Enterprise (61) 7.13$                         

Self Insurance (67) 13,185.39$                

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 819,075.68$              

Payroll Revolving (76) 10,064.04$                

00002156 - 00002157 2 items 2,866.16$                  

General (01)

Payroll Revolving (76) 2,866.16$                  

97883792 - 97884837 1046 items 5,111,969.40$           

General (01) 1,527,200.68$           

Charter (09) 69,551.12$                

Adult Education (11) 12,138.51$                

Child Development (12) 56,564.00$                

Cafeteria (13) 131,399.36$              

Payroll Revolving (76) 3,315,115.73$           

ACH 01480100 - 01485704 5606 items 18,104,144.91$         

EFT 00000113 - 00000114 General (01) 16,391,101.31$         

Charter (09) 479,941.02$              

Adult Education (11) 193,372.13$              

Child Development (12) 361,778.97$              

Cafeteria (13) 553,015.09$              

Building (21) 41,742.93$                

Self Insurance (67) 15,750.64$                

Self Ins Dental/Vision (68) 7,189.23$                  

Payroll Revolving (76) 60,253.59$                

9700349785 - 9700349817 33 items 33,073,273.92$         

General (01) 99,565.17$                

Payroll Revolving (76) 32,973,708.75$         

Total 7268 items 68,585,726.32$         

County Accounts 

Payable Warrants

Alternate Cash 

Revolving Checks

Payroll and Payroll 

Vendor Warrants

Payroll ACHs and  

Payroll Vendor EFTs

County Wire Transfers 

for Benefit, Debt & Tax



Page 1 of 1 
 

            SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _11.1d___ 

 

 

Meeting Date:   December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:   Approve Donations to the District for the Period of November 1-30, 2022 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Accept the donations to the District for the period of November 1-30, 
2022 
   
Background/Rationale:  Per Board Policy 3290 Gifts, Grants and Bequests, the Board of 
Education accepts donations on behalf of the schools and the District. After Board approval, 
the Board Office will send a letter of recognition to the donors.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy and 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 

 Donations Report for the period of November 1-30, 2022  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Estimated Time:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent    



Receipt DetailAR06a

B OF A   - BANK OF AMERICA

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

11/15/22 Donation, Frontstream, Ck3326981BA23-0001061 BA0000322(000664) FRONTSTREAM Check 33269817549Posted 224.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   - - - - 0242- 224.00 

224.00 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 224.00 Donation Board Acknowledgement

224.00 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Fiscal Year 2023      

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  224.00 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 11/1/2022, Ending Receipt Date = 11/30/2022, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:37PM

Page 1 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

11/02/22 Foundation acct, Orrick, Herrington et al, Ck3186BW23-0000368 BOTW110222(000084) ORRICK, HERRINGTON, SUTCLIFFE FOUNDATIONCheck 31867498Posted 22,000.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0265- 22,000.00 

11/09/22 Donation, Reading for Ed, Ck106786BW23-0000419 BOTW110922Reading for Education Check 1067867499Posted 151.67 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0148- 151.67 

11/30/22 Donation, Crocker Riverside PTO, Ck1738BW23-0000469 BOTW113022(0300-2) CROCKER RIVERSIDE ELEM SCHOOL PARENT TEACHER ORGANIZATIONCheck 17387557Posted 11,000.00 

01- 0812- 0- 8690-   -     -     -    - 0300- 11,000.00 

33,375.67 Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  

Fund-Object Recap

01-8690 33,151.67 Donation Board Acknowledgement

33,151.67 Fund 01 - General Fund   

Total for Sacramento City Unified School District  33,375.67 

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District

224.00 C - Check

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 11/1/2022, Ending Receipt Date = 11/30/2022, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:37PM

Page 2 of 3



Receipt DetailAR06a

BOTW AP  - Bank of the West (AP)

Receipt Id Customer
Receipt
Type

Receipt
Amount

Receipt
Date Loc

Customer
Reference # Invoice # Deposit Id Comment

Batch
Id

Receipt
Status

Org Recap

Sacramento City Unified School District (continued)

33,151.67 C - Check

Report Total 33,375.67 

* On Hold

Selection Sorted by Receipt Id, Filtered by (Org = 97, Starting Receipt Date = 11/1/2022, Ending Receipt Date = 11/30/2022, User Created = N, On Hold? = Y, 

No Invoice = Y, Object = 8690, Accounts? = Y, Recap = O, Sort/Group = )

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:37PM

Page 3 of 3



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 11.1e__ 
 

 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022   
 
Subject:  Approve C.K. McClatchy High School Gonzaga Debate  
                Tournament in Spokane, WA from Jan 5-8, 2023 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent 
 
Recommendation:  Approve C.K. McClatchy High School Gonzaga Debate  
Tournament in Spokane, WA from Jan 5-8, 2023 
 
Background/Rationale:  On January 5, six students, the debate coach, and one 
chaperone will travel by commercial airline to Spokane for 3 nights to participate in The 
Gonzaga University Debate Tournament. 
 
Financial Considerations:  There is no cost to the district. Expenses will be paid by 
the Sacramento Urban Debate League. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College preparedness, increasing communication and critical thinking 
skills. 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Out-of-state field trip documents 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A  
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 
  Vanessa Buitrago, Assistant Superintendent 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
 









SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item No.: 11.1f 

 
 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject: Approve Recommendations for Measure H Citizens’ Bond Oversight 
               Committee Membership 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Department: Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation: Approve these individuals as Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
Members for Measure H: 

• Amber Verdugo 
• Andrea McPhee 
• Andrew Marks 
• Arthur Aleman 
• Brian Hill 
• Charlotte Yates 
• Christian Burkin 
• Christine Casey 
• David Mack 
• David O’Tool 
• Gabriel Tiffany 
• Ian Davis 
• James Miller 
• Julia Gahagan 
• Kae Saephanh 
• Manuel Jimenez 
• Maria Degelos 
• Nicole Elton 
• Nija Fountano 
• Robert Herrell 



Background/Rationale: During the March 2020 election, Sacramento City USD voters 
approved Measure H, the District’s $750 million bond proposal, to provide safe, 
environmentally adaptable, modern schools and playfields through an equitable 
framework. After a bond measure is approved by voters, the SCUSD Board of 
Education is legally required to appoint a Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee (CBOC). 
The statutes governing the CBOC are set forth in Education Code Sections 15278, 
15280, and 15282. The District sold its first set of Measure H bonds earlier this year and 
is now in the need of finalizing the creation of the corresponding CBOC. 
 
The purpose of a CBOC is derived from the provisions of Proposition 39 that specify the 
need to ensure accountability by informing the public concerning the expenditure of 
bond revenues. The CBOC reviews the expenditures of bond funds ensuring that they 
are only spent for the construction, modernization or replacement of school facilities in 
accordance with the bond language. The CBOC meets four times a year and works with 
district staff to coordinate the agenda.  During those meetings, the committee will 
receive reports from staff on the status of bond projects and expenditures and may tour 
facilities. District staff will also arrange for CBOC training as needed.  Annually, a 
financial audit and a performance audit will be presented for the committee’s review. 
The CBOC is also responsible for a year-end report to the Board of Education. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 

 
LCAP Goal (s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy 
and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
Redacted BOE Recommendations-Revised 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Nathaniel Browning, Director of Facilities 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
 

Page 2 of 2 



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp





elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp





elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp





elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp





elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Construction Innovations

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp



elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp





Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp

elena-hankard
Stamp







Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp



Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp



Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp

Nathaniel-Browning
Stamp



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item No.: 11.1g 

 
 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject: Approve Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District Site 
               Use Agreement for Outdoor Air Quality Monitoring at Fern Bacon Middle 
               School 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Department: Facilities Support Services 
 
Recommendation: Approve Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District 
Site Use Agreement for Outdoor Air Quality Monitoring at Fern Bacon Middle School 
 
Background/Rationale: The Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District 
(SMAQMD) has an obligation through Assembly Bill (AB) 617 (C. Garcia) to monitor for 
air pollution and reduce exposure in communities that show a higher air pollution 
burden. SMAQMD desires to park an air monitoring trailer at a certain and specific 
location on Fern Bacon Middle School in order to best monitor outdoor air quality within 
the neighborhood. The trailer will be placed on the site as indicated in Exhibit A included 
within the Agreement attached, and SMAQMD, site staff, and the facilities department 
jointly identified the location. Furthermore, the location was identified by finding a 
location that was close enough to a power source, but far enough away from any 
buildings that might influence wind circulation that might adversely impact proper air 
monitoring. The location was also selected in order to not interfere with student or site 
programming, and where SMAQMD may secure the trailer in order to eliminate student 
dangers or reduce potential vandalism. The trailer would be parking in the outlined 
location for 5 years.  
 
Financial Considerations:  SMAQMD to pay for site improvements required to power 
the trailer, a percentage of the site’s utilities, and $25 per month for the placement of the 
air monitoring trailer for the next five years. 

 



LCAP Goal (s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy 
and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:  

1. Air Monitoring Site Agreement 
 

 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation: NA 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
   Nathaniel Browning, Director of Facilities 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 



 

1 
 

AIR MONITORING SITE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SACRAMENTO 
METROPOLITAN AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

 
This Site Use Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into on December 31, 2022 
("Effective Date"), by and between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a 
public school district, ("District") and Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management 
District, a California local public agency, ("Licensee"). The District and Licensee are 
collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. WHEREAS, District is the owner of certain real property, Fern Bacon Middle 

School, located at 4140 Cuny Avenue, Sacramento, California 95823 
("Property"); 

 
B. WHEREAS, Licensee has an obligation through Assembly Bill (AB) 617 (C. 

Garcia, Chapter 136, Statutes of 2017), to monitor for air pollution and reduce 
exposure in communities that show a higher air pollution burden.  

 
C. WHEREAS, Licensee wishes to operate an air monitoring trailer at a certain 

location on the Property, which is further described in Exhibit A hereto 
("Premises"); 

 
D. WHEREAS, the Premises would contain an air monitoring trailer and certain 

air monitoring equipment that will be installed and maintained by Licensee; 
 

E. WHEREAS, the air monitoring trailer and equipment will be installed and 
maintained in accordance with District Standards and Specifications; 

 
F. WHEREAS, Licensee may need to update and/or replace its air monitoring 

equipment located on the Premises during the duration of this agreement; and 
 

G. WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to enter into this Agreement permitting Licensee 
to install, maintain, update, or replace air monitoring equipment on the Premises and 
to utilize the Premises for the purpose of monitoring the air quality. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and conditions of this 
Agreement, including the recitals hereof, which are incorporated herein by this reference, 
the Parties agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 



 

2 
 

1. Grant of License.  District hereby grants use to Licensee, and Licensee hereby 
accepts from District, a revocable non-exclusive license ("License") to access and 
use the Property under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

2. Permitted Uses of Premises.  Licensee may only use the Premises, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, for purposes consistent with air quality 
management. Licensee shall be responsible for use and development of the 
Property for the intended purposes.  

 
a. District permits use of all air monitoring equipment installed and maintained by 

Licensee, including compressed gas cylinders. Licensee agrees to handle and 
maintain all compressed gas cylinders in compliance with all applicable federal, 
state, or local laws and regulations. 
 

3. Ongoing Access to Premises.  Licensee, Licensee's employees, and agents, shall 
have access to the Premises only for air monitoring purposes and for replacement 
of air monitoring equipment. District reserves the right to refuse Licensee access to 
the Premises at particular times and particular dates, when such access will 
interfere with the District's use of the Property. District grants to Licensee and 
Licensee's employees and agents, a non-exclusive right of access for pedestrian and 
vehicular ingress and egress across the Premises. Any access by Licensee, 
Licensee’s employees, and agents will be arranged and approved by District staff 
beforehand.  
 

a. Licensee shall install any warning signs on or about the Premises required 
by federal, state or local law. 
 

b. In exercising its right of access to the Premises herein, Licensee agrees to 
cooperate with any reasonable security procedures utilized by District on the 
Premises and further agrees not to unduly disturb or interfere with the business 
or other activities of District or other occupants of the Property. 
 

c. District shall maintain all existing access to roadways or driveways extending 
from the nearest public roadway to the Premises in a manner sufficient to allow 
for Licensee's access to the Premises. District shall be responsible for 
maintaining and repairing such roadways and driveways at District's sole 
expense, except for any damage caused by Licensee's use of such roadways or 
driveways. If Licensee causes any such damage, Licensee shall promptly repair 
the same at its sole expense. 

 
4. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 25, 2022 ("Effective 

Date") and shall be for five (5) years ("Term"). The term shall not 
automatically renew at the end of the initial term. Additional terms may be 
negotiated. 



 

3 
 

 
5. License Fee.  Licensee may use the Premises for $25 per month, to be paid 

annually by December 31. District reserves the right, after the Term, to 
impose fees for use of the Premises by Licensee, in accordance with 
applicable law. 

 
6. Taxes, Assessments and Other Charges.  Although this Agreement creates no 

interest in the Property, Licensee acknowledges that, pursuant to California Revenue 
and Taxation Code section I 07.6, under some circumstances, Licensee's use of the 
Property may be subject to property taxation. District makes no representation as to 
whether or not taxes are due. Licensee shall be solely responsible for any property taxes 
arising out of Licensee's use of the Property, including delinquent taxes. If District 
receives a notice of property tax liability arising out of Licensee's use of the Property, 
District shall immediately send the notice to Licensee, pursuant to Section 26 of this 
Agreement, so Licensee may timely address the notice and pay any associated property 
tax liability. 

 
7. Non-Exclusive Use of Property.  District retains for the Term of this Agreement, the 

non-exclusive right to use of the Premises. District's right to use the Premises pursuant 
to this Agreement is non-exclusive, and shall in no way unreasonably interfere with 
Licensee's rights under this Agreement. 

 
8. Assignment.  Unless expressly stated herein, neither party may assign, delegate, 

sublicense, or otherwise transfer their rights and obligations under this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party. Any transfer, 
assignment, delegation or sublicense by a party without such prior written consent is 
invalid. 

 
9. Prohibited Use.  Licensee shall not place upon the Premises any hazardous materials 

and shall properly dispose of all wastes in a legal manner and in appropriate 
receptacles. Licensee shall not create a nuisance or perform any other act or thing 
which interferes with the quiet enjoyment of the surrounding property by District or any 
sublicensee. For purposes of this Agreement, hazardous materials mean any materials 
or substances defined as hazardous materials, substances or waste, or toxic materials, 
substances or hazardous waste as those terms or similar terms are defined by any other 
federal, state or local law, rule, regulation, ordinance or order. 

 
10. Conditions of Property.  Licensee accepts use of the Premises in its existing "AS IS" 

condition on the Effective Date, without any representations or warranties of any 
kind express or implied, with respect thereto. Licensee also assumes the risk of any 
damage to property or injury to persons which may be caused by Licensee's use of 
the Premises. Except as expressly permitted by this Agreement and any Exhibits 
attached hereto, Licensee shall not make any alterations, renovations or 
improvements ("Improvements") to the Property without the prior written consent of 



 

4 
 

District. If District authorizes any Improvements, Licensee shall pay for all such 
Improvements, and shall indemnify, defend and hold District harmless with respect to 
any claim for mechanics' or materialmen's liens for work performed, services 
rendered, and materials provided or delivered to or for Licensee for such purpose.  
 
Licensee will have a licensed contractor connect to existing power at the building 
just East of the trailer location.  The power lines will be routed through an existing 
buried pipe that is already installed on site. Minimal trenching and backfilling in 
the grass area just West of the air monitoring trailer will be needed.  Licensee will 
also have a contractor install 6-foot-tall temporary chain link fencing around the 
entire air monitoring trailer. 

 
11. Maintenance.  Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall at all times during the 

Term of this Agreement, keep and maintain the Premises in good order and condition, 
and free from rubbish, debris and brush. 

 
12. Utilities.  Licensee will pay all utilities necessary to operate and maintain the Premises 

including, without limitation, water, gas, and electricity. Licensee will pay the District 
a monthly fee of $390.00 per month for the use of electricity. District reserves the right, 
after a year, to renegotiate a monthly fee for the use of electricity.  

 
13. Improvements.  With the prior written approval of District, Licensee may, at its 

sole cost and expense, construct or cause to be constructed on the Premises those 
alterations, additions, and improvements ("Improvements'') which Licensee deems 
necessary to its permitted uses of the Premises, subject to local site, zoning, and 
design review and other required approvals. Upon Licensee's request for the 
District's written approval, Licensee shall provide District all drawings from any 
schematic design phase of a proposed Improvement to District for review and 
approval. District may require additional information and drawing prior to providing 
its approval. 

 
a. Licensee shall be solely responsible, at its own cost and expense, for securing and 

maintaining all applicable local, State and governmental permits and approvals 
necessary for the completion of any Improvements undertaken by Licensee on the 
Premises. All Improvements shall be reviewed and approved by the District for 
compliance with Division of State Architect requirements. All Improvements 
constructed on the Premises by Licensee shall remain the sole property of Licensee 
during the Term of this Agreement and upon expiration of the Agreement or earlier 
termination as herein provided. 

 
14. Title to Property.  Licensee acknowledges the legal title of District to the Property 

and agrees never to deny such title or to claim title in Licensee's name. Licensee shall 
exercise the privilege granted in this Agreement at Licensee's own risk, and hereby 
waives any and all claims for damages against District for any injuries or damages 



 

5 
 

suffered because of the exercise of such privilege. 
 

15. Liens and Claims. Licensee shall not suffer or permit to be enforced against District's 
title to the Property any lien, claim or demand arising from any construction activities 
conducted under the terms of this Agreement. Licensee shall pay all such liens, claims 
or demands before any action is brought to enforce any such lien, claim or demand 
against the Property together with all costs and expenses in connection therewith. 

 
16. License Subject to Existing Rights of Others.  This License is subject to all existing 

easements, servitudes, licenses, rights of ways for canals, ditches, levees, roads, 
highways, and telegraph, telephone, electric power lines, pipelines, and other 
appurtenances, whether recorded or not. 

 
17. Termination.  Either party may terminate the License and this Agreement at any time 

by providing thirty (30) days' written notice to the other party. Upon termination or 
expiration of the Agreement, Licensee shall return the Premises to its original 
condition, normal wear and tear excepted. All authorized Improvements to the 
Premises shall remain the sole property of the District. Licensee is responsible for the 
cost of any damage caused to the Property resulting from Licensee’s use or access.  

 
18. Indemnification.  District shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Licensee and 

its governing body and each member thereof, officers, employees and agents, from 
every expense, cost, loss, claim, demand, suit, action, judgment, liability, or payment, 
including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising from or relating to District’s 
operation, use or occupancy of the Premises, or otherwise arising from this 
Agreement and the subject matter thereof, except to the extent that said expense, cost, 
loss, claim, demand, suit, action, judgment, liability, or payment was caused by 
Licensee's wrongful or negligent act or omission. Licensee shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold harmless District, its employees, agents, consultants, independent contractors, 
governing board, and board members, from every expense, cost, loss, claim, demand, 
suit, action, judgment, liability, or payment, including but not limited to attorney's 
fees, arising from or relating to Licensee's use, occupancy, or possession of the 
Premises, or otherwise arising from this Agreement and the subject matter thereof, 
except to the extent that said expense, cost, loss, claim, demand, suit, action, 
judgment, liability, or payment was caused by District's wrongful or negligent act or 
omission. This Section shall survive termination, cancellation, or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 

19. Insurance.  Licensee shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, and at its 
own cost and expense, procure and continue in force the following insurance 
coverage: Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability insurance with a combined 
single limit for bodily injury and property damage of not less than Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and not less than Four Million Dollars 
($4,000,000) for property damage, and shall be maintained on an occurrence basis. 



 

6 
 

Such minimum limits of policies shall in no event limit the liability of Licensee 
hereunder. Such insurance shall name the District as an additional insured. 
Insurance, shall be with companies having a rating of not less than A- in "Best's 
Insurance Guide". Licensee shall furnish from the insurer or cause the insurer to 
furnish certificates of coverage to the District.  No such policy shall be cancelable 
or subject to reduction of coverage or other modification or cancellation except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District by the insurer and with 
the consent of the District thereto. 

 
a. In the event of property damage or personal injury caused by Licensee, its 

officers, employees or agents, all such policies shall be considered primary 
policies not contributing with and not in excess of the coverage that the District 
must carry. In the event property damage or personal injury is caused by the 
District, its officers, employees, or agents, or any unaffiliated third party, 
Licensee policies shall be secondary and in excess of the coverage that the 
District may carry. Licensee shall, at least twenty (20) days prior to the 
expiration of such policies, furnish the District with renewals or binders. 
Licensee agrees that if Licensee does not take out and maintain such insurance, 
then the District may (but shall not be required to) procure said insurance on 
Licensee's behalf and charge Licensee the premiums together with a 15% 
handling charge, payable upon demand. 
 

b. Licensee shall have the right to provide such insurance coverage pursuant to 
blanket policies obtained by Licensee provided such blanket policies expressly 
afford coverage to the Premises and to Licensee as required by this Agreement. 

 
c. During the term of this Agreement, the District shall continue to maintain 

insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property (real and 
personal), including any personal property of the District in amounts equal to 
that maintained by the District prior to Licensee's occupancy. 

 
20. Safety.  Licensee shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the 

Premises, including safety of all persons and property.  The foregoing shall include but 
not be limited to ensuring that the installation of any improvements to the Premises are 
adequately secured by Licensee to avoid the creation of an attractive nuisance or other 
hazardous condition.  Licensee, its agents, employees, invitees, volunteers, and 
independent contractors shall fully comply with all state, federal and other laws, rules, 
regulations, and orders relating to safety.  All materials, equipment, and supplies 
provided for the Premises and services provided shall fully conform to all applicable 
State, local and Federal safety laws, rules, regulations, and orders. Neither Licensee, 
nor any of its agents, employees, invitees, volunteers, and independent contractors will 
have contact with District students.    

 
21. Severability.  If any clause, sentence, term or provision of this Agreement shall be 



 

7 
 

held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable 
for any reason, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall nonetheless remain 
in full force and effect. This Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to 
its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against either of the parties who jointly 
prepared this Agreement. 
 

22. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted under the 
laws of the State of California applicable to instruments, persons, transactions and 
subject matter which have legal contacts and relationships exclusively within the 
State of California. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with 
respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the 
State of California for Sacramento County, subject to any motion for transfer of 
venue. 

 
23. No Partnership/Joint Venture.  This Agreement does not and shall not evidence 

a partnership or joint venture between the District and Licensee. 
 

24. Third Party Beneficiaries.  Unless specifically set forth herein, nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed to confer any rights upon any party not a signatory 
to this Agreement. 

 
25. Voluntary Agreement.  Licensee and District each represent that they have read 

this Agreement in full and understand and voluntarily agree to all provisions herein.  
The Parties further declare that prior to signing this Agreement they each had the 
opportunity to apprise themselves of relevant information, through sources of their 
own selection, including consultation with counsel of their choosing if desired, in 
deciding whether to execute this Agreement. 

 
26. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, along with any Exhibits referenced herein 

and attached hereto, constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the 
parties regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all offers, negotiations 
and other agreements concerning the subject matter contained herein. There are no 
representations or understandings of any kind not set forth herein. Any 
modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall not be effective unless in 
writing and executed by authorized representatives of both parties. 

 
27. Notice.  Whenever under this Agreement one party is required or permitted to give 

notice to the other, such notice will be in writing, addressed as follows, and deemed 
given upon the earlier of delivery or five (5) calendar days after such notice is 
mailed by registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested, 
postage prepaid to the individual at the address identified with the signatures 
below. A party may change its address for notices by providing notice to the other 
parties as provided below. 

  



 

8 
 

 
To the District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
Attn: Rose F. Ramos 
Chief Business & Operations Officer 
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95818 

To the Licensee: 
 
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality 
Management District 
Attn: Levi Ford 
Program Supervisor 
777 12th Street, Suite 300 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
28. Waiver.  No delay or omission by District in exercising any right under this 

Agreement shall operate as a waiver of that or any other right and no single or 
partial exercise of any right shall preclude District from any or further exercise 
of any right or remedy. 
 

29. Successor and Assigns.  The covenants and conditions herein contained, subject to 
the provisions as to assignment, apply and bind the heirs, successors, executors, 
administrators and assigns of the Parties hereto. 

 
30. Amendments.  No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified except 

by an agreement in writing signed by the Parties hereto. 
 

31. Construction.  Each of the Parties acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is 
to be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning and not in favor of nor 
against any of the Parties as draftsman or otherwise. 

 
32. Prevailing Authority.  In the event of a conflict between the law and the terms of 

this Agreement, the law shall prevail, and any such conflicting terms shall be severed 
from this Agreement and nullified. 

 
33. Subject to Approval by Governing Board.  This Agreement shall become 

effective upon ratification by the District's Governing Board. 
 

34. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute an original of the Agreement. Signatures transmitted via 
facsimile or portable document format ("pdf”) to other Parties to this Agreement 
shall be deemed equivalent to original signatures on counterparts. 

 
35. Warranty of Authority.  Each of the persons signing this Agreement represents 

and warrants that such person has been duly authorized to sign this Agreement on 
behalf of the Party indicated, and each of the Parties by signing this Agreement 
warrants and represents that such Party is legally authorized and entitled to enter 
into this Agreement. 

 
  



 

9 
 

APPROVED AND RATIFIED, this ____ day of ___________, 2022, the Board of Trustees of 
the Sacramento City Unified School District by the following vote: 
 
AYES: ____ 
 
NOES: ____ 
 
Abstentions: ____ 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed the Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
 
DISTRICT:     LICENSEE:  
 
Sacramento City Unified School District Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management 

District 
 
By: _____________________________ By: _________________________________ 
 Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  Alberto Ayala, Executive Director/APCO 

Date: ___________________________ Date: ________________________________ 
       

Reviewed by: ______________________________ 
        Kathrine Pittard, District Counsel 



 

10 
 

Exhibit A 

 

 
 

 
 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 11.1h 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
 
Subject:  Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #6,7,8,& 9, 2022-23 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
 

Division:  Student Hearing and Placement Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve staff recommendation for Expulsion #6,7,8, &9 , 2022-23. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
None 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 

  Stephan Brown, Director III 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Agenda Item# _____ 
 
 

Meeting Date: December 15, 2022 
 

Subject: Resolution No. 3299: Authorizing Delegation of Power to Contract 
to Include Jesse Castillo and Robert Aldama 

 

Information Item Only 
Approval on Consent Agenda 
Conference (for discussion only) 
Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:  ) 
Conference/Action 
Action 
Public Hearing 

 
Division: Business Services 

 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 2399, Authorizing Delegation of Power to 
Contract and rescind prior Resolution No.3219, Effective December 15, 2022. 

 
Background/Rationale: Education Code Section 17604 authorizes governing boards of 
school districts to delegate to the superintendent, or to such persons designated by the 
superintendent, the power to contract in the name of the district whenever the Education Code 
invests the power to contract in a governing board or any member of the board. In addition, 
Education Code Section 17605 authorizes governing boards to delegate to any officer or 
employee of the district the authority to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment, 
and services within the expenditure limitations specified in Public Contract Code Section 
20111. 

 
This resolution reflects changes in district staff. 

 
Financial Considerations: None 

 

Documents Attached: 
1) Resolution No. 3299, Authorizing Delegation of Power to Contract 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 

Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 

Submitted by: Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 

Approved by: Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

11.1i



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3299 

 
Authorizing Delegation of Power to Contract 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code Section 17604 authorizes the Governing Board to delegate to the 

district Superintendent or designee, the power to contract in the name of the Sacramento City Unified 
School District whenever the Education Code invests the power to contract in a governing board or any 
member of the board; and 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code Section 17605 authorizes the Governing Board  to delegate to 

any officer or employee of the Sacramento City Unified School District the authority to purchase 
supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment, and services within the expenditure limitations specified in 
Public Contract Code Section 20111; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 2, 2021, the Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified 

School District adopted Resolution No. 3219 designating persons authorized to be empowered to 
contract which is hereby rescinded; and 

 
BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Governing Board of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District that in accordance with Education Code Section 17604, effective December 15, 
2022, Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D., Superintendent, Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer, 
Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer, Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent,  Jesse Castillo, 
Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, and Robert Aldama, Interim Manager II, Purchasing 
Services, be and are hereby authorized and empowered to contract with third parties in the name of 
the Sacramento City Unified School District wherever the Education Code invests the power to 
contract in the Governing Board of the School District or any member of the Governing Board, 
without limitation as to money or subject matter; provided, however, that all such contracts must be 
approved or ratified by the Governing Board; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Governing Board of the 

Sacramento City Unified School District that in accordance with Education Code Section 17605, 
effective December 15, 2022, J Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D., Superintendent, Rose Ramos, Chief Business 
and Operations Officer, Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer, Lisa Allen, Deputy 
Superintendent,  Jesse Castillo, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, and Robert Aldama, 
Interim Manager II, Purchasing Services, be and are hereby authorized and empowered to contract for 
the purchase of supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment, and services; provided, however, that no 
such individual purchase shall involve an expenditure by the District in excess of the amount specified 
by Section 20111 of the Public Contract Code; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that all such transactions to purchase 

supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment, and services entered into in accordance with Education Code 
Section 17605 shall be reviewed by the Governing Board every sixty (60) days; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that in the event of malfeasance in office, 

each of the persons named above shall be personally liable to the Sacramento City Unified School 
District for any and all monies of the District paid out as a result of such malfeasance; and 

1 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the persons named above shall be and 
are hereby authorized to insure against any such liability, and the cost of such insurance shall be paid 
from the funds of the District; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the term “Contract” as used herein 

shall be deemed to include orders to contract. 
 
 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES: 
 

 
  

Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D. 
Superintendent 

            Lisa Allen 
Deputy Superintendent 

 
 

Rose Ramos 
Chief Business and Operations Officer 

 

 
Cancy McArn 
Chief Human Resources Officer 

 

 
Added Authorizer Jesse Castillo 

Assistant Superintendent of 
Business Services 

 
 
 

     Added Authorizer RobertAldama 
Interim Manager II, Purchasing 
Services 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board 
of Education on this 15th day of December 2022, by the following vote: 

 
 

     AYES:  ____  
     NOES:  ____  
     ABSTAIN:  ____  
     ABSENT: ____  
                                                                                                      ___________________________________  

  Christina Pritchett,  
    ATTESTED TO:                                                                      President of the Board of Education  
      
 
    ______________________________________  
   Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D.,  
   Secretary of the Board of Education 

2 



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _11.1j___ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 3300: Authorization of Personnel to Sign Orders on District 
                Funds 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3300, Authorization of Personnel to Sign 
Orders on District Funds and rescind prior Resolution No. 3175, Effective December 15, 
2022. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code Section 42632 authorizes governing boards of 
school districts to delegate to officers or employees of the district the authority to sign orders 
on district funds. 
 
This resolution reflects changes in district staff. 

 
 

Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1.  Resolution No. 3300, Authorization of Personnel to Sign Orders on District Funds 

 
Estimated Time:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 1

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3300 

 
Authorization of Personnel to Sign Orders on District Funds 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code Section 42632 authorizes the Governing Board to delegate to 

officers and employees of the Sacramento City Unified School District the authority to sign orders 
drawn on the funds of the school district; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 10, 2020, the Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified 
School District adopted Resolution No. 3175 designating persons authorized to sign orders in its name 
which is hereby rescinded; and 
 

WHEREAS, Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D.is Superintendent; Lisa Allen is Deputy Superintendent; 
Rose Ramos is Chief Business and Operations Officer; Jesse Castillo is Assistant Superintendent, 
Business Services; Raymond (Gabe) Estrada is Manager II, Budget Services; and Dawn Nantz is 
Manager I, Accounting Services; Cindy Tao is Director III, Accounting Services. 

  
BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Governing Board of the Sacramento City Unified 

School District that in accordance with Education Code Section 42632, effective December 15, 2022, 
Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D.is Superintendent; Lisa Allen is Deputy Superintendent; Rose Ramos is Chief 
Business and Operations Officer; Jesse Castillo is Assistant Superintendent, Business Services; 
Raymond (Gabe) Estrada is Manager II, Budget Services; and Dawn Nantz is Manager I, Accounting 
Services; Cindy Tao is Director III, Accounting Services who are employees of the Sacramento City 
Unified School District, be and are hereby authorized and empowered to sign orders for the payment of 
lawful expenses of the District on the funds of the District. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that all such orders shall be on forms 

prescribed by the County Superintendent of Schools and approved by the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction of the State of California. 

 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES: 

 
______________________________   ____________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar,      Lisa Allen, 
Superintendent      Deputy Superintendent 
 
______________________________   ____________________________ 
Rose Ramos,       Jesse Castillo, 
Chief Business Officer                                                           Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
_____________________________    ____________________________  
Gabe Estrada,       Dawn Nantz     
Manager II, Budget Services                Manager I, Accounting Services 
 
______________________________ 
Cindy Tao 
Director III, Accounting Services 



 2

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on this 
15th day of December, 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
 
 
______________________________    ____________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, J.D.       Christina Pritchett                     
Secretary of the Board of Education     President of the Board of Education 
 



 

 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1k 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
Subject:  A-G Completion Grant Plan (CDE) 2022-2025 
☐ Information Item Only 
X Approval on Consent Agenda 
☐ Conference (for discussion only) 
☐ Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
☐ Conference/Action 
☐ Action 
☐ Public Hearing 
 
Division:  Academic Office and Curriculum and Instruction 
 
Recommendation:  Approve 
 
Background/Rationale:  The A-G completion grant from CDE (2022-2025) provides 
our district $3.1 million to fund activities that directly support pupil access to, and 
successful completion of, the A–G course requirements. This presentation will describe 
the proposed use of funds to support the A-G access and completion rates of freshmen 
by reimagining scheduling in the ninth grade, providing site-based grade level leads, 
coordinating wrap-around services, and engaging the four core teachers (ELA, Math, 
Science History/Social Sciences) at each site.  
 
Financial Considerations:  The CDE grant provides $3.1 million for the years 2022-
2025. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1: Increase the percent of students who are on-track to graduate 
college and career ready. • Provide standards-aligned curriculum, assessments and 
high-quality instruction to prepare students to graduate college and career ready. 
(Action 1.1) • Provide a variety of learning supports including differentiated instruction 
and interventions for all students as needed. (Action 1.2) • Develop an infrastructure for 
ongoing analysis of student performance and progress by providing teacher release 
time and collaborative learning time. (Action 1.3) • Provide effective core instruction, as 
well as appropriate learning supports and interventions, to ensure that English Learners 
make expected progress in attaining English and in academic achievement. (Action 1.4) 
 
 
Documents Attached:  N/A 
 
 



 

 

Estimated Time of Presentation:N/A 
Submitted by:  Vanessa Buitrago, Instructional Assistant 
Superintendent and Erin Hanson, Assistant Superintendent of 
Curriculum and Instruction  
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1l 

 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes of the November 17, 2022, Board of Education Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes of the November 17, 2022, Board of Education 
Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the November 17, 2022, Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  N/A 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
                    AMENDED  

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, November 17, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

Minutes 
 

2022/23-12 
 

       Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:39pm by President Pritchett. President Pritchett 
appointed Deputy Superintendent Allen to take roll. 
 
Members Present:  
President Christina Pritchett 
Vice President Leticia Garcia 
Second Vice President Chinua Rhodes 
Lisa Murawski 
Lavinia Grace Phillips 
Darrel Woo 
Student Member Liam McGurk 
 
Members Absent: 
Jamee Villa 
 

 
 2.0       ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

            TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Sheryl Fong made a public comment regarding school safety  
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

2 

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two Potential Cases) 

 
b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 

section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 
 

c) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2022080137) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment 
 
3.4 Government Code 54956.8—Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
 Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 
 Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
 Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 
 Under Negotiation:  Price and Term 

 
 3.5  Education Code 35146 – The Board will hear staff recommendations on the 

following student expulsion: 
a) Expulsion #5, 2022-23 

 
No public comment on closed session items 

 
6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
President Pritchett called the meeting back to order at 6:35pm.         
 
Members Present: 
President Christina Pritchett 
Vice President Leticia Garcia 
Second Vice President Chinua Rhodes 
Darrell Woo 
Lavinia Grace Phillips 
Lisa Murawski 
Jamee Villa arrived at 5:12pm during closed session 
Student Member Liam McGurk       
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Deputy Superintendent Allen 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

3 

 
4.2 Broadcast Statement- Student Member, Liam McGurk, provided the Broadcast 
            Statement 

 
4.3 Stellar Student- Shabnam Bayat, a Senior at C.K. McClatchy High School was 

introduced by Member Murawski 
 

7:05 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
Counsil Anne Collins made the following two announcements: 
 

• The Board approved Special Education settlement agreement OAH Case No. 
2022080137 by a vote of 6-0 with Member Villa absent 

• The Board approved a settlement agreement related to Special Education services 
by unanimous 7-0 vote 

 
7:10 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
President Pritchett made a motion to adopt the agenda with the approval of Lisa 
Murawski and seconded by Jamee Villa. The Board voted unanimously to adopt the 
agenda. 

 
7:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                             
 

Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called 
in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to 
two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be 
heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its 
discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  
 
Public Comment: 
Sheryl Fong  
Vince Xiong yielded their time to Nikolas Aguilera  
Nikolas Aguilera  
Hope Chan  
Peyton New  
Virginia Tsai  
Kyle Tsai  
Robert Newton  
Alan Korematsu  
Deitra Newton  
Michele Hernandez  
David Fisher combined time with Nikki Milevsky  
Yumiko Triminghan yielded their time to Yolanda Padilla 
Yolanda Padilla 
Crisa Triplet  
John Meyers  
 

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

4 

7:30 p.m. 8.1  Recognition of Outgoing Board Members 
 
President Pritchett and Board Members provided farewell 
wishes to Vice President Lisa Murawski. 
 

 

7:40 p.m. 8.2  College Readiness Update (Christina Espinosa) 
 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments and Questions: 
President Pritchett thanked the presenters on the work that 
has been put into college readiness, and for letting 
students know that they have other options post high school 
to earn a liveable wage, and support their families. To see that  
eight schools with 190 students participating in this work-based 
learning experience was impressive, and the most student 
participates that President Pritchett had ever seen in the 
program. 
 
Member Woo asked if the CTE programs include internships 
while the students are still in school. Interships are a part of 
the work-based learning that students receive with a continuum 
where students can engage with an industry professional or 
career visit where students work towards an internship. 
 
Vice President Garcia confirmed that fees were paid by the 
district regardless of income eligibility, and asked how do 
students know that this opportunity is available to them. High 
school counselors are informed, and students fill out Google 
forms to participate.  

 
 

 

8:10 p.m. 8.3 SCUSD Instructional Materials Adoption Process and                                        
                       History/Social Sciences Adoption Updates 

            (Erin Hanson, Shannon Pella) 
 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Member Murawski thanked staff for their work on the 
Instructional Materials Adoption Process. 
 
Vice President Garcia commented that it would be great if we 
can plan a year ahead, so textbook books and materials can 
remain current and up-to-date. 
 

 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

5 

 
 

 
 9.0  PUBLIC HEARING 

8:40 p.m. 9.1 Public Hearing on Resolution No. 3298: Resolution to 
 Convey Public Safety Easement Entitlements to the City of 
 Sacramento for a New Woodbine Elementary Fire 
 Hydrant (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 

           None 
 

 

8:50 p.m. 9.2 Public Hearing:  AB 1200 Disclosure and Approval of  
                        Agreements to provide Premier Access Dental Plan for    
                        SEIU Active Employees, Teamsters Active Employees,   
                        TCS Active Employees, UPE Active Employees, Non- 
                        Represented Active Employees (Pam Manwiller) 
 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Vice President Garcia thanked staff for bringing this MOU 
before the Board, and expressed that it brings parity to other 
employee groups.  
 
The Board voted to approve with a  unanimous vote of 8-0. 

 

 

 
9:00 p.m. 10.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 10.1  Employee Organization Reports:   
 SCTA- No report given  

 

  

 
 11.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 

 
9:15 p.m. 11.1  First Reading of Revised Board Policy (BP) 7310 

 Naming of Facilities (Nathaniel Browning) 
 
 Public Comment: 
None 
 

 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

6 

Board Comments: 
 
President Pritchett appreciated that this Board Policy was 
being brought back to the Board. She asked if there will be any 
community meetings or outreach to see if there are any 
community voices from these areas regarding the policy itself. 
Browning mentioned that largely with counterparts from 
Fresno Unified. extensively spoke with two or three committee 
members on the renaming process, and worked with RSS 
consulting which is the consulting firms which was the process 
for gaining feedback.  
 
Member Murawski asked to consider adding this to the policy 
to the extent that we’re changing names. It’s important for the 
historical record to be specific on why we are changing the 
name to show transparency. 

 
 

 
9:35 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11.2  Approve the Naming of OW Erlewine Science Lab to 
Anita Warmack Children’s Science Lab 

            (Nathaniel Browning) 
 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
President Pritchett expressed gratitude and that she is proud to 
Honoring Anita Warmack’s legacy. 
 
Member Murawski wanted to thank the Principal for bringing 
this forward. 
 
President Pritchett made a motion to approve with a unanimous 
vote of 8-0. 
 

 
 

 

9:45 p.m. 11.3  A-G Completion Grant Plan (CDE) 2022-2025 
  (Erin Hanson, Vanessa Buitrago) 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: Member Murawski confirmed that the 
change idea is evidence-based research that is shown to be 

           effective. 
 

 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

7 

          Member Garcia asked what the enrollment rate was and staff 
          informed the Board that it is 50% of all students, and that 90% 
          of the District’s ninth graders begin on track. In 2021-2022, 
         49.7% of all seniors exiting our system met A-G completion rates, 
         and completed 15 A-G courses at minimum. 

 
         Member Woo confirmed that funds for the grant have been granted 
         for the program. 

 
 

10:15 p.m. 12.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                     
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board member 
may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 
 
 

12.1   Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

12.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification 
of Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared 
Surplus Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of 
Completion (Rose F. Ramos) 

 
12.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 
12.1c Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers issued for the Period of October 1-31, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 

                                      12.1d Approve Donations to the District for the Period of October 1–31, 2022  
 (Rose F. Ramos) 

 
12.1e Approve Annual Developer Fees Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 
 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
12.1f Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Sacramento-Sierra Building 

and Construction Trades Council Regarding Union Educational and Career 
Development Support (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
12.1g Approve Resolution No.3298: Resolution to Convey Public Safety Easement 

Entitlements to the City of Sacramento for a New Woodbine Elementary Fire 
Hydrant (Nathaniel Browning) 

 
12.1h Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #5, 2022-23  
 (Lisa Allen and Steph1an Brown) 
 
12.1i Approve the Annual Organizational Meeting of December 15, 2022  
  (Lisa Allen) 
 
Public Comment: 
None 
 



Board Minutes, November 17. 2022 
 
 

8 

Board Comments:  
Member Phillips requested to pull agenda item 12.1h for a separate vote. 
The Board voted unamiously 8-0 to approve all consent agenda items except for 
item 12.1h. Item 12.1h received a vote of 7-1 with member Phillips voting no. 
 

 
10:17 p.m. 13.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS  

 

 

13.1 Business and Financial Information 
 ● Purchase Order Board Report: September 15-October 14, 2022 
 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 

 
10:18 p.m. 14.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 December 15, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Annual Organizational and Workshop Meeting 
 

 January 19, 2023 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 
10:19 p.m. 15.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
President Pritchett asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was passed 
unanimously, and the meeting adjourned at 9:22 p.m. 

 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary  
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, 
to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 48 hours 
before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you.  
[Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   Any public records 
distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to an open session item 
will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _12.1__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022 
 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 2, Ending Friday, 
October 21, 2022 and Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of October 15, 2022 
through November 14, 2022. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

1. Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 2, Ending Friday, October 21, 2022 
2. Purchase Order Board Report for the Period of October 15, 2022 through November 14, 2022 

 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 

FOR THE 

MONTH

Cum Attd         

Days /36

2022‐2023

A M Winn Elementary K‐8 Waldorf 50 123 117 14 304 93.34% 282.39 92.98%

Abraham Lincoln El 77 220 236 0 533 92.25% 495.58 92.67%

Alice Birney Waldorf‐Inspired K8 72 143 159 2 376 94.31% 355.81 94.41%

Bret Harte Elementary 24 67 74 37 202 91.13% 170.64 91.13%

Caleb Greenwood 53 218 208 3 482 95.45% 461.89 95.79%

Camellia Basic Elementary 75 140 170 10 395 96.53% 377.25 95.89%

Capital City School 18 89 95 0 202 91.08% 190.00 89.53%

Caroline Wenzel Elementary 23 88 87 27 225 90.34% 205.67 90.27%

Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 349 23 372 93.92% 347.69 92.53%

Crocker/Riverside Elementary 93 281 245 1 620 95.10% 589.06 95.16%

David Lubin Elementary 50 196 183 22 451 94.04% 416.83 93.94%

Earl Warren Elementary 69 169 189 8 435 93.89% 401.97 93.67%

Edward Kemble Elementary 114 374 0 17 505 91.79% 459.42 91.87%

Elder Creek Elementary 77 287 327 4 695 94.00% 655.72 93.81%

Ethel I Baker Elementary 81 273 240 3 597 92.12% 545.28 91.88%

Ethel Phillips Elementary 82 183 178 3 446 90.99% 402.67 91.11%

Father Keith B Kenny K‐8 School 22 79 123 28 252 89.50% 230.31 91.61%

Genevieve Didion Elementary 68 205 199 4 476 96.34% 460.92 96.24%

Golden Empire Elementary 55 184 210 14 463 93.38% 434.61 93.67%

H W Harkness Elementary 47 87 119 2 255 93.55% 235.78 92.57%

Hollywood Park Elementary 21 82 99 39 241 92.50% 220.11 91.78%

Home/Hospital 6 22 39 4 71 100.00% 10.28 100.00%

Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 62 175 152 15 404 92.63% 370.39 92.43%

Isador Cohen Elementary 59 105 112 38 314 91.18% 286.44 91.50%

James W Marshall Elementary 39 136 133 27 335 92.39% 306.53 92.20%

John Bidwell Elementary 46 119 76 13 254 90.93% 230.92 91.90%

John Cabrillo Elementary 37 111 125 42 315 91.11% 274.92 91.47%

John D Sloat Elementary 34 77 81 13 205 89.83% 185.67 90.51%

John H. Still K‐8 47 180 244 10 481 90.12% 434.89 89.57%

John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 10 10 92.50% 9.06 90.56%

Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 120 116 1 261 88.43% 225.11 88.15%

Leonardo da Vinci K ‐ 8 School 113 271 281 19 684 96.06% 655.86 95.89%

Mark Twain Elementary 38 94 100 17 249 92.12% 230.19 91.71%

Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 63 127 102 21 313 92.43% 287.36 91.69%

Matsuyama Elementary 54 187 210 7 458 93.98% 430.06 94.10%

Nicholas Elementary 72 210 239 13 534 91.22% 483.25 91.18%

O W Erlewine Elementary 28 99 110 21 258 91.05% 234.75 91.18%

Oak Ridge Elementary 53 204 198 2 457 91.00% 416.00 91.52%

Pacific Elementary 93 282 306 2 683 92.32% 626.53 92.20%

Parkway Elementary School 75 180 182 23 460 88.75% 404.97 89.18%

Peter Burnett Elementary 45 165 172 17 399 92.73% 364.50 92.98%

Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 93 283 278 1 655 95.94% 628.11 95.93%

Pony Express Elementary 34 139 174 16 363 94.20% 337.94 94.30%

Rosa Parks K‐8 School 40 124 137 14 315 91.90% 285.53 91.65%

Sequoia Elementary 59 161 172 16 408 91.27% 375.36 91.41%

Success Academy K‐8 0 0 2 0 2 86.27% 1.75 75.90%

Susan B Anthony Elementary 61 129 122 2 314 95.21% 297.86 94.82%

Sutterville Elementary 39 162 184 4 389 95.42% 373.53 95.50%

Tahoe Elementary 70 113 97 32 312 91.36% 281.78 91.67%

Theodore Judah Elementary 87 145 182 18 432 94.34% 403.39 94.07%

Washington Elementary 49 143 119 17 328 92.12% 299.42 91.21%

William Land Elementary 47 141 164 1 353 94.98% 333.72 94.79%

Woodbine Elementary 39 123 95 25 282 89.43% 250.44 90.33%

TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 2,777       8,015            8,311          722             19,825             92.89% 18,276.09             92.85%

ELEMENTARY TRADITIONAL GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 

2022‐2023

Special 

Education 

Grades K‐6

TOTAL 

MONTH‐END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 

ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1‐3 Grades 4‐6 2022‐2023 

Actual 

Attendance

Page 1



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 

FOR THE 

MONTH

Cum Attd 

Days/36

2022‐2023
A M Winn Elementary K‐8 Waldorf 35 29 64 1 65 91.00% 59.81 92.01%

Albert Einstein MS 324 314 638 29 667 92.10% 617.19 92.62%

Alice Birney Waldorf‐Inspired K8 57 52 109 1 110 94.86% 104.67 94.84%

California MS 373 397 770 13 783 92.52% 726.61 93.05%

Capital City School 51 50 101 0 101 73.66% 65.83 75.50%

Fern Bacon MS 312 326 638 37 675 91.73% 617.53 91.88%

Genevieve Didion Elementary 57 53 110 0 110 96.50% 106.97 97.05%

Home/Hospital 5 53 58 2 60 100.00% 7.96 100.00%

John H. Still K‐8 148 125 273 13 286 94.81% 258.89 95.05%

John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 16 16 82.19% 13.19 82.47%

Kit Carson IB Academy 166 163 329 18 347 87.89% 307.33 89.05%

Leonardo da Vinci K ‐ 8 School 43 58 101 11 112 95.28% 107.06 94.35%

Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 14 14 28 0 28 91.79% 31.50 90.87%

Rosa Parks K‐8 School 218 185 403 20 423 90.96% 385.00 91.46%

Sam Brannan MS 142 158 300 38 338 91.91% 307.31 91.40%

School of Engineering and Science 127 110 237 2 239 94.87% 228.69 95.62%

Success Academy K‐8 0 4 4 0 4 81.43% 2.50 86.54%

Sutter MS 525 526 1,051 25 1,076 94.77% 1022.03 95.22%

Will C Wood MS 316 327 643 41 684 91.72% 625.58 91.44%

TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2,913       2,944       5,857            267               6,124                 91.05% 5,595.66      91.60%

MIDDLE SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 

2022‐2023

Special 

Education 

Grades 7‐8

TOTAL MONTH‐

END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 

ACTUAL ATTENDANCE 

Grade 7 Grade 8 Total Grades 

7‐8

2022‐2023 

Actual 

Attendance

Page 2



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 

FOR THE 

MONTH

Cum Attd 

Days/36

2022‐2023
American Legion HS 171 0 4 48 119 171 0 171 74.68% 126.64 76.60%

Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 35 38 47 51 171 24 195 88.08% 168.64 88.94%

C K McClatchy HS 619 637 549 569 2,374 40 2,414 90.04% 2146.89 91.02%

Capital City School 44 60 88 102 294 0 294 80.77% 226.47 79.53%

Hiram W Johnson HS 409 393 404 372 1,578 135 1,713 89.03% 1453.69 89.27%

Home/Hospital 0 2 4 55 61 7 68 100.00% 10.35 100.00%

John F Kennedy HS 441 405 518 493 1,857 120 1,977 91.40% 1725.36 92.04%

Kit Carson 7‐12 56 61 47 26 190 2 192 90.23% 173.92 91.92%

Luther Burbank HS 354 395 384 375 1,508 100 1,608 91.02% 1419.47 91.29%

Rosemont HS 340 359 371 357 1,427 91 1,518 90.15% 1333.03 91.09%

School of Engineering and Science 108 88 66 69 331 2 333 92.74% 313.28 93.89%

West Campus HS 222 225 198 190 835 1 836 97.06% 812.81 97.49%

TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 171                   2,628     2,667       2,724        2,778       10,797        522                11,319             90.37% 9,910.54          91.03%

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 

ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Continuation Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 2022‐2023 

Actual 

Attendance

PERCENTAGE 

2022‐2023

HIGH SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION Total Grade 

9‐12

Special 

Education 

Grades 9‐12

TOTAL 

MONTH‐END 

ENROLLMENT

Page 3



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022

TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE FOR 

THE MONTH

Cum Attd 

Days/36

2022‐2023
ELEMENTARY 19,754 92.89% 18,266 92.85%

MIDDLE 6,064 92.32% 5,588 92.66%

HIGH SCHOOL 11,251 90.37% 9,900 91.03%

TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SEGMENTS 37,069 92.05% 33,754 92.27%

Total Non‐Public Schools as of 10/18/22 247

DISTRICT TOTALS

TOTAL MONTH‐

END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 

ATTENDANCE

2022‐2023 Actual 

Attendance

PERCENTAGE 

2022‐2023

Page 4



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022

CHARTER SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 

FOR THE 

MONTH

Kdgn Grades 1‐3 Grades 4‐6 Grades 7‐8 Grades 9‐12 2022‐2023 

Actual 

Attendance

2022‐2023 PERCENTAGE 

2022‐2023

Bowling Green McCoy 46 179 176 0 0 8 409 92.43% 377.03 92.65%
Bowling Green‐Chacon 40 129 137 0 0 12 318 93.91% 299.81 93.96%
George W. Carver SAS 0 0 0 0 199 11 210 94.80% 203.06 94.29%
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 34 92 102 0 0 2 230 92.02% 193.63 91.45%
New Tech High 0 0 0 0 151 2 153 94.79% 144.47 94.79%
The Met High School 0 0 0 0 217 2 219 97.95% 201.69 95.85%
Total Dependent Charter Schools 120 400 415 0 567 37 1,539 94.02% 1,419.69 93.60%

2022‐2023 INDEPENDENT CHARTER 

SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 

FOR THE 

MONTH

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 

ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1‐3 Grades 4‐6 Grades 7‐8 Grades 9‐12 2022‐2023 

Actual 

Attendance

2022‐2023 PERCENTAGE 

2022‐2023

Aspire Capitol Heights Academy 22 64 62 23 0 0 171 91.58% 163.26 89.05%

CA Montessori Project Capitol Campus 72 121 116 39 0 1 349 93.67% 330.68 94.07%

Capitol Collegiate Academy 25 142 145 78 0 0 390 93.63% 365.62 93.54%

Growth Public Schools 60 117 100 0 0 0 277 91.94% 254.58 92.72%

Language Academy 88 199 200 131 0 0 618 95.11% 583.65 94.83%

PS 7 Elementary 73 171 172 166 0 0 582 89.04% 500.11 90.33%

Sacramento Charter HS 0 0 0 0 376 0 376 92.11% 337.94 92.79%

SAVA 0 0 0 66 639 0 705 96.51% 617.64 96.48%

Sol Aureus College Preparatory 42 113 133 68 0 0 356 92.76% 384.75 92.31%

Yav Pem Suab Academy 62 179 180 0 0 0 421 89.38% 392.16 89.28%

TOTAL INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 444        1,106          1,108           571               1,015             1                    4,245                92.57% 3,930.39     92.54%

TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 564        1,506          1,523           571               1,582             38                  5,784                93.30% 5,350.07     93.07%

Special 

Education 

Grades K‐12

TOTAL MONTH‐

END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 

ACTUAL ATTENDANCE
2022‐2023 DEPENDENT CHARTER 

SCHOOLS

GENERAL EDUCATION

Special 

Education 

Grades K‐12

TOTAL MONTH‐

END 

ENROLLMENT

GENERAL EDUCATION

Page 5



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022

ADULT EDUCATION SCHOOLS

CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center 227 0 7,067.25       7,067.25        0 13.46 13.46

Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center 442 0 18,515.54     18,515.54      0 35.27 35.27

TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION 669                    0 25,582.79     25,582.79     0 48.73 48.73

2022‐2023 CUMULATIVE ADAADULT EDUCATION ENROLLMENT HOURS EARNED

Page 6



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022
GRADE BY GRADE ENROLLMENT

Page 7

Kdgn Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 50 37 41 45 35 44 38 290
Abraham Lincoln El 77 80 66 74 79 83 74 533
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 72 48 47 48 59 52 48 374
Bret Harte Elementary 24 33 23 11 30 20 24 165
Caleb Greenwood 53 82 64 72 79 65 64 479
Camellia Basic Elementary 75 49 47 44 58 59 53 385
Capital City School 18 23 34 32 27 41 27 202
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 23 25 31 32 26 20 41 198
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 0 0 110 113 126 349
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 93 95 91 95 79 87 79 619
David Lubin Elementary 50 66 71 59 58 60 65 429
Earl Warren Elementary 69 48 61 60 66 56 67 427
Edward Kemble Elementary 114 128 117 129 0 0 0 488
Elder Creek Elementary 77 89 97 101 116 103 108 691
Ethel I Baker Elementary 81 95 88 90 79 81 80 594
Ethel Phillips Elementary 82 52 66 65 61 53 64 443
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 22 24 24 31 45 32 46 224
Genevieve Didion Elementary 68 65 70 70 66 66 67 472
Golden Empire Elementary 55 57 65 62 72 63 75 449
H W Harkness Elementary 47 24 27 36 41 47 31 253
Hollywood Park Elementary 21 36 19 27 35 37 27 202
Home/Hospital 6 2 5 15 3 4 32 67
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 62 71 49 55 45 41 66 389
Isador Cohen Elementary 59 42 38 25 38 41 33 276
James W Marshall Elementary 39 47 46 43 54 38 41 308
John Bidwell Elementary 46 33 44 42 22 27 27 241
John Cabrillo Elementary 37 32 35 44 37 37 51 273
John D Sloat Elementary 34 19 21 37 23 32 26 192
John H. Still K-8 47 60 59 61 78 69 97 471
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 42 41 37 32 40 44 260
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 113 85 95 91 94 94 93 665
Mark Twain Elementary 38 24 35 35 33 33 34 232
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 63 41 37 49 30 27 45 292
Matsuyama Elementary 54 63 55 69 67 79 64 451
Nicholas Elementary 72 68 71 71 87 74 78 521
O W Erlewine Elementary 28 33 38 28 38 43 29 237
Oak Ridge Elementary 53 70 62 72 66 56 76 455
Pacific Elementary 93 91 86 105 91 117 98 681
Parkway Elementary School 75 59 52 69 67 55 60 437
Peter Burnett Elementary 45 47 61 57 51 64 57 382
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 93 94 94 95 93 92 93 654
Pony Express Elementary 34 45 45 49 60 62 52 347
Rosa Parks K-8 School 40 42 48 34 40 49 48 301
Sequoia Elementary 59 55 58 48 55 52 65 392
Success Academy K-8 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2
Susan B Anthony Elementary 61 51 40 38 43 43 36 312
Sutterville Elementary 39 47 55 60 63 64 57 385
Tahoe Elementary 70 37 33 43 32 32 33 280
Theodore Judah Elementary 87 53 45 47 58 62 62 414
Washington Elementary 49 47 49 47 33 33 53 311
William Land Elementary 47 41 54 46 55 51 58 352
Woodbine Elementary 39 39 42 42 36 27 32 257
TOTAL 2,777 2,636 2,642 2,737 2,745 2,721 2,845 19,103

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION ENROLLMENT TOTAL 
GENERAL 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 8

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 304 768 10,166 10,934 92.98%
Abraham Lincoln El 533 1,411 17,841 19,252 92.67%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 376 759 12,809 13,568 94.41%
Bret Harte Elementary 202 598 6,143 6,741 91.13%
Caleb Greenwood 482 731 16,628 17,359 95.79%
Camellia Basic Elementary 395 582 13,581 14,163 95.89%
Capital City School 202 800 6,840 7,640 89.53%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 225 798 7,404 8,202 90.27%
Cesar Chavez ES 372 1,010 12,517 13,527 92.53%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 620 1,079 21,206 22,285 95.16%
David Lubin Elementary 451 968 15,006 15,974 93.94%
Earl Warren Elementary 435 978 14,471 15,449 93.67%
Edward Kemble Elementary 505 1,464 16,539 18,003 91.87%
Elder Creek Elementary 695 1,558 23,606 25,164 93.81%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 597 1,735 19,630 21,365 91.88%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 446 1,414 14,496 15,910 91.11%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 252 759 8,291 9,050 91.61%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 476 649 16,593 17,242 96.24%
Golden Empire Elementary 463 1,058 15,646 16,704 93.67%
H W Harkness Elementary 255 681 8,488 9,169 92.57%
Hollywood Park Elementary 241 710 7,924 8,634 91.78%
Home/Hospital 71 0 370                                                      370                             100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 404 1,092 13,334 14,426 92.43%
Isador Cohen Elementary 314 958 10,312 11,270 91.50%
James W Marshall Elementary 335 933 11,035 11,968 92.20%
John Bidwell Elementary 254 733 8,313 9,046 91.90%
John Cabrillo Elementary 315 923 9,897 10,820 91.47%
John D Sloat Elementary 205 701 6,684 7,385 90.51%
John H. Still K-8 481 1,824 15,656 17,480 89.57%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 10 34 326 360 90.56%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 261 1,089 8,104 9,193 88.15%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 684 1,011 23,611 24,622 95.89%
Mark Twain Elementary 249 749 8,287 9,036 91.71%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 313 937 10,345 11,282 91.69%
Matsuyama Elementary 458 971 15,482 16,453 94.10%
Nicholas Elementary 534 1,683 17,397 19,080 91.18%
O W Erlewine Elementary 258 817 8,451 9,268 91.18%
Oak Ridge Elementary 457 1,388 14,976 16,364 91.52%
Pacific Elementary 683 1,907 22,555 24,462 92.20%
Parkway Elementary School 460 1,768 14,579 16,347 89.18%
Peter Burnett Elementary 399 991 13,122 14,113 92.98%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 655 959 22,612 23,571 95.93%
Pony Express Elementary 363 735 12,166 12,901 94.30%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 315 936 10,279 11,215 91.65%
Sequoia Elementary 408 1,270 13,513 14,783 91.41%
Success Academy K-8 2 20 63 83 75.90%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 314 586 10,723 11,309 94.82%
Sutterville Elementary 389 634 13,447 14,081 95.50%
Tahoe Elementary 312 922 10,144 11,066 91.67%
Theodore Judah Elementary 432 915 14,522 15,437 94.07%
Washington Elementary 328 1,039 10,779 11,818 91.21%
William Land Elementary 353 660 12,014 12,674 94.79%
Woodbine Elementary 282 965 9,016 9,981 90.33%
TOTAL 19,825                           50,660                    657,939                                              708,599                     92.85%

PERCENTAGE OF 
ATTENDANCE

ELEMENTARY TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 9

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 65 187 2,153 2,340 92.01%
Albert Einstein MS 667 1,770 22,219 23,989 92.62%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K-8 110 205 3,768 3,973 94.84%
California MS 783 1,955 26,158 28,113 93.05%
Capital City School 101 769 2,370 3,139 75.50%
Fern Bacon MS 675 1,966 22,231 24,197 91.88%
Genevieve Didion K-8 110 117 3,851 3,968 97.05%
Home/Hospital 57 0 267.50 267.50 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 286 485 9,320 9,805 95.05%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 16 101 475 576 82.47%
Kit Carson 7-12 347 1,361 11,064 12,425 89.05%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 231 3,854 4,085 94.35%
Martin Luther King Jr K-8 28 114 1,134 1,248 90.87%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 423 1,294 13,860 15,154 91.46%
Sam Brannan MS 338 1,041 11,063 12,104 91.40%
School of Engineering and Science 239 377 8,233 8,610 95.62%
Success Academy K-8 4 14 90 104 86.54%
Sutter MS 1,076 1,849 36,793 38,642 95.22%
Will C Wood MS 684 2,108 22,521 24,629 91.44%
TOTAL 6,121                             15,944                    201,425                                     217,369                              92.66%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEMIDDLE TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF 
ATTENDANCE

DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 2, ENDING FRIDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 10

American Legion HS 171 1,393 4,559 5,952 76.60%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 195 755 6,071 6,826 88.94%
C K McClatchy HS 2,414 7,624 77,288 84,912 91.02%
Capital City School 294 2,098 8,153 10,251 79.53%
Hiram W Johnson HS 1,713 6,292 52,333 58,625 89.27%
Home/Hospital 68 0 372.50 372.50 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 1,977 5,371 62,113 67,484 92.04%
Kit Carson 7-12 192 550 6,261 6,811 91.92%
Luther Burbank HS 1,608 4,876 51,101 55,977 91.29%
Rosemont HS 1,518 4,695 47,989 52,684 91.09%
School of Engineering and Science 333 734 11,278 12,012 93.89%
West Campus HS 836 753 29,261 30,014 97.49%
TOTAL 11,319               35,141                    356,780                                          391,921                                   91.03%

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE

TOTAL ALL SCHOOLS 37,265 101,745 1,216,144 1,317,889 92.28%

Students in Non 
Public Schools

Total
Enrollment

ADA ADA % % Change

2021-22 Actual 37,165 33,490 90.11%
2022-2023 Projected 36,193 0 0.00%

Month 01 234 37,212 33,827 92.56%
Month 02 247 37,069 33,754 92.27% -0.29%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEHIGH SCHOOL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

Elementary Middle High Total Variance Dependent
Charter

Non-Public
Schools

Independent
Charter

Adult Ed.

Month 1 9/23/2022 19,781 6,089 11,342 37,212 0 1,378 234 4,211 399
Month 2 10/21/2022 19,825 6,121 11,319 37,265 53 1,539 247 4,245 669

19,781

6,089

11,342

37,212

0

1,378
234

4,211

399

19,825

6,121

11,319

37,265

53
1,539

247

4,245

669

En
ro

llm
en

t

Monthly Attendance 



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B23-00721 SETTLEMENT PAYMENT B.K & 

C.K.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

60,000.00 

B23-00722 ZYTECH SOLUTIONS INC CHROMEBOOK REPAIRS

FOR STUDENT LEARNING

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 5,000.00 

B23-00724 MULLER SPORTS SERVICE SPORTS OFFICIALS-FALL

FY23  @ 6 HIGH SCH

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

150,000.00 

B23-00725 GINA HARDESTY PARENT MILEAGE

REIMBURSEMENT

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,137.50 

B23-00726 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE

SHARE 2022-23

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,498.36 

B23-00727 RALEY'S BEL AIR NOB HILL 

FOODS

22-23 SY FOOD FOR PARENT

ENGAGEMENT 

MEETING/EVENTS

01PARENT ENGAGEMENT 1,600.00 

B23-00728 IMCO IMCO -SUPPLIES FOR 

CERAMIC CLASS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,000.00 

B23-00729 WM BOLTHOUSE FARMS INC SNACK PACK CARROTS FOR 

SUPPER PROGRAM SY 22-23

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

50,000.00 

B23-00730 FRESH INNOVATIONS 

CALIFORNIA

FRESH APPLE SLICES FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

50,000.00 

B23-00731 SETTLEMENT PAYMENT OAH 

2021090277

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

9,000.00 

B23-00732 CARGILL INC EGG PRODUCTS FOR 

2022-23 SY

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

25,000.00 

B23-00733 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC ALL WEST - ATHLETIC 

TRANSPORTATION 

2022-2023

01WEST CAMPUS 10,000.00 

B23-00734 HANNIBAL'S CATERING 22-23 SY FOOD FOR PARENT

ENGAGEMENT EVENTS

01PARENT ENGAGEMENT 6,000.00 

B23-00735 SETTLEMENT PAYMENT OAH 

CASE NO. 2022020346 J.R.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

60,000.00 

B23-00736 REDI GRO CORP SUPPLIES FOR 

AGRICULTURE PROGRAM @ 

BURBANK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

1,800.00 

B23-00737 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC ATHLETICS 

TRANSPORTATION

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 20,000.00 

B23-00738 T-MOBILE USA INC HOTSPOTS FOR CHARTER 

CAFETERIAS SY22-23

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,600.00 

B23-00739 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT BLANKET 

FOR ERGO FURNITURE

67RISK MANAGEMENT 15,000.00 

B23-00740 SACRAMENTO REGIONAL 

TRANSIT FA RE 

PREPAYMENT UNIT

BUS STICKERS 2022-2023 

FOR HOMELESS SVS.

01STUDENT 

SUPPORT&HEALTH SRVCS

3,000.00 

B23-00741 D & P ENTERPRISES INC 

dba CRES CO-RESCO

CULINARY ARTS SUPPIES @ 

JFK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

3,000.00 

B23-00742 FEDERAL PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE 2022-23

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,501.82 

B23-00743 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC LSJ TRANSPORTATION FOR 

FIELD TRIPS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 1 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

B23-00744 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

ACCTG OF FICE 

CASHIERING UNIT

DEPT. OF JUSTICE, 

FINGERPRINTING FEES 

2022-2023

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

150,000.00 

B23-00745 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE

CTE ADVISORY MTG, OCT 20, 

2022

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

693.83 

B23-00746 ASSOCIATION OF 

CALIFORNIA SCHO OL 

ADMINISTRATORS

* BLANKET* 22-23 ACSA

ADMINISTRATION HIRING

ACCT

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

8,000.00 

B23-00747 HALO BRANDED 

SOLUTIONS INC

2022/2023  RECRUITMENT

FAIR ITEMS

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

5,000.00 

B23-00748 EAN SERVICES LLC VARIOUS SCHOOL

FIELDTRIPS CAR RENTAL

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

3,000.00 

B23-00749 CAL INC CAL INC - LEAD AND

ASBESTOS TRAININGS

01RISK MANAGEMENT 15,000.00 

B23-00750 ECOLAB INC SUPPLIES FOR CULINARY

ARTS PRGM@ JFK- J.

BURDICK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

500.00 

B23-00751 FRANKLIN COVEY CLIENT 

SALES

FRANKLIN COVEY TLIM

STUDENT LEADERSHIP

01SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

5,900.00 

CHB23-00357 THE HOME DEPOT PRO SCHOOL SUPPLIES 22/23 09NEW TECH 1,500.00 

CHB23-00358 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT - 

INSTRUCTION SUPPLIES

01WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,700.00 

CHB23-00359 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT - ADMIN 

SUPPLIES

01WOODBINE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

400.00 

CHB23-00360 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE BLANKET FOR 

SUPPLIES STAFF WORK 

ROOM

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

1,500.00 

CHB23-00361 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

LAW ACADEMY CLASSROOM 

SUPPLIES

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

5,000.00 

CHB23-00362 RAY MORGAN/SCUSD CANON COPIER RENTAL 

2022-2023

01HOLLYWOOD PARK 

ELEMENTARY

3,000.00 

CHB23-00363 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHOOL 

SUPPLIES

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 20,000.00 

CHB23-00364 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE SUPPLIES 2022-2023 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

DEPT

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

10,000.00 

CHB23-00365 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Office Depot Blanket LCFF 01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

5,000.00 

CHB23-00366 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE DEPOT 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

1,000.00 

CHB23-00367 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

22-23 Blanket for Office Depot

Supplies

01GENEVIEVE DIDION 

ELEMENTARY

5,737.00 

CHB23-00368 OFFICE DEPOT OFFICE DEPOT BLANKET

2022-23 STUDENT

MATERIALS

01PACIFIC ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

20,000.00 

CHB23-00369 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Office Depot Classroom

Supplies

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CS23-00252 TORAN BAHA CONFIRMING DARI

TRANSLATION SERVICE

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

165.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 2 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS23-00253 SIERRA NEVADA JOURNEYS 

SOUTHSI DE SCHOOL 

ANNEX

SNJ SCIENCE PROGRAM - 

SCHOOLWIDE

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 500.00 

CS23-00254 KITCHELL CEM INC 0029-401 BRET HARTE 

PLYGRND-CONST MGMT 

SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

75,600.00 

CS23-00255 NICOLE ROGERS THE CENTRAL KITCHEN 

MARKETING AGREEMENT

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

71,400.00 

CS23-00256 ALZA STRATEGIES LLC C/O 

HILLAR Y MCLEAN

ALZA CONSULTING 01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 60,000.00 

CS23-00257 TALX CORPORATION TALX, EMPLOYMENT 

VERIFICATION SYSTEM 

2022-2023

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

2,700.00 

CS23-00258 BROOKE PURVES CJA COLLEGE MENTORING 

SERVICE AGREEMENT FY23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH

SCHOOL

3,000.00 

CS23-00259 LAURA RIVERA CONSULTING SERVICES 

REVIEW PROCUREMENT 

PROCESS

01PURCHASING SERVICES 3,906.00 

CS23-00261 LANE 9 LLC Lane 9,LLC NJB STEER 

COMM BYLAWS REVIEW AND 

PREP

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 2,000.00 

CS23-00262 LAW OFFICES OF MARK T. 

HARRIS

ATTORNEY SERVICES 01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 80,000.00 

CS23-00263 CENTER FOR 

COLLABORATIVE SOLUT

CECHCR PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT

68RISK MANAGEMENT 120,000.00 

CS23-00264 CALIFORNIA TREE AND 

LANDSCAPE

0265-461 OAK RIDGE - 

ARBORIST INSPECTION

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

880.00 

CS23-00265 LYNN SOLARI MORNING MEETING PD 01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

3,486.62 

CS23-00266 SACRAMENTO AREA YOUTH 

GOLF ASS OCIATION dba 

THE FIRST TEE

AFTERSCHOOL MASTERS 

ENRICH/FIRST TEE

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 5,000.00 

CS23-00267 HEIDI KOSKI CONSULTING Heidi Koski Consulting 

2022-23

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

5,800.00 

CS23-00268 UNITED COLLEGE ACTION 

NETWORK INC

U-CAN CONTRACT 22-23 SY 01COUNSELING SERVICES 160,000.00 

CS23-00269 LAW OFFICE OF RAOUL A. 

BOZIO

LEGAL COUNSEL 01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 100,000.00 

CS23-00270 MICHAEL BRIM dba THE 

CYPHER HI P HOP

2022-23 SUPPLEMENTAL 

PROVIDER

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 26,500.00 

CS23-00271 FOOD LITERACY CENTER 2022-23 SUPPLEMENTAL 

PROVIDOR

01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 52,200.00 

CS23-00272 DWIGHT TAYLOR SR DWIGHT TAYLOR SR. 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 19,560.00 

CS23-00273 GWENDOLYN GILES Musical Performance for 

11/19/22 Community Event

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 500.00 

CS23-00274 COGNITIVE COLLECTIONS 

EDU

IEE PSYCHOLOGICAL  

ASSESMENT FOR B.W.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,000.00 

CS23-00275 KITCHELL CEM INC 0450-453 KIT CARSON HVAC 

REPLACE-CONST MGMT 

SERV

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

166,890.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 3 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

CS23-00278 CA DESIGN WEST 

ARCHITECTS

0327-401 SEQUOIA 

RR-REPLACE-ARCH SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

134,661.58 

CS23-00279 LINKED LEARNING 

ALLIANCE

LL ALLIANCE SCOPE WORK 

2022-23

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

128,500.00 

CS23-00285 CALIFORNIA FIRE FIGHTER 

JOINT APPRENTICESHIP 

COMMITTEE

CA FIRE FIGHTERS 

2022-2023 APPRENTICESHIP 

PROGRAM

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

634,713.66 

N23-00034 GLOBAL TELETHERAPY AGENCY SERVICES 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,177.50 

P23-00996 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES SLY PARK INVOICE 01ISADOR COHEN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

5,655.00 

P23-00997 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

First 5 Classroom Materials 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,010.67 

P23-00998 EAN SERVICES LLC FIELD TRIP 10-7-2022 CSUS 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 102.80 

P23-00999 PERFORMANCE HEALTH 

SUPPLY INC dba MEDCO 

SUPPLY CO

ATHLETIC TRAINING 

SUPPLIES

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,967.32 

P23-01000 CAL INC CAL INC - ASBESTOS 

TRAININGS

01RISK MANAGEMENT 1,530.00 

P23-01001 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Books for First 5 Classrooms 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,474.49 

P23-01002 CDW GOVERNMENT CLASSROOM DESKTOP 01ROSA PARKS MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

980.40 

P23-01003 FIRST # 3598 FIRST ROBOTICS 

COMPETITION @SES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

9,000.00 

P23-01004 CRISTINA KOSAKOWSKI CONFIRMING SUPPORT 

CENTER SUPPLIES  

REIMBURSEMENT

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

3,450.65 

P23-01005 SMUD 0520-433 HJHS STADIUM 

SMUD MOVE TO 

CONSTRUCTION

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,063.00 

P23-01006 KOMBAT SOCCER INC *****CONFIRMING****VOLLEY

BALL UNIFORMS

01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

391.50 

P23-01007 CDW GOVERNMENT SHARP MONITOR/TRIP LITE 

MOBILE TV MOUNT

01WEST CAMPUS 3,616.70 

P23-01008 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

IREADY STUDENT LICENSES 01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

2,640.00 

P23-01009 LUX BUS AMERICA CO TRANSPORTING 5th 

grade/Starbase

09BG CHACON ACADEMY 6,342.00 

P23-01010 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ICE MAKER, ICE CHEST, ICE 

PACKS SCHOOL WIDE

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

192.19 

P23-01011 FLORIN HIGH SCHOOL TREAT-AS-CONFIRMING-MAT

HLETES COMP FEES22-23

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH

SCHOOL

50.00 

P23-01012 CHRISTINA ESPINOSA REIMBURSEMENT FOR 

LAPTOP

01COUNSELING SERVICES 1,423.10 

P23-01013 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 32A INK CARTRIDGE (DIZON) 01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

35.68 

P23-01014 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SEL POSTERS FOR MATH 

DEPT

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

50.94 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 4 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01015 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RECORDS PROJECT 

MATERIALS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

142.05 

P23-01016 COMMERCIAL APPLIANCE 

SERVICE

CONFIRM- SKILLS CENTER 

KITCHEN EQUIPMENT 

REPAIRS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 534.76 

P23-01017 ATKINSON, ANDELSON, 

LOYA, RUUD  & ROMO 

PROFESSIONAL CORP

FRISK BOOKS FOR ADMIN 

TRAINING

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

1,859.38 

P23-01018 SCOE K12 CURRICULUM & 

INSTRUCT ION

2023 TEACHER OF THE YEAR 

RECOGNITION BANQUET

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

384.00 

P23-01019 BRAINPOP BrainPOP 22-23 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 270,562.50 

P23-01020 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SCULP BOOK ORDER 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

437.27 

P23-01021 LINDA BEICHLER dba 

PROMOTIONS PLUS

PE CLOTHES 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 10,926.19 

P23-01022 BRIGHTLY SOFTWARE INC BRIGHTLY SOFTWARE 

SUBSCRIPTIONS 2022/23

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

104,036.10 

P23-01023 NSAV SOLUTIONS REPLACEMENT LIGHT LAMPS 

FOR PROJECTORS

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

874.62 

P23-01024 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK 01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

228.89 

P23-01025 ALCATRAZ CRUISES LLC LAW- Alcatraz Field trip 

admission

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,307.20 

P23-01026 ZOHO CORPORATION MANAGE-ENGINE 

SUBSCRIPTION/SCUSD.EDU 

DOMAIN

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 6,811.00 

P23-01027 SCHOOL INFO APP LLC SCHOOL INFO APP MOBILE 

COMMUMICATION STAFF 

PARENTS

01CAROLINE WENZEL 

ELEMENTARY

2,500.00 

P23-01028 CDW GOVERNMENT CHROMEBOOK CART 

2022-23

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

13,005.24 

P23-01029 CDW GOVERNMENT COLOR PRINTER FOR 

SDC/AUTISTIC CLASS

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH

SCHOOL

419.81 

P23-01030 ADOBE INC ADOBE CREATIVE CLOUD 

ALL MLP ENTRPSE - CTE & 

Dist

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 12,300.00 

P23-01031 SAMI KADER dba KADER 

CAMP INC

SAMI'S CIRCUIT ON DEMAND 01YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 10,500.00 

P23-01032 LUX BUS AMERICA CO CHARTER BUSES FOR HBCU 

CONF. 9/14/22

01COUNSELING SERVICES 5,160.80 

P23-01033 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE

CATERING FOR HBCU 

COLLEGE FAIR 9/14/22

01COUNSELING SERVICES 997.09 

P23-01034 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE

CATERING FOR COLLEGE & 

CAREER FAIR 9/24/22

01COUNSELING SERVICES 3,717.58 

P23-01035 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC BUS RENTAL-CTE VISIT UC 

MERCED NOV 8, 2022

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

2,086.00 

P23-01036 ALL WEST COACHLINES INC INV 78418, 78489, 78483, 

78446

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 5,764.74 

P23-01037 THE FRESHY FRESH The Freshy Fresh- Laundry 

Services- SUMMER

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

66.30 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 5 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01038 TOBII DYNAVOX LLC SPED - ARATA 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

895.00 

P23-01039 LUX BUS AMERICA CO 6TH GRADE SCIENCE CAMP - 

ALLIANCE REDWOODS

01JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

3,400.00 

P23-01043 JOHNSON CONTROLS INC 0520-463 HIRAM JOHNSON 

METASYS HVAC CONTROLS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,041,265.14 

P23-01044 JOHNSON CONTROLS INC 0530-463 LUTHER BURBANK 

METASYS HVAC CONTROLS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,752,741.27 

P23-01046 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

CONFIRMING L DA VINCI 

FLOORING PLANT MGR 

ROOM

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 12,789.73 

P23-01047 RJ COMMERCIAL FLOORING 

CO

CONFIRMING L DA VINCI 

FLOORING ROOM 14A

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 26,061.36 

P23-01048 THE N CERVANTEZ ENT INC 

TACOS JESSICA #2

MEASURE H COMMUNITY 

MEETINGS - DINNER

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

5,000.00 

P23-01049 MCM ROOFING COMPANY 

INC.

0570-409 AMER LEGION 

ROOF REPLACE-CONST 

SERV

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

498,000.00 

P23-01050 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 

ENVIRONME NTAL MGMT 

DEPT

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

DISCLOSURE FEES - JFK

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,188.00 

P23-01051 EMICS INC INFORMED K-12 RENEWAL 

JULY 2022-JUNE 2023

01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

164,058.00 

P23-01052 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Pull Ups for Preschool 

Classrooms - ELC Nurses

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

992.78 

P23-01053 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 

FOR SPED TEACHER (YASIN)

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

196.00 

P23-01054 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

INST SUPPLIES FOR SPED 

TEACHER (ABE)

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

58.58 

P23-01055 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

WIRELESS PA SPEAKER - 

SPED (CHLOE)

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

184.04 

P23-01056 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

WHITEBOARD 01CESAR CHAVEZ 

INTERMEDIATE

217.49 

P23-01057 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

LEGAL SIZE PAPER FOR 

SPED TEACHER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

163.10 

P23-01058 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Amazon storage containers 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

173.57 

P23-01059 BOOKS EN MORE CLASSROOM LIBRARY - MS 

MESTIDIO F1

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

95.71 

P23-01060 KLINE MUSIC INC ANNA KACHAGIN 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 239.01 

P23-01061 PAR INC PSYCHOLOGIST TEST KIT - 

LINE 101 HAHN

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

195.53 

P23-01062 PROPELE ELECTRIC BOAT 

MOTORS

MOTOR FOR BOAT FOR 

SOLAR REGATTA

01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

1,549.00 

P23-01063 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ATHLETIC EQUIPMENT 01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 626.49 

P23-01064 CDW GOVERNMENT AT ORDER - LINE 107 

WATTEN PurchSave $120

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

541.58 

P23-01065 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PSYCHOLOGIST ORDER - 

LINE 95 L.NAVARRO

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

122.44 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 6 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01066 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OTR ORDER - B.D. @ JFK 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

152.20 

P23-01067 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AAC ORDER - LINE 103 & 104 

WILSON

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

711.40 

P23-01068 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES AT ORDER - LINE 97 

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,030.55 

P23-01069 HEGGERTY PHONEMIC 

AWARENESS

HEGGERTY CURRICULUM 

PHONEMIC AWARNESS 

BOOKS

01JOHN CABRILLO 

ELEMENTARY

623.00 

P23-01070 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

FOLLETT- 2022-23 LIBRARY 01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 1,997.31 

P23-01071 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

11/22 - 5/23 SCHOLASTIC - 

SUPP. CURRICULUM

01CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 139.98 

P23-01072 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - 

PSYCHOLOGIST (HAHN)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

433.25 

P23-01073 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - 

PSYCHOLOGIST 

(WILLIAMS-TAHOE)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,022.44 

P23-01074 WESTERN PSYCHOLOGICAL 

SERVICES

PSYCHOLOGIST 

PROTOCOLS - LINE 94 

L.NAVARRO

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

342.79 

P23-01075 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

SUPPLIES FOR NURSES

OFFICE

01WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,439.85 

P23-01076 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES SLY PARK 22-23-DEPOSIT 01O. W. ERLEWINE 

ELEMENTARY

660.00 

P23-01077 WESTERN PSYCHOLOGICAL 

SERVICES

SLP Protocols 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

967.88 

P23-01078 FUN AND FUNCTION OT MATERIAL - Z.C. @ 

BOWLING GREEN

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

195.50 

P23-01079 KAGAN PUBLISHING INC INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,354.48 

P23-01081 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Afterschool Enhances 

Learning and Enrichment-Ian

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 218.00 

P23-01082 TROXELL 

COMMUNICATIONS INC

MICROPHONE FOR PARENT 

ENGAGEMENT MEETINGS

01CAMELLIA BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

515.38 

P23-01083 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

CALENDARS FOR 

CUSTODIAL SUPPORT

01BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS/OPERATIONS

286.84 

P23-01084 KNOX CO KNOX LOCKS FOR SITES 01BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS/OPERATIONS

160.95 

P23-01085 BOOKS EN MORE PD BOOKS FOR 

TEACHERS-STAFF 

DEVELOPMENT

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

269.27 

P23-01086 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

Afterschool Supplies for 

Masters

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1,404.66 

P23-01087 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

Afterschool Supplies for NJB 

Enrichment

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 326.22 

P23-01088 JOSTENS INC GRADUATION SUPPLIES 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

794.96 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 7 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01089 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

JCBA- INSTRUCTIONAL 

MATERIALS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

699.49 

P23-01090 ABELS APPLE ACRES INC APPLE HILL - ABELS APPLE  

ACRES

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 859.00 

P23-01091 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

Afterschool Materials 

Lakeshore Quote#C665135

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 3,083.28 

P23-01092 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SDC CHANGING STATION 

SUPPLIES

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

262.34 

P23-01093 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES For Rm. A2 - Classroom 

Supply

01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

23.38 

P23-01094 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Classroom Use for Testing 01EARL WARREN 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

93.53 

P23-01095 AFFORDABLE TRENCHLESS  

and PIP E LINING

SACRAMENTO HS (ST. HOPE) 

SEWER LINE REPAIR

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 19,950.00 

P23-01096 CHEFS TOYS LLC REFER/FRZR FOR 

WOODBINE/R.PARKS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

18,981.08 

P23-01097 BRIAN FOSTER REFEREE 

ASSOCIATI ON

2023 REFEREE SVCS - 

SMALL HS SPORTS 

PROGRAM

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 3,350.00 

P23-01098 GBC GENERAL BINDING 

CORP

ONE-YEAR MAINTENANCE 

AGREEMENT

01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

549.92 

P23-01099 RENE L OROZCO AZTLAN UNDERGROUND 

MUSICAL PRESENTATION

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

500.00 

P23-01100 WEVIDEO WEVIDEO LICENSE-SUPP. 

MATERIALS

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

343.52 

P23-01101 BOOKS EN MORE LSJ CLASSROOM LIBRARY 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

485.49 

P23-01102 BOOKS EN MORE NOVELS FOR CLASSROOM 

LIBRARY

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

832.96 

P23-01103 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

AFTERSCHOOL MATERIALS 

FOR NJB ENRICHMENT

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 513.36 

P23-01104 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

EASY CLEAN UP ROOM 

DIVIDERS SDC PRESCHOOL

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

599.97 

P23-01105 SCHOOL SPECIALTY LIVE SCIENCE MATERIAL 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 164.46 

P23-01106 PLUSHY FEELY CORP dba 

KIMOCHIS

Clincian supplies- KIMOCHI & 

Mixed Bag

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

205.20 

P23-01107 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC 

GAME ON E

ATHLETICS- BASEBALL 

PANTS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

523.74 

P23-01108 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC 

GAME ON E

ATHLETICS- TRACK 

SINGLETS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,175.59 

P23-01109 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC 

GAME ON E

WOMEN SOFTBALL 

UNIFORMS

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

2,574.11 

P23-01110 UNIVERSAL ATHLETIC LLC 

GAME ON E

SOCCER NETS 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

320.81 

P23-01111 CSUS PARKING 

SACRAMENTO STATE 

UNIVERSITY

CSUS PARKING PERMITS - 

TRANSITION CLASS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,425.00 

P23-01112 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

MULTI-SITES SCOPE OF 

WORK -  AURORA 

ENVIRONMENTAL

01RISK MANAGEMENT 34,800.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 8 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01113 ALLIANCE REDWOODS 

CONF GROUNDS

6TH GRADERS SCIENCE 

CAMP

01JOHN D SLOAT BASIC 

ELEMENTARY

10,275.00 

P23-01114 SCHOOL SPECIALTY pe 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

323.77 

P23-01115 CHARTER AMERICA BUS CO 

THANDI ENTERPRISES INC

TRANSPORT 6TH GRADERS 09BG CHACON ACADEMY 6,533.18 

P23-01116 THE SOCCER WALL CO dba 

SOCCER INNOVATIONS

ATHLETICS TEAM SHELTER 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

12,427.89 

P23-01117 SCOE FINANCIAL SERVICES SLY PARK DEPOSIT 01SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

13,925.00 

P23-01118 SETTLEMENT PAYMENT - 

OAH CASE 2021050802 M.V.

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,720.00 

P23-01119 CDW GOVERNMENT AT ORDER - LINE 98 

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

6,234.86 

P23-01120 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

G. Didion Biography Library

order (grant monies)

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

673.64 

P23-01121 APPLE INC AT ORDER - LINE 96

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

8,550.03 

P23-01122 B&H FOTO & ELECTRONICS 

CORP B& H PHOTO-VIDEO

MULTI-MEDIA CAMERAS,

SCAN DISK/PRT ADPT-JC

BURBANK

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

17,381.57 

P23-01123 SETTLEMENT PAYMENT -

FINAL D.W-G

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

10,000.00 

P23-01126 JOHNSON CONTROLS INC 0525-463 JOHN F KENNEDY

METASYS HVAC CONTROLS

01FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

1,335,524.72 

P23-01127 CDW GOVERNMENT PROOFPOINT RENEWAL -

EMAIL SECURITY/SUPPORT

01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 90,720.00 

P23-01128 ULINE NURSE ORDER-LARGE

GLOVES (LORI SOUZA)

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

1,495.60 

P23-01129 BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE  

DEVELOPM ENT INC

CONFIRMING: CK

MCCLATCHY IRRIGATION

REPAIRS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 7,734.44 

P23-01130 MBS ENGINEERING INC CONFIRMING: PACIFIC ELEM

GAS LINE REPAIRS

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,609.75 

P23-01131 CDW GOVERNMENT SCHOOL AGE LAPTOPS 22/23 12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

5,815.77 

P23-01132 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

Cart Utility 01THEODORE JUDAH 

ELEMENTARY

181.82 

P23-01133 LEGO EDUCATION AFTERSCHOOL-LEGOS EDU 

QUOTE#QUO-65745-L1S6P1/

0

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 4,186.33 

P23-01134 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

FORKLIFT TRAINER 

RECERTIFICATION (ONLINE)

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

445.00 

P23-01135 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

CUSTOM INK 01RISK MANAGEMENT 439.14 

P23-01136 TOBII DYNAVOX LLC AT/AAC MATERIALS - LINE 41 

WILSON M.G. @ LBHS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

13,052.72 

P23-01137 PAXTON PATTERSON LLC SUTTER PAX LAB 01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

31,316.24 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 9 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01138 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC AMADOR STATE LINES -ABEL 

ACRES APPLE HILL

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 3,091.12 

P23-01139 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC AFTERSCHOOL AMADOR 

STAGE LINE- 3RD GD CA 

ACAD SCI

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1,301.22 

P23-01140 ALL WEST COACHLINES CHARTER BUS FOR FIELD 

TRIPS

01CONTINUOUS IMPRVMNT & 

ACNTBLTY

3,200.13 

P23-01141 HANNIBAL'S RESTAURANT 

AND CATE

FOOD FOR CABINET 

MEETING 10/25/22

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 428.71 

P23-01142 GOPHER SPORT PE EQUIPMENT FOR 

PETERSON

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

284.63 

P23-01143 GOPHER SPORT CONFIRMING-SPORTS 

EQUIP.

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

1,061.39 

P23-01144 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

INST MAT-J.MARSHALL-RM1 

(R. SJOLUND)

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

388.40 

P23-01145 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

INS MAT -OAKRIDGE RM1 (C. 

VANG)

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

398.67 

P23-01146 EDGEWOOD PRESS INC FRESHMAN FOLDERS 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,042.21 

P23-01147 SWEETWATER MUSIC 

INSTRUMENTS &  PRO 

AUDIO

PERCUSSION LAB 

MATERIALS

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 376.86 

P23-01148 DEMCO INC Library processing supplies 

per Cart ID 3368008

01LIBRARY/TEXTBOOK 

SERVICES

663.46 

P23-01149 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

PRINTER FOR AP 01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 108.74 

P23-01150 ABV GREENCORE ASSOC 

INC FAIR-P LAY CALIFORNIA

ROSEMONT SCOREBOARD 

REPLACEMENT

21ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 24,539.01 

P23-01151 NEARPOD INC Nearpod 22-23 01ACADEMIC OFFICE 247,723.54 

P23-01152 STERICYCLE INC YEARLY SHREDDING 

SERVICE FOR THE SCHOOL - 

2022

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,108.89 

P23-01153 BRAINPOP BRAIN POP YEARLY 

SUBSCRIPTION 2022-23

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

810.00 

P23-01154 SEESAW LEARNING INC SEESAW STUDENT LICENSE 01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

870.00 

P23-01155 APPLE INC ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL'S 

LAPTOP

01ETHEL I. BAKER 

ELEMENTARY

1,694.41 

P23-01156 CDW GOVERNMENT CDW  MONITORS FOR EE 01HUMAN RESOURCE 

SERVICES

4,680.47 

P23-01157 CDW GOVERNMENT LAPTOP FOR ADMIN 

ASISTANT IN IAS DEPT.

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 1,101.02 

P23-01158 CDW GOVERNMENT CHROMEBOOKS FOR 

STUDENTS-SUPP. 

MATERIALS

01FERN BACON MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

23,196.60 

P23-01159 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 01SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

365.37 

P23-01160 ONE WORKPLACE 

L.FERRARI

CALM ROOM FURNITURE 01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 11,234.55 

P23-01161 B&H FOTO & ELECTRONICS

CORP B& H PHOTO-VIDEO

MEDIA CLASS EQUIPMENT 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

3,603.26 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 10 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01162 BOYSTOWN NATIONAL 

RESEARCH HOD PITAL  

ATTN: K RUGG

PSYCHOLOGIST ORDER - 

LINE 92 JOHNSON

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

57.94 

P23-01163 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BCBAS IPAD SCREEN 

PROTECTOR

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

114.06 

P23-01164 LUX BUS AMERICA CO CHARTER BUS FOR FIELD 

TRIPS

01CONTINUOUS IMPRVMNT & 

ACNTBLTY

5,160.80 

P23-01165 HENGEHOLD MOTOR CO 

INC

NEW VEHICLE/LABOR SHOP 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 38,837.63 

P23-01166 CAMPBELL KELLER SURPLUS FURNITURE 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 20,566.50 

P23-01167 BACKFLOW TECHNOLOGIES ANNUAL BACKFLOW 

TESTING

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 16,906.00 

P23-01168 THE SHADE CARE CO INC TREE SERVICE @ O. W. 

ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 5,900.00 

P23-01169 WEST COAST ARBORISTS 

INC

TREE SERVICE @ BRET 

HARTE ELEMENTARY

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 8,100.00 

P23-01170 KIMBERLEY CARR SCIENCE PROF 

DEVELOPMENT

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2,956.00 

P23-01171 SACRAMENTO RENDERING 

COMPANY

PROTEIN DISPOSAL FOR 

CENTRAL KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

385.00 

P23-01172 KANTER & ROMO 

IMMIGRATION LAW

LEGAL FEES-NONIMMIGRANT 

VISA

01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 6,300.00 

P23-01173 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

SPEECH PROTOCOL 

(CTOPP) @LTS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

782.10 

P23-01174 INTERMOUNTAIN LOCK AND 

SECURIT Y SUPPLY

DOOR EXIT TRIM FOR CK 

WIRELESS PASSAGE DOOR

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,674.75 

P23-01175 CALIFORNIA ACADEMY OF 

SCIENCES

JCBA ACADEMY OF SCIENCE 

12-8-22

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

908.20 

P23-01176 CDW GOVERNMENT TECH EQUIPMENT FOR

LABORER DEPARTMENT

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,874.71 

P23-01177 SWEETWATER MUSIC 

INSTRUMENTS &  PRO 

AUDIO

Sweetwater Ukuleles 01MUSIC SECTION 4,694.74 

P23-01178 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

INS MAT - MLK JR. RM12 (HA 

TA)

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

434.34 

P23-01179 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

INS MAT- OAK RIDGE RM K-1 

(C. VANG)

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

94.35 

P23-01180 APPLE INC AT ORDER - LINE 96 

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

7,753.60 

P23-01181 APPLE INC AT ORDER - LINE 96 

WATTENBERG

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

5,000.00 

P23-01182 APPLE INC AT ORDER FOR A.S. @ 

DIDION (LINE 117)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,351.36 

P23-01183 CRISIS PREVENT INSTITUTE 

INC

INV # IUS0232480 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,050.00 

P23-01184 B&H FOTO & ELECTRONICS 

CORP B& H PHOTO-VIDEO

MULTI MEDIA SUPPLIES 

@NTHS-S. STEINBERG

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

688.97 

P23-01185 CDW GOVERNMENT CDW QUOTE#NBRP610 FOR 

AFTERSCHOOL PROGRAM

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 37.99 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 11 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01186 CDW GOVERNMENT PROJECTORS FOR RSP 

BILINGUAL AND SPED

01MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

1,533.38 

P23-01187 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

NURSES OFFICE SUPPLIES 01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 164.02 

P23-01188 IMAGESTUFF.COM 

SCHOOLLIFE.COM

C.A.R.E.S. ATTENDANCE

INCENTIVES

01PETER BURNETT 

ELEMENTARY

369.10 

P23-01189 BOOKS EN MORE PHYSICS PD BOOKS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

444.91 

P23-01190 EUGSON WONG dba JOE 

SUN & CO

LAW - UNIFORMs 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

4,872.46 

P23-01191 MICHAEL'S 

TRANSPORTATION

FOOTBALL BUSSES FOR 

11/4/22

01ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 1,349.00 

P23-01192 95 PERCENT GROUP LLC READING INTERVENTION 01FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 1,047.90 

P23-01193 RUSSELL BURCH dba U PAY 

WE TRA VEL

VOLLEYBALL LEAGUE FEES 01ENGINEERING AND 

SCIENCES HS

350.00 

P23-01194 TEAM OUTFITTERS LLC LSJ UNIFORMS 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

992.34 

P23-01195 ALL WEST COACHLINES TRANSPORTATION FOR THE 

CJA PROGRAM - C. HERNER

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,346.95 

P23-01196 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL - 

AHERA INSP - BIANNUAL 

SURV.

68RISK MANAGEMENT 46,059.52 

P23-01197 APPLE INC IPADS-CTE COMUPTER 

SCIENCE PATHWAY

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

11,317.00 

P23-01198 APPLE INC LOW INCIDENCE - AAC 

MULTIPLE STUDENTS (LINE 

105)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

3,098.98 

P23-01199 WORTHINGTON DIRECT INC OT STUDENT SUPPLIES 

(MEADOWS-LINE 122)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

168.24 

P23-01200 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 

LLC

iREADY CURRICULUM 

ASSOCIATES

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 16,550.00 

P23-01201 CONSORTIUM ON 

REACHING EXCELLE NCE IN 

EDUCATION INC

SIPPS NEWCOMER TRAINING 01MULTILINGUAL EDUCATION 

DEPT.

1,650.00 

P23-01202 CDW GOVERNMENT COMPUTER SCIENCE 

PATHWY-CART, TABLETS, 

CASES

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

6,444.31 

P23-01203 UNIVERSITY OF OREGON 

PBISAPPS

PBIS APPS - SWIS Annual 

License FY 22-23

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

2,910.00 

P23-01204 UNIVERSAL LIMOUSINE CO JCBA FT TRANSPORTATION 

11/10/22

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,000.00 

P23-01205 FOLLETT CONTENT 

SOLUTIONS LLC

LIBRARY BOOKS 01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

1,038.63 

P23-01206 DISCOUNT SCHOOL 

SUPPLY

AFTERSCHOOL SUPPLIES 

FOR MASTER PROGRAM

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 1,901.48 

P23-01207 ENABLING DEVICES AAC ASSESSMENTS - LINE 

112 KATIE WILSON

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,107.34 

P23-01208 ENABLING DEVICES AAC MULTIPLE IEP 

STUDENTS - LINE 113 KATIE 

WILSON

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

877.55 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 12 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01209 FOLKMANIS PUPPETS INTS MAT -CAJ SKILLS 

CENTER RM2B (C. SETZER)

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

523.72 

P23-01210 ALL WEST COACHLINES TRANSPORTATION FOR CJA 

PROGRAM

01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,346.95 

P23-01211 T-MOBILE USA INC HOTSPOT FOR 

SUPERINTENDENT

01SUPERINTENDENTS OFFICE 500.00 

P23-01212 LAKESHORE LEARNING 

MATERIALS

SUSAN B ANTHONY- TERRI 

KOHNKE

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

298.57 

P23-01213 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

LLC

OFFICE CHAIR FOR 

PRINCIPAL

01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

409.36 

P23-01214 HAWTHORNE 

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

PRE-REFERRAL 

INTERVENTION MANUAL #4

01NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

732.70 

P23-01215 WINSOR LEARNING INC SONDAY SYSTEM 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

2,685.25 

P23-01216 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES DRAMA DEPT - PLAY 

PERFORMANCE PROPS

01KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 362.96 

P23-01217 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OFFICE SUPPLIES  FOR 

DENISE AUZENNE

12EARLY LEARNING & CARE 

PROGRAMS

24.47 

P23-01218 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TRANSITION CLASSROOM - 

CERTIFICATE FRAMES LINE 

116

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

157.74 

P23-01219 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MEMORY STICK FOR 

DHH-VICARI

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 24.47 

P23-01220 SELPA ADMINISTRATORS 

Humbolt -  Del Norte SELPA

SELPA DUES (2022-2023) 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,660.00 

P23-01221 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - 

PSYCHOLOGIST LINE 115 

(MORGAN)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

1,105.09 

P23-01222 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - 

PSYCHOLOGIST HAHN (LINE 

119)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

103.29 

P23-01223 PEARSON CLINICAL 

ASSESSMENT OR DERING 

DEPARTMENT

PROTOCOL - OT (MATSUURA 

- LINE 124)

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

61.71 

P23-01224 CDW GOVERNMENT WATTEN FOR A.S. @ DIDION 

PURCHASE SAVED $54

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

302.99 

P23-01225 CDW GOVERNMENT AT/VI ORDER -  

WATTENBERG PURCH 

SAVED $126

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

541.58 

P23-01226 CDW GOVERNMENT MONITOR - PSYCH. YANG - 

PURCH SAVED $126

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

483.32 

P23-01227 CDW GOVERNMENT ADMIN TECHNOLOGY - 

WEBCAM PURCH SAVED $46

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

201.18 

P23-01228 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TRANSITION - FONTENOT 01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

164.52 

P23-01229 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SDC CLASS - K.S. @ J 

RUTTER

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

387.19 

P23-01230 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

3RD MOSAC/ENRICHMENT 

FT 11/18/22 ARRIVE @ 

9:15am

09NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 950.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 13 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01231 TOLLNER LAW OFFICES SPED SETTLEMENT 

ATTORNEY FEES

01ADMIN-LEGAL COUNSEL 15,000.00 

P23-01232 APPLE INC LOW INCIDENCE - AAC 

MULTIPLE STUDENTS

01SPECIAL EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT

14,308.61 

P23-01233 AMADOR STAGE LINES INC FYS Field Trip 01FOSTER YOUTH SERVICES 

PROGRAM

2,346.78 

P23-01234 CDW GOVERNMENT Erate YR25 Cisco Licenses 01TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 40,946.00 

P23-01235 MAIL KING CORP MAILKING 09GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 3,120.16 

P23-01236 CALIFORNIA DEPT OF 

GENERAL SER VICES

460 CCHAVEZ/EKEMBLE 

NEW CONST-DSA STARTUP 

FEES

21FACILITIES SUPPORT 

SERVICES

462,500.00 

P23-01237 POWERHOUSE SCIENCE 

CENTER THE DISCOVERY 

MUSEUM

SMUD MUSEUM OF SCIENCE 

AND CURIOSITY

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 1,000.00 

P23-01238 LUX BUS AMERICA CO SMUD MOSAC 12/7/22 FIELD 

TRIP TRANSPORTATION

01JOHN H. STILL - K-8 2,585.20 

P23-01240 CALIFORNIA LANDSCAPE 

SUPPLY

GRASS SEED 01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 51,716.70 

P23-01241 WEST COAST ARBORISTS 

INC

TREE SERVICE @ 

CALIFORNIA MONTESSORI

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 3,600.00 

P23-01242 BAY CITY BOILER & 

ENGINEERING

RE COMMISSIONING FOR 

CKM BOILER TO ISSUE 

PERMIT

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2,100.00 

P23-01243 JOHNSON CONTROLS INC HIRAM REPLACEMENT 

ENGINE/SITE HVAC

01FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 16,695.35 

P23-01244 CDW GOVERNMENT SURGE PROTECTORS/HDMI 

CABLES

01WEST CAMPUS 248.60 

P23-01245 CDW GOVERNMENT DESKTOP COMPUTERS FOR 

STAFF

01DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT 8,049.32 

P23-01246 SCHOOLMATE INC 22/23 STUDENT PLANNERS 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

483.00 

P23-01247 SCHOOLMATE INC 22/23 STUDENT FOLDERS 01MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

379.20 

P23-01248 COOLE SCHOOL INC STUDENT PLANNER 25 

additional

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

121.75 

P23-01249 LITERACY RESOURCES INC TRANSITIONAL KINDER 

MANUAL CURRICULM 22-23

01WASHINGTON ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

105.91 

P23-01250 NSAV SOLUTIONS PROJECTOR BULBS 01WEST CAMPUS 258.36 

P23-01251 SCHOOL SPECIALTY CLASSROOM WORLD/US 

MAP

01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE 

SCHOOL

362.50 

P23-01252 SACTOMOFO INC Food Truck for Community 

Event on 11/19/22

01COMMUNICATIONS OFFICE 1,335.00 

P23-01253 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO DUPLICATING 

SUPPLIES

01GOLDEN EMPIRE 

ELEMENTARY

3,732.46 

P23-01254 GRAPHIC PROMOTIONS NS STAFF UNIFORM TEES 

SY22-23

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

2,449.05 

P23-01255 EUGSON WONG dba JOE 

SUN & CO

LAW - UNIFORM 

ALTERATIONS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

84.83 

P23-01256 LH CONNECTED StrideTrack 1 Year 

Subscriptions

01EQUITY, ACCESS & 

EXCELLENCE

9,960.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 14 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01257 NEWCASTLE SYSTEMS INC STAND ALONE POWER 

PACKS FOR CENTRAL 

KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

6,964.07 

P23-01258 ULINE TRASH CANS 55 GALLON 01AMERICAN LEGION HIGH 

SCHOOL

300.06 

P23-01259 THE HONEY AGENCY INC THE CENTRAL KITCHEN 

WEBSITE HOSTING ANNUAL 

FEE

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

1,188.00 

P23-01260 IRON MOUNTAIN RECORDS 

MANAGMT

SHREDDING SERVICE FOR 

SUMMER CLEAN UP

01BUSINESS SERVICES 3,410.96 

P23-01261 SCHOLASTIC INC 

SCHOLASTIC MAGA ZINES

CLASSROOM NOVELS 4TH 

(RUIZ) & 6TH (VANG) GRADES

01WILLIAM LAND ELEMENTARY 225.17 

P23-01262 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BATTERIES FOR NS LAPTOP 

STYLUS PENS

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

56.44 

P23-01263 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Art Rack 01THEODORE JUDAH 

ELEMENTARY

168.18 

P23-01264 INTERNATIONAL 

BACCALAUREATE

LBURBANK IB FEE: 

9/1/22-8/31/23

01AREA ASSITANT 

SUPERINTENDENTS

11,650.00 

P23-01265 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TV CART COMPUTER 

SCIENCE- J. HUANG @NEW 

TECH

01CAREER & TECHNICAL 

PREPARATION

505.36 

P23-01266 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES US AND CA FLAG FOR 

SCHOOL

01C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH

SCHOOL

164.39 

P23-01267 AMIE LEAS ***TREAT AS CONFIRMING 01ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE

SCHOOL

462.00 

P23-01268 SCUSD - US BANK CAL 

CARD

Cal Card SEPT 2022 

4710/5800 Reconcile

13NUTRITION SERVICES

DEPARTMENT

63.87 

P23-01269 CALIFORNIA SPORT DESIGN PE CLOTHES 01CALIFORNIA MIDDLE

SCHOOL

11,798.02 

P23-01270 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Purchasing Office Supplies 01ISADOR COHEN

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

321.51 

P23-01271 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TRANSITION CLASSROOM - 

GRADUATION LINE 136

01SPECIAL EDUCATION

DEPARTMENT

566.28 

P23-01272 SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY 

INC

Medical Supplies 01ISADOR COHEN

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

276.08 

P23-01273 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SUPPLIES (TECH SUPPORT) 

FOR CLASSROOMS

01SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 456.59 

P23-01274 AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES

AURORA ENVIRONMENTAL - 

AHERA INSP - BIANNUAL 

SURV.

68RISK MANAGEMENT 15,113.28 

P23-01275 CDW GOVERNMENT HARDRIVES FOR CAMERA 

RECORDERS

01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

1,380.95 

P23-01276 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO SUPPLIES/COPY 

CLASSWORK

01HUBERT H BANCROFT 

ELEMENTARY

260.63 

P23-01277 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES REPLACEMENT 

ORDER/0750-L.NAVARRO

01DISTRIBUTION SERVICES 124.09 

P23-01278 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES RAIN GEAR FOR 

WAREHOUSE DRIVERS

01DISTRIBUTION SERVICES 150.49 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 15 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO

Number Vendor Name Description

Account

AmountLocation Fund

P23-01279 KENDALL HUNT 

PUBLISHING CO

PHARMACY 

PROGRAM-BOOKSTORE 

SALES

11CHARLES A. JONES CAREER 

& ED

3,087.94 

P23-01280 SCREENPRINTING HERE LAW STUDENT SHIRTS 01HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH 

SCHOOL

6,718.64 

P23-01281 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES READING RESOURCE - 

ROOM J1 COEY

01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

84.30 

P23-01282 EAST BAY RESTAURANT 

SUPPLY INC

CAMBRO FLEX STATIONS - 

CAL MS KITCHEN

13NUTRITION SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT

5,951.98 

P23-01283 NAN HAI CO INC ICHINESE READER 01ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

5,598.00 

P23-01284 GOPHER SPORT PE SUPPLIES 01LUTHER BURBANK HIGH 

SCHOOL

352.92 

P23-01285 ACCREDITING COMMISSION 

FOR SCH OOLS, WASC

Accrediting Commission for 

Schools

09THE MET 1,130.00 

P23-01286 PACIFIC OFFICE 

AUTOMATION

RISO INK FOR THE SCHOOL 01JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH 

SCHOOL

571.72 

Total 9,634,602.83 Total Number of  POs 353 

Fund Recap

Fund Description PO Count Amount

01 General Fund 288 7,288,616.24 

09 Charter School 21 60,212.46 

11 Adult Education 2 637,801.60 

12 Child Development 15 13,396.90 

13 Cafeteria 15 236,159.24 

21 Building Fund 8 1,202,243.59 

67 Self Insurance 1 15,000.00 

68 Dental/Vision 3 181,172.80 

Total 9,634,602.83 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 16 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO Changes 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

B22-00742 429.86 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 129.86 

B22-00755 440.00 21-6170 Building Fund/Land Improvement 40.00 

B22-00779 111,002.98 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 51,388.60 

B23-00049 10,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 10,000.00-

B23-00057 60,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 60,000.00-

B23-00059 5,000.00 67-4320 Self Insurance/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 15,000.00-

B23-00068 2,712.48 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,712.48 

B23-00070 4,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,000.00-

B23-00071 3,500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 1,000.00 

B23-00072 100.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 400.00-

B23-00105 20,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 10,000.00 

B23-00128 105,153.30 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 31,000.00 

B23-00134 240,000.00 13-4326 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Paper Supplies 50,000.00-

13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 98,638.57 

48,638.57 Total PO B23-00134 

B23-00198 5,888.31 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 14,111.69-

B23-00200 2,359.94 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 7,640.06-

B23-00235 1,675.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 8,325.00-

B23-00267 3,965.62 13-5800 Cafeteria/Other Contractual Expenses 2,000.00 

B23-00284 2,500.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 1,500.00 

B23-00289 23,000.00 13-4325 Cafeteria/Nutrition Ed/Equipment Parts 10,000.00 

B23-00334 100,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 67,052.80 

B23-00425 13,000.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 2,000.00-

B23-00477 2,412.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 412.00 

B23-00517 110,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 37,692.80 

B23-00559 20,000.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 10,000.00 

B23-00570 50,000.00 13-4710 Cafeteria/Food 25,000.00 

B23-00610 5,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 2,000.00 

B23-00674 500.00 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 19,500.00-

B23-00675 15,000.00 01-5832 General Fund/Transportation-Field Trips 5,000.00 

CHB23-00001 10,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 3,000.00 

CHB23-00073 10,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00214 7,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 3,000.00 

CHB23-00216 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB23-00217 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB23-00270 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CHB23-00287 6,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,500.00 

CHB23-00294 10,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

CHB23-00310 14,900.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 5,000.00 

*** See the last page for criteria limiting the report detail.

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 17 of 18



Board Report with FundReqPay11c

Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/15/2022 - 11/14/2022 ***

PO Changes (continued) 

Description  Change Amount

Fund/

ObjectNew PO Amount

CHB23-00324 2,000.00 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 1,000.00 

CS22-00400 81,779.30 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 6,770.30 

CS23-00247 677,600.00 01-5100 General Fund/Subagreements for Services abo 9,625.52 

01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 374.48 

10,000.00 Total PO CS23-00247 

P23-00057 11,381.55 13-5800 Cafeteria/Other Contractual Expenses 25.10 

13-6490 Cafeteria/Equipment over $5,000 1,606.15 

1,631.25 Total PO P23-00057 

P23-00268 282.75 01-4310 General Fund/Instructional Materials/Suppli 13.76 

P23-00910 1,183.18 01-4320 General Fund/Non-Instructional Materials/Su 21.91-

P23-00945 620.00 01-5800 General Fund/Other Contractual Expenses 168.00 

Total PO Changes 211,651.76 

Information is further limited to: (Minimum Amount = (999,999.99))

The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 

authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 

and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.

097 - Sacramento City Unified School District Generated for Victoria Mena (VICTORIA-MENA2), Dec  6 2022  

5:40PM

Page 18 of 18


	4.2 December 15 Amended Agenda vFinal
	4.3 Updated Recognition of Outgoing Board Member
	4.4 Updated Agenda Cover Sheet Ceremonial Oath (SC399077xAAE13)
	8.1 Updated Agenda Cover Sheet Ceremonial Oath (SC399077xAAE13)
	9.1 Resolution 3301 Combined
	9.1 Resolution 3301 BMtg_Cover_Reserve_Cap_22_23_1st_Int_12_15_22 (005)
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	9.1.1 Resolution No. 3301 Commitment Board Resolution 2022-23 First Interim revised

	9.2 First Interim Combined
	9.2 2022-23 First Interim_cover_12.15.22 updated
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	9.2.1 2022-23 First Interim Financial Report 12.15.22

	9.3 AMENDED Independent Audit
	9.3 Independent Audit Report Cover 12.15.22
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	9.3.1 AMENDED DOCUMENT Sacramento City Unified School District - 6.30.2022 - Unsecured FINAL revised

	9.4 Combined
	9.4 12.15.22 Agenda Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date: December 15, 2022

	9.4.1 Executive Summary Approve Naming Policy
	I. Overview/History of Department or Program
	II. Driving Governance:
	III. Budget:
	IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:
	V. Major Initiatives:
	VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:

	9.4.2 BP 7310- Naming of Facilities (revisions)_2022.11.3
	9.4.3 BP 7310- Naming of Facilities (revisions)_2022.11.3_clean

	9.5 Combined
	9.5 Cover Sheet Waivers 12.15.2022
	Meeting Date: December 15, 2022

	9.5.1 Executive Summary Waiver 12.15.2022
	I. Overview/History of Department or Program
	II. Driving Governance:
	III. Budget: N/A
	IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:
	V. Major Initiatives:
	VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:

	9.5.2 Waiver Attachment 12.15.2022
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING FOR December 15, 2022
	CREDENTIAL WAIVER REQUEST
	Name
	Position/Location
	Education Code Section
	Brief Description of Section



	9.6 SCTA Item Updated
	11.1a combined
	11.1a Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1a.1 SA23-00388 Bigger Than Us Arts
	11.1a.2 SA23-00340 Studio T
	11.1a.3 SA23-00356  National University
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	3. Advertising and Promotion.
	4. Agreement Term and Termination.
	5. Academic Related Responsibilities
	6. Tuition, Fees, and Student Services.
	7. Confidentiality.
	8. Compliance With Laws.
	9. Insurance And Indemnification.
	10. Representations And Warranties
	11. Enforcement.
	12. Notices.
	14. General Provisions.
	Sacramento City Unified School District
	National University
	National University

	11.1a.4 SA23-00394 Cntr for Fathers and Families
	Father and Families backup
	SA23-00394 Cntr for Fathers and Families
	SA23-00394 Cntr for Fathers and Families


	11.1a.5 SA23-00350 Conditions for Learning
	11.1a.6 SA23-00408 Cadence Solutions Estimate - Data Rescue Hosting and Department Discovery
	11.1a.7 R23-02535 CDW
	CDW quote for SCUSD with comments by RD - 9.30
	OPENTEXT SCUSD Price Calculations 1-5 Years-11.18

	11.1a.8 SA23-00404 UC Regents UC Berkeley
	SA23-00404 UC Regents UC Berkeley

	11.1a.9 SA23-00351 CORE
	11.1a.10 460 Chavez Kemble Facilities Lease Partially Executed BB CS JV
	11.1a.11 460 Chavez Kemble Site Lease Partially Executed BB CS JV
	11.1a.12 Pacific Gas Line Replacement-MBS Engineering
	Pacific Bid Walk Sign-in Sheet
	Pacific underground gas line replacement
	R23-02679

	11.1a.13 SA23-00197 CDW JSloat Amendment No. 1 packet
	SA23-00197 CDW JSloat Plygrnd Amendment No. 1
	SA23-00197 CDW JSloat Plygrnd-CO Ltr 111822

	11.1a.14 SA23-00206 CDW Sequoia Amendment No. 1 comp pkt
	SA23-00206  CDW Sequoia RR CO Ltr 111822.docx
	SA23-00206 CDW Sequoia Amendment No. 1


	11.1b Combined
	11.1b 12-15-2022 Cover page Personnel Transactions
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1b1 Copy of 12-15-2022 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	11.1b2 12-15-2022 Classfied Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	11.1c Combined
	11.1c 12.15.22 Agenda Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1c1 2022.11 NOV2022 All Payments

	11.1d Updated Combined
	11.1d Updated
	11.1d Combined
	11.1d1 AR06a Receipt Detail November 2022
	Receipt Detail
	Main Body
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	BA23-0001061



	2
	2023
	01
	




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	BW23-0000368
	BW23-0000419
	BW23-0000469



	2
	2023
	01
	






	Recap
	97
	B OF A
	1
	
	
	C




	BOTW AP
	1
	
	
	C










	11.1e Combined McClatchy
	11.1e Agenda Cover Sheet Dec 15, 2022
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1e C.K. McMclathy documents

	11.1f Combined Measure H
	11.1f Measure H CBOC Recommendations_12_15_22_v2-REVISED
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1f1 Redacted BOE Recommendations-REVISED

	11.1g Combined SMAQMD
	11.1g SMAQMD cover_v2
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1g.1 SCUSD_SMAQMD Agreement_Dec 2022

	11.1h Expulsion 5_
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1i Combined Resolution No. 3299 Power of Contract 12.15.22
	11.1j Combined Res No 3300
	11.1j Cover Sheet Resolution No. 3300 Authorization of Personnel to Sign Orders_Cover 12.15.22
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1j.1 Resolution No. 3300 Authorization of Personnel to Sign Orders on District Funds 12.15.22

	11.1k 12.15.22 Agenda Cover Sheet
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Agenda Item# 11.1k
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	Subject:  A-G Completion Grant Plan (CDE) 2022-2025
	☐ Information Item Only X Approval on Consent Agenda ☐ Conference (for discussion only)
	☐ Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)
	☐ Conference/Action
	☐ Action
	☐ Public Hearing
	Division:  Academic Office and Curriculum and Instruction
	Recommendation:  Approve
	Background/Rationale:  The A-G completion grant from CDE (2022-2025) provides our district $3.1 million to fund activities that directly support pupil access to, and successful completion of, the A–G course requirements. This presentation will describ...
	Financial Considerations:  The CDE grant provides $3.1 million for the years 2022-2025.
	LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1: Increase the percent of students who are on-track to graduate college and career ready. • Provide standards-aligned curriculum, assessments and high-quality instruction to prepare students to graduate college and career ready. (...
	Documents Attached:  N/A
	Estimated Time of Presentation:N/A
	Submitted by:  Vanessa Buitrago, Instructional Assistant Superintendent and Erin Hanson, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction
	Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent
	Page 1 of 1

	11.1l Minutes Combined
	11.1l  Minutes Bd Mtg Nov. 17 2022
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	11.1l.1 Draft Meeting Minutes for 11.17.22 meeting
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	Minutes


	12.1 Combined Business and Fin
	12.1 Business and Financial Cover_12.15.22
	Meeting Date:  December 15, 2022

	12.1.1 MONTH 2 for Board Final
	Month 2 TraditionalSchool
	Month 2 GradeByGrade
	Grade-by-Grade

	Month 2 CumTotalAbsences
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool

	FY 2022-23 Monthly Attendance Trends District-Wide
	2022-2023


	12.1.2 PO Report 10.15.22-11.14.22
	Board Report with Fund
	97
	1
	B23-00721
	B23-00722
	B23-00724
	B23-00725
	B23-00726
	B23-00727
	B23-00728
	B23-00729
	B23-00730
	B23-00731
	B23-00732
	B23-00733
	B23-00734
	B23-00735
	B23-00736
	B23-00737
	B23-00738
	B23-00739
	B23-00740
	B23-00741
	B23-00742
	B23-00743
	B23-00744
	B23-00745
	B23-00746
	B23-00747
	B23-00748
	B23-00749
	B23-00750
	B23-00751
	CHB23-00357
	CHB23-00358
	CHB23-00359
	CHB23-00360
	CHB23-00361
	CHB23-00362
	CHB23-00363
	CHB23-00364
	CHB23-00365
	CHB23-00366
	CHB23-00367
	CHB23-00368
	CHB23-00369
	CS23-00252
	CS23-00253
	CS23-00254
	CS23-00255
	CS23-00256
	CS23-00257
	CS23-00258
	CS23-00259
	CS23-00261
	CS23-00262
	CS23-00263
	CS23-00264
	CS23-00265
	CS23-00266
	CS23-00267
	CS23-00268
	CS23-00269
	CS23-00270
	CS23-00271
	CS23-00272
	CS23-00273
	CS23-00274
	CS23-00275
	CS23-00278
	CS23-00279
	CS23-00285
	N23-00034
	P23-00996
	P23-00997
	P23-00998
	P23-00999
	P23-01000
	P23-01001
	P23-01002
	P23-01003
	P23-01004
	P23-01005
	P23-01006
	P23-01007
	P23-01008
	P23-01009
	P23-01010
	P23-01011
	P23-01012
	P23-01013
	P23-01014
	P23-01015
	P23-01016
	P23-01017
	P23-01018
	P23-01019
	P23-01020
	P23-01021
	P23-01022
	P23-01023
	P23-01024
	P23-01025
	P23-01026
	P23-01027
	P23-01028
	P23-01029
	P23-01030
	P23-01031
	P23-01032
	P23-01033
	P23-01034
	P23-01035
	P23-01036
	P23-01037
	P23-01038
	P23-01039
	P23-01043
	P23-01044
	P23-01046
	P23-01047
	P23-01048
	P23-01049
	P23-01050
	P23-01051
	P23-01052
	P23-01053
	P23-01054
	P23-01055
	P23-01056
	P23-01057
	P23-01058
	P23-01059
	P23-01060
	P23-01061
	P23-01062
	P23-01063
	P23-01064
	P23-01065
	P23-01066
	P23-01067
	P23-01068
	P23-01069
	P23-01070
	P23-01071
	P23-01072
	P23-01073
	P23-01074
	P23-01075
	P23-01076
	P23-01077
	P23-01078
	P23-01079
	P23-01081
	P23-01082
	P23-01083
	P23-01084
	P23-01085
	P23-01086
	P23-01087
	P23-01088
	P23-01089
	P23-01090
	P23-01091
	P23-01092
	P23-01093
	P23-01094
	P23-01095
	P23-01096
	P23-01097
	P23-01098
	P23-01099
	P23-01100
	P23-01101
	P23-01102
	P23-01103
	P23-01104
	P23-01105
	P23-01106
	P23-01107
	P23-01108
	P23-01109
	P23-01110
	P23-01111
	P23-01112
	P23-01113
	P23-01114
	P23-01115
	P23-01116
	P23-01117
	P23-01118
	P23-01119
	P23-01120
	P23-01121
	P23-01122
	P23-01123
	P23-01126
	P23-01127
	P23-01128
	P23-01129
	P23-01130
	P23-01131
	P23-01132
	P23-01133
	P23-01134
	P23-01135
	P23-01136
	P23-01137
	P23-01138
	P23-01139
	P23-01140
	P23-01141
	P23-01142
	P23-01143
	P23-01144
	P23-01145
	P23-01146
	P23-01147
	P23-01148
	P23-01149
	P23-01150
	P23-01151
	P23-01152
	P23-01153
	P23-01154
	P23-01155
	P23-01156
	P23-01157
	P23-01158
	P23-01159
	P23-01160
	P23-01161
	P23-01162
	P23-01163
	P23-01164
	P23-01165
	P23-01166
	P23-01167
	P23-01168
	P23-01169
	P23-01170
	P23-01171
	P23-01172
	P23-01173
	P23-01174
	P23-01175
	P23-01176
	P23-01177
	P23-01178
	P23-01179
	P23-01180
	P23-01181
	P23-01182
	P23-01183
	P23-01184
	P23-01185
	P23-01186
	P23-01187
	P23-01188
	P23-01189
	P23-01190
	P23-01191
	P23-01192
	P23-01193
	P23-01194
	P23-01195
	P23-01196
	P23-01197
	P23-01198
	P23-01199
	P23-01200
	P23-01201
	P23-01202
	P23-01203
	P23-01204
	P23-01205
	P23-01206
	P23-01207
	P23-01208
	P23-01209
	P23-01210
	P23-01211
	P23-01212
	P23-01213
	P23-01214
	P23-01215
	P23-01216
	P23-01217
	P23-01218
	P23-01219
	P23-01220
	P23-01221
	P23-01222
	P23-01223
	P23-01224
	P23-01225
	P23-01226
	P23-01227
	P23-01228
	P23-01229
	P23-01230
	P23-01231
	P23-01232
	P23-01233
	P23-01234
	P23-01235
	P23-01236
	P23-01237
	P23-01238
	P23-01240
	P23-01241
	P23-01242
	P23-01243
	P23-01244
	P23-01245
	P23-01246
	P23-01247
	P23-01248
	P23-01249
	P23-01250
	P23-01251
	P23-01252
	P23-01253
	P23-01254
	P23-01255
	P23-01256
	P23-01257
	P23-01258
	P23-01259
	P23-01260
	P23-01261
	P23-01262
	P23-01263
	P23-01264
	P23-01265
	P23-01266
	P23-01267
	P23-01268
	P23-01269
	P23-01270
	P23-01271
	P23-01272
	P23-01273
	P23-01274
	P23-01275
	P23-01276
	P23-01277
	P23-01278
	P23-01279
	P23-01280
	P23-01281
	P23-01282
	P23-01283
	P23-01284
	P23-01285
	P23-01286

	2
	2023

	3
	B22-00742
	B22-00755
	B22-00779
	B23-00049
	B23-00057
	B23-00059
	B23-00068
	B23-00070
	B23-00071
	B23-00072
	B23-00105
	B23-00128
	B23-00134
	B23-00198
	B23-00200
	B23-00235
	B23-00267
	B23-00284
	B23-00289
	B23-00334
	B23-00425
	B23-00477
	B23-00517
	B23-00559
	B23-00570
	B23-00610
	B23-00674
	B23-00675
	CHB23-00001
	CHB23-00073
	CHB23-00214
	CHB23-00216
	CHB23-00217
	CHB23-00270
	CHB23-00287
	CHB23-00294
	CHB23-00310
	CHB23-00324
	CS22-00400
	CS23-00247
	P23-00057
	P23-00268
	P23-00910
	P23-00945








